
 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

             
 

AGENDA 
Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards, Independence, California 
 

NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC:  (1) This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and, for convenience, via Zoom webinar. The Zoom webinar is accessible to the 
public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; 
(929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general 
public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item may do so by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will 
call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes.  
 
Remote participation for members of the public is provided for convenience only. In the event that the remote participation connection malfunctions for any reason, 
the Board of Supervisors reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote access. Regardless of remote access, written public comments, limited to 250 
words or fewer, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us 

 
(2) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 
878-0373 (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours 
prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is 
a public record relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, 
the writing shall be available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1). 

REGULAR MEETING 
June 27, 2023 

 

(Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon 
sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 
  

 Start Time 
 

8:30 A.M. 1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s)  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2) Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Initiation of 
litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(d)(4): 1 case. 

  
 

  3) Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957 – Title: County Administrator. 

  
 

  4) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo 
County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators Sue 

 

 

 
 

 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS  •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY  

 

 
DAN TOTHEROH   •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I NG S LE Y  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NATE GREENBERG 
CO U NT Y ADM I NI ST R AT IV E O FF IC ER  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DARCY ELLIS 
AS S T .  CLE RK  O F T HE  BO ARD  

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, 
County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget Analyst Denelle Carrington, 
Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer 
Jeff Thomson. 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, which cannot be heard prior to their scheduled 
time, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order during the meeting in 
the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 5) Pledge of Allegiance 
  

 

  6) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law 
  

 

  7) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  8) County Department Reports 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; 
approval recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

   

 9) Contract between the County of Inyo and Mammoth Lakes Mosquito 
Abatement District 

  Agricultural Commissioner | Nathan Reade 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the contract between the County of Inyo and 
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District for the provision of mosquito 
abatement and control activities in an amount not to exceed $70,000 per year 
for the period of  July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2028, contingent upon the Board’s 
approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent 
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
10) 

 
Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 

  Clerk of the Board | Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the minutes from the regular Board of 
Supervisors meetings of June 13, 2023 and June 20, 2023. 

 

   

  
11) 

 
Continuation of Local Emergency 

  County Administrator - Emergency Services | Mikaela Torres 
 

Recommended Action: Discuss, consider, and approve staff’s 
recommendation to continue the local emergency proclaimed in response to 
the 2023 storms and projected spring runoff in March 2023. 

 

   

  
12) 

 
Domain Name Authorization 

  County Administrator - Information Services | Noam Shendar 
 

Recommended Action: Approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a 
letter requesting responsibility for the domain name www.inyo.gov.  

 

   
  

 
 
 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

13) Inyo-Mono County Veterans Services Office - Annual Compliance Forms 

  County Administrator - Veterans Service Office | Denelle Carrington 
 

Recommended Action: Authorize the Chairperson to sign the California 
Department of Veterans Affairs Annual Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance Program 
Certificate of Compliance for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 and the California 
Department of Veterans Annual Subvention Certificate of Compliance for 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 

 

   

  
14) 

 
Approval of Hiring a Hazardous Materials Program Manager Senior            
at Step E  

  Environmental Health | Jerry Oser 
 

Recommended Action: Authorize the hiring of one (1) Hazardous Materials 
Program Manager Senior, Range 84 ($7,178 - $8,725), at the E Step ($8,725). 

 

   

  
15) 

 
CDPH Immunization Branch Local Assistance Grant Agreement Renewal 
22-27 

  Health & Human Services | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve Agreement 22-11027 between 
the County of Inyo and California Department of Public Health, Immunization 
Branch, of Sacramento, CA for the provision of the Immunization Program in 
an amount not to exceed $310,219.58 for the period of  July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2027, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and 
authorize the HHS Director to sign the Grant Agreement, the CDPH 1229, the 
Certification Regarding Lobbying, the Contractor Certification Clause, and the 
California Civil Rights Laws Attachment. 

 

   

  
16) 

 
Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. for Epidemiology 
Services 

  Health & Human Services | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the sole-source contract between the 
County of Inyo and Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. for the provision of 
Epidemiology Services in an amount not to exceed $290,400 for the period of 
July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget; and authorize the Chairperson to sign the 
contract and Business Associate Agreement, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
17) 

 
Modification to Subcontractor Agreement with Advocates for Human 
Potential Crisis Care Mobile Unit Project 

  Health & Human Services | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the modification between the County of Inyo 
and Advocates for Human Potential, Inc. of Sudbury, MA, to increase funding 
by $300,000 for a total of $500,000 with the period of performance extended 
through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets, and authorize the HHS Director or Designee to sign, contingent upon 
all appropriate signatures being obtained.  

 

      



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

18) Program Funding Agreement for Community Care Expansion 
Preservation Projects 

  Health & Human Services | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the agreement between the County of Inyo 
and Advocates for Human Potential, Inc (AHP) of Sudbury, MA for an amount 
not to exceed $203,113.00 for the period of  July 1, 2023 through January 30, 
2027, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize 
Marilyn Mann, HHS Director to sign the agreement, Certification regarding 
lobbying and the CDSS Confidentially and Information Security requirement 
and authorize the Assistant Chief Information Officer or Designee to sign the 

CDSS Confidentially and Information Security requirement.    
 

   

  
19) 

 
Life Generations Healthcare, LLC Amendment No. 1 Provision of Mental 
Health Services 

  Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement 
between the County of Inyo and Life Generations Healthcare LLC of Lakeside, 
CA, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $100,000 and 
extending the term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent 
upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

 

   

  
20) 

 
California Department of Aging FY 2023-24 Area Plan Agreement 

  Health & Human Services - ESAAA | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Contract No. AP-2324-16 with the California 
Department of Aging (CDA) for regional services to seniors, provided through 
the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA), in the amount of 
$1,560,586 for the period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, contingent 
upon the Board’s adoption of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize 
the HHS Director to sign the Standard Agreement (STD 213), Information 
Integrity and Security Statement Certification, Contractor Certification Clause, 

and the California Civil Rights Laws Certification.   
 

   

  
21) 

 
Modernizing Older Californians Act Nutrition Services 

  Health & Human Services - ESAAA | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the standard agreement with the California 
Department of Aging in the amount of $572,754 for the period beginning July 
1, 2023 through March 31, 2029 and authorize the HHS Director to sign the 
standard agreement, the Information Integrity and Security Statement, the Civil 

Rights Certification, and the Contract Certification form.  
 

   

  
22) 

 
Modernizing Older Californians Act Supportive Services 

  Health & Human Services - ESAAA | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve the standard agreement with the 
California Department of Aging in the amount of $229,544 for the period 
beginning January 1, 2023 through March 31, 2026 and authorize the HHS 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

Director to sign the standard agreement, the Information Integrity and Security 
Statement, the Civil Rights Certification, and the Contract Certification form.  

 

   

  
23) 

 
Agreement for the Provision of Personal Services as County Health 
Officer 

  Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the agreement between the County of Inyo 
and James A. Richardson, MD for the provision of Health Officer services in an 
amount not to exceed $205,000 for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 
2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets for the Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024 Budget; and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent 
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
24) 

 
Approval of Hiring a Public Health Nurse at Step E 

  Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Authorize the hiring of one (1) Public Health Nurse, 
Range 80 ($6,509 - $7,918), at the E Step ($7,918). 

 

   

  
25) 

 

eXemplar Human Services Contract 

  Health & Human Services - Social Services | Darcia Blackdeer-Lent 
 

Recommended Action: A) declare eXemplar Human Services of Reno, NV a 
sole-source provider of customized Social Service reporting tools and services; 
B) approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and eXemplar Human 
Services of Reno, NV for the provision of customized Social Service reporting 
tools and services in an amount not to exceed $120,000.00 for the period of 
July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets; and C) and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
26) 

 
Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc. Contract Amendment No. 7 

  Planning Department | Cathreen Richards 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve Amendment No. 7 to the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc. for the 
provision of hydrological services to amend all sections relating to the Term of 
the agreement to be April 25, 2017 to April 25, 2024, contingent upon the 
adoption of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson 
to sign, contingent on all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

27) Amendment No. 5 to MOU between the County of Inyo and Tuolumne 
County 

  Probation | Jeffrey Thomson 

Recommended Action:  

A) Approve Amendment No. 5 to the Memorandum of Understanding 

between the County of Inyo and the County of Tuolumne to extend the 

Agreement from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2025 and set the following 

daily rates: 

1. $175.00 per day from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 per youth 

placed at the Mother Lode Regional Juvenile Detention Facility with 

a guarantee of one (1) bed at the Tuolumne Juvenile Hall and 

$210.00 per day for every subsequent bed used by Inyo County, 

contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

Budget, and 

2. $185.00 per day from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 per youth 

placed at the Mother Lode Regional Juvenile Detention Facility with 

a guarantee of one (1) bed at the Tuolumne Juvenile Hall and 

$225.00 per day for every subsequent bed used by Inyo County, 

contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

Budget, and  

B) Authorize the Chairperson and Chief Probation Officer to sign.  
 

   

  
28) 

 
Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Project - Resolution & Notice of 
Completion 

  Public Works - Parks & Recreation | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Resolution No. 2023-20 titled, “A Resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California 
Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Diaz Lake Water 
System Upgrade Project,” and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

 

   

  
29) 

 
North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Bridge Replacement Project 
 - Resolution & Notice of Completion 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Resolution No. 2023-21 titled, "A Resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California 
Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the North Round 
Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Bridge Replacement Project," and authorize 

the Chairperson to sign.   
 

REGULAR AGENDA  

  
 

   

 30) Presentation of Assessor's Office Operations 

  Assessor | David Stottlemyre 
20 minutes (10min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Receive a presentation from the Assessor 
summarizing the work done within the Assessor’s office, and concluding with 
an introduction to current/future projects followed by Q&A.  

 

      



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

31) Adult and Juvenile Probation Presentation  

  Probation | Jeffrey Thomson 
20 minutes (10min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Receive a presentation on the Adult and Juvenile 
Probation programs. 
 

 

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT & REPORTS  
  

 

  32) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  33) Board Member and Staff Reports 
Receive updates on recent or upcoming meetings and projects 

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3855  

 

Contract between the County of Inyo and Mammoth 
Lakes Mosquito Abatement District 

Agricultural Commissioner 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nathan Reade, Ag Commissioner Nathan Reade, Ag Commissioner 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District for 
the provision of mosquito abatement and control activities in an amount not to exceed $70,000 per year 
for the period of  July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2028, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program has been providing mosquito control and abatement 
services for the Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District for many years.  This contract would 
extend that relationship out to 2028, as the current contract will expire on June 30, 2023.  The only 
change that has been made to the contract from the previous five-year contract is the amount, which has 
been increased by $5,000 each year (from $65,000 per year to $70,000 per year) for a total of $350,000 
over the five -year term. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund Budget Unit 154101 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code  
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure / Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
This budget relies on funding provided by this contract. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
If not approved, the mosquito control budget will lose $350,000 in revenue over the next five years. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District - Inyo County Agreement 
  
APPROVALS: 
Nathan Reade Created/Initiated - 6/19/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/20/2023 
Nathan Reade Approved - 6/20/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/20/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/21/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MLMAD & COUNTY Agreement for Service Page 1 of 9

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND THE MAMMOTH 
LAKES MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT FOR THE PROVISION OF 

MOSQUITO ABATEMENT SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District (hereinafter referred to as 
“MLMAD”), has the need for the mosquito abatement services of the County of Inyo, a 
political subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as “County”) performed 
through or by its Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program, and in consideration of the 
mutual promises, covenants, terms and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby 
agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK
The County hereby agrees to provide mosquito abatement services to MLMAD. 
These services will include field surveillance, monitoring and mosquito control in the 
MLMAD, as further set out in Appendix A. The goal of this agreement is to place 
primary emphasis on the mitigation of potential mosquito-borne disease transmission, 
to include the emerging West Nile Virus, and the avoidance of nuisance conditions 
from mosquitoes in the MLMAD.

Work performed under this Agreement shall comply with the mosquito abatement 
requirements set forth in the annual cooperative agreement between the State of 
California, Department of Public Health, Vector-Borne Disease Section and the 
County (Appendix B).

Work by the County that is outside the Scope of Work or which will result in 
additional charges, shall not be performed unless this Agreement is amended in 
accordance with Section 18 of this Agreement to include said work.

This Agreement is not intended to modify any duty of MLMAD to abate nuisances on 
its property.

2. TERM
This Agreement shall become effective upon the date of execution by the person 
authorized to do so by the Board of Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District 
and shall continue for a term of five (5) years from said effective date unless otherwise 
terminated as provided below.

3. COMPENSATION
MLMAD shall pay to County seventy thousand dollars ($70,000.00) annually for the 
services set out in Section 1 and Appendix A. Annual payments shall be in two 
installments, half shall be due on July 1 of each year and half shall be due on 
January 1 of each year. The expenditures under this Agreement for all expenses and 
supplies shall not exceed $350,000 for the term of this Agreement.



MLMAD & COUNTY Agreement for Service Page 2 of 9

4. BILLING & INVOICES
The County shall bi-annually submit to the Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement 
District c/o Steve Ganong, Contract Administrator, P.O. Box 1943 Mammoth Lakes, 
California 93546 a verified and itemized invoice stating the services performed and 
any expenses necessarily incurred during the prior six-month period. Such invoices 
shall be detailed and shall include a copy of any invoice submitted to the County from 
each supplier.

5. PERMITS
The County and its officers, agents, and employees shall obtain and maintain all 
permits and licenses necessary for the County’s performance hereunder and shall 
pay any fees required therefor.

5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
The County is acting hereunder as an independent contractor and not as an agent or 
employee of MLMAD. The County shall not represent or otherwise hold out itself or 
any of its directors, officers, partners, employees, or agents to be an agent or employee 
of MLMAD.

6. PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT OR DELEGATION
A. The County shall not assign or otherwise alienate any of its rights hereunder, 

including the right to payment.

B. The County shall not delegate or otherwise transfer any of its duties 
hereunder.

7. INSURANCE
Proof of insurance shall be provided by each party to the other party prior to 
commencing any work under this Agreement.

A. General Liability.

Both the County and MLMAD shall procure, and maintain during the entire term 
of this Agreement, a policy of general liability insurance which covers all the 
services and work to be performed under this Agreement. Such policies shall have 
a per occurrence combined single limit coverage of not less than two million 
dollars ($2,000,000). Such policies shall not exclude or except from coverage any 
of the services and work required to be performed by the County under this 
Agreement. The required policies of insurance shall be issued by an insurer 
authorized to sell such insurance by the State of California that has an “A.M. 
Best’s” policyholder’s rating of at least an “A” or by a Joint Powers Authority 
insurance pool that has reinsurance with an “A.M. Best’s” policyholder’s rating 
of at least an “A”. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, each 



MLMAD & COUNTY Agreement for Service Page 3 of 9

party shall provide the other: 1) a certificate of insurance documenting evidence of 
the required coverage; and 2) an additional insured endorsement applying to the 
other party, its agents, officers and employees. Neither the County nor MLMAD 
shall modify, terminate, or cancel said policy without 30 days’ written notice of 
cancellation or change of coverage to the other.

B. Business Vehicle.

The County shall procure and maintain in force throughout the duration of this 
Agreement, a business auto liability insurance policy with minimum coverage 
levels of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, combined single limit 
for bodily injury liability and property damage liability. The coverage shall include 
all County- owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles employed by the County in the 
performance of the services and work requested by MLMAD, as described in this 
Agreement. Neither the County nor MLMAD shall modify, terminate, or cancel 
said policy without 30 days’ written notice of cancellation or change of coverage to 
the other.

8. INDEMNIFICATION
The MLMAD undertakes and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County and 
all of its officers, agents, employees and governing board members, and, at the option 
of the County, to defend the County, its Board, officers, employees, agents, and 
representatives from and against any and all suits or causes of action, claims, charges, 
damages, demands, judgments, civil fines and penalties, or losses of any kind or 
nature, whatsoever, for death, bodily injury or personal injury to any person, including 
MLMAD employees and agents, or damage or destruction to any property of either 
party hereto, or third persons in any manner, arising out of, resulting from, or in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement.

To the extent permitted by law, the County shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless 
MLMAD, its agents, officers, employees, governing board members, and 
representatives from and against any and all claims, demands, and causes of action by 
County’s employees or third parties on account of personal injuries or death or on 
account of property damages arising out of the work to be performed by County 
hereunder and resulting from the negligent act or omissions of County, its officers, or 
employees. The foregoing reference to ‘negligent act’ is not intended to limit the 
County’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless MLMAD, its agents, 
officers, employees, governing board members, and representatives with respect to any 
alleged errors or omissions by the County relating to the proper handling and 
application of pesticides once the decision has been made to use them in a particular 
situation. 



MLMAD & COUNTY Agreement for Service Page 4 of 9

The obligations to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless under the provisions of this 
section are not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this Agreement for 
MLMAD and the County to procure and maintain a policy of insurance, and shall 
survive the termination or expiration of this agreement.

9. RECORDS & AUDITS
The County shall maintain records and books of accounts showing all costs and 
expenses incurred by the County for this Agreement.  MLMAD shall have the right 
upon reasonable notice, to audit the books, records, documents, and other evidence and 
the accounting procedures and practices, where needed, under time-and-materials 
tasks, to verify the costs and expenses claimed. MLMAD retains this right for at least 
three years after final payment and until all disputes, appeals, litigation, or claims have 
been resolved. This right to audit shall also include inspection at reasonable times of 
the County facilities that are engaged in the performance of this Agreement. In 
addition, the County shall, at no cost or expense to MLMAD, furnish reasonable 
facilities and assistance for such an audit. Upon request, but at MLMAD’s cost, the 
County shall also provide copies of documents applicable to this Agreement. The 
audit findings shall, to the extent allowed by law, be treated by MLMAD as 
confidential.

10. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION
Except as provided by the California Public Records Act, all information contained 
in drawings, specifications, technical reports, and data provided by MLMAD to the 
County shall be held in confidence by the County and used only to provide services to 
MLMAD. The County shall not disclose said information without the Contract 
Administrator’s written authorization.

11. REPRESENTATIVES AND NOTICES:
Any notice, demand, or request directed to MLMAD shall be delivered to:

Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District
Lorinda Beatty, District Secretary
P.O. Box 1943
Mammoth Lakes, California 
93546 (760) 914-1354

Any notice, demand, or request directed to the County shall be delivered to:

Agricultural Commissioner
Counties of Inyo/ Mono
Department of Agriculture
1360 N. Main Street
Bishop, CA 93514
(760) 873-7860



MLMAD & COUNTY Agreement for Service Page 5 of 9

12. CONFLICTS
A. Claims for Labor and Materials

The County shall promptly pay, when due, all amounts payable for labor and 
materials furnished in performance of this Agreement so as to prevent any lien 
or other claim under any provision of law from arising against any MLMAD 
property, against the County’s rights to payments hereunder, or against the 
MLMAD, and shall pay all amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act 
with respect to such labor.

B. Errors and Omissions

The County shall be responsible for correcting or remedying any errors or 
omissions which occur in performance of the services under this Agreement and 
which are the result of the County’s negligence or action. The cost of correcting or 
remedying any error or omission shall be borne by the County.

13. BREACH
If any party fails to perform, in whole or in part, any promise, covenant, or agreement 
set forth herein, or should any representation made by it be untrue, said party shall 
be in breach and any aggrieved party may avail itself of all rights and remedies, 
at law or equity, in the courts of law. Said rights and remedies are cumulative of 
those provided herein except that in no event shall any party recover more than once, 
suffer a penalty or forfeiture, or be unjustly compensated.

14. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
This Agreement may be terminated by either party, without cause, on 30 calendar 
days’ written notice. Said notice will be given by the Contract Administrator on 
MLMAD’s behalf and by the Agricultural Commissioner on the County’s behalf. The 
County shall be entitled to payment for all services performed to the date of 
cancellation on a pro rata basis and for all other reasonable termination expenses.

15. VENUE
The venue for any dispute or litigation shall be in Mono County, California.

17. APPLICABLE LAW AND SEVERABILITY
Each party’s performance hereunder shall comply with all applicable laws of the 
United States of America and the State of California. This Agreement shall be 
enforced and interpreted under the laws of the State of California.

If any part, term, or provision of this Agreement shall be held void, illegal, 
unenforceable, or in conflict with any law of a federal, state or local government 



MLMAD & COUNTY Agreement for Service Page 6 of 9

having jurisdiction over this Agreement, the validity of the remaining portions or 
provisions shall not be affected thereby.

18. AMENDMENT
All amendments hereto shall be in writing and signed by the person(s) authorized to 
bind the parties thereto.

19. INTEGRATION
This Agreement sets forth all of the rights and duties of the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof, and replaces any and all previous agreements or 
understandings, whether written or oral, relating thereto. This Agreement may be 
amended only as provided for in Section 18 hereof.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS 
AND SEALS AS SET FORTH BELOW.

COUNTY OF INYO: MLMAD:
By:  By:  
Name:    Jennifer Roeser Name: Steve Ganong 
Title: Chair of the Board of Supervisors Title: Chair of the Board of Directors
Date:  Date:  



MLMAD & COUNTY Agreement for Service Page 7 of 9

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND THE MAMMOTH 
LAKES MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT FOR THE PROVISION OF 

MOSQUITO ABATEMENT SERVICES

APPENDIX A

Scope of Work:

Staff and Equipment

COUNTY will maintain and utilize adequate staff and equipment to address all mosquito 
concerns within the MLMAD.

1.   All permits and regulatory requirements needed to conduct business will be obtained 
by the COUNTY.

2.  MLMAD rate payers will be encouraged to contact the County via a local phone 
number and/or email to report mosquito issues.  All rate payer requests will be 
responded to within one business day.

3.  All County staff will wear uniforms clearly identifying them as mosquito abatement 
staff and will be certified by the State of California, Department of Public Health, 
Vector- Borne Disease Section in the control of mosquitoes.

4. All known mosquito breeding sources will be inspected weekly and adequate 
mosquito larvicide will be applied.

5.  Routine and random investigations of possible mosquito breeding sources will be 
conducted throughout the service area.

6.   Routine and specific adult mosquito trapping will occur during the mosquito breeding 
season.  Samples will be submitted for testing and results determined.

7.  The County will inform MLMAD should MLMAD need to request an inspection and 
abatement warrant; should MLMAD need to notify a property owner of the existence 
of a public nuisance; and should any person restrain, hinder, obstruct or threaten the 
County’s staff in the performance of duties pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise 
interfere with any work done by, or under the direction of, the County pursuant to this 
Agreement.

Pesticides

The County will purchase and maintain all mosquito control pesticides.  Primary 
mosquito control efforts will focus on mosquito larvae control (larvicides). Adult mosquito 
control will occur when adult mosquito populations are verified by trapping populations in 
excess of 50 adult mosquitoes or when there is a public health need regardless of population 
limits.

1.  All pesticides must be accepted for use by the State of California and the County 
Agricultural Commissioner.



MLMAD & COUNTY Agreement for Service Page 8 of 9

2.  If there is a need for adulticide applications, t he  COUNTY wi l l  a t t empt  to  
no t i fy  the  public 24 hours advance notice. If need for control is eminent, advanced 
notice may not be possible.  Media for notice will include radio and posted notices at 
public facilities. A “Do Not Spray” list will be maintained and honored as best 
managed.

MLMAD Boundaries



MLMAD & COUNTY Agreement for Service- Appendix B Page 9 of 9

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND THE MAMMOTH 
LAKES MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT FOR THE PROVISION OF

MOSQUITO ABATEMENT SERVICES

APPENDIX B

Cooperative Agreement

The County will provide all the functions of a mosquito abatement district outlined in the annual 
cooperative agreement with the State of California, Department of Public Health, Vector-Borne 
Disease Section (VBDS), attached hereto and incorporated herein.



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3885  

 

Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
Clerk of the Board 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Clerk of the Board Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the minutes from the regular Board of Supervisors meetings of June 13, 2023 and June 20, 
2023. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, 
www.inyocounty.us. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft June 13, 2023 Minutes 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

https://www.inyocounty.us/government/publications-reports-plans-proclamations/meeting-agendas-minutes


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

2. Draft June 20, 2023 Minutes 
  
APPROVALS: 
Hayley Carter Created/Initiated - 6/20/2023 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  1                                                                                                                                     June 13, 2023      

    

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

June 13, 2023
 
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 9:01 a.m., on 
June 6, 2023, in the Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center, Independence, with the following 
Supervisors present: Chairperson Jennifer Roeser, presiding, Matt Kingsley, Trina Orrill, Scott Marcellin, and Jeff 
Griffiths. Also present: County Administrator Nate Greenberg, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, and Assistant Clerk of 
the Board Darcy Ellis. 

Closed Session 
Public Comment

The Chairperson asked for public comment related to Closed Session items and there was 
nobody wishing to speak.

Closed Session Chairperson Roeser recessed open session at 9:01 a.m. to convene in closed session with 
all Board members present to discuss the following item(s): No. 2 Conference with Legal 
Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Initiation of litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(d)(4): one 
potential case; and No. 3 Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to 
Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional 
Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County 
Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement 
Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated 
representatives – Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators 
Sue Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, County 
Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget Analyst Denelle Carrington, Health and Human 
Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff Thomson.

Open Session Chairperson Roeser recessed closed session and reconvened the meeting in open session 
at 10:10 a.m. with all Board members present except Supervisor Kingsley.

Pledge of Allegiance County Counsel Vallejo led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Report on Closed 
Session

County Counsel Vallejo reported that no action was taken during closed session that is 
required to be reported.

Public Comment The Chairperson asked for public comment related to items not calendared on the agenda 
and public comment was made by Lauralyn Hundley, IHSS *****, and Bob Olin.

County Department 
Reports

HHS Director Marilyn Mann reminded the Board that June is Elder Abuse Awareness Month. 
Public Works Director Mike Errante announced a ribbon cutting for North Round Valley Road 
on Thursday and Public Works Deputy Director-Roads Shannon Platt gave an update on 
damage to Whitney Portal Road. Public Works Assistant Director John Pinckney gave a 
report on the boil order issued for the Independence Water System as a result of a power 
outage. Ag Commissioner Nate Reade updated the Board on the mosquito condition 
throughout the County, noting that crews are starting to see an increase in mosquito activity 
and dead birds, which could be an indicator of the presence of West Nile virus in the valley.

Clerk of the Board – 
Approval of Minutes

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Scott Marcellin to approve the minutes from 
the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of June 6, 2023. Motion carried unanimously.

Clerk of the Board – 
Bishop Fire District 
Commissioner 

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Scott Marcellin to appoint Mr. Lloyd 
Anderson to a four-year term on the Bishop Rural Fire Protection District Board of 
Commissioners, ending July 1, 2027. Motion carried unanimously.



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  2                                                                                                                                     June 13, 2023      

Appointment

HHS-Behavioral Health 
– Crestwood 
Behavioral Health 
Amendment 2

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Scott Marcellin to approve Amendment No. 
2 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. of 
Sacramento, CA increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $406,000, and 
extending the term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works-
Recycling & Waste 
Management – 
Brown’s Supply 
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Scott Marcellin to approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Brown's Supply, Inc of Bishop, CA for the provision of 
cardboard processing in an amount not to exceed $180,000 for the period of July 1, 2023 
through June 30, 2026, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
Motion carried unanimously.

Sheriff – 2023 Patrol 
and Controlled 
Substance Operating & 
Financial Plan

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Scott Marcellin to: 
A) Ratify the agreement 20-LE-11051360-040 between the County of Inyo and USDEA 

USFS for the provision of controlled substance operations for a funding amount of up 
to $5,000 for the period of October 1, 2022, through September 30, 2023; 

B) Approve the agreement 20-LE-11051360-040 between the County of Inyo and 
USDEA USFS for the provision of forest service patrols in funding amount up to 
$12,000 for October 1, 2022, through September 30, 2023, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget; and 

C) Authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained. 

Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works – 
LTC Appointment

Transportation Coordinator Justine Kokx requested the Board consider letters of interest 
received by Jeffrey Ray and Deena Davenport for appointment to a single vacancy on the 
Inyo County Local Transportation Commission. The applicants addressed the Board, which 
recognized that both individuals were quality candidates and the County would be lucky to 
have either one serving on the commission. Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by 
Supervisor Marcellin to appoint Jeffrey Ray to represent Inyo County on the Local 
Transportation Commission. Motion carried unanimously.

Emergency Services – 
Wildfire Mitigation 
Presentation

Supervisor Griffiths introduced and the Board received a presentation from Yana Valachovic, 
a registered professional forester and scientist with the University of California, on new 
wildfire mitigation advancements. Wildfire Preparedness Coordinator Kristen Pfeiler provided 
additional information.

Sheriff – Carport 
Budget Amendment

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to: 
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Sheriff General Budget (022700) as follows: 

increase estimated revenue in AB443 - Sheriff Revenue Code No. (4486) by $18,000 
and increase appropriation in Equipment Object Code (5650) by $18,000 (4/5ths 
vote required); and 

B) Authorize the purchase and installation of a carport in an amount not to exceed 
$18,000, payable to Complex Steel Buildings.

Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works – 
Commercial Air Service 
Update

Mammoth Lakes Tourism Executive Director John Urdi and Inyo County Public Works 
Deputy Director-Airports Ashley Helms presented a commercial air service update.

Recess/Reconvene The Chairperson recessed the meeting at 12:43 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at 1:22 
p.m. with all Board members present.

CAO – Preliminary 
FY 23-24 Budget

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to adopt the modified Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 Board Approved Budget as the Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 and approve the Fixed Assets as recommended by staff (4/5’s vote required). Motion 
carried unanimously.



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  3                                                                                                                                     June 13, 2023      

CAO – United Airlines 
22-23 Air Service 
Subsidy Contract

The Board engaged in lengthy discussion about an air service subsidy contract for Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023, with Board members expressing a desire to have a future plan for splitting 
the costs of the subsidy with area partners such as the City of Bishop and Town of Mammoth 
Lakes. Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to: A) Approve the 
Winter 2022-2023 Commercial Air Service Revenue Guarantee Cost Sharing Agreement 
with Mammoth Lakes Tourism and authorize the Board Chair to sign; B) Approve the 
payment of Invoice #2452 from Mammoth Lakes Tourism in the amount of $266,462. Motion 
carried unanimously.

Attendance Change Supervisor Kingsley left the meeting in order to travel to another meeting out of the county.

Board Member & Staff 
Reports

Assistant Clerk of the Board Ellis thanked the Information Services Department, specifically 
Assistant Chief Information Officer Jayme Westervelt and Network and Operations Analyst 
Rochelle Romo for diagnosing and fixing a technical issue with the A/V equipment earlier in 
the meeting.

CAO Greenberg provided an update on runoff response. 

Supervisor Griffiths reported attending a veterans housing meeting and meetings of the 
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority (ESTA) and Bishop City Council.

Supervisor Orrill said she also attended the ESTA meeting, in addition to the Drug Court 
graduation.

Public Comment Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment pending for items not 
calendared on the agenda and public comment was made by Jeffrey Ray.

Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 2:35 p.m. to 8:30 a.m. Tuesday, June 20, 2023, in the County 
Administrative Center in Independence.

                                                                                    Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

Attest:   N A T E  G R E E N B E R G
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d
              
           
 

 by:       _____________________________________
 Darcy Ellis, Assistant



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  1                                                                                                                                     June 20, 2023      

    

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

June 20, 2023
 
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 8:34 a.m., on 
June 20, 2023, in the Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center, Independence, with the following 
Supervisors present: Chairperson Jennifer Roeser, presiding, Trina Orrill, Matt Kingsley, and Jeff Griffiths. Also present: 
County Administrator Nate Greenberg, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, and Assistant Clerk of the Board Darcy Ellis. 
Absent: Supervisor Marcellin.

Closed Session 
Public Comment

The Chairperson asked for public comment related to Closed Session items and there was 
nobody wishing to speak.

Closed Session Chairperson Roeser recessed open session at 8:34 a.m. to convene in closed session with 
all Board members present except Supervisor Marcellin to discuss the following item(s): No. 
2 Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected 
Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association 
(ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). 
Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – Administrative Officer 
Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators Sue Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget 
Analyst Denelle Carrington, Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief 
Probation Officer Jeff Thomson; and No. 3 Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated 
Litigation - Initiation of litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(d)(4): 1 case.

Open Session Chairperson Roeser recessed closed session and reconvened the meeting in open session 
at 10:10 a.m. with all Board members present except Supervisor Marcellin.

Pledge of Allegiance Assistant Clerk of the Board Ellis led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Report on Closed 
Session

County Counsel Vallejo reported that no action was taken during closed session that is 
required to be reported.

Introductions The following new employees were introduced to the Board: Chief Information Officer Noam 
Shendar, GIS Analyst Grace Hall, and Correctional Officer Alejandro Lopez-Ruiz.

Public Comment The Chairperson asked for public comment related to items not calendared on the agenda 
and public comment was given by Lauralyn Hundley.

County Department 
Reports 

Public Works Director Mike Errante thanked Board members for attending the North Round 
Valley Bridge ribbon cutting ceremony and said Lower Rock Creek Road is now open. 
Errante reminded attendees to look for updates on road conditions on the County website.

Deputy Public Works Director Shannon Platt provided updates on areas affected by flooding 
and noted that crews have been working non-stop to create enough sandbags to combat the 
increasing runoff flows. 

CAO-Advertising 
County Resources –
Film Commissioner 
Contract Extension 

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to authorize staff to 
exercise the County's option to extend the current Film Commissioner agreement with Mr. 
Jesse Steele to June 30, 2024, per paragraph 2.a. of the agreement, and adjust the rate 
according to paragraph 3.d., pending Board approval of the 2023-2024 budget, and to send 
Mr. Steele notice of the extension. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Marcellin 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  2                                                                                                                                     June 20, 2023      

absent.

CAO-Economic 
Development –
The Ferguson Group 
Contract Amendment 
No. 3

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve Amendment 
No. 3 to the contract between The Ferguson Group, LLC and County of Inyo for provision of 
Federal Advocacy Services, extending the term from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2024 in an 
amount not to exceed $101,000, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Marcellin absent.

CAO - 
Broadband Grants 
Authorized 
Representative 

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to appoint the County 
Administrator as the Authorized Representative to facilitate the grant application process for 
two Federal Broadband-related grant applications: 1) USDA Rural Development (RD) 
Broadband Technical Assistance (BTA) Grant; and 2) FCC Affordable Connectivity Program 
(ACP) Outreach Grant, Round 2. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Marcellin 
absent.

HHS-Behavioral
Health –
Anne Sippi Clinic 
Contract Amendment 
No. 1

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve Amendment 
No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Anne Sippi Clinic Treatment Group of 
Bakersfield, CA, extending the term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion 
carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Marcellin absent.

HHS-ESAAA –
ESAAA Advisory 
Council Appointments

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to: A) Appoint Rebecca J. 
Manross to the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) Advisory Council to an 
unexpired two-year term ending December 31, 2023, and B) appoint Joel Ryan to the 
ESAAA Advisory Council to an unexpired two-year term ending December 31, 2024. Motion 
carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Marcellin absent.

HHS-Behavioral
Health –
TeleConnect Therapies 
Contract Amendment 
No. 3

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve Amendment 
No. 3 to the contract between the County of Inyo and TeleConnect Therapies of Avalon, CA, 
increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $399,040 and extending the term end 
date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval the Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor 
Marcellin absent.

HHS- Behavioral
Health –
Iris Telehealth 
Agreement 
Amendment

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve an addendum 
to the contract between the County of Inyo and Thomas Milam MD, Inc. d/b/a Iris Telehealth 
of Austin, TX, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $220,000 and extending 
the term end date from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval 
the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon 
all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor 
Marcellin absent.

HHS-Fiscal –
Anthem HHIP 
Agreement

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to ratify and approve the 
agreement between the County of Inyo and Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan 
(Anthem Blue Cross) for the purpose of building partnerships and addressing housing and 
homelessness on behalf of the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care, servicing Alpine, Inyo, and 
Mono counties, in an amount not to exceed $120,668 for the period of November 1, 2022 to 
December 31, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-24 
Budget, and authorize the HHS Director to sign. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with 
Supervisor Marcellin absent.

HHS-Fiscal –
CA Health and 
Wellness HHIP 
Agreement

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to ratify and approve the 
agreement between the County of Inyo and Health Net, LLC and California Health and 
Wellness Plan for the purpose of building partnerships and addressing housing and 
homelessness on behalf of the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care, servicing Alpine, Inyo, and 
Mono counties, in an amount not to exceed $78,417 for the period of January 1, 2023 to 
October 31, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget, 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  3                                                                                                                                     June 20, 2023      

and authorize the HHS Director to sign. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor 
Marcellin absent.

CAO-Emergency 
Services –
CA Fire Safe Council 
Subaward Agreement

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to ratify and approve the 
subaward agreement with the California Fire Safe Council for $20,000 to be used for 
capacity-building and authorize the Emergency Services Manager to sign. Motion carried 
unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Marcellin absent.

Northern Inyo County 
Local Hospital District –
Update and 
Presentation

Chief Financial Officer/Interim Chief Executive Officer for the Northern Inyo County Local 
Hospital District Stephen delRossi provided the Board with updates on the dire financial 
situation at Northern Inyo Hospital and discussed possible causes and solutions.

Public Comment Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment pending for items not 
calendared on the agenda and there was no one wishing to speak.

Board Member & Staff 
Reports

Supervisor Kingsley said he attended a meeting of the Bureau of Land Management 
Resource Advisory Committee and had meetings with constituents. Kingsley said that he will 
be traveling to Redding this week for a Golden State Natural Resources meeting and 
reminded everyone that the Future Farmers of America/4-H Livestock Auction is going on 
this weekend. 

Supervisor Orrill said she attended meetings of the Eastern Sierra Agency on Aging, the 
Behavioral Health Advisory Board, the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments, and the 
Mustang Mesa Community Service District. Orrill said that she also enjoyed the opportunity 
to serve tea to High School Rodeo Queen candidates and that she attended the North Round 
Valley Bridge ribbon cutting ceremony.

Supervisor Roeser said that she attended the High School Rodeo event and tea, the North 
Round Valley Bridge ribbon cutting ceremony, a garden party at 40 Acres, and constituent 
meetings. 

Supervisor Griffiths said he attended an Eastern Sierra Council of Government meeting, the 
“Towns to Trails” kickoff, and a City-County Liaison meeting.

CAO Greenberg said he attended the North Round Valley Bridge ribbon cutting ceremony, 
the City-County Liaison meeting, and internal meetings for emergency management, Inyo 
County leadership development, and staff meetings to discuss the Community Economic 
Resilience Fund. Greenberg said that he met with Fire Chief Damon Carrington to work on 
bringing a swift water rescue team to the area ahead of the Fourth of July holiday and 
mentioned he will be traveling out of county the rest of the week.

Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 11:39 a.m. to 8:30 a.m. Tuesday, June 27, 2023, in the 
County Administrative Center in Independence.

                                                                                    Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

Attest:   N A T E  G R E E N B E R G
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d
              
           
 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  4                                                                                                                                     June 20, 2023      

 by:       _____________________________________
 Darcy Ellis, Assistant



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3870  

 

Continuation of Local Emergency 
County Administrator - Emergency Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Emergency Services Mikaela Torres, Emergency Services Manager 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Discuss, consider, and approve staff’s recommendation to continue the local emergency proclaimed in 
response to the 2023 storms and projected spring runoff in March 2023. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
During your March 14, 2023 Board of Supervisors meeting, your Board took action to approve resolution 
2023-08, ratifying the Director of Emergency Services’s March 7 proclamation of the existence of a local 
emergency. The local emergency was proclaimed in response to the consecutive severe storm systems 
that swept across Inyo County, the Eastern Sierra, and the State of California in January and February 
2023, bringing record amounts of snow and rain to Inyo County, and in anticipation of excessive spring 
runoff.   
 
Per State law, the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at least once 
every 60 days until the governing body terminates the local emergency. Staff recommends the Board 
continue this review, and that Resolution 2023-08 be updated as necessary, until further evaluation of 
conditions is completed and staff makes the recommendation to end the emergency. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
The emergency declaration clears the way for Inyo County applying for disaster aid funding. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

The Board can choose not to continue this emergency, but this is not recommended as we are still 
dealing with response and recovery to this emergency. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Administration, County Counsel 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Spring Runoff 2023 Proclamation - Ratified 
2. Spring Runoff 2023 Proclamation 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/19/2023 
Mikaela Torres Approved - 6/19/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/21/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XXX

A RESOLUTION OF THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

PROCLAIMING THE EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY RESULTING FROM 2023 
STORMS AND PROJECTED SPRING RUNOFF CONDITIONS

WHEREAS, consecutive severe storm systems resulting from atmospheric river weather phenomena 
swept across Inyo County, the Eastern Sierra, and the State of California in January and February 2023 
bringing record amounts of snow and rain to Inyo County; and,

WHEREAS, the compounding effects of these storm systems damaged County roads and resulted in 
isolated flooding that necessitated the Inyo County Board of Supervisors proclaiming a local emergency 
known as the January 2023 Flood Emergency; and,

WHEREAS, these same storm events resulted in the Governor of the State of California issuing a state 
of emergency proclamation on January 12 and March 1, and the President of the United States 
approving major disaster declaration on January 14, 2023; and,

WHEREAS, the State of California Department of Water Resources March 2, 2023 Statewide Snow 
Water Equivalent reports that the Southern Sierra had 232% of normal-to-date snow water equivalent; 
and,

WHEREAS, additional atmospheric river events are expected to occur on March 9 and March 14, at 
temperatures warmer than previous storms, as predicted by the National Weather Service, resulting in 
rain on snow conditions and an increased likelihood of avalanches and flooding; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Los Angeles owns the property rights to 90-percent of the surface water in the 
Owens Valley and, through its Department of Water and Power, maintains and operates an extensive 
conveyance system to collect and deliver Owens Valley water to the City of Los Angeles; and,

WHEREAS, even in years of normal, or slightly-above normal snowpack, the runoff can result in 
isolated flooding and damage to private, Tribal, and public property and infrastructure, including County 
roads, bridges, and campgrounds; and,

WHEREAS, based on its current forecasts, LADWP estimates that overall April, 2023 through March, 
2024 runoff in the Owens River drainage will be 800,000 to 1 million acre-feet of water, and may be 
more than double the normal amount of runoff of 412,284 acre-feet; and,

WHEREAS, current climate trends toward warmer air temperatures may contribute to and exacerbate 
periods of excessive snowmelt runoff; and, 

WHEREAS, in any year, the timing and volume of snowpack runoff is dependent on temperature and 
precipitation events which may continue throughout the spring and summer and are intrinsically difficult 
to predict; and,

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo is not a flood control agency and does not have a flood control district; 
and,   



WHEREAS, the ability to avoid or minimize flooding associated with additional storms and runoff is 
dependent on LADWP’s ability to successfully manage its property, diverting water from creeks and 
other conveyance structures, and spreading water through its diversion structures, flood basins, and 
infrequently used ditches and canals; and,

WHEREAS, 2023 storms and runoff conditions threaten the safety of property and persons in Inyo 
County by flooding private, Tribal, and public property; damaging or destroying infrastructure including 
roads, bridges, water conveyance and diversion structures, dust control apparatus, sanitary facilities, and 
campgrounds; creating conditions that propagate mosquitoes and other vectors that harbor disease and 
threaten public health; and, posing long-term environmental threats associated with the spread of 
invasive species; and,

WHEREAS, proactively mitigating and responding to the threatened effects of the 2023 storms and 
anticipated runoff will help ensure the relative safety and enjoyment of millions of visitors that come to 
Inyo County to enjoy the unparalleled natural wonders of Inyo County and, in turn, protect the County’s 
tourism economy; and, 

WHEREAS, the Director of Emergency Services for the County of Inyo found that threatened 
conditions of disaster and of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen in Inyo 
County as the result of the storms and projected runoff from precipitation events in 2023, and that these 
conditions are likely to be beyond the capacity and control of the services, equipment, personnel, 
facilities and the fiscal resources of the County of Inyo; and, 

WHEREAS, the Director of Emergency Services did proclaim the existence of a local emergency 
within the county on March 7, 2023, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Attachment A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED as follows

Section 1: The Inyo County Board of Supervisors does hereby ratify the declaration of the Director 
of Emergency Services and proclaims the existence of a Local Emergency in Inyo County as a result of 
the reasons set forth herein; and,

Section 2: The Inyo County Board of Supervisor's requests the Director of the Governor's Office of 
Emergency Services concur in this proclamation of a local emergency.

Section 3: A copy of this declaration shall be forwarded to the Governor of California with the 
request that he proclaim the County of Inyo to be a state of emergency. 

Section 4: The Inyo County Board of Supervisors request that this emergency proclamation be 
forwarded to the Director of the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services and the Governor of the State 
of California, with a request for assistance to mitigate and recover from the threats and effects of the 
2023 storms and runoff to the safety of property and persons in Inyo County including threats to private, 
Tribal, and public property and infrastructure, public health, environmental health, and the County’s 
economy described but not limited herein, including additional resources, services, personnel, and 
equipment. 

Section 5: The Inyo County Board of Supervisors will review the need for continuing the Local 
Emergency at least every 30 days and, if appropriate, take action to terminate the local emergency as of 



the earliest possible date that conditions warrant, pursuant to California Government Code Section 
8630(c),

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 14th day of March, 2023, by the Inyo County Board of
Supervisors, County of Inyo:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT: 

______________________________
Chair, Board of Supervisors

County of Inyo



DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
FOR THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

PROCLAIMING EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY 
 
 
WHEREAS, consecutive severe storm systems resulting from atmospheric river weather phenomena 
swept across Inyo County, the Eastern Sierra, and the State of California in January and February 2023 
bringing record amounts of snow and rain to Inyo County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the compounding effects of these storm systems damaged County roads and resulted in 
isolated flooding that necessitated the Inyo County Board of Supervisors proclaiming a local emergency 
known as the January 2023 Flood Emergency; and, 
 
WHEREAS, these same storm events resulted in the Governor of the State of California issuing a state 
of emergency proclamation on January 12 and March 1, and the President of the United States 
approving major disaster declaration on January 14, 2023; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the State of California Department of Water Resources March 2, 2023 Statewide Snow 
Water Equivalent reports that the Southern Sierra had 232% of normal-to-date snow water equivalent; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, additional atmospheric river events are expected to occur on March 9 and March 14, at 
temperatures warmer than previous storms, as predicted by the National Weather Service, resulting in 
rain on snow conditions and an increased likelihood of avalanches and flooding; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Los Angeles owns the property rights to 90-percent of the surface water in the 
Owens Valley and, through its Department of Water and Power, maintains and operates an extensive 
conveyance system to collect and deliver Owens Valley water to the City of Los Angeles; and, 
 
WHEREAS, even in years of normal, or slightly-above normal snowpack, the runoff can result in 
isolated flooding and damage to private, Tribal, and public property and infrastructure, including County 
roads, bridges, and campgrounds; and, 
 
WHEREAS, based on its current forecasts, LADWP estimates that overall April, 2023 through March, 
2024 runoff in the Owens River drainage will be 800,000 to 1 million acre-feet of water, and may be 
more than double the normal amount of runoff of 412,284 acre-feet; and, 
 
WHEREAS, current climate trends toward warmer air temperatures may contribute to and exacerbate 
periods of excessive snowmelt runoff; and,  
 
WHEREAS, in any year, the timing and volume of snowpack runoff is dependent on temperature and 
precipitation events which may continue throughout the spring and summer and are intrinsically difficult 
to predict; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Inyo is not a flood control agency and does not have a flood control district; 
and,    
 
WHEREAS, the ability to avoid or minimize flooding associated with additional storms and runoff is 
dependent on LADWP’s ability to successfully manage its property, diverting water from creeks and 



other conveyance structures, and spreading water through its diversion structures, flood basins, and 
infrequently used ditches and canals; and, 
 
WHEREAS, 2023 storms and runoff conditions threaten the safety of property and persons in Inyo 
County by flooding private, Tribal, and public property; damaging or destroying infrastructure including 
roads, bridges, water conveyance and diversion structures, dust control apparatus, sanitary facilities, and 
campgrounds; creating conditions that propagate mosquitoes and other vectors that harbor disease and 
threaten public health; and, posing long-term environmental threats associated with the spread of 
invasive species; and, 
 
WHEREAS, proactively mitigating and responding to the threatened effects of the 2023 storms and 
anticipated runoff will help ensure the relative safety and enjoyment of millions of visitors that come to 
Inyo County to enjoy the unparalleled natural wonders of Inyo County and, in turn, protect the County’s 
tourism economy; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Emergency Services for the County of Inyo found that threatened 
conditions of disaster and of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen in Inyo 
County as the result of additional storm and projected runoff events in 2023; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Emergency Services finds that these emergency conditions will require 
additional resources, services, personnel, equipment, and any other assistance, including the combined 
forces of the mutual aid region to mitigate the effects of the local emergency. These resources are 
necessary to address immediate threats and to assist in recovery efforts; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Government Code Section 8630, and Inyo County Code Section 2.56.060 empowers the 
Director of Emergency Services to proclaim the existence of a local emergency when the County Board 
of Supervisors is not in session and Inyo County is threatened or likely to be threatened by the 
conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property that are or are likely to be 
beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and facilities of this County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors is not currently in session and cannot immediately 
be called into session; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors shall take action to ratify this Proclamation within 
seven days thereafter or the Proclamation shall have no further force or effect. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED by the Director of Emergency 
Services for the County of Inyo that, for the reasons set forth herein, a local emergency now exists 
throughout Inyo County; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND REQUESTED that the Director of the Governor’s Office of 
Emergency Services concur in this declaration of a local emergency; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND REQUESTED that Governor of the State of California 
proclaim a State Emergency in Inyo County; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, PROCLAIMED AND ORDERED that during the existence of this 
local emergency the powers, functions, and duties of the emergency organization of this County shall be 
those prescribed by State law, by ordinances, and resolutions, and that this emergency shall be deemed 



to continue to exist until either the Governor of the State of California, or the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of Inyo, State of California, proclaims its termination, or if the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Inyo does not ratify this proclamation within seven days of its issuance. Further, it is directed 
that this emergency proclamation be forwarded to the Director of the Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services and the Governor of the State of California, with a request for additional resources, services, 
personnel, and equipment. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 7 day of March, 2023, by the Inyo County Inyo County 
Director of Emergency Services. 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer 
Director of Emergency Services  
County of Inyo, State of California  

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3871  

 

Domain Name Authorization 
County Administrator - Information Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Information Services Noam Shendar, Chief Information Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a letter requesting responsibility for the domain name 
www.inyo.gov. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
We are required by state law AB 1637 to migrate from our existing domain name, inyocounty.us, to a 
.gov domain. The inyocounty.us domain is the portal via which we conduct all local government 
business, including public outreach, disaster preparedness, tax payments, and access to Board of 
Supervisors meetings. A request for responsibility of the inyo.gov domain is attached for your review and 
approval. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your board may decline to authorize the Chairperson to sign the letter, but this is not recommended as 
the request must come from the county's highest ranking elected official.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Gov Domain Registration Program 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

file:///C:/home/PacketGeneration/615b393e0e/stream/INYOCOCA///inyo.gov


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Domain Name Request 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/19/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/19/2023 
Jayme Westervelt Approved - 6/20/2023 
Noam Shendar Approved - 6/20/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/21/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/21/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526
(760) 878-0292

            

June 27, 2023

Gov Domain Registration
c/o Verisign, Inc.
12061 Bluemont Way
Reston, Virginia 20190

To the .gov Program:

As the highest ranking elected official for the County of Inyo, California, I request that responsibility for the domain 
name inyo.gov be delegated to my county government.

We are required by state law to migrate from our existing domain name, inyocounty.us, to a .gov domain. The 
inyocounty.us domain is the portal via which we conduct all local government business, including public outreach, 
disaster preparedness, tax payments, and access to Board of Supervisors meetings.

We know the inyo.gov domain name will cause no confusion, because it is a geographically unique name. Importantly for 
the people we serve, it is a short and easy to remember domain name, which will allow us to better reach underserved 
communities.

In order to obtain and maintain inyo.gov the County of Inyo will meet the general and specific requirements for federal 
agencies, found at https://get.gov/registration/requirements.

The following will be listed as contacts for inyo.gov, which the County of Inyo will keep up to date in the .gov registrar.

Administrative contact Technical Contact Security Contact
Jayme Westervelt Benjamin Mitchell inyois@inyocounty.us
Assistant CIO Programmer Analyst
168 N. Edwards St. 168 N. Edwards St.
Independence, CA 93526 Independence, CA 93526
760-878-8282 760-878-0341
jwestervelt@inyocounty.us bmitchell@inyocounty.us

I understand that if I wish to retire inyo.gov, I must submit a written request to registrar@dotgov.gov.

Sincerely,

Supervisor Jennifer Roeser, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
DAN TOTHEROH •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  RICK PUCCI •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

https://get.gov/registration/requirements/
mailto:registrar@dotgov.gov


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3866  

 

Inyo-Mono County Veterans Services Office - Annual 
Compliance Forms 

County Administrator - Veterans Service Office 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Denelle Carrington, Senior Budget Analyst Denelle Carrington, Senior Budget Analyst 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize the Chairperson to sign the California Department of Veterans Affairs Annual Medi-Cal Cost 
Avoidance Program Certificate of Compliance for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 and the California Department 
of Veterans Annual Subvention Certificate of Compliance for Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
These two annual forms are required to be reviewed and signed each fiscal year in order to be eligible 
for Subvention funding and Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance funding from the California Department of Veterans 
Affairs. The Subvention funds are distributed to Counties that certify that they have appointed a veteran 
to serve as the County Veterans Services Officer. The Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance funds are provided to 
ensure that the program reasonably benefits the Department of Health Care Services.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund Budget Unit 056600 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 4473 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure / Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
These funds are budgeted annually in the VSO budget to offset County General Fund expenditures 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
These funds will be received in the Veterans Services Budget (056600) in the State Aid for Veterans 
object code (4473). 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not approve the Chairperson signing, hoever this is not recommended as 
the Veterans Services Program would no longer receive any State funding.  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Medi-Cal Certificate of Compliance - FY 2023-24 
2. Subvention Certificate of Compliance - FY 2023-24 
  
APPROVALS: 
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 6/16/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/16/2023 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 6/19/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2023 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Annual Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance Certificate of Compliance 
Fiscal Year 2023/2024

I certify that            County has appointed a County Veterans Service 

Officer (CVSO) in compliance with California Code of Regulations, Title 12, Subchapter 4.  Please 

consider this as our application to participate in the Medi-cal Cost Avoidance Program authorized by 

Military and Veterans Code Section 972.5   

 

I understand and will comply with the following: 

 

 1. All activities of the CVSO for which payment is made by the CalVet under this 

agreement will reasonably benefit the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) or 

realize cost avoidance to the Medi-Cal program.  All State and County Medi-Cal Eligibility 

Workers who generate a Form MC 05 (Military Verification and Referral form) will be 

instructed to indicate the applicant's Aid Code on the face of the form. 

 

 2. All monies received under this agreement shall be allocated to and spent on the 

salaries and expenses of the CVSO. 

 

 3. This agreement is binding only if federal funds are available to CalVet from the 

DHCS. 

 

 4. The CVSO is responsible for administering this program in accordance with California Code 

of Regulations, Title 12, Subchapter 4 and the CalVet Procedure Manual for Subvention and 

Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance for the current state fiscal year. 

Chair, County Board of Supervisors 
(or other County Official authorized  
by the Board to act on their behalf)

Date

SCAN AND UPLOAD THIS COMPLETED FORM VIA AGENCY ATTACHMENTS IN VETPRO 

Rev. 06/23



Annual Subvention Certificate of Compliance 
Fiscal Year 2023/2024

Charge: 
 
Funds are distributed under this program to counties as partial reimbursement for expenses incurred in the 
operation of the County Veterans Service Office.  Funds are distributed according to Military and Veterans 
Code Sections 972, and 972.1, a State General Fund Expenditure, and 972.2 a Special Fund Expenditure.  
 
County Certification: 
 
I certify that      County has appointed a veteran to serve as the County Veterans 
Service Officer according to California Code of Regulations Title 12, Subchapter 4.  This County Veterans 
Service Officer will administer the aid provided for in Military and Veterans Code Division 4, Chapter 5.  This 
County Veterans Service Officer must achieve and maintain accreditation from the California Department of 
Veterans Affairs within 18 months of employment or within 18 months of the County Veterans Service Officer 
position becoming vacant, whichever occurs first.  Veterans Service Representative staff filing claims must also 
achieve and maintain accreditation from the California Department of Veterans Affairs within 18 months of 
employment.  
 
I certify that the County Veteran Service Officer will assist every veteran of the United States, as well as their 
dependents and survivors, in presenting and pursuing such claim as they may have against the United States.  
The County Veterans Service Officer and all accredited staff will also assist in establishing veterans, dependents 
and survivors' rights to any privilege, preference, care or compensation provided for by the laws and regulations 
of the United States, the State of California, or any local jurisdiction. 
 
I certify that information contained within the VetPro database will not be distributed to any entity outside of the 
County Veteran Service Office, including other County Departments. Additionally, I certify that all College Fee 
Waiver Approval and Denial letters will be generated within the VetPro database. I also authorize the County 
Veterans Service Officer to actively participate in the promotion of the California Veterans License Plate 
program. 
 
I certify that this county, through the County Veterans Service Office, will maintain records for audit.  These 
records will be maintained for a minimum of two years.  The county agrees to submit reports in accordance with 
the procedures and timelines established by CalVet and in accordance with the CalVet Procedure Manual for 
Subvention and Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance for the current state fiscal year.  The County Veterans Service Officer 
will permit CalVet representatives to inspect all records upon request. 

Chair, County Board of Supervisors 
(or other County Official authorized  
by the Board to act on their behalf)

Date

SCAN AND UPLOAD THIS COMPLETED FORM VIA AGENCY ATTACHMENTS IN VETPRO 

Rev. 07/23



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3824  

 

Approval of Hiring a Hazardous Materials Program 
Manager Senior at Step E  

Environmental Health 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Jerry Oser, Environmental Health Director Jerry Oser, Environmental Health Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize the hiring of one (1) Hazardous Materials Program Manager Senior, Range 84 ($7,178 - 
$8,725), at the E Step ($8,725). 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Department has identified a candidate for the vacant Hazardous Materials Program Manager 
position with an extensive background in the private and public sectors regarding hazardous materials 
and their management. This position is split between Inyo and Mono counties (60/40), with a contract to 
fulfill the Mono portion and partially funded through a CalEPA Rural Reimbursement Grant. 
 
During our recent recruitment, we identified a candidate with the requisite background of working with 
Hazardous Materials regulations requesting a higher step than what the Department can offer without 
Board approval. Given the candidate's experience and our current challenges in recruiting and hiring, the 
Department respectfully requests authorization to hire the candidate at the established Range 84, Step E 
($8,725). 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund / Mono Contract / Grant Funded 
(CalEPA Rural Reimbursement CUPA Grant) 

Budget Unit 045400 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5001 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
This position is budgeted in this budget's salary and benefit object codes. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
Our last Hazardous Materials Manager Senior was Range 84, Step E. She left in January of 2023.  
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Your Board could deny the request, and the Department would re-initiate recruitment for the position. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Jerry Oser Created/Initiated - 6/20/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/20/2023 
Keri Oney Approved - 6/21/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/21/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/21/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/21/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3822  

 

CDPH Immunization Branch Local Assistance Grant 
Agreement Renewal 22-27 

Health & Human Services 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Stephanie Tanksley, Deputy Director - Public Health 
& Prevention 

Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve Agreement 22-11027 between the County of Inyo and California Department of 
Public Health, Immunization Branch, of Sacramento, CA for the provision of the Immunization Program in 
an amount not to exceed $310,219.58 for the period of  July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027, contingent 
upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the HHS Director to sign the Grant 
Agreement, the CDPH 1229, the Certification Regarding Lobbying, the Contractor Certification Clause, 
and the California Civil Rights Laws Attachment. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This item is coming to the Board late because the agreement was received from CDPH on May 5th, 
2023. This grant falls under Health and Safety Code, Section 120325-120380, which requires 
immunizations against childhood diseases prior to school admittance. The purpose of the Grant is to 
assist Local Health Departments in preventing and controlling Vaccine Preventable Diseases in the LHJ. 
Activities under this Grant include: assessing and improving coverage levels in the jurisdiction of all 
vaccines and detecting, reporting, and controlling vaccine-preventable diseases in the jurisdiction. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded (State funding through California 
Department of Public Health) 

Budget Unit 045100 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4498 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
This includes annual allocation and COVID allocation 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
This funding is stable and consistent. 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to ratify and approve this agreement, which would disrupt immunization 
services for our community.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Grant Agreement 
2. Exhibit F - Federal Terms and Conditions 
3. Contractor Certification Clauses 
4. CA Civil Rights Laws Certification 
  
APPROVALS: 
Stephanie Tanksley Created/Initiated - 5/30/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/1/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/5/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/15/2023 
Stephanie Tanksley Approved - 6/15/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/15/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/19/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



State of California – Health and Human Services Agency – California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (12/2021) 

Page 1 of 4 

CALIFORNIA IMMUNIZATION PROGRAM 

 
Awarded By 

THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH, hereinafter “Department” 
TO 

Inyo County Health and Human Services, hereinafter “Grantee” 

 
Implementing the project, “To assist local health departments (LHDs) in preventing 
and controlling vaccine-preventable diseases (VPDs) in the local health jurisdiction 

(LHJ),” hereinafter “Project” 
 

GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER 22-11027 
 
The Department awards this Grant, and the Grantee accepts and agrees to use the Grant 
funds as follows: 
 
AUTHORITY:  The Department has authority to grant funds for the Project under Health and 
Safety Code, Section 120325-120380, which requires immunizations against childhood 
diseases prior to school admittance and Federal Grant numbers 5 NH23IP922612-04-00, 6 
NH23IP922612-02-02, 6 NH23IP922612-02-03, and 6 NH23IP922612-02-04. 

PURPOSE: The Department shall award this Grant Agreement to and for the benefit of 
the Grantee; the purpose of the Grant is to assist LHDs in preventing and controlling 
VPDs in the LHJ.  The Grantee is to implement activities to: 

• Assess and improve coverage levels in the jurisdiction of all vaccines 
recommended by the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP) to 
protect the population. 

• Detect, report, and control vaccine-preventable diseases in the jurisdiction. 
 

Related Statutes 
California Health & Safety Code sections: 
• 120130 requires the Local Health Officer to properly report to CDPH those diseases 

listed as reportable, which include vaccine-preventable diseases. 
• 120175 requires the Local Health Officer to take measures as may be 

necessary to prevent the spread or occurrence of additional cases of 
reportable diseases (which includes reportable vaccine-preventable 
diseases). 

• 120350 requires Local Health Officers to organize and maintain a program to 
make available the immunizations required for admittance to childcare facilities 
and schools. 

 



State of California – Health and Human Services Agency – California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (12/2021) 

Page 2 of 4 

 
GRANT AMOUNT:  The maximum amount payable under this Grant Agreement shall 
not exceed the amount of $1,300,514.85. 
 
TERM OF GRANT AGREEMENT:  The term of the Grant shall begin on July 1, 2022 
and terminates on June 30, 2027.  No funds may be requested or invoiced for services 
performed or costs incurred after June 30, 2027. 
 
PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES. The Project Representatives during the term of this Grant will 
be:   
 
California Department of Public Health 

 
Grantee: Inyo County Health and Human 
Services 

Name: Noemi Marin Name: Stephanie Tanksley 

Address: 850 Marina Bay Pkwy., Bldg. P, 2nd Fl. Address P.O. Drawer H 

City, ZIP: Richmond, CA 94804  City, ZIP: Independence, CA  93526  

Phone: (510) 620-3737 Phone: (760) 872-3273 
E-mail: noemi.marin@cdph.ca.gov E-mail: stanksley@inyocounty.us 
 

Direct all inquiries to the following representatives: 
  
California Department of Public Health, 

Immunization Branch 

 
Grantee: Inyo County Health and Human 
Services 

Attention: Roland Rafol Attention: Stephanie Tanksley 

Address: 850 Marina Bay Pkwy., Bldg. P, 2nd Fl. Address: P.O. Drawer H 

City, Zip: Richmond, CA  94804 City, Zip:  Independence, CA  93526 

Phone: (510) 412-6053 Phone: (760) 872-3273 

E-mail: roland.rafol@cdph.ca.gov E-mail: stanksley@inyocounty.us 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



State of California – Health and Human Services Agency – California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (12/2021) 

Page 3 of 4 

All payments from CDPH to the Grantee; shall be sent to the following address:   
 

Remittance Address 
 
 Grantee: Inyo County Health and Human 
Services 

Attention “Cashier”: Melissa Best-Baker 
 
Address: P.O. Drawer H 

City, Zip:   Independence, CA  93526   

Phone: (760) 878-0232 

E-mail:  mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 
 
Either party may make changes to the Project Representatives, or remittance address, by 
giving a written notice to the other party, said changes shall not require an amendment to 
this agreement but must be maintained as supporting documentation. Note: Remittance 
address changes will require the Grantee to submit a completed CDPH 9083 Governmental 
Entity Taxpayer ID Form or STD 204 Payee Data Record Form and the STD 205 Payee 
Data Supplement which can be requested through the CDPH Project Representatives for 
processing. 
 

STANDARD GRANT PROVISIONS.  The Grantee must adhere to all Exhibits listed 
and any subsequent revisions. The following Exhibits are attached hereto or attached by 
reference and made a part of this Grant Agreement:  
 
Exhibit A  GRANT APPLICATION  

(The Grant Application provides the description of the project and associated 
costs) 

 
Note: Once the Grant Agreement has been fully executed, requests for 
modifications/changes thereafter to the existing Exhibit A and/or Exhibit A, 
Attachment 1, do not require a formal amendment but must be agreed to in 
writing by both parties. The CDPH/Grantee Project Representatives are 
responsible for keeping records of approved modifications/changes.  Such 
modifications/changes must be made at least 30 days prior to implementation. 
A formal written amendment is required when there is an increase or decrease 
in funding or a change in the term of the agreement. 

  
Exhibit B BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS  
                      The approved budget supersedes the proposed budget in the Grant Application  
 
Exhibit C STANDARD GRANT CONDITIONS  



State of California – Health and Human Services Agency – California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (12/2021) 

Page 4 of 4 

 
Exhibit D REQUEST FOR APPLICATION (RFA) #22-10537  
 
Exhibit E ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS  
 
Exhibit F  FEDERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 
GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS: The Grantee(s) accept all terms, provisions, and 
conditions of this grant, including those stated in the Exhibits incorporated by reference 
above. The Grantee(s) shall fulfill all assurances and commitments made in the application, 
declarations, other accompanying documents, and written communications (e.g., e-mail, 
correspondence) filed in support of the request for grant funding.  The Grantee(s) shall 
comply with and require its subgrantee’s to comply with all applicable laws, policies, and 
regulations. 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Grant on the dates set forth below. 
 
Executed By: 
 
 
Date: 

 
      

  

   Marilyn Mann, Director 
Inyo County Dept. of Health and Human Services 
1360 N. Main Street, Suite 203 
Bishop, CA  93514 

 
 
 

   

 
Date: 

 
      

  

   Javier Sandoval, Chief 
Contracts Management Unit 
California Department of Public Health 
1616 Capitol Avenue, Suite 74.262 
P.O. Box 997377, MS 1800- 1804 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 
 

 



California Department of Public Health        
    

    
 Inyo County Health and Human Services 

 Grant Agreement #:  22-11027 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 1 of 13 

Exhibit F 
Federal Terms and Conditions 

 
(For Federally Funded Grant Agreements) 

 
This exhibit contains provisions that require strict adherence to various contracting laws and 
policies.   
 

Index of Special Terms and Conditions 
 

1. Federal Funds 
2. Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements 
3. Debarment and Suspension Certification 
4. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 
5. Lobbying Restrictions and Disclosure Certification 
6. Additional Restrictions 
7. Human Subjects Use Requirments 
8. Audit and Record Retention 
9. Federal Requirements 
 
 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 2 of 13 

 
1. Federal Funds 

 
(Applicable only to that portion of an agreement funded in part or whole with federal funds.) 
 
a. It is mutually understood between the parties that this Agreement may have been written 

before ascertaining the availability of congressional appropriation of funds, for the mutual 
benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays which would occur if 
the Agreement were executed after that determination was made. 

 
b. This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available to the 

State by the United States Government for the fiscal years covered by the term of this 
Agreement.  In addition, this Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, 
limitations, or conditions enacted by the Congress or any statute enacted by the Congress 
which may affect the provisions, terms or funding of this Agreement in any manner. 

 
c. It is mutually agreed that if the Congress does not appropriate sufficient funds for the 

program, this Agreement shall be amended to reflect any reduction in funds. 
 
d. CDPH has the option to invalidate or cancel the Agreement with 30-days advance written 

notice or to amend the Agreement to reflect any reduction in funds. 
 

2. Federal Equal Opportunity Requirements 
 
(Applicable to all federally funded grants entered into by the California Department of Public 
Health (CDPH) formerly known as California Department of Health Services (CDHS).) 
 
a. The Grantee will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, physical or mental handicap, 
disability, age or status as a disabled veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era.  The Grantee 
will take affirmative action to ensure that qualified applicants are employed, and that 
employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, 
sex, national origin, physical or mental handicap, disability, age or status as a disabled 
veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to the 
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and career 
development opportunities and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
Grantee agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided by the Federal Government or CDPH, setting forth 
the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clause, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 and the affirmative action clause required by the Vietnam Era Veterans' 
Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 (38 U.S.C. 4212).  Such notices shall state the 
Grantee's obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in 
employment qualified applicants without discrimination based on their race, color, religion, 
sex, national origin physical or mental handicap, disability, age or status as a disabled 
veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era and the rights of applicants and employees. 

 
b. The Grantee will, in all solicitations or advancements for employees placed by or on behalf 

of the Grantee, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 3 of 13 

without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin physical or mental handicap, 
disability, age or status as a disabled veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era. 

 
c. The Grantee will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has 

a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice, to be 
provided by the Federal Government or the State, advising the labor union or workers' 
representative of the Grantee's commitments under the provisions herein and shall post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 
employment. 

 
d. The Grantee will comply with all provisions of and furnish all information and reports 

required by Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era 
Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 (38 U.S.C. 4212) and of the Federal 
Executive Order No. 11246 as amended, including by Executive Order 11375, ‘Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,‘ and as 
supplemented by regulation at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of the Federal Contract 
Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor,” and of the 
rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

 
e. The Grantee will furnish all information and reports required by Federal Executive Order 

No. 11246 as amended, including by Executive Order 11375, ‘Amending Executive Order 
11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,‘ and as supplemented by regulation 
at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of the Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor,” and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and 
by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and 
will permit access to its books, records, and accounts by the State and its designated 
representatives and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

 
f. In the event of the Grantee's noncompliance with the requirements of the provisions 

herein or with any federal rules, regulations, or orders which are referenced herein, this 
Agreement may be cancelled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the 
Grantee may be declared ineligible for further federal and state contracts in accordance 
with procedures authorized in Federal Executive Order No. 11246 as amended and such 
other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Federal Executive 
Order No. 11246 as amended, including by Executive Order 11375, ‘Amending Executive 
Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,‘ and as supplemented by 
regulation at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of the Federal Contract Compliance Programs, 
Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor,” or by rule, regulation, or order of 
the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

 
g. The Grantee will include the provisions of Paragraphs a through g in every subcontract 

or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of 
Labor issued pursuant to Federal Executive Order No. 11246 as amended, including by 
Executive Order 11375, ‘Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal 
Employment Opportunity,‘ and as supplemented by regulation at 41 CFR part 60, “Office 
of the Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, 
Department of Labor,” or Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or (38 U.S.C. 4212) 
of the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Assistance Act, so that such provisions will 
be binding upon each subgrantee or vendor.  The Grantee will take such action with 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 4 of 13 

respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the Director of the Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs or CDPH may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance provided, however, that in the event the 
Grantee becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subgrantee or vendor 
as a result of such direction by CDPH, the Grantee may request in writing to CDPH, who, 
in turn, may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests 
of the State and of the United States. 

 
3. Debarment and Suspension Certification 

 
a. By signing this Grant, the Grantee agrees to comply with applicable federal suspension 

and debarment regulations including, but not limited to 7 CFR Part 3017, 45 CFR 76, 40 
CFR 32 or 34 CFR 85. 

 
b. By signing this Grant, the Grantee certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it 

and its principals: 
 
(1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, 

or voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency; 
 
(2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal/agreement 

been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of 
fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or 
performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public 
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
(3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses 
enumerated in Paragraph b(2) herein; and 

 
(4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal/agreement 

had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or 
default. 

 
(5) Shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 

proposed for debarment under federal regulations (i.e., 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4), 
debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in 
such transaction, unless authorized by the State. 

 
(6) Will include a clause entitled, "Debarment and Suspension Certification'' that 

essentially sets forth the provisions herein, in all lower tier covered transactions and 
in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

 
c. If the Grantee is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, the Grantee 

shall submit an explanation to the CDPH Program Contract Manager. 
 
d. The terms and definitions herein have the meanings set out in the Definitions and 

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Federal Executive Order 12549. 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 5 of 13 

 
e. If the Grantee knowingly violates this certification, in addition to other remedies available 

to the Federal Government, the CDPH may terminate this Agreement for cause or default. 
 
4. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

 
The Grantee warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 
solicit/secure this Grant upon an agreement of understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee, except bona fide employees or bona fide established 
commercial or selling agencies retained by the Grantee for the purpose of securing business.  
For breach or violation of this warranty, CDPH shall have the right to annul this Grant without 
liability or in its discretion to deduct from the Grant price or consideration, or otherwise 
recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, and brokerage or contingent fee. 

 
5. Lobbying Restrictions and Disclosure Certification 

 
(Applicable to federally funded grants in excess of $100,000 per Section 1352 of the 31, 
U.S.C.) 
 
a. Certification and Disclosure Requirements 

 
(1) Each person (or recipient) who requests or receives a grant, subgrant, which is subject 

to Section 1352 of the 31, U.S.C., and which exceeds $100,000 at any tier, shall file 
a certification (in the form set forth in Attachment 1, consisting of one page, entitled 
“Certification Regarding Lobbying”) that the recipient has not made, and will not make, 
any payment prohibited by Paragraph b of this provision. 

 
(2) Each recipient shall file a disclosure (in the form set forth in Attachment 2, entitled 

“Standard Form-LLL ‘disclosure of Lobbying Activities’”) if such recipient has made or 
has agreed to make any payment using nonappropriated funds (to include profits from 
any covered federal action) in connection with a grant or any extension or amendment 
of that grant, which would be prohibited under Paragraph b of this provision if paid for 
with appropriated funds. 

 
(3) Each recipient shall file a disclosure form at the end of each calendar quarter in which 

there occurs any event that requires disclosure or that materially affect the accuracy 
of the information contained in any disclosure form previously filed by such person 
under Paragraph a(2) herein.  An event that materially affects the accuracy of the 
information reported includes: 
 
(a) A cumulative increase of $25,000 or more in the amount paid or expected to be 

paid for influencing or attempting to influence a covered federal action; 
 
(b) A change in the person(s) or individuals(s) influencing or attempting to influence a 

covered federal action; or 
 
(c) A change in the officer(s), employee(s), or member(s) contacted for the purpose 

of influencing or attempting to influence a covered federal action. 
 
(4) Each person (or recipient) who requests or receives from a person referred to in 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 6 of 13 

Paragraph a(1) of this provision a grant or subgrant exceeding $100,000 at any tier 
under a grant shall file a certification, and a disclosure form, if required, to the next tier 
above. 

 
(5) All disclosure forms (but not certifications) shall be forwarded from tier to tier until 

received by the person referred to in Paragraph a(1) of this provision.  That person 
shall forward all disclosure forms to CDPH Program Contract Manager. 

 
b. Prohibition 

 
Section 1352 of Title 31, U.S.C., provides in part that no appropriated funds may be 
expended by the recipient of a federal contract or agreement, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement to pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any of the following covered 
federal actions: the awarding of any federal contract or agreement, the making of any 
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal 
contract or agreement, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 

6.  Additional Restrictions 
 

Grantee shall comply with the restrictions under Division F, Title V, Section 503 of the 
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2012 (H.R. 2055), which provides that: 
 
“SEC. 503.(a) No part of any appropriation contained in this Act or transferred pursuant 
to section 4002 of Public Law 111–148 shall be used, other than for normal and 
recognized executive-legislative relationships, for publicity or propaganda purposes, for 
the preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic 
communication, radio, television, or video presentation designed to support or defeat the 
enactment of legislation before the Congress or any State or local legislature or legislative 
body, except in presentation to the Congress or any State or local legislature itself, or 
designed to support or defeat any proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, 
or order issued by the executive branch of any State or local government, except in 
presentation to the executive branch of any State or local government itself.  
(b) No part of any appropriation contained in this Act or transferred pursuant to section 
4002 of Public Law 111–148 shall be used to pay the salary or expenses of any grant or 
contract recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any activity designed to 
influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, administrative action, or 
Executive order proposed or pending before the Congress or any State government, 
State legislature or local legislature or legislative body, other than for normal and 
recognized executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer of a 
State, local or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes within the 
executive branch of that government. 
(c) The prohibitions in subsections (a) and (b) shall include any activity to advocate or 
promote any proposed, pending or future Federal, State or local tax increase, or any 
proposed, pending, or future requirement or restriction on any legal consumer product, 
including its sale or marketing, including but not limited to the advocacy or promotion of 
gun control.” 

 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 7 of 13 

7. Human Subjects Use Requirements 
 
(Applicable only to federally funded agreements in which performance, directly or through a 
subgrantee/subaward, includes any tests or examination of materials derived from the human 
body.) 
 
By signing this Agreement, Grantee agrees that if any performance under this Agreement or 
any subcontract or subagreement includes any tests or examination of materials derived from 
the human body for the purpose of providing information, diagnosis, prevention, treatment or 
assessment of disease, impairment, or health of a human being, all locations at which such 
examinations are performed shall meet the requirements of 42 U.S.C. Section 263a (CLIA) 
and the regulations thereunder. 
 

8. Audit and Record Retention 
 
(Applicable to agreements in excess of $10,000.) 
 
a. The Grantee shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence, accounting 

procedures and practices, sufficient to properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of 
whatever nature claimed to have been incurred in the performance of this Agreement, 
including any matching costs and expenses.  The foregoing constitutes "records" for the 
purpose of this provision. 

 
b. The Grantee's facility or office or such part thereof as may be engaged in the performance 

of this Agreement and his/her records shall be subject at all reasonable times to 
inspection, audit, and reproduction. 

 
c. Grantee agrees that CDPH, the Bureau of State Audits, or their designated 

representatives including the Comptroller General of the United States shall have the right 
to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the 
performance of this Agreement.  Grantee agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such 
records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any employees who 
might reasonably have information related to such records.  Further, the Grantee agrees 
to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subgrantee 
related to performance of this Agreement. (GC 8546.7, CCR Title 2, Section 1896). 

 
d. The Grantee shall preserve and make available his/her records (1) for a period of three 

years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, and (2) for such longer period, 
if any, as is required by applicable statute, by any other provision of this Agreement, or 
by subparagraphs (1) or (2) below. 
 
(1) If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the work 

terminated shall be preserved and made available for a period of three years from the 
date of any resulting final settlement. 

 
(2) If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the records has been 

started before the expiration of the three-year period, the records shall be retained 
until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until 
the end of the regular three-year period, whichever is later. 

 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 8 of 13 

f. The Grantee may, at its discretion, following receipt of final payment under this 
Agreement, reduce its accounts, books and records related to this Agreement to 
electoronic data storage device.  Upon request by an authorized representative to inspect, 
audit or obtain copies of said records, the Grantee and/or Subgrantee must supply or 
make available applicable devices, hardware, and/or software necessary to view, copy 
and/or print said records.   

 
 

9. Federal Requirements 
 

Grantee agrees to comply with and shall require all subgrantee’s, if any, to comply with 
all applicable Federal requirements including but not limited to the United States Code, 
the Code of Federal Regulations, the Funding Opportunity Announcement, the Notice of 
Award, the funding agreement, and any memoranda or letter regarding the applicable 
Federal requirements. 

 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 9 of 13 

 Attachment 1 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH  
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
 
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

 
(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the making, awarding or entering into of this Federal 
contract, Federal grant, or cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of this Federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement. 

 
(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency of the 
United States Government, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, or 
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, 
“Disclosure of Lobbying Activities'' in accordance with its instructions. 

 
(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 

award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subGrantees, subgrants, and contracts 
under grants and cooperative agreements) of $100,000 or more, and that all subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 
 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S.C., any person who fails 
to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 
more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 

             
Name of Grantee  Printed Name of Person Signing for Grantee 

        
Contract / Grant Number  Signature of Person Signing for Grantee 

      

 

      
Date  Title 

 
 
After execution by or on behalf of Grantee, please return to: 
 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 10 of 13 

California Department of Public Health 
Immunization Branch 
850 Marina Bay Pkwy., Bldg. P 
Richmond, CA 94804 
      
      
      

 
 
CDPH reserves the right to notifiy the Grantee in writing of an alternate submission address.



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 11 of 13 

Attachment 2 
 
 CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING  

Approved by OMB Complete this form to disclose lobbying 
activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 13520348-0046 

 (See reverse for public burden disclosure) 
 
1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of Federal Action: 3. Report Type: 
 [  ] a. contract 

b. grant 
c. cooperative 

agreement 
d. loan 
e. loan guarantee 
f. loan insurance 

 [  ] a. bid/offer/application 
b. initial award 
c. post-award 

 [  ] a. initial filing 
b. material change 
For Material Change Only: 
Year       quarter      
      
date of last report      . 

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity: 
 

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is Subawardee, Enter 
Name  
and Address of Prime: 

 Prime  Subawardee 
 Tier     , if known: 
 
 
 
 

          

      
      
      
      
      
 

          

6. Federal Department/Agency       7. Federal Program Name/Description: 
      
 

          8. Federal Action Number, if known: 
      

9. Award Amount, if known: 
 
$       10.a. Name and Address of Lobbying 

Registrant 
 (If individual, last name, first name, MI): 
      

b. Individuals Performing Services (including 
address if different from 10a. 

 (Last name, First name, MI): 
      

11. Information requested through this form 
is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section 
1352. This disclosure of lobbying 
activities is a material representation of 
fact upon which reliance was placed by 
the tier above when this transaction was 
made or entered into. This disclosure is 
required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. 
This information will be available for 
public inspection. required disclosure 
shall be subject to a not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 
 

 
Signature: 

 
 

 
Print Name:       
Title:       
Telephone No.: 

      

Date: 

      

 
Federal Use Only Authorized for Local Reproduction 

Standard Form-LLL (Rev. 7-97) 
 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 12 of 13 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
 
This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal 
recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous 
filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or 
agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action.  Complete all items 
that apply for both the initial filing and material change report.  Refer to the implementing guidance 
published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information. 

 
1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured 

to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action. 
 
2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action. 
 
3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a follow-up report caused by a 

material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the 
change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity 
for this covered Federal action.  

 
4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity.  Include 

Congressional District, if known.  Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that 
designates if it is, or expects to be a prime or subaward recipient.  Identify the tier of the 
subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier.  Subawards include but are 
not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants. 

 
5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee," then enter the full name, 

address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, 
if known. 

 
6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least 

one organizational level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of 
Transportation, United States Coast Guard. 

 
7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, 

enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative 
agreements, loans, and loan commitments. 

 
8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified 

in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number; Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant 
announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal 
control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001." 

 
9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal 

agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified 
in item 4 or 5. 

 



California Department of Public Health – Federal Terms and Conditions Exhibit F 
 

 
CDPH (rev. 12-21) Page 13 of 13 

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the 
Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to 
influence the covered Federal action. 

 
(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services and include full address if 

different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI). 
 
11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone 

number. 
 
 

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid 
OMB Control Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection 
of information is estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering 
and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork 
Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, DC 20503. 
 



Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

Contractor Certification Clauses 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the
nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,



2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment 
on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies that 
no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period 
because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders 
Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract 
Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 
2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of 
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the 
State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, 
other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of 
perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or 
supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced 
in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, 
or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  
The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website 
located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial 
Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts of $100,000 or more,  Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 



Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant 
to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within 
the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State 
with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which 
by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement. 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor shall 
not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the 
State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and 
desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for 
violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally 
determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 

CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS ATTACHMENT OFFICE OF LEGAL SERVICES 

DGS OLS 04 (Rev. 01/17) 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, a person that submits a bid or proposal to, or 
otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state agency with respect to any 
contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, under penalty of perjury, at the time 
the bid or proposal is submitted or the contract is renewed, all of the following: 

1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts executed or renewed after
January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section
51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the
Government Code); and

2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES:  For contracts executed or renewed after
January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign nation or
peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor certifies that such
policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section 51 of the Civil Code)
or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code).

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

Executed in the County of Executed in the State of 

Date Executed 

Proposer/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3833  

 

Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. for 
Epidemiology Services 

Health & Human Services 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Stephanie Tanksley, Deputy Director - Public Health 
& Prevention 

Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the sole-source contract between the County of Inyo and Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. for 
the provision of Epidemiology Services in an amount not to exceed $290,400 for the period of July 1, 
2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget; and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign the contract and Business Associate Agreement, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc., previously known as Cardno ChemRisk (Stantec ChemRisk), is 
currently contracted with Inyo County for epidemiology services. The Department requests approval to 
approve a contract for another year with this provider as a sole source provider.   
 
Regarding the sole source authorization, Stantec was our chosen vendor after an RFP process in 2021 
and, in addition to having extensive experience providing epidemiological services, the vendor also has 
specific knowledge of our local population and community health needs. The sole source exception we 
are evoking is as follows: The capability of the proposed contractor is critical to the specific effort and 
makes the contractor clearly unique compared to other contractors in the general field. The proposed 
contractor has prior experience of a highly specialized nature that is vital to the proposed effort. Since 
they have been providing epidemiological support and services to the County of Inyo, HHS Public Health 
& Prevention Division since 2021, Stantec will not require any training or onboarding to continue offering 
crucial epidemiological services. Across counties, the State of California, and the nation, there are 
deficits of qualified staff within the Public Health and Epidemiology fields. Contracting epidemiology 
services to Stantec has been a fiscally responsible approach to accessing and utilizing a whole 
organization of experts as needs and demands within our community continue to shift in response to 
current and emerging public health concerns. Stantec will lead our Community Health Needs 
Assessment and Community Health Improvement Plan efforts that are now required under Future of 
Public Health funding. They will assist in meeting our requirements for epidemiology reporting and 
surveillance systems, develop procedures, and make recommendations for service enhancement, as 
well as develop surveillance and/or evaluation methods for collecting specific data as requested by the 
County. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant funded Budget Unit 610390 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
This Board could choose not to approve this agreement, resulting in hardships on program staff to 
conduct mandatory Community Needs Assessments and Strategic Planning around health outcomes.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Stantec Consulting ChemRisk Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Stephanie Tanksley Created/Initiated - 6/1/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/1/2023 
Stephanie Tanksley Approved - 6/7/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/13/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/13/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/15/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/15/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/15/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/15/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 1     05/09/2023 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 
FOR THE PROVISION OF EPIDEMIOLOGY SERVICES 

  

INTRODUCTION 

 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for the 

EPIDEMIOLOGY SERVICES of STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. OF CHICAGO, IL (hereinafter 

referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions 

hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK. 

 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by STEPHANIE TANKSLEY, whose title is: 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH & PREVENTION.  Requests to the Contractor for work or 
services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The 
County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or 
work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement 
incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, 
even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 

performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 

state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 

resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

2. TERM. 

 The term of this Agreement shall be from JULY 1, 2023 to JUNE 30, 2024 unless sooner terminated 

as provided below.  

3. CONSIDERATION. 

 A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees 

(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 

Contractor at the County's request.  

 B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per 

diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.  

 C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,  
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed TWO 
HUNDRED NINETY THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS ($290,400.00) 
(hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 2     05/09/2023 

reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract 
limit. 
 E. Billing and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This 
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were 
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Upon timely 
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the 
last day of the month.  
 F. Federal and State taxes.   
 
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal 
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 
  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or 
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for 
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
  (4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments 
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California 
State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County 
an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 
 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 

 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 

Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 

these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 

coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 

be performed within the time frame agreed upon by both Parties. 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 

 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal 
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits  
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which 
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 3     05/09/2023 

 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA. 

 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 

telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 

Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 

Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 

Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 

 A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or 
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.  With consent of the County, 
contractor may publish articles in peer-reviewed journals, submit abstracts, publish other written works of 
interest to the professional field, or present at professional conferences based upon the collaborative work as 
described in Attachment A. 
 
8. INSURANCE. 
 For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 

and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.  

9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 

Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 

County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 

County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 

exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be 

considered an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall 

not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 

joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 

 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 

http://www.sam.gov/


 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 4     05/09/2023 

 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 
 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any  
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 

unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 

employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 

origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 

officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 

(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 

California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-

352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

13. CANCELLATION. 

 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 

Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 

without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 

cancel to County. 

14. ASSIGNMENT. 

 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 

experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 

assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  

Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 

written consent of County. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 5     05/09/2023 

15. DEFAULT. 

 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 

County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 

County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 

notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 

Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 

 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 

subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 

of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 

Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 

 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 

regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 

Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 

or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 

confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 

consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written 

consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  

 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 

services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 

Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 

and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 

thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 

beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  

18. CONFLICTS. 

 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 

would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

19.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 

 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 

from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 

gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 

Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 

during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 

been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 

Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 6     05/09/2023 

20. SEVERABILITY. 

 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 

declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 

county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 

thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 

provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 

 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  

In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 

option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 

Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of 

this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two 

(22) (Amendment). 

22. AMENDMENT. 

 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 

consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 

formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

23. NOTICE. 

 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 

change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 

required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 

class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 

   County of Inyo 
   HHS – Public Health & Prevention   Department 
   1360 N. Main St., Suite 203-C   Address 
   Bishop, CA 93514    City and State 
 
 
   Contractor: 
   Stantec Consulting Services Inc.   Name 
   13980 Collections Center Drive   Address  
   Chicago, IL 60693    City and State 
 
24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 

promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 

reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 

discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

25. CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS. 

Neither party shall be liable to the other party in any circumstances for any indirect, economic, special or 

consequential loss or damage including but not limited to loss of revenue, loss of production or loss of profit. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 7     05/09/2023 

26.  LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  

Notwithstanding any other clause in this Agreement, the total aggregate liability of the Contractor to the 

County for any claims, losses, costs or damages arising out of or in connection with the Contractor’s 

performance of the Agreement, whether under the law of contract, tort (including negligence), statute or 

otherwise, shall be limited to the extent permissible by law to five times the total compensation received by 

the Contractor, or the limits of the relevant insurance policies pursuant to this Agreement, whichever is 

greater. 

  ////       //// 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 8     05/09/2023 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 
FOR THE PROVISION OF EPIDEMIOLOGY SERVICES 

 

 IN  WITNESS  THEREOF,  THE  PARTIES  HERETO  HAVE  SET  THEIR  HANDS  AND  SEALS  

 

THIS                DAY OF                                           ,         . 

 

 

COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 

 

 

By:                                                                  By:                                                         

  Signature                          Signature 

 

_________________________________   _______________________________________       
       Print or Type Name                                 Print or Type Name  
 
Dated:  ___________________________   Dated:                                       

       

      

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   

                                                                                      

  

County Counsel  

 

_________________________________________ 

 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

 

       

County Auditor 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

   

                                                                           

Personnel Services 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

   

                                                                                      

County Risk Manager 

 

 

  

 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 9     05/09/2023 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

FOR THE PROVISION OF EPIDEMIOLOGY SERVICES 
 

 TERM: 

FROM: 07/01/2023 TO: 06/30/2024 

 SCOPE OF WORK: 

Contractor will: 

A. Conduct jurisdictional records review and provide County with written analysis in a format agreed upon by 

both Parties. 

B. Analyze data on other emerging public health and behavioral health problems as assigned. 

C. Analyze and interpret health indicators, risk factors and disease surveillance information. 

D. Evaluate quality and efficiency of County’s epidemiological reporting and surveillance systems and 

procedures and make recommendations for enhancement. Develop surveillance and/or evaluation methods 

for collecting specific data as requested by County. 

E. Provide periodic written reports, in a format agreed upon by both Parties, as requested by the County and 

appropriate to the services described in the Contract. 

F. Assist County in the development of written protocols for emergency health situations. 

G. Assist County with reporting and documentation in the preparation of applying for grants, as applicable. 

H. Attend and participate in virtual: training(s), orientation, and meetings as requested by Inyo County. 

I. Provide the County with copies of licenses, certificates of insurance, and evidence of education upon 

request. 

J. Perform and assist in collection, analysis, interpretation, and evaluation of technical, medical, demographic, 

and statistical data and laboratory results. 

K. Manipulate and analyze large, complex data sets that: a) Identify relationships and trends in data as well 

as factors that could affect the results of research, and/or b) Identify problems and conduct research to 

develop and implement solutions. 

N. Organize, execute, and document multi-dimensional projects. 

O. Complete the above work in a mostly remote capacity; if the contractor will be driving or using mobile 

equipment to fulfill any aspect of the contract duties above, all insurance requirements must be met.  

P. As a Contractor that requires the use and/or disclosure of Protected Health Information, including creating, 

receiving, maintaining, or transmitting Protected Health Information, Contractor shall be deemed a Business 

Associate of HHS and must adhere to the provisions of the Inyo County Health & Human Services Business 

Associate Agreement; see Attachment E. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 10     05/09/2023 

ATTACHMENT B 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

FOR THE PROVISION OF EPIDEMIOLOGY SERVICES 
 

 TERM: 

FROM: 07/01/2023 TO: 06/30/2024 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

For services satisfactorily rendered, and upon receipt of monthly invoices, the County agrees to compensate 

the Contractor for total expenditures in an amount not to exceed $290,400.00, incurred from JULY 1, 2023 to 

June 30, 2024, based upon services provided. 

Actual epidemiology service costs are to be invoiced to lnyo County – HHS: Public Health & Prevention (via 

email: PHAdmin@inyocounty.us) once a month, in an itemized statement that includes the date on which the 

services/work was performed, description of the services/work performed, who performed the services (name 

& title), the hourly rate breakdown, and the total cost of all services. 

Expenditures beyond the agreed-upon epidemiology must be approved in advance with express written 

permission and included in the monthly invoice for reimbursement and include supporting documentation 

(receipts).  The statement to be submitted must cover the period from the 1st of the month through and 

including the last day of the month. 

In accordance with paragraph 3. E - Billing and Payment: monthly invoices with attached expenditure 

information and fiscal receipts including supporting documentation to what is being claimed, should be 

received by Public Health & Prevention lnyo County no later than five (5) days after the end of the month. 

Public Health & Prevention retains the right to withhold payment until satisfactory receipt and review of those 

materials has taken place. 

lf all budget funds are paid out early in the contract period (prior to June 30, 2024), the contract will be 

considered complete and invoices with a zero balance do not need to be submitted. The County retains sole 

discretion to renew for additional terms, without a competitive bid process, subject to contractor performance, 

continued funding availability, and Health and Human Services (HHS) - Public Health & Prevention approval. 

Invoice Due Dates: the first business day of the month, but no later than five (5) days after the end of the 

month. 

Invoice Rates: All invoices will be paid in accordance with 2023 Stantec ChemRisk Rate Sheet, see 

Attachment D. 

mailto:PHAdmin@inyocounty.us


 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 11     05/09/2023 

ATTACHMENT C 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

FOR THE PROVISION OF EPIDEMIOLOGY SERVICES 
 

 TERM: 

FROM: 07/01/2023 TO: 06/30/2024 

 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment C: 2023 Insurance Requirements for  
Professional Services - General 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services – General 20230403/ah 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance 
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily 
injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence. If a 
general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 
required occurrence limit.  

1. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any 
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

2. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease. (Not required if consultant provided written verification it has no employees.) 

3. Professional Liability: Insurance appropriate to the Contractor’s profession, with limit no less 
than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 2,000,000 aggregate. 

4. Abuse/Molestation Liability: For contracts involving work with or service to minors (i.e., people 
under the age of 18 in California), sexual assault and misconduct (“SAM”) coverage with limits 
no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate. Waived if contractor will not 
have contact with minors for the execution of the agreement. 

5. Cyber Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to 
the duties and obligations undertaken by Contractor in this agreement as to maintaining the 
security of client medical information. Coverage shall include, but not be limited to, claims 
involving security breach, system failure, data recovery, business interruption, cyber extortion, 
social engineering, infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to invasion of 
privacy violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release 
of private information, and alteration of electronic information. The policy shall provide 
coverage for breach response costs, regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring 
expense. 

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, 
Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained 
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be 
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment 



Attachment C: 2023 Insurance Requirements for  
Professional Services - General 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services – General 20230403/ah 

furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the 
form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or 
if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if 
a later edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo 
County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the 
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true 
“following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the 
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional 
Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called 
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any 
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of 
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess 
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $50,000 
unless approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole 
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the 
Indemnified Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due 
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) 
provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense 
costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County 
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  



Attachment C: 2023 Insurance Requirements for  
Professional Services - General 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Professional Services – General 20230403/ah 

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning 
of contract work.  

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 
after completion of the contract of work.  

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form 
with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase 
“extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and 
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and 
Endorsements pages are to be received and approved by Inyo County before work commences. 
However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
Contractor’s obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified 
copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any 
time. Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature 
of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  
 
Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting 
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Duration of Coverage: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but 
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years 
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 
 
-end- 



2023-2024 Rate Sheet
Title Hourly Rate

Senior Managing Principal $     575 - 600

Managing Principal $     500 - 565

Senior Principal $     450 - 500

Principal $     400 - 450

Principal Science Advisor $     375 - 400

Senior Managing $ 355

Senior Consulting Scientist/Senior Epidemiology Consultant $ 330

Managing $ 285

Senior Supervising $ 275

Supervising $ 260

Senior $ 250

Health Scientist I - II $     220 - 230

Senior Associate I - II $     180 - 195

Associate I - II $     155 - 170

Assistant I - II $     135 - 150

Research Associate I - II $     105 - 125

Administrative $ 80

Other Direct Costs

Direct Project Expense $          8/hour

Subcontractor Markup 20%

Expense Markup 20%

ATTACHMENT D



Inyo County Health and Human Services Business Associate Agreement 

If, during the term of any Agreement between Inyo County Health and Human Services 
(“HHS”) and a contracted services supplier (“Contractor”), Contractor requires the use or 

disclosure of Protected Health Information, including creating, receiving, maintaining, or 
transmitting Protected Health Information, then Contractor shall be deemed a Business 
Associate of HHS and the following provisions shall apply: 

This agreement (“Agreement”) shall be effective on the date of Contractor’s signature and is 
between the Contractor (“Business Associate”) identified in this Agreement and HHS on behalf 

of itself and its affiliates who are Covered Entities or Business Associates.  The purpose of this 
Agreement is to comply with the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, the HITECH Act, and their implementing regulations (45 C.F.R. Parts 

160-164, including Subpart E of 45 CFR Part164) ("HIPAA"), any applicable state privacy laws,
any applicable state security laws, any applicable implementing regulations or other regulatory
authority over data protected herein.

Business Associate agrees to: 

(a) Not use or disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by
the Agreement or as required by law;

(b) Use appropriate safeguards, and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect

to electronic protected health information, to prevent use or disclosure of protected health
information other than as provided for by the Agreement;

(c) Report to covered entity any use or disclosure of protected health information not
provided for by the Agreement of which it becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured

protected health information as required at 45 CFR 164.410, and any security incident of
which it becomes aware;

(d) In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), if applicable, ensure that
any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit protected health information

on behalf of the business associate agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and
requirements that apply to the business associate with respect to such information;

(e) Make available protected health information in a designated record set to HHS or an
individual designee as necessary to satisfy covered entity’s obligations under 45 CFR

164.524;

(f) Make any amendment(s) to protected health information in a designated record set as
directed or agreed to by the covered entity pursuant to 45 CFR 164.526, or take other
measures as necessary to satisfy covered entity’s obligations under 45 CFR 164.526;

ATTACHMENT E

Page 1



(g) Maintain and make available the information required to provide an accounting of
disclosures to HHS as necessary to satisfy HHS’ obligations under 45 CFR 164.528;

(h) To the extent the business associate is to carry out one or more of covered entity's

obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, comply with the requirements of Subpart E
that apply to the covered entity in the performance of such obligation(s); and

(i) Make its internal practices, books, and records available to the Secretary for purposes of
determining compliance with the HIPAA Rules.

Permitted and Required Uses and Disclosures 

Business Associate is permitted or required to Use or disclose Protected Health Information 
(“PHI”) it requests, creates, or receives for or from HHS only as follows: 

a) Functions and Activities on HHS’ Behalf.   Business Associate is permitted to

request, Use, or disclose PHI it creates or receives for or from HHS, consistent with
HIPAA, only as described in this Agreement, or other agreements during their term
that may exist between HHS and Business Associate.

b) Business Associate’s Operations. Business Associate may Use PHI it creates or
receives for or from HHS as necessary for Business Associate’s proper management

and administration or to carry out Business Associate’s legal a n d  co n t r a ct u a l
responsibilities. Business associate may not use or disclose protected health
information in a manner that would violate Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, except for
the specific uses and disclosures set forth below:

(i) The Disclosure is Required by Law; or

(ii) Business Associate obtains reasonable assurance evidenced by written
contract, from any person or organization to which Business Associate will
disclose such PHI that the person or organization will:

a. Hold such PHI in confidence and Use or further disclose it only for
the purpose for which Business Associate disclosed it to the person or

organization or Required by Law; and

b. Notify Business Associate (who will in turn promptly notify HHS) of

any instance of which the person or organization becomes aware in
which the confidentiality of such PHI was breached.

c) Data Aggregation Services.  Business Associate may provide Data Aggregation

services relating to the Health Care Operations of HHS the extent required to provide
services to HHS or as otherwise expressly permitted by HHS.

Page 2



d) Minimum Necessary and Limited Data Set. In any instance when Business Associate
requests,  Uses, or discloses PHI under this Agreement or in accordance with other

agreements that exist between HHS and Business Associate, Business Associate may
request, Use or disclose only the minimum amount of PHI necessary to accomplish the
intended purpose. Business Association will Use a Limited Data Set, if applicable.

e) Use  by  Workforce.  Business Associate shall advise members of its workforce of their

obligations to protect and safeguard PHI. Business Associate shall take appropriate
disciplinary action against any member of its workforce who Uses or discloses PHI in
contravention of this Agreement.

f) Disclosure to U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.  Business Associate shall

make its internal practices, books, and records relating to the Use and Disclosure of PHI
received from HHS (or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of HHS) available
to the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services, for

purposes of determining HHS’ compliance with 45 C.F.R. Parts 160-164.    Unless the
Secretary directs otherwise, Business Associate shall promptly notify HHS of Business
Associate’s receipt of such request, so that HHS can assist in compliance with that request.

g) Substance Use Disorder Records. To the extent that PHI exchanged between the parties

includes information on an individual's Substance Use Disorder, the parties agree to comply
with the applicable requirements of 42 C.F.R. Part 2 ("Confidentiality of Substance Use
Disorder Patient Records") including its provisions on disclosure and re -disclosure of said
information.

Prohibitions on Unauthorized Requests, Use or Disclosure. 

Business Associate will neither Use nor disclose HHS’ PHI it creates or receives from HHS except 
as permitted or required by this or other Agreement, or as Required by Law or as otherwise 
permitted in writing by HHS.  This Agreement does not authorize Business Associate to request, 

Use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in a manner that will violate 45 C.F.R. Parts 160-164. 

Sub-Contractors and Agents. 

Business Associate will require any of its Subcontractors and/or agents that create, receive, 
maintain, or transmit such PHI to provide reasonable assurance, evidenced by written contract, 
that Subcontractor or agent will comply with the same privacy and security commitments that 

are substantively equivalent to those in this Agreement with respect to such PHI, including the 
obligations described in Section 4 herein.  

Information Safeguards.   

Business Associate must use appropriate safeguards to comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 
164 and must implement, maintain and use a written information security program that 

Page 3



contains the necessary administrative, technical and physical safeguards that are appropriate in 
light of the Business Associate’s size and complexity in order to achieve the safeguarding 

objectives as detailed in Social Security Act § 1173(d) (42 U.S.C. § 1320d-2(d)), 45 C.F.R. Part 
164.530(c), the HITECH Act and any other implementing regulations issued by the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, as such may be amended from time to time and as 

required by any agreed to required information security controls. Further, Business Associate 
shall comply with any applicable state data privacy or security law. Business Associate shall 
notify HHS should Business Associate determine it is unable to comply with any such law or 
regulation.  

Individual Rights 

a) Access.  Business Associate will promptly upon HHS’ request make available to HHS or, at
HHS’ direction, to the Individual (or the Individual’s Personal Representative) for inspection
and obtaining copies any PHI about the Individual which Business Associate created or

received for or from HHS and that is in Business Associate’s custody or control, so that HHS
may meet its access obligations pursuant to and required by applicable law, including but
not limited to 45 C.F.R. 164.524, and where applicable, the HITECH Act.  Business Associate
shall make such information available in electronic format where directed by HHS.

b) Amendment.  Business Associate will, upon receipt of notice from HHS, promptly amend or
permit HHS access to amend any portion of the PHI which Business Associate created or

received for or from HHS, pursuant to and required by applicable law, including but not
limited to 45 C.F.R. Part 164.526.

Business Associate will not respond directly to an Individual’s request for an amendment of 
their PHI held in the Business Associate’s Designated  Record Set.   Business Associate will 
refer the Individual to HHS so that HHS can coordinate and prepare a timely response to 
the Individual. 

c) Disclosure  Accounting.  So that HHS may  meet  its  Disclosure  accounting  obligations
pursuant to and required by applicable law, including but not limited to 45 C.F.R. Part
164.528 Business Associate will promptly, but no later than within seven (7) days of the

Disclosure, report to HHS for each Disclosure Business Associate makes of HHS’ PHI not
expressly excepted from the right to an accounting as described in 45 CFR 164.528(a)(1)(i) -
(ix). For each Disclosure for which a report is required by this section, Business Associate

will provide the following information as described in 45 CFR 164.528(b).

Except as provided below, Business Associate will not respond directly to an Individual’s
request for an accounting of Disclosures.  Business Associate will refer the Individual to HHS

so that HHS can coordinate and prepare a timely accounting to the Individual. However,
when Business Associate is contacted directly by an individual based on information
provided to the individual by HHS, Business Associate shall make the accounting of

Page 4



disclosures available directly to the individual, but only if required by the HITECH Act or any 
related regulations. 

d) Confidential Communications and Restriction Agreements. Business Associate will comply
with any agreement HHS makes that restricts Use or Disclosure of HHS’ PHI pursuant to 45
C.F.R. §164.522(a), provided that HHS notifies Business Associate in writing of the

restriction obligations that Business Associate  must  follow.

Breach of Privacy and Security Obligations 

a) Reporting.  Business Associate will report to HHS: (i) any Use or Disclosure of PHI not

permitted by this or other Agreement in writing by HHS notwithstanding if it is a Breach as
defined by the HITECH Act;(ii) any Security Incident; (Act; or (iv) any othe r breach of a
secure system, or the like, as such may be defined under applicable state law (collectively a

“Breach”). Except as described in subparagraph “c)” below, Business Associate will, without
unreasonable delay, but no later than within one (1) bus iness day after Business Associate’s
discovery of a Breach, make the report by sending a report to HHS by such  reasonable

means of reporting as may be communicated to Business Associate by HHS. Business
Associate shall cooperate with HHS in investigating the Breach and in meeting HHS’
obligations under the HITECH Act, and any other applicable security breach notification
laws or regulatory obligations.

Obligations upon Termination 

a) Return or Destruction.  Upon termination, cancellation, expiration or other conclusion of
the Agreement, Business Associate will if feasible return to HHS or destroy all PHI, in
whatever form or medium (including in any electronic medium under Business Associate’s

custody or control), that Business Associate created or received for or from HHS, including
all copies of and any data or compilations derived from and allowing identification of any
Individual who is a subject of the PHI.  Business Associate will complete such return or

destruction as promptly as possible, but not later than 30 days after the effective date of
the termination, cancellation, expiration or other conclusion of Agreement. Business
Associate shall destroy all PHI in accordance with any guidance set forth by the Secretary

and/or any other government agency or other entity to whom the Secretary delegates such
authority Business Associate will identify any PHI that Business Associate created or
received for or from HHS that cannot feasibly be returned destroyed, and will limit its

further Use or Disclosure of that PHI to those purposes that make return or destruction of
that PHI infeasible and will otherwise continue to protect the security any PHI that is
maintained pursuant to the security provisions of this Agreement for so long as the PHI is
maintained. Upon request, Business Associate will certify in writing to HHS that such return

or destruction has been completed, will deliver to HHS the identification of any PHI for
which return or destruction is infeasible and, for that PHI, will certify that it will only Use or
disclose such PHI for those purposes that make return or destruction inf easible.

Page 5



b) Continuing Privacy and Security Obligation.  Business Associate’s obligation to protect the
privacy and security of the PHI it created or received for or from HHS will be continuous
and survive termination, cancellation, expiration or other conclusion of this Agreement, so

long as the data is maintained.

General Provisions 

a) Definitions.  Except as otherwise provided, the capitalized terms in this Agreement have
the meanings set out in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160-164, as may be amended from time to time.
The term Protected Health Information (“PHI”) includes any information without regard to

its form or medium, gathered by Business Associate in connection with Business Associate’s
relationship with Covered Entity that identifies an individual or that otherwise would be
defined as Protected Health Information under HIPAA. The term "business associate" in

lower case shall have the meaning set out in 45 CFR 160.103.

b) Amendment. From time to time local, state or federal legislative bodies, boards,
departments or agencies may enact or issue laws, rules, or regulations pertinent this
Agreement.  In such event, Business Associate agrees to immediately abide by all said

pertinent laws, rules, or regulations and to cooperate with HHS to carry out any
responsibilities placed upon HHS or Business Associate by said laws, rules, or regulations.

c) Conflicts. The terms and conditions of this Agreement will override and control any
conflicting term or condition of any other agreement between the parties with respect to

the subject matter herein. All non-conflicting terms and conditions of the said other
agreement(s) remain in full force and effect.

d) Owner of PHI.  As between the parties, HHS is the exclusive owner of PHI generated or used

under the terms of the Agreement.

e) Subpoenas. Business Associate will promptly inform HHS of any subpoena Business

Associate receives with regard to PHI belonging to HHS and cooperate with any HHS request
or effort to limit Disclosure pursuant to such subpoena.

f) Assignment/Subcontract.  HHS shall have the right to review and approve any proposed
assignment or subcontracting of Business Associate’s duties and responsibilities arising

under the Agreement, as it relates to the Use or creation of PHI (or DID if applicable].

g) Intent. The parties agree that there are no intended third party beneficiaries under this
Agreement.

h) Indemnity.  Business Associate will indemnify and hold harmless HHS and any HHS affiliate,

officer, director, employee or agent from and against any claim, cause of action, liability,
damage, cost or expense, including attorneys’ fees and court or proceeding costs, arising 

Page 6



out of or in connection with any non-permitted or prohibited Use or Disclosure of PHI or 
other breach of this Agreement by Business Associate or any Subcontractor, agent, person 

or entity under Business Associate’s control.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, HHS and Business Associate execute this Agreement in multiple 

originals to be effective on the date of Business Associate’s Signature below: 

Name of Business Associate Health and Human Services 

  By: 

Signature 

Printed Name 

Title Title 

Date Date 

County of Inyo - HHS:
Public Health & PreventionStantec Consulting Services Inc.

Printed Name 

Signature 

Page 7



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3853  

 

Modification to Subcontractor Agreement with 
Advocates for Human Potential Crisis Care Mobile Unit 

Project 
Health & Human Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lori Bengochia, Innovations and Grant Manager Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the modification between the County of Inyo and Advocates for Human Potential, Inc. of 
Sudbury, MA, to increase funding by $300,000 for a total of $500,000 with the period of performance 
extended through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize 
the HHS Director or Designee to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Subcontract Agreement with the Advocates for Human Potential, Inc. (AHP) was approved by the 
Board on March 1, 2022 for $200,00 for planning of the Crisis Care Mobile Unit Program 
(CCMU).  Planning was completed February 14, 2023 with the submission of an application for an 
additional $300,000 to implement the CCMU Program. Inyo County HHS has been allocated, through the 
Modification #2  to the Subcontract Agreement the additional funds to begin the implementation of the 
CCMU program.  The expectation is that the additional allocations is to be expended by June 30, 2025.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4499 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditures  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Your Board could choose not to approve the ammendment/modication resulting in lack of funding to 
implement the Crisis Care Mobile Unit for Inyo County.   
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Third Party Administrator, Advocates for Human Potential, Inc. (AHP) 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Modified AHP Crisis Care Mobile Units Subcontractor Agreement 
2. AHP Crisis Care Mobile Units Subcontractor Agreement 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lori Bengochia Created/Initiated - 6/9/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/13/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/13/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/13/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/16/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/19/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/19/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS (CCMU-IMPL)-INYO-01G-MOD#2 

Modification #2 to Subcontract Agreement 

 

Subcontract ID: 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS (CCMU-IMPL)-INYO-01G 

Subcontract Effective Date: As of September 15, 2021 

Extension/ Modification 
Date: 

Effective as of May 24, 2023 

Subcontractor: COUNTY OF INYO (“INYO”) 
ATTN: Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
1360 North Main Street, Suite 124, Bishop, CA 93514 
Phone: (760) 873-3305 
Email address: mmann@inyocounty.us  

Contract ID: 
 

Client: California Department of Health Care Services 
Agreement No.:  21-10349 
Contract Title: “Behavioral Health Mobile Crisis and Non-crisis 
Services (Mobile Crisis)”   
 

AHP Staff Contact(s): 
AHP Project Director: Monica Reeves 
Tel: (978) 261-1483 (o)/ mreeves@ahpnet.com  

Recitals: 
  

 WHEREAS, the parties wish to make certain written changes to this Subcontract 
Agreement: 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS (CCMU-IMPL)-INYO-01G, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth, 
the Agreement is modified as follows: 

*******************************************  
 

1. The Subcontract ID going forward shall be designated as “7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS 
(CCMU-IMPL)-INYO-01G” 
 

2. The Q6 Deliverables due date is extended to March 31, 2023. 
 

3. The Period of Performance under the Subcontract is modified to extend through June 30, 
2025. 
 

4. New Quarters 7-15 are added to the Statement of Work, with Deliverables and Equipment 
funding added for a total of $300,000.00: 

a. Q8 – $6,252.00  
b. Q9 – $35,051.00 

i. $10,519.00 in Equipment added 
ii. $24,532.00 in Deliverables added 

c. Q10 – $21,668.00 
i. $1,460.00 in Equipment added 
ii. $20,208.00 in Deliverables added  

A
d
v
o
c
a
te

s
 f
o
r 

H
u
m

a
n
 P

o
te

n
ti
a
l,
 I
n
c
. 
 

  
4
9
0
-B

 B
o
s
to

n
 P

o
s
t 

R
o
a
d
, 

S
u
d
b
u
ry

, 
M

A
  
0
1
7
7
6


  
(9

7
8
) 

4
4
3
-0

0
5
5
 



7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS (CCMU-IMPL)-INYO-01G-MOD#2 

d. Q11 – $167,609.00 
i. $150,000.00 in Equipment added 
ii. $17,609.00 in Deliverables added 

e. Q12 – $12,110.00 
f. Q13 – $23,612.00 

i. $1,500.00 in Equipment added 
ii. $22,112.00 in Deliverables added 

g. Q14 – $18,682.00 
h. Q15 – $15,016.00 

 
5. Consideration under the subcontract is increased by $300,000.00 from $200,000.00 to 

$500,000.00. 
 

6. The Revised Statement of Work (“SOW”) (attached hereto as Attachment D) incorporates 
any previous Modification(s) and now reflects all equipment and deliverables (including 
CRRSAA deliverables) funded under this Subcontract. 
 

7. The Revised Payment Schedule (attached hereto as Attachment E) incorporates any 
previous Modification(s) and now reflects all payments funded under the Subcontract.  

 
8. Facsimile/electronic/scanned signatures are acceptable and effective for purposes of this 

Extension/ Modification as though an original inked signature. 
 

9. All other terms and conditions of the Subcontract Agreement remain in effect. 

THIS MODIFICATION CONSISTS OF TWO (2) TYPEWRITTEN PAGE(S), 
TOGETHER WITH THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED HEREIN: 

 

 ATTACHMENT D REVISED SOW 

 ATTACHMENT E REVISED PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Modification as of the day and 
year last written below.

  

ADVOCATES FOR HUMAN POTENTIAL, INC.  COUNTY OF INYO 

Signature:   Signature:   

 Name: CHARLES GALLAND Printed Name:   

Title: CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER Title:    

Date:  Date:   



ATTACHMENT D  REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

ATTACHMENT D 
REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

Crisis Care Mobile Units (CCMU) Implementation Grant 
Statement of Work (MOD#2) – Planning Base Allocation 

Agency Name: Inyo County 
Implementation SOW Start Date: January 1, 2022 

Implementation SOW End Date: June 30, 2025 

 

Item Billing Code 
Description/Deliverable 

 
Amount 

Due 

Date 

1.  7460.10-002-0001 

Quarter 2 

1/1/22 – 3/31/22 

Coronavirus Response and Relief Services Appropriations 
Act (CRRSAA) Funding 
Community Assessment.  

• The Grantee will contract with one consultant to 
work on the following:  
- A community mobile crisis needs assessment 

that shall describe the existence and 
availability of crisis services available to youth 
and adults in the Grantee’s county 
("Community Needs Assessment"). 

-  An action plan, a written proposal that shall 
address the need of crisis and non-crisis 
mobile programs in the Grantee's county 
("Action Plan").The Action Plan must be 
submitted to AHP for approval by February 
1.2023 and approved by DHCS no later than 
close of business February14,2023..  

• The Grantee will begin conducting Community 
Needs Assessment activities that will include: 
collecting existing data and information; 
collecting existing literature; evaluating current 
services capacity and community resources; and 
conducting surveys and key informant interviews 
with County staff.  

Coordination.  
• The Grantee will invite local and regional 

organizations to join the community planning 
partners group ("Partners Group") that will assist 
the Grantee in developing, revising and approving 

$39,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$13,400.00 

3/31/22 



ATTACHMENT D  REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

the Community Needs Assessment and Action 
Plan. 

• The Grantee shall convene one (1) virtual Partners 
Group meeting and will present the overall 
project management plan including the 
Community Needs Assessment and Action Plan. 

Quarterly report.  
• The Grantee will submit a quarterly report by 

3131122. 
Equipment.  

• Survey Monkey software = $5,400.  
• Tableau software = $8,000 

2.  7460.10-002-0001 

Quarter 3 

4/1/22 – 6/30/22 

Coronavirus Response and Relief Services Appropriations 
Act (CRRSAA) Funding 
Coordination.  

• The Grantee will convene one (1) Partners Group 
meeting. Agenda items will include: project 
planning, Community Needs Assessment, and 
Action Plan. 

Community Assessment.  
• The Grantee will finalize the Community Needs 

Assessment. Activities will include: analyzing data, 
information and literature collected; finalizing 
results on available resources for crisis care and 
gaps in services; and finalizing surveys and key 
informant interviews with County staff. 

Quarterly report.  
• The Grantee will submit a quarterly report by 

6130122 

$37,000.00 6/30/22 

  Year 1 Total:  $89,400.00  

3.  7460.10-002-0001 

Quarter 4 

7/1/22 – 9/30/22 

Coronavirus Response and Relief Services Appropriations 
Act (CRRSAA) Funding 
Coordination.  

• The Grantee will conduct one (1) virtual Partners 
Group meeting. Agenda items will include: project 
updates, Community Needs Assessment, and 
Action Plan. 

Community Assessment.  
• The Grantee will prepare a report of initial 

findings of the surveys, interviews, Community 
Needs Assessment, and data collection efforts, 
which will be used in drafting the Action Plan. 

Action Plan 
• The Grantee will begin drafting the Action Plan 

Quarterly report. The Grantee will submit a 
quarterly report by 9130122 

$36,500.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9/30/22 



ATTACHMENT D  REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

Equipment.  
• 6 months of data for tablets ($SO/month) = 

$3,000.  
• Hotspots for tablets ($S/month x 6 months) = 

$300 

 

 

$3,300.00 

4.  7460.10-002-0001 

Quarter 5 

10/1/22 – 12/31/22 

Coronavirus Response and Relief Services Appropriations 
Act (CRRSAA) Funding 
Coordination.  

• The Grantee will convene one (1) virtual Partners 
Group meeting. Agenda items will include: project 
update, Community Needs Assessment, and 
Action Plan.  

• The Grantee will present the draft Action Plan for 
review and feedback by Partners Group, which 
will be incorporated into the next phase of 
drafting the Action Plan. 

• The Grantee will host a meeting with County staff 
to present the draft Action Plan for review and 
feedback, which will be incorporated into the next 
phase of drafting the Action Plan.  

Action Plan.  
• The Grantee will revise the Action Plan using 

feedback from the Partners Group and County 
staff. 

Quarterly report 
• The Grantee will submit a quarterly report by 

12/31/22. 
Equipment.  

• Survey Monkey software = $5,400.  
• Tableau software = $8,000 

$36,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$13,400.00 

12/31/22 

5.  7460.10-002-0001 

Quarter 6 

1/1/23 – 3/31/23 

Cornonavirus Response and Relief Services 
Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) Funding 
Coordination 

• The Grantee will convene one (1) virtual Partners 
Group meeting. Agenda items will include: project 
updates; and Action Plan..  

• The Grantee will share the finalized Action Plan 
with the Partners Group. 

Action Plan.  
• The Grantee will finalize the Action Plan and 

submit to lnyo County HHS Leadership by 
1110123, and to AHP by211123 for review. The 
Grantee will submit the final Action Plan to DHCS 
by 211412023. 

Quarterly report. 

$21,400.00 3/31/23 



ATTACHMENT D  REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

• The Grantee will submit a quarterly report by 
211412023 

  Year 2 Total:  $110,600.00  

6.  7460.01-002 

Quarter 8 

07/01/23 – 09/30/23 

BASE ALLOCATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program 
(BHCIP) Funds 
Activities/Deliverables That Build the CCMU 
Infrastructure 

a. Coordination and planning activities with local 
and regional organizations and/or to manage 
multiple CCMUs ($3,963.00) 
• 25% of one (1) staff members time for 

coordination and planning activities.  
b. Data collection, analysis, and quarterly reporting 

for CCMU ($2,289.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff time for Data Collection, 

analysis, and quarterly reporting. 

$6,252.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

09/30/23 

7.  7460.01-002 

Quarter 9 

10/01/23- 

12/31/23 

 

BASE ALLOCATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program 
(BHCIP) Funds 
Equipment/Property Purchases ($9,619.00) 

• Two (2) laptops at $1,800.00 ea. = $3,600.00 
• Four (4) Ipads at $500.00 ea.= $2,000.00 
• One (1) wireless printer/fax/Scanner at 

$1,000.00 = $1,000.00 
• Six (6) folding chairs at $50.00 ea. = $300.00 
• Office supplies = $600.00 
• One (1) vehicle safety kit at $100.00 = 

$100.00 
• Five (5) Safety vets at $10.00 ea. = $150.00 
• Two (1) First Aid kits at $100.00 ea. = $100.00 
• Five (5) Winter jackets at $130.00 

ea.=$650.00 
• Five (5) Crampons at $100.00 ea. = $500.00 
• Five (5) Flashlights at $60.00 ea.= $300.00 
• Five (5) Headlamps at $60.00 ea.= $300.00 
• Batteries=$19.00 
• One (1) Wi-Fi hotspot equipment = $900.00  

Activities/Deliverables That Build the CCMU 
Infrastructure  

a. Vehicle-related costs for CCMU ($3,250.00) 
• Fuel = $1,250.00 
• Vehicle Maintenance = $750.00  

$10,519.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$24,532.00 

12/31/23 



ATTACHMENT D  REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

• Vehicle Insurance = $1,250.00  
b. Trainings ($6,000.00) 

• Fee for Crisis Response Staff to complete 
Crisis Response Training. Crisis staff will hold 
public trainings aimed at local community 
partners = $2,000.00 

• Fee for Crisis Staff to complete 5150 training 
course. Crisis staff will then facilitate public 
trainings aimed at local community partners = 
$2,000.00 

• Training materials & supplies = $2,000.00 
c. Dispatch of CCMU teams ($2,612.00) 

• 10% of two (2) staff members time for 
dispatch services. 

d. Coordination and planning activities with local 
and regional organizations and/or to manage 
multiple CCMUs ($3,963.00) 
• 25% of one (1) staff members time for 

coordination and planning activities.  
e. Marketing for CCMU services ($6,422.00) 

• Radio Ads = $1,000.00  
• Brochures = $1,000.00  
• Newspaper/social media=$1,000.00 
• Logo Design/Promotional Items such as pens, 

= $3,422.00 
f. Data collection, analysis, and quarterly reporting 

for CCMU ($2,285.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff time for Data Collections, 

analysis, and quarterly reporting. 
• Attend monthly coaching calls, quarterly 

learning collaboratives and submit quarterly 
reports.  

8.  7460.01-002 

Quarter 10 

01/1/24 – 03/31/24 

BASE ALLOCATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program 
(BHCIP) Funds 
Equipment/Property Purchases ($1,460.00)  

• Rain Ponchos 40 ea. at $18.00ea.= $720.00 
• Traffic Cones 12 ea. at $35.00= $420.00 
• Traffic Flashers 8 ea. at $40.00 = $320.00 

Activities/Deliverables That Build the CCMU 
Infrastructure 

a. Vehicle-related costs for CCMU ($2,000.00) 
• Fuel = $1,250.00 
• Vehicle Maintenance = $750.00  

b. Dispatch of CCMU teams ($2,612.00) 
10% of two (2) staff members time for dispatch 
services. 

$1,460.00 

 

 

 

 

$20,208.00 

03/31/24 



ATTACHMENT D  REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

c. Coordination and planning activities with local 
and regional organizations and/or to manage 
multiple CCMUs ($3,963.00) 
• 25% of one (1) staff members time for 

coordination and planning activities.  
d. Marketing for CCMU services ($9,348.00) 

• Purchase fee for radio ads = $1,000.00  
• Purchase fee for brochures = $1,000.00  
• Newspaper/social media ads=$1,000.00 
• Logo Design/Promotional items such as pens, 

magnets, bags, stickers, keychains= $6,348.00 
e. Data collection, analysis, and quarterly reporting 

for CCMU ($2,285.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff time for Data Collections, 

analysis, and quarterly reporting. 
9.  7460.01-002 

Quarter 11 

4/1/24 – 6/30/24 

BASE ALLOCATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program 
(BHCIP) Funds 
Equipment/Property Purchases ($150,000) 

• One (1) Customized van at $150,000.00 
($100,000.00 for the van and $50,000.00 for 
vehicle modifications including retrofit a staff 
desk area and client sitting area, storage 
space, installation of technology and safety 
equipment.) 

Activities/Deliverables That Build the CCMU 
Infrastructure 

A. Vehicle-related costs for CCMU ($2,000.00) 
• Fuel = $1,250.00  
• Vehicle Maintenance = $750.00  

B. Dispatch of CCMU teams ($2,612.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff members time for 

dispatch services. 
C. Coordination and planning activities with local 

and regional organizations and/or to manage 
multiple CCMUs ($3,963.00) 
• 25% of one (1) staff members time for 

coordination and planning activities.  
D. Marketing for CCMU services ($6,422.00) 

• Purchase fee for radio ads = $1,000.00  
• Purchase fee for design and print of 

brochures = $1,000.00  
• Newspaper/social media ads=$1,000.00 
• Promotional Items such as pens, magnets, 

bags, stickers, keychains= $3,422.00 
E. Data collection, analysis, and quarterly reporting 

for CCMU ($2,612.00) 

$150,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$17,609.00 

 

 

06/30/24 



ATTACHMENT D  REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

• 10% of two (2) staff time for data collections, 
analysis, and quarterly reporting. 

• Attend monthly coaching calls and quarterly 
learning collaboratives.  

Total Year 3: $230,580.00  

10.  7460.01-002 

Quarter 12 

7/1/24 – 9/30/24 

BASE ALLOCATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program 
(BHCIP) Funds 
Activities/Deliverables That Build the CCMU 
Infrastructure 

A. Vehicle-related costs for CCMU ($3,250.00) 
• Fuel = $1,250.00  
• Vehicle Maintenance = $750.00  
• Vehicle Insurance = $1,250.00  

B. Dispatch of CCMU teams ($2,612.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff members time for 

dispatch services. 
C. Coordination and planning activities with local 

and regional organizations and/or to manage 
multiple CCMUs ($3,963.00) 
• 25% of one (1) staff members time for 

coordination and planning activities.  
D. Data collection, analysis, and quarterly reporting 

for CCMU ($2,285.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff time for data collections, 

analysis, and quarterly reporting. 

$12,110.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

09/30/24 

11.  7460.01-002 

Quarter 13 

10/1/24 – 12/31/24 

BASE ALLOCATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program 
(BHCIP) Funds 
Equipment/Property Purchases ($600.00) 

• Office Supplies $600.00 
• One (1) Wi-Fi hotspot Fee = $900.00  

Activities/Deliverables That Build the CCMU 
Infrastructure 

A. Vehicle-related costs for CCMU ($2,000.00) 
• Fuel = $1,250.00  
• Vehicle Maintenance = $750.00 

B. Trainings ($4,000.00) 
• Fee for Crisis Response Staff to complete 

Crisis Response Training. Crisis staff will hold 
public trainings aimed at local community 
partners = $2,000.00 

• Fee for Crisis Staff to complete 5150 training 
course. Crisis staff will then facilitate public 
trainings aimed at local community partners = 
$2,000.00 

$1,500.00 

 

 

$22,112.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12/31/24 



ATTACHMENT D  REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

C. Dispatch of CCMU teams ($2,612.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff members time for 

dispatch services. 
D. Coordination and planning activities with local 

and regional organizations and/or to manage 
multiple CCMUs ($3,963.00) 
• 25% of one (1) staff members time for 

coordination and planning activities.  
E. Marketing for CCMU services ($8,922.00) 

• Purchase fee for radio ads = $1,500.00  
• Purchase fee for design and print of 

brochures = $1,500.00  
• Newspaper/social media ads = $1,500.00 
• Promotional items such as pens, magnets, 

bags, stickers, keychains = 4,422.00 
F. Data collection, analysis, and quarterly reporting 

for CCMU ($2,285.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff time for data collections, 

analysis, and quarterly reporting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.  7460.01-002 

Quarter 14 

01/1/25 – 03/31/25 

BASE ALLOCATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program 
(BHCIP) Funds 
Activities/Deliverables That Build the CCMU 
Infrastructure 

A. Vehicle-related costs for CCMU ($2,000.00) 
• Fuel = $1,250.00  
• Vehicle Maintenance = $750.00 

B. Dispatch of CCMU teams ($2,612.00) 
10% of two (2) staff members time for dispatch 
services. 

C. Coordination and planning activities with local 
and regional organizations and/or to manage 
multiple CCMUs ($3,963.00) 
• 25% of one (1) staff members time for 

coordination and planning activities.  
D. Marketing for CCMU services ($7,822.00) 

• Radio Ads = $1,500.00  
• Brochures = $1,500.00  
• Newspaper/social media=$1,400.00 
• Promotional Items such as pens, magnets, 

bags, stickers, keychains = $3,422.00 
E. Data collection, analysis, and quarterly reporting 

for CCMU ($2,285.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff time for Data Collections, 

analysis, and quarterly reporting. 

$18,682.00 03/31/25 



ATTACHMENT D  REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK 

13.  7460.01-002 

Quarter 15 

04/01/25 – 

06/30/25 

BASE ALLOCATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program 
(BHCIP) Funds  
Activities/Deliverables That Build the CCMU 
Infrastructure 

A. Dispatch of CCMU teams ($2,612.00) 
10% of two (2) staff members time for dispatch 
services. 

B. Coordination and planning activities with local 
and regional organizations and/or to manage 
multiple CCMUs ($3,963.00) 
• 25% of one (1) staff members time for 

coordination and planning activities.  
C. Marketing for CCMU services ($6,156.00) 

• Radio Ads = $1,000.00  
• Brochures = $1,000.00  
• Newspaper/social media=$1,000.00 
• Promotional Items such as pens, magnets, 

bags, stickers, keychains= $3,156.00 
D. Data collection, analysis, and quarterly reporting 

for CCMU ($2,285.00) 
• 10% of two (2) staff time for Data Collections, 

analysis, and quarterly reporting. 

$15,016.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

06/30/25 

Year 4 Total:  $69,420.00 

CONTRACT TOTAL:  $500,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT E  REVISED PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 

ATTACHMENT E 
REVISED PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

Inyo County MOD#2 
 

Description Invoice Description Amount 
Estimated 

Equipment Upon Completion of purchase with receipt for 
goods/equipment 

$13,400.00 
$3,300.00 
$13,400.00 
$10,519.00 
$1,460.00 
$150,000.00 
$1,500.00 

Total Equipment $193,579.00 

 
Quarter #/Date Range Invoice Description Amount of 

Invoice 

Quarter 2: 1/1/22 – 3/31/22 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 1 (CRRSAA funds) 

$39,000.00 

Quarter 3: 04/01/22 – 6/30/22 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 2 (CRRSAA funds) 

$37,000.00 

Quarter 4: 07/01/22 – 9/30/22 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 3 (CRRSAA funds) 

$36,500.00 

Quarter 5: 10/01/22 – 12/31/22 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 4 (CRRSAA funds) 

$36,000.00 

Quarter 6: 1/1/23 – 3/31/23 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 5 (CRRSAA funds) 

$21,400.00 

Quarter 8: 7/1/23 – 9/30/23 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 6 

$6,252.00 

Quarter 9: 10/1/23 – 12/31/23 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 7 

$24,532.00 

Quarter 10: 1/1/24 – 3/31/24 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 8 

$20,208.00 

Quarter 11: 4/1/24 – 6/30/24 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 9 

$17,609.00 

Quarter 12: 7/1/24 – 9/30/24 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 10 

$12,110.00 

Quarter 13: 10/1/24 – 12/31/24 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 11 

$22,112.00 

Quarter 14: 1/1/25 – 3/31/25 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 12 

$18,682.00 

Quarter 15: 4/1/25 – 6/30/25 Progress Report detailing progress made 
towards Deliverable 13 

$15,016.00 

Total Deliverables and Other Directs $306,421.00 

Total Deliverables, Other Direct and Equipment $500,000.00 

 

 



In tlte Rooms of the Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

l, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the I't day of March2022 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

HHS -
Human Potential of
Sudbury
Agreements

Moved by Supervisor Pucci and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to ratify and approve the
Subcontract Agreement and HIPAA Privacy Compliance Agreement between the County of
lnyo and Advocates for Human Potential of Sudbury, MA in the amount of $200,000 for the
period of September 15, 2021 through February 14,2023, contingent upon the Board's
approval of future budgets, and authorize Marilyn Mann, HHS Director/lnterim Behavioral
Health Director, to sign the Subcontractor Agreement, Certificate Regarding Lobbying,
Subcontractor Certification, and HIPAA Privacy Agreement. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this l'l
ooy of-Margh,2-022

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
CIerk of the Board of Supervisors

{d*X

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: HHS
DATE: March 2,2022 By:

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services

CONSENT . ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: March 1,2022

FROM: Melissa Best-Baker

SUBJECT: Subcontract Agreement and HIPAA Privacy Compliance Agreement between the County of lnyo and
Advocates for Human Potential

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the Subcontract Agreement and HIPAA Privacy Compliance Agreement
between the County of lnyo and Advocates for Human Potential of Sudbury, MA in the amount of $200,000 for
the period of September 15, 2021 through February 14,2023, contingent upon the Board's approval of future
budgets, and authorize Marilyn Mann, HHS Director/lnterim Behavioral Health Director, to sign the Subcontractor
Agreement, Certificate Regarding Lobbying, Subcontractor Certification, and HIPAA Privacy Agreement.

SUM MARY/JUSTIFICATION :

ln October 2021,hhe Department of Health Care Services released a request for application (RFA) for the Crisis
Care Mobile Units Program and we were allocated funding for a planning grant. We received this agreement in

February, 2022 and began the approval process. The goals of this project are to develop an action plan that
would improve our current crisis response system and establish partnerships with community agencies to provide
a more comprehensive approach to crises. We have drafted a Request for Proposals that will be released after
this agreement has been approved.

The contractor will assess the County's current crisis response process, including thorough data collection and
analysis of the County's electronic health record, on-call and2417 access line logs, including crisis response and
wait times, hospitalization log, and follow-up appointments for clients in crisis. The contractor will work with
community partners, including the local hospitals, schools, law enforcement agencies and probation, the county's
re-entry program, behavioral health programs, county prevention programs, and other non-profit organizations to
garner stakeholder engagement and input, and develop a comprehensive, community-wide approach to crisis
response. The contractor will develop pre- and -post surveys regarding staff knowledge of the current crisis
response process, as well as key informant interviews.

The contractor will also conduct a community needs assessment to inform program planning, specifically
assessing the needs of youth under 25 years old and individuals at risk of justice system involvement. We will
purchase tablets and internet hotspots, as well as Survey Monkey (with HIPAA-compliant features) and Tableau
software, to provide the proper resources for the contractor to conduct surveys at local community events,
including the schools and local jail, as well as for continued use in the crisis response system. The contractor will
conduct a county capacity assessment, of both resource inventory and staff, to develop a sustainable action plan
for the county.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



Agenda Request
Page2

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
lf we do not accept this funding for planning, we will lose the opportunity to apply for additional funding to
implement the strategies identified in our needs assessment and action plan.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Local hospitals, schools, law enforcement agencies and probation, the county's re-entry program, behavioral
health programs, county prevention programs, and other non-profit organizations

FINANCING:
State Funds. These funds will be recognized in the CMH Budget (045200) in the Revenue Object Code State
Other (4499).

ATTACHMENTS:
1. SubcontractAgreement
2. HIPAA Privacy Compliance Agreement

APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker
Darcy Ellis
Marilyn Mann
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd
Marilyn Mann

Created/lnitiated - 21 1 512022
Approved - 211612022
Approved - 212212022
Approved - 212312022
Approved - 212312022
Final Approval - 212412022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT

SUMMARY COVER SHEET

Contract lD 746O.CA MOBILE CRISIS.INYO.OI

Contract Effective Date: September 15,2021

Contractor: ADVOCATES FOR HUMAN POTENTTAL, tNC. (AHP)
490-8 Boston Post Road, Sudbury, MA 01776-3365
Tel: (978) 443-0055 I Fax: (978) 261-1467

AHP Contracting Officer: Charles Galland, COO
cqal la nd@ah p net. com 197 8-261 -1 425

AHP Project Director: Monica Reeves
131 N. El Molino, Suite 380
Pasadena, CA 91 101
Tel: 978-26 1 -1483 (o)/ mreeves@ahpnet.com

AHP Direct Staff Contact: Monica Reeves
T el. 97 8-261 -1 483 (o)/ m reeves@ah pnet. com

Subcontractor: couNTY oF INYO ("|NYO")
ATTN: Marilyn Mann, HHS Director
1360 North Main Street, Suite 124, Bishop, CA 93514
Phone: 760-873-3305
Email address: mmann@invocountv.us

Prime Contract
ldentification:

Client: Galifornia Department of Health Care Services

Agreement No.: 21-10349

Contract Title: "Behavioral Health Mobile Crisis and Non-crisis Services
(Mobile Crisis)"

Subcontract Type Deliverable Base Type Contract

Period of Performance: September 15,2021 through February 14,2023

Consideration/Budget: ProfessionalServicesNTE$200,000.00

Billing Terms Quarterly lnvoicing, see Attachment E-Payment Schedule

Payment Terms: Payment remitted ten (10) business days after receipt of undisputed
rnvotce

Subcontract Cover Sheet

(This Page is not part of the Subcontract Agreement and is for Summary/Reference Purposes Only)

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT
7460-CA MOBTLE CRtSTS-tNYO-01

This Subcontract is entered into by and between ADVOCATES FOR HUMAN
POTENTIAL, lNC., with offices located at 490-8 Boston Post Road, Sudbury, MA
01776, ("AHP" or the "Contractor"), and COUNTY OF INYO ("|NYO") with offices at
1360 North Main Street, Suite 124, Bishop, CA 93514 ("!NYO" or "Subcontractoi' or
"Grantee").

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, AHP desires to obtain the Subcontractor's services to support

"Behavioral Health Mobile Crisis and Non-Crisis Services (Mobile Crisis)' Project No.:
21-10349.7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-01, hereinafter the "Contract," and the
Subcontractor desires to assist AHP in its business by performing such services;

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon the foregoing premises, and in consideration
of the mutual covenants and agreements herein set forth, the parties agree as follows:

This Subcontract, and its Attachments, ("Agreement") constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties as to the matters set forth herein. lt
supersedes all prior understandings, written or oral, between the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof and has been induced by no representations, statements, or
agreements other than those herein expressed. By accepting this Agreement, the
Subcontractor agrees to be bound by all terms and conditions and provisions that may
be incorporated by reference, and all other Attachments to this Agreement.

lN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by
their duly authorized respective officers as of the day and year last written below.

ADVOCATES FOR HUMAN
POTENTIAL, INC.

By:

COUNTY OF INYO
Print or Type Name of Subcontractor

Signature of Authorized Entity
Representative

Print or Type Name of Person Signing

Representative Title

Date:

CHARLES GALLAND, CHIEF
OPERATING OFFICER

Date

Page 1 of 17

Marilyn Mann

Interim Behavioral Health Director

3/1/2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71

11/3/2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS
7460-CA MOBTLE CRtStSJNYO-01

SECTION PAGE NO
SECTION 1. PRIVITY OF CONTRACT
SECTION 2. NATURE OF THE SUBCONTRACT

Type of Subcontract .... .........
Funding

SECTION 3. SUBCONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE AND DELIVERY
Period of Performance.
Time of the Essence.......
Delivery Schedule
I nspection and Acceptance

SECTION 4. STATEMENT OF WORK
SECTION 5. SUBCONTRACTOR TRAVEL
SECTION 6: CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA

Contractor Representatives....
S u bcontractor Representatives
Compensation, Billing lnstructions, and Payment.....
Final Payment and Closeout
Key Personnel..........

SECTION 7: CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS
SECTION 8: GONFIDENTIAL lNFORMATION........

Non-Disclosure of Confidential (Proprietary) lnformation ..........
Non-Disclosure of Confidential Research and Statistical Data
Personally ldentifiable lnformation

SECTION 9. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.,...........
SECTION 10: TERMINATION FOR CAUSE..........
SECTION 11: POLIGIES AND CODES

3
3
3
3
3
3
4
4
4
4
5
5
5
5
5
7
7
7
8
I
8
8
I
I

SECTION 12: DATA COLLECTION AND PERFORMANCE
SECTION 13: ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST
SECTION 14: |NSURANCE......
SECTION 1 5: |NDEMN|F|CAT|ON..................
SECTION 16: DISPUTES/APPLICABLE LAWS

Disputes
Applicable Laws.

SECTION 1 7: CERTIFICATIONS
SECTION 18: RECORDS AND RECORD KEEPING
SECTION 1 9: EXPENSE ALLOWABILITY/FISCAL DOCUMENTAT|ON.............

.11

10
11
11

12
13
13
13
14
15

17

SECTION 20: REGOVERY OF OVERPAYMENTS.......
SECTION 21: BEST EFFORTS
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A - Standard Subcontract Terms and Conditions
Attachment B - Special Subcontract Requirements
Attachment C - Subcontractor's Certification
Attachment D - Subcontractor's Statement of Work
Attachment E - Payment Schedule

...1 6

...16
...17

e2of17 7460-CA MOBTLE CRtStS{NYO-01

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



SECTION 1. PRIVITY OF CONTRACT

This Agreement is funded in whole or in part with funds from AHP's client, State of CA
Department of Health Care Services ("DHCS" or "Client") which includes funding
through DHCS's "Behavioral Health Mobile Crisis and Non-Crisis Services (Mobile
Cn'sr$". Neither the Client (nor the US Government), nor any of its departments,
agencies, or employees is or will be a party to this Agreement or any lowertier
subcontract. No privity between the Client, (or the US Government), and Subcontractor
is established by this Agreement.

Except as authorized by AHP, Subcontractor shall not communicate with the ClienUUS
Government regarding any matter which is within the scope of AHP's responsibility
under the Prime Contract, or regarding matters within the scope of this Agreement.
Authorization by AHP shall not be unreasonably withheld. ln addition, Subcontractor
shall not communicate with the ClienUUS Government regarding any matter of dispute
with AHP, which shall be resolved strictly through the Disputes provisions of this
Subcontract.

SECTION 2. NATURE OF THE SUBGONTRACT

2.1Tvpe of Subcontract
This is a Deliverable Base type Agreement. Subcontractor's accounting system must
be capable of allocating and segregating costs applicable to this Subcontract.

2.2 Fundinq
All amounts under this Agreement reference US dollars. No costs will be incurred
except those specifically proposed by the Subcontractor to AHP, and Subcontractor
shall perform the work within the funding allocations/budget, specified in Attachment E.

This Subcontract is entered into, and the obligation of funds is made, based upon the
appropriation under the Prime Contract. Should this appropriation or any funds allocated
to the Prime Contract be reduced subsequent to this Agreement, or should the scope of
the work, or Statement of Work be redirected by the Client so as to affect the work
envisioned to be subcontracted, AHP shall have the right to renegotiate this Agreement
or to effect a termination (at its discretion) pursuant to the termination section of this
Agreement.

2.3 This Agreement hereby incorporates by reference the Application by Subcontractor
as well as Notice of Funding Opportunity.

Total funds currently available for payment and allotted to this Agreement are two
hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00).

SECTION 3. SUBCONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE AND DELIVERY

3.1 Period of Performance
The Base performance period is September 15, 2021through February 14,2023,
unless sooner terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Any
extensions to the period of performance will be supported by a written modification to
the Agreement, and any changes or additions to the Statement of Work/ deliverables/
days of performance shall be determined at that time.

Whenever Subcontractor knows, or reasonably should know, that any actual or potential
condition is delaying, or threatens to delay, the timely performance of work, it shall,

Page 3 of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-OI

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



within five (5) calendar days, provide AHP with written notice, including all relevant
information with respect to the condition(s) and delay.

3.2Time of the Essence
TIME lS OF THE ESSENCE in Subcontractor's performance of its obligations under this
Agreement.

3.3 Delivery Schedule
Satisfactory performance of deliverables shall be deemed to occur upon delivery and
acceptance by the Project Director of the items as described in the Statement of Work
(SOW.All deliverables shall be submitted as directed by the Project Director. ln no
event shall Subcontractor submit a deliverable directly to the ClienUUS Government,
unless specifically directed to do so by the Project Director or his/her designee.

Upon request, a copy of all written deliverables shall also be delivered to:

Mr. Charles Galland, Chief Operating Officer, General Counsel
Advocates for Human Potential, lnc.
490-8 Boston Post Road, Sudbury, MA 01776
cqalland@ahpnet.com

3.4 lnspection and Acceptance
(a) lnspection and acceptance of work will be made by the AHP Project Director, or
his/her duly authorized representative. The responsibilities of the AHP Project Director
includes continuous monitoring of Subcontractor's performance and providing technical
inspection and acceptance as required under the prime contract.

(b) lnspection and acceptance will be performed at Advocates for Human Potential, lnc.,
490-8 Boston Post Road, Sudbury, MA 01776, or at such other place(s) as AHP may
designate in writing.

(c) Subcontractor shall tender for acceptance those items that conform to the
requirements of this Agreement. AHP reserves the right to inspect or test any supplies
or services tendered under this Agreement, to the extent practicable at all reasonable
places and times. The Client also has the right to inspect and evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement. lnspections and tests will be
performed in a manner that will not unduly delay the work. AHP may require repair or
replacement of non-conforming supplies or re-performance of nonconforming services
at no increase in contract price. Upon submission, AHP shall have ten (10) business
days to inspect Subcontractor's work. Should AHP and/or client find the material
unsatisfactory, AHP shall notify Subcontractor of the defects within the 10 day period.
Subcontractor shall have 10 business days to cure said defects associated with
Subcontractor's work/product. lf inspection or evaluation is to be performed on the
premises of Subcontractor or its lower-tier Subcontractor(s), Subcontractor shall furnish
(and require its subcontractors to furnish) all reasonable facilities and assistance for the
safety and convenience of these duties.

SECTION 4. STATEMENT OF WORK
(a) lndependently, and not as an agent of the Contractor, the US Government, or the
Client, Subcontractor shall furnish to AHP all the services, qualified personnel, material,
equipment, and facilities, not othenrvise provided by AHP or the Client, as needed to
perform the Statement of Work in Attachment D.

(b) Subcontractor shall maintain an internal quality control program adequate to ensure

Page 4 of 17 7460-CA MOBTLE CRtStS-tNYO-01

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



that the requirements of this Agreement are met. The work shall be performed in
accordance with high standards of professional skill, and upon delivery and acceptance
of the deliverables, AHP shall pay the Subcontractor in accordance with the payment
provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 5. SUBCONTRACTOR TRAVEL
(a) Travel X is I is not authorized under this Agreement.
(b) lf travel is authorized above, refer to Travel Reimbursement lnformation in
Attach ment B-S pecia I S u bcontract Req u i rements.

SECTION 6: GONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA

6.1 Contractor Representatives
(a) The following individual is designated as AHP's Contracting Officer, and is
authorized to direct or negotiate any changes in the statement of work, modify or extend
the period of performance, change the delivery schedule, authorize reimbursement to
Subcontractor of any costs incurred during the performance of this contract, or
othenryise change any terms and conditions of this Agreement:

Mr. Charles Galland, Chief Operating Officer, General Counsel
Advocates for Human Potential, lnc.
490-8 Boston Post Road, Sudbury, MA 01776
cqalland@ahpnet.com (978) 443-0055x425

(b) The following individual(s) is/are designated for purposes of administering the
contractual progress of the Agreement, and for purposes of providing technical direction
and guidance:

Monica Reeves, Prolect Director
Advocates for Human Potential, lnc.
131 N. El Molino, Suite 380
Pasadena, CA91101
978-261-1483
mreeves@ahpnet.com

6.2 Subcontractor Representatives
(a) The following individual is designated as Subcontractor's Contracting Officer and is
authorized to conduct business, negotiate modifications and changes to any terms and
conditions of this Agreement:

(b) The following individual is designated as Subcontractor's Project Manager for
purposes of administering this Agreement:

6.3 Compensation, Billinq lnstructions, and Pavment
(a) This is a Deliverable Based type Agreement. Subcontractor shall be reimbursed in

Pase 5 of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-01

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



accordance with Attachment E. ln addition, all Subcontractor costs are subject to
allowability and reasonableness and any restrictions contained in the Prime Contract,
and/or under the Federal Acquisition Regulation ("FAR") if specified.

(b) lnvoices may be submitted quarterly, as per payment schedule and shall provide
sufficient detail, including at least the following information on each invoice:

i. Subcontractor's name
ii. Subcontractor's TIN/ElN
iii. Subcontract Agreement lD: 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-O1

iv. lnvoice No.

v. lnvoice date
vi. AHP's Project & Billing Number(s) applicable to the tasks/deliverables

invoiced, as per the Statement of Work attached
vii. Amount Due on the lnvoice.

viii.Other substantiating documentation or information as may be requested by
AHP

ix. An original signature of an authorized official of Subcontractor, with the
following certification: "l hereby certify that all payments requested are for
appropriate purposes and in accordance with the terms and conditions set
forth in the Agreement between the parties."

x. Name/title/telephone number of the person to contact in case of questions
about the invoice

xi. Name, title, phone number, and mailing address of official to whom payment
is to be sent.

(c) The cost of overnight or courier delivery of invoices is not allowed.

(d) lnvoices shall be sent electronically to: AP2@AHPNET.COM . Upon receipt of an
lnvoice, proper in form, and accepted and approved by AHP (approval of the lnvoice
shall mean that AHP's Project Director has reviewed, accepted, and signed the
Invoice), payment shall be remitted via First Class Mailwithin 10 business days after
receipt of undisputed invoice. When requested, AHP will inform Subcontractor whether
or not a specific Subcontractor invoice has been paid, or when AHP reasonably expects
the Client to pay the Subcontractor invoice. All payment questions shall be addressed to
AHP Accounts Payable at (978) 443-0055.

(e) Subcontractor's right to payment shall be contingent upon the Prolect Director's
review of the deliverables, together with any attachments, and that the review shall
demonstrate the achievement of satisfactory performance against the Statement of
Work in Attachment D. Should Subcontractor's lack of satisfactory performance
endanger AHP's successful prosecution of its Prime contract responsibilities, a cure
notice shall be issued to Subcontractor. Subcontractor shall respond in three days with
a plan to cure such notice. Should the cure not be feasible, or if the cure fails within the
agreed upon time frame, AHP may terminate the Agreement immediately upon written
notice.

(f) Supporting Documentation: Subcontractor shall provide supporting documentation
for invoices as may be requested by AHP, or as may be necessary for compliance with
AHP's billing to the Client.

(g) ln satisfaction of the Subcontractor's obligation to complete the task(s) called for in
Attachment D, "Statement of Work", the Subcontractor shall provide within the

Paqe6of17 7460-CA MOBTLE CRtStS{NYO-01

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



period of performance of this Agreement, the deliverable(s) specified. lf at the end of
the period of performance, the Subcontractor has not completed the deliverable(s), the
fee may be reduced. ln the event that the term of this Agreement expires before the
Subcontractor has provided the deliverable(s), AHP shall have the right to extend the
term of the Agreement to the extent necessary to permit the Subcontractor to provide
the deliverable(s) specified.

6.4 Final Pavment and Closeout
Subcontractor must invoice for all final costs within ninety (90) days following
completion of this Agreement, and will provide all documentation necessary for a timely
closeout of this Agreement including the submission of a "Final lnvoice," a "Release of
Claims," "Assignment of Refunds," and/or other closeout documents as may be required
or reasonably requested by AHP. Payment of the invoice may be withheld, pending
completion and acceptance by AHP of all work performed, submission of all required
documentation and/or substantiation of all work perfomed or delivered, as per 6.3(g),
and submission of all required administrative forms and technical reports. These rights
and obligations shall survive the termination of this Subcontract.

6.5 Kev Personnel
Subcontractor shall provide the skilled personnel and management necessary to meet
the requirements of the Statement of Work. AHP's Project Director shall have right to
disapprove all all personnel proposed by Subcontractor to perform under this
Agreement. Other than personnel set forth below , prior to staffing any future Key
positions, Subcontractor, if so directed by the Project Director, shall submit the names
below, and provide any other requested data for the proposed Key personnel to the
Project Director. Should Project Director deem any individuals who have been
submitted as unacceptable, Subcontractor shall immediately remove any personnel
deemed unacceptable from the assignment and replace him/her with an individual of
acceptable qualifications, subject to the same submission requirement and right of
disapproval above. Subcontractor shall bear all costs associated with such removal and
replacement.

Key personnel essential to the work being performed is/are: Not applicable for this
contract

No removals, replacements, or diversions of key personnel shall be made without the
written consent of AHP's Project Director.

SECTION 7: GHANGES AND MODIFIGATIONS

(a) AHP may at any time make unilateral changes, within the general scope of this
Agreement, in the definition, time of performance, or quantity of services to be
performed.

(b) lf any change causes an increase or decrease in the budgeted cost for performance
of any part of the work under this Agreement, Subcontractor shall propose a new
budget. Upon agreement of a revised price, a modification will be issued. Subcontractor
must assert any claim for adjustment under this clause within thirty (30) days from the
date of receipt.

(c) Failure to agree to any adjustment on a timely request that is submitted within the
thirty (30) day period allowed shall be deemed a dispute concerning a question of fact
within the meaning of the Clause of this Agreement entitled "Disputes." Notwithstanding

PageT of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRtStS-tNYO-o{

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



any failure to agree to any such adjustment, Subcontractor shall diligently proceed with
the work as changed.

(d) AHP and/or DHCS may collect additional applicant documentation, signatures,
missing items, or omitted information during the response review process. AHP and/or
DHCS will advise the applicant orally, by fax, email or in writing of any documentation
that is required and the submission timeline. Failure to submit the required
documentation by the date and time indicated may cause DHCS to deem a response
nonresponsive and eliminate it from further consideration.

SECTION 8: CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

(a) Non-Disclosure of Confidential (Proprietary) lnformation: During the term of this
Agreement, Subcontractor and its employees, consultants and/or lower tiered
subcontractors, may receive or have access to data and information that is proprietary
to AHP, DHCS, including the identity of AHP and/or DHCS clients or grantees. All such
data and information made available to, disclosed to, or otherwise made known to
Subcontractor, its employees, consultants and/or lower tiered subcontractors as a result
of services under this Agreement shall be considered and kept confidential by the
Subcontractor, and may be used only for purposes of performing the obligations
hereunder. Subcontractor, its employees, consultants and/or lower tiered
subcontractors shall not reveal, publish or othenruise disclose such information to any
third party without the prior written consent of AHP. Subcontractor shall take all
reasonable precautions to prevent any other person with whom it is or may become
associated from acquiring confidential proprietary information at any time. Disclosure of
the information is for purposes of completing performance under this Agreement, and
shall in no way be construed to grant any rights to otherwise use this information, nor
shall Subcontractor take action to obtain licenses, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
other rights to said information. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement, or at any time that AHP so instructs, Subcontractor agrees to deliver to
AHP all proprietary information supplied and delivered, (including all copies, materials,
print and electronic, collected and created by Subcontractor in performance of services
for AHP), and Subcontractor shall make no further use or utilization of the information.
The foregoing obligations shall not apply to information which: (a) is or becomes
generally available to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by Subcontractor;
(b) becomes available to Subcontractor on a non-confidential basis from a third party
source which is not prohibited from disclosing such information by a legal, contractual or
fiduciary agreement to a third party; (c) Subcontractor develops independently without
use of AHP's Confidential lnformation, as demonstrated by written records and
evidence; or (d) is required by law to be disclosed, provided Subcontractor notifies AHP
promptly and gives AHP an opportunity to seek an appropriate protective order. These
obligations of confidentiality and non-disclosure shall be flowed down to consultants
and/or lower tiered subcontractors, and shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

(b) Non-Disclosure of Confidential Research and Statistical Data: Subcontractor, and its
employees, consultants and/or lower tiered subcontractors, shall be subject to all
applicable Federal/state requirements concerning the protection of confidentiality of
research and statistical information identifiable to a private person, and will comply with
all established procedures to safeguard privacy and confidentiality.

(c) Personally ldentifiable lnformation. Subcontractor shall, and shall ensure that
each subcontractor, if applicable, shall, maintain reasonable security of all personally
identifiable information (including but not limited to personal health information), and
Pase 8 of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-OI

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



comply with all applicable legal requirements relating to such information, including
requirements relating to safeguarding, storing, transmitting, sharing, and destroying
such information, and breach notification requirements as required in Business
Associate Addend um in Attachment B-Special Subcontract Requirements.

Subcontractor shall not, and shall ensure that each subcontractor shall not, share
personally identifiable information (including but not limited to personal health
information) (excluding the personally identifiable information of Subcontractors or its
subcontractors' directors, officers, employees, agents, affiliates, and designees, in
connection with Subcontractor's performance under this Agreement).

SECTION 9: INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
(a) As between AHP and Subcontractor, AHP's ideas and requirements whether written
formally or provided verbally to the Subcontractor are owned by AHP or DHCS.

(b) All writings or works of authorship, ideas, discoveries, inventions, patents, products,
or other information, including without limitation, specifications, program codes, source
code, framework, JAR files, ZIP files, Library's files, scripts, and all related
documentation, data or technical information produced or authored by the
Subcontractor or any of its employees in the course of performing the work
hereunder, together with any copyright, trademarks (including goodwill), and any other
rights in intellectual property and rights in the physical embodiment in the same
("Works"), are works made for hire and the property of DHCS. To the extent that any
Works may not, by operation of law, be works made for hire, this Agreement will
constitute an irrevocable assignment by the Subcontractor to DHCS of the ownership of,
and all rights of copyright, trademarks (including goodwill), and any other rights in
intellectual property and rights in the physical embodiment of the Works, and DHCS will
have the right to obtain and hold in its name all registrations which may be available in
the Works. Subcontractor agrees to give DHCS or its designees all assistance
reasonably required to perfect such rights. The Subcontractor will turn over all Works to
DHCS or its designee when the Subcontractor ceases to perform services for AHP or
upon AHP's earlier request.

(c) ln performing services under this Agreement, Subcontractor will not design or
develop any items that infringe one or more patents or other intellectual property rights
of any third party. lf Subcontractor becomes aware of any possible infringement in the
course of performing the Work, Subcontractor shall immediately so notify AHP in
writing.

(d) This Section is subject to any contrary or additional provisions contained in the
SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS, or under FAR clause 52.227-
14, Rights in Data, togetherwith any Alternates, if specified.

(e) This Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 10: TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

(a) AHP, or at the direction of the Prime Contractor, may terminate if Subcontactor fails
to comply with any terms, conditions, requirements, failure of achievement in any or all
deliverables, satifsfactory performance, or provisions of the Agreement. AHP shall notify
Subcontractor in writing of its failure to comply. Should Subcontractor not remedy such
failure within ten (10) business days (Remedy Period), the agreement may be
terminated. Upon notification or any time during the Remedy Period, Subcontactor may
request additonal time in order to cure the default and so long as Subcontractor is

Page e of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-O1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



working in Good Faith and Prime Contractor approves, the cure period may be
extended to at least thirty (30) business days.

(b) ln the event that this Agreement is terminated for cause pursuant to Paragraph (a)
above, then the Prime Contractor nor AHP shall not be liable for any work that is not
performed in accordance with the Subcontract. The Prime Contractor through AHP will
pay the Subcontractor for work that has been performed in accordance with this
Subcontract and the Subcontractor shall transfer to the Prime Contractor or AHP all
work that has been completed and paid for under this Agreement.

(c) This Agreement may be terminated immediately upon notification by either party
following a material breach of this Agreement.

SEGTION 11: POLICIES AND CODES

11,1 Subcontractor shall comply with al California and federal law, regulations, and
published guidelines, to the extent that these authorities contain requirements
applicable to Subcontractor's performance under this Agreement. These authorities
include, but are not limited to, Title 42, United States Code (USC) Chapter 6A Part B
and Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Parts 75 and 96.

11.2 AHP may perform inspections, review procedures, documents pertaining to the
Statement of Work and other elements of this Agreement, perform onsite visits, desk
reviews in order to ensure Contractor's comply with 11.1 and 11.2 as well as protect
against fraud, waste and abuse.

11.3 ln the event Contractor does not comply with 11.1 and 11.2 above, AHP shall hold
Subcontractor in non-compliance under Section 9.

11.4 DHCS or AHP shall review Subcontractor's records to ensure funds were properly
used.

SECTION 12: DATA COLLECTION AND PERFORMANCE
12.1 a. Planning Grants

Subcontractor must submit substantiating documentation of their efforts throughout
the contract period, which may include implementation/action plan drafts and community
needs assessments.

b. lmplementation Grants
Subcontractors for lmplementation Grants must include data on the performance

measures identified in their contracts. Potential performance measures include:
o The number of individuals served/impacted by each CCMU

o Percentage treated and released by CCMU
o Percentage referred to services in the community
o Percentage admitted to psychiatric hospital
o Percentage involuntarily admitted to hospital
o Percentage taken to the Emergency Department

. Average and median response time of each CCMU

. Primary diagnoses of clients served

. Primary reason for CCMU dispatch
o e.g. Risk of self-harm, risk of violence to others, other erratic behavior

. Percentage with co-occurring mental health and substance use disorder diagnoses

. Health insurance statuses of clients served

. Number of CCMU dispatches
o Percent of all crisis calls (911 or other) resulting in CCMU dispatch

Page 10 of 17 7460-CA MOBTLE CRtStS-tNYO-01

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



. Number of initial mental health or substance use calls routed through police to CCMU

. Number of crisis calls when CCMU engages/requests police response

. Demographic data of clients served.
o Number of clients served who are aged 5 and under/5-9110-14115-19120- 25126-

34 I 35-44 I 45-54/55-64 I 65-7 4 17 5-84 I 85 a n d ove r/u n know n
o Number of clients served who are male/female/transgender/non-binary or

gender queer/unknown
o Number of clients served who are American lndian or Alaska Native/Asian

American/ Black or African American/Native Hawaiian or Pacific lslander/More
than one raceAf/hite/unknown

o Number of clients served who are Latinx or Chicanx or Hispanic/Not Latinx or
Chicanx or Hispanic/unknown

o Number of clients served who speak a language other than English at home
o Percentage of individuals who receive crisis follow-up care within 48 hours
. Percentage of families engaged collaboratively in the crisis intervention process
. Percentage of crisis encounters resolved successfully within two hours
. Satisfaction with services (how likely are they to recommend)

12.2 Monitoring and Site lnspection
a. The Subcontractor shall be subject by AHP for compliance with the provisions of this

Agreement. Such monitoring activities shall include, but are not limited to,
inspection of the Subcontractor's services, procedures, books, and records, as AHP
deems appropriate. AHP may conduce monitoring activities at any time during the
Subcontractor's normal business hours.

b. AHP shall conduct a review of the Subcontractor's records to determine if any of the
claimed expenditures were an improper use of grant funds.

c. The refusal of Subcontractor to permit access to physical facilities and/or inspection
of any documents, files, books, or records necessary for AHP to complete its
monitoring and inspection activities constitutes an express and immediate material
breach of this contract and will be a sufficient basis to terminate the contract for
cause.

SEGTION 13: ORGANIZATIONAL GONFLICT OF INTEREST

Subcontractor warrants to the best of its knowledge and belief at this time, there are no
relevant facts or circumstances which could give rise to an organizational conflict of
interest, ("OCl') as defined in FAR Subpart 9.5, or that Subcontractor has disclosed all
such relevant information, and will disclose any actual or potential OCI that is
discovered, including a description of activities that Subcontractor has taken or
proposes to take, after consultation with the AHP Contracting Officer, to avoid the
conflict. During the term of this Agreement, Subcontractor shall not enter into other
contracts or arrangements or otherwise engage in work that will conflict with the parties'
relationship of trust and cooperation or that may otherwise conflict with the
Subcontractor's obligations.

SECTION 14: INSURANGE
(a) Subcontractor shall continuously maintain for the duration of this Agreement, the
following insurance at, or in excess of, the limits detailed below:

. Worker's compensation and employer's liability insurance as required by the state
or province where the work is performed.
. Comprehensive automobile and vehicle liability insurance covering claims for

Pase 11 of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-OI

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



injuries to members of the public and/or damages to property of others arising from
use of motor vehicles, including on-site and off-site operations, and owned, non-
owned, or hired vehicles, with $1,000,000 combined single limits.
. Subcontractor must furnish to AHP a certificate of lnsurance stating that
commercial general liablility insurance of not less thatn $1,000,000 per occurrence
for bodily injury and property damage liablility combined is presently in effect for the
Subcontractor. The commercial general liablility insurancy policy shall include cover
for liablilities arising out of premises, operations, independent contractors, products,
completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under
an insured agreement. The commercialgeneral liability insurance shall apply to
each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought subject to the
Subcontractor's limit of liability.
. lnsurance appropriate and sufficient in type and amount to cover any software and
data to be developed under this Agreement, and property insurance sufficient to
cover the cost of any AHP, Client or other property under the Agreement that may
be in the control of the Subcontractor.

(b) All policies, except Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability, shall be
endorsed to name AHP as an Additional lnsured with respect to the work to be
performed by Subcontractor. All such insurance must be primary and non-contributory
and required to respond and pay prior to any other insurance or self-insurance
available.

(c) Subcontractor shall immediately deposit with AHP upon request a Certificate of
lnsurance attesting to the above coverage and naming AHP as an additional insured
party under such policies. The Subcontractor agrees that the insurance required herein
will remain in effect at all times during the term of the Agreement. ln the event said
insurance coverage expires at any time or times during the term of this Agreement, the
Subcontractor agrees to provide, at least 30 calendar days before said expiration date,
a new certificate of insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided herein for not
less than the remainder of the term of the Agreement or for a period of not less than one
year. AHP may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, terminate this
Agreement on the occurrence of such event.

(d) lnsurance lndemnification. Subcontractor shall indemnify AHP for any costs and
expenses incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees, judgments, settlements or
penalties, as a result of any claim or liability resulting from the failure of Subcontractor
(or its lower tier subcontractors or consultants) to maintain the insurance policies
required by this section.

(e) AHP will not be responsible for any premiums, deductibles or assessments on the
insurance policy.

SECTION 15: INDEMNIFICATION
(a) Subcontractor shall indemniff and hold harmless AHP and DHCS and its officers,
employees and agents for any costs and expenses incurred, including reasonable
attorneys' fees, judgments, settlements or penalties, against all liabilities, claims, suits,
demands or liens for damages to persons or property, ("Claims"), (unless such Claims
arise from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of AHP), arising out of, resulting
from, or relating to, the following:

. Any act, omission, or statement of the Subcontractor, or any person employed by
or engaged under contract with the Subcontractor that results in injury (including

Paqe 12 of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-01

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



death), loss, or damage to any person or property;

. Any failure on the part of the Subcontractor to comply with applicable government
requirements and requirements of law;

. the failure to maintain the insurance policies required by this section or the work
performed, inclusive of lntellectual property infringement, if applicable, under this
Subcontract. lnsurance coverage that may be required shall in no way lessen or
limit the liability of Subcontractor under the terms of this obligation.

. Any failure on the part of the Subcontractor to satisfy all claims for labor,
equipment, materials and other obligations relating to the performance of the work
hereunder;

. Any actual or alleged direct or contributory infringement of, or inducement to
infringe, any United States or foreign patent, trademark or copyright, arising out of
the performance of this Agreement, provided the Subcontractor is reasonably
notified of such claims and proceedings; and

. Any actual or alleged unauthorized use or disclosure of any trade secret,
confidential information or other proprietary interest, Work product, or other
information owned by the Government, Client or AHP under the terms of this
Agreement.

(b) Subcontractor shall indemnify under this clause for any of the above acts attributable
to its employees, consultants, agents, and/or lower{iered subcontractors engaged in
performance of the work under this Agreement.

(c) This indemnification shall survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement.

SECTION 16: DISPUTES/APPLICABLE LAWS

16.1 Disputes
Any dispute arising out of, or relating to, this Agreement that is not resolved by the good
faith efforts of the parties, shall be settled by submission to a panel consisting of one
arbitrator under the Commercial Rules of the American Arbitration Association ("A,q,q";.
The parties shall bear equally the costs assessed by the AAA, and judgment upon the
award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. Venue
for the arbitration shall be Massachusetts at the election of AHP. The decision of the
arbitrator shall be final, conclusive, and unappealable, except in the event of fraud or
the arbitrator's failure to disclose a material conflict of interest. The prevailing party, in

addition to any damages awarded by the arbitrator, shall be entitled to costs and
reasonable attorneys' fees, the amount of which shall be determined by the arbitrator, in

the event the parties are unable to agree.

16.2 Applicable Laws
Subcontractor agrees to comply with the applicable provisions of Federal, State and
local laws or ordinances, and all orders, rules, and regulations issued thereunder, and in
such a manner that the name of the other party will not be discredited. Where a FAR
provision or clause, or any other Federal statute, regulation, or clause is incorporated in
or applicable to this Agreement or work being performed under it, Federal law shall
govern the interpretation and application thereof. lf Federal law is not applicable, the
appropriate law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts shall apply, exclusive of that
body of laws known as conflicts of law. This Section shall survive the expiration or
termination of the Agreement.

Page13of17 7460-CA MOBTLE CRISIS-INYO-01

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



SECTION 17: GERTIFICATIONS

By signature to this Agreement, Subcontractor makes the following Representations
and Certifications:

(a) Debarment and Suspension: Neither Subcontractor nor any of its principals is
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible nor
voluntary excluded by any Federal department or agency from participating in
transactions. Any change in the debarred or suspended status of the Subcontractor
during the life of this Subcontract will be reported immediately to AHP. Subcontractor
shall incorporate this Debarment and Suspension certification into any subcontract
that they may enter into as a part of this Subcontract.

(b) Prohibition To Perform Duties: Subcontractor is not prohibited, precluded, or
restricted from performing the duties required under the Statement of Work, due to
previous employment obligations, restrictions, comm itments, or agreements
Subcontractor has with any other federal, state and local government agency.

(c) Federal Civil Rights Act/Equal Opportunity: Subcontractor will conform to the
provisions of Title Vl of the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, section 2000d as
amended and will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of age, race, religion, creed, color, sex, or national origin.

(d) Labor Laws - Subcontractor certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable labor
laws, including but not limited to the Walsh-Healy Act and the Contract Work Hours
and Safety Standards Act (41 U.S.C. 51-58) regarding overtime compensation.

(e) Americans with Disabilities Act - Subcontractor agrees to ensure that deliverables
developed and produced, pursuant to this Agreement shall comply with the
accessibility requirements of Sections 7405 and 11135 of the California Government
Code, Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act and Americans with Disabilities Act of
1973 as amended (29 U.S.C 794(d), regulations implementing the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973 as set forth in in Part 1194 of Title 36 of the Federal Code of Regulations, and
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990(42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq. and 28 CFR Part
35). ln 1998, Congress amended the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 to require Federal
agencies to make their electronic and information technology (ElT) accessible to
people with disabilities. California Government Code Sections 7405 and 11135
codifies section 508 of the Rehabilitation ACT of 1973 requiring accessibility of ElT.

(0 Employee Compliance - Subcontractor will require all employees, entities and
individuals providing services in connection with the performance of this Subcontract
to comply with the provisions of this Agreement and with all Federal, State, and local
laws and regulations in connection with this work.

(g) Code of Ethics: Subcontractor has a Code of Ethics addressing at least the
following areas: accurate accounting records and reporting; gifts and entertainment to
Government customers; hiring of former government employees; protection of
Government proprietary and source selection information; extending and receiving
business courtesies; and personal and organization conflicts of interest.

(h) Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (45 CFR Part 90)

(i) Section 1557 of the Affordable Care Act.

0) Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2OOO (22 USC 7104(G), as amended and 2
CFR Part 175

(k) Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control ACT

Paqe 14 of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-O1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



(33 USC 1251-1387), as amended.

(l) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 USC 1352). The Subcontractor shall certify to
DHCS that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person
or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an office or employee of any
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any
other award covered by 31 USC 1352. The Subcontractor shall also disclose to
DHCS any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with
obtaining any Federal Award.

(m)Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records: (42 CFR Part2,
Subparts A-E). The Subcontractor shall comply with the regulation set forth in 42 CFR
part2, including the responsibility for assuring the security and confidentiality of all
electronically transmitted patient material.

(n) Certification and Attestation: As a requirement to be eligible for the PWI grant
funding, the Subcontractor, attested to its eligibility to receive funding, Attestation
Letter attached hereto as Attachment F. Any misrepresentation contained within the
Attestation Letter shall be considered a material breach.

(o) Standard Funding Restrictions: Exceed Salary Limitation: The Consolidated
Appropriations Act, 2016 (Pub. L.113- 76) signed into law on January 10, 2016, limits
the salary amount that may be awarded and charged to SAMHSA grants and
cooperative agreements. Award funds may not be used to pay the salary of an
individual at a rate in excess of Executive Level ll. The Executive Level ll salary can
be found in SAMHSA's standard terms and conditions for all awards at
https://www. sam hsa. gov/g rants/g rants I management/notice-award-noa/standard-
terms-conditions. This amount reflects an individual's base salary exclusive of fringe
and any income that an individual may be permitted to earn outside of the duties to the
applicant organization. This salary limitation also applies to sub awards/subcontracts
under a SAMHSA grant or cooperative agreement. The Federal Executive Level ll
Salary Cap is currently $199,300.
. Pay for any lease beyond the project period.

. Pay for the purchase or construction of any building or structure to house any part of
the program. . Make direct payments to individuals to enter treatment or continue to
participate in prevention or treatment services.

. No out-of-state travel is permitted with these funds.
*SAMHSA funds were granted to the State and all funding restrictions are applicable

to this funding opportunity and all sub-contracts.

SECTION 18: REGORDS AND RECORD KEEPING

a. The Subcontractor shall retain all financial records, supporting documents,
statistical records, and all other records pertinent to the grant in accordance
with 45 CFR section 75.361.

b. AHP, SAMHSA, the lnspector General, the Controller General and DHCS, or
any of its authorized representatives, have the right to access any documents,
papers, or other records of the Subcontractor which are pertinent to the grant,
for the purpose of performing audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.
The right to access records also includes timely and reasonable access to the
Subcontractor's personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to

Paqe 15 of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-O1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



the requested documents.

c. The right to access records is not limited to the required retention period but
lasts as long as the records are retained by the Subcontractor.

SECTION 1 9: EXPENSE ALLOWABILITY/FISCAL DOCUMENTATION

a. lnvoices, received from a Subcontractor and accepted and/or submitted for
payment by AHP, shall not be deemed evidence of allowable agreement costs.

b. The Subcontractor shall maintain for review and audit and supply to AHP upon
request, adequate documentation of all expenses claimed pursuant to this
Agreement to permit a determination of expense allowability.

c. lf the allowability or appropriateness of an expense cannot be determined by
AHP because invoice detail, fiscal records, or backup documentation is
nonexistent or inadequate according to generally accepted accounting
principles or practices, all questionable costs may be disallowed and payment
me be withheld by AHP. Upon receipt of adequate documentation supporting a
disallowed or questionable expense, reimbursement may resume for the
amount substantiated and deemed allowable.

d. lf Travel is a reimbursable expense, receipts must be maintained to support the
claimed expenditures. For more information on allowable travel and per diem
expenses and required documentation, see Attachment B, "Travel
Reimbursement Information".

e. Costs and/or expenses deemed unallowable are subject to recovery by AHP.
See Section 20 Recovery of Overpayments" for more information.

f. Country organizations may utilize their existing DHCS certified indirect cost
rates for per Behavioral Health lnformation Notice 20-020.

SECTION 20: REGOVERY OF OVERPAYMENTS

a. Subcontractor agrees that claims based upon a contractual agreement or an
audit finding and/or an audit finding that is appealed and upheld, will be
recovered by AHP by one of the following options:

1. Subcontractor's remittance to AHP of the full amount of the audit exception
within 30 days following AHP request for payment;

2. A repayment schedule which is agreeable to both AHP and the Subcontract.

b. AHP reserves the right to select which option will be employed and the
Subcontractor will be notified by AHP in writing of the claim procedure to be
utilized.

c. lnterest on the unpaid balance of the audit finding or debt will accrue at a rate
equal to the monthly average of the rate received on investments in the Pooled
Money lnvestment Fund commencing on the date that an audit or examination
finding is mailed to the Subcontractor, beginning 30 days after the
Subcontractor's receipt of AHP's demand for repayment.

d. lf the Subcontractor has filed a valid appeal regarding the report of audit
findings, recovery of the overpayments will be deferred until a final
administrative decision on the appeal has been reached. lf the Subcontractor
loses the final administrative appeal, the Subcontractor shall repay, to AHP, the
over-claimed or disallowed expenses, plus accrued interest. lnterest accrues

Pase 16 of 17 7460-CA MOBILE CRISIS-INYO-OI

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



from the Subcontractor's first receipt of AHP's notice requesting reimbursement
of questioned audit costs or disallowed expenses.

SECTION 21: BEST EFFORTS

21.1 Best Efforts During the term of this Agreement, Subcontractor shall use Best
Efforts in order to satisfy all the requirements of the work to be performed under Section
4 and Attachment A of this Agreement.

THrS AGREEMENT CONSTSTS OF SEVENTEEN (17) TYPEWRTTTEN PAGES, TOGETHER
WITH THE ATTACHMENTS IDENTIFIED BELOW, WHICH ARE HEREBY INCORPORATED
INTO THIS AGREEMENT.

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS
TITLE No. of PAGES

Attachment A - Standard Subcontract Terms and Conditions
Attachment B - Special Subcontractor Requirements
Attachment C - Subcontractor's Certification
Aftachment D - Subcontractor's Statement of Work
Attachment E - Payment Schedule

1

36
5
2
1

Page 17 of 17 7460-CA MOBTLE CRISIS-INYO-01

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



ATTACHMENT A-STAflDARD SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Headinqs: Headings are for convenience of reference only and
shall in no way affect interpretation of this Agreement.

lndeoendent Contractor: Subcontractor is engaged as an
independent contractor, and this Agreement shall not be
construed as creating any other relationship. Subcontractor shall
comply with all laws, and assume all risks incident to its status as
independent contractor, and necessary to comply with specific
requirements of this Agreement, including, but not limited to,
payment of all applicable federal/state income taxes, associated
payroll/business taxes, and licenses and fees.

I!93@y: Subcontractor, its employees, agents or assigns,
shall not represent, act or purport to act, or be deemed to be an
agent, representative, or employee of AHP, or commit or obligate
AHP to any other person or party.

Lower-Tier Consultants/Subcontractors: AHP's prior written
approval is required to obtain services of consultants or lower-
tier Subcontractors; provided, however, that this limitation shall
not apply to the purchase of standard commercial supplies.

No Assiqnment: This Agreement is for professional services,
and the Agreement, or any duties/obligations imposed shall not
be assigned, delegated or otherwise transferred.

Ghanqes to be Made in Writinq: Unless otherwise specified
that AHP may make a unilateral modification, no understanding,
agreement, modification, change order, or other matter affecting
this Agreement shall be binding, unless in writing, signed by both
parties' Contracting Offlcer. No handwritten changes shall be
effective unless initialed by each Contracting Officer.

Limitation of Liabilitv upon Termination: AHP's maximum
aggregate liability to Subcontractor is limited to the total dollar
amount of work properly performed by Subcontractor up to the
effective date of termination, together with any authorized travel,
or authorized expenses incurred under the Agreement that
cannot be canceled. AHP is not liable for any special, indirect,
incidental, consequential, or punitive damages, nor for any loss
of goodwill, profits, data, or loss of use arising out of, resulting
from, or in any way connected with the performance or breach of
this Agreement, even if advised of the possibility of such
damages.

Force Maieure: Neither party shall be liable to the other for loss
or damages due to failure or delay in rendering performance
caused by circumstances beyond its reasonable control, if such
failure could not have been overcome by the exercise of due
diligence, due care, or foresight. Causes may include, but are
not limited to, acts of God or a public enemy; wars; acts of
terrorism; riots; fires; floods; epidemics; quarantine restrictions;
labor disputes; strikes; defaults of subcontractors/vendors;
fai lu re/delays in transpo rtation ; u nforeseen freig ht emba rgoes;
unusually severe weather; or any law/order/regulation/request of
a state or local government entity, the US Government, or of any
agency, court, commission, or other instrumentality of any such
governments. Times of performance under this Agreement may
be appropriately extended for excused delays if the party whose
performance is affected promptly notifies the other of the
existence and nature of such delay.

Scientific Misconduct: Subcontractor shall immediately report
to AHP any instance of scientific misconduct or fraud related to
performance of work under this Agreement.

lldAruS: Unless a different warranty is specified,
Subcontractor warrants all services provided and products
delivered will be free from defect in materials and/or
workmanship, and will be fit for the purpose intended, and will
conform to the specifications of the statement of work. ln the
event of a breach AHP may complete the work and seek all
remedies available in law or equity.

NS!!.S.: Notices shall be in writing, sent by USPS Certified Mail-
RRR, or any overnight delivery/courier service, and notice shall be
deemed given when personally delivered, (or three (3) days after
being sent by prepaid certified U.S. mail).

tj!!gg!.q: Subcontractor shall provide written notice to AHP of any
litigation that relates to the services under this contract, or that has
the potential to impair its ability to fulfill this contract, including but
not limited to financial, legal or other situations.

fu!!igi$,: Without priorwritten approval of the other, neither party
shall use the other's name or make reference to the other party or
any of its employees in publications, news releases, advertising,
speeches, technical papers, photographs, sales promotions, or
publicity purposes of any form related to this work or data developed
hereunder, unless disclosure of such materials is required by legal,
accounting, or regulatory requirements beyond the disclosing party's
reasonable control. Use of either party's name may be made in

internal documents, annual reports, proposals, etc. which may
identify the existence of the pro.lect by title, principal investigator or
project director, sponsor, period of funding, amount of award and
brief abstract of the project. This Section shall survive
expiration/termination of this Agreement.

Restrictions on Hirinq: During the period of this Agreement, and
for a period of two (2) years after its termination, neither party shall
directly or indirectly, induce or solicit (or authorize or assist in the
taking of any such actions by any third party) any employee or
consultant of the other party to leave his/her business association
with that party. Parties are not be restricted in the right to solicit or
recruit generally in the media.

Survival: Except as otheruise stated, sections that by their terms
impose continuing obligations or establish continuing rights shall be
deemed to survive the expiration/termination of this Agreement.

Validitv and Waiver: The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity of other
provisions. Waiver of a breach of any provision shall not constitute a
waiver of any subsequent breach of that provision, or a breach of
any other provision. AHP's failure to enforce any provision of this
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver. Only AHP's
Contracting Officer has the authority to waive any term or condition
of this Subcontract on behalf of AHP.

Interpretation: This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed
in accordance with its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against
either party, regardless of who may have drafted it or any specific
provision.

Third Partv Beneficiaries: This Agreement shall not be construed
so as to give any person or entity, other than the parties, any legal
or equitable claim or right.
Gounteroarts/Other lnstruments: The parties may execute
this contract in multiple counterparts, each of which is deemed an
original and all of which constitute only one agreement. The parties
shall properly make, execute, and deliver such other and further
instruments as may be reasonable, necessary, desirable, or
convenient to give full force and effect to this Agreement.

Bindinq Effect: This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties,
their successors and assigns.

Attachment A Standard Subcontract Terms and Conditions

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



ATTACHMENT B

1. Federal Equal Opportunity Requirements

The Subcontractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, physical or mental handicap, disability,
age or status as a disabled veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era. The Subcontractor will
take affirmative action to ensure that qualified applicants are employed, and that employees
are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national
origin, physical or mental handicap, disability, age or status as a disabled veteran or veteran
of the Vietnam era. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:
employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and career development
opportunities and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Subcontractor agrees
to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment,
notices to be provided by the Federal Government or AHP, setting forth the provisions of the
Equal Opportunity clause, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the affirmative
action clause required by the Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act oI 1974
(38 U.S.C. 4212). Such notices shall state the Subcontractor's obligation under the law to
take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified applicants without
discrimination based on their race, color, religion, sex, national origin physical or mental
handicap, disability, age or status as a disabled veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era and
the rights of applicants and employees.

b. The Subcontractor will, in all solicitations or advancements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the Subcontractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin physical or mental
handicap, disability, age or status as a disabled veteran or veteran of the Vietnam era.

c. The Subcontractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has
a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice, to be provided
by the Federal Government or the State, advising the labor union or workers' representative
of the Subcontractor's commitments under the provisions herein and shall post copies of the
notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

d. The Subcontractor will comply with all provisions of and furnish all information and reports
required by Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era
Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 (38 U.S.C. 4212) and of the Federal
Executive Order No. 11246 as amended, including by Executive Order 11375,'Amending
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,' and as supplemented by
regulation at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of the Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," and of the rules, regulations, and relevant
orders of the Secretary of Labor.

e. The Subcontractor will furnish all information and reports required by Federal Executive
Order No. 11246 as amended, including by Executive Order 11375,'Amending Executive
Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,' and as supplemented by regulation
at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment
Opportunity, Department of Labor," and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and by the rules,
regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access
to its books, records, and accounts by the State and its designated representatives and the
Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules,
regulations, and orders.

f. ln the event of the Subcontractor's noncompliance with the requirements of the provisions

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



herein or with any federal rules, regulations, or orders which are referenced herein, this
Agreement may be cancelled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the
Subcontractor may be declared ineligible for further federal and state contracts in accordance
with procedures authorized in Federal Executive Order No. 11246 as amended and such
other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Federal Executive
Order No. 11246 as amended, including by Executive Order 11375,'Amending Executive
Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,'and as supplemented by regulation
at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment
Opportunity, Department of Labor," or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor,
or as otherwise provided by law.

g. The Subcontractor will include the provisions of Paragraphs a through g in every subcontract
or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor
issued pursuant to Federal Executive Order No. 11246 as amended, including by Executive
Order 1 1375, 'Amending Executive Order 1 1246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,'
and as supplemented by regulation at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract
Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," or Section 503
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or (38 U.S.C. 4212) of the Vietnam Era Veteran's
Readjustment Assistance Act, so that such provisions will be binding upon each
subcontractor or vendor. The Subcontractor will take such action with respect to any
subcontract or purchase order as the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs or AHP may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for
noncompliance provided, however, that in the event the Subcontractor becomes involved in,

or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by
AHP, the Subcontractor may request in writing to AHP, who, in turn, may request the United
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State and of the United
States.

2. Traveland Per Diem Reimbursement

(Applicable if travel and/or per diem expenses are authorized to be reimbursed with Agreement
funds.)

Reimbursement for travel and/or per diem expenses from AHP under this Agreement shall,
unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, be at the rates currently in effect, as established by
the California Department of Human Resources (CalHR), for nonrepresented state employees as
stipulated in DHCS' Travel Reimbursement lnformation Exhibit in Attachment B-Special
Subcontract Requirements. lf the CaIHR rates change during the term of the Agreement, the
new rates shall apply upon their effective date and no amendment to this Agreement shall be
necessary. Exceptions to California Department of Human Resources (CalHR) rates may be
approved by AHP upon the submission of a statement by the Subcontractor indicating that such
rates are not available to the Subcontractor. No lravel outside the State of California shall be
reimbursed without prior authorization from DHCS. Verbal authorization should be confirmed in
writing. Written authorization may be in a form including fax or email confirmation,

3. Procurement Rules

Applicable to agreements in which equipmenUproperty, commodities and/or supplies are
furnished by AHP or DHCS or expenses for said items are reimbursed by funds with state or
federal funds provided under this Agreement.

a. EquipmenUProperty definitions

$/lrerever the term equipment and/or property is used, the following definitions shall apply:

(1) Major equipmenUproperty: A tangible or intangible item having a base unit cost of

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



$5.000 ormorewith a life expectancyof one (1) yearormore and is eitherfurnished by
DHCS or the cost is reimbursed through this Agreement. Software and videos are
examples of intangible items that meet this definition.

(2) Minor equipmenUproperty: A tangible item having a base unit cost of lgSSlhg$$,qqq
with a life expectancy of one (1) year or more and is either furnished by DHCS or the cost
is reimbursed through this Agreement.

b. Government and public entities (including state colleges/universities and auxiliary
organizations), whether acting as a contractor and/or subcontractor, may secure all
commodities, supplies, equipment and services related to such purchases that are required in
performance of this Agreement. Said procurements are subject to Paragraphs d through h of
Provision 3. Paragraph c of Provision 3 shall also apply, if equipmenUproperty purchases are
delegated to subcontractors that are nonprofit organizations or commercial businesses.

c. Nonprofit organizations and commercial businesses, whether acting as a contractor
and/or subcontractor, may secure commodities, supplies, equipmenUproperty and services
related to such purchases for performance under this Agreement.

(1) EquipmenUproperty purchases shallnot exceed $50,000 annually.

To secure equipmenVproperty above the annual maximum limit of $50,000, the
Subcontractor shall make arrangements through AHP, to have all remaining
equipmenUproperty purchased through DHCS' Purchasing Unit. The cost of
equipmenUproperty purchased by or through AHP shall be deducted from the funds
available in this Agreement. Subcontractor shall submit to the AHP Contract Manager a
list of equipmenUproperty specifications for those items that the State must procure. AHP
may pay the vendor directly for such arranged equipmenUproperty purchases and title to
the equipmenUproperty will remain with AHP. The equipmenVproperty will be delivered
to the Subcontractor's address, as stated on the face of the Agreement, unless the
Subcontractor notifies the AHP, in writing, of an alternate delivery address.

(2) All equipmenVproperty purchases are subject to Paragraphs d through h of Provision 3.
Paragraph b of Provision 3 shall also apply, if equipmenUproperty purchases are
delegated to subcontractors that are either a government or public entity.

(3) Nonprofit organizations and commercial businesses shall use a procurement system that
meets the following standards:

(a) Maintain a code or standard of conduct that shall govern the performance of its
officers, employees, or agents engaged in awarding procurement contracts. No
employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award, or administration
of a procurement, or bid contract in which, to his or her knowledge, he or she has a
financial interest.

(b) Procurements shall be conducted in a manner that provides, to the maximum extent
practical, open, and free competition.

(c) Procurements shall be conducted in a manner that provides for all of the following:

[1] Avoid purchasing unnecessary or duplicate items.

[2] EquipmenUproperty solicitations shall be based upon a clear and accurate
description of the technical requirements of the goods to be procured.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



[3] Take positive steps to utilize small and veteran owned businesses.

d. Unless waived or otherwise stipulated in writing by AHP, prior written authorization from the
AHP Contract Office or Project Manager will be required before the Subcontractor will be
reimbursed for any purchase of $5,000 or more for commodities, supplies,
equipmenUproperty, and services related to such purchases. The Subcontractor must
provide in its request for authorization all particulars necessary, as specified by AHP, for
evaluating the necessity or desirability of incurring such costs. The term "purchase" excludes
the purchase of services from a subcontractor and public utility services at rates established
for uniform applicability to the general public.

e. ln special circumstances, determined by AHP (e.9., when AHP has a need to monitor certain
purchases, etc.), AHP may require prior written authorization and/or the submission of paid
vendor receipts for any purchase, regardless of dollar amount, AHP reserves the right to
either deny claims for reimbursement or to request repayment for any Subcontractor
purchase that AHP determines to be unnecessary in carrying out performance under this
Agreement.

f. The Subcontractor must maintain a copy or narrative description of the procurement system,
guidelines, rules, or regulations that will be used to make purchases under this Agreement.
AHP and the State reserves the right to request a copy of these documents and to inspect
the purchasing practices of the Subcontractor at any time.

g. For all purchases, the Subcontractor must maintain copies of all paid vendor invoices,
documents, bids and other information used in vendor selection, for inspection or audit.
Justifications supporting the absence of bidding (i.e., sole source purchases) shall also be
maintained on file by the Subcontractor for inspection or audit.

h. AHP may, with cause (e.9., with reasonable suspicion of unnecessary purchases or use of
inappropriate purchase practices, etc.), withhold, cancel, modify, or retract the delegated
purchase authority granted under Paragraphs b and/or c of Provision 3 by giving the
Subcontractor no less than 30 calendar days written notice.

4. EquipmenUProperty Ownership / Inventory / Disposition

(Applicable to agreements in which equipmenUproperty is furnished by DHCS and/or AHP when
said items are purchased or reimbursed by DHCS with state or federal funds provided under this
Agreement.)

a. Wrerever the term equipment and/or property is used in Provision 4, the definitions in
Paragraph a of Provision 3 shall apply.

Unless otherwise stipulated in this Agreement, all equipment and/or property that is
purchased/reimbursed with Agreement funds or furnished by AHP under the terms of this
Agreement shall be considered state equipment and the property of AHP and DHCS.

(1) Reporting of EquipmenUProperty Receipt - AHP requires the reporting, tagging and
annual inventorying of all equipment and/or property that is furnished by AHP or
purchased/reimbursed with funds provided through this Agreement.

Upon receipt of equipment and/or property, the Subcontractor shall report the receipt to
the AHP. To report the receipt of said items and to receive property tags, Subcontractor
shall use a form or format designated by AHP. lf the appropriate form does not
accompany this Agreement, Subcontractor shall request a copy from AHP.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



(2) Annual EquipmenUProperty lnventory - lf the Subcontractor enters into an agreement
with a term of more than twelve months, the Subcontractor shall submit an annual
inventory of state equipment and/or property to the AHP using a form or format
designated by AHP. lf an inventory report form does not accompany this Agreement,
Subcontractor shall request a copy from AHP. Subcontractor shall:

(a) lnclude in the inventory report, equipment and/or property in the Subcontractor's
possession and/or in the possession of a subcontractor (including independent
consultants).

(b) Submit the inventory report to AHP according to the instructions appearing on the
inventory form or issued by AHP.

(c) Contact AHP to learn how to remove, trade-in, sell, transfer or survey off, from the
inventory report, expired equipment and/or property that is no longer wanted, usable
or has passed its life expectancy. lnstructions will be supplied by AHP.

b. Title to state equipment and/or property shall not be affected by its incorporation or
attachment to any property not owned by the State.

c. Unless otherwise stipulated, AHP or DCHS shall be under no obligation to pay the cost of
restoration, or rehabilitation of the Subcontractor's facility which may be affected by the
removal of any state equipment and/or property.

d. The Subcontractor shall maintain and administer a sound business program for ensuring the
proper use, maintenance, repair, protection, insurance and preservation of state equipment
and/or property.

(1) ln administering this provision, AHP may require the Subcontractor to repair or
replace, to AHP's satisfaction, any damaged, lost or stolen state equipment and/or
property. ln the event of state equipment and/or miscellaneous property theft,
Subcontractor shall immediately file a theft report with the appropriate police agency or
the California Highway Patrol and Subcontractor shall promptly submit one copy of the
theft report to AHP.

e. Unless otherwise stipulated by the Program funding this Agreement, equipment and/or
property purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by AHP under the terms of
this Agreement, shall only be used for performance of this Agreement or another DHCS
agreement.

f. Within sixty (60) calendar days prior to the termination or end of this Agreement, the
Subcontractor shall provide a final inventory report of equipment and/or property to AHP and
shall, at that time, query DHCS as to the requirements, including the manner and method, of
returning state equipment and/or property to AHP. Final disposition of equipment and/or
property shall be at AHP expense and according to AHP instructions. Equipment and/or
property disposition instructions shall be issued by AHP immediately after receipt of the final
inventory report. At the termination or conclusion of this Agreement, AHP OR DHCS may at
its discretion, authorize the continued use of state equipment and/or property for performance
of work under a different DHCS agreement.

g. Motor Vehicles
(Applicable only if motor vehicles are purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or
furnished by AHP or DHCS under this Agreement.)

(1) lf motor vehicles are purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by AHP or
DHCS under the terms of this Agreement, within thirty (30) calendar days prior to the

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



termination or end of this Agreement, the Subcontractor shall return such vehicles to AHP
or DHCS and shall deliver all necessary documents of title or registration to enable the
proper transfer of a marketable title to AHP or DHCS.

(2) lf motor vehicles are purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by AHP or
DHCS under the terms of this Agreement, the State of California shall e the legal owner
of said motor vehicles and the Subcontractor shall be the registered owner. The
Subcontractor may oly use said vehicles for performance and under the terms of this
Agreement.

(3) The Subcontractor agrees that all operators of motor vehicles, lf motor vehicles are
purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by AHP or DHCS under the
terms of this agreement, shall hold a valid State of California driver's license. ln the
event that ten or more passengers are to be transported in any one vehicle, the operator
shall also hold a Stat of California Class B driver's license.

(4) lf any motor vehicle is purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by AHP
or DHCS under the terms of this Agreement, the Subcontractor, as applicable, shall
provide, maintain, and certify that, at a minimum, the following type and amount of
automobile liability insurance is in effect during the term of this Agreement or any
extension period during which any vehicle remains in the Subcontractor's possession.

Automobile Liability lnsurance

(a) The Subcontractor, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies that it possesses or
will obtain automobile liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence
for bodily injury and property damage combined. Said insurance must be obtained
and made effective upon the delivery date of any motor vehicle,
purchased/reimbursed with agreement funds or furnished by AHP under the terms of
this Agreement, to the Subcontractor.

(b) The Subcontractor shall, as soon as practical, furnish a copy of the certificate of
insurance to the AHP Contract Office or Project Manager. The certificate of
insurance shall identify the AHP contract or agreement number for which the
insurance applies.

(c) The Subcontractor agree that bodily injury and property damage liability insurance, as
required herein, shall remain in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement or
until such time as the motor vehicle is returned to AHP.

(d) The Subcontractor agree to provide, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of said insurance coverage, a copy of a new certificate of insurance evidencing
continued coverage, as indicated herein, for not less than the remainder of the term
of this Agreement, the term of any extension or continuation thereof, or for a period of
not less than one (1) year.

(e) The Subcontractor, if not a self-insured government and/or public entity, must provide
evidence, that any required certificates of insurance contain the following provisions:

[1] The insurer will not cancel the insured's coverage without giving thirty (30)
calendar days prior written notice to AHP.

[2] The State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and servants are included
as additional insureds, but only with respect to work performed for the State
under this Agreement and any extension or continuation of this Agreement.

[3] The insurance carrier shall notiff the AHP, in writing, of the Subcontractor's
failure to pay premiums; its cancellation of such policies; or any other substantial
change, including, but not limited to, the status, coverage, or scope of the

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



required insurance. Such notices shall contain a reference to each agreement
number for which the insurance was obtained.

(0 The Subcontractor is hereby advised that copies of certificates of insurance may be
subject to review and approval by the Department of General Services (DGS), Office
of Risk and lnsurance Management. The Subcontractor shall be notified by AHP, in

writing, if this provision is applicable to this Agreement. lf DGS approval of the
certificate of insurance is required, the Subcontractor agrees that no work or services
shall be performed prior to obtaining said approval.

(g) ln the event the Subcontractor fails to keep insurance coverage, as required herein,
in effect at all times during vehicle possession, AHP may, in addition to any other
remedies it may have, terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of such event.

5. Subcontract Requirements

a. Prior written authorization will be required before the Subcontractor enters into or is
reimbursed for any subcontract for services costing $5,000 or more. Except as indicated in
Paragraph b(3) herein, when securing subcontracts for services exceeding $5,000, the
Subcontractor shall obtain at least three bids or justify a sole source award.

(1) The Subcontractor must provide in its request for authorization, all information necessary
for evaluating the necessity or desirability of incurring such cost.

(2) AHP may identify the information needed to fulfillthis requirement.

(3) Subcontracts performed by the following entities or for the service types listed below are
exempt from the bidding and sole source justification requirements:

(a) A local governmental entity or the federal government,

(b) A State college or State university from any State,

(c) A Joint Powers Authority,

(d) An auxiliary organization of a California State University or a California community
college,

(e) A foundation organized to support the Board of Governors of the California
Community Colleges,

(0 An auxiliary organization of the Student Aid Commission established under Education
Code $ 69522,

(g) Firms or individuals proposed for use and approved by DHCS'funding Program via
acceptance of an application or proposal for funding or pre/post contract award
negotiations.

(h) Entities and/or service types identified as exempt from advertising and competitive
bidding in State Contracting Manual Chapter 5 Section 5.80 Subsection 8.2. View
this publication at the following lnternet address:
https://www.dqs.ca.qov/OLS/Resources/Paqe-Content/Office-of-Leqal-Services-
Resou rces-List-Fol der/State-Contracti nq

b. AHP reserves the right to approve or disapprove the selection of subcontractors and with
advance written notice, require the substitution of subcontractors and require the
Subcontractor to terminate subcontracts entered into in support of this Agreement.

(1) Upon receipt of a written notice from AHP requiring the substitution and/or
termination of a subcontract, the Subcontractor shall take steps to ensure the

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



completion of any work in progress and select a replacement, if applicable, within 30
calendar days, unless a longer period is agreed to by DHCS.

c. Actual subcontracts (i.e., written agreement between the Subcontractor and a subcontractor)
of $5,000 or more are subject to the prior review and written approval of AHP. AHP may, at
its discretion, elect to waive this right. All such waivers shall be confirmed in writing by AHP.

d. Subcontractor shall maintain a copy of each subcontract entered into in support of this
Agreement and shall, upon request by AHP, make copies available for approval, inspection,
or audit.

e. AHP assumes no responsibility for the payment of subcontractors used in the performance of
this Agreement. Subcontractor accepts sole responsibility for the payment of subcontractors
used in the performance of this Agreement.

f. The Subcontractor is responsible for all performance requirements under this Agreement
even though performance may be carried out through a subcontract.

g. The Subcontractor shall ensure that all subcontracts for services include provision(s)
requiring compliance with applicable terms and conditions specified in this Agreement.

h. The subcontractor agrees to maintain and preserve, until three years after termination of
Agreement No. 21-10349 and final payment from AHP, to permit AHP or DHCS or any duly
authorized representative, to have access to, examine or audit any pertinent books,
documents, papers and records related to this subcontract and to allow interviews of any
employees who might reasonably have information related to such records.

i. Unless otherwise stipulated in writing by AHP, the Subcontractor shall be the subcontractor's
sole point of contact for all matters related to performance and payment under this
Agreement.

Subcontractor shall, as applicable, advise all subcontractors of their obligations pursuant to
the following numbered provisions of this Exhibit 1,2,3,4, 5,6, 7,8, 10, 1 1, 12,13, 14, 17 ,

19,20,24,32 and/or other numbered provisions herein that are deemed applicable.

6. lncome Restrictions

Unless otherwise stipulated in this Agreement, the Subcontractor agrees that any refunds,
rebates, credits, or other amounts (including any interest thereon) accruing to or received by the
Subcontractor under this Agreement shall be paid by the Subcontractor to AHP so that AHP can
pay DHCS, to the extent that they are properly allocable to costs for which the Contractor has
been reimbursed by AHP under this Agreement.

7. Auditand Record Retention

a. The Subcontractor shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence, accounting
procedures and practices, sufficient to properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of whatever
nature claimed to have been incurred in the performance of this Agreement, including any
matching costs and expenses. The foregoing constitutes "records" for the purpose of this
provision.

b. The Subcontractor's facility or office or such part thereof as may be engaged in the
performance of this Agreement and his/her records shall be subject at all reasonable times to
inspection, audit, and reproduction.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



c. Subcontractor agrees that AHP, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State
Audits, or their designated representatives including the Comptroller General of the United
States shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. Subcontractor agrees to allow the
auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of
any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, the
Subcontractor agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff
in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement. (GC 8546.7, CCR Title 2,

Section 1896.77)

d. The Subcontractor shall preserve and make available his/her records (1) for a period of three
years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, and (2) for such longer period, if
any, as is required by applicable statute, by any other provision of this Agreement, or by
subparagraphs (1) or (2) below.

(1) lf this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the
work terminated shall be preserved and made available for a period of three years from
the date of any resulting final settlement.

(2) lf any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the records has
been started before the expiration of the three-year period, the records shall be retained
until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the
end of the regular three-year period, whichever is later.

e. The Subcontractor may, at its discretion, following receipt of final payment under this
Agreement, reduce its accounts, books and records related to this Agreement to microfilm,
computer disk, CD ROM, DVD, or other data storage medium. Upon request by an
authorized representative to inspect, audit or obtain copies of said records, the Subcontractor
must supply or make available applicable devices, hardware, and/or software necessary to
view, copy and/or print said records. Applicable devices may include, but are not limited to,
microfilm readers and microfilm printers, etc.

f. The Subcontractor shall, if applicable, comply with the Single Audit Act and the audit
requirements set forth in 2 C.F.R. S 200.501 (2014).

8. Site lnspection

AHP, DHCS and or SAMHSA has the right at all reasonable times to inspect or othenivise
evaluate the work performed or being performed hereunder including subcontract supported
activities and the premises in which it is being performed. lf any inspection or evaluation is made
of the premises of the Subcontractor, the Subcontractor shall provide and shall require
subcontractors to provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience
of the authorized representatives in the performance of their duties. All inspections and
evaluations shall be performed in such a manner as will not unduly delay the work.

9. Federal Contract Funds

a. lt is mutually understood between the parties that this Agreement may have been written
before ascertaining the availability of congressional appropriation of funds, for the mutual
benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays which would occur if the
Agreement were executed after that determination was made.

b. This agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available to the
State by the United States Government for the fiscal years covered by the term of this

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



Agreement. ln addition, this Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or
conditions enacted by the Congress or any statute enacted by the Congress which may affect
the provisions, terms or funding of this Agreement in any manner.

c. lt is mutually agreed that if the Congress does not appropriate sufficient funds for the
program, the Agreement shall be amended to reflect any reduction in funds.

d. AHP and DHCS has the option to invalidate or cancel the Agreement with 30 days advance
written notice or to amend the Agreement to reflect any reduction in funds.

10. lntellectual Propefi Rights
a. Ownership

(1) Except where AHP has agreed in a signed writing to accept a license, AHP or DHCS
shall be and remain, without additional compensation, the sole owner of any and all
rights, title and interest in all lntellectual Property, from the moment of creation, whether
or not jointly conceived, that are made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice
by Subcontractor or AHP and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement.

(2) For the purposes of this Agreement, lntellectual Property means recognized protectable
rights and interest such as: patents, (whether or not issued) copyrights, trademarks,
service marks, applications for any of the foregoing, inventions, trade secrets, trade
dress, logos, insignia, color combinations, slogans, moral rights, right of publicity,
author's rights, contract and licensing rights, works, mask works, industrial design rights,
rights of priority, know how, design flows, methodologies, devices, business processes,
developments, innovations, good will and all other legal rights protecting intangible
proprietary information as may exist now and/or here after come into existence, and all
renewals and extensions, regardless of whether those rights arise under the laws of the
United States, or any other state, country or jurisdiction.

(a) For the purposes of the definition of lntellectual Property, "works" means all literary
works, writings and printed matter including the medium by which they are recorded
or reproduced, photographs, art work, pictorial and graphic representations and
works of a similar nature, film, motion pictures, digital images, animation cells, and
other audiovisual works including positives and negatives thereof, sound recordings,
tapes, educational materials, interactive videos and any other materials or products
created, produced, conceptualized and fixed in a tangible medium of expression. lt
includes preliminary and final products and any materials and information developed
for the purposes of producing those final products. Works does not include articles
submitted to peer review or reference journals or independent research projects.

(3) ln the performance of this Agreement, Subcontractor will exercise and utilize certain of its
lntellectual Property in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement. ln addition,
under this Agreement, Subcontractor may access and utilize certain of AHP's lntellectual
Property in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement. Except as otherwise
set forth herein, Subcontractor shall not use any of AHP's lntellectual Property now
existing or hereafter existing for any purposes without the prior written permission of
AHP. Except as othenvise set forth herein, AHP shall not give any ownership
interest in or rights to its lntellectual Property to the other Party. lf during the term
of this Agreement, Subcontractor accesses any third-party lntellectual Property that is
licensed to AHP, Subcontractor agrees to abide by all license and confidentiality
restrictions applicable to AHP in the third-party's license agreement.

(4) Subcontractor agrees to cooperate with AHP in establishing or maintaining AHP's and/or
DHCS exclusive rights in the lntellectual Property, and in assuring AHP's or DHCS' sole
rights against third parties with respect to the lntellectual Property. lf the Subcontractor

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



enters into any agreements or subcontracts with other parties in order to perform this
Agreement, Subontractor shall require the terms of the Agreement(s) to include all
lntellectual Property provisions. Such terms must include, but are not limited to, the
subcontractor assigning and agreeing to assign to AHP and/or DHCS all rights, title and
interest in lntellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by
the subcontractor, Contractor or AHP and which result directly or indirectly from this
Agreement or any subcontract.

(5) Subcontractor further agrees to assist and cooperate with AHP/DHCS in all reasonable
respects, and execute all documents and, subject to reasonable availability, give
testimony and take all further acts reasonably necessary to acquire, transfer, maintain,
and enforce AHP'S lntellectual Property rights and interests.

b. Retained Rights / License Rights

(1) Except for lntellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by
Subcontractor or AHP and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement,
Subcontractor shall retain title to all of its lntellectual Property to the extent such
lntellectual Property is in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement.
Subcontractor hereby grants to DHCS, without additional compensation, a permanent,
non-exclusive, royalty free, paid-up, worldwide, irrevocable, perpetual, non-terminable
license to use, reproduce, manufacture, sell, offer to sell, import, export, modify, publicly
and privately display/perform, distribute, and dispose Subcontractor's lntellectual
Property with the right to sublicense through multiple layers, for any purpose whatsoever,
to the extent it is incorporated in the lntellectual Property resulting from this Agreement,
unless Subcontractor assigns all rights, title and interest in the lntellectual Property as set
forth herein,

(2) Nothing in this provision shall restrict, limit, or otherwise prevent Subcontractor from
using any ideas, concepts, know-how, methodology or techniques related to its
performance under this Agreement, provided that Subcontractor's use does not infringe
the patent, copyright, trademark rights, license or other lntellectual Property rights of AHP
or third party, or result in a breach or default of any provisions of this Exhibit or result in a
breach of any provisions of law relating to confidentiality.

c. Copyright

(1) Subcontractor agrees that for purposes of copyright law, all works [as defined in

Paragraph a, subparagraph (2)(a) of this provisionl of authorship made by or on behalf of
Subcontractor in connection with Subcontractor's performance of this Agreement shall be
deemed "works made for hire". Subcontractor further agrees that the work of each
person utilized by Subcontractor in connection with the performance of this Agreement
will be a "work made for hire," whether that person is an employee of Subcontractor or
that person has entered into an agreement with Subcontractor to perform the work.
Subcontractor shall enter into a written agreement with any such person that: (i) all work
performed for Subcontractor shall be deemed a "work made for hire" under the Copyright
Act and (ii) that person shall assign all right, title, and interest to AHP and/or DHCS to
any work product made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by
Subcontractor or AHP and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement.

(2) All materials, including, but not limited to, visual works or text, reproduced or distributed
pursuant to this Agreement that include lntellectual Property made, conceived, derived
from, or reduced to practice by Contractor or AHP and which result directly or indirectly
from this Agreement, shall include AHP's or DHCS' notice of copyright, which shall read
in 3mm or larger typeface: "@ [Enter Current Year e.9., 2010, etc.], This material may not
be reproduced or disseminated without prior written permission from AHP." This notice

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



should be placed prominently on the materials and set apart from other matter on the
page where it appears. Audio productions shall contain a similar audio notice of
copyright.

d. Patent Rights

Wth respect to inventions made by Subcontractor in the performance of this Agreement,
which did not result from research and development specifically included in the Agreement's
scope of work, Subcontractor hereby grants to AHP and/or DHCS a license as described
under Section b of this provision for devices or material incorporating, or made through the
use of such inventions. lf such inventions result from research and development work
specifically included within the Agreement's scope of work, then Subcontractor agrees to
assign to AHP and/or DCHS, without additional compensation, all its right, title and interest in

and to such inventions and to assist AHP and/or DCHS in securing United States and foreign
patents with respect thereto.

e. Third-Party lntellectual Property

Except as provided herein, Subcontractor agrees that its performance of this Agreement shall
not be dependent upon or include any lntellectual Property of Subcontractor or third party
without first: (i) obtaining AHP's prior written approval; and (ii) granting to or obtaining for
AHP and/or DHCS, without additional compensation, a license, as described in Section b of
this provision, for any of Subcontractor's or third-party's lntellectual Property in existence
prior to the effective date of this Agreement. lf such a license upon the these terms is
unattainable, and AHP determines that the lntellectual Property should be included in or is

required for Subcontractor's performance of this Agreement, Subcontractor shall obtain a
license under terms acceptable to AHP and/or DHCS.

f. Warranties

(1) Subcontractor represents and warrants that:

(a) lt is free to enter into and fully perform this Agreement.

(b) lt has secured and will secure all rights and licenses necessary for its performance of
this Agreement.

(c) Neither Subcontractor's performance of this Agreement, nor the exercise by either
Party of the rights granted in this Agreement, nor any use, reproduction,
manufacture, sale, offer to sell, import, export, modification, public and private
display/performance, distribution, and disposition of the lntellectual Property made,
conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by Subcontractor or DHCS or AHP
and which result directly or indirectly from this Agreement will infringe upon or violate
any lntellectual Property right, non-disclosure obligation, or other proprietary right or
interest of any third-party or entity now existing under the laws of, or hereafter
existing or issued by, any state, the United States, or any foreign country. There is
currently no actual or threatened claim by any such third party based on an alleged
violation of any such right by Subcontractor.

(d) Neither Subcontractor's performance nor any part of its performance will violate the
right of privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against any person or entity.

(e) lt has secured and will secure all rights and licenses necessary for lntellectual
Property including, but not limited to, consents, waivers or releases from all authors
of music or performances used, and talent (radio, television and motion picture
talent), owners of any interest in and to real estate, sites, locations, property or props

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



that may be used or shown.

(0 lt has not granted and shall not grant to any person or entity any right that would or
might derogate, encumber, or interfere with any of the rights granted to AHP or
DHCS in this Agreement.

(g) lt has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that state funds will not be
used in the performance of this Agreement for the acquisition, operation or
maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright laws.

(h) lt has no knowledge of any outstanding claims, licenses or other charges, liens, or
encumbrances of any kind or nature whatsoever that could affect in any way
Su bcontractor's performance of th is Agreem ent.

(2) AHP NOR DHCS MAKE NO WARRANTY THAT THE INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
RESULTING FROM THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT INFRINGE UPON ANY PATENT,
TRADEMARK, COPYRIGHT OR THE LIKE, NOW EXISTING OR SUBSEQUENTLY
ISSUED.

g. lntellectual Property lndemnity

(1) Subcontractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless AHP and DHCS and its
licensees and assignees, and its officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives,
successors, and users of its products, ("lndemnitees") from and against all claims,
actions, damages, losses, liabilities (or actions or proceedings with respect to any
thereof), whether or not rightful, arising from any and all actions or claims by any third
party or expenses related thereto (including, but not limited to, all legal expenses, court
costs, and attorney's fees incurred in investigating, preparing, serving as a witness in, or
defending against, any such claim, action, or proceeding, commenced or threatened) to
which any of the lndemnitees may be subject, whether or not Subcontractor is a party to
any pending or threatened litigation, which arise out of or are related to (i) the
incorrectness or breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or
agreements of Subcontractor pertaining to lntellectual Property; or (ii) any lntellectual
Property infringement, or any other type of actual or alleged infringement claim, arising
out of AHP's use, reproduction, manufacture, sale, offer to sell, distribution, import,
export, modification, public and private performance/display, license, and disposition of
the lntellectual Property made, conceived, derived from, or reduced to practice by
Subcontractor or DCHS or AHP and which result directly or indirectly from this
Agreement. This indemnity obligation shall apply irrespective of whether the infringement
claim is based on a patent, trademark or copyright registration that issued after the
effective date of this Agreement. AHP reserves the right to participate in and/or control,
at Subcontractor's expense, any such infringement action brought against AHP.

(2) Should any lntellectual Property licensed by the Subcontractor to AHP under this
Agreement become the subject of an lntellectual Property infringement claim,
Subcontractor will exercise its authority reasonably and in good faith to preserve AHP's
right to use the licensed lntellectual Property in accordance with this Agreement at no
expense to AHP. AHP shall have the right to monitor and appear through its own
counsel (at Subcontractor's expense) in any such claim or action. ln the defense or
settlement of the claim, Subcontractor may obtain the right for AHP to continue using the
licensed lntellectual Property; or, replace or modify the licensed lntellectual Property so
that the replaced or modified lntellectual Property becomes non-infringing provided that
such replacement or modification is functionally equivalent to the original licensed
lntellectual Property. lf such remedies are not reasonably available, AHP shall be
entitled to a refund of all monies paid under this Agreement, without restriction or
limitation of any other rights and remedies available at law or in equity.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



(3) Subcontractor agrees that damages alone would be inadequate to compensate AHP or
DHCS for breach of any term of this lntellectual Property Exhibit by Subcontractor.
Subcontractor acknowledges AHP or DHCS would suffer irreparable harm in the event of
such breach and agrees AHP shall be entitled to obtain equitable relief, including without
limitation an injunction, from a court of competent jurisdiction, without restriction or
limitation of any other rights and remedies available at law or in equity.

h. Federal Funding

Based upon this Agreement is funded by the federal government, AHP and DHCS may acquire
and maintain the lntellectual Property rights, title, and ownership which results directly or
indirectly from the Agreement; except as provided in 37 Code of Federal Regulations par|401.14;
however, the federal government shall have a non-exclusive, nontransferable, irrevocable, paid-
up license throughout the world to use, duplicate, or dispose of such lntellectual Property
throughout the world in any manner for governmental purposed and to have the permit others to
do so.

11. Air or Water Pollution Requirements

Any federally funded agreement and/or subcontract in excess of $100,000 must comply with the
following provisions unless said agreement is exempt by law.

Government contractors agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or
requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 USC 7606) section 508 of the
Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection
Agency regulations.

b. lnstitutions of higher education, hospitals, nonprofit organizations and commercial businesses
agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under the
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 el seq.), as amended, and the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.
1251 et seq.), as amended.

12. Prior Approval of Training Seminars, Workshops or Conferences

Subcontractor shall obtain prior AHP approval of the location, costs, dates, agenda, instructors,
instructional materials, and attendees at any reimbursable training seminar, workshop, or
conference conducted pursuant to this Agreement and of any reimbursable publicity or
educational materials to be made available for distribution. The Subcontractor shall acknowledge
the support of the State whenever publicizing the work under this Agreement in any media. This
provision does not apply to necessary staff meetings or training sessions held for the staff of the
Subcontractor to conduct routine business matters.

1 3. Confidentiality of lnformation

a. The Subcontractor and its employees, agents, or subcontractors shall protect from unauthorized
disclosure names and other identifying information concerning persons either receiving services
pursuant to this Agreement or persons whose names or identifying tnformation become available
or are disclosed to the subcontractors as a result of services performed under this Agreement,
except for statistical information not identifying any such person.

b. The Subcontractor and its employees, agents shall not use such identifying information for any
purpose other than carrying out the subcontractor's obligations under this Agreement.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



c. The Subcontractor and its employees, agents shall promptly transmit to the AHP Contract Office
or Project Manager all requests for disclosure of such identifying information not emanating from
the client or person.

d. The Subcontractor shall not disclose, except as otherwise specifically permitted by this
Agreement or authorized by the client, any such identifying information to anyone other than
AHP without prior written authorization from the AHP Contract Office or Project Manager,
except if disclosure is required by State or Federal law.

e. For purposes of this provision, identity shall include, but not be limited to name, identifying
number, symbol, or other identiffing particular assigned to the individual, such as finger or
voice print or a photograph.

f. As deemed applicable by AHP/DHCS, this provision may be supplemented by additional terms
and conditions covering personal health information (PHl) or personal, sensitive, and/or
confidential information (PSCI). Said terms and conditions will be outlined in one or more
exhibits that will either be attached to this Agreement or incorporated into this Agreement by
reference.

14. Documents, Publications and Written Reports
(Applicable to agreements over $5,000 under which publication, written reports and documents
are developed or produced. Government Code Section 7550.)

Any document, publication or written report (excluding progress reports, financial reports, and
normal contractual communications) prepared as a requirement of this Agreement shall contain,
in a separate section preceding the main body of the document, the number and dollar amounts
of all agreements and subcontracts relating to the preparation of such document or report, if the
total cost for work by nonemployees of the State exceeds $5,000.

15. Financial and Gompliance Audit Requirements

a. The definitions used in this provision are contained in Section 38040 of the Health and Safety
Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof.

b. Direct service contract means a contract or agreement for services contained in local assistance
or subvention programs or both (see Health and Safety [H&S] Code Section 38020). Direct service
contracts shall not include contracts, agreements, grants, or subventions to other governmental
agencies or units of government nor contracts or agreements with regional centers or area
agencies on aging (H&S Code Section 38030)

c.The Subcontractor, as indicated below, agrees to obtain one of the following audits:

(1) lf the Subcontractor is a nonprofit organization (as defined ,n HES Code Section
38040) and receives $25.000 or more from anv State aqencv under a direct service contract or
aqreement; the Subcontractor agrees to obtain an annual single, organization wide, financial and
compliance audit. Said audit shall be conducted according to Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards. This audit does not fulfill the audit requirements of Paragraph c(3) below. The audit
shall be completed by the 15th day of the fifth month following the end of the Contractor's fiscal
year, and/or

(2) If the Subcontractor is a nonprofit organization (as defined in H&S Code Section
38040) and receives less than $25.000 oer vear from anv State aqencv under a direct service
contract or aqreement, the Subcontractor agrees to obtain a biennial single, organization wide
financial and compliance audit, unless there is evidence of fraud or other violation of state law in

connection with this Agreement. This audit does not fulfill the audit requirements of Paragraph c(3)
below. The audit shall be completed by the 1Sth day of the fifth month following the end of the

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



Contractor's fiscal year, and/or

(3) If the Subcontractor r.s a State or Local Government entity or Nonprofit organization
(as defined by 2 C.F.R. SS 200.64, 200.70, and 200.90) and expends $750,000 or more in Federal
awards, the Subcontractor agrees to obtain an annual single, organization wide, financial and
compliance audit according to the requirements specified in 2 C.F.R. 200.501 entitled "Audit
Requirements". An audit conducted pursuant to this provision will fulfill the audit requirements
outlined in Paragraphs c(1) and c(2) above. The audit shall be completed by the end of the ninth
month following the end of the audit period. The requirements of this provision apply if:

(a) The Subcontractor is a recipient expending Federal awards received directly from
Federal awarding agencies, or

(b) The Subcontractor is a subrecipient expending Federal awards received from a pass-
through entity such as the State, County or community based organization.

(4) lf the Subcontractor submits to DHCS a report of an audit other than a 2 C.F.R. 200.501audit,
the Subcontractor must also submit a certification indicating the Subcontractor has not expended
$750,000 or more in federal funds for the year covered by the audit report.

d. Two copies of the audit report shall be delivered to the DHCS program funding this Agreement.
The audit report must identify the Subcontractor's legal name and the number assigned to this
Agreement. The audit report shall be due within 30 days after the completion of the audit. Upon
receipt of said audit report, the DHCS Program Contract Manager shall forward the audit report to
DHCS'Audits and lnvestigations Unit if the audit report was submitted under Section 16.c(3),
unless the audit report is from a City, County, or Special District within the State of California
whereby the report will be retained by the funding program.

e.The cost of the audits described herein may be included in the funding for this Agreement up to
the proportionate amount this Agreement represents of the Subcontractor's total revenue. The
AHP program funding this Agreement must provide advance written approval of the specific amount
allowed for said audit expenses.

f. The State or its authorized designee, including the Bureau of State Audits, is responsible for
conducting agreement performance audits which are not financial and compliance audits.
Performance audits are defined by Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards.

g. Nothing in this Agreement limits the State's responsibility or authority to enforce State law or
regulations, procedures, or reporting requirements arising thereto.

h. Nothing in this provision limits the authority of the State to make audits of this Agreement,
provided however, that if independent audits arranged for by the Subcontractor meet Generally
Accepted GovernmentalAuditing Standards, the State shall rely on those audits and any additional
audit work and shall build upon the work already done.

i. The State may, at its option, direct its own auditors to perform either of the audits described
above. The Subcontractor will be given advance written notification, if the State chooses to
exercise its option to perform said audits.

j. The Subcontractor shall include a clause in any agreement the Subcontractor enters into with
the audit firm doing the single organization wide audit to provide access by the State or Federal
Government to the working papers of the independent auditor who prepares the single organization
wide audit for the Contractor.

k. Federal or state auditors shall have "expanded scope auditing" authority to conduct specific

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



program audits during the same period in which a single organization wide audit is being
performed, but the audit report has not been issued. The federal or state auditors shall review and
have access to the current audit work being conducted and will not apply any testing or review
procedures which have not been satisfied by previous audit work that has been completed.

The term "expanded scope auditing" is applied and defined in the U.S. General Accounting Office
(GAO) issued Standards lor Audit of Government Organizations, Programs, Activities and
Functions, better known as the "yellow book".

16. Human Subjects Use Requirements

(Applicable only to federally funded agreements/grants in which performance, directly or through a
subcontracUsubaward, includes any tests or examination of materials derived from the human
body.)

By signing this Agreement, Subcontractor agrees that if any performance under this Agreement or
any subcontract or subagreement includes any tests or examination of materials derived from the
human body for the purpose of providing information, diagnosis, prevention, treatment or
assessment of disease, impairment, or health of a human being, all locations at which such
examinations are performed shall meet the requirements of 42 U.S.C. Section 263a (CLIA) and the
regulations thereunder.

17. Debarment and Suspension Certification

(Applicable to all agreements funded in part or whole with federal funds.)

a. By signing this Agreement, the Subcontractor agrees to comply with applicable federal
suspension and debarment regulations including, but not limited to 2 CFR 180, 2 CFR 376

b. By signing this Agreement, the Subcontractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief,
that it and its principals:

(1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded by any federal department or agency;

(2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal/agreement been
convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes; commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, receiving
stolen property, making false claims, obstruction of justice, or the commission of any other offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously affects its business
honesty;

(3) Are not presently indicted for or othenryise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in Paragraph b(2)
herein, and

(4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal/agreement had one or
more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(5) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal/agreement, engaged in
any of the violations listed under 2 CFR Part 180, Subpart C as supplemented by 2 CFR Part 376.

(6) Shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed
for debarment under federal regulations (i.e., 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4), debarred, suspended,

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in such transaction, unless authorized
by the State.

(7) Wll include a clause entitled, "Debarment and Suspension Certification" that essentially sets
forth the provisions herein, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier
covered transactions.

c. lf the Subcontractor is unable to certiflT to any of the statements in this certification, the
Subcontractor shall submit an explanation to AHP and the DHCS Program Contract Manager.

d. The terms and definitions herein have the meanings set out in 2 CFR Part 180 as
supplemented by 2 CFR Part 376.

e. lf the Subcontractor knowingly violates this certification, in addition to other remedies available
to the Federal Government, the DHCS may terminate this Agreement for cause or default.

1 8. Smoke-Free Workplace Gertification
(Applicable to federally funded agreements/grants and subcontracts/subawards, that provide
health, day care, early childhood development services, education or library services to children
under 18 directly or through local governments.)

Public Law 103-227 , also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act), requires that smoking
not be permitted in any pohion of any indoor facility owned or leaed or contracted for by an
entitiy and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, early childhood
development services, education or library services to children under the age of 18, if the
services are funded by federal programs eith directly or though state or local governments, by
federal grant, contract, loan or loan guarantee. The law also applies to children's services
that are provided in indoor facilities that are constructed, operated, or maintained with such
federal funds. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences;
portions of facilites used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment; service providers whose sole
source of applicable federal funds is Medicare or Medicaid; or facilities where WIC coupons
are redeemed.

b. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1,000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an administrative
compliance order on the responsible party.

c. By signing this Agreement, Subcontractor or Grantee certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act and will not allow smoking within any portion of any indoor facility
used for the provision of services for children as defined by the Act. The prohibitions herein
are effective December 26,1994.

d. Subcontractor or Grantee further agrees that it will insert this certification into any subawards
(subcontracts or subgrants) entered into that provide for children's services as described in
the Act.

19. Govenant Against Gontingent Fees
The Subcontractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to
soliciVsecure this Agreement upon an agreement of understanding for a commission, percentage,
brokerage, or contingent fee, except bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or
selling agencies retained by the Subcontractor for the purpose of securing business. For breach or
violation of this warranty, AHP shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or inits
descretion to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the fully
amount of such commission, percentage, and brokerage or contingent fee.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



20. Payment Withholds
(Applicable only if a final report is required by this Agreent. Not applicable to government entitities)

Unless waived or otherwise stipulated in this Agreement, AHP may, at its discretion, withold 10
percent (10o/o) of the face amount of the Agreement, 50 percent (50%) of the final invoice, or $3,000
whichever is greater, until AHP receives a final report that meets the terms, conditions and/or scope
of work requirements of this Agreement.

21. Peformance Evaluation
Not applicable to grant agreements
AHP may, at its discretion, evaluate the performance of the Subcontractor at the conclusion of this
Agreement. lf performance is evaluated, the evaluation shall not be a public record and shall
remain on file with AHP. Negative performance evaluation may be considered by AHP prior for
making future contract awards.

22. Officials Not to Benefit
No members of or delegate of Congress or the State Legislature shall be admitted to any share or
part of this Agreement, or to any benefit that may arise therefrom. This provision shall not be
construed to extend to this Agreement if made with a corporation for its general benefits.

23. Four-Digit Date Compliance
(Applicable to agreements in which Technology (lT) services are provided to AHP or if lT equipment
is procured.)
Subcontractor warrants that it will provide only Four-Digit Compliant (as defined below) Deliverables
and/or services to the State. "Four Digit Date compliant" Deliverables and services can accurately
process, calculate, compare, and sequence date data, including without limitation date data arising
out of or relating to leap years and changes in centuries. This warranty and representation is
subject to the warranty terms and conditions of this Agreement and does not limit the generality of
warranty obligations set forth elsewhere herein.

24. Prohibited Use of State Funds for Software
(Applicable to agreements in which computer software is used in performance of the work.)
Subcontractor certifies that I has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that state
funds will not be used in the performance of this Agreement fo the acquisition, operation or
maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright law.

25. Use of Small, Minority Owned and Women's Businesses
(Applicable to that portion of an agreement that is federally funded and entered into with institutions
of higher education, hospitals, nonprofit organizations or commercial businesses.)
Positive efforts shall be made to use small businesses, minorty-owned firms and women's business
enterprised, whenever possible (i.e. procurement of goods and/or services). Subcontractors shall
take all of the following steps to further this goal.

1. Ensure that small businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business enterprises are used
to the fullest extent practicable.

2. Make information on forthcoming purchasing and contracting opportunities available and arrange
time frames for purchases and contracts to encourage and facilitate participation by small
businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business enterprises.

3.Consider in the contract process whether firms competing for larger contracts intended to
subcontract with small businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business enterprises.

4. Encourage contracting with consortiums of small businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's
business enterprises when a contract is too large for one of these firms to handle individually.

5.Use the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Federal Small
Business Administration and the U.S. Department of Commerce's Minority Business
Development Agency in the solicitation and utilization of small businesses, minority-owned
firms, and women's business enterprises.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



26. Alien lneligibility Gertification
(Applicable to sole proprietors entering federally funded agreements.)
By signing this Agreement, the Subcontractor certifies that he/she is not an alien that is ineligible for
state and local benefits, as defined in Subtitle B of the Personal Responsibility and Work
Opportunity Act. (8 U.S.C. 1601,et seq.)

27. Union Organizing
(Applicable only to grant agreements.)
Subgrantee, by signing this Agreement, hereby acknowledges the applicability of Government
Code Sections 16645 through 16649 to this Agreement. Furthermore, Subgrantee, by signing this
Agreement hereby certifies that:
d. No state funds disbursed by this grant will be used to assist, promote, or deter union

organizing.
e. Subgrantee shall account for state funds disbursed for a specific expenditure by this grant, tos

how those funds were allocated to that expenditure.
f. Subgrantee shall, where state funds are not designated as described in herein, allocate,

on a pro-rata basis, all disbursements that support the grant program.
g. lf Subgrantee makes expenditures to assist, promote or deter union organizing, Subgrantee

will maintain records sufficient to show that no state funds were used for those expenditures,
and that Subgrantee shall provide those records to the Attorney General upon request.

28. Agreement Uniformity (Fringe Benefit Allowability)
(Applicable only to nonprofit organizations.)
Pursuant to the provisions of Article 7 (commencing with Section 100525) of Chapter 3 of
Part 1 of Division 101 of the Health and Safety Code, DHCS sets forth the following policies,
procedures, and guidelines regarding the reimbursement of fringe benefits.

a.As used herein fringe benefits shall mean an employment benefit given by one's employer to an
employee in addition to one's regular or normal wages or salary.

b.As used herein, fringe benefits do not include:
1. Compensation for personal services paid currently or accrued by the

Subcontractor for services of employees rendered during the term of this
Agreement, which b dentified as regular or normal salaries and wages, annual
leave, vacation, sick leave, holdays, jury duty and/or military bave/training.

2. Directors and executive committee member's fees.
3. lncentive awards and/or bonus incentive pay.
4. Allowances for off-site pay.
5. Location allowances.
6. Hardship pay.
7. Cost-of-living differentials.

c. Specific allowable fringe benefits include:
1. Fringe benefits in the form of employer contributions for the employer's potion of

payroll taxes (i.e., FICA, SUl, SDI), employee health plans (i.e. health, dental and vision),
unemployment insurance, worker's compensation insurance, and the employer's share of
pension/retirement plans, provided they are granted in accordance with established written
organization policies and meet all legaland lnternal Revenue Service requirements.

d.To be an allowable fringe benefit, the cost must meet the following criteria:
1. Be necessary and reasonable for the performance of the Agreement.
2. Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
3. Be consistent with policies that apply uniformly to all activities of the Subcontract.

e. Subcontractor agrees that all frinqe benefits shall be at actual cost.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



29. Suspension or Stop Work Notification

a. AHP may, at any time, issue a notice to suspend performance or stop work under this
Agreement. The initial notification may be a verbal or written directive issued by the funding
Program's Contract Manager. Upon receipt of said notice, the Subcontractor is to suspend
and/or stop all, or any part, of the work called for by this Agreement.

b. Written confirmation of the suspension or stop work notification with directions as to what
work (if not all) is to be suspended and how to proceed will be provided within 30 working
days of the verbal notification. The suspension or stop work notification shall remain in effect
until further written notice is received from AHP. The resumption of work (in whole or part)
will be at AHP's discretion and upon receipt of written confirmation.

(1) Upon receipt of a suspension or stop work notification, the Subcontractor shall
immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize or halt the
incurrence of costs allocable to the performance covered by the notification during the
period of work suspension or stoppage.

(2) \Mthin 90 days of the issuance of a suspension or stop work notification, AHP shall
either:

(a) Cancel, extend, or modify the suspension or stop work notification; or

(b) Terminate the Agreement as provided for in the Cancellation / Termination clause of
the Agreement.

c. lf a suspension or stop work notification issued under this clause is canceled or the period of
suspension or any extension thereof is modified or expires, the Subcontractor may resume
work only upon written concurrence of AHP.

d. lf the suspension or stop work notification is cancelled and the Agreement resumes, changes
to the services, deliverables, performance dates, and/or agreement terms resulting from the
suspension or stop work notification shall require an amendment to the Agreement.

e. lf a suspension or stop work notification is not canceled and the Agreement is cancelled or
terminated pursuant to the provision entitled Cancellation / Termination, AHP shall allow
reasonable costs resulting from the suspension or stop work notification in arriving at the
settlement costs.

f. AHP shall not be liable to the Subcontractor for loss of profits because of any suspension or
stop work notification issued under this clause.

30. Public Communications
"Electronic and printed documents developed and produced, for public communications shallfollow
the following requirements to comply with Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act and the American
with Disabilities Act:

A. Ensure visual-impaired, hearing impaired and other special needs audiences
are provided material information in formats that provide the most assistance
in making informed choices."

31. Compliance with Statutes and Regulations
a. The Subcontractor shall comply with all California and federal law, regulations, and published

guidelines, to the extend that these authorities contain requirements applicable to
Subcontractor's performance under the Agreement.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



b. These authorities include, but are not limited to, Title 2, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 200, subpart F, Appendix ll; Title 42 CFR Part 431; subpart F; Title 42 CFR Part 433,
subpart D; Title 42 CFR 434; Title 45 CFR Part 75, subpart D; and title 45 CFR Part 95,
subpart F. To the extent applicable under federal law, this Agreement shall incorporate the
contractual provisions in these federal regulations and they shall supersede any conflicting
provisions in this Agreement.

32. Lobbying Restrictions and Disclosure Certification
(Applicable to federally funded agreements in excess of $100,000 per Section 1352 of the 31,
u.s.c.)
a. Certification and Disclosure Requirements

1. Each person (or recipient) who requests or receives a contract or agreement,
subcontract, grant or subgrant, which is subject to Section 1352 of the 31,
U.S.C., are which exceeds $100,000 at any tier, shall file a certification (in the
form set forth in Attachment 1, consisting of one page, entitled "Certification
Regarding Lobbying") that the recipient has not made, and will not make, any
payment prohibited by Paragraph b of this provision.

2. Each recipient shall file a disclosure (in the form set forth in Attachment2, entitled
"standard Form-LLL 'disclosure of Lobbying Activities") if such recipient has
made or has agreed to make any payment using nonappropriated funds (to
include profits from any covered federal action) in connection with an agreement,
or grant or any extension or amendment of that agreement, or grant, which would
be prohibited under Paragraph b of this provision if paid for with appropriated
funds.

3. Each recipient shall file a disclosure form at the end of each calendar quarter in
which there occurs any event that requires disclosure or that materially affect the
accuracy of the information contained in any disclosure from previously filed by
such person under Paragraph a(2) herein. An event that materially affects the
accuracy of the information reported includes:

a. A cumulative increase of $25,000 or more in the amount paid or
expected to be paid for influencing or attempting to influence a covered
federal action;

b. A change in the person(s) or individual(s) influencing or attempting to
influence a covered federal action; or

c. A change in the officer(s), employee(s), or membe(s) contacted for the
purpose of influencing or attempting to influence a covered federal
action.

4. Each person (or recipient) who requests or receives from a person referred to in
Paragraph a(1) of this provision a contract or agreement, subcontract, grant or
subgrant exceeding $100,000 at any tier under a contract or agreement, or grant
shall file a certification, and a disclosure form, if required, to the next tier above.

5. All disclosure forms (but not certifications) shall be forwarded from tier to tier until
received by the person referred to in Paragraph a(1) of this provision. That
person shall forward all disclosure forms to AHP Contract Office or Project
Manager.

b. Prohibition
Section 1352 of Title 31 U.S.C., provides in part that no appropriated funds may be expended by
the recipient of a federal contract or agreement, grant, Ioan or cooperative agreement to pay any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in

connection with any of the following covered federal actions: the awarding of any federal contract
or agreement, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, entering into of

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal contract, or agreement, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.

33. Avoidance of Conflicts of lnterest by Subcontractor
1. AHP intends to avoid any real or apparent conflict of interest on the part of the

Subcontractors, or employees, officers and Directors of the subcontractors. This AHP
reserves the right to determine, at its sole discretion, whether any information, assertion or
claim received from any source indicates the existence of a real or apparent conflict of
interest, and, if a conflict is found to exist, to require the Subcontractor to submit additional
information or a plan for resolving the conflict, subject to AHP review and prior approval.

2. Conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to:
a. An instance where the subcontractor has an interest, financial or othenruise,

whereby the use or disclosure of information obtained while performing services
under the Agreement would allow for private or personal benefit or for any
purpose that is contrary to the goals and objectives of the Agreement.

b. An instance where the subcontractor's employees, officers, or Directors use their
positions for purposes that are, or give the appearance of being, motivated by a
desire for private gain for themselves or others, such as those with whom they
have family, business or other ties.

3. lf AHP b or becomes aware of a known or suspected conflict of interest, the
Subcontractor will be given an opportunity to submit additional information or to resolve
the conflict. A Subcontractor with a suspected conflict of hterest will have five (5) working
days from the date of notification of the conflict by AHP to provide complete information
regarding the suspected conflict. lf a conflict of interest b determined to exist by AHP and
cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of AHP, the conflictwill be grounds for terminating
the Agreement. AHP may, at its discretion upon receipt of a written request from the
Subcontractor, authorize an extension of the timeline indicated herein.

34. Subcontractor Conduct and Filing Requirements
A. \A/hen a Subcontractor performs work on DHCS premises, the Subcontractor shall follow

and adhere to all DHCS policies and procedures including, but not limited to, those
governing health and safeg, nondiscrimination, appropriate vehicle use, travel
reimbursement, security and confidentiality of information, incompatible activities,
acceptable employee conduct, information technology protocols and requirements,
workplace violence prevention, and conflict of interest filing instructions (if
applicable). Subcontractors may not access DHCS confidential, personal, or
sensitive information until they have been trained on the DHCS policies and
procedures for information privacy and security and sign a Confidentiality
Statement. The training may be accomplished through ton-line Privacy/Security
Training on the DHCS intranet.

B. Certain Subcontractors designated by the DHCS' Conflict of lnterest Code are required to
complete and file a Statement of Economic lnterests, Form 700. The
Subcontractor agrees that if the Director of DHCS or his/her designee determines
that a Statement of Economic lnterests, Form 700, is required based upon the
nature of the services that are to be performed, the Subcontractor shall be so
notified by DHCS and the Subcontractor shall obtain a Form 700 and filing
instructions from DHCS' Personnel Office or the Fair Practices Commission and
fully complete the Form 700. The Subcontractor shall file the completed Form 700
in a timely manner with the DHCS Personnel Office and submit a copy to the
DHCS Program Contract Manager. Failure to obtain, complete or file a Form 700
in a timely manner as instructed by DHCS, may result in immediate contract
termination or Subcontract substitution/replacement.

35. Prohibited Follow-on Subcontracts

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



A.

B.

No person, firm or subsidiary thereof who has been awarded a subcontract
agreement may submit a bid for, nor be awarded an agreement for, the provision

of services, procurement of goods or supplies, or any other related action which is
required, suggested, or otherwise deemed appropriate in the end production of
this Subcontract agreement.

Paragraph A does not apply at any person, firm or subsidiary thereof who is

awarded a subcontract agreement which totals more than 10 percent of the total
monetary value of the consulting services agreement.

Paragraphs A and B do not apply to subcontract agreements subject to
Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 4525) of Division 5 of Title 1 of the
Government Code.

c

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



TNSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTMTIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at
the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to U.S.C.
section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity
forinfluencing orattempting to influence an officeroremployee of any agency, a Memberof Congress, an officeror
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Contress in connection with a covered Federal action.
Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance
published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

1 . ldentify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the
outcome of a covered Federal action.

2. ldentify the status of the covered Federal action.

3. ldentify the appropriate classification of this report. lf this is a followup report caused by a material change to the
information previously reported, enterthe year and quarter in which the change ocurred. Enterthe date and of the
last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action.

4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. lnclude Congressional District, if
known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be a prime or
subaward recipient. ldentify the tier of the subawardee, e.g. the first subawardee of the prime is the first tier.
Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.

5. lf the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "subawardee", then enterthe full name, address, city, State
and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. lnclude Congressional District, if known.

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. lnclude at least one organizational
level below agency name, in known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.

7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). lf known, enter the full
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan
commitments.

8 Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in ltem 1 (e.9.

Request for Proposal (RFP) number; lnvitation for Bid (lFB); grant announcement number; the contract, grant or loan

award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). lnclude prefixes, e.g. "RFP-

DE-90-001'.

9. Fora covered Federal acton where there has been an award orloan commitmentbythe Federal agency, enterthe
Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.

10. (a) Enterthe full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant underthe Lobbying Disclosure
Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10(a).

Enter Last Name, First Name, and Middle lnitial (Ml).

'11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title and telephone number.

ng to the Paperwork Reduction Act, AS amended, no perso ns a re req uired to respond to col lectio n of
nformation u lenss it displys va id OM B Control N u mber The valid OMB control number for th IS information
collection is OMN No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 10

minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and
maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding
the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this
burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Pro.lect (0348-0046), Washington, DC
20503.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTMCT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



Travel Reimbu rsement I nformation

(Lodging and Per Diem Reimbursement - Effective for travel on/after January 1,2021)

1. The following rate policy is to be applied for reimbursing the travel expenses of persons under contract.
The terms "contract" and/or "subcontract" have the same meaning as "grantee" and/or "subgrantee"
where applicable.

a. Reimbursement for travel and/or per diem shall be at the rates established for non-
represented/excl used state employees. Exceptions to California Department of Human
Resources (CalHR) lodging rates may be approved by the Department of Health Care
Services (DHCS) upon the receipt of a statement on/with an invoice indicating that State
employee travel rates are not available.

b. Short Term Travel is defined as a 24-hour period, and less than 31 consecutive days, and
is at least 50 miles from the main office, headquarters, or primary residence. Starting time
is whenever a contract or subcontract employee leaves his or her home or headquarters.
"Headquarters" is defined as the place where the contracted personnel spend the largest
portion of their working time and returns to upon the completion of assignments.
Headquarters may be individually established for each traveler and approved verbally or
in writing by the program funding the agreement. Verbal approval shall be followed up in
writing or email.

c. Contractors on travel status for more than one 24-hour period and less than 31

consecutive days may claim a fractional part of a period of more lhan 24 hours. Consult
the chart appearing on Page 2 of this document to determine the reimbursement
allowance. All lodging reimbursement claims must be supported by a receipt.. lf a
contractor does not or cannot present receipts, lodging expenses will not be reimbursed.

0 Lodging(withreceipts.)

Travel Location/Area Reimbursement
Rate

AH counties (except the counties iientified bebw) $ 90.00 plustax

Counties of Sacramento, Napa, Riverside $ 95.00 plustax

Marin $1 10.00plustax

Counties of LosAngeles (except City of Santa
Monba), Orange, Ventura, and Edwards AFB

$120.00 plustax

Counties of Monterey and San Diego $125.00 plustax

CountiesofAlameda, San Mateo, and Santa Clara $140.00plustax

Cityof Santa Monica $150.00plustax

San Francisco $250.00 plustax

Reimbursementforactualbdgingexpensesthatexceedtheaboveamountsmaybe allowedwiththe
advance approvalofthe Deputy Directorof DHCSorhisorherdesignee. Receipts are required.

*Receipts from lnternet lodging reservation services such as Priceline.com which require prepayment
for that service, ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE LODGING RECEIPTS and are not reimbursable without a
valid lodging receipt from a lodging establishment

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



2.) Meal/Supplemental Expenses: Wth substantiating receipts, a contractor may claim
actual expenses. lncurred up to the following maximum reimbursement rates for each
full 24-hour period of travel.

Meals/Expense ReimbursementRate
Breakfast $7.00
Lunch $11.00
Dinner $23.00
lncidentalexpenses $5.00

d. Out-of-state travel may only be reimbursed if such travel is necessitated by the scope or
statement of work and has been approved in advance by the program with which the
contract is held. For out-of-state travel, contractors may be reimbursed actual lodging
expenses, supported by a receipt, and may be reimbursed for meals and supplemental
expenses for each 24-hour period computed at the rates listed in c. (2) above. For all out-
of-state travel, contractors/subcontractors must have prior DHCS written or verbal
approval. Verbalapproval shall be confined in writing (email or memo).

e. ln computing allowances for continuous periods of travel of less than 24 hours, consult
the Per Deim Reimbursement Guide.

f. No meal or lodging expenses will be reimbursed for any period of travel that occurs within

normal working hours unless expenses are incurred at least 50 miles from headquarters.

2. lf any of the reimbursement rates stated herein is changed by CalHR, no formal contract amendment
will be required to incorporate the new rates. However, DHCS shall inform the subcontractor, in
writing, of the revised travel reimbursement rates and the applicable effective date of any rate
change. At DHCS' discretion, changes or revisions made by DHCS to this exhibit, excluding travel
reimbursement policies established by CaIHR may be applied retroactively to any agreement to which
a Travel Reimbursement lnformation exhibit is attached, incorporated by reference, or applied by
DHCS program policy. Changes to the travel reimbursement rates stated herein may not be applied
earlier than the date a rate change is approved by CalHR.

3. For transportation expenses. The subcontractor must retain receipts for parking; taxi, airline, bus, or
rail tickets; car rental, or any other travel receipt pertaining to each trip for attachment to an invoice as
substantiation for reimbursement. Reimbursement may be requested for commercial carrier fares;
private car mileage; parking fees; bridge tolls; taxi, bus, or streetcar fares; and auto rental fees when
substantiated by a receipt.

4. Auto mileage reimbursement: lf a subcontractor uses his/her or a company car for transportation, the
rate of reimbursement will be 0.56 cents maximum per mile. lf a subcontractor uses his/her or a
company car "in lieu or airfare, the air coach fare will be the maximum paid by the State. The
subcontractor must provide a cost comparison upon request by the State. Gasoline and routine
automobile repair expenses are not reimbursable.

5. The subcontractor is required to furnish details surrounding each period of travel. Travel expense
reimbursement detail may include, but not be limited to purpose of travel, departure and return times,
destination points, miles driven, mode of transportation, etc. Reimbursement for travel expenses may
be withheld pending receipt of adequate travel documentation.

6. Subcontractors are to consult with program funding the contract to obtain specific invoicing
procedures.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



Per Diem Reimburcement Guide

length of
travel
period:

And this condition exists:
Mealallowed
with receipt:

Less than
24

hours

a Trip begins at or before 6:00 a.m. and ends at or after
9:00 a.m.

a Trip ends at least one hour after the regularly scheduled
workday ends or begins at or before 4:00 p.m. and ends
after 7:00 p.m.

t-unch or lncidentals cannot be claimed on one-day tips.

Breakfast

Dinner

24 hours or
more

a Trip begins at or before 6:00 a.m

Trip begins at or before 11:00 a.m.a

Breakfast

Lunch

. Trip begins at or before 5:00 p.m. Dinner

More than
24 hours

. Trip ends at or after 8:00 a.m

. Trip ends at or after 2:00 p.m

Breakfast

Lunch

Trip ends at or after 7:00 p.m Dinner

The following meals may not be claimed for reimbursement: meals provided by the State, meals included
in hotel expenses or conference fees, meals included in transportation costs such as airline tickets, or
meals that are otherwise provided. Snacks and/or continental breakfasts such as rolls, juice, and coffee
are not considered to be a meal.

No meal expense may be claimed for reimbursement more than once in any given 24-hour period

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



Business Associate Addend um

1 This Agreement has been determined to constitute a business associate relationship under the Health
lnsurance Portabilty and Accountabilty Act (HIPAA) and trts implementing privacy and security
regulations at 45 Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 160 and 164 (collectively, and as used h this
Agreement)

2 The term "Agreement" as used in this document refers to and includes both this Business
Associate Addendum and the contract to which this Business Associate Agreement is attached as an
exhibit, if any.

3 For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Business Associate" shall have the same meaning as set forth
in 45 CFR section 160.103.

4 AHP intends that Business Associate may create, receive, maintain, transmit or aggregate certain
information pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, some of which information may constitute
Protected Health lnformation (PHl) and/or confidential information protected by Federal and/or state
bws..

4.1 As used in this Agreement and unless otherwise stated, the term "PHl" refers to and
includes both "PHl" as defined at 45 CFR section 160.103 and Personal lnformation
(Pl) as defined in the lnformation Practices Act (lPA) at California Civil Code section
1798.3(a). PHI includes information in any form, including paper, oral, and electronic.

4.2 As used in this Agreement, the term "confidential information" refers to information not
otherwise defined as PHI in Section 4.1 ol this Agreement, but to which state and/or
federal privacy and/or security protectionsapply.

5. Subcontractor (however named elsewhere inthis Agreement) is the Business Associate of AHP
acting on AHP's behalf and provides services or arranges, performs or assists in the performance of
functions or activities on behalf of AHP, and may create, receive, maintain, transmit, aggregate, use
or disclose PHI (collectively, "use or disclose PHl") in order to fulfill Business Associate's obligations
under this Agreement. AHP and Business Associate are each a party to this Agreement and are
collectively referred to as the "parties."

6.Theterms used inthisAgreement, but nototherwise defined, shall havethe same meanings asthose
terms in HIPAA and/or the lPA. Any reference to statutory or regulatory language shall be to such
language as in effect or as amended.

7. Permitted Uses and Dbclosures of PHI by Business Associate. Except as otherwise indicated
in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or disclose PHl, inclusive of de-identified data derived
from such PHl, only to perform functions, activities or services specified in this Agreement on behalf
of AHP, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate HIPAA or other applicable laws if done
by AFIP.

7.1 Specific Use and Dbclosure Provbions. Except as othenryise indicated h this
, Agreement, Business Associate may use and disclose PHI if necessary for the proper

management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal
responsibilities of the Business Associate. Business Associate may disclose PHI for
this purpose if the disclosure is required by law, or the Business Associate obtains
reasonable assurances from the person to whom the hformation is disclosed that t will
be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the
purposes for which t was disclosed to the person. The person shall notify the Business
Associate of any hstances of which the person is aware that the confidentiality of the
information has been breached, unless such person is a treatment provider not acting as a
business associate of Business Associate.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



8. Gompliance with other Applicable Law

8.1 To the extent that other state and/or federal hws provide additional, stricter and/or
more protective (collectively, more protective) privacy and/or security protections to PHI or
other confidential information covered under this Agreement beyond those provided

through HIPAA, BusinessAssociate agrees:

8.1.1 To comply with the more protective of the privacy and security standards set forth in

applicable state or federal bws to the extent such standards provide a greater degree of
protection and security than HIPAA or are otherwise more favorable to the individuals
whose information is concerned: and

8.1.2 To treat any violation of such additional and/or more protective standards as a
breach or security hcident, as appropriate, pursuant to Section 18. of thisAgreement.

8.2 Examples of bws that provide additional and/or stricter privacy protections to certain
types of PHI and/or confidential information, as defined in Section 4. of this Agreement,
include, but are not limited to the lnformation Practices Act. California Civil Code
sections 1798-1798.78, Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records, 42
CFR Part 2, Welfare and lnstitutions Code section 5328, and California Health and
Safety Code section 11845.5.

8.3 lf Business Associate is a Qualified Service Organization (OSO) as defined in 42 CFR
section 2.11, BusinessAssociate agrees to be bound by and complywith subdivisions
(2)(i) and (2)(ii) under the definition of QSO in 42 CFR section 2.11.

9.Additional Responsibilities of Business Associate

9.1 Nondisclosure. BusinessAssociate shall not use or disclose PHI or other confidential
information other than as permitted or required by this Agreement or as required by
law.

9.2 Safeguards andSecurity.

9.2.l Business Associate shall use safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect
the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of PHI and other confidential data and
comply, where applicable, with subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to
electronic protected health information, to prevent use or disclosure of the
information other than as provided for by this Agreement. Such safeguards shall be
based on applicable Federal lnformation Processing Standards (FIPS) Publication
199 protection levels.

9.2.2 Business Associate shall, at a minimum, utilize a National lnslitute of Shndards and

Technology Speoal Publication (NIST SP) 80G53 cornpliantsecurity framework when selecting
and implementing its security controls, and shall maintain continuous compliance with
its selected framework as it may be updated from time to time. The current version of
NIST SP 800-53, Revision 5, is available online at; updates will be available online
through the Comouter Securitv Resource Center website.

9.2.3 Business Associate shall employ FIPS 140-2 compliant encryption of PHI at rest
and in motion unless Business Associate determines it is not reasonable and
appropriate to do so based upon a risk assessment, and equivalent alternative
measures are in place and documented as such. FIPS 140-2 validation can be
determined online through the Cryptographic Module Validation Program Search,
with information about the Cryptographic Module Validation Program under FIPS
740-2. ln addition, Business Associate shall maintain, at a minimum, the most

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



current industry standards for transmission and storage of PHI and other
confi dential information.

9.2.4 Business Associate shall apply security patches and upgrades, and keep virus
software upto- date, on all systems on which PHI and other confidential
information may be used.

9.2.5 Business Associate shall ensure that all members of its workforce with access to
PHI and/or other confidential information sign a confidentiality statement prior to
access to such data. The statement must be renewed annually.

9.2.6 Business Associate shall identify the security official who is responsible for the
development and implementation of the policies and procedures required by 45
CFR Part 164, Subpart C.

9.3 Business Associate's Agent. Business Associate shall ensure that any agents,
subcontractors, subawardees, vendors or others (collectively, "agents") that use
or disclose PHI and/or confidential information on behalf of Business Associate
agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Business Associate with
respect to such PHland/or confidential information.

1(I Mtigation of Harmful Effects. Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any
harmful effect that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI and other
confidential information in violation of the requirements of this Agreement.

11. Access to PHl. BusinessAssociate shall make PHI available in accordance with 45 CFR section
164.524.

12 Amendment of PHl. Business Associate shall make PHI available for amendment and
incorporate any amendments to protected health information in accordance with 45 CFR section
164.526.

13 Accounting for Disclosures. Business Associate shall make available the information required
to provide an accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 CFR section 164.528.

A Compliance with DHGS Obligations. To the extent Business Associate is to carry out an
obligation of AHP under 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart E, comply with the requirements of the subpart
that apply to AHP in the performance of such obligation.

15 Access to Practices, Books and Records. Business Associate shall make its internal
practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI on behalf of AHP available to
AHP upon reasonable request, and to the federal Secretary of Health and Human Services for
purposes of determining DHCS'compliance with 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart E.

1e Return or Destroy PHlon Termination; Survival.At termination of this Agreement, if feasible,
Business Associate shall return or destroy all PHI and other confidential information received from,
or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of, AHP that Business Associate still
maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information. lf return or destruction is not
feasible, Business Associate shall notify AHP of the conditions that make the return or destruction
infeasible, and DHCS and Business Associate shall determine the terms and conditions under
which BusinessAssociate may retainthe PHl. lf such return ordestruction is notfeasible, Business
Associate shall extend the protections of this Agreement to the information and limit further uses
and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible.

17. Special Provbion for SSA Data. lf Business Associate receives data from or on behalf of AHP
that was verified by or provided by the Social Security Administration (SSA data) and is subject to
an agreement between AHP, Business Associate shall provide, upon request by DHCS, a list of all

employees and agents and employees who have access to such data, including employees and

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



agents of its agents, to AHP.

18 Breaches and Security lncidents. Business Associate shall implement reasonable systems
for the discovery and prompt reporting of any breach or security incident, and take the
following steps:

141 Noticeto OHCS.

1811 Business Associate shall notify AHP lmmediately upon the discovery of a suspected
breach or security incident that involves SSA data. This notification will be provided
by emailupon discovery of the breach. lf BusinessAssociate isunable to provide
notification by email, then Business Associate shall provide notice by telephone to
AHP.

18.1.2 Business Associate shall notify AHP within 24 hours by email (or bytelephone if
Business Associate is unable to email AHP) of the discovery of the following, unless
attributable to a treatment provider that is not acting as a business associate of
Business Associate:

18.1.2.1 Unsecured PHI if the PHI b reasonably believed to have been
accessed or acquired by an unauthorized person;

18.1.2.2 Any suspected security incidentwhich risks unauthorked access to
PHI and/or other confidential information;

18.1.2.3 Any intrusion or unauthorized access, use or disclosure of PHI
in violation of this Agreement; or

18.1.2.4 Potential loss of confidential lnformation affecting this Agreement.

18.1.3 lbtice shall be provided to the DHCS Program Contract Manager (as applicable), the
DHCS Privacy Office, and the DHCS lnformation Security Office (collectively, .DHCS

Contacts") using the DHCS Contact lnfonnation at Section 18.6. below.

Noticeshall be made using the current DHCS "Privacy lncident Reporting Form" ("PlR
Form"; the lnitial notice of a security lncident or breach that is submitted ls referred to as
an "lnitial PIR Form") and shall lnclude all information known at the time the lncident is
reported. The form is available online at

http://www.dhcs.ca.qov/formsandpu bs/laws/priv/Paqes/default.aspx

Upon discovery of a breach or suspected security incident, intrusion or unauthorized
access, use or disclosure of PHl, Business Associate shalltake:

18.1.3.1 Prompt action to mitigate any risks or damages involved with the
security incident or breach; and

18.'1.3.2 Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure required by
applicable Federal and State law.

18.2 lnvestigation. BusinessAssociate shall immediately investigate such security
incident or confidential breach.

18.3 Complete Report. To provide a complete report of the investigation to the DHCS
contacts withinten (10) working days of the discovery of the security incident or
breach. This "Final PlR" must include any applicable additional information not included
in the lnitial Form. The Final PIR Form shall include an assessment of all known factors
relevant to a determination of whether a breach occurred under HIPAA and other

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



applicable federal and state laws. The report shall also include a full, detailed corrective
action plan, including its implementation date and information on mitigation measures
taken to halt and/or contain the improper use or disclosure. lf DHCS requests information
in addition to that requested through the PIR form, Business Associate shall make
reasonable efforts to provide DHCS with such information . A "Supplemental PlR" may
be used to submit revised or additional information after the Final PIR is submitted.
DHCS will review and approve or disapprove Business Associate's determination of
whether a breach occurred, whether the security incident or breach is reportable to the
appropriate entities, if individual notifications are required, and Business Associate's
corrective action plan.

18.3.1 lf Business Associate does not complete a Final PIR within the ten (10)
working day timeframe, Business Associate shall request approval from DHCS
within the ten (10) working day timeframe of a new submission timeframe for the
FinalPlR.

18.4 Notification of lndividuals. lf the cause of a breach is attributable to Business Associate
or its agents, other than when attributable to a treatment provider that is not acting as a
business associate of Business Associate, Business Associate shall notify individuals
accordingly and shall pay all costs of such notifications, as well as all costs associated
with the breach. The notifications shall comply with applicable federal and state law.
DHCS shall approve the time, manner and content of any such notificationsandtheir
reviewandapproval must be obtained before the notifications are made.

18.5 Responsibility for Reporting of Breaches to Entitles Other than DHCS. lf the cause of
a breach of PHI b attributable to Business Associate or its agents, other than
when attributable to a treatment provider that b not acting as a business associate
of Business Associate, Business Associate is responsible for all required reporting of the
breachas requiredbyapplicable federal and statelaw.

18.6 DHCS Contact lnformation.To direct communications to the above referenced DHCS
staff, the Contractor shall initiate contact as indicated here.DHCS reserves the right to
make changes to the contact infonnation below by giving written notice to Business
Associate. These changes shall not require an amendment to this Agreement.

19 Responsibility of DFGS. AHP agrees to not request the Business Associate to use or disclose
PHlin any manner that would not be permissible under HIPAA and/orotherapplbablefederal
and/orstate law.

7I Audits, lnspection and Enforcement

20.1 Fromtimetotime, AHP orDHCSmay inspect the facilities, systems, books and records of
Business Associate to monitor compliance with this Agreement. Business Associate shall
promptly remedy any violation of this Agreement and shall certify the same to the DHCS

DHCS Hoqran ConH fManaer DHCSRi'/6/Ofre DHCS lnbrnalim Securitv Office

Seete Smpe d\,bkofititbr
Progran Conhact Nlareger
lnftrrndicn. lf hb Brsirss
Assaiabbrd#redaan
e$bittraomfat,conHhe
DHGS srgndoy b ttb Agreernent

PtiveyOffice
doOffcedH|PAACorpliare
Depstnent d Flealth Cae Servbes
P.O.8oxS7413,M5472.
Saanenb, CA958997413
Email: ircilents(Odhcs.caqo/

Pfpne:91G4454&16

lnbrndicnSedrityOffice
DHCS lnfcnndim Seority Off@
P.O. Bo(S7413, MS64m
SaanenO,CA 958@2113

Ernait ilrcilenb(@dhcs.caqo/

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



Privacy Officer inwriting. Whether or how DHCS exercises this provision shall not in any
respect relieve Business Associate of its responsibility to comply with this Agreement.

20.2 lf Business Associate is the subject of an audit, compliance review, investigation or any
proceeding that is related to the performance of its obligations pursuant to this Agreement,
or is the subject of any judicial or administrative proceeding alleging a violation of HIPAA,
Business Associate shall promptly notify AHP unless it is legally prohibited from doing so.

2l.Termination

21.1 Termination forCause. Upon AHP's knowledge of a violation of this Agreement by
Business Associate, AHP may in its discretion:

21.1.1 Provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the violation and terminate
this Agreement if Business Associate does not do so within the time specified by DHCS;
or

21.1.2 TerminatethisAgreementif Business Associate has violatedamaterial termof this
Agreement.

21.2 Judicial or Administrative Proceedings. AHP may terminate this Agreement if
Business Associate is found to have violated HIPAA, or stipulates or consents to any
such conclusion, in any judicial or administrative proceeding.

22. Miscellaneous Provisions

22.1 Disclaimer. AHP makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Business
Associate with this Agreement will satisfy Business Associate's business needs or
compliance obligations. Business Associate is solely responsible for all decisions
made by Business Associate regarding the safeguarding of PHI and other confidential
information.

22.2. Amendment.

22.2.1

22.2.2

22.3

Any provision of this Agreement which is in conflict with current or future applicable
Federal or State laws is hereby amended to conform to the provisions of those laws.
Such amendment of this Agreement shall be effective on the effective date of the laws
necessitating it, and shall be binding on the parties even though such amendment may
not have been reduced to writing and formally agreed upon and executed by the
parties.

Failure by Business Associate to take necessary actions required by amendments
to this Agreement under Section 22.21 shall constitute a material violation of this
Agreement.

Assistance ln Litigation or Administrative Proceedings. Business Associate
shall make itself and its employees and agents available to AHP at no cost to AHP to
testify as witnesses, or otherwise, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings
being commenced against AHP, DHCS, its directors, officers and/or employees based
upon claimed violation of HIPAA, which involve inactions or actions by the Business
Associate.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall
confer, upon any third person any rights orremedieswhatsoever.

lnterpretation. The terms and conditions in this Agreement shall be interpreted as
broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA and other applicable laws.

22.4

22.5

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



22.9 No Waiver of Obligations. No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or
obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of
performance of any continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any
obligation, on any other occasion.

ATTACHMENT B SPECIAL SUBCONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



3. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs;and,

4. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c) Everyemployee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1. Receive acopy of the company'sdrug-free policystatement;and,

2 agreeto abide bytheterms ofthe company's statementasa condition of

employment on the Agreement.

Failuretocomplywiththeserequirementsmayresultinsuspensionofpayments undertheAgreementor
termination of the Agreement or both and Subcontractor may be ineligiblefor award of any future State
agreements ifthedepartment determinesthatanyofthefollowing hasoccurred: (1)the Subcontractor
hasmade falsecertification, orviolated thecertification byfailingtocarryoutthe requirementsasnoted
above. (GC8350etseq.)

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD C ERTI FI CATI ON:

Subcontractor certifies that no morethan one (1) final unappealablefinding of contemptof court by a
Federal court has been bsued against Subcontractor within the immediately preceding two-year
period because of Subcontractors failure to comply with an order of a Federal court which orders
Subcontractor to complywith an order of the National Labor Rehtions Board. (PCC 10296) (Not
appbable to publb entities.)

SUBCONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $5O,OOO OR MORE-PRO BONO REQUIREMENT

Subcontractor hereby certifies that subcontractor will comply with the requirements of Section
6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1,2003.

Subcontractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro
bono legal services during each year of the Agreement equal to the lessor of 30 multiplied by the
number of full-time attorneys in the firm's offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on
an actual day basis for any Agreement period of less than a full year or 10o/o of its Agreement
with the State.

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for legal
services and may be taken into account when determining the award of future contracts with the
State for legal services.

EX PATR IATE C ORPORATI O NS:

Subcontractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate
corporation within the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1 , and is eligible
to contract with the State of California.

SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:

a. All Subcontractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other
than procurement related to a public works Agreement, declare under penalty of perjury that
no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies
furnished to the state pursuant to the Agreement have been laundered or produced in whole
or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with
the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal

ATTACHMENT C SU BCO NTRACTO R CERT I F ICAT IO N

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor. The
subcontractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of lndustrial Relations website
located at www.dir.ca.gov and Public Contract Code Section 6108.

b. The subcontractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the
subcontractor's records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required
by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of lndustrial Relations, or
the Department of Justice to determine the subcontractor's compliance with the requirements
under paragraph (a).

DOMESTIC PARTNERS
For agreements of $100,000 or more, Subcontractor certifies that Subcontractor is in compliance with
Public Contract Code section 10295.3.

GENDER IDENTITY
For agreements of $100,000 or more, Subcontractor certifies that Subcontractor is in compliance with
Public Contract Code section 10295.35.

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

Subcontractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current orformer state employees. lf
Subcontractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the

Agreement, the awarding agency must be contacted immediately for darification.

a. Current State Employees (PCC 1041 0):

1. No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which
the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which b
sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is
required as acondition of regularstate employment.

2. No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor
withany state agency to provide goods or services.

b. Former State Employees (PCC 10411):

Forthetwo-year periodfrom thedate heorshe left state employment, no former state
officer or employee may enter into an Agreement in which he or she engaged in any of
the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-
making process relevant to the Agreement while employed in any capacitybyanystate
agency.

For thetwelve-month periodfromthe date heorshe left state employment, no former state
ofiicer or employee may enter into an Agreement with any state agency if he or she
was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general
subject area as the proposed Agreement within the 12-month period prior to his or her
leaving state service.

lf Subcontractor violates any povisions of above paragraphs, srrch action by Subcontractorshallrenderthis

Agreement void. (PCC 1 0420)

2

ATTACHMENT C SUECO/VIRA CTO R C ERT I F I C AT I O N

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



Members of boards and commissions are exemptfrom this section ifthey do not receive payment otherthan
paymentofeachmeetingoftheboardorcommission, paymentforpreparatorytimeandpaymentforperdiem.

(PCC 10430(e))

LABOR CODEA/VORKERS COMPENSATION:
Subcontractor needsto beawareofthe provisionswhich requireevery employerto be insuredagainstliabilityfor
Worke/s Compensation orto undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and Subcontractor
affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performanceofthework of thbAgreement.
(Labor Code Section 3700)

AMERICAN WITH DISABLITIES ACT:

SubcontractorassurestheStatethatit complies withtheAmericanswith Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines

issued pursuant to the ADA. (42U.SC. 12101 etseq.)

SUBCONTRACTORS NAME CHANGE:
An amendment is required to change the Subcontracto/s name as listed onthis Agreement. Upon
legal documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment. Payment of
presented with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.

receipt of
invoices

CORPORATE QUALIFICATION TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:

a) \Mren agreementsaretobeperformed in the state by corporations, the contracting agencies
will be verifying that the subcontractor is currently qualified to do business in California in
order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.

b) "Doing hrsiress" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any transaction

for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit. Although there are some statutory

exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate subcontractor performing within the state not

be subject to the franchise tax.

c) Bothdomesticandforeigncorporations (those incorporated outside of California) must be in
good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California. Agencies will determine

whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State.

RESOLUTION:

A county, city,district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy of a resolution, order,
motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement,
authorizing execution of the agreement.

AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION:

Under the State laws. the Subcontractor shall not be:(1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject
to review promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to
cease and desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for
violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in
violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution.

PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204:
This form must be completed by all subcontractors that are not another state agency or other
government entity.

ATTACHMENT C SUECON IRA CT O R C E RT I F I CAT I O N

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



I.CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS: For Agreement executed or renewed after January '1,2017,
the subcontractor certifies compliance wih the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section 51 of the Civil Code)
and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code); and

2.EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATION POLICIES For Agreements executed or renewed after January 1,

2017,lf a con Subcontractor has an internal policy against a sovereign nation or peoples recognized
by the United States government, the Subcontractor certifies that such policies are not used in
violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act Act (Section 51 of the Civil Gode) and the Fair Employment
and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code).

ATTACHMENT C SUBCONIRA CT O R C E RT I F I CAT I O N

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



ATTACHMENT D
STATEMENT OF WORK

Grisis Care Mobile Units ram Planning Grant
ofl

Item
Billing
Code

Time
Period

Desc ription/Deliverable Amount Due
Date

1 7460.01-
001

$39,000.00

$13,400.00

3t31122Quarter 2

1t\t22 -
3t31t22

Community Assessment
. The Grantee will contract with one consultant to work on

the following:
o A community mobile crisis needs assessment that

shall describe the existence and availability of
crisis services available to youth and adults in the
Grantee's county ("Community Needs
Assessment").

o An action plan, a written proposal that shall
address the need of crisis and non-crisis mobile
programs in the Grantee's county ("Action Plan").
The Action Plan must be submitted to AHP for
approval by February 1.2023 and approved by
DHCS no later than close of business February
14,2023.

. The Grantee will begin conducting Community Needs
Assessment activities that will include: collecting existing
data and information; collecting existing literature;
evaluating current services capacity and community
resources; and conducting surveys and key informant
interviews with County staff.

Coordination
. The Grantee will invite local and regional organizations to

join the community planning partners group ("Partners
Group") that will assist the Grantee in developing, revising
and approving the Community Needs Assessment and
Action Plan.

. The Grantee shall convene one (1) virtual Partners Group
meeting and will present the overall project management
plan including the Community Needs Assessment and
Action Plan.

Quarterly report
. The Grantee will submit a quarterly report by 3131122.

Equipment
. Survey Monkey software = $5,400
. Tableau software = $8,000

2 7460.01-
001

Quarter 3

4t1t2022
-6t30t22

Goordination
. The Grantee will convene one (1) Partners Group

meeting. Agenda items will include: project planning,
Community Needs Assessment, and Action Plan.

Community Assessment
. The Grantee will finalize the Communitv Needs

$37,000.00 6t30t22

ATTACHMENT D STATEMENT OF WORK

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



Assessment. Activities will include: analyzing data,
information and literature collected; finalizing results on
available resources for crisis care and gaps in services;
and finalizing surveys and key informant interviews with
County staff.

Quarterly report
. The Grantee will submit a quarterly report by 6130122.

9t30t223. 7460.01-
001

Quarter 4

7t1t22 -
9t30t22

Coordination
. The Grantee will conduct one (1) virtual Partners Group

meeting. Agenda items will include: project updates,
Community Needs Assessment, and Action Plan.

Community Assessment
. The Grantee will prepare a report of initial findings of the

surveys, interviews, Community Needs Assessment, and
data collection efforts, which will be used in drafting the
Action Plan.

Action Plan
r The Grantee will begin drafiing the Action Plan

Quarterly report
. The Grantee will submit a quarterly report by 9130122

Equipment
. 6 months of data for tablets ($SO/month) = $3,000
. Hotspots for tablets ($S/month x 6 months) = $300

$36,500.00

$3,300.00

$36,000.00

$13,400.00

12t31t224 7460.01-
001

Quarter 5

10t1t22 -
12t31t22

Goordination
. The Grantee will convene one (1) virtual Partners Group

meeting. Agenda items will include: project update,
Community Needs Assessment, and Action Plan. The
Grantee will present the draft Action Plan for review and
feedback by Partners Group, which will be incorporated
into the next phase of drafting the Action Plan.

. The Grantee will host a meeting with County staff to
present the draft Action Plan for review and feedback,
which will be incorporated into the next phase of drafting
the Action Plan.

Action Plan
. The Grantee will revise the Action Plan using feedback

from the Partners Group and County staff.

Quarterly report
. The Grantee will submit a quarterly report by 12131122

Equipment
. Survey Monkey software = $5,400
. Tableau software = $8,000

ATTACHMENT D STATEMENT OF WORK

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



5. 7460.01-
001

$21,400.00 2t14t23Quarter 6
(partial)
111t23 -
2t14t23

Goordination
. The Grantee will convene one (1) virtual Partners Group

meeting. Agenda items will include: project updates; and
Action Plan.

. The Grantee will share the finalized Action Plan with the
Partners Group.

Action Plan
. The Grantee will finalize the Action Plan and submit to

lnyo County HHS Leadership by 1110123, and to AHP by
211123 for review. The Grantee will submit the finalAction
Plan to DHCS by 211412023.

Quarterly report
. The Grantee will submit a quarterlv report by 211412023.

CONTRACT TOTAL $200,000.00

ATTACHMENT D STATEMENT OF WORK

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



ATTACHMENT E
PAYMENT SGHEDULE

Gounty of lnyo

Description lnvoice DescriPtion Amount
Estimated

Equipment Upon Completion of purchase with receipt for
goods/equipment

$13,400.00
$3,300.00
$13,400.00

Iotal Equipment 130,100.00

Quarter #/Date Range Invoice Description Amount of
lnvoice

Quarter 2: 1101122 - 3131122 Progress Report detailing progress made
towards Deliverable 1

$39,000.00

Quarter 3: O4lO1l22 - 6130122 Progress Report detailing progress made
towards Deliverable 2

$37,000.00

luarter 4'. 07 101 122 - 9130122 Progress Report detailing progress made
towards Deliverable 3

$36,500.00

Quarter 5: 10101122 - 12131122 Progress Report detailing progress made
towards Deliverable 4

$36,000.00

Quarter 6'. 111123 - 2114123 Progress Report detailing progress made
towards Deliverable 5

021,400.00

Iotal Deliverables and Other Directs E169,900.00

Iotal Deliverables, Other Direct and u E200,000.00

ATTACHMENT E PAYMENT SCHEDULE

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



FIIPAA PRIVACY
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

FOR BUSINESS ASSOCIATES

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 15th day of September ,20 21 . by and among

ADVOCATES FOR HUMAN POTENTIAL, lNC., a Corporation organized under the
laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, with corporate offices located at 490-8
Boston Post Road, Sudbury, MA 01776 (hereinafter known as "AHP"), and

COUNTY OF INYO
lnsert lndividual/Business Name

anla

! lndivioual residing at
Print Residence Address

! Non-Profit , having its place of business
lnsert Business entit

at: 1360 North Main Street. Suite 124.8 on CA 93514

(hereinafter known as "BUSINESS ASSOCIATE"). AHP and Business Associate
shall collectively be known herein as "the Parties."

WHEREAS, AHP has entered into a consulting agreement with

(lalifnrnia Donartrnant nf F{aalth Carp S nac /"(1A nHnq'r\
lnsert Provider/AHP Client Name

"Covered Entity," whose business in the health care industry would constitute being
defined as a Covered Entity;

WHEREAS, AHP wishes to continue an existing business relationship with
Business Associate that has been memorialized in a separate subcontracUconsulting
agreement, which is still in effect;

WHEREAS, the nature of the existing contractual relationship between AHP,
Covered Entity and Business Associate may involve the exchange of Protected Health
lnformation ("PHl") as that term is defined under the Health lnsurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 ("HlPA4"; as amended by Health lnformation Technology for
Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 ("HITECH Act"), including all pertinent
regulations issued by the Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS");

The premises having been considered and with acknowledgment of the mutual
promises and of other good and valuable consideration herein contained, the Parties,
intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

A. Definitions

1. Breach. "Breach" has the same meaning as this term has in 513400 of Health
lnformation Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 ("HITECH
Act").

Business Associate. "Business Associate" shall mean County of I

lnsert Business/lndividual Name

Covered Entitv. "Covered Entity" shall mean CA DHCS
lnsert Provider/AHP Client Name

Desiqnated Record Set. "Designated Record Set" has the same meaning as this

2

3

4
term has in 45 CFR 5164.501

Page 1 of 6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



HIPAA PRIVACY
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

FOR BUSINESS ASSOCIATES

5. lndividual. "lndividual" has the same meaning as this term has in 45 CFR
s164.501.

6. Privacv Rule. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of lndividually
ldentifiable Health lnformation at45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164, SubpartsAand
E, as amended by the HITECH Act.

7. Protected Health lnformation. "Protected Health lnformation" (or "PHl") has the
same meaning as this term has in 45 CFR 5160.103 (as amended by the
HITECH Act), limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

8. Required bv Law. "Required by Law" has the same meaning as this term has in
45 CFR 5164.501 .

9. Secretarv. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services or his designate.

10. Securitv Standards. "Security Standards" means the security standards for
protection of PHI promulgated by the Secretary in Title 45 C.F.R.

11. Unsecured Protected Health lnformation. "Unsecured Protected Health
lnformation" shall mean Protected Health lnformation (PHl) that is not secured
through the use of a technology or methodology specified by the Secretary in

regulations or as otherwise defined in the $13402(h) of the HITECH Act.

12. Any prospective amendment to the laws referenced in this definitional section
prospectively amend this Agreement to incorporate said changes by
Congressional act or by regulation of the Secretary of HHS.

B. Obligations and Activities of Business Associate,

1. Business Associate agrees to not use or disclose Protected Health lnformation
other than as permitted or required by the Agreement or as Required by Law.

2. Business Associate agrees to employ administrative, physical, and technical
safeguards meeting required Security Standards for business associates as
Required by Law to prevent disclosure or use of PHI other than as allow by this
Agreement.

3. Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful
effect that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI held by
Business Associate in violation of the requirements of this Agreement.

4. Business Associate agrees to report to AHP and Covered Entity any use or
disclosure of the Protected Health lnformation not provided for by this Agreement
of which it becomes aware.

5. lf a breach of unsecured protected health information occurs at or by Business
Associate, the Business Associate must notifl7 AHP and the Covered Entity
following the discovery of the breach without unreasonable delay and, in all
cases, no later than 60 days from the discovery of the breach. To the extent
possible, the Business Associate should provide AHP and the Covered Entity
with the identification of each individual affected by the breach as well as any
information required to be provided by AHP and the Covered Entity in its
notification to affected individuals. Business Associates shall comply with all
regulations issued by HHS and applicable state agencies regarding breach
notification to AHP and the Covered Entity.

Page 2 of 6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



HIPAA PRIVACY
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

FOR BUSINESS ASSOCIATES

6. Business Associate agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor,
to whom it provides Protected Health lnformation received from, or created or
received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity agrees to the same
restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to Business
Associate with respect to PHl.

7. Business Associate agrees, at the request of AHP or the Covered Entity, to
provide AHP or the Covered Entity (or a designate of Covered Entity) access to
Protected Health lnformation in a Designated Record Set in prompt commercially
reasonable manner in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR 5164.524.

8. Business Associate agrees to make any amendment(s) to Protected Health
lnformation in a Designated Record Set that AHP or the Covered Entity directs or
agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR 5164.526 at the request of AHP or the Covered
Entity or an lndividual, in a prompt and commercially reasonable manner.

9. Business Associate agrees to make internal practices, books, and records,
including policies and procedures and Protected Health lnformation, relating to
the use and disclosure of Protected Health lnformation received from, or created
or received by Business Associate on behalf of, AHP or Covered Entity available
to AHP or the Covered Entity, or to the Secretary (including official
representatives of the Secretary), in a prompt commercially reasonable manner
for purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with the Privacy Rule.

10. Business Associate shall, upon request with reasonable notice, provide AHP or
Covered Entity access to its premises for a review and demonstration of its
internal practices and procedures for safeguarding PHl.

1 1. Business Associate agrees to document such disclosures of Protected Health
lnformation and information related to such disclosures as would be required for
Covered Entity to respond to a request by an lndividual for an accounting of
disclosures of Protected Health lnformation in accordance with 45 CFR

s164.528.
12. Business Associate agrees to provide to Covered Entity or an lndividual, in a

prompt commercially reasonable manner, information collected in accordance
with this Agreement, to permit Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
lndividual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health lnformation in

accordance with 45 CFR S164.528.
13. During the term of this Agreement, Business Associate shall maintain, at its sole

cost and expense, comprehensive general liability insurance of not less than one
million dollars and any insurance that may be mandated for Business Associate
by law or regulation (including Worker's Compensation and State Disability
lnsurance if applicable). Business Associate shall provide AHP written evidence
of such insurance upon request. Business Associate shall provide AHP with
prompt written notice of any material change or cancellation in its coverage.

14. Business Associate shall indemnify AHP for any damages, costs and expenses
incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees, judgments, settlements or
penalties, as a result of any claim or liability resulting from the failure of Business
Associate (or its lower tier subcontractors or consultants) to maintain the
insurance policies required by this section or for breach of any of Business
Associates obligations under this Agreement.

Page 3 of 6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



HIPAA PRIVACY
COMPLIANGE AGREEMENT

FOR BUSINESS ASSOCIATES

G. Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate.

Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or disclose
Protected Health lnformation as follows:

1. On behalf of, Covered Entity, provided that such use or disclosure would not
violate the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity.

2. Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may
disclose Protected Health lnformation for the proper management and
administration of the Business Associate, provided that disclosures are
required by law, or Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from
the person to whom the information is disclosed that it will remain confidential
and used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for
which it was disclosed to the person, and the person notifies the Business
Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of
the information has been breached.

D. Obligations of Covered Entity

1. Covered Entity shall notifo AHP, which will then notify Business Associate of
any limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices of Covered Entity in

accordance with 45 CFR 5164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect
Business Associate's use or disclosure of Protected Health lnformation.

2. Covered Entity shall notiff AHP, which will then notify Business Associate of
any changes in, or revocation of, permission by lndividual to use or disclose
Protected Health lnformation, to the extent that such changes may affect
Business Associate's use or disclosure of Protected Health lnformation.

3. Covered Entity shall notify AHP, which will then notifo Business Associate of
any restriction to the use or disclosure of Protected Health lnformation that
Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 5164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure
of Protected Health lnformation.

4. AHP or the Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to use or
disclose Protected Health lnformation in any manner that would not be
permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity. Nothing in this
paragraph shall restrict the ability of Business Associate to use or disclose PHI
as set forth in paragraph C.2. herein.

E. Remedies in Event of Breach

Business Associate hereby recognizes that irreparable harm will result to Covered
Entity, and to the business of Covered Entity, and could result in irreparable harm to
AHP in the event of breach by Business Associate of any of the covenants and
assurances contained in Paragraphs B or C of this Agreement. As such, in the event of
breach ofany ofthe covenants and assurances contained in paragraphs B or C above,
Covered Entity and/or AHP shall be entitled to enjoin and restrain Business Associate
from any continued violation of Paragraphs B or C. The remedies contained in this
paragraph E shall be in addition to (and not supersede) any action for damages and/or
any other remedy Principal may have for breach of any part of this Agreement.

Page 4 of 6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



HIPAA PRIVACY
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

FOR BUSINESS ASSOCIATES

F. Term of Agreement and Termination.

1. Term of Aqreement. The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the

date givenat the top of Page t herein, and sh all terminate when all of the

Protected Health lnformation provided by Covered Entity to Business
Associate, or created or received by Business Associat e on behalf o f
covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to covered Entity, or, i f it is

infeasible to return or d estroy Protected Health lnformation, protections are

extended to such information, in accordance with the termination provisions

in this Section.

2. Termination for Cause. Upon AHP's or Covered Entity's knowledge of a
rnaterial breach by Business Associate, AHP or Covered Entity shall either:

a. Provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or end

the violation and terminate this Agreement if Business Associate does not

cure the breach or end the violation within the time specified by AHP or

Covered Entity;
b. lmmediately terminate this Agreement if Business Associate has

breached a material term of this Agreement and cure is not possible; or

c. lf neither termination nor cures are feasible, AHP or Covered Entity shall

report the violation to the Secretary.

3. Effect of Termination.
a. Except as provided in paragraph E.3(b) of this section, upon termination

of this Agreement, for any reason, Business Associate shall return or
destroy all Protected Health lnformation received from Covered Entity, or
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity.

This provision shall apply to Protected Health lnformation that is in the
possession of subcontractors or agents of Business Associate. Business
Associate shall retain no copies of the Protected Health lnformation.

b. ln the event that Business Associate determines that returning or
destroying the Protected Health lnformation is infeasible, Business
Associate shall provide to AHP and Covered Entity notification of the

conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon notification to

AHP and Covered Entity that return or destruction of Protected Health

lnformation is infeasible, Business Associate shall extend the protections

of this Agreement to such Protected Health lnformation and limit further

uses and disclosures of such Protected Health lnformation to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as

Business Associate maintains such Protected Health lnformation.

G. Miscellaneous Terms.

1. State Law. lf state law applicable to the relationship between Business
nssociate and AHP and through the agreement between AHP and Covered

Entity contains additional or more stringent requirements than federal law for

Business Associates regarding any aspect of PHI privacy, then Business

Associate agrees to comply with the higher standard contained in applicable

state law.

2. Consideration. Business Associate recognizes that the promises it has

rnaOe in this Agreement shall, henceforth, be detrimentally relied upon by

AHP orCovered Entity in choosing to continue or commence a business
relationship with Business Associate.

Page 5 of 5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



HIPAA PRIVACY
COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

FOR BUSINESS ASSOCIATES

3. Modification. This Agreement may onlv be modified through a writing signed
by the Parties and, thus, no oral modification hereof shall be permitted. The
Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Agreement
from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
requirements of the Privacy Rule and the Health lnsurance Portability and

Accountability Act of 1996.

4. Notices. Any notice required under this Agreement shall be made in writing
to:

lN WITNESS WHEREOF and acknowledging acceptance and agreement of the
foregoing, the Parties affix their signatures hereto.

Item AHP Business Associate

Name Charles Galland

Organization Advocates for Human
Potential, lnc.

Address 490 B Boston Post Road

Citv, State, Zip Sudburv. MA 01776

Phone 978-26',t-1425

Email coalland@ahonet.com

Fax 978-261-1467

Item AHP Business Associate

Printed Name Charles Galland

Signature

Title
Chief Operating Officer

Date

Page 6 of 5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 039FB95C-5B53-40C6-B580-7CBACD6C0B71



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3852  

 

Program Funding Agreement for Community Care 
Expansion Preservation Projects 

Health & Human Services 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lori Bengochia, Innovations and Grant Manager Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Advocates for Human Potential, Inc (AHP) of 
Sudbury, MA for an amount not to exceed $203,113.00 for the period of  July 1, 2023 through January 
30, 2027, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize Marilyn Mann, HHS 
Director to sign the agreement, Certification regarding lobbying and the CDSS Confidentially and 
Information Security requirement and authorize Assistant Chief Information Officer or Designee to sign 
the CDSS Confidentially and Information Security requirement. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Community Care Expansion Preservation Project (CCE-CP) is part of the Behavioral Health 
Continuum Infrastructure Project (BHCIP) and has provided grant funding to increase and expand 
behavioral health treatment resources, including facility infrastructure.   The funds received will be 
utilized at the Progress House in Bishop to increase their capacity to serve clients in a more effective and 
efficient manner, through the upgrade and remodel of their kitchen and dining area.     California DHCS 
has contracted with Advocates for Human Potential (AHP) as the Third Party Administrator (TPA) for the 
project and Inyo County will in turn contract directly with AHP to expend the funds.     
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded  Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4498 
Recurrence One-Time Grant  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the agreements resulting in the declination of funds that would 
result in to infrastruct upgrade to serve clients.   
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Report progress to Advancing Human Potential (AHP) 
Various Inyo County Departments 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Program Funding Agreement 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lori Bengochia Created/Initiated - 6/9/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/9/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/13/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/15/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/19/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/19/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Program Funding Agreement Cover Sheet 

(This Page is not part of the Program Funding Agreement and is for Summary/Reference 
Purposes Only) 

R PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
COMMUNITY CARE EXPANSION PRESERVATION PROJECTS 

********** 
SUMMARY COVER SHEET 

Program Funding 
Agreement ID 

7480-CA CCE-CP_2058_INYO-01-G 

Program Agreement 
Effective Date: 

Program Funding 
Agreement Manager: 

ADVOCATES FOR HUMAN POTENTIAL, INC. (AHP) 
490-B Boston Post Road, Sudbury, MA 01776-3365
Tel: (978) 443-0055 ♦ Fax: (978) 261-1467

AHP Contracting Officer: Charles Galland, COO 
cgalland@ahpnet.com | 978-261-1425 

AHP Project Director:  Louise Nieto 
Tel: 253 238 2673 (o) | lnieto@ahpnet.com 

AHP Direct Staff Contact:  Louise Nieto 
Tel: 253 238 2673 (o) | lnieto@ahpnet.com 

County: County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, 
acting through its Health and Human Services 
ATTN: Marilyn Mann 
Address: 1360 N. Main St. 201 C  Bishop, CA 93514 
Phone: 760-873-3305 
Email address: mmann@inyocounty.us 

Prime Contract 
Identification: 

California Department of Social Services 

Agreement No.:  21-3097 

Contract Title:  Community Care Expansion Preservation Program 

Contract Type:   Deliverable Based Type Contract 

Base Period of 
Performance: 

Effective date through January 30, 2027 

Consideration/Budget: Facility Preservation and Renovation Not to Exceed $203,113.00 



 

Page 1 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

This Program Funding Agreement (the "Agreement") is entered into ___________, 2023 (the 
"Effective Date"), by and between ADVOCATES FOR HUMAN POTENTIAL, INC., a 
Massachusetts corporation, with offices located at 490-B Boston Post Road, Sudbury, MA 
01776 ("AHP"), and COUNTY OF INYO, A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE 
OF CALIFORNIA, ACTING THROUGH ITS HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES with 
offices at 1360 N. Main St. 201 C  Bishop, CA 93514 (“County”). AHP and County may be 
referred to separately as a "Party" or collectively as "Parties." 

 
RECITALS 

A. AHP entered into an agreement with the State of California (the "State") through 
the California Department of Social Services ("CDSS") to facilitate program funding awards and 
provide services to CDSS as the third party administrator of the CDSS Community Care 
Expansion Preservation Program ("Program").  The agreement between CDSS and AHP shall 
hereinafter be referred to as the "Prime Contract" or "CDSS Contract"; 

 
B. The purpose of the Program is to preserve and avoid the closure of licensed 

residential adult and senior care facilities that serve applicants and recipients of Supplemental 
Security Income/State Supplementary Payment and Cash Assistance Program for Immigrants 
("Qualified Residents"), with a priority for individuals experiencing or at risk of homelessness 
("Prioritized Population"); 

 
C. Pursuant to the requirements of the Program and CDSS guidelines, counties are to 

use their allocation of program funds to preserve the capacity of eligible residential adult and 
senior care settings as well as increase the acceptance of new Qualified Residents by providing 
operating subsidy payments ("Operating Subsidy Payments" or "OSP") and funding capital 
projects addressing critical repairs, required upgrades, and ensuring that facilities are compliant 
with licensing standards ("Capital Projects"), with the goal of preventing closures and preserving 
beds in existing licensed facilities; 

 
D. In response to that certain Notice of Funding Availability issued by AHP on 

behalf of CDSS on or about June 10, 2022 (the "NOFA") for the Program, and the All County 
Welfare Directors Letter (“ACWDL”) dated December 14, 2022 (collectively referred to as 
"Funding Letters"), County elected to receive its noncompetitive allocation of Two Hundred 
Three Thousand One Hundred Thirteen and 00/100 Dollars ($203,113.00) for the purpose of 
funding Operating Subsidy Payments and/or Capital Projects ("Program Funds") and has 
submitted to AHP an Implementation Plan ("Implementation Plan") for the administration and 
disbursement of the Program Funds to existing licensed adult and senior care facilities serving 
Qualified Residents; and; 

 
E. This Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions of AHP's administration and 

management of the Program Funds and County's duties and obligations related to its receipt of 
Program Funds.  Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in 
the California Welfare and Institutions Code sections 18999.97 – 18999.98. 

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon the foregoing, and in consideration of the mutual 
covenants and agreements herein set forth, the Parties agree as follows: 



 

Page 2 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

ARTICLE 1. 
AUTHORITY 

California Assembly Bill 172 (Chapter 696, Statutes of 2021) ("AB 172") added sections 
18999.97-18999.98 to the Welfare and Institutions Code, providing the statutory basis for the 
Program and California Senate Bill 129 (Chapter 69, Statutes of 2021), the Budget Act of 2021, 
and California Assembly Bill 178 (Chapter 45, Statutes of 2022), Budget Act of 2022, provide 
the funding for the Program.  CDSS issued the Funding Letters and AHP publishes Funding 
Letters on behalf of CDSS and provides technical assistance, general training and support to 
counties on administration, disbursement and monitoring of the Program Funds, as well as 
administration and fund management to CDSS. 

This Agreement is entered under the authority of and in furtherance of the Program.  This 
Agreement is the result of the County's election to accept its allocation of Program Funds and 
County's submission of an Implementation Plan which is subject to AHP and CDSS review and 
approval. 

This Agreement hereby incorporates by reference County's approved Implementation Plan, as 
well as any report prepared by AHP in reliance on the representations and descriptions included 
in that Implementation Plan.  This Agreement is governed by the following (collectively, the 
"Program Requirements"), and each of the following, as amended and in effect from time to 
time, is hereby incorporated by this reference as if set forth herein in full: 

1.1 AB 172 (Chapter 696, Statutes of 2021), including any subsequent amendments to 
the statutes contained therein; 

1.2 California Welfare and Institutions Code sections 18999.97 – 18999.98; 

1.3 The NOFA, in the form attached to this Agreement as Attachment D; and the 
ACWDL dated December 14, 2022; 

1.4 Guidance issued by CDSS regarding the Program; 

1.5 Program Guidelines, or Program Manuals, as adopted by CDSS, and as may be 
amended from time to time; 

1.6 The award letter(s) issued by AHP to County ("Award Letter") attached to this 
Agreement as Attachment E; and 

1.7 All other applicable law, including, but not limited to, California Labor Code 
statutes applicable to public works projects. 

County is solely responsible and liable for County and County's subcontractors' performance and 
compliance with this Agreement, the above-referenced Program Requirements, and all other 
local, state, and federal laws applicable to the Project. 
 



 

Page 3 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

ARTICLE 2. 
TERM 

2.1 This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall expire 
automatically on June 30, 2027 (the "Expiration Date"); (the period from the 
Effective Date through the Expiration Date shall be referred to herein as the 
"Term"), unless earlier terminated by AHP or CDSS or assigned to CDSS pursuant 
to Section 2.3 below. 

2.2 Upon the expiration of the Term, there shall be no extension or renewal of the Term 
of this Agreement, unless the Parties and CDSS otherwise agree in writing. 

2.3 In the event that the Term of this Agreement is not extended, renewed, or terminated 
early, and either Party hereto shall have a material obligation to the other Party by 
the terms of this Agreement, which shall not be satisfied on or before the Expiration 
Date, all of AHP's rights and obligations under this Agreement shall be assigned 
automatically to CDSS, effective June 29, 2027, at 11:59 p.m.  Each of the Parties 
hereto acknowledges and agrees that upon the occurrence of an assignment pursuant 
to this Section 2.3, such an assignment shall be effective without any further action 
by either Party hereto, or CDSS, and from and after the date of such an assignment: 
(i) CDSS shall be a Party to this Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations 
of AHP hereunder, and (ii) AHP shall cease to be a Party to this Agreement and 
shall be released from its obligations hereunder.  Upon the occurrence of such 
assignment, the Term of this Agreement shall be extended automatically for a period 
of one (1) year and shall expire without any further action by either County or 
CDSS, unless County and CDSS otherwise agree in writing. 

2.4 In the event that the Prime Contract is terminated or amended in a manner 
removing AHP from responsibility as a Party to this Agreement, and either Party 
hereto shall have a remaining obligation to the other Party by the terms of this 
Agreement, which shall not be satisfied on or before the Expiration Date, all of 
AHP's right and obligations under this Agreement shall be assigned automatically 
to CDSS effective upon the date of the termination or amendment. 

2.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary contained herein, AHP 
and/or CDSS shall have the termination rights as set forth in Article 7, and Article 
8, of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3. 
PROGRAM FUNDS AND DISBURSEMENT 

3.1 Purpose.  The County has been awarded the Program Funds in the amount set 
forth in this Agreement to be used solely for the purposes set forth in this 
Agreement and as detailed in the Implementation Plan and for no other purposes.  
The County shall be responsible for administering and disbursing the Program 
Funds for purposes that are consistent with the Program Requirements.  The 
County may disburse Program Funds to Eligible Recipients (as defined below) for 



 

Page 4 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

OSP and/or for Capital Projects. Program Funds awarded for OSP may not be 
commingled with Program Funds awarded for Capital Projects, and vice versa.  
The County is obligated to develop an application, allocation methodology and 
award process for Eligible Recipients consistent with the terms of this Agreement.  
Program Funds shall be disbursed only upon satisfaction of the requirements of 
this section. 

 
3.2 Conditions of Disbursement.  Within thirty (30) calendar days of the delivery to 

AHP of a fully executed Agreement, AHP shall disburse to the County twenty-
five percent (25%) of the total amount of Program Funds awarded to the County 
("Advance Disbursement"), which funds are to be used by the County in 
accordance with this Agreement.   County shall submit proof of expenditures 
applied against the Advance Disbursement no later than (30) days after the end of 
each calendar quarter.  In no event shall further Program Fund disbursements be 
made by AHP to County until after the Advance Disbursement has been 
exhausted and County has provided proof of expenditures applied against the 
Advance Disbursement.  Such proof of expenditures shall be in a form approved 
by AHP and shall include any documentation requested by AHP to evidence the 
County's expenditures of funds, consistent with the terms of this 
Agreement.  After the Advance Disbursement has been exhausted, disbursements 
shall be made by written request in a form approved by AHP and shall include 
any documentation requested by AHP to evidence the County's expenditures of 
funds, including Match Funds as described in Section 5.6, consistent with the 
terms of this Agreement (“Disbursement Request”).  

Disbursements are subject to the following: 
 
3.2.1. County shall submit Disbursement Requests no more than once per 

calendar quarter, unless additional Disbursement Requests are permitted 
pursuant to section 3.2.4.  

 
3.2.2. Disbursement Requests shall be submitted no earlier than the last day of 

each calendar quarter and no later than thirty (30) days following the last 
day of each calendar quarter.  

 
3.2.3. Program Funds will be disbursed to the County for costs incurred for the 

Project within thirty (30) days of receipt of a complete Disbursement 
Request for Program Funds, provided such Disbursement Request is 
approved by AHP or its designee.   

 
3.2.4. Other than the Advance Disbursement, all disbursements shall be based 

on actual expenditures incurred by the County.  The County may 



 

Page 5 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

submit requests for additional advance disbursements upon providing to 
AHP evidence of good cause for the additional advance disbursement, 
and AHP shall provide said request to CDSS for approval.  Any 
approval or disapproval of a disbursement request for an advance 
disbursement is within the sole discretion of CDSS.   In no event shall 
the balance of advance disbursements exceed 25% of the total Program 
Fund amount.   

 
3.2.5. Disbursement Requests shall identify the purpose of the use of funds, 

whether for OSP or Capital Projects or both, and shall delineate items 
allocated to OSP or Capital Projects, if applicable.    

 
3.2.6. Within ninety (90) days of the final Disbursement Request, the County 

shall provide AHP with (i) a reconciliation showing all expenditures 
made with Program Funds, including those made with the Advance 
Disbursement, (ii) documentation of the expenditure of all Match 
Funds, and (iii) any documentation or evidence requested by AHP to 
support such expenditures. 

 
3.3 Documentation of Match Funds.  Match Funds contributed pursuant to Article 5, 

Section 5.6 of this Agreement shall be reported with each Disbursement Request.  
In the event the Match Funds are an in-kind contribution in lieu of cash, including 
Project expenses incurred prior to the Effective Date (the "Sunk Costs"), the value 
of such in-kind contribution must be approved by AHP.  All Match Funds must be 
expended prior to submitting the final Disbursement Request. 

 
3.4 Disbursement of Program Funds to Eligible Recipients.  The County shall be 

responsible for disbursement of Program Funds to Eligible Recipients.  The 
County shall follow its standard procurement, invoicing, and reimbursement 
processes for the disbursement of Program Funds, consistent with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

 
3.5 Additional Considerations for Program Funds Used For Capital Projects.  The 

County shall be responsible for ensuring that Eligible Recipients comply with all 
construction requirements, including that Eligible Recipients comply with 
California Prevailing Wage laws (California Labor Code section 1720 et seq.), all 
permitting requirements of the local jurisdiction and any other governmental or 
Program Requirements.  The County shall require that all facilities receiving 
Program Funds for Capital Projects undertaking a construction project costing 
more than One Million Dollars ($1,000,0000) shall obtain payment and 
performance bonds.  Any exception to the requirement to obtain payment and 
performance bonds must be approved by AHP or CDSS. 



 

Page 6 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

 
ARTICLE 4. 

ELIGIBLE RECIPIENTS AND EXPENDITURES 

The County shall disburse Program Funds to Eligible Recipients for the uses set forth below.  In 
awarding Program Funds, the County shall prioritize facilities with the highest risk of closure 
and facilities with the highest percentage of Qualified Residents. 

4.1 Eligible Recipients.  Program Funds shall only be disbursed by the County to 
facilities meeting all of the following eligibility criteria ("Eligible Recipients"): 

4.1.1 An existing licensed Adult Residential Facility as defined in Title 22, 
section 80001(a)(5) of the California Code of Regulations; Residential 
Care Facility for the Elderly, as defined in Title 22, section 87101(r)(5) of 
the California Code of Regulations; or a Residential Care Facility for the 
Chronically Ill as defined in Title 22, section 87801(r)(5) of the California 
Code of Regulations. 

4.1.2 Currently serving at least one Qualified Resident. 

4.1.3 In good standing with the Community Care Licensing Division or, if the 
facility is not in good standing, providing a certification that the Program 
Funds will bring the facility into good standing. 

4.1.4 Has agreed to continue to serve Qualified Residents. 

4.1.5 Has agreed to prioritize applications from Qualified Residents who are 
part of the Prioritized Population. 

4.1.6 Has agreed to remain in good standing with Community Care Licensing 
Division. 

4.1.7 Has agreed to use the Program Funds disbursed for the uses set forth 
below in Section 4.3 if Program Funds are used for OSP or Section 4.5 if 
the Program Funds are used for Capital Projects. 

4.2 Additional Criteria for Eligible Recipients of OSP.  In addition to the criteria for 
Eligible Recipients set forth in Section 4.1, recipients of Program Funds for OSP 
must also meet the following criteria: 

4.2.1 Have a monthly or annual operating cash flow gap that places the facility 
at risk of closure or risk of reducing the number of beds for Qualified 
Residents. 

4.2.2 Have recorded a deed restriction on the facility or property requiring that 
the facility continue to provide licensed adult and senior residential care 
for a minimum duration equal to at least the term of the agreement 
between the County and Eligible Recipients to fund the OSP. 



 

Page 7 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

4.2.3 The duration of the agreement between the County and Eligible Recipients 
to fund the OSP is the period of time in which the County will be 
providing Program Funds for OSP to any Eligible Recipients within the 
County. 

4.3 Eligible and Ineligible Uses of Program Funds for OSP.  Program Funds used for 
OSP may be used to cover operating costs associated with the day-to-day physical 
operation of the Eligible Recipient's facility related to the Qualified Residents, 
including covering costs of utilities, maintenance and repair, staff and payroll 
costs, marketing, leasing, taxes and insurance, office supplies, accounting, and 
strategic planning.  Examples of eligible uses are set forth in section 205 of the 
NOFA.  Program Funds used for OSP may not supplant other funding available 
from existing local, state, or federal programs and grants supporting Qualified 
Residents and may not supplant the Qualified Residents' payments to the Eligible 
Recipient.  Program Funds cannot be used for costs that are not related to 
operations, distributions to the facility owners, to pay tort claim liabilities, or to 
pay costs associated with a change of ownership.  The County shall be responsible 
for ensuring that Program Funds are used for eligible purposes consistent with the 
Program Requirements and this Agreement. 

4.4 Additional Criteria for Capital Project Eligible Recipients.  In addition to the 
criteria for Eligible Recipients set forth in Section 4.1, recipients of Program 
Funds for Capital Projects must also meet the following criteria: 

4.4.1 Have a gap in their financial ability to make needed repairs or upgrades, 
placing the facility at risk of closure or reducing the number of beds 
available for Qualified Residents. 

4.5 Eligible and Ineligible Uses of Program Funds for Capital Projects. Program 
Funds used for Capital Projects are to be used for physical repairs and upgrades to 
an Eligible Recipient's facility, inside or outside the facility within the property 
line of the facility.  Examples of eligible uses are set forth in section 205 of the 
NOFA.  Program Funds used for Capital Projects may not supplant any existing 
funds used to support the prioritized population.  Program Funds for Capital 
Projects shall not be used for repairs to foundations of leased facilities, projects 
that would expand or create new usable space, the provision of services, or for 
operating costs. 

ARTICLE 5. 
PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION REQUIREMENTS 

5.1 The County is responsible for the administration, disbursement, and monitoring of 
the Program Funds in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the 
Program Requirements.  Implementation requirements include the following: 

5.2 Application Process.  The County shall establish an application process for 
Eligible Recipients that addresses the Program priorities and goals.  The 
application and funding selection process shall assess Eligible Recipients' 



 

Page 8 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

financial capacity, and ability to adhere to the Program Guidelines, including 
ensuring that Eligible Recipients have sufficient staff capacity and financial 
resources to manage the facility.  The County funding shall be distributed 
geographically throughout the County to the extent feasible. 

5.3 Monitoring.  The County is responsible for monitoring use of Program Funds to 
ensure that Program Funds are only used for eligible uses in a manner consistent 
with the Program Guidelines.  The County procedures must include a corrective 
action plan for assessing the risk of activities, projects, and for monitoring 
facilities to ensure that Program Requirements are met.  The County is 
responsible for taking appropriate action in the event that Eligible Recipients fail 
to use the Program Funds for eligible uses or fail to perform.  The County may 
subcontract any of its obligations to a third party, but the County remains 
responsible for the obligations in this Agreement. 

5.4 OSP Agreements.  The County shall enter into written agreements with Eligible 
Recipients of Program Funds used for OSP, which at a minimum shall include (i) 
the Eligible Recipients reporting obligations; (ii) the requirement that the Eligible 
Recipient respond to requests for information from AHP and CDSS; (iii) the 
eligible uses of the Program Funds; (iv) the conditions under which Program 
Funds  will be disbursed; (v) the method of disbursement; (vi) a requirement that 
the facility be deed restricted to provide licensed adult and senior residential care 
for a minimum duration equal to the term of the agreement between the County 
and the Eligible Recipient for the use of Program Funds for OSP; (vii) conditions 
for the repayment of Program Funds or cancellation of future disbursement of 
Program Funds; (viii) a requirement that the Eligible Recipient provide an annual 
audit within ninety (90) days of the end of the fiscal year, if applicable; (ix) a 
requirement to report material changes, such as changes in key staff or litigation 
against the Eligible Recipient or the facility, within thirty (30) days of such 
occurrence; (x) a requirement that the Eligible Recipient indemnify the County; 
and (xi) such other provisions required by AHP or CDSS.  County may include 
other requirements in its the agreement with Eligible Recipients of Program 
Funds used for OSP. 

5.5 Capital Project Agreements.  The County shall enter into written agreements with 
Eligible Recipients of Program Funds for Capital Projects which at a minimum 
shall include (i) the Eligible Recipients reporting responsibilities; (ii) the 
requirement that the Eligible Recipient respond to requests for information from 
AHP and CDSS; (iii) the allowed use of the Program Funds; (iv) the conditions 
for disbursement of the Program Funds; (v) the method of disbursement for the 
Program Funds; (vi) any procurement and bidding requirements, including, but 
not limited to, requirements to pay prevailing wage pursuant to California Labor 
Code section 1720 et seq.; (vii) conditions for repayment of the Program Funds or 
the cancellation of future disbursements; (viii) a requirement that the Eligible 
Recipient provide an annual audit within ninety (90) days of the end of the fiscal 
year, if applicable; (ix) a requirement to report material changes, such as changes 
in key staff or litigation against the Eligible Recipient or the facility within thirty 



 

Page 9 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

(30) days of such occurrence; (x) a requirement that the Eligible Recipient 
indemnify the County; (xi) if part of the County requirements, a requirement that 
the Eligible Recipient enter into a deed restriction to provide licensed residential 
care to Qualified Residents for a term determined by the County; and (xii) such 
other provisions required by AHP or CDSS.  County may include other 
requirements in its agreement with Eligible Recipients of Program Funds used for 
Capital Projects. 

5.6 Capital Project Program Fund Match.  The County is required to match at least 
ten percent (10%) of the Program Funds for Capital Projects allocated to the 
County (the "Match Funds").  The County shall provide evidence to AHP of the 
contribution of Match Funds either in the form of cash or in-kind contributions as 
outlined in Article 3.  Match Funds may be from the County or provided by an 
Eligible Recipient.  In-kind Match Funds may be in the form of Sunk Costs 
directly related to the Capital Project, or costs directly related to the Capital 
Project that have already been incurred and cannot be recovered, and evidenced 
with documentation of paid invoices for professional services related to 
preconstruction of the specific Capital Project, as approved by AHP or CDSS on a 
case-by-case basis.  In-kind Match Funds may also include donations of 
professional design-build services or materials directly related to the Capital 
Project.  Any Match Funds claimed under Sunk Costs must supplement, not 
supplant, other fund sources.  The provision of services and funds derived from 
the State general fund cannot be used in satisfaction of the required contribution 
of Match Funds. 

5.7 Deed Restriction or Regulatory Agreement.  The County must require Eligible 
Recipients receiving Program Funds for OSP to record a deed restriction or 
regulatory agreement on the funded facility requiring that the facility continue to 
provide licensed residential adult and senior care for a minimum duration equal to 
the term of the agreement between the County and Eligible Recipient for funding 
OSP.  The deed restriction must be recorded on the title to the property upon 
which the facility is located before the County disburses any funds.  If the Eligible 
Recipient leases the facility or property, the deed restriction must be signed by 
both the Eligible Recipient and the owner of the fee interest in the property and 
recorded against both the fee interest in the property and the leasehold.  The 
County may, at its election, require deed restrictions for Capital Projects. 

 
 

ARTICLE 6. 
FISCAL ADMINISTRATION 

6.1 The County shall be responsible for managing the Program Funds in compliance 
with the Program Requirements.  The County is responsible for ensuring that 
Program Funds are used in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the 
Program Requirements.  The County is not required to establish a separate 
account for Program Funds but must establish a separate fund and must monitor 
all expenditures from the fund to ensure funds are only used for Program 



 

Page 10 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

purposes.  All interest earned from Program Funds shall be used for purposes 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement and segregated from other County 
funds.  Minimum requirements for the management of Program Funds include the 
following: 

6.1.1 The County, by signing this Agreement, attests that it has the capacity and 
ability to manage the application, disbursement and monitoring of the 
Program Funds required by this Agreement and the Program 
Requirements. 

6.1.2 The County shall include in its program requirements that all Eligible 
Recipients are assessed for financial feasibility and ability to comply with 
the Program Requirements. 

6.1.3 The County shall comply with all disbursement procedures for the 
Program Funds set forth in the County's Implementation Plan or as 
otherwise approved by CDSS. 

6.1.4 The County shall assign the necessary staff to monitor the use of Program 
Funds, ensure adherence to the Program Requirements, and monitor 
ongoing compliance with Program Requirements for the duration of any 
deed restriction required by this Agreement or the Term of this 
Agreement, whichever is longer, or required by the County. 

6.1.5 The County shall ensure that recipients of Program Funds for Capital 
Projects comply with State Labor Code section 1720 et seq. (State 
Prevailing Wage). 

6.1.6 The County shall comply with any reporting and record retention 
requirements in the Program Requirements or this Agreement. 

6.2 Any Program Funds that have been disbursed to the County but have not been 
expended by the expiration of the Period of Performance set forth in the Summary 
Cover Sheet must be returned to CDSS with accrued interest within thirty (30) 
calendar days after the expiration of the Period of Performance in accordance with 
directions provided by CDSS.  County shall not be entitled to any disbursement of 
Program Funds after expiration of the Period of Performance and any such 
undisbursed funds will be retained by CDSS.   

6.3 The County shall not expend more than fifteen percent (15%) of the Program 
Funds on County administrative costs. 

 
 
 
  



 

Page 11 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

ARTICLE 7. 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

7.1 Event of Default.  Any of the following, after notice to County by AHP or CDSS, 
provided in accordance with the notice requirements of this Agreement, and 
expiration of any applicable cure period, shall constitute an Event of Default 
under this Agreement: 

7.1.1 The County's failure to timely satisfy each or any of the conditions set 
forth in this Agreement, or the Award Letter. 

7.1.2 The County's violation of any of the Program Requirements. 

7.1.3 AHP's or CDSS's determination of the following: 

7.1.3.1 The County has concealed any material fact from AHP or CDSS 
related to the County or any Eligible Recipients; or 

7.1.3.2 Any material fact or representation, made or furnished to AHP or 
CDSS by the County in connection with this Agreement shall have 
been untrue or misleading at the time that such fact or 
representation was made known to AHP, or subsequently becomes 
untrue or misleading; or 

7.1.3.3 Any Certification provided by the County is determined to be 
untrue or misleading; 

7.1.3.4 Any objectives or requirements of the Program cannot be met in 
accordance with this Agreement or within applicable timeframes, 
as memorialized by this Agreement. 

7.2 Right to Cure.  If the breach, violation, or default pursuant to Section 7.1 is not 
cured to AHP's and CDSS' satisfaction, as determined by AHP and CDSS, each in 
their sole and absolute discretion, within fourteen (14) days of notice to the 
County, provided in accordance with the notice requirements of this Agreement, 
then AHP, with CDSS approval, may declare an Event of Default under this 
Agreement. 

7.2.1 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County may request additional time to 
cure any default from AHP.  AHP may, but shall not be required to, grant 
any such request, subject to CDSS approval, in CDSS’s sole discretion.  
CDSS’s approval of the County's request for additional time to cure shall 
be subject to the County's continuing and diligent efforts to cure, and any 
additional cure period provided to the County shall be reasonable, as 
determined by CDSS, in CDSS’s sole discretion.  AHP, shall provide 
notice to County of approval or denial of County’s request for additional 
time to cure any default.  In no event shall any extension of the cure period 
exceed thirty (30) days.   



 

Page 12 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

 
7.3 AHP/CDSS Remedies.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, AHP (on 

CDSS's behalf) and/or the State (represented by CDSS in this Agreement) may 
take any and all actions or remedies that are available under this Agreement, at 
law, or in equity, including but not limited to the following: 

7.3.1 temporarily withhold disbursement of Program Funds pending correction 
of the breach, violation, or default; 

7.3.2 disallow use of Program Funds for all or part of the costs resulting from 
the breach, violation, or default; 

7.3.3 wholly or partly suspend or terminate this Agreement and the County's 
award of Program Funds, or disbursements thereof (any such suspension 
or termination of this Agreement or the County's award of Program Funds 
shall be effective upon the County's receipt of AHP or CDSS notice of 
termination or suspension); 

7.3.4 withhold or deny further Program Funds or awards to the County; 

7.3.5 require the County to return all or part of any Program Funds, including 
any interest; 

7.3.6 specific performance; 

7.3.7 injunctive relief; and 

7.3.8 any and all remedies allowed by law or equity. 
 
 

ARTICLE 8. 
TERMINATION 

8.1 AHP and/or CDSS shall have the right, each in its sole discretion and without 
prejudice to any other rights and remedies it may have under applicable law, to 
terminate this Agreement immediately upon notice of such termination to the 
County, if (i) an Event of Default occurs; (ii) three (3) violations, breaches or 
defaults by the County of the terms and conditions of this Agreement (whether the 
same or different) occur within any twelve-month period, regardless of whether 
any or all such violations, breaches or defaults are timely corrected; (iii) the 
County files a petition in bankruptcy or is adjudicated by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be bankrupt or insolvent, or makes an assignment for the benefit of 
creditors or an arrangement pursuant to any bankruptcy law, or if the County 
discontinues or dissolves its business or if a receiver is appointed for the County 
or the County's business; or (iv) County fails to provide AHP with adequate 
assurances within a reasonable time that County is financially solvent, or AHP or 
CDSS determines that County is financially insecure. 



 

Page 13 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

8.2 Notwithstanding the foregoing, or anything to the contrary stated herein, AHP 
may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days' notice if AHP is directed by 
CDSS to terminate this Agreement. 

 
8.3 Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, neither AHP nor CDSS shall 

be liable for any work that is not performed in accordance with the Agreement or 
for any commitments made by the County to any Eligible Recipient.  Upon any 
termination, neither AHP nor CDSS shall be responsible for any additional 
disbursements of Program Funds after the termination date or for any damages to 
the County as a result of such termination.  Upon termination, County shall cease 
to disburse Program Funds to Eligible Recipients and shall return all Program 
Funds to the State at the direction of AHP or CDSS. 

 
 

ARTICLE 9. 
POLICIES AND LEGAL AUTHORITIES 

9.1 The County shall comply with all California and federal law, regulations, and 
published guidelines, to the extent that these authorities contain requirements 
applicable to the County's performance under this Agreement, including any 
licensing and health and safety requirements. 

9.2 The County shall comply with California Welfare and Institutions Code sections 
18999.97 – 18999.98 et seq., including any related CDSS guidance, regulations, 
and/or subsequent additions or amendments thereto. 

9.3 In the event the County does not comply with the terms of this Article 9, AHP 
shall give notice in accordance with section 15.7 and shall have all rights set forth 
in Article 7 and Article 8. 

 
 

ARTICLE 10. 
INDEMNIFICATION 

10.1 The County shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless AHP, its officers, 
employees and agents, and CDSS and its officers, employees and agents, against 
liabilities to third persons and other losses (not compensated by insurance or 
otherwise) and for any costs and expenses incurred by AHP and CDSS, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees, judgments, settlements or penalties against all 
liabilities, claims, suits, demands or liens for damages to persons or property 
(collectively "Claims") (unless such Claims arise from the gross negligence or 
willful misconduct of AHP or CDSS), arising out of, resulting from, or relating to, 
County's performance under this Agreement and including, but not limited to, the 
following: 



 

Page 14 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

10.1.1 Any act, omission, or statement of the County, or any person employed by 
or engaged under contract with the County, that results in injury (including 
death), loss, or damage to any person or property; 

10.1.2 Any failure on the part of the County to comply with applicable Program 
Requirements and requirements of law; 

10.1.3 Any act or omission of any Eligible Recipient, including but not limited to 
any failure of any Eligible Recipient to comply with the Program 
Requirements and the terms of this Agreement. 

10.1.4 Any failure on the part of the County or an Eligible Recipient to satisfy all 
claims for labor, equipment, materials and other obligations relating to the 
performance of the work hereunder; 

10.1.5 Any injury to property or person occurring on or about the infrastructure 
or the property of the County or any Eligible Recipient; or 

10.1.6 Any claims related to the use, generation, storage, release, threatened 
release, discharge, disposal or presence of hazardous materials on, under 
or about the property upon which any facility funded with Program Funds 
is located. 

10.2 The County shall indemnify AHP and/or CDSS under this clause for any of the 
above acts attributable to its employees, consultants, agents, and/or lower-tiered 
subcontractors, including Eligible Recipients, in connection with this Agreement.  
AHP or CDSS shall provide timely notice of any Claims describing in reasonable 
detail such facts and circumstances with respect to such Claims.  The County shall 
defend AHP and/or CDSS with counsel reasonably acceptable to AHP and/or 
CDSS.  AHP and/or CDSS may, each, at its option and own expense, engage 
separate counsel to advise regarding the Claim and its defense.  Such counsel may 
attend all proceedings and meetings.  The County shall not settle any Claim 
without the consent of AHP and/or CDSS, as applicable. 

10.3 The County agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless AHP, its officers, 
agents and employees and CDSS, its officers, agents and employees from any and 
all claims, costs (including, but not limited to, all legal expenses, court costs, and 
attorney's fees incurred in investigating, preparing, serving as a witness in, or 
defending against, any such claim, action, or proceeding, commenced or 
threatened), and losses accruing or resulting to any and all contractors, 
subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person, firm or corporation 
furnishing or supplying work services, materials, or supplies in connection with 
the performance of this Agreement, and from any and all claims and losses 
accruing or resulting to any person, firm or corporation who may be injured or 
damaged by the County in connection with this Agreement. 

10.4 This indemnification shall survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement. 
 



 

Page 15 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

 
ARTICLE 11. 

PREVAILING WAGE 

Any construction work that is funded with Program Funds is subject to state prevailing wage 
law, including California Labor Code section 1720 et seq.  The County is responsible for 
ensuring that all Eligible Recipients comply with Prevailing Wage law as well as any other 
applicable federal or state labor requirements. 
 
 

ARTICLE 12. 
RELOCATION. 

The County is responsible for ensuring that all Eligible Recipients comply with applicable 
relocation laws, including Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies 
Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. section 4601 et seq.), the California Relocation Assistance Law 
(California Government Code section 7260 et seq.) and their implementing regulations 
("Relocation Laws"), if any Program Funds will be used for projects that will result in the 
displacement, as that term is defined in the Relocation Laws, of any persons, businesses, or farm 
operations.  Pursuant to the Relocation Laws and guidance provided by CDSS, the County is 
responsible for ensuring that an Eligible Recipient (i) has a relocation plan prior to proceeding 
with any phase of a project or other activity that will result in the displacement of persons, 
businesses, or farm operations; and (ii) provides any required notices and relocation benefits.  
The County is also responsible for ensuring compliance with California Health & Safety Code 
and corresponding regulations for the safe transfer and relocation of residents in residential care 
facilities licensed by CDSS, and ensuring that Eligible Recipients obtain CDSS's approval of a 
relocation plan for each resident in care in a manner specified by CDSS. 
 
 

ARTICLE 13. 
INSPECTIONS, AUDITS, AND RECORD RETENTION 

 
13.1 AHP and CDSS and any of their authorized representatives shall have the right to 

access any documents, papers, or other records of the County and any Eligible 
Recipients which are pertinent to the Program Funds, for the purpose of 
performing audits, examinations, and/or review regarding compliance with the 
provisions of this Agreement and the Program Requirements.  Such monitoring 
activities shall include, but are not limited to, inspection of the County and 
Eligible Recipient's books and records, in addition to site inspections, as AHP or 
CDSS deems appropriate. 

13.2 AHP and CDSS and any of their authorized representatives may perform 
compliance reviews and review procedures and documents pertaining to the 
County's compliance with the terms of this Agreement and Eligible Recipient’s 
compliance with the Program Requirements, perform onsite visits and desk 
reviews in order to ensure Program Funds are expended for eligible uses and to 



 

Page 16 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

protect against fraud, waste and abuse.  The County shall include in all 
agreements with Eligible Recipients, a requirement that the Eligible Recipient; (i) 
provide to AHP, and its authorized representatives, and CDSS and its authorized 
representatives access to the Eligible Recipient’s records and facilities; and (ii) 
cooperate with any desk reviews. 

13.3 The right to access records also includes timely and reasonable access to the 
County's and the Eligible Recipient's personnel for the purpose of interview and 
discussion related to the requested documents and/or information. 

13.4 The right to access records is not limited to the required retention period but lasts 
as long as the records are retained by County and the Eligible Recipient. 

13.5 The County shall retain all financial records, supporting documents, statistical 
records, and all other records pertinent to the Program Funds for the term of this 
Agreement and for a minimum of three (3) years thereafter, and require that all 
Eligible Recipients retain all records related to the Program Funds for the same 
period. 

13.6 The County shall, and shall ensure that each of its Eligible Recipients shall, 
comply with the requirements set forth in Attachment C – The California 
Department of Social Services Confidentiality and Information Security 
Requirements. 

13.7 Any review or inspection undertaken by AHP, its designee, or CDSS, or its 
designee, of the County's records or of any Eligible Recipient's records or facility 
is solely for the purpose of determining whether the County or the Eligible 
Recipient is properly discharging its obligations to CDSS, and should not be 
relied upon by the County or by any third parties as a warranty or representation 
by AHP or CDSS as to the quality of the design, construction, or operation of any 
project.  The County agrees that claims based upon an audit finding and/or an 
audit finding that is appealed and upheld shall be recovered by AHP or CDSS by 
one of the following options: 

13.7.1 The County's remittance to AHP or CDSS of the full amount of the audit 
exception within thirty (30) days following AHP request for payment; or 

13.7.2 A repayment schedule which is agreeable to AHP, CDSS and County. 

AHP reserves the right to select which option described above shall be employed; and AHP shall 
notify the County in writing of the claim procedure to be utilized.  Interest on the unpaid balance 
of the audit finding or debt shall accrue at a rate equal to the maximum allowed by applicable 
law. 

13.8 Reporting Requirements.  The County shall provide AHP and CDSS with the 
following reports: 



 

Page 17 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

13.8.1 Quarterly reports submitted within thirty (30) days of the end of each 
quarter. 

13.8.2 An annual Program Fund Expenditure Report to be submitted not later 
than January 31st of each year for the prior calendar year. 

13.8.3 A final report to be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the final 
disbursement of Program Funds to Eligible Recipients. 

All reports shall be in a form and contain such information as required by CDSS 
in its sole and absolute discretion.  In addition to the above reporting 
requirements, AHP and CDSS may request additional reports and information 
necessary for AHP and CDSS to monitor compliance with the Program 
Requirements.  The County shall be responsible for obtaining any necessary 
reporting information from its Eligible Recipients. 

 
ARTICLE 14. 

THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. 

The State, represented by CDSS in this Agreement, is a third party beneficiary of this 
Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be construed so as to give any other person or entity, other 
than the Parties and CDSS, any legal or equitable claim or right.  CDSS or another authorized 
department or agency representing the State of California may enforce any provision of this 
Agreement to the full extent permitted in law or equity as a third party beneficiary of this 
Agreement.  The State may take any and all remedies available in law and equity.  In the event of 
litigation, the State may choose to seek any type of damages available in law or equity, up to the 
full amount of Program Funds awarded to the County. 

The County shall name AHP and CDSS as third party beneficiaries with rights of enforcement in 
all agreements entered into by the County with Eligible Recipients. 
 

ARTICLE 15. 
MISCELLANEOUS. 

15.1 Dispute Resolution: 

15.1.1 The Parties shall use reasonable efforts to resolve any dispute arising 
under this Agreement within thirty (30) days pursuant to informal 
mediation before a retired judge with Judicial Arbitration and Mediation 
Services ("JAMS") in Los Angeles, California. 

15.1.2 If the Parties cannot resolve a dispute arising under this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 15.1.1, the Parties shall submit such dispute to 
arbitration in accordance with the provisions of the American Arbitration 
Association.  The Parties shall conduct any arbitration in Los Angeles, 
California.  The arbitrator's decision in any such arbitration shall be final, 
conclusive, and binding on the Parties. 



 

Page 18 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

15.1.3 TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE PARTIES 
HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A JURY 
TRIAL IN CONNECTION WITH ANY CLAIM ARISING OUT OF 
THIS AGREEMENT. 

15.1.4 The County shall be obligated to continue to perform pursuant to this 
Agreement while any dispute is pending. 

15.1.5 This Section 15.1 shall not apply to the State. 

15.2 Attorneys' Fees.  If a dispute arising out of this Agreement is finally adjudicated, 
the non-prevailing party shall pay the prevailing party's reasonable expenses 
incurred in connection therewith, including reasonable arbitration costs and 
reasonable attorneys' fees.  If multiple items are disputed and the final decision is 
split, then the Parties shall allocate such expenses pro rata as to each item.  
Section 15.2 does not apply to the State. 

15.3 Waiver.  AHP's failure to notify the County of a breach or to insist on strict 
performance of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute waiver of 
such breach or provision. 

15.4 Remedies.  No remedy in this Agreement is exclusive of any other remedy 
available under this Agreement, at law or in equity.  AHP or CDSS may seek 
equitable relief, including an injunction, against the County in connection with 
any breach or threatened breach of this Agreement. 

15.5 Limitation of Liability.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, or by 
applicable law, the County waives any right to seek, and AHP and CDSS shall not 
be liable for, any special, consequential, or punitive damages; indirect, or 
incidental damages; or for any loss of goodwill, profits, data, or loss of use arising 
out of, resulting from, or in any way connected with the performance or breach of 
this Agreement, even if the County advises AHP or CDSS of the possibility of 
any such damages. 

15.6 Relationship.  The County is an independent contractor with respect to AHP.  
This Agreement is not intended to create a partnership, joint venture, 
employment, or fiduciary relationship between the Parties or between any Party 
hereto and CDSS. 

15.7 Notices.  Notices under this Agreement must be (i) in writing; (ii) addressed to the 
receiving Party at the address described in the Summary Cover Sheet (unless 
notice of a different address is given); and (iii) (A) if personally delivered to the 
recipient, notice is effective upon delivery, (B) if sent by a nationally recognized 
overnight courier service, notice is effective on the first business day following its 
timely deposit with such courier service, delivery fees for next business day 
delivery prepaid; no signature affirming receipt by the receiving party is required, 
the internal records of the courier service shall be accepted as sufficient evidence 
of the date of the deposit of the notice with the courier service, or (C) if sent by 



 

Page 19 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

certified U.S. mail, notice is effective three (3) days after deposit thereof in the 
U.S. mail, postage prepaid, certified, return receipt requested.  Counsel for a Party 
may send notice on behalf of its client. 

15.7.1 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties may deliver any approval, 
disapproval, or request therefor via email.  Such email notices and 
deliveries shall be valid and binding on the Parties, subject to the 
following: 

15.7.1.1 Such email must be properly addressed to the other Party's 
Designated Representatives.  For purposes of this Agreement, 
"Designated Representative" means initially (i) for AHP, Louise 
Nieto, lnieto@ahpnet.com and Sheronna Quinine, 
squinine@ahpnet.com; and (ii) for the County, Melissa Best-
Baker, mbestbaker@inyocounty.us and Lori Bengochia, 
lbengochia@inyocounty.us. A Party may change a Designated 
Representative only upon notice to the other Party pursuant to the 
requirements of Section 15.7(iii)(A), (B) or (C). 

15.7.1.2 If the sender receives a bounce-back, out-of-office or other 
automated response indicating non-receipt, the sender shall (i) re-
attempt delivery until the other Party confirms receipt, or 
(ii) deliver the item in accordance with Section 15.7(iii) (A), (B) 
or (C). 

15.8 Governing Law.  The place of performance of this Agreement is California and 
the laws of the State of California, shall govern the validity, performance, 
enforcement, and interpretation of this Agreement.  Any litigation or enforcement 
of an award must be brought in the appropriate state or federal court in the State 
of California, County of Sacramento.  Each Party consents to personal and subject 
matter jurisdiction and venue in such courts and waives the right to change venue 
with respect to any such proceeding.  The Parties acknowledge that all directions 
issued by the forum court, including injunction and other decrees, shall be binding 
and enforceable in all jurisdictions and countries. 

15.9 Assignment.  The County shall not assign, delegate, or otherwise transfer this 
Agreement, or its duties, or obligations in connection therewith, in whole or in 
part without the prior approval of AHP and CDSS.  AHP's obligations under this 
Agreement shall be assignable to CDSS or CDSS's designee upon CDSS's request 
without the County's consent.  In the event that AHP assigns its obligations under 
this Agreement to CDSS, AHP shall make commercially reasonable efforts to 
transition any reasonably necessary documentation related to this Agreement to 
CDSS or its designee, at no cost to CDSS provided however, that AHP shall have 
no obligation to incur any liability, pay fees, charges, or reimbursement in 
connection with any assignment, wind-down or transition services. 



 

Page 20 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

15.10 Entire Agreement; Amendments.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement of the Parties with respect to its subject matter.  It supersedes all oral or 
written agreements or communications between the Parties.  No understanding, 
agreement, modification, change order, or other matter affecting this Agreement 
shall be binding, unless in writing, signed by both Parties.  No handwritten 
changes shall be effective unless initialed by each Party. 

15.11 Independent Legal and Tax Advice.  AHP and the County, each, have reviewed and 
negotiated this Agreement using such independent legal and tax counsel as each 
has deemed appropriate. 

15.12 Exhibits.  The Attachments, Schedules, and Addenda, attached to this Agreement 
are a part of this Agreement and incorporated into this Agreement by reference. 

15.13 Partial Invalidity.  If any part of this Agreement is unenforceable, the remainder of 
this Agreement and, if applicable, the application of the affected provision to any 
other circumstance, shall be fully enforceable. 

15.14 Captions.  The headings contained herein are for convenience only and are not 
intended to define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this 
Agreement. 

15.15 Force Majeure.  Neither Party shall be liable to the other for loss or damages due 
to failure or delay in rendering performance caused by circumstances beyond its 
reasonable control, if such failure could not have been overcome by the exercise 
of due diligence, due care, or foresight.  Circumstances may include, but are not 
limited to, acts of God or a public enemy; wars; acts of terrorism; riots; fires; 
floods; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; labor disputes; strikes; defaults of 
subcontractors/vendors; failure/delays in transportation; unforeseen freight 
embargoes; unusually severe weather; or any law/order/regulation/request of a 
state or local government entity, the U.S. Government, or of any agency, court, 
commission, or other instrumentality of any such governments.  Times of 
performance under this Agreement may be appropriately extended for excused 
delays if the Party whose performance is affected promptly notifies the other of 
the existence and nature of such delay. 

15.16 Publicity.  Without prior written approval of the other, neither Party shall use the 
other's name or make reference to the other Party or any of its employees in 
publications, news releases, advertising, speeches, technical papers, photographs, 
sales promotions, or publicity purposes of any form related to this work or data 
developed hereunder, unless disclosure of such materials is required by legal, 
accounting, or regulatory requirements beyond the disclosing Party's reasonable 
control.  Use of either Party's name may be made in internal documents, annual 
reports, and proposals.  This section shall survive expiration/termination of this 
Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County agrees that the State may 
use and refer to the County and any Eligible Recipients in any publication, news 
release, advertising, speech, technical paper, or for any other purposes. 



 

Page 21 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

15.17 Notice of Litigation.  Promptly, and in any event within one (1) business day after 
an officer or other authorized representative of the County obtains knowledge 
thereof, the County shall provide written notice to AHP of (i) any litigation or 
governmental proceeding pending against the County which could materially 
adversely affect the County's or any of its Eligible Recipient's ability to perform 
its obligations under this Agreement and the Program Requirements, and (ii) any 
other event which is likely to materially adversely affect the County or an Eligible 
Recipient's ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement and the 
Program Requirements. 

15.18 Survival.  Except as otherwise stated, sections that by their terms impose 
continuing obligations or establish continuing rights shall be deemed to survive 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

15.19 Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties, their successors, 
and assigns. 

15.20 Approvals.  Whenever this Agreement calls for a Party's approval or for CDSS’s 
approval, approval shall mean prior written approval (including via email), not to 
be unreasonably conditioned, delayed, or withheld, unless sole discretion is 
expressly noted. 

15.21 Counterparts; Electronic Signatures.  The Parties may sign this Agreement in 
several counterparts, each of which constitutes an original, but all of which 
together constitute one instrument.  Electronic signatures are valid and shall bind 
the Party delivering such signature. 

SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE 

 

 
 
 
 
 

  



 

Page 22 of 22                PROGRAM FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 

 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their duly 

authorized respective officers as of the day and year last written below. 
 

AHP: 
 
ADVOCATES FOR HUMAN 
POTENTIAL, INC. 
 

SPONSOR:  
 
COUNTY OF INYO 

By:  ___________________________ By:  ________________________________   

CHARLES GALLAND,  
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 

 
 

 MARILYN MANN, HHS DIRECTOR 

Date:  __________________________ 
 

Date:  __________________________ 

 

  

   
   
   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



List of Attachments 7480-CA CCE-CP_2058_INYO-01-G 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 

Title No. of Pages 

Attachment A – State Requirements 5 

Attachment B – Certification Regarding Lobbying and Conflicts of Interest 2 

Attachment C – CDSS Confidentiality and Information Security 
Requirements 

13 

Attachment D – Notice of Funding Availability 36 

Attachment E – Award Letters 4 



 

ATTACHMENT A STATE REQUIREMENTS 
 A-1 
 

Attachment A 
 

STATE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
1. California Civil Rights Requirements 

a. During the performance of this Agreement, County and its subcontractors shall 
not deny the Agreement's benefits to any person on the basis of race, religious 
creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, 
medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender 
identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and veteran status, 
nor shall they discriminate unlawfully against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, 
marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual 
orientation, or military and veteran status.  County shall ensure that the evaluation 
and treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free of such 
discrimination.  County and its subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of 
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code § 12900 et seq.), the 
regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 11000 et seq.), the 
provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the Government 
Code (Gov. Code §§ 11135 et seq.), the regulations or standards adopted by 
CDSS to implement such article, the Unruh Civil Rights Act (California Civil 
Code § 51), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

County shall permit access by representatives of the Department of Fair 
Employment and Housing, AHP and/or CDSS upon reasonable notice at any time 
during the normal business hours, but in no case less than 24 hours' notice, to such 
of its books, records, accounts, and all other sources of information and its 
facilities to ascertain compliance with this clause.  County and its subcontractors 
shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor 
organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement.  
(See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 11105.) 

County shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this 
section in all subcontracts to perform work under the Agreement. 

b. Pursuant to Public Contract Code § 2010, a person that submits a bid or proposal 
to, or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state agency 
with respect to any contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, 
under penalty of perjury, at the time the bid or proposal is submitted or the 
contract is renewed, all of the following: 

(1) CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  County certifies compliance with 
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code § 12900 et seq.), the 
regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 11000 et 



 

ATTACHMENT A STATE REQUIREMENTS 
 A-2 
 

seq.), the provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of 
the Government Code (Gov. Code §§ 11135 et seq.), the regulations or 
standards adopted by CDSS to implement such article, the Unruh Civil 
Rights Act (California Civil Code § 51), and Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964. 

(2) EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES:  For contracts executed or 
renewed after January 1, 2017, if County has an internal policy against a 
sovereign nation or peoples recognized by the United States government, 
County certifies that such policies are not used in violation of the Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code § 12900 et seq.), the 
regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 11000 et 
seq.), the provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of 
the Government Code (Gov. Code §§ 11135 et seq.), the regulations or 
standards adopted by CDSS to implement such article, the Unruh Civil 
Rights Act (California Civil Code § 51), and Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964. 

c. In the event of County's noncompliance with the requirements of the provisions 
herein or with any state or federal statutes, rules, regulations, or orders regarding 
civil rights or non-discrimination requirements, this Agreement may be cancelled, 
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and County may be declared 
ineligible for further state contracts or grants. 

d. County will include the contractor certification provisions required by this section 
in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by federal or state 
statutes, rules, regulations, or orders, so that such provisions will be binding upon 
each County or vendor.  County will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order AHP may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions. 

2. Subcontract Requirements 

a. County may enter into subcontracts for services to be performed pursuant to the 
Program Funding Agreement, provided such subcontracts are consistent with this 
Agreement and provided further that County follows its procurement policy, a 
copy of which has been previously provided to and approved by AHP.  AHP or 
CDSS reserve the right to approve or disapprove the selection of subcontractors 
and with advance written notice, require the substitution of subcontractors and 
require County to terminate subcontracts entered into in support of this 
Agreement. 

(1) Upon receipt of a written notice from AHP requiring the substitution 
and/or termination of a subcontract, County shall take steps to ensure the 
completion of any work in progress and select a replacement, if 
applicable, within thirty (30) calendar days, unless a longer period is 
agreed to by CDSS. 



 

ATTACHMENT A STATE REQUIREMENTS 
 A-3 
 

b. County shall maintain a copy of each subcontract, including supporting 
documentation of cost reasonableness for subcontracting services sand shall, upon 
request by AHP or CDSS, make copies available for approval, inspection, or 
audit. 

c. AHP and/or CDSS assume no responsibility for the payment of subcontractors 
used in the performance of this Agreement and/or subcontract agreements 
between the County and Eligible Recipients.  County accepts sole responsibility 
for the payment of subcontractors used in the performance of this Agreement 
and/or subcontract agreements between the County and Eligible Recipients. 

d. County is responsible for all performance requirements under this Agreement 
even though performance may be carried out through a subcontract. 

e. County shall ensure that all subcontracts for services include provision(s) 
requiring compliance with applicable terms and conditions specified in this 
Agreement. 

f. County agrees to include the following clause, relevant to record retention, in all 
subcontracts for services: 

Subcontractor agrees to maintain and preserve, until three years after 
termination of this Agreement and final payment of Program Funds, to 
permit AHP or CDSS or any duly authorized representative, to have 
access to, examine or audit any pertinent books, documents, papers and 
records related to this subcontract and to allow interviews of any 
employees who might reasonably have information related to such 
records. 

g. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, or as may be stipulated in 
writing by AHP, AHP shall be County’s sole point of contract for all matters 
related to performance and payment under this Agreement.  

h. County shall, as applicable, advise all subcontractors of their obligations to 
comply with this Attachment. 

3. Income Restrictions 

Unless otherwise stipulated in this Agreement, County agrees that any refunds, rebates, 
credits, or other amounts (including any interest thereon) accruing to or received by 
County under this Agreement shall be paid by County to AHP so that AHP can pay 
CDSS, to the extent that they are properly allocable to costs for which County has been 
reimbursed by AHP under this Agreement. 

4. Site Inspection 

The State has the right at all reasonable times to inspect or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed hereunder including subcontract-supported activities and 



 

ATTACHMENT A STATE REQUIREMENTS 
 A-4 
 

the premises in which it is being performed.  If any inspection or evaluation is made of 
the premises of County, County shall provide and shall require its contractors and 
subcontractors to provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and 
convenience of the authorized representatives in the performance of their duties.  All 
inspections and evaluations shall be performed in such a manner as will not unduly delay 
the work. 

5. Warranties 

County represents and warrants that: 

a. It is free to enter into and fully perform this Agreement. 

b. It has secured and will secure all rights and licenses necessary for its performance 
of this Agreement. 

c. It has not granted and shall not grant to any person or entity any right that would 
or might derogate, encumber, or interfere with any of the rights granted to AHP or 
CDSS in this Agreement. 

d. It has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that State funds will not 
be used in the performance of this Agreement for the acquisition, operation or 
maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright laws. 

e. It has no knowledge of any outstanding claims, licenses or other charges, liens, or 
encumbrances of any kind or nature whatsoever that could affect in any way 
County's performance of this Agreement. 

f. All materials and equipment furnished in accordance with this Agreement and all 
work performed by County will be of good and workmanlike quality, free from 
faults and defects, and in conformance with the Agreement. 

g. It shall comply with all applicable laws in connection with its performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement. 

h. The provisions set forth herein shall survive any termination or expiration of this 
Agreement or any Project schedule. 

6. Suspension or Stop Work Notification 

a. AHP may, at any time, issue a notice to suspend performance or stop work under 
this Agreement.  The initial notification may be a verbal or written directive 
issued by AHP's Designated Representative.  Upon receipt of said notice, County 
is to suspend and/or stop all, or any part of, the work called for by this 
Agreement. 

b. Written confirmation of the suspension or stop work notification with directions 
as to what work (if not all) is to be suspended and how to proceed will be 



 

ATTACHMENT A STATE REQUIREMENTS 
 A-5 
 

provided within thirty (30) working days of the verbal notification.  The 
suspension or stop work notification shall remain in effect until further written 
notice is received from AHP.  The resumption of work (in whole or part) will be 
at AHP's discretion and upon receipt of written confirmation. 

(1) Upon receipt of a suspension or stop work notification, County shall 
immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to 
minimize or halt the incurrence of costs allocable to the performance 
covered by the notification during the period of work suspension or 
stoppage. 

(2) Within ninety (90) days of the issuance of a suspension or stop work 
notification, AHP shall either: 

(a) Cancel, extend, or modify the suspension or stop work notification; 
or 

(b) Terminate the Agreement as provided for in the Cancellation/ 
Termination clause of the Agreement. 

c. If a suspension or stop work notification issued under this clause is canceled or 
the period of suspension or any extension thereof is modified or expires, County 
may resume work only upon written concurrence of AHP. 

d. If the suspension or stop work notification is cancelled and the Agreement 
resumes, changes to the services, deliverables, performance dates, and/or 
agreement terms resulting from the suspension or stop work notification shall 
require an amendment to the Agreement. 

e. If a suspension or stop work notification is not canceled and the Agreement is 
cancelled or terminated pursuant to the provision entitled Cancellation/ 
Termination, AHP shall allow reasonable costs resulting from the suspension or 
stop work notification in arriving at the settlement costs. 

f. In accordance with Article10 and Section 15.5 of the Agreement, AHP shall not 
be liable to County or its subcontractors for loss of profits because of any 
suspension or stop work notification issued under this clause. 

7. Compliance with Statutes and Regulations 

a. County shall comply with all applicable California and federal law, regulations, 
and published guidelines in connection with this Agreement.

 
  



ATTACHMENT B CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

B-1

Attachment B 

State of California 
Department of Social Services 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

1. By entering into the Agreement and accepting Program Funds, County is in compliance
with the Political Reform Act of 1978 and regulations promulgated by the Fair Political Practices
Commission (FPPC) regarding requirements relating to lobbying and conflicts of interest.

1. County is aware of California state laws and regulations regarding employing current or
former state employees.  If County has any questions on the status of any person rendering
services or involved with the Agreement, AHP must be contacted immediately for clarification.

(a) Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code § 10410):  1). No officer or
employee of the State shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which
the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is
sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is
required as a condition of regular state employment.  No officer or employee of the State
shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any state agency
to provide goods or services.

(b) Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code § 10411):  1). For the two-year
period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer or employee
may enter into a contract in which they engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions,
planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making process relevant to the
contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency.  For the twelve-month
period from the date they left state employment, no former state officer or employee may
enter into a contract with any state agency if they were employed by that state agency in a
policy-making position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within
the 12-month period prior to their leaving state service.



ATTACHMENT B CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

B-2

If County violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by County shall 
render this Agreement void (Pub. Contract Code § 10420).  Members of boards and 
commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive payment other than 
payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and 
payment for per diem (Pub. Contract Code § 10430(e)). 

After execution by or on behalf of County, please return to: 
California Department of Social Services

County of Inyo, a political 
subdivision of the State of California, 
acting through its Health and 
Human Services Marilyn Mann 

Name of County Printed Name of Person Signing for County 

Contract Number 5180-213097 

Contract Number Signature of Person Signing for County 

HHS Director 

Date Title 



Attachment C 

The California Department of Social Services 
Confidentiality and Information Security Requirements 

County - v 2019 01 

This Confidentiality and Information Security Requirements – Attachment C (hereinafter referred 
to as "this Exhibit" or "Attachment C") sets forth the information security and privacy requirements 
County is obligated to follow with respect to all confidential and sensitive information (as defined 
herein) disclosed to or collected by County, pursuant to the Agreement in which this Attachment 
is incorporated.  CDSS, AHP and County desire to protect the privacy and provide for the security 
of CDSS Confidential, Sensitive, and/or Personal (CSP) Information (hereinafter referred to as 
"CDSS CSP") in compliance with state and federal statutes, rules and regulations. 

 . Order of Precedence.  With respect to information security and privacy requirements for 
all CDSS CSP, unless specifically exempted, the terms and conditions of this Attachment 
shall take precedence over any conflicting terms or conditions set forth in any other part of 
the Agreement between County and AHP. 

I. Effect on lower tier transactions.  The terms of this Attachment shall apply to all lower
tier transactions (e.g., agreements, sub-agreements, contracts, subcontracts, and sub-
awards, etc.).  County shall incorporate the contents of this Attachment into each lower tier
transaction.

II. Confidentiality of Information.

a. DEFINITIONS.  The following definitions apply to this Attachment and relate to
CDSS Confidential, Sensitive, and/or Personal Information:

i. "Confidential Information" is information maintained by CDSS that is
exempt from disclosure under the provisions of the California Public
Records Act (Government Code sections 6250 et seq.) or has restrictions on
disclosure in accordance with other applicable state or federal laws.

ii. "Sensitive Information" is information maintained by CDSS which is not
confidential by definition, but requires special precautions to protect it from
unauthorized access and/or modification (i.e., financial or operational
information).  Sensitive information is information in which the disclosure
would jeopardize the integrity of CDSS (i.e., CDSS' fiscal resources and
operations).

iii. "Personal Information" is information, in any medium (paper, electronic, or
oral) that identifies or describes an individual (i.e., name, social security
number, driver's license, home/mailing address, telephone number,
financial matters with security codes, medical insurance policy number,
Protected Health Information (PHI), etc.) and must be protected from
inappropriate access, use or disclosure, and must be made accessible to

ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

C-1



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

C-2

information subjects upon request.  It can also be information in the 
possession of the Department in which the disclosure is limited by law or 
contractual Agreement (i.e., proprietary information, etc.). 

iv. "Breach" is

1. the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of CDSS
CSP in a manner which compromises the security, confidentiality or
integrity of the information; or the same as the definition of "breach
of the security of the system" set forth in California Civil Code
section 1798.29(f).

v. "Information Security Incident" is

1. unauthorized access or disclosure, modification or destruction of, or
interference with, CDSS CSP that actually or potentially jeopardizes
the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of an information system
or the information the system processes, stores, or transmits or that
constitutes a violation or imminent threat of violation of any state or
federal law or in a manner not permitted under the Agreement,
including this Exhibit.

b. CDSS CSP which may become available to County as a result of the
implementation of the Agreement shall be protected by County from unauthorized
access, use, and disclosure as described in this Attachment.

c. County is notified that unauthorized disclosure of CDSS CSP may be subject to
civil and/or criminal penalties under state and federal law, including but not limited
to:

 California Welfare and Institutions Code section 10850

 Information Practices Act – California Civil Code section 1798 et seq.

 Public Records Act – California Government Code section 6250 et seq.

 California Penal Code section 502, 11140–11144, 13301–13303

 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA") – 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164

 Safeguarding Information for the Financial Assistance Programs – 45 CFR Part
205.50

 Unemployment Insurance Code section 14013

d. EXCLUSIONS.  "Confidential Information," "Sensitive Information," and
"Personal Information" (CDSS CSP) does not include information that:



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-3 
 

i. is or becomes generally known or available to the public other than because 
of a breach by County of these confidentiality provisions; 

ii. already known to County before receipt from CDSS without an obligation 
of confidentiality owed to CDSS; 

iii. provided to County from a third party except where County knows, or 
reasonably should know, that the disclosure constitutes a breach of 
confidentiality or a wrongful or tortious act; or 

iv. independently developed by County without reference to CDSS CSP. 

III. County Responsibilities. 

a. TRAINING.  County shall instruct all employees, agents, and subcontractors with 
access to CDSS CSP regarding: 

i. The confidential nature of the information; 

ii. The civil and criminal sanctions against unauthorized access, use, or 
disclosure found in the California Civil Code section 1798.55, Penal Code 
section 502 and other state and federal laws; 

iii. CDSS procedures for reporting actual or suspected information security 
incidents in Paragraph V – Information Security Incidents and/or Breaches; 
and 

iv. That unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of CDSS CSP is grounds for 
immediate termination of this Agreement and may be subject to penalties, 
both civil and criminal. 

b. USE RESTRICTIONS.  County shall take the appropriate steps to ensure that their 
employees, agents, and subcontractors will not intentionally seek out, read, use, or 
disclose CDSS CSP other than for the purposes described in the Agreement and to 
meet its obligations under the Agreement. 

c. DISCLOSURE OF CDSS CSP.  County shall not disclose any individually 
identifiable CDSS CSP to any person other than for the purposes described in the 
Agreement and to meet its obligations under the Agreement. 

d. SUBPOENA.  If County receives a subpoena or other validly issued administrative 
or judicial notice requesting the disclosure of CDSS CSP, County will immediately 
notify the AHP Project Director and CDSS Information Security and Privacy 
Officer.  In no event should notification to CDSS occur more than three (3) business 
days after receipt by County's responsible unit for handling subpoenas and court 
orders. 

e. INFORMATION SECURITY OFFICER.  County shall designate an 



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-4 
 

Information Security Officer to oversee its compliance with this Attachment and to 
communicate with CDSS on matters concerning this Attachment. 

f. REQUESTS FOR CDSS CSP BY THIRD PARTIES.  County shall promptly 
transmit to the AHP Project Director and CDSS Information Security and Privacy 
Officer all requests for disclosure of any CDSS CSP requested by third parties to 
the Agreement (except from an individual for an accounting of disclosures of the 
individual's personal information pursuant to applicable state or federal law), unless 
prohibited from doing so by applicable state or federal law. 

g. DOCUMENTATION OF DISCLOSURES FOR REQUESTS FOR 
ACCOUNTING.  County shall maintain an accurate accounting of all requests for 
disclosure of CDSS CSP Information and the information necessary to respond to 
a request for an accounting of disclosures of personal information as required by 
Civil Code section 1798.25, or any applicable state or federal law. 

h. RETURN OR DESTRUCTION OF CDSS CSP ON EXPIRATION OR 
TERMINATION.  Upon expiration or termination of the Agreement between 
County and AHP, or upon a date mutually agreed upon by the Parties following 
expiration or termination, County shall return or destroy CDSS CSP.  If return or 
destruction is not feasible, County shall provide a written explanation to the AHP 
Project Director and CDSS Information Security and Privacy Officer, using the 
contact information in this Agreement.  CDSS, in its sole discretion, will make a 
determination of the acceptability of the explanation and, if retention is permitted, 
shall inform County in writing of any additional terms and conditions applicable to 
the retention of CDSS CSP. 

i. RETENTION REQUIRED BY LAW.  If required by state or federal law, County 
may retain, after expiration or termination, CDSS CSP for the time specified as 
necessary to comply with the law. 

j. RECORDS RETENTION:  Maintain all project materials and records pertaining 
to service delivery and fiscal and administrative controls for three years after final 
payment has been made under the terms of this Agreement, or until all pending 
county, State and federal audits are completed, whichever is later. County agrees 
that the State or its designated representative shall have the right to review and copy 
any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the performance of this 
Agreement. Upon request, the County shall promptly make these materials and 
records available to the State or its representative including the State Auditor. 
County agrees to allow the State or its representative access to such records during 
normal business hours and to allow interviews of any employees or others who 
might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, County agrees 
to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any 
subcontract related to this Agreement. 

k. OBLIGATIONS CONTINUE UNTIL RETURN OR DESTRUCTION.  
County's obligations regarding the confidentiality of CDSS CSP set forth in this 



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-5 
 

Agreement, including but not limited to obligations related to responding to Public 
Records Act requests and subpoenas, shall continue until County returns or destroys 
CDSS CSP or returns CDSS CSP to CDSS; provided, however, that on expiration 
or termination of the Agreement between County and AHP, County shall not further 
use or disclose CDSS CSP except as required by state or federal law. 

l. NOTIFICATION OF ELECTION TO DESTROY CDSS CSP.  If County elects 
to destroy CDSS CSP, County shall certify in writing, to the AHP Project Director 
and CDSS Information Security and Privacy Officer, using the contact information, 
that CDSS CSP has been destroyed. 

m. BACKGROUND CHECK.  Before a member of County's workforce may access 
CDSS CSP, County must conduct a thorough background check of that worker and 
evaluate the results to assure that there is no indication that the worker may present 
a risk to CDSS information technology systems and/or CDSS data.  County shall 
retain each workforce member's background check documentation for a period of 
three (3) years following Agreement termination. 

n. CONFIDENTIALITY SAFEGUARDS.  County shall implement administrative, 
physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of CDSS CSP that it creates, receives, 
maintains, uses, or transmits pursuant to the Agreement.  County shall develop and 
maintain a written information privacy and security program that includes 
administrative, technical and physical safeguards appropriate to the size and 
complexity of County's operations and the nature and scope of its activities, 
including at a minimum the following safeguards: 

i. General Security Controls 

1. Confidentiality Acknowledgement.  By executing the Agreement 
and signing Paragraph XI, CDSS Confidentiality and Security 
Compliance Statement, County acknowledges that the information 
resources maintained by CDSS and provided to County may be 
confidential, sensitive, and/or personal and requires special 
precautions to protect it from wrongful access, use, disclosure, 
modification, and destruction. 

2. Workstation/Laptop Encryption.  All County-owned or managed 
workstations, laptops, tablets, smart phones, and similar devices that 
process and/or store CDSS CSP must be encrypted using a FIPS 
140-2 certified algorithm which is 128 bit or higher, such as 
Advanced Encryption Standard (AES).  The encryption solution 
must be full disk unless approved by CDSS Information Security 
Office. 

3. Data Encryption.  Any CDSS CSP shall be encrypted at rest when 
stored on network file shares or document repositories. 



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-6 
 

4. Server Security.  Servers containing unencrypted CDSS CSP must 
have sufficient administrative, physical, and technical controls in 
place to protect that data, based upon a risk assessment/system 
security review. 

5. Minimum Necessary.  Only the minimum necessary amount of 
CDSS CSP required to perform necessary business functions may be 
copied, downloaded, or exported. 

6. Removable Media Devices.  All electronic files that contain CDSS 
CSP must be encrypted when stored on any removable media or 
portable device (i.e., USB thumb drives, floppies, CD/DVD, smart 
phone, backup tapes, etc.).  Encryption must be a FIPS 140-2 
certified algorithm which is 128 bit or higher, such as AES. 

7. Antivirus Software.  All County-owned or managed workstations, 
laptops, tablets, smart phones, and similar devices that process 
and/or store CDSS CSP must install and actively use comprehensive 
anti-virus software solution with automatic updates scheduled at 
least daily. 

8. Patch Management.  To correct known security vulnerabilities, 
County shall install security patches and updates in a timely manner 
on all County-owned or managed workstations, laptops, tablets, 
smart phones, and similar devices that process and/or store CDSS 
CSP as appropriate based on County's risk assessment of such 
patches and updates, the technical requirements of County's 
systems, and the vendor's written recommendations.  If patches and 
updates cannot be applied in a timely manner due to hardware or 
software constraints, mitigating controls will be implemented based 
upon the results of a risk assessment. 

9. User IDs and Password Controls.  All users must be issued a 
unique user name for accessing CDSS CSP.  County's password 
policy must be based on information security best practices for 
password length, complexity, and reuse. 

10. Data Destruction.  Upon termination of the Agreement, all CDSS 
CSP must be sanitized in accordance with NIST Special Publication 
800-88, Guidelines for Media Sanitization. 

ii. System Security Controls 

1. System Timeout.  The system providing access to CDSS CSP must 
provide an automatic timeout, requiring re-authentication of the user 
session after no more than thirty (30) minutes of inactivity for 
applications, and fifteen (15) minutes of inactivity for desktops and 



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-7 
 

laptops. 

2. Warning Banners.  All systems (servers, desktops, laptops, etc.) 
containing CDSS CSP must display a warning banner at login 
stating that data is confidential, systems are logged, and system use 
is for business purposes only.  User must be directed to log off the 
system if they do not agree with these requirements. 

3. System Logging.  The system must maintain an automated audit 
trail which can identify the user or system process which initiates a 
request for CDSS CSP, or which alters CDSS CSP.  The audit trail 
must be date and time stamped, must log both successful and failed 
accesses, must be read only, and must be restricted to authorized 
users.  If CDSS CSP is stored in a database, database logging 
functionality must be enabled.  Audit trail data must be archived for 
at least one (1) year after occurrence. 

4. Access Controls.  The system must use role-based access controls for 
all user authentications, enforcing the principle of least privilege. 

5. Transmission Encryption.  All data transmissions of CDSS CSP 
by County outside the secure internal network must be encrypted 
using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm, such as Advanced 
Encryption Standard (AES), with a 128-bit key or higher.  
Encryption can be end-to-end at the network level, or the data files 
containing CDSS CSP can be encrypted.  This requirement pertains 
to any type of CDSS CSP in motion such as website access, file 
transfer, and email. 

6. Intrusion Detection.  All systems involved in accessing, holding, 
transporting, and protecting CDSS CSP that are accessible via the 
Internet must be protected by a comprehensive intrusion detection 
and prevention solution. 

iii. Audit Controls 

1. System Security Review.  All systems processing and/or storing 
CDSS CSP must have at least an annual system risk 
assessment/security review which provides assurance that 
administrative, physical, and technical controls are functioning 
effectively and providing adequate levels of protection.  Reviews 
shall include vulnerability scanning tools. 

2. Log Reviews.  All systems processing and/or storing CDSS CSP 
must have a routine procedure in place to review system logs for 
unauthorized access. 



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-8 
 

3. Change Control.  All systems processing and/or storing CDSS CSP 
must have a documented change control procedure that ensures 
separation of duties and protects the confidentiality, integrity and 
availability of data. 

iv. Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Controls 

1. Disaster Recovery.  County must establish a documented plan to 
enable continuation of critical business processes and protection of 
the security of electronic CDSS CSP in the event of an emergency.  
Emergency means any circumstance or situation that causes normal 
computer operations to become unavailable for use in performing the 
work required under this Agreement for more than twenty-four (24) 
hours. 

2. Data Backup Plan.  County must have established documented 
procedures to backup CDSS CSP to maintain retrievable exact 
copies of CDSS CSP.  The plan must include a regular schedule for 
making backups, storing backups offsite, an inventory of backup 
media, and the amount of time to restore CDSS CSP should it be 
lost.  At a minimum, the schedule must be a weekly full backup and 
monthly offsite storage of CDSS data. 

v. Paper Document Controls 

1. Supervision of Information.  CDSS CSP in paper form shall not 
be left unattended at any time, unless it is locked in a file cabinet, 
file room, desk or office.  Unattended means that information may 
be observed by an individual not authorized to access the 
information.  CDSS CSP in paper form shall not be left unattended 
at any time in vehicles or planes and shall not be checked in baggage 
on commercial airplanes. 

2. Escorting Visitors.  Visitors to areas where CDSS CSP are 
contained shall be escorted, and CDSS CSP shall be kept out of sight 
while visitors are in the area. 

3. Confidential Destruction.  CDSS CSP must be disposed of through 
confidential means, such as cross-cut shredding and/or pulverizing. 

4. Removal of Information.  CDSS CSP must not be removed from 
the premises of County except for identified routine business 
purposes or with express written permission of CDSS. 

5. Faxing.  CDSS CSP that must be transmitted by fax shall require 
that County confirms the recipient fax number before sending, takes 
precautions to ensure that the fax was appropriately received, 



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-9 
 

maintains procedures to notify recipients if County's fax number 
changes, and maintains fax machines in a secure area. 

6. Mailing.  Paper copies of CDSS CSP shall be mailed using a secure, 
bonded mail service, such as Federal Express, UPS, or by registered 
U.S. Postal Service (i.e., accountable mail using restricted delivery).  
All packages must be double packed with a sealed envelope and a 
sealed outer envelope or locked box. 

IV. Information Security Incidents and/or Breaches of CDSS CSP 

i. CDSS CSP Information Security Incidents and/or Breaches Response 
Responsibility.  County shall be responsible for facilitating the Information 
Security Incident and/or Breach response process as described in California 
Civil Code 1798.82(f), and State Administrative Manual (SAM) section 
5340, Information Security Incident Management, including, but not 
limited to, taking: 

ii. Prompt corrective action to mitigate the risks or damages involved with the 
Information Security Incident and/or Breach and to protect the operating 
environment; and 

iii. Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure required by 
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. 

b. Discovery and Notification of Information Security Incidents and/or Breaches 
of CDSS CSP.  County shall notify the AHP Project Director and CDSS Information 
Security and Privacy Officer of an Information Security Incident and/or Breach as 
expeditiously as practicable and without unreasonable delay, taking into account 
the time necessary to allow County to determine the scope of the Information 
Security Incident and/or Breach, but no later than three (3) calendar days after the 
discovery of an Information Security Incident and/or Breach.  Notification is to be 
made by telephone call and email. 

c. Isolation of System or Device.  A system or device containing CDSS CSP 
compromised by an exploitation of a technical vulnerability shall be promptly 
disconnected or quarantined and investigated until the vulnerability is resolved.  
County will notify CDSS and AHP within two (2) business days of a confirmed 
exploitation of a technical vulnerability and keep CDSS and AHP informed as to 
the investigation until resolution of the vulnerability is completed. 

d. Investigation of Information Security Incidents and/or Breaches.  County shall 
promptly investigate Information Security Incidents and/or Breaches of CDSS CSP.  
CDSS shall have the right to participate in the investigation of such Information 
Security Incidents and/or Breaches.  CDSS shall also have the right to conduct its 
own independent investigation, and County shall cooperate fully in such 
investigations.  County is not required to disclose their un-redacted confidential, 



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-10 
 

proprietary, or privileged information.  County will keep CDSS fully informed of 
the results of any such investigation. 

e. Updates on Investigation.  County shall provide regular (at least once a week) email 
updates on the progress of the Information Security Incident and/or Breach 
investigation of CDSS CSP to the AHP Project Director and CDSS Information 
Security and Privacy Officer until the updates are no longer needed, as mutually 
agreed upon between County and the AHP Program Director/CDSS Information 
Security and Privacy Officer.  County is not required to disclose their unredacted 
confidential, proprietary, or privileged information. 

f. Written Report.  County shall provide a written report of the investigation to the 
AHP Project Director and CDSS Information Security and Privacy Officer within 
thirty (30) business days of the discovery of the Information Security Incident 
and/or Breach of CDSS CSP.  County is not required to disclose their unredacted 
confidential, proprietary, or privileged information.  The report shall include, but 
not be limited to, if known, the following: 

i. County point of contact information; 

ii. A description of what happened, including the date of the Information 
Security Incident and/or Breach of CDSS CSP and the date of the discovery 
of the Information Security Incident and/or Breach, if known; 

iii. A description of the types of CDSS CSP that were involved and the extent 
of the information involved in the Information Security Incident and/or 
Breach; 

iv. A description of the unauthorized persons known or reasonably believed to 
have improperly used or disclosed CDSS CSP; 

v. A description of where CDSS CSP is believed to have been improperly 
transmitted, sent, or utilized; 

vi. A description of the probable causes of the improper use or disclosure; 

vii. Whether Civil Code sections 1798.29 or 1798.82, or any other federal or 
state laws requiring individual notifications of breaches, are triggered; and 

viii. A full, detailed corrective action plan, including information on measures 
that were taken to halt and/or contain the Information Security Incident 
and/or Breach of CDSS CSP. 

g. Cost of Investigation and Remediation.  Per SAM section 5305.8, County shall 
be responsible for all direct and reasonable costs incurred by AHP or CDSS due to 
Information Security Incidents and/or Breaches of CDSS CSP resulting from 
County's failure to perform or from negligent acts of its personnel, and resulting in 



ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-11 
 

the unauthorized disclosure, release, access, review or destruction, or loss, theft or 
misuse of an information asset.  These costs include, but are not limited to, notice 
and credit monitoring for twelve (12) months for impacted individuals, AHP staff 
time, CDSS staff time, material costs, postage, media announcements, and other 
identifiable costs associated with the Information Security Incident, Breach and/or 
loss of data. 

V. Contact Information.  To direct communications to the above-referenced AHP and CDSS 
staff, County shall initiate contact as indicated herein.  AHP and CDSS reserve the right to 
make changes to the contact information below by giving written notice to County.  Said 
changes shall not require an amendment to this Attachment or the Agreement to which it 
is incorporated. 

AHP Project Director CDSS 
Information Security & Privacy Officer 

 
 
 
See Summary Cover Sheet of the Program 

Funding Agreement for AHP Project 
Director information 

 
California Department of Social Services 

Information Security & Privacy Officer 
744 P Street, MS 9-9-70 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
Email: iso@dss.ca.gov 

Telephone: (916) 651-5558 

VI. Audits and Inspections.  CDSS may inspect and/or monitor compliance with the 
safeguards required in this Attachment.  County shall promptly remedy any violation of 
any provision of this Attachment and shall certify the same to the AHP Project Director 
and CDSS Information Security and Privacy Officer in writing.  The fact that CDSS or 
AHP inspects, or fails to inspect, or has the right to inspect, does not relieve County of its 
responsibility to comply with this Attachment. 

VII. Amendment.  The Parties acknowledge that federal and state laws regarding information 
security and privacy rapidly evolve and that amendment of this Attachment may be 
required to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such laws.  The Parties 
specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to implement new standards and 
requirements imposed by regulations and other applicable laws relating to the security or 
privacy of CDSS CSP. 

VIII. Interpretation.  The terms and conditions in this Attachment shall be interpreted as 
broadly as necessary to implement and comply with regulations and applicable State laws.  
The Parties agree that any ambiguity in the terms and conditions of this Exhibit shall be 
resolved in favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with federal and state laws 
and regulations. 



 

ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-12 

 

IX. Termination.  An Information Security Incident and/or Breach of CDSS CSP by County, 
its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as determined by CDSS, may constitute a material 
breach of the Agreement between County and AHP and grounds for immediate termination 
of the Agreement. 

X. CDSS Confidentiality and Security Compliance Statement 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 
CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY COMPLIANCE STATEMENT v 2019 01 

Information resources maintained by the California Department of Social Services (CDSS) 
and provided to County may be confidential, sensitive, and/or personal and requires special 
precautions to protect it from wrongful access, use, disclosure, modification, and 
destruction. 

We hereby acknowledge that the confidential and/or sensitive records of CDSS are subject 
to strict confidentiality requirements imposed by state and federal law, which may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: the California Welfare and Institutions Code § 10850, 
Information Practices Act – California Civil Code § 1798 et seq., Public Records Act – 
California Government Code § 6250 et seq., California Penal Code § 502, 11140–11144, 
13301–13303, Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA") – 
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, and Safeguarding Information for the Financial Assistance 
Programs – 45 CFR Part 205.50.  Contractor agrees to comply with the laws applicable to 
CDSS CSP received. 

This Confidentiality and Security Compliance Statement must be signed and returned with 
the Agreement. 

Project Representative 

Name (Printed): Marilyn Mann 

Title: HHS Director 

Business Name: 
 
County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of 
California, acting through its Health and Human Services 

Email Address: mmann@inyocounty.us 

Phone: 760-873-3305 

Signature:  

Date Signed:  
 
 
  



 

ATTACHMENT C CDSS CONFIDENTIALLY AND 
 INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 C-13 

 

READ and ACKNOWLEDGED: Information Security Officer 
(or authorized official responsible for business' information security program) 

Name (Printed): Jayme Westervelt 

Title: Interim Information Services Director 

Business Name: 
 
County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of 
California, acting through its Health and Human Services 

Email Address: jwestervelt@inyocounty.us 

Phone: 760-878-0392 

Signature:  

Date Signed:  



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-1 
 

Attachment D 
 

Notice of Funding Availability 
 

 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-2 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-3 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-4 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-5 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-6 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-7 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-8 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-9 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-10 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-11 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-12 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-13 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-14 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-15 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-16 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-17 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-18 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-19 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-20 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-21 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-22 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-23 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-24 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-25 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-26 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-27 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-28 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-29 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-30 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-31 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-32 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-33 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-34 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-35 
 



 

ATTACHMENT D Notice of Funding Availability 
 D-36 
 

 



ATTACHMENT E AWARD LETTERS 
E-1

Attachment E 

AWARD LETTERS 

August 23, 2022 

Inyo County 

Attn: Anna Scott, Assistant HHS Director 

HHS 

1360 N. Main St. 

Bishop, CA, 93514 

SUBJECT: Community Care Expansion Preservation Program Award Letter 

Dear Assistant Director Anna Scott: 

Thank you for your interest in the California Department of Social Services (CDSS) 

Community Care Expansion (CCE) Preservation Program. CDSS is pleased to inform 

you that Inyo County is awarded the following allocation(s) to administer and implement 

the CCE Preservation Program:  

• $200,000 is awarded for the Capital Project (CP) program

According to the Director Certification submitted by your county, the CCE Preservation 

Program will be administered by Health and Human Services. The Director Certification 

also indicated that your county could accept additional CP funds, should they become 

available. Additional information relating to any additional funds will be released under 

separate cover.  

CCE Preservation Program funds must be used consistent with the program guidelines 

outlined in the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) to immediately preserve and avoid 

the closure of licensed residential adult and senior care facilities serving qualified 

residents, defined as applicants or recipients of Supplemental Security Income/State 

Supplementary Payment (SSI/SSP) or Cash Assistance Program for Immigrants 

(CAPI), including those who are experiencing or at risk of homelessness.  

Advocates for Human Potential, Inc. (AHP), the CCE administrative entity will collect an 

Implementation Plan and issue a Standard Agreement contract. The Standard 

Agreement will outline expectations and responsibilities related to acceptance of the 

award, including incorporation of funding terms and conditions outlined in the NOFA and 

the signed Director Certification. The CCE Preservation Program grant award is not 

final, and no funding will be disbursed, until a contract has been fully executed, which 



ATTACHMENT E AWARD LETTERS 
E-2

occurs when the contract is signed by authorized representatives for both Inyo County 

and AHP. Prior to that time, the CDSS and AHP have the right to conduct additional due 

diligence to ensure fulfillment of all programmatic and fiscal requirements, including but 

not limited to, eligibility and award amount. Any costs incurred outside the performance 

period of a fully executed contract may not be reimbursed.   

CDSS appreciates your interest and partnership in implementing the CCE Preservation 

Program. If you have any questions, please contact the AHP team at 

cce.preservation@ahpnet.com. 

Sincerely, 

Julie McQuitty 

Chief, Program Policy and Quality Assurance Branch 

Housing and Homelessness Division 

California Department of Social Services 



ATTACHMENT E AWARD LETTERS 
E-3

April 7, 2023 

Inyo County  
Anna Scott, Assistant Director 
Health and Human Services 
1360 N. Main St. 
Bishop, CA  93514 

SUBJECT: Community Care Expansion (CCE) Preservation Program Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2022-23 Award Letter and Final Award Amount 

Dear Assistant Director Anna Scott: 

Thank you for your continued interest in the California Department of Social Services 
(CDSS) Community Care Expansion (CCE) Program. 

The Director Certification submitted by your county indicated that your county could 
accept additional OSP funds and additional Capital Project (CP) funds, should they be 
available.  The remaining program funds from the CCE Preservation FY 2021-22 for 
OSPs and CPs are now available to participating counties.  CDSS is distributing these 
remaining funds consistent with the need-based methodology described in Section IV of 
the All County Welfare Directors Letter (ACWDL) dated December 14, 2022. 

In addition to the FY 2022-23 augmentation outlined above, Inyo County is awarded 
$3,113 in additional CP funds from the remaining FY 2021-22 appropriation.  These 
funds were also redistributed consistent with the need-based methodology described in 
Section IV of the All County Welfare Directors Letter 
(ACWDL) dated December 14, 2022. 



ATTACHMENT E AWARD LETTERS 
E-4

In total, Inyo County is awarded the following allocation(s) to administer and implement 
the CCE Preservation Program: 

• $203,113 for CP funds

Funds must be used to support CCE Preservation operations as described in the Notice 
of Funding Availability (NOFA) dated June 10, 2022, and the ACWDL dated December 
14, 2022.  Funds used for the purpose of OSPs must be obligated no later than June 
30, 2027 and liquidated no later than June 30, 2029.  Funds used for the purposes of 
CPs must be obligated no later than June 30, 2024 and liquidated no later than 
December 31, 2026. 

Following the release of this award letter, Advocates for Human Potential, Inc. (AHP) 
will issue a Program Funding Agreement.  The Program Funding Agreement will outline 
expectations and responsibilities related to acceptance of the award, including 
incorporation of funding terms and conditions outlined in the NOFA, ACWDL, and the 
signed Director’s Certification.  The CCE Preservation Program grant award is not final, 
and no funding will be disbursed, until a Program Funding Agreement has been fully 
executed, which occurs when the Program Funding Agreement is signed by authorized 
representatives for both Inyo County and AHP.  Prior to that time, the CDSS and AHP 
have the right to conduct additional due diligence to ensure fulfillment of all 
programmatic and fiscal requirements, including but not limited to, eligibility and award 
amount.  Any costs incurred outside the performance period of a fully executed Program 
Funding Agreement may not be reimbursed. 

Please contact AHP at cce.preservation@ahpnet.com with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

JULIE MCQUITTY, Branch Manager 
Program Policy and Quality Assurance Branch 
Housing and Homelessness Division 
California Department of Social Services 

CC: 
Melissa Best Baker 
Lori Bengochia



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3843  

 

Life Generations Healthcare, LLC Amendment No. 1 
Provision of Mental Health Services 

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lucy Vincent Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Life Generations 
Healthcare LLC of Lakeside, CA, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $100,000 and 
extending the term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval 
of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
We have contracted with Life Generations Healthcare LLC, since October 1, 2022, as we have a need 
for a placement facility that accepts patients with co-occurring dementia and mental illness who require a 
Level 5 secure facility.  Life Generations also has several Level 4 skilled nursing facilities and 
rehabilitation facilities in California that accept Medicare and Medi-Cal. We respectfully request approval 
of Amendment No. 1 to the agreement to accommodate the patient who is in need of this level of 
placement. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

100% Mental Health Realignment Funds (clients 
may partially reimburse with SSI payments).   

Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5508 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

The Board could choose not to approve this agreement.  This would jeopardize the placement of a LPS 
conservatee. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Inyo County Courts. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Life Generations Healthcare Contract Amendment No. 1  
  
APPROVALS: 
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 6/7/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/7/2023 
Lucy Vincent Approved - 6/8/2023 
Kimball Pier Approved - 6/13/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/13/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/16/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/16/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/19/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/19/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 
   

  

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO THE  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

LIFE GENERATIONS HEALTHCARE LLC 
FOR THE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Life Generations 
Healthcare LLC (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the 
Provision of Mental Health Services dated March 31, 2023, for the term from October 1, 2022 to June 30, 
2023. 
 
 WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 
 
Paragraph 2 (Term) shall be amended to extend the term of the Agreement until June 30, 2024. 
 
Paragraph 3(D) (Limit upon amount payable under Agreement) shall be amended to increase the not to 
exceed amount to One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is  ________. 
 

 All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.  
 
  
 
 



Page 2 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO THE  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

LIFE GENERATIONS HEALTHCARE LLC 
FOR THE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
______  DAY OF  _________________________,  __________. 

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR 

By: ____________________________________       By: __________________________________ 
    Signature 

Dated:_________________________________   
      ___________________________________ 

    Type or Print 

Dated: ________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

________________________________________ 
County Counsel  

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

_________________________________________ 
County Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

_________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 

__________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  

Lois Mastrocola

06/08/2023



























 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

CONTRACTOR agrees to provide COUNTY with Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) 
services/Special Treatment Program (STP) services, or other such services as required by 
the licensure of the facility to mentally disabled adult persons ages 18 years and older 
pursuant to: Welfare and Institutions Code, Division 5, commencing with Section 5000; 
California Code of Regulations Title 22, Sections 72443- 72475 and Title 9, Sections 
786.0-786.23; California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), formerly the 
California Department of Mental Health (DMH) , Policies and Directives; and other 
applicable statutes and regulations according to facilities licensure requirements. 

1. Compliance with Medi-Cal Mental Health Plan (MHP) Requirements: 

1.1. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable provisions of the COUNTY MHP 
or successor contract with the State of California which is in effect at the time 
services are provided, available from COUNTY upon request. All services, 
documentation, and reporting shall be provided in conformity with the 
requirements of all pertinent laws, regulations, and County requirements. 

1.2. CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of the State of 
California Standard Agreement between COUNTY and DHCS for Managed 
Mental Health Care including, but not limited to, payment authorizations, 
utilization review, beneficiary brochure and provider lists, service planning, 
cooperation with the State Mental Health Plan’s Quality Improvement (QI) 
Program, and cost reporting. A copy of the Standard Agreement will be 
provided to CONTRACTOR by COUNTY under separate cover upon request. 

1. Goals and Outcomes 
 

Contractor’s program shall have the following goals and objectives: 
 

1.1. Goals: 

1.1.1. To aid patients in reconstituting from the crisis that precipitated 
their acute hospitalization, to prevent further disintegration that 
could lead to acute hospitalization, to prevent placement in more 
restrictive longer-term settings. 

1.1.2. The facility shall offer no less than 27 program hours per week. 
Patients shall demonstrate improved functional behavior, as measured 
by movement through the facility levels of assessment phase. 

1.1.3. To explore individual potential for improvement of quality of life, so as to 
significantly reduce recidivism to acute care facilities and prevent 
admission to other locked long- term care facilities or state hospitals. 



1.1.4. To develop alternative therapeutic interventions for the target 
population that will enable them to remain in the community for 
significantly longer periods of time. 

 
1.1.5. Clients shall have reduced medication levels, as measured 

through medication usage as medically appropriate. 

1.1.6. The Contractor’s program shall offer benefit to clients through a variety 
of rehabilitation services such as (but not limited to) the following: 
individualized and group counseling; AA/NA/12 step groups; 
educational and GED prep sessions; wellness and recovery groups; art 
therapy; relapse prevention groups; nutritional counseling; life skills 
training; stress reduction; self-management skills; exercise group, 
social skills groups; DBT; CBT; peer support; vocational training and 
groups; personal motivation groups; pharmacology groups; and anger 
management. 

1.2. Outcome Objectives: 

1.2.1. Ninety percent (90%) of clients with a planned discharge 
(excluding clients who elope and do not return or who die) have 
improved their functioning 

1.2.2. At least 90% of residents admitted will complete six months of 
residency or be successfully placed at a lower level of care. 
Patients who are discharged and readmitted within three weeks 
will be considered to have continuous residency. 

1.2.3. For patients completing three months of residency, acute psychiatric 
hospitalization will be reduced 70% in the six months following discharge 
compared to the average six-month period in the two years prior to 
admission. 

1.2.4. Recidivism: At least 60% of patients with a planned termination will not 
be admitted in an acute care psychiatric hospital within six months after 
discharge. 

2. Target Population and Geographic Area 

2.1. Target Population: Contractor shall provide the services described herein to the 
following target population: 

2.1.1. Contractor shall serve patients who have a chronic psychiatric 
impairment and whose adaptive functioning is impaired as described 
and defined in Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 
51335. 72443-72475. 

2.1.2. The population to be served by this program is mentally ill adults, from 
18 and older, in need of structured, round-the-clock psychiatric care and 



treatment. Most of the patients will have episodic psychiatric illnesses of 
long duration, which may be accompanied by medical problems. 

2.1.3. As a result their histories may be characterized with multiple previous 
hospitalizations in acute care, locked long-term care and/or State 
hospital facilities., detention under permanent conservatorships, 
alienation from their families of origin or conflicting family relationships, 
history of interrupted or aborted educations experiences, multiple 
fragmented contacts with community mental health and social service 
agencies, reliance on public assistance and supplemental income, 
inability to structure time or pursue long-range goals with any degree of 
success, a lack of social and vocational skills common to the age 
grouping into which these patients fall, and finally, a generally consistent 
expressed and active resistance to treatment. 

 
2.1.4. These patients tend to consume a disproportionate share of limited 

mental health resources. Caring for this targeted population requires 
specialized IMP/STP facilities. This is the most efficient and effective 
means of insuring their well-being. 

2.1.5. Individuals that are temporarily or permanently conserved, or may 
sign a voluntary admission agreement 

2.2. Service Locations and Hours of Operation 

2.2.1. Contractor facility addresses: 

 Heritage Park Nursing Center 

Address: 275 Garnet Way, Upland, CA 91786 

Phone: (909) 949-4887 

 Siena Skilled Nursing & Rehab 

Address: 11600 Education Street, Auburn, CA 95603 

Phone: (530) 889-0707 

 Lakeside Special Care  

Address: 11962 Woodside Avenue, Lakeside, CA 92040 

Phone: (619) 561-1222 

 Bradley Court  

Address: 675 E. Bradley Avenue, El Cajon, CA 92021 

Phone: (619) 448-6633 
 

3. Requirements for Service Delivery 



3.1. Contractor shall admit patients with a DSM V diagnosis subject to bed availability, 
the order of a physician, and compliance with reasonable admission policies and 
procedures and individuals in need of 24-hour skilled nursing services. Patients who 
may have histories of, and without adequate treatment are at risk of displaying 
behavioral symptoms which preclude them from being admitted into a lower-level 
care facility, shall also be considered acceptable for admission. Frequency, scope, 
and severity of these behaviors are a determining factor to be negotiated on an 
individual patient basis between COUNTY and the Contractor. It is agreed by 
COUNTY and the Contractor that individuals whose mental illness is deemed 
appropriate for acute care, as well as individuals suffering exclusively from 
developmental disability, mental retardation, or physical illnesses (without a 
psychiatric component) shall not be considered for admission. 

3.2. Contractor shall provide the basic service level (the minimum array of services 
provided to IMD patients) which fully comply with Title 22 of the California Code of 
Regulations. Section 72445 which includes, when appropriate, life skill training, 
money management, training on accessing community services, transitional 
programs, and discharge planning. It is further agreed by the Contractor that basic 
services shall also include reasonable access to required medical treatment and 
up-to-date psychopharmacology and transportation to needed off-site services and 
bilingual and bicultural programming, as appropriate. 

3.3. Services: Contractor shall provide, operate, and maintain an IMD/STP program in 
accord with the most current Title 22, California Code of Regulations related to 
Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) and Special Treatment Programs (STP) regulations, 
and the current Program Manual for Skilled Nursing Facilities with Special 
Treatment Programs from the State Department of Health Care Services. 

3.4. Bed Hold Days: When a client is out of the facility for up to 168 hours (7 days) due to 
extenuating circumstances (e.g., hospitalization at a non-Fee-for-Service Hospital, or 
an authorized visit to the client’s family), the Contractor shall be allowed to claim for 
bed hold days. With prior approval by the Contracting Officer’s Representative 
(“COR”), bed hold days may be billed at the negotiated rate per day less the 
estimated cost of food (see Exhibit C for payment). 

3.5. Contractor shall pay for ancillary costs at the direction of the COR based on the 
directive of the Department of Health Care Services. 

3.6. Contractor shall perform the following additional activities, but are not limited to: 
 

3.6.1. Actively participate in client discharge planning with County Adult 
Behavioral Health Services Case Manager and client. 

3.6.2. Participate in meetings as directed by the County, to support 
collaboration with the County, in order to ensure efficient process and 
operations. 



3.6.3. Cultural Competence: COR shall meet the standards as delineated in 
the County’s Cultural Competence Standards. 

3.7. Admission Criteria: 

3.7.1. To be eligible for admission, a patient must be: 

3.7.2. At least 18 years of age. 

3.7.3. Diagnosed as having a disabling psychiatric disorder such as 
Schizophrenia or affective disorders and require treatment in a 24-hour 
locked residential setting; and 

3.7.4. Temporarily or permanently conserved. 

3.7.5. Program Monitor: COUNTY shall designate a Program Monitor, who 
will assure that the program goals and objectives are met in 
accordance with contract terms and conditions. The Contractor will be 
notified in writing of the COUNTY designee responsible for program 
monitoring, referrals, approvals, and certification. 

3.7.6. Screening/Referral Process: 

3.7.6.1. COUNTY program monitor or designee will authorize all 
admissions of patients admitted to the facility under the terms of 
this contract. COUNTY will designate in writing the responsible 
individual(s) who will coordinate and be responsible for 
screening, referrals, and monitoring of this Agreement. 

3.7.6.2. Patients with complicated medical problems or conditions shall 
be carefully and individually screened with consultation from 
the Contractor’s program and medical staff prior to acceptance 
and admission. 

3.7.7. The following patients will not be acceptable for admission: 

3.7.7.1. Patients with an infectious disease for whom Contractor cannot 
provide proper isolation or who cannot cooperate with needed 
isolation procedures and restrictions. 

3.7.7.2. Any patient needing drug or alcohol detoxification. 

3.7.7.3. Those with a primary diagnosis of sociopathy or substance 
abuse. 

3.7.7.4. Patients under 18 years of age. 

3.7.7.5. Patients with incontinence will be evaluated on a case-by-case 
basis 

3.7.7.6. Patients on any life support equipment, i.e., oxygen or IV. 

3.7.7.7. Patients in which their medical or mental health needs cannot 
be provided with in the facility. 



3.7.7.8. Voluntary patients 

3.7.7.9. Patients that physically assaulted or harmed anyone in the last 30 
days 

 
3.7.7.10. Patients that are currently suicidal 

3.7.7.11. Patients in restraints 

3.7.8. Personal Considerations: 

3.7.8.1. Upon admission, Contractor shall inform the patient of 
Patient’s Rights as well as the rules and regulations of the 
program. Patient shall also be informed of the charge for 
care. 

3.7.8.2. Contractor shall maintain a policy of equal access to treatment 
and service or all applicants meeting admission criteria. Patient 
Certification: Certification and recertification procedures shall be 
completed by the facility staff and reviewed by the COUNTY. All 
patients must be certified and approved by COUNTY prior to 
admission. Contractor will not be paid for any patient that has 
not been certified and approved by COUNTY. Patients will be 
reviewed on a regular basis by COUNTY program monitor or 
designee. 

3.8. Clinical Program Description: 

3.8.1. The major components of the treatment program shall follow four, 
more or less defined segments of clinical recovery. 

3.8.2. Patient Orientation – The central focus of initial treatment will be to 
provide the patient with a safe, predictable, reality oriented physical 
and psychological environment. Treatment will address the reduction 
of presenting symptomatology, but from the start will begin to consider 
possible outcomes and placement options. 

3.8.3. Assessment and Treatment Planning – This process includes the 
interdisciplinary assessment of the patient and the development of an 
integrated treatment plan by the treatment team. 

3.8.4. Rehabilitation and Treatment Milieu – During their stay, the patients will 
participate in group and individual activities directed towards restoring 
and/or achieving increased levels of function and independence in order 
to promote rapid return to the community. 

3.8.5. Discharge Preparation – The final clinical segment will focus upon 
finalizing preparation of the patient for returning to community life in the 
least restrictive environment. Linkages will be established with 
community care providers and other support resources, and treatment 



will be scaled down with increasing privileges. Whenever possible and 
appropriate, coordination will be established with patients’ families. 

3.9. Discharge Criteria and Planning: The contractor shall designate staff to provide 
planning for client discharges to less restrictive levels of care and follow-up treatment 
to other licensed facilities in coordination with the County. The County Program 
Monitor reserves the right to discharge clients when they disagree with clinical 
judgment of the facility professional staff. Should such circumstances occur, it will be 
duly recorded in the client’s medical record that the discharge was made against 
medical advice. Contractor shall complete the County identified level of care tool at 
quarterly reviews beginning at six months of stay and when clients are discharged.

 
3.10. Limitations of Service: Any applicant shall be served if financial support can be 

provided by the patient, his/her family, county, billing State or Federal funding, or any 
other third-party payer. The program is not designed for patients whose mental 
impairments or need for nursing care services are higher than those provided by the 
Contractor. Contractor may discharge to acute psychiatric services any patient 
whose level of impairment requires acute hospitalization. 

3.11. Minimum Staffing Qualifications: Contractor shall comply with staffing requirements 
as are in Title 22, California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall have on file job 
description, including minimum qualifications for employment and duties performed 
for all personnel whose salaries, wages, and benefits are reimbursable in whole or in 
part under this contract. 

3.12. Prior Authorization: 

3.12.1. Process: COUNTY shall provide Contractor with a completed 
authorization form prior to each patient admission. A patient may be 
admitted on the basis of verbal authorization from the COUNTY 
designee by mutual consent of the COUNTY designee and 
Contractor. The COUNTY designee supplies a completed 
authorization form within ten (10) working days from the date of 
admission. 

3.12.2. Billing for Services: Contractor shall be responsible for applying for 
any third-party revenues, including the collection of SSI/SSP revenue. 

3.13. Contractor shall perform linkage and referrals to community-based organizations 
including, but not limited to, primary care clinics and complementary healing 
centers, faith-based congregations, ethnic organizations and peer-directed 
programs such as Clubhouses. 

3.14. Contractor’s program and services shall be trauma-informed and accommodate the 
vulnerabilities of trauma survivors and allow services to be delivered in a way that will 
avoid inadvertently re- traumatizing people and will facilitate consumer participation 
in services. 



3.15. To ensure equal access to quality care by diverse populations, each service 
provider receiving funds from this contract shall adopt the federal Office of Minority 
Health (OMH) Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Service (CLAS) national 
standards. The National CLAS standards are located at: 

https://www.thinkculturalhealth.hhs.gov/clas 
 

3.16. Tuberculosis (TB) Testing. Tuberculosis information can be found at the following 
website: 
http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/tuberculosis_control_program/guidel
ines_additio nal_res ources.html 

Contractor shall follow TB testing guidelines for all employees and client residents. 
 

4. Data Collection and Reporting Requirements 

4.1. Quarterly status reports 

5. Customer Satisfaction Surveys 

Contractor shall conduct semi-annual customer satisfaction surveys during 
the term of the contract. 

The survey shall include at minimum the following: 

 
 All major services provided 

 A survey of current customers 

 A survey of former customers 

 Rating of specific services offered or provided to the customer 

 A provision for comments in every survey. 

5.1. Contractor shall conduct the survey, compile the data and submit report findings 
to the County semi- annually. 

5.2. Contractor shall specify the total number of participants who responded to the 
survey compared to the total number of participants served. 

 
  





PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

This payment provision is subject to modification with written approval of the County Contract 

Administrator and the Revenue and Budget Manager, not to exceed the total payment 
indicated in Section 3 of the main Agreement. Payment shall be made to 
CONTRACTOR for the number of days service is provided under this Agreement 
pursuant to the following conditions and terms: 

For those COUNTY persons served under this Agreement ages 18 years and older,
COUNTY shall be responsible to CONTRACTOR for the SNF/STP rate approved by
California Department of Health Care Services which is currently identified as the
standard rate at the end of this Exhibit.
COUNTY shall also be responsible to CONTRACTOR for an additional Ancillary Services 
Rate as contained in the rate schedule at the end of this Exhibit. SNF/STP rates shall be 
adjusted in accordance with DHCS annual published rates (AB 1629). The designated 
COUNTY and CONTRACTOR staff shall mutually determine the Enhanced Level of Care 
for COUNTY persons. The maximum daily rate to be paid by COUNTY to
CONTRACTOR is a combination of the approved SNF/STP rate plus the applicable
Ancillary Services Rate.
The specific number of bed days purchased in the service type categories (SNF/STP)
may vary upon clinical need and availability, and no minimum is guaranteed. The specific
cost per bed in each of the aforementioned categories will be as contained at the end of
this exhibit. Any rate that is not listed (i.e., single room occupancy) will be negotiated and
agreed upon by both parties prior to the period for which the rate will be charged.
Bed Hold. Bed Holds once authorized, will remain in effect until which time the patient
returns to the facility or either party (County or facility) notifies the other of its desire to
discontinue the bed hold. The bed hold day rate may be authorized for patients on
unauthorized leave, AWOL, and status of COUNTY has been notified within one (1)
business day of the patient’s absence. Non-Medi-Cal eligible patients shall be charged
the Bed Hold rate to reserve their bed.
Patient Fees and Third-Party Billing:
5.1.  County residents receiving services as described in Section 1 shall be 

charged for such services in accordance with their ability to pay, but such charges 
shall not exceed the actual cost of providing such services.  CONTRACTOR shall 
determine patient fees for  County residents based upon the ability to pay 
principle.  CONTRACTOR shall establish policies and procedures for such fee 
assessment and collection including publication of current fee schedules for all 
billable services, which should be updated annually, covering all reimbursable 
costs.  At no time is CONTRACTOR free to withhold services due to a   County 
patient’s inability to pay for all or a portion of services at the time they are required. 
After this Agreement’s expiration or cancellation, CONTRACTOR will continue to bill 
patients monthly to collect all revenue for services rendered to  County 
residents during the term of this Agreement.  Patient fees collected from  
County residents shall be budgeted and utilized to offset the costs charged against 
this Agreement. 

5.2. Non-Medi-Cal beneficiaries receiving mental health services shall be charged fees in 
accordance with the DHCS Uniform Method of Determining Ability to Pay (UMDAP). 



CONTRACTOR shall report UMDAP fees paid to COUNTY annually. The patient’s 
annual liability shall be calculated in accordance with UMDAP effective 10/1/1989. 

5.3. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for billing and collecting from all third-party 
revenue sources for  County patients receiving services including, but not limited 
to, private insurance co- payments and Medi-Cal Share-of-Cost. CONTRACTOR 
shall recover the value of covered services rendered to beneficiaries whenever the 
beneficiaries are covered for the same services, either fully or partially, under any 
other State or Federal medical care program or under other contractual or legal 
entitlement including, but not limited to, a private group or indemnification program, 
but excluding instances of the tort liability of a third party or casualty liability 
insurance. 

5.4. CONTRACTOR shall first apply any  County patient revenues collected 
(including, but not limited to: patient fees, third party reimbursements, private 
contracts, VA, food stamps, general assistance, social security payments or any 
other source of  County patient revenues) to billable services as an offset to 
the costs charged against this Agreement. The remaining balance may be 
claimed against this contract funding. 

5.5. CONTRACTOR shall not submit a claim to, or demand or otherwise collect 
reimbursement from, the beneficiary or persons acting on behalf of the beneficiary 
for any specialty mental health or related administrative services provided under this 
contract, except to collect other health insurance coverage, share of cost, and co-
payments. 

RATE SCHEDULE FY 2021-2026 
Contractor payments will be reimbursed according to the following Payment Schedules: 

1.1 Skilled Nursing Facility/Special Treatment Program (SNF/STP) 

Item Statement 
of Work 

Reference 

Pay Point 
Description 

Daily Bed Rate 
Per Client 

Number of Days Per 
Fiscal Year (July 1st

through June 30th)

1 5.1 
through 

5.2 

Standard Rate Please see Exhibit A for Patch 
Rate Schedule 

(Less Client Fees*) 
365 

2 5.4 Bed Hold for 
Non-Medical 

occasion. 

Standard Rate 
Less Cost of Raw Food 

$8.73 per day for FY21-22 

Up to 7 days. Bed days in 
excess of 7 days must be 
approved in writing by the 
COR prior to invoicing the 
County. 

*Client Fees are any third-party fees received by the Contractor for the County contracted
clients. 



1.2 Ancillary Services - Cost Reimbursement: 
 

 
Item 

Statement 
of Work 

Reference 

 
Pay Point Description 

 
Pay Point 
Amount 

 
1 

 
5.5 

This pay point is for Contractor costs related to: 
Transportation Costs, Client Accompaniment to Doctor’s or 
Court Appointments, Costs to Move Clients to Contractor’s 
facility, and other Medical/Pharmaceutical services related 
to the care of County contracted clients that are not 
reimbursed by Medi-Cal, contract expenses for specialists 
needed to meet Client’s needs. It also includes any other 
expenses that need to be approved by the COR in advance 
on case-by-case basis based on funding availability. 
Contractor must request and receive written approval in 
advance from the COR prior to invoicing the County. 
Contractor shall pay for ancillary costs at the direction of the 
COR based on the directive of the Department 
of Health Care Services. 

 

Rates will be negotiated 
and agreed upon by 

both parties prior to the 
cost being incurred 

EXHIBIT A – PATCH RATE SCHEDULE FOR DAILY RATE

Item Pay Point Description Daily Rate per
Client

LTC Patch A Special Care Standard Rate
Adult Ambulatory Mental Health In
Patient Client/24 Hour Facility that
includes:
• Basic Care Services
• LTC Treatment Services
• Case Management Services

$275/day

LTC Patch B Special Care Additional Services Rate
Adult Adaptive, Special, Extraordinary
Needs Mental Health In Patient
Client/24 Hour Facility that includes
Adaptive, Special, Extraordinary Needs
Client/24 hours client facility that
includes:
• Basic Care Services
• LTC Treatment Services
• Case Management Services

$300/day

**LTC Indigent Rate Unfunded or Non contracted Medi Cal HMO A $450/day
B $475/day

LTC Murcon Patch Rate Murphy Client A $425/day
B $450/day



Item Pay Point Description Daily Rate per
Client

STP Patch A Special Care Standard Rate

Adult Ambulatory Mental Health In

Patient Client/24 Hour Facility that

includes:

• Basic Care Services

• Treatment Services

• Case Management Services

$325/day

STP Patch B Special Care Additional Services Rate

Adult Adaptive, Special, Extraordinary

Needs Mental Health In Patient

Client/24 Hour Facility that includes

Adaptive, Special, Extraordinary Needs

Client/24 hours client facility that

includes:

• Basic Care Services

• Treatment Services

• Case Management Services

$360/day

STP Patch C Special Care Additional Services

Intense Rate

Adult Adaptive, Special, Extraordinary

Needs Mental Health In Patient

Client/24 Hour Facility that includes

Adaptive, Special, Extraordinary Needs

Client/24 hours client facility that

includes:

• Basic Care Services

$395/day



• Treatment Services

• Case Management Services

• High acuity

• AWOL Risk

• Additional staffing required

**STP Indigent Rate Unfunded or Non contracted Medi Cal HMO A  $475/day

B  $500/day

C  $525/day

STP Murcon Patch Rate Murphy Client A  $475/day

B  $510/day

C  $545/day















































 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3840  

 

California Department of Aging FY 2023-24 Area Plan 
Agreement 

Health & Human Services - ESAAA 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Melissa Best-Baker, Deputy Director - Fiscal 
Oversight and Special Operations 

Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Contract No. AP-2324-16 with the California Department of Aging (CDA) for regional services to 
seniors, provided through the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA), in the amount of 
$1,560,586 for the period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s adoption 
of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the HHS Director to sign the Standard Agreement 
(STD 213), Information Integrity and Security Statement Certification, Contractor Certification Clause, 
and the California Civil Rights Laws Certification. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This contract is a standard State Contract with total annual funding of $1,560,586, which is a total 
decrease of $3,788 of the base allocation from the prior year.  This recognizes a decrease of $10,693 in 
IIIB Supportive Services; an increase of $2,769 in Ombudsman; a decrease  of $4,254 in Congregate 
Meals; an increase of $5,407 in Home Delivered Meals; an increase of $313 in Title IIID; an increase of 
$1,115 in Title IIIE; an decrease of $21 Title VII-Elder Abuse Prevention; and an increase of $1,576 in 
Administrative funds.  Acceptance of this contract ensures the receipt of federal and state funds to keep 
existing services going. Funding in the amount of $215,304 will be allocated to Mono County to provide 
their services to seniors. 
 
The State standard contract includes several changes which are summarized in the Attachment 3-
Summary of Changes (SOC) FINAL.  These include corrections to citations, typographical errors, 
updated links and clarifications. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

State and Federal dollars Budget Unit 683000 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4499 and 4552 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditures  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to ratify and approve this agreement. Failure to move forward on these 
requested actions will disrupt services to seniors in the region.  Receipt of any funding for ESAAA is 
contingent upon execution of this contract. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Standard Agreement AP-2324-16 
2. Scope of Work, etc. 
3. Summary of Changes  
4. Budget Display 
5. General Information 
6. Information Integrity and Security Statement 
7. CA Civil Rights Laws Certification 
8. Contractor Certification Clauses 
  
APPROVALS: 
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 6/13/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/13/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/14/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/16/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/16/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/16/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

          SCO ID: 4170-AP232416  
STATE OF CALIFORNIA – DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES  
STANDARD AGREEMENT 
STD 213 (Rev. 04/2020) 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 
AP-2324-16 

PURCHASING AUTHORITY NUMBER (If Applicable) 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the Contracting Agency and the Contractor named below: 
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 
California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTOR NAME  
County of Inyo 
2. The term of this Agreement is: 
START DATE 
7/1/2023 
THROUGH END DATE 
6/30/2024 
3. The maximum amount of this Agreement is: 
$  1,560,586   One million, five hundred sixty thousand, five hundred eighty-six and 00/100 dollars 
4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits, which are by this reference made a part of the Agreement.  

EXHIBITS TITLE PAGES 
Exhibit A Scope of Work 14 pages 
Exhibit A, Attachment 1 General Information 1 page 
Exhibit B Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout  11 pages 
Exhibit B, Attachment 1 Budget Display 1 page 
Exhibit C* General Terms and Conditions – GTC-4/2017* 0 pages 
Exhibit D Special Terms and Conditions 32 pages 
Exhibit E Additional Provisions 15 pages 

Items shown with an asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF,THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO.  

CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACTOR NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 
County of Inyo 
CONTRACTOR BUSINESS ADDRESS 
1360 North Main Street, Suite 201 

CITY 
Bishop 

STATE 
CA 

ZIP 
93514-3013 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 
 
 

TITLE 
 
 

CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 
California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTING AGENCY ADDRESS 
 2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 

CITY 
 Sacramento 

STATE 
 CA 

ZIP 
 95833 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 
Nate Gillen 

TITLE 
Chief, Business Management Branch 

CONTRACTING AGENCY AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES APPROVAL EXEMPTION (If Applicable) 
 
 
AG OP 80-111 
 
 

 
Page 1 of 1

 

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources


 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is purposefully left blank.



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 1 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS 

A. Definitions Specific to Title III and Title VII Programs  

1. Caregiver Assessment means a defined process of gathering information to 
identify the specific needs, barriers to carrying out caregiving responsibilities, and 
existing supports of a family caregiver or older relative caregiver, as identified by 
the caregiver involved, to appropriately target recommendations for support 
services described in section 373(b).  Such assessment shall be administered 
through direct contact with the caregiver, which may include contact through a 
home visit, the Internet, telephone, or teleconference, or in-person interaction. 
[OAA §372(a)(1)]  

2. Child means an individual who is not more than eighteen (18) years of age.   

3. Coordination means activities that involve the active participation of the Area 
Agency on Aging (AAA) staff to include liaison with non-Older Americans Act 
(OAA) funded agencies and organizations for the purpose of avoiding 
duplication, improving services, resolving problems related to service delivery, 
and addressing the service needs of the eligible service population. 

4. Eligible Service Population for Title III B and D means individuals 
sixty (60) years of age or older, with emphasis on those in greatest economic and 
social need with particular attention to low-income minority older individuals, 
older individuals with Limited English Proficiency (LEP), and older individuals 
residing in rural areas.  [OAA § 305 (a)(2)(E); 22 CCR  7119, 
7125, 7127, 7130, 7135 and 7638.7] 

5. Eligible Service Population for Title III C-1 and C-2 means individuals sixty 
(60) years of age or older, with emphasis on those in greatest economic and 
social need with particular attention to low-income minority older individuals, 
older individuals with LEP, and older individuals residing in rural areas.  
[OAA § 305 (a)(2)(E); 22 CCR 7125, 7127, 7130, 7135] 

a. Individuals eligible to receive a meal at a congregate nutrition site are: 

i. Any older individual. 
ii. The spouse of any older individual. 
iii. A person with a disability, under age sixty (60) who resides in 

housing facilities occupied primarily by older individuals at which 
congregate nutrition services are provided. 

iv. A disabled individual who resides at home with and accompanies 
an older individual who participates in the program. 

v. A volunteer under age sixty (60), if doing so will not deprive an 
older individual age sixty (60) or older of a meal.  
[CCR 7636.9(b)(3); CCR 7638.7(b); and OAA 339(H)] 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 2 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

b. Individuals eligible to receive a home-delivered meal are individuals who 
are: 

i. Frail as defined by 22 CCR 7119, homebound by reason of illness 
or disability, or otherwise isolated. (These individuals shall be given 
priority in the delivery of services.) [45 Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) 1321.69(a)]. 

ii. A spouse of a person defined in 22 CCR 7638.7(c)(2), regardless of 
age or condition, if an assessment concludes that is in the best 
interest of the homebound older individual. 

iii. An individual with a disability who resides at home with older 
individuals, if an assessment concludes that it is in the best interest 
of the homebound older individual who participates in the program. 

6. Eligible Service Population for Title III E means an adult family member, or 
another individual, who is an informal provider of in-home and community care to 
an older individual or to an individual of any age with Alzheimer’s disease or a 
related disorder with neurological and organic brain dysfunction.  [OAA § 302(3)] 

7. Older relative caregiver means a caregiver who -- 

a. is age 55 or older; and 

b. lives with, is the informal provider of in-home and community care to, and 
is the primary caregiver for, a child or an individual with a disability; 

c. In the case of a caregiver for a child -- 

i. is the grandparent, step grandparent, or other relative (other than 
the parent) by blood, marriage, or adoption, of the child; 

ii. is the primary caregiver of the child because the biological or 
adoptive parents are unable or unwilling to serve as the primary 
caregivers of the child; and 

iii. has a legal relationship to the child, such as legal custody, 
adoption, or guardianship, or is raising the child informally/ 

d. In the case of a caregiver for an individual with a disability, is the parent, 
grandparent, or other relative by blood, marriage, or adoption, of the 
individual with a disability.  

[OAA § 372(a)(3)] 

  



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 3 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

8. Indirect Costs means costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting 
more than one cost objective and not readily assignable to the cost objective 
specifically benefited, without effort disproportionate to the results achieved. 

9. Individual with a disability The term ‘‘individual with a disability’’ means an 
individual with a disability, as defined in Section 3 of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12102), who is not less than age 18 and not 
more than age 59. [OAA § 372(a)(2)] 

10. In-kind Contributions means the value of non-cash contributions donated to 
support the project or program (e.g., property, service, etc.). 

11. Matching Contributions means local cash and/or in-kind contributions made by 
the Contractor, a subcontractor, or other local resources that qualify as match for 
the Contract funding. 

12. Non-Matching Contributions means local funding that does not qualify as 
matching contributions and/or is not being budgeted as matching contributions 
(e.g., federal funds, overmatch, etc.). 

13. Nutrition Education means an intervention targeting OAA participants and 
caregivers that uses information dissemination, instruction, or training with the 
intent to support food, nutrition, and physical activity choices and behaviors 
(related to nutritional status) in order to maintain or improve health and address 
nutrition-related conditions. Content is consistent with the Dietary Guidelines for 
Americans; is accurate, culturally sensitive, regionally appropriate, and considers 
personal preferences; and is overseen by a registered dietitian or individual of 
comparable expertise as defined in the OAA. 

14. Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) means the program whose 
purpose is to provide incentives to encourage and reward effective performance 
by AAAs in the efficient delivery of nutritious meals to older individuals.  The 
program consists of a cash allotment based on the ratio of the number of meals 
served by each Planning and Service Area (PSA) compared to the total number 
of meals served in the State in the prior-prior federal fiscal year. 

15. One-Time-Only Funds means: 

a. Titles III and VII federal funds allocated to the AAA in a State fiscal year 
that are not expended or encumbered for services and administration 
provided by June 30 of that fiscal year as reported to the California 
Department of Aging (CDA) in the Area Plan Financial Closeout Report.  
[22 CCR 7314(a)(6)] 

b. Title III and VII federal funds recovered from an AAA as a result of a fiscal 
audit determination and resolution by CDA.  [22 CCR 7314(a)(7)] 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 4 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

c. Supplemental Title III and Title VII program funds allocated by the 
Administration on Aging to CDA as a result of the federal reallotment 
process.  [22 CCR 7314(a)(8)] 

16. Priority Services for Title III B means those services associated with access to 
services (transportation, outreach, information and assistance, and case 
management); in-home services including supportive services such as respite 
and visiting, for families of older individuals who are victims of Alzheimer’s 
disease and related disorders with neurological and organic brain dysfunction; 
and legal assistance. 

17. Priority Services for Title III E means services provided to:  

a. Caregivers who are older individuals with greatest social need, and older 
individuals with greatest economic need (with particular attention to low-
income older individuals)  

b. Older relative caregivers of children with severe disabilities, or individuals with 
disabilities who have severe disabilities. [OAA§373(c)(2)(A-B)] 

c. Family caregivers who provide care for individuals with Alzheimer’s disease 
and related disorders with neurological and organic brain dysfunction. 
[OAA § 372(b)] 

18. Program Development means activities that either establish a new service or 
expand or integrate existing services. 

19. Program Income means revenue generated by the Contractor or the 
subcontractor from contract-supported activities and may include: 

a. Voluntary contributions received from a participant or other party for 
services received. 

b. Income from usage or rental fees of real or personal property acquired 
with grant funds or funds provided under this Agreement. 

c. Royalties received on patents and copyrights from contract-supported 
activities. 

d. Proceeds from the sale of goods created under CDA grant funds. 

20. Program Requirements means Title III program requirements found in the OAA 
[42 USC 3001-3058]; [45 CFR 1321]; the California Code of Regulations 
[22 CCR 7000 et seq.]; and CDA Program Memoranda, and California Retail 
Food Code (CRFC). 

  



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 5 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

21. Title III B (Supportive Services) means a variety of services including, but not 
limited to: personal care, homemaker, chore, adult day health care, case 
management, assisted transportation, transportation, legal assistance, 
information and assistance, outreach, outreach, services that promote or support 
social connectedness and reduce negative health effects associated with social 
isolation, and long-term care ombudsman advocacy, as defined in the Older 
Americans Act Performance System (OAAPS) categories and the National 
Ombudsman Reporting System (NORS).  [OAA § 321(a)] 

22. Title III C-1 (Congregate Nutrition Services) means nutrition services for older 
individuals in a congregate setting.  Services include meals, nutrition education, 
nutrition risk screening, and opportunities for socialization.  Each meal shall 
provide one-third (1/3) of the Dietary Reference Intakes (DRI) and comply with 
the most current Dietary Guidelines for Americans (DGA).  To be an eligible Title 
III C-1 congregate nutrition site, the site must meet all of the following criteria: [22 
CCR 7638.7(a)] 

a. Be open to the public.  [45 CFR 1321.53(b)(3)] 
b. Not means test.  [OAA § 315(b)(3)] 
c. Provide participants the opportunity to make voluntary contributions and 

not deny service for not contributing to the cost of the service.  
[OAA § 315(b)(4); 22 CCR 7638.9] 

d. Not receive funds from another source for the cost of the same meal, 
equipment, or services.  [2 CFR 200.403(f); 45 CFR 75.403(f)] 

23. To-Go Meals means meals that are picked up by clients (or client's agent) or 
delivered to clients who are not comfortable dining in a congregate meal setting. 
 
a. C-1: To-Go meals are categorized as C-1 meals if they are consumed 

onsite and include in-person interaction (e.g., dining at congregate site 
such as restaurant, food truck, etc. or one-on-one with program volunteer) 
or consumed offsite and include virtual interaction (e.g., group interaction 
via Zoom, FaceTime, etc. or one-on-one with program volunteer via 
telephone) during the meal. 
 

b. C-2: To-Go meals are categorized as C-2 meals if they are consumed 
offsite without in-person or virtual interaction. 

 
24. Title III C-2 (Home-Delivered Nutrition Services) means nutrition services 

provided to frail, homebound, or isolated older individuals including meals, 
nutrition education, and nutrition risk screening.   

Each meal shall provide one-third (1/3) of the DRI and comply with the most 
current Dietary Guidelines for Americans.  [22 CCR 7135, 22 CCR 7638.7(c)] 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 6 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

25. Title III D (Health Promotion Evidence Based) means disease prevention and 
health promotion programs that are based on scientific evidence and 
demonstrated through rigorous evaluation to be effective in improving the health 
of older adults.  Title III D evidence-based health promotion programs include 
programs related to the prevention and mitigation of the effects of chronic 
diseases (including osteoporosis, hypertension, obesity, diabetes, and 
cardiovascular disease), infectious disease, and vaccine-preventable disease, 
and prevention of sexually transmitted diseases.  Evidence-based services also 
include programs focused on alcohol and substance abuse reduction, chronic 
pain management, smoking cessation, weight loss and control, stress 
management, falls prevention, physical activity, and improved nutrition. [OAA 102 
(14)(D)] 

26. Title III E Family Caregiver Support Program (FCSP) Categories are: 

a. Information Services 
b. Access Assistance 
c. Support Services 
d. Respite Care 
e. Supplemental Services 
[OAA 373(b)(1)(2)(3)(4)(5)] 

B. Definitions Specific to Title VII-A (Allotments for Vulnerable Elder Rights Protection 
Activities – Long-Term Care Ombudsman Programs) 

1. Eligible Service Population means individuals who are residents of long-term 
care facilities (i.e., nursing, skilled nursing, distinct part facilities, residential care 
facilities for the elderly, and other adult care homes similar to these facilities), 
hereinafter referred to as residents, regardless of their socio-economic status or 
area of residence.  [OAA §§ 102(35), 321(a)(10), 711(6); Welf. & Inst. Code § 
9701(b),(e)] 

2. Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator means the individual selected by the 
Governing Board or Executive Director responsible for the Local Ombudsman 
Program and designated by the State Ombudsman to represent the Local 
Ombudsman Program and the Office of the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman.  
This individual manages the day-to-day operations of the Local Ombudsman 
Program, including implementation of federal and State requirements.  [OAA § 
712(a)(5)(A); Welf. & Inst. Code § 9701(d)] 

 

 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 7 of 14 

3. Local Ombudsman Program means either a program of the AAA or its 
Subcontractor that is designated by the State Ombudsman to carry out the duties 
of the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program with respect to the Planning 
and Service Area.  The selection is in accordance with policies and procedures 
established by the State Ombudsman and which meets the State Ombudsman’s 
criteria for designation and concurrence.  [OAA §§ 711(3), 712(a)(5)(A); 45 CFR 
1324.1; Welf. & Inst. Code § 9701(a)] 

4. Office of the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman (OSLTCO) means the office 
established by CDA to carry out the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman 
Program, both directly and by contract between CDA and the AAAs.  As a 
program of CDA, OSLTCO is responsible for activities that promote the 
development, coordination, and utilization of Ombudsman services.  OSLTCO 
establishes and maintains effective communication with programs that provide 
legal services for the elderly and advocacy services of a similar nature that 
receive funding or official designation from the State.  OSLTCO analyzes data, 
monitors government actions, and provides recommendations pertaining to long-
term care facilities and services.  OSLTCO periodically updates training 
procedures for Local Ombudsman Programs and provides them with 
administrative and technical assistance.  [OAA §§ 711(1), 712(a)(1), 712(h); 45 
CFR 1324.1; Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 9710, 9716, 9717] 

5. Ombudsman Representative means the volunteer or employee of the Local 
Ombudsman Program who is individually certified by the State Ombudsman in 
accordance with policies and procedures established by the State Ombudsman 
to serve as representative of the Office.  [OAA §§ 711(5), 712(a)(5)(A); 45 CFR 
1324.1; Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5] 

6. State Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program means the CDA program 
through which the functions and duties of OSLTCO are carried out, consisting of 
the State Ombudsman, OSLTCO headed by the State Ombudsman, and the 
representatives of the Office.  [OAA § 712(a)(1)(B); 45 CFR 1324.1; 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9700] 

7. State Long-Term Care Ombudsman hereinafter referred to as the State 
Ombudsman means the individual who heads OSLTCO and is responsible to 
personally, or through representatives of the Office, fulfill the functions, 
responsibilities and duties set forth in OAA § 712(a)(3) [OAA §§ 712(a)(2); 45 
CFR 1324.1; Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 9701(f), 9711] 

C. Definitions Specific to Title VII-A (Allotments for Vulnerable Elder Rights Protection 
Activities – Programs for Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation) 

Elder Abuse Prevention Programs means activities to develop, strengthen, and carry 
out programs for the prevention, detection, assessment, and treatment of, intervention 
in, investigation of, and response to elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation (including 
financial exploitation).  [OAA § 721] 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 8 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK 

A. The Contractor shall: 

1. Implement the statutory provisions of the Title III and Title VII Programs 
[OAA § 306] in accordance with State and federal laws and regulations.  The 
Contractor shall make every effort to meet the goals and objectives stipulated in 
the four-year Area Plan and annual updates of the Area Plan’s Goals, Objectives, 
and Service Unit Plan, herein incorporated into this Agreement by reference.  
Performance shall not be unilaterally reduced or otherwise changed without prior 
consultation with, and written approval from CDA.  A service unit reduction of 
greater than ten percent (10%) requires written approval from CDA.  A service 
unit reduction of greater than twenty percent (20%) is a major change that effects 
Area Plan goals and objectives and requires an Area Plan Amendment.  
[22 CCR 7306(a)] 

2. Establish and maintain an organization that shall have the ultimate accountability 
for funds received from CDA and for the effective and efficient implementation of 
the activities as described in the Area Plan and all pertinent State and federal 
laws and regulations including data reporting requirements. 

3. Meet the adequate proportion requirements for priority services as required 
under OAA § 306(a)(2); 22 CCR 7312. 

4. Maintain staff time records and documentation to identify the allocation of 
Program Development or Coordination activities to determine the amount of 
Program Development or Coordination expenditures.  Records and 
documentation shall: 

a. Include a written description for each Program Development or 
Coordination activity in the staff time records that is of sufficient detail to 
define the event or type of activity. 

b. Be traceable back to the Program Development or Coordination objectives 
as approved in the Area Plan. 

5. Keep on file a written record/documentation supporting expenditures of Program 
Development or Coordination activities for three (3) years or until any audit is 
resolved, whichever is longer. 

6. Meet the requirements under OAA § 301(a)(1)(A) to secure and maintain 
maximum independence and dignity in a home environment for the eligible 
service population capable of self-care with appropriate supportive and nutrition 
services. 

7. Remove individual and social barriers to economic and personal independence 
for the eligible service population to the extent possible as required under 
OAA § 301(a)(1)(B). 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 9 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

8. Provide a continuum of care for the vulnerable eligible service population as 
required under OAA § 301(a)(1)(C). 

9. Secure the opportunity for the eligible service population to receive managed in-
home services as required under OAA § 301(a)(1)(D). 

10. Conduct and/or promote activities for the prevention and treatment of elder 
abuse, neglect, and exploitation, as required under OAA § 721. 

11. Enter into contracts with subcontractors that require them to provide services 
pursuant to 22 CCR 7352 to 7364, and ensure all applicable provisions required 
within this Agreement are included in the subcontract(s). 

12. Review, approve, and monitor subcontractor budgets and expenditures and any 
subsequent amendments and revisions to budgets.  The Contractor shall, to the 
extent feasible, ensure that all budgeted funds are expended by the end of each 
fiscal year. 

13. Monitor, on an ongoing basis, the Subcontractor’s use of federal and State funds 
through reporting, site visits, regular contact, or other means to assure the 
Subcontractor administers federal and State awards in compliance with laws, 
regulations, and the provisions of contracts and that performance goals are 
achieved.  The contractor must follow up and ensure that the Subcontractor 
takes timely and appropriate action on all deficiencies pertaining to the Federal 
programs detected through monitoring and on-site review. [CFR 75.352].  Onsite 
program monitoring must be conducted every two (2) years for all programs 
except Title III C-1 and Title III C-2, which must be conducted every year.  Onsite 
Fiscal monitoring must be conducted every two (2) years for all programs 
including Title III C-1 and Title III C-2. 

14. Monitor nutrition programs.  Non-food preparation congregate dining sites must 
be inspected using a standardized procedure developed by the AAA that assures 
all sites are seen systematically, but not necessarily every year.  The AAA 
Registered Dietician (RD), annually, must physically inspect each food 
preparation site (central kitchen).  AAA policies and procedures must guarantee 
the following: 

a. Inspection of non-food preparation nutrition sites at least every other year. 

b. Inspection of non-food preparation nutrition sites more often if they are 
seen to have an increased risk for food safety violations or a history of 
corrective actions. 

c. Inspection of central kitchens sites annually on-site.  [22 CCR 7634.3(d)] 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 10 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

15. Maintain or increase the number of Title III C-1 and C-2 meals served if federal 
and/or State funds for meal programs increase.  This Contract shall promote and 
maintain high standards of food safety and sanitation as required by the 
California Retail Food Code (CalCode). 

16. Provide support and technical assistance to subcontractors and respond in 
writing to all written requests for direction, guidance, and interpretation of 
instructions to include client and performance data. 

17. Distribute and maintain up-to-date CDA requirements so that all responsible 
persons have ready access to standards, policies, and procedures. 

18. Provide program information and assistance to the public. 

19. Maintain a four-year Area Plan, with annual updates, as specified in 
22 CCR 7300 to 7320.  The Area Plan and annual updates are due by May 1st of 
each year.  The annual update shall be effective during the same term as this 
Agreement. 

20. Maintain a program data collection and reporting system as specified in Exhibit E 
of this Agreement. 

21. Contract Title III case management services only to a public or non-profit agency, 
as required by 42 USC 3026(a)(8)(C). 

22. Offer to each older individual seeking Title III case management services, a list of 
agencies that provide similar services within the jurisdiction of the AAA as 
specified in 42 USC 3026(a)(8)(C)(i)-(iii). 

23. Include the identity of each designated community focal point in subcontracts as 
specified in 42 USC 3026(a)(3)(B). 

24. Ensure that meal counts associated with Title III C-1, C-2 and NSIP are in 
accordance 22 CCR 7638.7(a)(1)-(4). 

25. Offer a meal to a volunteer under the age of sixty (60) if doing so will not deprive 
an older individual of a meal.  [22 CCR 7638.7(b)(1)] The Contractor or the 
Subcontractor shall develop and implement a written policy for providing and 
accounting for volunteer meals.  [22 CCR 7638.7(b)(2)] 

26. Provide a home-delivered meal to an eligible individual.  [22 CCR 7638.7(c)] 

27. Report a meal only once either as a Title III meal or a Title VI meal. 

28. Title III C meals are compliant with the Older Californians Nutrition Program 
Menu Guidance. 

https://www.aging.ca.gov/download.ashx?lE0rcNUV0zZ%2fmnswDwFAig%3d%3d
https://www.aging.ca.gov/download.ashx?lE0rcNUV0zZ%2fmnswDwFAig%3d%3d


California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 11 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

29. Adhere to 48 CFR 3.908, implementing section 828, entitled “Pilot Program for 
Enhancement of Contractor Whistleblower Protections,” of the National Defense 
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted 
January 2, 2013), applies to this Agreement. 

30. Recognize any same-sex marriage legally entered into in a United States (U.S.) 
jurisdiction that recognizes their marriage, including one of the fifty (50) states, 
the District of Columbia, or a U.S. territory, or in a foreign country so long as that 
marriage would also be recognized by a U.S. jurisdiction.  This applies 
regardless of whether or not the couple resides in a jurisdiction that recognizes 
same-sex marriage.  However, this does not apply to registered domestic 
partnerships, civil unions or similar formal relationships recognized under the law 
of the jurisdiction of celebration as something other than a marriage.  
Accordingly, recipients must review and revise, as needed, any policies and 
procedures which interpret or apply federal statutory or regulatory references to 
such terms as “marriage,” “spouse,” family,” “household member’” or similar 
references to familial relationships to reflect inclusion of same-sex spouse and 
marriages.  Any similar familial terminology references in the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services’ (HHS) statutes, regulations, or policy transmittals 
will be interpreted to include same-sex spouses and marriages legally entered 
into as described herein.   

31. To ensure all data is collected for the unmet need as requested by the U.S. 
Legislature, Contractor, either as a direct service provider or through a 
subcontractor must develop and implement a Wait List policy and procedure. The 
policy and procedure must include provisions for: prescreening individuals to 
determine eligibility; managing applicants’ placement on and removal from the 
Wait List; periodically reviewing the eligibility and identified needs of applicants 
on the Wait List; and assigning priority for enrollment based on Wait list. 

B. The Contractor shall ensure that the Local Ombudsman Program, in accordance with 
policies and procedures established by OSLTCO, will: 

1. Provide services to protect the health, safety, welfare and rights of residents.  
[OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(i); 45 CFR 1324.19(a)(2); 
Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 9701(a), 9712.5(b)] 

2. Ensure residents in the service area of the Local Ombudsman Program have 
regular, timely access to State Certified Ombudsman Representatives and timely 
responses to complaints and requests for assistance.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(ii); 45 
CFR 1324.19(a)(3); Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(d)] 

 

 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 12 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

3. Identify, investigate, and seek to resolve complaints made by or on behalf of 
residents that relate to action, inaction, or decisions, that may adversely affect 
the health, safety, welfare, or rights of the residents.  Regardless of the source of 
the complaint, Ombudsman representatives must act with appropriate consent 
and support and maximize resident participation in the process of resolving the 
complaint. [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(iii); 45 CFR 1324.19(a)(1), 1324.19(b); Welf. & 
Inst. Code §§ 9701(a), 9712.5(a)] 

4. Identify, investigate, and seek to resolve complaints made by or on behalf of 
residents with limited or no decision-making capacity and who have no legal 
representative.  If such a resident is unable to communicate consent to the 
Ombudsman representative, the Ombudsman representative shall seek evidence 
to indicate what outcome the resident would have communicated.  In absence of 
evidence to the contrary, the Ombudsman representative shall assume that the 
resident wishes to have the resident’s health, safety, welfare, and rights 
protected and work to accomplish that outcome. [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(vii); 45 
CFR 1324.19(b)(2)(iii)] 

5. Receive and investigate reports of suspected abuse, neglect and exploitation of 
elder or dependent adults occurring in long-term care facilities as defined in Welf. 
& Inst. Code § 15610.47.  [Welf. & Inst. Code § 15630 et seq.] 

6. Witness: 

a. Advance health care directives for residents of skilled nursing facilities 
[Probate Code 4675] 

b. Property transfers with a fair market value of more than $100 from 
residents in long-term health care facilities to owners, employees, agents, 
or consultants of facilities and their immediate families or representatives 
of public agencies operating in facilities and members of their immediate 
families.  [HSC § 1289]   

7. Collect and submit data in accordance with the statewide uniform reporting 
system established by the State Ombudsman and the reporting provisions 
specified in Exhibit E of this Contract.  [OAA § 712(c); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9716(a)]. 

8. Represent the interests of residents before governmental agencies and seek 
administrative, legal, and other remedies to protect the health, safety, welfare, 
and rights of residents.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(iv); 45 CFR 1324.19(a)(4); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(e)] 

9. Review, comment, and facilitate the ability of the public to comment on proposed 
or existing laws, regulations, and other governmental policies and actions, that 
pertain to the rights and well-being of residents.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(v); 45 CFR 
1324.19(a)(5); Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(g)-(i)] 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 13 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

10. Support, actively encourage, and assist in the development of resident and family 
councils.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(vi); 45 CFR 1324.19(a)(6); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9726.1(a)(3)] 

11. Carry out other activities that the State Ombudsman determines to be 
appropriate, including the following services [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(viii); 45 CFR 
1324.19(a)(7)]: 

a. Update, periodically, a plan for maintaining an ongoing presence in long-
term care facilities.  [OAA § 712(a)(3)(D); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(d)(1)] 

b. Provide public information and technical support pertaining to long-term 
care services, including inspection reports, statements of deficiency, and 
plans of correction for long-term care facilities within the service area.  
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9726.1(a)(1)] 

c. Promote visitation programs and other community involvement in long-
term care facilities within the service area.  
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9726.1(a)(2), (4)] 

d. Present community education and training programs to long-term care 
facility staff, human service workers, families and the general public about 
long-term care and residents’ rights.  [Welf. & Inst. Code § 9726.1(a)(5)] 

e. Refer other individuals’ complaints and concerns that a representative 
becomes aware are occurring in the facility to the appropriate 
governmental agency.  [Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(a)(2)] 

12. Ensure that the Local Ombudsman Program, in accordance with policies and 
procedures established by the State Ombudsman, will use Citation Penalties 
Account funds, Licensing and Certification Program funds, Skilled Nursing 
Facility Quality and Accountability funds, CARES Act funds, Elder Justice Act 
funds, Older Americans Act funds, and Older Californians Act funds to support 
activities for the overall program. 

13. Review and approve claims for Citation Penalties Account funds, Licensing and 
Certification Program funds, and Skilled Nursing Facility Quality and 
Accountability funds, CARES Act funds, Elder Justice Act funds, Older 
Americans Act funds, and Older Californians Act funds. 

14. Submit monthly fiscal documents to CDA, as determined by CDA, for Citation 
Penalties Account funds, Licensing and Certification Program funds, Skilled 
Nursing Facility Quality and Accountability funds, CARES Act funds, Elder 
Justice Act funds, Older Americans Act funds, and Older Californians Act funds. 

  



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 14 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

C. The Contractor shall ensure that the Elder Abuse Prevention program shall do some or 
all of the following: 

[OAA § 721] 

1. Provide for public education and outreach to identify and prevent elder abuse, 
neglect, and exploitation; 

2. Provide for public education and outreach to promote financial literacy and 
prevent identity theft and financial exploitation of older individuals; 

3. Ensure the coordination of services provided by AAAs with services instituted 
under the State adult protective service program, State and local law 
enforcement systems, and courts of competent jurisdiction; 

4. Promote the development of information and data systems, including elder abuse 
reporting systems, to quantify the extent of elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation 
in the PSA; 

5. Conduct analyses of local Adult Protective Services and Long-Term Care 
Ombudsman information concerning elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation and 
identifying unmet service, enforcement, or intervention needs; 

6. Conduct training for individuals, including caregivers described in part E of Title 
III, professionals, and paraprofessionals, in relevant fields on the identification, 
prevention, and treatment of elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation, with 
particular focus on prevention and enhancement of self-determination and 
autonomy; 

 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 1 of 11 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS 

A. Expenditure of Funds 

1. The Contractor shall expend all funds received hereunder in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

2. Any reimbursement for authorized travel and per diem shall be at rates not to 
exceed those amounts paid by the State in accordance with the California 
Department of Human Resources’ (CalHR) rules and regulations.  

In State: 

• Mileage/Per Diem (meals and incidentals)/Lodging 
https://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx 

Out of State: 

• http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/Home/ManualItem/1/2201 

This is not to be construed as limiting the Contractor from paying any differences 
in costs, from funds other than those provided by CDA, between the CalHR rates 
and any rates the Contractor is obligated to pay under other contractual 
agreements. No travel outside the state of California shall be reimbursed unless 
prior written authorization is obtained from the State. [SCM 3.17.2.A(4)] 

The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it enters into 
with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. 

3. CDA reserves the right to refuse payment to the Contractor or disallow costs for 
any expenditure, as determined by CDA to be: out of compliance with this 
Agreement, unrelated or inappropriate to contract activities, when adequate 
supporting documentation is not presented, or where prior approval was 
required, but was either not requested or not granted. 

B. Accountability for Funds 

1. The Contractor shall maintain accounting records for funds received under the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement.  These records shall be separate from 
those for any other funds administered by the Contractor, and shall be 
maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and 
Procedures and the Office of Management and Budget’s (OMB) Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards. [2 CFR 200] [45 CFR 75] 

  

https://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx
http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/Home/ManualItem/1/2201


California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 2 of 11 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS (Continued) 

2. Financial Management Systems 

The Contractor shall meet the following standards for its financial management 
systems, as stipulated in 2 CFR 200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302:  

a. Financial Reporting. 

b. Accounting Records. 

c. Complete Disclosure. 

d. Source Documentation. 

e. Internal Control. 

f. Budgetary Control. 

g. Cash Management (written procedures). 

h. Allowable Costs (written procedures). 

C. Unexpended Funds 

Upon termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or dissolution of the 
entity, the Contractor shall return to the State immediately upon written demand, any 
funds provided under this Agreement, which are not payable for goods or services 
delivered prior to the termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or the 
dissolution of the entity. 

D. Funding Contingencies 

1. It is understood between the parties that this Agreement may have been written 
before ascertaining the availability or appropriation of funds, for the mutual 
benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would 
occur if this Agreement were executed after that determination was made. 

2. This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made 
available to the State by the United States Government or the Budget Acts of the 
appropriate fiscal years for purposes of this program(s).  In addition, this 
Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions 
enacted by the Congress or the Legislature that may affect the provisions, terms, 
or funding of this Agreement in any manner. 

  



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 3 of 11 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS (Continued) 

3. Limitation of State Liability 

Payment for performance by the Contractor shall be dependent upon the 
availability of future appropriations by the Legislature or Congress for the 
purposes of this Agreement and approval of an itemized Budget.  No legal 
liability on the part of the State for any payment may arise under this Agreement 
until funds are made available; the itemized Budget is received and approved by 
the State and the Contractor has received an executed agreement. 

4. Funding Reduction(s) 

a. If funding for any State fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Department 
of Finance, Legislature, or Congress for the purposes of this program, the 
State shall have the option to either: 

i. Terminate the Agreement pursuant to Exhibit D, Article XII., A of 
this Agreement, or 

ii. Offer an Agreement amendment to the Contractor to reflect the 
reduced funding for this Agreement. 

b. In the event the State elects to offer an amendment, it shall be mutually 
understood by both parties that: 

i. The State reserves the right to determine which agreements, if any, 
under this program shall be reduced. 

ii. Some agreements may be reduced by a greater amount than 
others, and 

iii. The State shall determine at its sole discretion the amount that any 
or all of the agreements shall be reduced for the fiscal year. 

E. Interest Earned 

1. Interest earned on federal advance payments deposited in interest-bearing 
accounts must be remitted annually to CDA.  Interest amounts up to $500 per 
year may be retained by the Contractor and subcontractors for administrative 
expenses.  [2 CFR 200.305(b)(9)] [45 CFR 75.305 (b)(9)]  

2. Interest earned on advances of federal and non-federal funds shall be identified 
as non-match cash. [2 CFR 200.305(b)(8)] [45 CFR 75.305(b)(8)] 

3. The Contractor must maintain advance payments of federal awards in interest-
bearing accounts, unless the following apply: [2 CFR 200.305(b)(8)] 
[45 CFR 75.305 (b)(8)] 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 4 of 11 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS (Continued) 

a. The Contractor receives less than $120,000 in federal awards per year. 

b. The best reasonably available interest-bearing account would not be 
expected to earn interest in excess of $500 per year on federal cash 
balances. 

c. The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high that 
it would not be feasible within the expected federal and non-federal cash 
resources. 

d. A foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes interest 
bearing accounts. 

ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 

A. The Contractor shall be compensated for expenses only as itemized in the approved 
Budget with the exception of line item budget transfers as noted in this Exhibit and shall 
not be entitled to payment for these expenses until this Agreement is approved and 
executed by CDA.  The approved Budget is hereby incorporated by reference into this 
Agreement as a part of Exhibit B. 

B. The Budget must set forth in detail the reimbursable items, unit rates and extended total 
amounts for each line item.  The Contractor's Budget shall include, at a minimum, the 
following items when reimbursable under this Agreement: 

1. Personnel Costs – annual full time effort (FTE) wage rates and personnel 
classifications together with the percentage of time to be charged, specified for 
each fund source.  

2. Fringe Benefits – specified for each fund source.  

3. Staff Travel – mileage reimbursement, lodging, per diem and other travel costs, 
specified for each fund source. 

4. Staff Training – attendance cost for necessary training, specified for each fund 
source. 

5. Property/Equipment - detailed descriptions and unit costs, specified for each fund 
source. 

6. Supplies – to include items below the $5,000 equipment threshold, specified for 
each fund source. 

7. Vendor/Consultant Agreements – specified for each fund source. 

8. Food – used in delivering Congregate and Home-Delivered Meals. 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 5 of 11 

ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 

9. Other – Facilities and other ordinary and necessary costs specified for each fund 
source.   

10. Allocated Direct Costs – requires submission of a Direct Cost Allocation Plan for 
prior approval. 

11. Subrecipient Contractor Services   - summary costs for subcontracted programs 
specified for each fund source. 

12. Indirect Costs. 

C. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor shall submit a budget, which shall 
be incorporated by reference into the Subcontract and will have, at a minimum, the 
categories listed in Section B. above.   

D. Indirect Costs 

1. The maximum reimbursement amount allowable for indirect costs is ten percent 
(10%) of the Contractor’s Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC), excluding in-kind 
contributions and nonexpendable equipment.  Indirect costs shall not exceed 
10% of the Contractor’s MTDC per funding category.   

2. Contractors requesting reimbursement for indirect costs shall retain on file an 
approved indirect cost rate accepted by all federal awarding agencies or an 
allocation plan documenting the methodology used to determine the indirect 
costs.   

3. Indirect costs exceeding the ten percent (10%) maximum may be budgeted as in-
kind for purposes of meeting matching requirements in Title III and VII programs 
only.  Contractors must receive prior approval from federal awarding agency prior 
to budgeting the excess indirect costs as in-kind.   

4. For major Institutes of Higher Education and major nonprofit organizations, 
indirect costs must be classified within two broad categories: “Facilities” and 
“Administration.”  “Facilities” is defined as depreciation on buildings, equipment 
and capital improvement, interest on debt associated with certain buildings, 
equipment and capital improvements, and operations and maintenance 
expenses.  “Administration” is defined as general administration and general 
expenses such as the director's office, accounting, personnel and all other types 
of expenditures not listed specifically under one of the subcategories of 
“Facilities” (including cross allocations from other pools, where applicable).  [2 
CFR 200.414(a)] [45 CFR 75.414(a)] 

  



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 6 of 11 

ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS 

A. Program Income 

1. Program Income must be reported and expended under the same terms and 
conditions as the program funds from which it is generated. 

2. Program Income must be used to pay for current allowable costs of the program 
in the same fiscal year that the income was earned (except as noted in 4). 

3. For Title III B, III C, III D, III E, VII Ombudsman, and VII-A Elder Abuse 
Prevention programs, Program Income must be spent before contract funds 
(except as noted in 4) and may reduce the total amount of contract funds payable 
to the Contractor. 

4. For Title III B, III C, III D, III E, VII Ombudsman, and VII A Elder Abuse 
Prevention programs, if Program Income is earned in excess of the amount 
reported in the Area Plan Budget, the excess amount may be deferred for use in 
the first quarter of the following Contract period, which is the last quarter of the 
federal fiscal year. 

5. If Program Income is deferred for use it must be used by the last day of the 
federal fiscal year and reported when used. 

6. Program Income may not be used to meet the matching requirements of this 
Agreement. 

7. Program Income must be used to expand baseline services. 

B. One-Time Only (OTO) Funds 

1. OTO funds are non-transferable between funding sources.  This means that OTO 
funds can only be used in the program in which they were accrued. 

2. OTO funds can only be awarded to a subcontractor that has a valid contract with 
the AAA.  All contracts shall be procured either through an open and competitive 
procurement process pursuant to 22 CCR 7352 or through a non-competitive 
award pursuant to 22 CCR 7360. 

3. Titles III and VII federal Program OTO funds shall only be used for the following 
purposes: 

a. The purchase of equipment that enhances the delivery of services to the 
eligible service population. 

b. Home and community-based projects that are approved in advance by 
CDA, and are designed to address the unmet needs of the eligible service 
population identified in the Area Plan. 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 7 of 11 

ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS (Continued) 

c. Innovative pilot projects that are approved in advance by CDA, and are 
designed for the development or enhancement of a comprehensive and 
coordinated system of services as defined in 45 CFR 1321.53(a)(b). 

d. OTO funds can be used to maintain or increase baseline services.  
However, AAAs shall assure that services funded with OTO funds will not 
create an expectation of service delivery beyond the current Contract 
period.  Expenditures for baseline services do not require advance CDA 
approval. 

4. NSIP OTO funds shall only be used to purchase food used in the Elderly 
Nutrition Program. 

C. Matching Contributions 

"Matching Contributions" means local cash and/or in-kind contributions made by the 
Contractor, a subcontractor, or other local resources that qualify as match for the 
Contract funding. 

1. Cash and/or in-kind contributions may count as match, if such contributions are 
used to meet program requirements. 

2. Any matching contributions (cash or in-kind) must be verifiable from the records 
of the Contractor or a subcontractor. 

3. Matching contributions must be used for allowable costs in accordance with the 
OMB cost principles. 

D. Area Plan Administration 

Area Plan Administration is comprised of federal funds from Title III B, III C1, III C2, and 
III E as well as General Funds in no specific subcategory. Federal Area Plan 
Administration funding may be utilized on Area Plan administration, or program activities 
and services, or both. General Fund Area Plan Administrative funding must be utilized 
on Area Plan administration.   

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 

A. The Contractor shall submit electronically the original Area Plan Budget with the Area 
Plan and Area Plan annual updates by May 1, unless otherwise instructed by CDA. 

B. The Contractor shall submit electronically a budget revision thirty (30) calendar days 
after receiving an amended Area Plan Budget Display with changes in funding levels, 
unless otherwise instructed by CDA. 

C. The final date to submit a budget revision containing allocation transfers is January 15 
of the Agreement period unless otherwise specified by CDA. 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 8 of 11 

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 

D. Line Item Budget Transfers 

The Contractor may transfer contract funds between line items under the following 
terms and conditions: 

1. The Contractor may transfer any or all administrative funds into program without 
restrictions for each funding source – Title III B, C-1, C-2, & E.  However, the 
Contractor shall not transfer funds designated for programs into administration 
line items. 

2. The Contractor shall submit a revised budget to CDA when one or the cumulative 
line item budget transfers exceeds ten percent (10%) of the total budget for each 
funding source. 

3. The Contractor shall maintain a written record of all budget changes and clearly 
document line item budget changes.  The record shall include the date, amount 
and purpose of the transfer.  This record shall be available to CDA upon request 
and shall be maintained in the same manner as all other financial records. 

4. Final budget revision containing line item adjustments may be submitted as 
necessary, but no later than sixty (60) days prior to the ending date of the 
contract, and shall not include allocation transfers. 

E. Allocation Transfers 

1. The Contractor shall submit a request to CDA to transfer federal or State funds 
between Title III B, C-1 and C-2 programs in accordance with the Budget Display 
in Exhibit B.  The request shall be submitted as instructed in the Area Plan 
Budget forms. 

a. Transfer of federal baseline funds is allowable between Titles III B and III 
C in accordance with OAA § 308(b)(5)(A) and between Titles III C-1, and 
III C-2 in accordance with OAA § 308(b)(4)(A). 

b. Transfer of State funds is allowable between Title III C-1 General Fund 
and Title III C-2 General Fund. 

2. Approved transfers and Area Plan Budgets will be incorporated by reference into 
the current Agreement. 

3. Transfer of funds cannot be processed or approved after the end of the specified 
Agreement period. 

  



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 9 of 11 

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 

F. Matching Requirements 

1. The required minimum administration matching contributions for Title III B, not 
including Ombudsman, III C, & III E combined is twenty-five percent (25%). 

2. The required minimum program matching contributions for Title III B, not 
including Ombudsman, and III C is ten percent (10%). 

3. The required minimum program matching contributions for Title III E is twenty-
five percent (25%). 

4. Minimum matching requirements are calculated on net costs, which are total 
costs less program income, non-matching contributions, and State funds. 

5. Program matching contributions for Title III B, not including Ombudsman, and III 
C can be pooled to meet the minimum requirement of ten percent (10%). 

6. Matching contributions generated in excess of the minimum required are 
considered overmatch. 

7. Program overmatch from Title III B or C can be used to meet the program match 
requirement for Title III E. 

8. Of the total minimum match required for Title III at least twenty-five percent 
(25%) must be from local public agencies (e.g., city and county governments, 
school districts, special districts, and water districts). 

G. Program Development or Coordination 

The Contractor shall not budget or fund Program Development or Coordination activities 
as a cost of Title III B Supportive Services until it has first budgeted and spent the total 
of its Title III B, C, & E funds allocated for Area Plan administration costs.  During the 
Contract period, Program Development or Coordination activities and Area Plan 
administration activities can occur simultaneously.  (See Article VI of this Exhibit for 
reconciliation during the closeout period.) 

H. Equipment 

Equipment/Property with per unit cost over $5,000 or any computing devices, 
regardless of cost requires justification from the Contractor and approval from CDA.  To 
request approval for specific equipment items, requests with justifications shall be sent 
to cdaequipment@aging.ca.gov.  Such items must also be included in Contractor’s 
approved Area Plan Budget. Please note an approved budget is not approval for 
equipment purchase. 

  



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 10 of 11 

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 

I. The Title III C nutrition augmentation funding may be transferred between General Fund 
C1 and General Fund C2 as needed to provide services. The funding must not be 
transferred to other programs or be used to supplant other program funding, including 
the Federal Title III C1 and Federal Title III C2. 

ARTICLE V.  PAYMENTS 

A. Title III B, III C, III D, III E, VII Ombudsman and VII-A Elder Abuse Prevention, 
Ombudsman Citation Penalties Account, Licensing and Certification Program funds, 
Skilled Nursing Facility Quality and Accountability Funds, CARES Act, Elder Justice Act, 
and Older Californians Act. 

The Contractor shall prepare and submit a monthly expenditure report in an electronic 
format to CDA no later than the last business day of each month or as specified by 
CDA.  The report shall include all costs and funding sources for the month prior. 

B. Payments will be made to reimburse expenditures reported unless Contractor pre-
selects an Advance method on the budget form at the time of Agreement execution. 

C. Contractor shall be charged $75 per program fund source for expedited payments to 
recover the fees charged by the State Controller’s Office.  CDA may waive the fees on a 
case-by-case basis as appropriate. 

D. CDA may require financial reports more frequently than indicated above or with more 
detail (or both), upon written notice to the Contractor, until such time as CDA 
determines that the financial management standards are met. 

E. The funding availability for July 1 through September 30 will be determined based on 
the final three months of the previous federal fiscal year grant period as specified in the 
Contractor’s budget display. 

F. The funding availability for October 1 through February 28 will be determined based on 
the original Agreement budget display allocations until any original transfer requests are 
approved by Administration for Community Living. 

G. The funding availability for March 1st (or upon ACL approval whichever is the latter) 
through June 30th, will be based on the Contractor’s final approved budget (i.e., budget 
submitted with the Agreement amendment, the January 15th or April 30th budget). 

ARTICLE VI.  CLOSEOUT 

A. The Area Plan Financial Closeout Report, and reconciliation to Contractor’s General 
Ledger shall be submitted annually to the CDA Local Finance Bureau.  All contractors 
are required to submit Closeout Reports as instructed by CDA. 

 



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout 

 

Page 11 of 11 

ARTICLE VI.  CLOSEOUT (Continued) 

All contractors are required to submit a Program Property Inventory Certification 
annually, at the time of closeouts, to CDAEquipment@aging.ca.gov or as instructed by 
CDA. 

B. Federal funds will be reduced proportionately to maintain the required matching ratios if 
the Contractor fails to report sufficient match. 

C. During the review and approval of the closeout, administration costs will be increased to 
the total amount allocated before approving final costs for Program Development or 
Coordination activities. 

D. Closeout reporting documents must be addressed to the CDA Local Finance Bureau. 

E. Final expenditures must be reported to CDA in accordance with the budget display in 
Exhibit B.  If the expenditures reported by the Contractor exceed the advanced amount, 
CDA will reimburse the difference to the Contractor up to the Agreement amount.  If the 
expenditures reported by the Contractor are less than the advanced amount, CDA will 
invoice the Contractor for the unspent funds. 

The payment on the invoice is due immediately upon receipt or no later than 30 days 
from the date on the invoice. 

If payment is not received within 30 calendar days, CDA will collect payment from 
upcoming disbursements. To account for the collected funds from the outstanding 
invoice, the AAA will need to adjust records to move the funds already on hand from the 
previous year’s Agreement to the current Agreement period. 

 

 

mailto:CDAEquipment@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 1 of 32 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS 

A. General Definitions 

1. “Agreement” or “Contract” means the Standard Agreement (Std. 213), Exhibits A, 
B, C, D and E, an approved Budget Display as identified in Exhibit B, and if 
applicable, a Work Plan or Budget Summary, which are hereby incorporated by 
reference, amendments, and any other documents incorporated by reference, 
unless otherwise provided for in this Article. 

2. “Contractor” means the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) awarded funds under this 
Agreement and is accountable to the State and/or federal government for use of 
these funds and is responsible for executing the provisions for services provided 
under this Agreement. 

3. “CCR” means California Code of Regulations. 

4. “CFR” means Code of Federal Regulations. 

5. “UEI” means the Unique Entity ID - a 12-character alphanumeric ID assigned to 
an entity by SAM.gov on April 4, 2022. As part of this transition, the DUNS 
number has been removed from SAM.gov and entity registration, searching, and 
data entry in SAM.gov now require use of the new Unique Entity ID.  
 

6. “Cal. Gov. Code” means California Government Code. 

7. “OMB” means the federal Office of Management and Budget. 

8. “Cal. Pub. Con. Code” means the California Public Contract Code. 

9. “Cal. Civ. Code” means California Civil Code 

10. “Reimbursable item” also means “allowable cost” and “compensable item.” 

11. “State” and “Department” mean the State of California and the California 
Department of Aging (CDA) interchangeably. 

12. “Subcontractor” means the legal entity that receives funds from the Contractor to 
carry out any part of a federal award identified in this Agreement. 

13. “Subcontract” means any form of legal agreement between the Contractor and 
the Subcontractor, including an agreement that the Contractor or Subcontractor 
would consider to be a contract, including vendor type Agreements for providing 
goods or services under this Agreement. 

14. “Vendor” means an entity selling goods or services to the Contractor or 
Subcontractor during the Contractor or Subcontractor’s performance of the 
Agreement. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 2 of 32 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS (Continued) 

15. “USC” means United States Code. 

16. “HHS” means United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

17. “OAA” means Older Americans Act. 

18. “Allocation” means the process of assigning a cost, or a group of costs, to one or 
more cost objective(s), in reasonable proportion to the benefit provided or other 
equitable relationship. The process may entail assigning a cost(s) directly to a 
final cost objective or through one or more intermediate cost objectives. (2 CFR 
200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

19. “Disallowed costs” means those charges determined to be unallowable, in 
accordance with the applicable Federal statutes, regulations, or the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award. (2 CFR 200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

20. “Questioned Costs” means a cost that is questioned by the auditor because of an 
audit finding which resulted from a violation or possible violation of a statute, 
regulation, or the terms and conditions of a Federal award, including for funds 
used to match Federal funds; where the costs, at the time of the audit, are not 
supported by adequate documentation; or where the costs incurred appear 
unreasonable and do not reflect the actions a prudent person would take in the 
circumstances. (2 CFR 200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2). 

21. “Recoverable cost” means the questioned cost identified from an audit. 

B. Resolution of Language Conflicts 

The terms and conditions of this federal award and other requirements have the 
following order of precedence, if there is any conflict in what they require: 

1. The Grant Terms and Conditions. 
2. The Older Americans Act and other applicable federal statutes and their 

implementing regulations. 
3. If applicable, the Older Californians Act and other California State codes and 

regulations. 
4. Standard Agreement (Std. 213), all Exhibits and any amendments thereto. 
5. Any other documents incorporated herein by reference including, if applicable, 

the federal HHS terms and conditions found in Part II of the HHS Grant Policy 
Statement. The HHS Grant Policy Statement is available under the HHS Policy 
Requirements Topic at https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-
regulations/index.html  

6. Program memos and other guidance issued by CDA. 

https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html
https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html


California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 3 of 32 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES 

A. Law, Policy and Procedure, Licenses, and Certificates 

The Contractor agrees to administer this Agreement and require any subcontractors to 
administer their subcontracts in accordance with this Agreement, and with all applicable 
local, State, and federal laws and regulations including, but not limited to, discrimination, 
wages and hours of employment, occupational safety, and to fire, safety, health, and 
sanitation regulations, directives, guidelines, and/or manuals related to this Agreement 
and resolve all issues using good administrative practices and sound judgment.  The 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall keep in effect all licenses, permits, notices, and 
certificates that are required by law. 

B. Subcontracts 

The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all subcontractors to 
comply with all applicable State and federal laws. 

C. Nondiscrimination  

The Contractor shall comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination.  
These include those statutes and laws contained in the Contractor Certification Clauses 
(CCC 307), which is hereby incorporated by reference.  In addition, the Contractor shall 
comply with the following: 

1. Equal Access to Federally-Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 

The Contractor shall ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 [42 USC 2000d; 45 CFR 80], which prohibits recipients of federal financial 
assistance from discriminating against persons based on race, color, religion, or 
national origin. 

2. Equal Access to State-Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 

The Contractor shall, unless exempted, ensure compliance with the requirements 
of Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq., and 2 CCR § 11140 et seq., which prohibit 
recipients of state financial assistance from discriminating against persons based 
on race, national origin, ethnic group identification, religion, age, sex, sexual 
orientation, color, or disability.  [22 CCR § 98323] 

3. California Civil Rights Laws 

The Contractor shall, ensure compliance with the requirements of California 
Public Contract Code § 2010 by submitting a completed California Civil Rights 
Laws Certification, prior to execution of this Agreement. The certificate is 
available at: http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx  

  

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx


California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 4 of 32 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

The California Civil Rights Laws Certification ensures Contractor compliance with 
the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 51) and the Fair Employment and 
Housing Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 12960), and ensures that Contractor internal 
policies are not used in violation of California Civil Rights Laws. 

4. The Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to 
the ADA.  [42 USC 12101 et seq.] 

5. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it enters into 
with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. 

D. Standards of Work 

The Contractor agrees that the performance of work and services pursuant to the 
requirements of this Agreement shall conform to accepted professional standards. 

E. Conflict of Interest 

1. The Contractor shall prevent employees, consultants, or members of governing 
bodies from using their positions for purposes including, but not limited to, the 
selection of subcontractors, that are, or give the appearance of being, motivated  

by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, such as family, business, or 
other ties.  In the event that the State determines that a conflict of interest exists, 
any increase in costs associated with the conflict of interest may be disallowed 
by the State and such conflict may constitute grounds for termination of the 
Agreement. 

2. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit employment of persons with 
whom the Contractor’s officers, agents, or employees have family, business, or 
other ties, so long as the employment of such persons does not result in a 
conflict of interest (real or apparent) or increased costs over those associated 
with the employment of any other equally qualified applicant, and such persons 
have successfully competed for employment with the other applicants on a merit 
basis. 

F. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

1. The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or 
retained to solicit this Agreement.  There has been no agreement to make 
commission payments in order to obtain this Agreement. 

  



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 5 of 32 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

2. For breach or violation of this warranty, CDA shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement without liability or at its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price 
or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, 
percentage, brokerage, or contingency fee. 

G. Payroll Taxes and Deductions 

The Contractor shall promptly forward payroll taxes, insurances, and contributions, 
including State Disability Insurance, Unemployment Insurance, Old Age Survivors 
Disability Insurance, and federal and State income taxes withheld, to designated 
governmental agencies as required by law. 

H. Facility Construction or Repair 

This section applies only to Title III funds and not to other funds allocated to other Titles 
under the OAA.  Title III funds may be used for facility construction or repair. 

1. When applicable for purposes of construction or repair of facilities, the Contractor 
shall comply with the provisions contained in the following and shall include such 
provisions in any applicable agreements with subcontractors: 

a. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act.  [18 USC 874, 40 USC 3145] [29 CFR 3] 

b. Davis-Bacon Act.  [40 USC 3141 et seq.] [29 CFR 5] 

c. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. [40 USC 3701 et seq.] 
[29 CFR  5, 6, 7, 8] 

d. Executive Order 11246 of September 14, 1965, entitled “Equal 
Employment Opportunity” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of 
October 13, 1967, as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations.  
[41 CFR 60] 

2. Payments are not permitted for construction, renovation, alteration, improvement, 
or repair of privately-owned property which would enhance the owner’s value of 
such property except where permitted by law and by CDA. 

3. When funding is provided for construction and non-construction activities, the 
Contractor must obtain prior written approval from CDA before making any fund 
or budget transfers between construction and non-construction. 

I. Contracts in Excess of $100,000 

If all funding provided herein exceeds $100,000, the Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable orders or requirements issued under the following laws: 

1. Clean Air Act, as amended.  [42 USC 7401] 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 6 of 32 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

2. Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended.  [33 USC 1251 et seq.] 

3. Environmental Protection Agency Regulations.  [40 CFR 29] [Executive Order 
11738] 

4. State Contract Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code §10295 et seq.] 

5. Unruh Civil Rights Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code § 2010] 

J. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters 

1. The Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 
subcontractors: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by 
any federal department or agency.   

b. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Agreement, been 
convicted of, or had a civil judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, 
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, State, or local) 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or 
State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or 
receiving stolen property. 

c. Are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 
a governmental entity (federal, State, or local) with commission of any of 
the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification. 

d. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 
more public transactions (federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or 
default. 

2. The Contractor shall report immediately to CDA in writing, any incidents of 
alleged fraud and/or abuse by either the Contractor or subcontractors. 

3. The Contractor shall maintain any records, documents, or other evidence of fraud 
and abuse until otherwise notified by CDA. 

4. The Contractor agrees to timely execute any and all amendments to this 
Agreement or other required documentation relating to the Subcontractor’s 
debarment/suspension status. 

  



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 7 of 32 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

K. Agreement Authorization 

1. If a public entity, the Contractor shall submit to CDA a copy of an approved 
resolution, order, or motion referencing this Agreement number authorizing 
execution of this Agreement.  If a private nonprofit entity, the Contractor shall 
submit to CDA an authorization by the Board of Directors to execute this 
Agreement, referencing this Agreement number. 

2. These documents, including minute orders must also identify the action taken. 

3. Documentation in the form of a resolution, order, or motion by the Governing 
Board of the AAA is required for the original and each subsequent amendment to 
this Agreement.  This requirement may also be met by a single resolution from 
the Governing Board of the Contractor authorizing the AAA Director or designee 
to execute the original and all subsequent amendments to this Agreement. 

L. Contractor’s Staff 

1. The Contractor shall maintain adequate staff to meet the Contractor’s obligations 
under this Agreement. 

2. This staff shall be available to the State for training and meetings which the State 
may find necessary from time to time. 

M. UEI Number and Related Information 

1. The Unique Entity Identifier changed from the DUNS Number to the Unique 
Entity ID (generated by SAM.gov) on April 4, 2022. The UEI number must be 
provided to CDA prior to the execution of this Agreement. Business entities may 
register for a UEI number at https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei. 
  

2. The Contractor must register the UEI number and maintain an “Active” status 
within the federal System for Award Management available online at 
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1.  

3. If CDA cannot access or verify “Active” status the Contractor’s UEI information, 
which is related to this federal subaward on the Federal Funding Accountability 
and Transparency Act Subaward Reporting System (SAM.gov) due to errors in 
the Contractor’s data entry for its UEI number, the Contractor must immediately 
update the information as required. 

N. Corporate Status 

1. The Contractor shall be a public entity, private nonprofit entity, or Joint Powers 
Authority (JPA).  If a private nonprofit corporation or JPA, the Contractor shall be 
in good standing with the Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that 
status throughout the term of this Agreement. 

https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1


California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 8 of 32 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

2. The Contractor shall ensure that any subcontractors providing services under this 
Agreement shall be of sound financial status. 

3. Any subcontracting private entity or JPA shall be in good standing with the 
Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that status throughout the term 
of this Agreement. 

4. Failure to maintain good standing by the contracting entity shall result in 
suspension or termination of this Agreement with CDA until satisfactory status is 
restored.  Failure to maintain good standing by a subcontracting entity shall result 
in suspension or termination of the subcontract by the Contractor until 
satisfactory status is restored. 

O. Lobbying Certification 

The Contractor, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, that: 

1. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any agency; a Member of Congress; an officer or employee of 
Congress; or an employee of a Member of Congress; in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract; the making of any federal grant; the making of 
any federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement; and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

2. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Contractor shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, 
in accordance with its instructions. 

3. The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in 
the award documents for all subcontracts at all tiers (including contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements which exceed $100,000) and that all 
subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

4. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into. 

5. This certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by 31 USC 1352. 

 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 9 of 32 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

6. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil 
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
failure. 

P. The Contractor and its Subcontractor/Vendors shall comply with Governor’s Executive 
Order B-06-11, which bans expenditures on promotional and marketing items 
colloquially known as “S.W.A.G.” or “Stuff We All Get.” 

ARTICLE III.  AGREEMENT 

A copy of this executed Agreement is on file and available for inspection at the California 
Department of Aging, 2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California 95833. 

ARTICLE IV.  COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 

Should the Contractor or subcontractor begin work in advance of receiving notice that this 
Agreement is approved, that work may be considered as having been performed at risk as a 
volunteer and may not be reimbursed or compensated. 

ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS 

A. The Contractor is responsible for carrying out the terms of this Agreement, including the 
satisfaction, settlement, and resolution of all administrative, programmatic, and fiscal 
aspects of the program(s), including issues that arise out of any subcontracts, and shall 
not delegate or contract these responsibilities to any other entity.  This includes, but is 
not limited to, disputes, claims, protests of award, or other matters of a contractual 
nature.  The Contractor’s decision is final and the Subcontractor has no right of appeal 
to CDA. 

B. The Contractor shall, in the event any subcontractor is utilized by the Contractor for any 
portion of this Agreement, retain the prime responsibility for all the terms and conditions 
set forth, including but not limited to, the responsibility for preserving the State’s 
copyrights and rights in data in accordance with Article XIX of this Exhibit, for handling 
property in accordance with Article VII. of this Exhibit, and ensuring the keeping of, 
access to, availability of, and retention of records of subcontractors in accordance with 
Article VI. of this Exhibit. 

C. The Contractor shall not obligate funds for this Agreement in any subcontracts for 
services beyond the ending date of this Agreement. 

D.  The Contractor shall have no authority to contract for, or on behalf of, or incur 
obligations on behalf of the State. 

E. The Contractor shall maintain on file copies of subcontracts, memorandums and/or 
Letters of Understanding which shall be made available for review at the request of 
CDA. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 10 of 32 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

F. The Contractor shall monitor the insurance requirements of its subcontractors in 
accordance with Article XI of this Exhibit. 

G. The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all subcontractors to 
indemnify, defend, and save harmless the Contractor, its officers, agents, and 
employees from any and all claims and losses accruing to or resulting from any 
subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing 
or supplying work services, materials, or supplies in connection with any activities 
performed for which funds from this Agreement were used and from any and all claims 
and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation who may be injured 
or damaged by the Subcontractor(s) in the performance of this Agreement. 

H. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor will complete all reporting and 
expenditure documents requested by CDA.  These reporting and expenditure 
documents shall be sent to the Contractor in a timely manner and at intervals as 
determined by CDA. 

I. The Contractor shall, prior to the awarding of a subcontract to any for-profit entity, 
submit the following to CDA for review and approval: 

1. The Request for Proposal (RFP) or Invitation for Bid. 

2. All bid proposals received. 

3. The proposal or bid evaluation documentation, along with the Contractor’s 
rationale for awarding the subcontract to a for-profit entity.  [22 CCR 7362] 

4. Description and documentation of dissemination of information concerning the 
RFP to elicit adequate competition. [22 CCR 7356] 

Where a program may be subcontracted to a for-profit organization, the Contractor 
should include in its contract with the for-profit entity, a requirement for performance of a 
program-specific audit of the subcontracted program by an independent audit firm. 

J. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors to maintain adequate staff to meet the 
Subcontractor’s Agreement with the Contractor.  This staff shall be available to the 
State for training and meetings which the State may find necessary from time to time. 

K. If a private nonprofit corporation, the Subcontractor shall be in good standing with the 
Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that status throughout the term of the 
Agreement. 

L. The Contractor shall refer to 2 CFR 200.331, Subpart D - Subrecipient and Contractor 
Determinations and 45 CFR 75.351, Subpart D - Subrecipient and Contractor 
Determinations in making a determination if a subcontractor relationship exists.  If such 
a relationship exists, then the Contractor shall follow the procurement requirements in 
the applicable OMB Circular. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 11 of 32 

ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS (Continued) 

M. The Contractor shall utilize procurement procedures as follows: 

1. The Contractor shall obtain goods and services through open and competitive 
awards.  Each Contractor shall have written policies and procedures, including 
application forms, for conducting an open and competitive process, and any protests 
resulting from the process. 

2. For goods and services purchased with Title III or Title VII funds, the procurement 
procedures must include, at a minimum, the requirements set forth in 22 CCR 7352.  
The only exception is contained in 22 CCR 7360(a).  The Contractor issuing a 
noncompetitive award must comply with 22 CCR 7360(b)-(d). 

ARTICLE VI.  RECORDS 

A. The Contractor shall maintain complete records which shall include, but not be limited to, 
accounting records, contracts, agreements, a reconciliation of the “Financial Closeout 
Report” (CDA Closeout) to the audited financial statements, single audit report, and 
general ledgers, and a summary worksheet identifying the results of performing an audit 
resolution of its subcontractors in accordance with Article X. of this Exhibit.  This includes 
the following: Letters of Agreement, insurance documentation, memorandums and/or 
Letters of Understanding, patient or client records, and electronic files of its activities and 
expenditures hereunder in a form satisfactory to CDA.  The reconciliation of the CDA 
Closeout to the Contractor general ledger must be submitted with the CDA Closeout 
package.  All records pertaining to this Agreement must be made available for inspection 
and audit by the State or its duly authorized agents, at any time during normal business 
hours. 

B. All such records, including confidential records, must be maintained and made available 
by the Contractor: (1) until an audit of the July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 period of 
expenditures has occurred and an audit resolution has been issued or unless otherwise 
authorized in writing by CDA’s Audit and Risk Management Branch, (2) for such longer 
period, if any, as is required by applicable statute, by any other clause of this 
Agreement, or by Sections A and C of this Article, and (3) for such longer period as 
CDA deems necessary. 

C. If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the work 
terminated shall be preserved and made available for the same periods as specified in 
Section A above.  The Contractor shall ensure that any resource directories and all client 
records remain the property of CDA upon termination of this Agreement, and are returned to 
CDA or transferred to another contractor as instructed by CDA. 

D. In the event of any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit exception, or other action involving 
the records, all records relative to such action shall be maintained and made available 
until every action has been cleared to the satisfaction of the State and is so stated in 
writing to the Contractor. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 12 of 32 

ARTICLE VI.  RECORDS (Continued) 

E. Adequate source documentation of each transaction shall be maintained relative to the 
allowability of expenditures reimbursed by the State under this Agreement.  Source 
documentation includes, but is not limited to: vendor invoices, bank statements, 
cancelled checks, bank/credit card statements, contracts and agreements, employee 
time sheets, purchase orders, indirect cost allocation plans. 

F. All records containing confidential information shall be handled in a confidential manner 
in accordance with the requirements for information integrity and security, and in 
accordance with guidelines set forth in this Article, and Article XVIII.  After the 
authorized period has expired, confidential records shall be shredded and disposed of in 
a manner that will maintain confidentiality. 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY 

A. Unless otherwise provided for in this Article, property refers to all assets used in 
operation of this Agreement. 

1. Property includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery, vehicles, furniture, 
tools, and intangibles, etc. 

2. Property does not include consumable office supplies such as paper, pencils, 
toner cartridges, file folders, etc. 

B. Property acquired under this agreement, which meets any of the following criteria is 
subject to the reporting requirements: 

1. Has a normal useful life of at least one (1) year and has a unit acquisition cost of 
at least $5,000 (a desktop or laptop setup, is considered a unit, if purchased as a 
unit). 

2. All computing devices, regardless of cost (including but not limited to, 
workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, notebook computers, 
tablets, smartphones and cellphones). 

3. All Portable electronic storage media, regardless of cost (including but not limited 
to, thumb/flash drives and portable hard drives). 

C. Additions, improvements, and betterments to assets meeting all of the conditions in 
Section B above must also be reported.  Additions typically involve physical extensions 
of existing units.  Improvements and betterments typically do not increase the physical 
size of the asset.  Instead, improvements and betterments enhance the condition of an 
asset (e.g., extend life, increase service capacity, and lower operating costs). Examples 
of assets that might be improved and bettered include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, 
tunnels, parking lots, streets and sidewalks, drainage, and lighting systems. 

  



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 13 of 32 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY (Continued) 

D. Intangibles are property which lack physical substance but give valuable rights to the 
owner.  Examples of intangible property include patents, copyrights, leases, and 
computer software.  By contrast, hardware consists of tangible equipment (e.g., 
computer printer, terminal, etc.).  Costs include all amounts incurred to acquire and to 
ready the intangible asset for its intended use.  Typical intangible property costs include 
the purchase price, legal fees, and other costs incurred to obtain title to the asset. 

E. The Contractor shall keep track of property purchased with funds from this Agreement 
that meet the requirements as defined in Exhibit D, Article VII, item B, and submit to 
CDA a Property Acquisition Form (CDA 9023) for all property furnished or purchased by 
either the Contractor or the Subcontractor with funds awarded under the terms of this 
Agreement, as instructed by the CDA.  The Contractor shall certify their reported 
property inventory annually with the Closeout by completing the Program Property 
Inventory Certification (CDA 9024), unless further restricted by Exhibit E, where 
applicable. 

The Contractor shall record, at minimum, the following information when property is 
acquired: 

1. Date acquired. 
2. Item description (include model number). 
3. CDA-issued tag number.  
4. Serial number (if applicable). 
5. Purchase cost or other basis of valuation. 
6. Fund source 

F. Disposal of Property 

1. Prior to disposal of any property purchased by the Contractor or the 
Subcontractor with funds from this Agreement or any predecessor Agreement, 
the Contractor must obtain approval from CDA for all reportable property as 
defined in Section B of this Article. Disposition, which includes sale, trade-in, 
discarding, or transfer to another agency may not occur until approval is received 
from CDA.  The Contractor shall submit to CDA a Request to Dispose of Property 
(CDA 248) to property@aging.ca.gov.  CDA will then instruct the AAA on 
disposition of the property.  Once approval for disposal has been received from 
CDA and the AAA has reported to CDA the Property Survey Report’s (STD 152) 
Certification of Disposition, the item(s) shall be removed from the Contractor’s 
inventory report. Property is not to be disposed of until both the CDA 248 and 
STD 152 have been approved by CDA. Contractor will be liable for repayment of 
purchase price of equipment if Contractor disposes of equipment without prior 
approval from CDA. 

 
 

mailto:property@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 14 of 32 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY (Continued) 

2. The Contractor must remove all confidential, sensitive, or personal information 
from CDA property prior to disposal, including removal or destruction of data on 
computing devices with digital memory and storage capacity.  This includes, but 
is not limited to magnetic tapes, flash drives, personal computers, personal digital 
assistants, cell or smart phones, multi-function printers, and laptops. 

 
G. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment shall be investigated and fully documented. 

The Contractor shall promptly notify CDA and shall provide copies of the investigative 
documentation and police reports as requested by CDA. 

H. The State reserves title to all State-purchased or financed property not fully consumed 
in the performance of this Agreement, unless otherwise required by federal law or 
regulations or as otherwise agreed by the parties.  

I. The Contractor shall exercise due care in the use, maintenance, protection, and 
preservation of such property during the period of the project, and shall assume 
responsibility for replacement or repair of such property during the period of the project, 
or until the Contractor has complied with all written instructions from CDA regarding the 
final disposition of the property. 

J. In the event of the Contractor’s dissolution or upon termination of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall provide a final property inventory to the State.  The State reserves the 
right to require the Contractor to transfer such property to another entity, or to the State. 

K. To exercise the above right, no later than one hundred twenty (120) days after 
termination of this Agreement or notification of the Contractor’s dissolution, the State will 
issue specific written disposition instructions to the Contractor. 

L. The Contractor shall use the property for the purpose for which it was intended under 
the Agreement.  When no longer needed for that use, the Contractor shall use it, if 
needed, and with written approval of the State for other purposes in this order: 

1. For another CDA program providing the same or similar service. 

2. For another CDA-funded program. 

M. The Contractor may share use of the property and equipment or allow use by other 
programs, upon written approval from CDA.  As a condition of the approval, CDA may 
require reimbursement under this Agreement for its use. 

N. The Contractor or subcontractors shall not use equipment or supplies acquired under 
this Agreement with federal and/or State monies for personal gain or to usurp the 
competitive advantage of a privately-owned business entity. 

O. If purchase of equipment is a reimbursable item, the equipment to be purchased will be 
specified in the Budget Summary. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 15 of 32 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY (Continued) 

P. The Contractor shall include the provisions contained in this Article in all its 
subcontracts awarded under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII.  ACCESS 

The Contractor shall provide access to the federal or State contracting agency, the California 
State Auditor, the Comptroller, General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized 
federal or State representatives to any books, documents, papers, and records of the 
Contractor or subcontractor which are directly pertinent to this specific Agreement for the 
purpose of making an audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.  The Contractor shall 
include this requirement in its subcontracts. 

ARTICLE IX.  MONITORING AND EVALUATION 

A. Authorized State representatives shall have the right to monitor and evaluate the 
Contractor’s administrative, fiscal and program performance pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Said monitoring and evaluation may include, but is not limited to, 
administrative processes, fiscal, data and procurement components.  This will include 
policies, procedures, procurement, audits, inspections of project premises, interviews of 
project staff and participants, and when applicable, inspection of food preparation sites. 

B. The Contractor shall cooperate with the State in the monitoring and evaluation 
processes, which include making any administrative, program and fiscal staff available 
during any scheduled process. 

C. The Contractor shall monitor contracts and subcontracts to ensure compliance with 
laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts that may have a direct and/or material 
effect on each of its CDA funded programs. 

D. The Contractor is responsible for maintaining supporting documentation including 
financial and statistical records, contracts, subcontracts, monitoring reports, and all 
other pertinent records until an audit has occurred and an audit resolution has been 
issued or unless otherwise authorized in writing by CDA. 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

A. General 

1. Any duly authorized representative of the federal or State government, which 
includes but is not limited to the State Auditor, CDA Staff, and any entity selected 
by State to perform inspections, shall have the right to monitor and audit 
Contractor and all subcontractors providing services under this Agreement 
through on-site inspections, audits, and other applicable means the State 
determines necessary. In the event that CDA is informed of an audit by an 
outside federal or State government entity affecting the Contractor, CDA will 
provide timely notice to Contractor. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 16 of 32 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

2. Contractor shall make available all reasonable information necessary to 
substantiate that expenditures under this Agreement are allowable and allocable, 
including, but not limited to accounting records, vendor invoices, bank 
statements, cancelled checks, bank/credit card statements, contracts and 
agreements, employee timesheets, purchase orders, and indirect colst allocation 
plans. Contractor shall agree to make such information available to the federal 
government, the State, or any of their duly authorized representatives, including 
representatives of the entity selected by State to perform inspections, for 
examination, copying, or mechanical reproduction, on or off the premises of the 
appropriate entity upon a reasonable request. 

3. All agreements entered into by Contractor and subcontractors with audit firms for 
purposes of conducting independent audits under this Agreement shall contain a 
clause permitting any duly authorized representative of the federal or State 
government access to the supporting documentation of said audit firm(s). 

4. The Contractor shall cooperate with and participate in any further audits which 
may be required by the State, including CDA fiscal and compliance audits. 

B. CDA Fiscal and Compliance Audits 

1. The CDA Audits and Risk Management Branch shall perform fiscal and 
compliance audits of Contractors in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) to ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, regulations, grants, and contract requirements. 

2. The CDA fiscal and compliance audits may include, but not be limited to, a 
review of: 
 
a. Financial closeouts (2 CFR 200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2) 
b. Internal controls (2 CFR 200.303 and 45 CFR 75.303) 
c. Allocation of expenditures (2 CFR 200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2) 
d. Allowability of expenditures (2 CFR 200.403 and 45 CFR 75.403) 
e. Equipment expenditures and approvals, if required (2 CFR 200.439 and 

45 CFR 75.439) 

C. Single Audit Reporting Requirements (2 CFR 200 Subpart F and 45 CFR 75 Subpart F) 

1. Contractor Single Audit Reporting Requirements 

a. Contractors that expend $750,000 or more in federal funds shall arrange 
for an audit to be performed as required by the Single Audit Act of 1984, 
Public Law 98-502; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Public Law 
104-156; 2 CFR 200.501 to 200.521 and 45 CFR 75.501 to 75.521.   



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 17 of 32 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

A copy shall be submitted to the: 

California Department of Aging 
Attention:  Audits and Risk Management Branch 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
Sacramento, California 95833 

b. The copy shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after receipt of the 
Auditor’s report or nine (9) months after the end of the audit period, 
whichever occurs first, or unless a longer period is agreed to in advance 
by the cognizant or oversight agency. 

c. For purposes of reporting, the Contractor shall ensure that State-funded 
expenditures are displayed discretely along with the related federal 
expenditures in the single audit report’s “Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards” (SEFA) under the Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) number. 

d. For State contracts that do not have CFDA numbers, the Contractor shall 
ensure that the State-funded expenditures are discretely identified in the 
SEFA by the appropriate program name, identifying grant/contract 
number, and as passed through CDA. 

2. The Contractor shall perform a reconciliation of the “Financial Closeout Report” 
to the audited financial statements, single audit, and general ledgers.  The 
reconciliation shall be maintained and made available for CDA review. The 
reconciliation must be submitted with the CDA Closeout Package. 

3. Contract Resolution of Contractor’s Subrecipients 

The Contractor shall have the responsibility for resolving its contracts with 
subcontractors to determine whether funds provided under this Agreement are 
expended in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and provisions of 
contracts or agreements.  The Contractor shall, at a minimum, perform Contract 
resolution within fifteen (15) months of the "Financial Closeout Report." 

4. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports meet 2 CFR 
200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F-Audit Requirements. 

5. Contract resolution includes: 

a. Ensuring that subcontractors expending $750,000 or more in federal 
awards during the subcontractor’s fiscal year have met the audit 
requirements of 2 CFR 200.501 - 200.521 and 45 CFR 75.501 to 75.521. 

 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 18 of 32 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

b. Issuing a management decision on audit findings within six (6) months 
after receipt of the Subcontractor’s single audit report and ensuring that 
the Subcontractor takes appropriate and timely corrective action. 

c. Reconciling expenditures reported to the Contractor to the amounts 
identified in the single audit or other type of audit if the Subcontractor was 
not subject to the single audit requirements.  For a subcontractor who was 
not required to obtain a single audit and did not obtain another type of 
audit, the reconciliation of expenditures reported to CDA must be 
accomplished through performing alternative procedures (e.g., risk 
assessment [2 CFR 200.332 and 45 CFR 75.352], documented review of 
financial statements, and documented expense verification, including 
match, etc.). 

6. When alternative procedures are used, the Contractor shall perform financial 
management system testing, which provides, in part, for the following: 

a. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each 
federal award or program. 

b. Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for 
each federally funded activity. 

c. Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, property, and other 
assets to ensure these items are used solely for authorized purposes. 

d. Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each federal award. 

e. Written procedures to implement the requirements of 2 CFR 200.305. 

f. Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance 
with 2 CFR Part 200 and 45 CFR Part 75, Subparts E - Cost Principles. 

[2 CFR 200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302] 

g. The Contractor shall document system and expense testing to show an 
acceptable level of reliability, including a review of actual source 
documents. 

h. Determining whether the results of the reconciliations performed 
necessitate adjustment of the Contractor’s own records. 

7. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports meet 
2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F - Audit Requirements: 

a. Performed timely – not less frequently than annually and a report 
submitted timely.  The audit is required to be submitted within thirty (30) 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 19 of 32 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

days after receipt of the Auditor’s report or nine (9) months after the end of 
the audit period, whichever occurs first.  [2 CFR 200.512 and 45 CFR 
75.512] 

b. Properly procured – use procurement standards for auditor selection.  
[2 CFR 200.509 and CFR 75.509] 

c. Performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing 
Standards.  [2 CFR 200.514 and 45 CFR 75.514] 

d. All inclusive – includes an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) of the financial 
statements; a report on internal control related to the financial statements 
and major programs; an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance 
with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts; and the schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.  [2 CFR 200.515 and 45 CFR 75.515] 

e. Performed in accordance with provisions applicable to this program as 
identified in 2 CFR Part 200, and 45 CFR Part 75, Subpart F, Audit 
Requirements. 

8. Requirements identified in Sections D and E of this Article shall be included in 
contracts with the Subcontractor.  Further, the Subcontractor shall be required to 
include in its contract with the independent Auditor that the Auditor will comply 
with all applicable audit requirements/standards; CDA shall have access to all 
audit reports and supporting work papers, and CDA has the option to perform 
additional work, as needed. 

9. The Contractor shall prepare a summary worksheet of results from the contract 
resolutions performed of all subcontractors.  The summary worksheet shall 
include, but not be limited to, contract amounts; amounts resolved; amounts of 
match verified, resolution of variances; recovered amounts; whether an audit was 
relied upon or the Contractor performed an independent expense verification 
review (alternative procedures) of the Subcontractor in making a determination; 
whether audit findings were issued; and, if applicable, issuance date of the 
management letter; and any communication or follow-up performed to resolve 
the findings. 

10. A reasonably proportionate share of the costs of audits required by, and 
performed in, accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as 
implemented by requirements of this part, are allowable.  However, the following 
audit costs are unallowable: 

a. Any costs when audits required by the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR 200 
and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements have not been 
conducted or have been conducted but not in accordance therewith; and 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 20 of 32 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

b. Any costs of auditing a non-federal entity that is exempted from having an 
audit conducted under the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 
75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements because its expenditures under  

federal awards are less than $750,000 during the non-federal entity’s 
fiscal year. 

i. The costs of a financial statement audit of a non-federal entity that 
does not currently have a federal award may be included in the 
indirect cost pool for a cost allocation plan or indirect cost proposal. 

ii. Pass-through entities may charge federal awards for the cost of 
agreed-upon-procedures engagements to monitor subcontractors 
who are exempted from the requirements of the Single Audit Act 
and 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements.  
This cost is allowable only if the agreed-upon procedures 
engagements are conducted in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) attestation 
standards, paid for and arranged by the pass-through entity, and 
limited in scope to one or more of the following types of compliance 
requirements: activities allowed or not allowed; allowable costs/cost 
principles; eligibility; and reporting. 

[2 CFR 200.425] 

ARTICLE XI.  INSURANCE 

A. Prior to commencement of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide 
for the term of this Agreement, the following insurance: 

1. General liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and 
property damage combined.  Higher limits may be required by the State in cases 
of higher than usual risks. 

2. Automobile liability including non-owned auto liability, of not less than $1,000,000 
for volunteers and paid employees providing services supported by this 
Agreement. 

3. If applicable, or unless otherwise amended by future regulation, the Contractor 
and subcontractors shall comply with the Public Utilities Commission General 
Order No. 115-G which requires higher levels of insurance for charter-party 
carriers of passengers and is based on seating capacity as follows: 

a. $750,000 if seating capacity is under 8 
b. $1,500,000 if seating capacity is 8 – 15 
c. $5,000,000 if seating capacity is over 15 

 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 21 of 32 

ARTICLE XI.  INSURANCE (Continued) 

4. Professional liability of not less than $1,000,000 as it appropriately relates to the 
services rendered.  Coverage shall include medical malpractice and/or errors and 
omissions. (All programs except Title V). 

B. The insurance will be obtained from an insurance company acceptable to the 
Department of General Services, Office of Risk and Insurance Management (DGS, 
ORIM), or be provided through partial or total self-insurance acceptable to the 
Department of General Services (DGS). 

C. Evidence of insurance shall be in a form and content acceptable to DGS, ORIM. 

D. The Contractor shall notify the State within five (5) business days of any cancellation, 
non-renewal, or material change that affects required insurance coverage. 

E. Insurance obtained through commercial carriers shall meet the following requirements: 

1. The Certificate of Insurance shall provide the statement: “The Department of 
Aging, State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and servants are 
included as additional insureds, with respect to work performed for the State of 
California under this Agreement.”  Professional liability coverage is exempt from 
this requirement. 

2. CDA shall be named as the certificate holder and CDA’s address must be listed 
on the certificate. 

F. The insurance provided herein shall be in effect at all times during the term of this 
Agreement.  In the event the insurance coverage expires during the term of this 
Agreement, the Contractor agrees to provide CDA, at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration date, a new Certificate of Insurance evidencing insurance coverage as 
provided herein for a period not less than the remaining Agreement term or for a period 
not less than one (1) year.  In the event the Contractor fails to keep in effect at all times 
said insurance coverage, CDA may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, 
terminate this Agreement. 

G. The Contractor shall require its subcontractors under this Agreement, other than units of 
local government which are similarly self-insured, to maintain adequate insurance 
coverage for general liability, Worker’s Compensation liabilities, and if appropriate, auto 
liability including non-owned auto and professional liability, and further, the Contractor 
shall require all of its subcontractors to hold the Contractor harmless.  The 
Subcontractor’s Certificate of Insurance for general and auto liability shall also name the 
Contractor, not the State, as the certificate holder and additional insured.  The 
Contractor shall maintain Certificates of Insurance for all of its subcontractors. 

H. A copy of each appropriate Certificate of Insurance or letter of self-insurance, 
referencing this Agreement number shall be submitted to CDA with this Agreement. 

 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 22 of 32 

ARTICLE XI.  INSURANCE (Continued) 

I. The Contractor shall be insured against liability for Worker’s Compensation or 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the California Labor Code 
and the Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the 
performance of the work under this Agreement.  [Cal. Labor Code § 3700] 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION 

A. Termination Without Cause 

CDA may terminate performance of work under this Agreement, in whole or in part, 
without cause, if CDA determines that a termination is in the State’s best interest.  CDA 
may terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice to the Contractor.  
The Notice of Termination shall specify the extent of the termination and shall be 
effective ninety (90) days from the delivery of the Notice.  The parties agree that if the 
termination of the Contract is due to a reduction or deletion of funding by the 
Department of Finance (DOF), Legislature or Congress, the Notice of Termination shall 
be effective thirty (30) days from the delivery of the Notice.  The Contractor shall submit 
to CDA a Transition Plan as specified in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The parties agree 
that for the terminated portion of the Agreement, the remainder of Agreement shall be 
deemed to remain in effect and is not void. 

B. Termination for Cause 

CDA may terminate, in whole or in part, for cause the performance of work under this 
Agreement.  CDA may terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to 
the Contractor.  The Notice of Termination shall be effective thirty (30) days from the 
delivery of the Notice of Termination unless the grounds for termination are due to 
threat to life, health or safety of the public and in that case, the termination shall take 
effect immediately.  The Contractor shall submit to CDA a Transition Plan as specified 
in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The grounds for termination for cause shall include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 

1. In case of threat of life, health or safety of the public, termination of the 
Agreement shall be effective immediately. 

2. A violation of the law or failure to comply with any condition of this Agreement. 

3. Inadequate performance or failure to make progress so as to endanger 
performance of this Agreement. 

4. Failure to comply with reporting requirements. 

5. Evidence that the Contractor is in an unsatisfactory financial condition as 
determined by an audit of the Contractor or evidence of a financial condition that 
endangers performance of this Agreement and/or the loss of other funding 
sources. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 23 of 32 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION (Continued) 

6. Delinquency in payment of taxes or payment of costs for performance of this 
Agreement in the ordinary course of business. 

7. Appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for all or a substantial part of the 
Contractor’s property, or institution of bankruptcy, reorganization or the 
arrangement of liquidation proceedings by or against the Contractor. 

8. Service of any writ of attachment, levy of execution, or commencement of 
garnishment proceedings against the Contractor’s assets or income. 

9. The commission of an act of bankruptcy. 

10. Finding of debarment or suspension.  [Article II J] 

11. The Contractor’s organizational structure has materially changed. 

12. CDA determines that the Contractor may be considered a “high risk” agency as 
described in 2 CFR 200.205 and 45 CFR 75.205.  If such a determination is 
made, the Contractor may be subject to special conditions or restrictions. 

C. Contractor’s Obligation After Notice of Termination 

After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as directed by CDA, the Contractor 
shall immediately proceed with the following obligations, as applicable, regardless of 
any delay in determining or adjusting any funds due under this clause. 

The Contractor shall: 

1. Stop work as specified in the Notice of Termination. 

2. Place no further subcontracts for materials or services, except as necessary, to 
complete the continued portion of the Contract. 

3. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated. 

4. Settle all outstanding liabilities and termination settlement proposals arising from 
the termination of subcontracts, (the approval or ratification of which will be final 
for purposes of this clause). 

D. Effective Date 

Termination of this Agreement shall take effect immediately in the case of an 
emergency such as threat to life, health, or safety of the public.  The effective date for 
Termination with Cause or for funding reductions is thirty (30) days and Termination 
without Cause is ninety (90) days subsequent to written notice to the Contractor.  The 
notice shall describe the action being taken by CDA, the reason for such action and, 
any conditions of the termination, including the date of termination. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 24 of 32 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION (Continued) 

E. Voluntary Termination of Area Plan Agreement (Title III Only) 

Pursuant to 22 CCR 7210, the Contractor may voluntarily terminate its contract prior to 
its expiration either by mutual agreement with CDA or upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to CDA.  In case of voluntary termination, the Contractor shall allow CDA up to 
one hundred eighty (180) days to transition services.  The Contractor shall submit a 
Transition Plan in accordance with Exhibit E of this Agreement. 

F. Notice of Intent to Terminate by Contractor (All other non-Title III Programs) 

In the event the Contractor no longer intends to provide services under this Agreement, 
the Contractor shall give CDA Notice of Intent to Terminate.  Such notice shall be given 
in writing to CDA at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the proposed 
termination date.  Unless mutually agreed upon, the Contractor does not have the 
authority to terminate the Agreement.  The Notice of Intent to Terminate shall include 
the reason for such action and the anticipated last day of work.  The Contractor shall 
submit a Transition Plan in accordance with Exhibit E. 

G. In the Event of a Termination Notice 

CDA will present written notice to the Contractor of any condition, such as, but not 
limited to, transfer of clients, care of clients, return of unspent funds; and disposition of 
property, which must be met prior to termination. 

ARTICLE XIII.  REMEDIES 

The Contractor agrees that any remedy provided in this Agreement is in addition to and not in 
derogation of any other legal or equitable remedy available to CDA as a result of breach of this 
Agreement by the Contractor, whether such breach occurs before or after completion of the 
project. 

ARTICLE XIV.  DISSOLUTION OF ENTITY 
 

The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of any intention to discontinue existence of the 
entity or to bring an action for dissolution. 

ARTICLE XV.  AMENDMENTS, REVISIONS OR MODIFICATIONS 

A. No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing, signed and approved through the State amendment process in accordance with 
the State Contract Manual.  No oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in this 
Agreement is binding on any of the parties. 

B. The State reserves the right to revise, waive, or modify the Agreement to reflect any 
restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by Congress or the Legislature or as 
directed by the Executive Branch of State government. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 25 of 32 

ARTICLE XVI.  NOTICES 

A. Any notice to be given hereunder by either party to the other may be effected by 
personal delivery in writing or by registered or certified mail, overnight mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, provided the Contractor retains receipt, and shall be 
communicated as of actual receipt. 

B. Any notice given to CDA for the Contractor’s change of legal name, main address, or 
name of the Director shall be completed by submitting a Std. 204 form to 
AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

C. All other notices with the exception of those identified in Section B of this Article shall be 
addressed to the California Department of Aging, AAA Based Teams, 2880 Gateway 
Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California, 95833.  Notices mailed to the Contractor 
shall be to the address indicated on the coversheet of this Agreement. 

D. Either party may change its address by written notice to the other party in accordance 
with this Article. 

ARTICLE XVII.  DEPARTMENT CONTACT 

A. The name of CDA’s contact to request revisions, waivers, or modifications affecting this 
Agreement, will be provided by the State to the Contractor upon full execution of this 
Agreement. 

B. Contractor shall submit to CDA changes to Contractor’s legal name, main address, 
Director, or any key staff to be added or removed from the distribution list by submitting 
a Contact Report to AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. You may request the Contact 
Report by emailing AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY 

A. Information Assets 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall have in place operational 
policies, procedures, and practices to protect State information assets, including those 
assets used to store or access Personal Health Information (PHI), Personal Information 
(PI) and  any information protected under the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA), (i.e., public, confidential, sensitive and/or personal 
identifying information) herein referred to as Personal, Sensitive and Confidential 
Information (PSCI) as specified in the State Administrative Manual, 5300 to 5365.3; Cal. 
Gov. Code § 11019.9, DGS Management Memo 06-12; DOF Budget Letter 06-34; and 
CDA Program Memorandum 07-18 Protection of Information Assets and the Statewide 
Health Information Policy Manual. 

  

mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov
mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 26 of 32 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY (Continued) 

Information assets may be in hard copy or electronic format and may include but is not 
limited to: 

1. Reports 
2. Notes 
3. Forms 
4. Computers, laptops, cellphones, printers, scanners 
5. Networks (LAN, WAN, WIFI) servers, switches, routers 
6. Storage media, hard drives, flash drives, cloud storage 
7. Data, applications, databases 

B. Encryption of Computing Devices 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, are required to use 128-Bit encryption 
for PSCI data that is collected and stored under this Agreement that is confidential, 
sensitive, and/or personal information including data stored on all computing devices 
(including but not limited to, workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, 
notebook computers and backup media) and/or portable electronic storage media 
(including but not limited to, discs, thumb/flash drives, portable hard drives, and backup 
media). 

C. Disclosure 

1. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all PSCI is 
protected from inappropriate or unauthorized access or disclosure in accordance 
with applicable laws, regulations and State policies.   

2. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall protect from unauthorized 
disclosure, PSCI such as names and other identifying information concerning 
persons receiving services pursuant to this Agreement, except for statistical 
information not identifying any participant. 

3. “Personal Identifying information” shall include, but not be limited to: name; 
identifying number; social security number; state driver’s license or state 
identification number; financial account numbers; and symbol or other identifying 
characteristic assigned to the individual, such as finger or voice print or a 
photograph. 

4. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not use PSCI above for 
any purpose other than carrying out the Contractor’s obligations under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor and its Subcontractors are authorized to disclose 
and access identifying information for this purpose as required by OAA. 

5. The Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not, except as otherwise 
specifically authorized or required by this Agreement or court order, disclose any 
identifying information obtained under the terms of this Agreement to anyone  



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 27 of 32 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY (Continued) 

other than CDA without prior written authorization from CDA.  The Contractor 
may be authorized, in writing, by a participant to disclose identifying information 
specific to the authorizing participant. 

6. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, may allow a participant to 
authorize the release of information to specific entities, but shall not request or 
encourage any participant to give a blanket authorization or sign a blank release, 
nor shall the Contractor accept such blanket authorization from any participant. 

D. Security Awareness Training 

1. The Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors/Vendors, and volunteers handling 
PSCI must complete the required CDA Security Awareness Training module 
located at https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources within thirty 
(30) days of the start date of the Contract/Agreement, within thirty (30) days of 
the start date of any new employee, Subcontractor, Vendor or volunteer’s 
employment and annually thereafter. 

2. The Contractor must maintain certificates of completion on file and provide them 
to CDA upon request. 

E. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

The Contractor agrees to comply with the privacy and security requirements of HIPAA 
and ensure that Subcontractors/Vendors comply with the privacy and security 
requirements of HIPAA. 

F. Information Integrity and Security Statement 

The Contractor shall sign and return an Information Integrity and Security Statement 
(CDA 1024) form with this Agreement.  This is to ensure that the Contractor is aware of, 
and agrees to comply with, their obligations to protect CDA information assets, including 
PSCI, from unauthorized access and disclosure. 

G. Security Incident Reporting 

A security incident occurs when CDA information assets are or reasonably believed to 
have been accessed, modified, destroyed, or disclosed without proper authorization, or 
are lost or stolen.  The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, must comply with 
CDA’s security incident reporting procedure located at 
https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources. 

H. Security Breach Notifications 

Notice must be given by the Contractor, and/or its Subcontractors/Vendors to anyone 
whose PSCI could have been breached in accordance with HIPAA, the Information 
Practices Act of 1977, and State policy. 

https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources
https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources


California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 28 of 32 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY (Continued) 

I. Software Maintenance 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall apply security patches and 
upgrades in a timely manner and keep virus software up-to-date on all systems on 
which State data may be stored or accessed. 

J. Electronic Backups 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all electronic 
information is protected by performing regular backups of files and databases and 
ensure the availability of information assets for continued business.  The Contractor, 
and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all data, files and backup files are 
encrypted. 

K. Provisions of this Article 

The provisions contained in this Article shall be included in all contracts of both the 
Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors. 

ARTICLE XIX.  COPYRIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA 

A. Copyrights 

1. If any material funded by this Agreement is subject to copyright, the State 
reserves the right to copyright such material and the Contractor agrees not to 
copyright such material, except as set forth in Section B of this Article. 

2. The Contractor may request permission to copyright material by writing to the 
Director of CDA.  The Director shall grant permission, or give reason for denying 
permission to the Contractor in writing within sixty (60) days of receipt of the 
request. 

a. If the material is copyrighted with the consent of CDA, the State reserves 
a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, 
prepare derivative works, publish, distribute and use such materials, in 
whole or in part, and to authorize others to do so, provided written credit is 
given to the author. 
 

3. The Contractor certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place to 
ensure that State funds will not be used in the performance of this contract for 
the acquisition, operation, or maintenance of computer software in violation of 
copyright laws. 

  



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 29 of 32 

ARTICLE XIX.  COPYRIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA (Continued) 

B. Rights in Data 

1. The Contractor shall not publish or transfer any materials, as defined in 
paragraph 2 below, produced or resulting from activities supported by this 
Agreement without the express written consent of the Director of CDA.  That 
consent shall be given, or the reasons for denial shall be given, and any 
conditions under which it is given or denied, within thirty (30) days after the 
written request is received by CDA.  CDA may request a copy of the material for 
review prior to approval of the request.  This subsection is not intended to 
prohibit the Contractor from sharing identifying client information authorized by 
the participant or summary program information which is not client-specific. 

2. As used in this Agreement, the term “subject data” means writings, sound 
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, designs or graphic representations, 
procedural manuals, forms, diagrams, workflow charts, equipment descriptions, 
data files and data processing or computer programs, and works of any similar 
nature (whether or not copyrighted or copyrightable) which are first produced or 
developed under this Agreement.  The term does not include financial reports, 
cost analyses and similar information incidental to contract administration, or the 
exchange of that information between AAAs to facilitate uniformity of contract 
and program administration on a statewide basis. 

3. Subject only to other provisions of this Agreement, the State may use, duplicate, 
or disclose in any manner, and have or permit others to do so subject to State 
and federal law, all subject data delivered under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XX BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES 

A. Needs Assessment 

1. The Contractor shall conduct a cultural and linguistic group-needs assessment of 
the eligible client population in the Contractor’s service area to assess the 
language needs of the population and determine what reasonable steps are 
necessary to ensure meaningful access to services and activities to eligible 
individuals.  [22 CCR 98310, 98314] 

The group-needs assessment shall take into account the following 
four (4) factors: 

a. Number or proportion of persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 
eligible to be served or encountered by the program. 

b. Frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program. 

c. Nature and importance of the services provided. 

d. Local or frequently used resources available to the Contractor. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 30 of 32 

ARTICLE XX BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES (Continued) 

This group-needs assessment will serve as the basis for the Contractor’s 
determination of “reasonable steps” and provide documentary evidence of 
compliance with Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq.; 2 CCR 11140, 2 CCR 11200 et 
seq., and 22 CCR98300 et seq. 

2. The Contractor shall prepare and make available a report of the findings of the 
group-needs assessment that summarizes: 

a. Methodologies used. 

b. The linguistic and cultural needs of non-English speaking or LEP groups. 

c. Services proposed to address the needs identified and a timeline for 
implementation.  [22 CCR 98310] 

3. The Contractor shall maintain a record of the group-needs assessment on file at 
the Contractor’s headquarters at all times during the term of this Agreement.  [22 
CCR 98310, 98313] 

B. Provision of Services 

1. The Contractor shall take reasonable steps, based upon the group-needs 
assessment identified in Section A of this Article, to ensure that “alternative 
communication services” are available to non-English speaking or LEP 
beneficiaries of services under this Agreement. 

[22 CCR 11162] 

2. “Alternative communication services” include, but are not limited to, the provision 
of services and programs by means of the following: 

a. Interpreters or bilingual providers and provider staff. 

b. Contracts with interpreter services. 

c. Use of telephone interpreter lines. 

d. Sharing of language assistance materials and services with other 
providers. 

e. Translated written information materials, including but not limited to, 
enrollment information and descriptions of available services and 
programs. 

f. Referral to culturally and linguistically appropriate community service 
programs. 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 31 of 32 

ARTICLE XX BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES (Continued) 

3. Based upon the findings of the group-needs assessment, the Contractor shall 
ensure that reasonable alternative communication services are available to meet 
the linguistic needs of identified eligible client population groups at key points of 
contact.  Key points of contact include, but are not limited to, telephone contacts, 
office visits and in-home visits. 

[22 CCR 11162] 

The Contractor shall self-certify to compliance with the requirements of this 
section and shall maintain the self-certification record on file at the Contractor’s 
office at all times during the term of this Agreement.  [22 CCR 98310] 

4. The Contractor shall notify its employees of clients’ rights regarding language 
access and the Contractor’s obligation to ensure access to alternative 
communication services where determined appropriate based upon the needs 
assessment conducted by the Contractor.  [22 CCR 98324] 

5. Noncompliance with this section may result in suspension or termination of funds 
and/or termination of this Agreement.  [22 CCR 98370] 

C. Compliance Monitoring 

1. The Contractor shall develop and implement policies and procedures for 
assessing and monitoring the performance of individuals and entities that provide 
alternative communication services to non-English and LEP clients.  [22 CCR 
98310] 

2. The Contractor shall monitor, evaluate, and take effective action to address any 
needed improvement in the delivery of culturally and linguistically appropriate 
services.  [22 CCR 98310] 

3. The Contractor shall permit timely access to all records of compliance with this 
section.  Failure to provide access to such records may result in appropriate 
sanctions.  [22 CCR 98314] 

D. Notice to Eligible Beneficiaries of Contracted Services 

1. The Contractor shall designate an employee to whom initial complaints or 
inquiries regarding national origin can be directed.  [22 CCR 98325] 

2. The Contractor shall make available to ultimate beneficiaries of contracted 
services and programs information regarding CDA’s procedure for filing a 
complaint and other information regarding the provisions of Cal. Gov. Code § 
11135 et seq.  [22 CCR 98326] 

 



California Department of Aging  AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 32 of 32 

ARTICLE XX BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES (Continued) 

3. The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of a complaint alleging 
discrimination based upon a violation of State or federal law.  [2 CCR 11162, 
22 CCR 98310, 98340]



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 1 of 15 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT 

A. General Assurances 

The Contractor shall assure that the following conditions are met: 

1. Services are provided only to the defined Eligible Service Population. 

2. If the Contractor makes any award of funds to a public or private nonprofit 
agency, for the following purposes:  (1) acquiring, altering, leasing, or 
renovating a facility, including a mobile facility, for use as a multipurpose 
senior center or (2) constructing a facility, including a mobile facility, for use 
as a multipurpose senior center, the Contractor shall adhere to the program 
requirements and to 45 CFR 75.327(2), "Procurement Standards" 
(procurement by contractors and subcontractors for nonprofit organizations), 
and 45 CFR 75.327 (procurement for State and local governments), as 
applicable. 

3. The Contractor shall comply with the standards and guidelines for 
procurement of supplies, equipment, construction, and services as provided 
in 45 CFR 75.328. 

4. The Contractor assures that when an existing facility has been altered (with 
funds made available by this Agreement) and is used as a multipurpose 
senior center, the period of time in which such facility shall be used as a 
center is as follows: 

a. Not less than three (3) years from the date the Agreement terminates, 
where the amount of the Agreement, including the non-federal share, 
does not exceed $30,000. 

b. If the Agreement amount exceeds $30,000, the fixed period of time 
shall be not less than three (3) years from the date of Agreement plus 
one (1) year for each additional $10,000, or part thereof, to a maximum 
of $75,000. 

c. For Agreement amounts which exceed $75,000, the fixed period of 
time shall be no less than ten (10) years. 

5. Any multipurpose senior center constructed with funds made available by this 
Agreement shall be used for that purpose for at least twenty (20) years after 
completion of that construction. 

6. Any facility to be used as a senior center and acquired with funds made 
available by this Agreement shall be used for that purpose for at least ten (10) 
years from the date of acquisition. 

 



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 2 of 15 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

7. Any agency awarded Title III funds for senior center acquisition or 
construction will have a completed and notarized Notice of Assurances to the 
State of California of the Use of Property and the United States’ Right of 
Recapture (CDA 214) recorded with the County Recorder.  The Contractor 
shall periodically validate continuing use of such facility as a senior center 
during the recapture period. 

8. CDA will make funds available only for the support of activities specified in an 
approved and current Area Plan that is in compliance with State and federal 
laws and regulations. 

9. The Contractor and/or Subcontractor shall make use of trained volunteers to 
expand the provision of FCSP activities in accordance with OAA § 373(d). 

10. An individual’s receipt of services under the In-Home Supportive Services 
Program shall not be the sole cause for denial of any services provided by the 
AAA or its subcontractors. 

11. Funds made available under Title III E shall be budgeted and expended in 
accordance with the five federal support service components specified in 
OAA § 373(b), and distinguished between “caregiver” and “grandparent” 
support services, as required for Older Americans Act Performance System 
(OAAPS). 

12. Funds made available under Title III E shall enable comprehensive and 
multifaceted systems of support services that include the five federal support 
service components for both “family caregiver” and “older relative caregiver” 
[OAA § 373(a)-(b)], unless the AAA has documented through the Area Plan 
process that one or more of these components is being addressed by other 
sources. 

13. Funds made available under this Agreement shall supplement, and not 
supplant, any federal, State, or local funds expended by a State or unit of 
general purpose local government to provide Title III (excluding III E) and 
Title VII services. 

14. Funds made available under Title III E shall supplement and not supplant 
other services that may directly or indirectly support unpaid caregiving, such 
as Medicaid waiver programs (e.g., the Multipurpose Senior Services 
Program, etc.) or other caregiver services such as those provided through the 
Department of Social Services’ Kinship Support Service Programs, the 
California Community Colleges’ Foster and Kinship Care Education 
Programs, the Department of Developmental Services’ Regional Centers, the 
California Caregiver Resource Centers, and other Title III funded providers. 

 



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 3 of 15 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

15. The following closely related programs identified by CFDA number are to be 
considered as an “other cluster” for purposes of determining major programs 
or whether a program-specific audit may be elected.  The Contractor shall 
identify the CFDA titles and numbers to the independent auditor conducting 
the organization’s single audit along with each of its subcontractors.  The 
funding source (Federal Grantor) for the following programs is the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Community 
Living. 

93.041 Special Programs for the Aging-Title VII-A, Chapter 3 – 
Programs for Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect, and 
Exploitation (Title VII-A, Chapter 3). 

93.042 Special Programs for the Aging-Title III B & VII-A, Chapter 2 – 
Long-Term Care Ombudsman Services for Older Individuals 
(Title III B & VII-A, Chapter 2). 

93.043 Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part D – 
Disease Prevention and Health Promotion Services  

(Title III D). 

93.044 Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part B – 
Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers  

(Title III B). 

93.045 Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part C – 
Nutrition Services (Title III C). 

93.052 National Family Caregiver Support Program-Title III, Part E. 

93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program. 

“Cluster of programs” means a grouping of closely-related programs that 
share common compliance requirements.  The types of clusters of programs 
are research and development, student financial aid, and other clusters.  
“Other clusters” are defined by the consolidated CFR in the Compliance 
Supplement or as designated by a state for federal awards provided to its 
subcontractors that meet the definition of “cluster of programs.”  When 
designating an “other cluster,” a state shall identify the federal awards 
included in the cluster and advise the subcontractors of compliance 
requirements applicable to the cluster.  A “cluster of programs” shall be 
considered as one program for determining major programs, as described in 
45 CFR 75.525(a), whether a program-specific audit may be elected.  



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 4 of 15 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

 [Federal Office of Management and Budget, [45 CFR 75 Requirements], 
Audits of States, Local Governments 45 CFR 75 Appendix V to part 75 F. 1., 
and Non-Profit Organizations 45 CFR 75 Appendix IV to part 75 C. 2.a.] 

16. The Contractor assures that voluntary contributions shall be allowed and may 
be solicited in accordance with the following requirements [OAA § 315(b)]: 

a. The Contractor or any subcontractors for any Title III or Title VII-A 
services shall not use means tests. 

b. Any Title III or Title VII-A client that does not contribute toward the cost 
of the services received shall not be denied services. 

c. Methods used to solicit voluntary contributions for Title III and Title VII-
A services shall be non-coercive. 

d. Each service provider will: 

i. Provide each recipient with an opportunity to voluntarily 
contribute to the cost of the service. 

ii. Clearly inform each recipient that there is no obligation to 
contribute and that the contribution is purely voluntary. 

iii. Protect the privacy and confidentiality of each recipient with 
respect to the recipient’s contribution or lack of contribution; and 

iv. Establish appropriate procedures to safeguard and account for 
all contributions. 

v. Use all collected contributions to expand the services for which 
the contributions were given and to supplement (not supplant) 
funds received under this Act. 

17. Any Title III and Title VII service shall not implement a Cost Sharing program 
unless approved by CDA. 

18. The Contractor shall comply with OAA § 306(a)(17), which requires an AAA to 
include in its Area Plan information on how it will coordinate activities and 
develop long-range emergency preparedness plans with local and State 
emergency response agencies, relief organizations, local and State 
governments, the Local Ombudsman Program, and any other institutions that 
have responsibility for disaster relief service delivery. 

  



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 5 of 15 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

19. The Contractor, at a minimum, shall identify and make contact with its local 
Office of Emergency Services (OES) to define their respective roles and 
responsibilities.  This contact shall include a discussion of the types of clients 
served by the AAA and how OES will address their needs in the community. 

20. The Contractor shall furnish annually, or whenever a change occurs, the 
name of its Disaster Coordinator to the CDA Disaster Coordinator. 

21. The Contractor shall assure that its Information and Assistance staff have 
written procedures in place and are trained at least annually on how to handle 
emergencies.  As specified in 22 CCR § 7547, the training shall consist of: 

a. Familiarity with telephone numbers of fire, police, and ambulance 
services for the geographic area served by the provider.  These 
telephone numbers shall be posted near the telephone for easy access 
when an emergency arises. 

b. Techniques to obtain vital information from older individuals and 
persons with disabilities who require emergency assistance. 

c. Making written emergency procedure instructions available to all staff 
who have contact with older individuals or persons with disabilities. 

22. The Contractor shall not require proof of age, citizenship, or disability as a 
condition of receiving services. 

23. The Contractor shall develop a policy and procedure to ensure that Title III C-
1 and Title III C-2 meals are only received by eligible individuals. 

24. The Contractor shall annually assess each Title III C-1 and C-2 client’s 
nutrition risk using the Determine Your Nutritional Risk checklist published by 
the Nutrition Screening Initiative.  [OAA § 339(2)(J); OAA § 207(a)(3)] 

25. The Contractor shall assure that the following publication conditions are met: 

Materials published or transferred by the Contractor and financed with funds 
under this Agreement shall: 

a. state, “The materials or product were a result of a project funded by a 
contract with the California Department of Aging”. 

b. give the name of the entity, the address, and telephone number at 
which the supporting data is available and include a statement that, 
“The conclusions and opinions expressed may not be those of the  

 



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 6 of 15 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

California Department of Aging and that the publication may not be 
based upon or inclusive of all raw data.” 

B. Assurances Specific to the Ombudsman Program 

The Contractor shall assure the following: 

1. Long-Term Care Ombudsman funds from Title III B and VII – A, Chapter 2 
shall be used exclusively for the Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program. 

2. The Long-Term Care Program Coordinator shall establish and monitor the 
budget for the Program 

3. Long-Term Care Ombudsman Services in the Planning and Service Area will be 
carried out by the agency that has been designated by the State Ombudsman to 
provide those services.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(A); 45 CFR 1324.13(c)] 

4. The Local Ombudsman Program, its governing board members, 
representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program, OSLTCO, and members 
of their immediate families shall be free of actual and perceived conflicts of 
interest.  [OAA § 712(f)(1)(B); 45 CFR 1324.21] 

5. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program shall have unescorted, 
unhindered access to long-term care facilities and long-term care facility 
residents between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., seven days a week.  
[OAA § 712(b)(1)(A); 45 CFR 1324.11(e)(2)(i); Welf. & Inst. Code § 9722(a); 
22 CCR 8020(a)].  Authorization by the State Ombudsman is required for 
entry outside of these hours. [Welf. & Inst. Code § 9722(a); 22 CCR 8020(b)] 

6. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program shall have access to the 
medical and personal records of residents with appropriate  

documentation of consent, or when authorized by the State Ombudsman, in 
accordance with policies developed by the State Ombudsman.  
[OAA § 712(b)(1)(B)] [45 CFR 1324.11(e)(2)(iv)] [Welf. & Inst. Code § 9724] 

7. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program, upon request to a long-
term care facility staff, shall be provided with a roster, census, or other list of 
the names and room numbers or room locations of all current residents.  
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9722(d)] 

8. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program shall not carry out the 
responsibilities of the Program until the State Ombudsman accepts them for 
certification.  [OAA § 712(h)(6)(B); 45 CFR 1324.13(c)(3); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9719(a)] 



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 7 of 15 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

9. All records and files maintained by the local Ombudsman Program relating to 
any complaint or investigation shall remain confidential unless disclosure is 
authorized by the resident, resident representative, State Ombudsman, or 
local Ombudsman Program Coordinator in compliance with OSLTCO policies 
and procedures.  [OAA §§ 705(a)(6)(C); 712)] 
[45 CFR 1324.11(e)(3); 1324.19(b)(6-9)] [Welf. & Inst. Code § 9725] 

10. The Local Ombudsman Program shall enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the Legal Services Provider (LSP) which will 
address conflict of interest, provision of legal advice, procedures for referral, 
and other technical assistance.  The LSP may assist the State in providing 
legal representation to the Program when an Ombudsman Representative 
has been subpoenaed or a suit or other legal action has been threatened or 
brought against the performance of the official duties of the Ombudsman 
Representative.  [OAA § 712(h)(8); 45 CFR 1324.13(h)(10); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9717(c); Statewide Standards for Legal Assistance in 
California] 

11. Each Local Ombudsman Program shall maintain a separate budget.  The 
Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator shall be responsible for managing 
the day-to-day operation of the Program, including managing all paid staff and 
volunteers in the Program.  The Local Ombudsman Coordinator shall 
determine budget priorities, develop or participate in budget preparation, and 
be informed of budget allocations by the Contractor specific to the 
Ombudsman Program.  [45 CFR 1324.13(f)] 

12. The Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator shall provide CDA with an 
organizational chart that includes: 

a. All local staff that are wholly or partly funded by Ombudsman Program 
resources. 

b. Their titles/roles within the Program. 

c. The number of hours per week charged to the Local Ombudsman 
Program for each position. 

[45 CFR 1324.13(b),(c)] 

13. The Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator shall attend OSLTCO New 
Coordinator Training when initially designated as coordinator and OSLTCO 
biannual training conferences.  [45 CFR 1324.13(c)(2); Welf. & Inst. Code § 
9719(a)(1)] 

 



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 8 of 15 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

14. The Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator shall inform CDA/OSLTCO of 
issues with local Ombudsman Representatives, complex cases, situations 
with potential legal implications, changes in staffing, emerging regional issues 
with statewide impact, breaches of confidentiality, and conflict of interest 
issues. [45 CFR 1324.13(b),(c)] 

15. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program shall conduct 
interviews/investigations in a confidential manner and the Program shall have 
office space and telecommunications that protect the confidentiality of all 
complaint-related communications and records.  [OAA § 712(a)(3)(D); 
45 CFR 1324.19(b)(2)(i); Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 9725; 15633(c)] 

16. Each Local Ombudsman Program shall have information systems sufficient to 
run State-approved database systems and to receive and send confidential e-
mail messages to and from CDA.  [OAA § 712(c); 45 CFR 1324.13(d); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9716(a)] 

17. The entity providing Ombudsman services must be insured or self-insured for 
professional liability covering all Ombudsman activities including, but not 
limited to, investigation of resident complaints. 

C. Assurances Specific to Legal Service Providers (LSPs)  

In accordance with OAA § 731, the Contractor shall assure that the following 
conditions are met: 

1. LSPs will coordinate with State-designated providers of Long-Term Care 
Ombudsman services by developing and executing an MOU which will 
address conflict of interest, provision of legal advice, procedures for referral 
and other technical assistance. 

2. LSPs may provide direct legal assistance to residents of the long-term care 
facilities where the clients are otherwise eligible and services are appropriate. 

3. Where both legal and Ombudsman services are provided by the same 
agency, providers must develop and follow policies and procedures to protect 
the integrity, resources, and confidentiality of both programs. 

4. LSPs may assist the State in providing legal representation to the 
Ombudsman Program when an Ombudsman or the program is named as a 
party or witness, in a subpoena, civil suit or other legal action challenging the 
performance of the official duties of the Ombudsman. 

5. LSPs are to coordinate with the local Legal Services Corporation (LSC) 
program, if the provider is not an LSC-funded program. 



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 9 of 15 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

6. LSPs are to coordinate with the network of other service providers, including 
but not limited to, other LSPs, Long-Term Care Ombudsman Programs, 
Health Insurance Counseling and Advocacy Programs, senior information and 
assistance, Adult Protective Services, law enforcement, case management 
services and focal points. 

7. LSPs are to coordinate legal assistance activities with the statewide hotline 
and private Bar, including groups within the private Bar furnishing services to 
older individuals on a pro bono or reduced fee basis. 

8. LSPs are to collect required data elements on legal services provided and 
report in CARS.   

9. Waiver of this section of the Contract may be obtained from CDA pursuant to 
Exhibit D, Article XV of this Agreement entitled, Amendments, Revisions, or 
Modifications. 

ARTICLE II.  REPORTING PROVISIONS 

A. The Contractor shall submit program performance reports to the CDA Data Team 
for:  Title III B, Title III C-1, Title III C-2, Title III D, Title III E, and Title VII-A Elder 
Abuse Prevention Programs in accordance with CDA requirements.  
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9102 (a)(5] 

B. The Contractor shall have written procedures to assure that all submitted 
performance data is timely, complete, accurate, and verifiable. 

1. Quarterly, the Contractor shall submit data reports for OAA-funded programs 
as follows: 

Quarter Reporting Period Due Date 

Quarter 1 July 1 - September 30 October 31 

Quarter 2 October 1 - December 31 January 31 

Quarter 3 January 1 - March 31 April 30 

Quarter 4 April 1 - June 30 July 31 

 

  



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 10 of 15 

ARTICLE II.  REPORTING PROVISIONS (Continued) 

2. Annually, the Contractor shall submit performance reports as follows, or as 
instructed by CDA: 

Reporting Period Due Date 

July 1 – June 30 September 30 

3. For reports that will be submitted late, ten (10) calendar days prior to the 
report due date, the Contractor shall submit to the Data Team 
(DataTeam.Reports@aging.ca.gov), a written explanation including the 
reasons for the delay and the estimated date of submission. 

4. For web-based California Aging Report System (CARS) reports, the 
Contractor shall approve all data within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of 
notification of passed status.  If data in the CARS report is not correct and 
approvable within ten (10) days, the Contractor will make a notation in the 
comments area of the CARS report and submit the data using the approved 
status button.Reporting Requirements specific to Title III B, Title III C-1, Title 
III C-2, Title III D, Title III E, and Title VII-A Elder Abuse Prevention Program 
services 

The Contractor shall submit program data reports electronically as follows: 

1. Upload the OAAPS State Program Report (SPR) to CARS at 
https://ca.getcare.com. 

2. Submit performance data reports quarterly. 

3. Submit OAAPS SPR reports annually. 

C. The Contractor shall verify the accuracy of all data submitted to CDA by reviewing 
and responding to the Annual Data Error Report in accordance with CDA 
requirements. 

1. The Contractor shall, in accordance with CDA requirements, correct and/or 
explain all logic and questionable errors in the Annual Data Error Report. 

a. The Contractor shall return the Annual Data Error Report to CDA, 
verifying that corrections have been made, via email to 
DataTeam.Reports@aging.ca.gov. 

b. The Annual Data Error Reports are due to CDA by a date specified by 
CDA, which can vary from year to year. 

  

mailto:DataTeam.Reports@aging.ca.gov
https://ca.getcare.com/
mailto:DataTeam.Reports@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 11 of 15 

ARTICLE II.  REPORTING PROVISIONS (Continued) 

2. The Contractor shall review and verify all quarterly and annual OAAPS SPR 
data for accuracy and make necessary corrections, in accordance with CDA 
requirements. 

D. Reporting Provisions Specific to the Ombudsman Program 

The Contractor shall take the following actions, or shall require its Subcontractor, the 
Local Ombudsman Program, to enter data into the Internet-based National 
Ombudsman Reporting System (NORS) utilizing software provided by CDA, as 
required.  NORS data entry must be timely, complete, accurate, and verifiable. 

1. Data entry for quarterly NORS reports must be completed no later than one 
month following the end of the reporting quarter (i.e., October 31, January 31, 
April 30, and July 31). Upon request, aggregate data may be sent to the 
corresponding AAA. 

2. On or before the reporting dates, the Local Ombudsman Program must 
submit the Quarterly Ombudsman Data Reporting Form (OSLTCO S301), 
indicating that data for the quarter has been completed or the reason for any 
delay, to the OSLTCO mailbox (stateomb@aging.ca.gov) with a copy to the 
AAA. 

E. The Contractor shall have written reporting procedures specific to each program 
which include: 

1. Collection and reporting of program data for the Contractor and 
Subcontractor. 

2. Ensuring accuracy of all data from the Contractor and Subcontractor. 

3. Verification of the Contractor and Subcontractor data prior to submission to 
the CDA Data Team. 

4. Procedures for the Contractor and Subcontractor on correcting data errors. 

5. A methodology for calculating and reporting: 

a. Total estimated unduplicated clients in each non-registered service. 
b. Total estimated unduplicated clients in all non-registered services. 
c. Total estimated unduplicated clients across all registered and 

non-registered services. 

6. A performance data monitoring process. 

  

mailto:stateomb@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 12 of 15 

ARTICLE II.  REPORTING PROVISIONS (Continued) 

F. The Contractor shall orient and train staff and Subcontractor staff regarding program 
data collection and reporting requirements.  The Contractor shall have cross-trained 
staff in the event of planned or unplanned, prolonged absences to ensure timely and 
accurate submission of data. 

G. Reporting Provisions Specific to Title VII-A, Chapter 3 Elder Abuse Prevention 

1. The Contractor shall complete and submit the Elder Abuse Prevention 
Quarterly Activity Report (CDA 1037) to the OSLTCO mailbox 
(stateomb@aging.ca.gov) on the following reporting due dates: 

Quarter Reporting Period Due Date 

Quarter 1 July 1 - September 30 October 31 

Quarter 2 October 1 - December 31 January 31 

Quarter 3 January 1 - March 31 April 30 

Quarter 4 April 1 - June 30 July 31 

2. The Contractor shall also enter the quarterly aggregate number of “Elder 
Abuse Prevention, Education and Training Sessions” and “Elder Abuse 
Prevention Educational Materials” into CARS on a quarterly basis. 

3. The Contractor shall also report in CARS the total Elder Abuse Prevention, 
Education and Training sessions and Elder Abuse Prevention, Education 
Materials from the Elder Abuse Prevention Quarterly Activity Report. 

ARTICLE III.  APPEAL PROCESS 

A. The Contractor may appeal an adverse determination as defined in 22 CCR 7702 
using the appeal process established by CDA in 22 CCR 7700 through 7710. 

Such appeal shall be filed within thirty (30) days of receipt of CDA’s notice of 
adverse determination. 

B. Subcontractors of the Contractor may appeal the Contractor’s final adverse 
determination relating to Title III and Title VII programs using the appeal process 
established in 22 CCR 7700 to 7710. 

C. Any dispute regarding an existing direct service contract or the procurement of the 
direct service contract shall be resolved locally, consistent with W&I § 9535(k), and 
as specified in the procurement documents and contracts of the Contractor. 

D. Appeal costs or costs associated with any court review are not reimbursable. 

mailto:stateomb@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 13 of 15 

ARTICLE IV.  TRANSITION PLAN 

A. The Contractor shall submit a transition plan to the State within fifteen (15) days of 
delivery of a written Notice of Termination (pursuant to Exhibit D, Article XII. of this 
Agreement) for a service funded either by Title III or Title VII.  The transition plan 
must be approved by the State and shall at a minimum include the following: 

1. A description of how clients will be notified about the change in their service 
provider. 

2. A plan to communicate with other organizations that can assist in locating 
alternative services. 

3. A plan to inform community referral sources of the pending termination of the 
service and what alternatives, if any, exist for future referrals. 

4. A plan to evaluate clients in order to assure appropriate placement. 

5. A plan to transfer any confidential medical and client records to a new 
contractor. 

6. A plan to dispose of confidential records in accordance with applicable laws 
and regulations. 

7. A plan for adequate staff to provide continued care through the term of the 
Contract.  [22 CCR 7206(e)(4)] 

8. A full inventory and plan to dispose of, transfer, or return to the State all 
equipment purchased during the entire operation of the Contract. 

9. Additional information as necessary to effect a safe transition of clients to 
other community service providers. 

B. The Contractor shall implement the transition plan as approved by the State.  The 
State will monitor the Contractor’s progress in carrying out all elements of the 
transition plan. 

C. If the Contractor fails to provide and implement a transition plan as required by 
Exhibit D, Article XII. of this Agreement, the Contractor will implement a transition 
plan submitted by CDA to the Contractor following the Notice of Termination. 

ARTICLE V.  OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION SPECIFIC TO THE OMBUDSMAN 
PROGRAM 

A. Transition of Local Ombudsman Services 

1. The Contractor shall, upon receipt of notice of intent to terminate 
Ombudsman services by the subcontractor, notify the State Ombudsman in 
writing, within one (1) working day of the receipt of the notice. 



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 14 of 15 

ARTICLE V.  OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION SPECIFIC TO THE OMBUDSMAN 
PROGRAM (Continued) 

2. The Contractor shall, upon notice of termination, implement one of the 
following options to ensure continuity of Ombudsman services in accordance 
with federal and State mandates: 

a. Continue the provision of mandated Ombudsman services as a 
subcontract with a provider selected in response to a Request for 
Proposal (RFP).  CDA shall allow the Contractor up to one hundred 
eighty (180) days to transition services to a new subcontractor. 

b. Continue the provision of mandated Ombudsman services as a direct 
service of the Contractor.  CDA shall allow the Contractor up to one 
hundred eighty (180) days to transition services from the Subcontractor 
to the Contractor. 

B. Transition Plan 

1. The Contractor shall submit a Transition Plan to the State Ombudsman within 
fifteen (15) days from the occurrence of any of the following: 

a. The Contractor’s receipt of written notice of the Subcontractor’s intent 
to terminate Ombudsman services. 

b. The Contractor’s written notice to the Subcontractor of its intent to 
terminate the subcontract for Ombudsman services. 

c. The Contractor’s receipt of written notice of CDA’s intent to terminate 
the Contract for Ombudsman services. 

d. The Transition Plan shall be submitted to: 

CDA OSLTCO 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 

Sacramento, CA 95833 
Attn: State Ombudsman 

2. The Contractor shall identify in the Transition Plan which option it has chosen 
to ensure that there will be no break in continued services, based on the 
following: 

a. Continue the mandated Ombudsman provisions as a direct service of 
the Contractor, utilizing experienced State Certified Ombudsman 
Representatives and a local Program Coordinator selected by the 
Contractor and designated by the State Ombudsman to represent the 
Local Ombudsman Program. 



California Department of Aging AP 2324 Agreement 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

Page 15 of 15 

ARTICLE V.  OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION SPECIFIC TO THE OMBUDSMAN 
PROGRAM (Continued) 

b. Continue the mandated Ombudsman provisions as a subcontracted 
service with a subsequent provider selected in response to an RFP 
and designated by the State Ombudsman to carry out Ombudsman 
duties with respect to the PSA. 

3. The Transition Plan shall, at a minimum, include the following: 

a. Details of how the Contractor shall maintain an adequate level of State 
Certified Ombudsman Representatives to ensure continuity of services 
during the transition to a subsequent Local Ombudsman Program. 

b. Details of how the Contractor shall notify all the impacted facilities and 
community referral sources of the change in the parties providing Local 
Ombudsman Program services. 

c. Details of how the Contractor shall deliver to the subsequent Local 
Ombudsman Program, a full inventory of updated confidential client 
records, public facility records, and records documenting Ombudsman 
certification and training. 

d. A description of how the subsequent Local Ombudsman Program will 
be assisted in assessing the status of all active clients’ records at the 
point of transfer to ensure timely continuation of Ombudsman services. 

e. A description of how residents and their families will be notified about 
the changes in their Ombudsman services provider. 

C. The Contractor shall implement the Transition Plan as approved by the State 
Ombudsman.  The State Ombudsman will monitor the Contractor’s progress in 
carrying out all elements of the Transition Plan. 

D. If the Contractor fails to provide and implement the Transition Plan as required 
above, the Contractor agrees to implement a Transition Plan submitted by the State 
Ombudsman to the Contractor.  This Transition Plan may utilize State Certified 
Ombudsman Representatives from either the terminating Subcontractor or from a 
neighboring Local Ombudsman Program. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 1 of 11 

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

Exhibit A, 
Article I, A, 23 
NEW  

Current language does not exist 23. To-Go Meals means meals that are 
picked up by clients (or client's agent) or 
delivered to clients who are not 
comfortable dining in a congregate meal 
setting. 

 

a. C-1: To-Go meals are categorized 
as C-1 meals if they are consumed 
onsite and include in-person 
interaction (e.g., dining at 
congregate site such as restaurant, 
food truck, etc. or one-on-one with 
program volunteer) or consumed 
offsite and and include virtual 
interaction (e.g., group interaction 
via Zoom, FaceTime, etc. or one-on-
one with program volunteer via 
telephone) during the meal. 
 

b. C-2: To-Go meals are categorized 
as C-2 meals if they are consumed 
offsite without in-person or virtual 
interaction. 

To define To-Go meals which are 
now a permanent option in the Title 
III C program.  

Exhibit A, 
Article I, A, 24 
Renumbered  

23. Title III C-2 (Home-Delivered Nutrition 
Services) means nutrition services 
provided to homebound older 
individuals including meals, nutrition 
education, and nutrition risk screening.        

      Each meal shall provide one-third (1/3) 
of the DRI and comply with the most 
current Dietary Guidelines for 
Americans. [22 CCR 7135, 22 CCR 
7638.7(c)] 

24. Title III C-2 (Home-Delivered Nutrition 
Services) means nutrition services 
provided to frail, homebound, or isolated 
older individuals including meals, 
nutrition education, and nutrition risk 
screening. 

 
Each meal shall provide one-third (1/3) 
of the DRI and comply with the most 
current Dietary Guidelines for 

Clarification provided by ACL that 
being homebound is not a 
requirement for C-2 eligibility. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 2 of 11 

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

Americans. [22 CCR 7135, 22 CCR 
7638.7(c)] 

Exhibit B, 
Article V, A 

A. Title III B, III C, III D, III E, VII 
Ombudsman and VII-A Elder Abuse 
Prevention 

The Contractor shall prepare and submit 
a monthly expenditure report in an 
electronic format to CDA no later than 
the last business day of each month or 
as specified by CDA.  The report shall 
include all costs and funding sources for 
the month prior. 

A. Title III B, III C, III D, III E, VII 
Ombudsman, VII-A Elder Abuse 
Prevention, Ombudsman Citation 
Penalties Account, Licensing and 
Certification Program funds, Skilled 
Nursing Facility Quality and 
Accountability Funds, CARES Act, Elder 
Justice Act, and Older Californians Act. 

 
The Contractor shall prepare and submit 
a monthly expenditure report in an 
electronic format to CDA no later than 
the last business day of each month or 
as specified by CDA.  The report shall 
include all costs and funding sources for 
the month prior. 

Combined with Exhibit B, Article 
V.B as requirements are the same 
and language is redundant. 
 

Exhibit B, 
Article V, B 

B. Ombudsman Citation Penalties Account, 
Licensing and Certification Program 
funds, Skilled Nursing Facility Quality 
and Accountability Funds, CARES Act, 
Elder Justice Act, and Older Californians 
Act. 

The Contractor shall submit a monthly 
expenditure report and a request for 
funds to CDA no later than the last 
business day of each month unless 
otherwise specified by CDA. 

Remove section Combined with Exhibit B, Article 
V.A. as requirements are the same 
and language is redundant. 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 3 of 11 

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

Exhibit B, 
Article V, C 

C. Payments will be made to reimburse 
expenditures reported unless contractor 
pre-selects an Advance method on CDA 
122 at the time of contract execution. 

B. Payments will be made to reimburse 
expenditures reported unless Contractor 
pre-selects an Advance method on the 
budget form at the time of Agreement 
execution. 

Removed CDA 122 form number 
and renumbered section. 
 
  

Exhibit B, 
Article V, F-H 

F. The funding balances for July 1 
through September 30 will be 
determined from the Contractor’s 
budget (CDA 122). 

G. The funding balances for October 1 
through February 28 will be based 
on the contract budget display from 
the contract amendment until 
transfers are approved by 
Administration for Community 
Living. 

H. The funding balances for March 1st 
(or upon ACL approval whichever is 
the latter) through June 30th, will be 
based on the Contractor’s final 
budget (CDA 122) (i.e., budget 
submitted with the contract 
amendment, the January 15th or 
April 30th budget). 

E. The funding availability for July 1 
through September 30 will be 
determined based on the final three 
months of the previous federal fiscal 
year grant period, as specified in the 
Contractor’s budget display. 

F. The funding availability for October 1 
through February 28 will be determined 
based on the original Agreement budget 
display allocations until any original 
transfer requests are approved by 
Administration for Community Living. 

G. The funding availability for March 1st  (or 
upon ACL approval whichever is the 
latter) through June 30th, will be based 
on the Contractor’s final approved 
budget (i.e., budget submitted with the 
Agreement amendment, the January 
15th or April 30th budget). 

Updated funding availability due to 
3mo/9mo federal grant period splits 
and transfer approval processes. 
Removed CDA 122 form number, 
revised and renumbered sections.  
 

Exhibit B, 
Article VI, A 

A. The Area Plan Financial Closeout Report 
(CDA 180), and the Program Property 
Inventory Certification (CDA 9024) shall 
be submitted annually to the CDA Local 
Finance Bureau. All contractors are 
required to submit Closeout Reports as 
instructed by CDA. 

A. The Area Plan Financial Closeout 
Report, and reconciliation to Contractor’s 
General Ledger shall be submitted 
annually to the CDA Local Finance 
Bureau.  All contractors are required to 
submit Closeout Reports as instructed by 
CDA. 

Removed form numbers, noted 
electronic submissions and 
streamlined processes to match 
submission of other equipment 
reporting processes  



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 4 of 11 

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

 

All contractors are required to submit a 
Program Property Inventory Certification 
annually, at the time of closeouts, to 
CDAEquipment@aging.ca.gov or as 
instructed by CDA. 

Exhibit B, 
Article VI, E 

E. Final expenditures must be reported to 
CDA in accordance with the budget 
display in Exhibit B. If the expenditures 
reported by the Contractor exceed the 
advanced amount, CDA will reimburse 
the difference to the Contractor up to the 
contract amount. If the expenditures 
reported by the Contractor are less than 
the advanced amount, CDA will invoice 
the Contractor the unspent funds. 

The payment on the invoice is due 
immediately upon receipt or no later than 
30 days from the date on the invoice. 

E. Final expenditures must be reported to 
CDA in accordance with the budget 
display in Exhibit B. If the expenditures 
reported by the Contractor exceed the 
advanced amount, CDA will reimburse 
the difference to the Contractor up to the 
Agreement amount. If the expenditures 
reported by the Contractor are less than 
the advanced amount, CDA will invoice 
the Contractor the unspent funds. 

 

The payment on the invoice is due 
immediately upon receipt or no later than 
30 calendar days from the date on the 
invoice. 
 

If payment is not received within 30 
calendar days, CDA will collect payment 
from upcoming disbursements. To 
account for the collected funds from the 
outstanding invoice, the AAA will need to 
adjust records to move the funds already 
on hand from the previous year’s 
Agreement to the current Agreement 
period. 

To clarify CDA’s ability to collect 
funds owed if invoices are not paid 
timely. 

mailto:CDAEquipment@aging.ca.gov


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 5 of 11 

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

Exhibit D, 
Article I, A, 5 

5. “DUNS” means the nine-digit, Data 
Universal Numbering System number 
established and assigned by Dun and 
Bradstreet, Inc., to uniquely identify 
business entities. 

5. “UEI” means the Unique Entity ID - a 12-
character alphanumeric ID assigned to 
an entity by SAM.gov on April 4, 2022. 
As part of this transition, the DUNS 
number has been removed from 
SAM.gov and entity registration, 
searching, and data entry in SAM.gov 
now require use of the new Unique Entity 
ID. 

SAM.gov changes effective 4/4/22.  

Exhibit D, 
Article I, A, 12 

12.“Subcontractor” means the legal entity 
that receives funds from the Contractor 
to carry out part of a federal award 
identified in this Agreement. 

12.“Subcontractor” means the legal entity 
that receives funds from the Contractor 
to carry out any part of a federal award 
identified in this Agreement. 

 

Exhibit D, 
Article I, A, 13 

13. “Subcontract” means any form of legal 
agreement between the Contractor and 
the Subcontractor, including an 
agreement that the Contractor considers 
a contract, including vendor type 
Agreements for providing goods or 
services under this Agreement. 

13. “Subcontract” means any form of legal 
agreement between the Contractor and 
the Subcontractor, including an 
agreement that the Contractor or 
Subcontractor would consider to be a 
contract, including vendor type 
Agreements for providing goods or 
services under this Agreement. 

 

Exhibit D, 
Article I, A, 18 

18. “Allocation” means the process of 
assigning a cost, or a group of costs, to 
one or more cost objective(s), in 
reasonable proportion to the benefit 
provided or other equitable relationship. 
The process may entail assigning a 
cost(s) directly to a final cost objective or 
through one or more intermediate cost 
objectives. (2 CFR 200.4 and 45 CFR 
75.2) 

18.“Allocation” means the process of 
assigning a cost, or a group of costs, to 
one or more cost objective(s), in 
reasonable proportion to the benefit 
provided or other equitable relationship. 
The process may entail assigning a 
cost(s) directly to a final cost objective 
or through one or more intermediate 
cost objectives. (2 CFR 200.1 and 45 
CFR 75.2) 

Updated reference   



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 6 of 11 

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

Exhibit D, 
Article I, A, 19 

19.“Disallowed costs” means those 
charges determined to be 
unallowable, in accordance with 
the applicable Federal statutes, 
regulations, or the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award. (2 
CFR 200.31 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

19.“Disallowed costs” means those 
charges determined to be 
unallowable, in accordance with 
the applicable Federal statutes, 
regulations, or the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award. (2 
CFR 200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

Updated reference   

Exhibit D, 
Article I, A, 20 

20.“Questioned Costs” means a cost that is 
questioned by the auditor because of an 
audit finding which resulted from a 
violation or possible violation of a 
statute, regulation, or the terms and 
conditions of a Federal award, including 
for funds used to match Federal funds; 
where the costs, at the time of the audit, 
are not supported by adequate 
documentation; or where the costs 
incurred appear unreasonable and do 
not reflect the actions a prudent person 
would take in the circumstances. (2 
CFR 200.84 and 45 CFR 75.2). 

20.“Questioned Costs” means a cost that is 
questioned by the auditor because of an 
audit finding which resulted from a 
violation or possible violation of a 
statute, regulation, or the terms and 
conditions of a Federal award, including 
for funds used to match Federal funds; 
where the costs, at the time of the audit, 
are not supported by adequate 
documentation; or where the costs 
incurred appear unreasonable and do 
not reflect the actions a prudent person 
would take in the circumstances. (2 
CFR 200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2). 

Updated reference 

Exhibit D, 
Article I, A, 21 

21. “Recoverable cost” means the state and 
federal share of the questioned cost. 

21. “Recoverable cost” means the 
questioned cost identified from an audit. 

CDA does not differentiate 
between state and federal share 
when determining the recoverable 
amount. 

Exhibit D, 
Article II, M 

M. DUNS Number and Related Information  
 

1. The DUNS number must be provided to 
CDA prior to the execution of this 
Agreement. Business entities may 
register for a DUNS number at 
http://www.dnb.com/duns-number.html. 

M.  UEI Number and Related Information 

1. The Unique Entity Identifier changed 
from the DUNS Number to the Unique 
Entity ID (generated by SAM.gov) on 
April 4, 2022. The UEI number must be 
provided to CDA prior to the execution 

SAM.gov changes effective 4/4/22. 

http://www.dnb.com/duns-number.html


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 7 of 11 

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

 
2. The Contractor must register the 

DUNS number and maintain an 
“Active” status within the federal 
System for Award Management 
available online at 
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1 

 
3. If CDA cannot access or verify “Active” 

status the Contractor’s DUNS 
information, which is related to this 
federal subaward on the Federal 
Funding Accountability and 
Transparency Act Subaward Reporting 
System (SAM.gov) due to errors in the 
Contractor’s data entry for its DUNS 
number, the Contractor must 
immediately update the information as 
required. 

of this Agreement. Business entities 
may register for a UEI number at 
https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei. 
 

2. The Contractor must register the UEI 
number and maintain an “Active” status 
within the federal System for Award 
Management available online at 
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1 

 

3. If CDA cannot access or verify “Active” 
status the Contractor’s UEI information, 
which is related to this federal 
subaward on the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act 
Subaward Reporting System 
(SAM.gov) due to errors in the 
Contractor’s data entry for its UEI 
number, the Contractor must 
immediately update the information as 
required. 

Exhibit D, 
Article V, L 

L. The Contractor shall refer to 2 CFR 
200.330, Subpart D – Subrecipient and 
Contractor Determinations and 45 CFR 
75.351, Subpart D – Subrecipient and 
Contractor Determinations in making a 
determination if a subcontractor 
relationship exists. If such a relationship 
exists, then the Contractor shall follow 
the procurement requirements in the 
applicable OMB Circular. 

L. The Contractor shall refer to 2 CFR 
200.331, Subpart D – Subrecipient and 
Contractor Determinations and 45 CFR 
75.351, Subpart D – Subrecipient and 
Contractor Determinations in making a 
determination if a subcontractor 
relationship exists. If such a relationship 
exists, then the Contractor shall follow 
the procurement requirements in the 
applicable OMB Circular. 

Updated reference 

https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1
https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 8 of 11 

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

Exhibit D, 
Article VI, B 

B. All such records, including confidential 
records, must be maintained and made 
available by the Contractor: (1) until an 
audit has occurred and an audit 
resolution has been issued or unless 
otherwise authorized in writing by CDA’s 
Audit Branch, (2) for such longer period, 
if any, as is required by applicable 
statute, by any other clause of this 
Agreement, or by Sections A and C of 
this Article, and (3) for such longer period 
as CDA deems necessary.  

B. All such records, including confidential 
records, must be maintained and made 
available by the Contractor: (1) until an 
audit of the July 1, 2023 through June 
30, 2024 period of expenditures has 
occurred and an audit resolution has 
been issued or unless otherwise 
authorized in writing by CDA’s Audit and 
Risk Management Branch, (2) for such 
longer period, if any, as is required by 
applicable statute, by any other clause of 
this Agreement, or by Sections A and C 
of this Article, and (3) for such longer 
period as CDA deems necessary. 

CDA audits are conducted every 
other year. This is to clarify that 
records need to be maintained until 
CDA Audit and Risk Management 
Branch has audited this specific 
time period. 

Exhibit D, 
Article VI, E 

E. Adequate source documentation of each 
transaction shall be maintained relative 
to the allowability of expenditures 
reimbursed by the State under this 
Agreement.  If the allowability of 
expenditures cannot be determined 
because records or documentation of the 
Contractor are nonexistent or inadequate 
according to guidelines set forth in 2 
CFR 200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302, the 
expenditures will be questioned in the 
audit and may be disallowed by CDA 
during the audit resolution process. 

E. Adequate source documentation of each 
transaction shall be maintained relative 
to the allowability of expenditures 
reimbursed by the State under this 
Agreement. Source documentation 
includes, but is not limited to: vendor 
invoices, bank statements, cancelled 
checks, bank/credit card statements, 
contracts and agreements, employee 
time sheets, purchase orders, indirect 
cost allocation plans. 

To clarify the types of source 
documentation needed. 
 
  

Exhibit D, 
Article VII.E.3 

3. CDA tag number 3. CDA-issued tag number.  Clarification that the State CDA-
issued property tag number must 
be listed. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 9 of 11 

 

  

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

Exhibit D, 
Article VII, F,1 

1. Prior to disposal of any property 
purchased by the Contractor or the 
Subcontractor with funds from this 
Agreement or any predecessor 
Agreement, the Contractor must obtain 
approval from CDA for all reportable 
property as defined in Section B of this 
Article. Disposition, which includes sale, 
trade-in, discarding, or transfer to another 
agency may not occur until approval is 
received from CDA.  The Contractor shall 
submit to CDA a Request to Dispose of 
Property (CDA 248). CDA will then 
instruct the AAA on disposition of the 
property.  Once approval for disposal has 
been received from CDA and the AAA 
has reported to CDA the Property Survey 
Report’s (STD 152) Certification of 
Disposition, the item(s) shall be removed 
from the Contractor’s inventory report.   

2. Prior to disposal of any property 
purchased by the Contractor or the 
Subcontractor with funds from this 
Agreement or any predecessor 
Agreement, the Contractor must obtain 
approval from CDA for all reportable 
property as defined in Section B of this 
Article. Disposition, which includes sale, 
trade-in, discarding, or transfer to another 
agency may not occur until approval is 
received from CDA.  The Contractor shall 
submit to CDA a Request to Dispose of 
Property (CDA 248) to 
property@aging.ca.gov.  CDA will then 
instruct the AAA on disposition of the 
property.  Once approval for disposal has 
been received from CDA and the AAA 
has reported to CDA the Property Survey 
Report’s (STD 152) Certification of 
Disposition, the item(s) shall be removed 
from the Contractor’s inventory report.  
Property is not to be disposed of until both 
the CDA 248 and STD 152 have been 
approved by CDA.  Contractor will be 
liable for repayment of purchase price of 
equipment if Contractor disposes of 
equipment without prior approval from 
CDA. 

Added email address for submitting 
forms and clarified that prior CDA 
approval before disposing of 
equipment is mandatory.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:property@aging.ca.gov


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 10 of 11 

  

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

Exhibit D, 
Article VII, G 

G. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment 
shall be investigated, fully documented 
and the Contractor shall promptly notify 
CDA. 

G. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment 
shall be investigated and fully 
documented. The Contractor shall 
promptly notify CDA and shall provide 
copies of investigative documentation 
and police reports as requested by CDA.   

Updated to include provision of a 
police report.  
 

Exhibit D, 
Article X, A2 
 

2. Contractor shall make available all 
reasonable information necessary to 
substantiate that expenditures under this 
agreement are allowable and allocable, 
including, but not limited to books, 
documents, papers, and records.   

2. Contractor shall make available all 
reasonable information necessary to 
substantiate that expenditures under this 
Agreement are allowable and allocable, 
including, but not limited to accounting 
records, vendor invoices, bank 
statements, cancelled checks, 
bank/credit card statements, contracts 
and agreements, employee time sheets, 
purchase orders, indirect cost allocation 
plans. 

Clarification of types of documents 
required for a CDA audit.  

Exhibit D, 
Article X, B, 1 
 

1. The CDA Audits Branch shall perform 
fiscal and compliance audits of 
Contractors in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Government Auditing 
Standards (GAGAS) to ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, grants, and contract 
requirements.  

1. The CDA Audits and Risk Management 
Branch shall perform fiscal and 
compliance audits of Contractors in 
accordance with Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards 
(GAGAS) to ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations, grants and 
contract requirements. 

Updated Branch name 

Exhibit D, 
Article X, B,2,a 

a. Financial closeouts (2 CFR 200.16 and 
45 CFR 75.2) 

a. Financial closeouts (2 CFR 200.1 and 45 
CFR 75.2) 

Updated reference 

Exhibit D, 
Article X, B,2,c 

c. Allocation of expenditures (2 CFR 200.4 
and 45 CFR 75.2) 

c.  Allocation of expenditures (2 CFR 200.1 
and 45 CFR 75.2) Updated reference 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program:                Area Plan_________ 
Contract Number: AP-2324__________ 
Contract Term:      7/1/2023 – 6/30/2024 

 

Page 11 of 11 

 

Section Current Language in  
Existing Contract 

New/Amended Language  
in New Contract Reason for Change 

Exhibit D, 
Article X, C,1,a 

California Department of Aging  
Attention: Audits Branch  
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
Sacramento, California 95833 

California Department of Aging 
Attention: Audits and Risk Management 
Branch  
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
Sacramento, California 95833 

Updated Branch name 

Exhibit D, 
Article XI, A, 3 

3.  If applicable, or unless otherwise 
amended by future regulation, the 
Contractor and subcontractors shall 
comply with the Public Utilities 
Commission General Order No. 115-F 
which requires higher levels of 
insurance for charter-party carriers of 
passengers and is based on seating 
capacity as follows: 

3.  If applicable, or unless otherwise 
amended by future regulation, the 
Contractor and subcontractors shall comply 
with the Public Utilities Commission 
General Order No. 115-G which requires 
higher levels of insurance for charter-party 
carriers of passengers and is based on 
seating capacity as follows: 

Supersedes 115-F 

Exhibit E, 
Article I, A, 24 

24. The Contractor shall annually assess 
each Title III C-2 client’s nutrition risk 
using the Determine Your Nutritional 
Risk checklist published by the 
Nutrition Screening Initiative. [OAA § 
339(2)(J); OAA § 207(a)(3)] 

The Contractor shall annually assess each 
Title III C-1 and C-2 client’s nutrition risk 
using the Determine Your Nutritional Risk 
checklist published by the Nutrition 
Screening Initiative. [OAA § 339(2)(J); OAA 
§ 207(a)(3)] 

To clarify that the requirement for 
nutrition risk assessment using the 
Determine checklist is required for 
both C-1 and C-2. Source: PM 13-
08. 



State of California Award #: AP-2324-16
California Department of Aging Date: 7/1/2023

Amendment #: blank
AREA PLAN BUDGET DISPLAY
Exhibit B- BUDGET DISPLAY
Fiscal Year 2023-24 (Federal Fiscal Years 2023 & 2024)
County of Inyo
12 months (July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024)
Page 1 of 1
Program Fund Type Project Number Baseline Adjustments Transfers OTO Updated Total Net Change
Supportive Services Federal Title IIIB 3BSL 89,350 0 0 0 89,350 0
Ombudsman Federal Title IIIB 3BOL 22,851 0 0 0 22,851 0
Ombudsman Federal Title VIIa 7OFL 40,282 0 0 0 40,282 0
Ombudsman General Fund IIIB B1GL 63,776 0 0 0 63,776 0
Ombudsman General Fund IIIB- Augmentation B1GL 45,627 0 0 0 45,627 0

Ombudsman Public Health L & C Program 
Fund LCPF 3,510 0 0 0 3,510 0

Ombudsman State Health Facilities Citation 
Penalties Account SDFL 1,235 0 0 0 1,235 0

Ombudsman General Fund SNFL 16,672 0 0 0 16,672 0
Ombudsman Total Ombudsman blank 193,953 0 0 0 193,953 0
Congregate Nutrition Federal Title IIIC1 3C1L 114,619 0 0 0 114,619 0
Congregate Nutrition General Fund C1 C1GL 118,578 0 0 0 118,578 0
Congregate Nutrition NSIP C1 NC1L 14,905 0 0 0 14,905 0
Congregate Nutrition Total Congregate Nutrition blank 248,102 0 0 0 248,102 0
Home-Delivered Meals Federal Title IIIC2 3C2L 105,750 0 0 0 105,750 0
Home-Delivered Meals General Fund C2 C2GL 707,528 0 0 0 707,528 0
Home-Delivered Meals NSIP C2 NC2L 25,831 0 0 0 25,831 0
Home-Delivered Meals Total Home Delivered Meals blank 839,109 0 0 0 839,109 0
Disease Prevention Federal Title IIID 3DFL 3,117 0 0 0 3,117 0
Family Caregiver Federal Title IIIE 3EFL 20,876 0 0 0 20,876 0
Elder Abuse Prevention Federal Title VII 7EFL 569 0 0 0 569 0
Administration Administration APAD 65,510 0 0 0 65,510 0
Administration- Informational Federal Title IIIB APAD 17,867 0 0 0 17,867 0
Administration- Informational Federal Title IIIC1 APAD 20,547 0 0 0 20,547 0
Administration- Informational Federal Title IIIC2 APAD 18,956 0 0 0 18,956 0
Administration- Informational Federal Title IIIE APAD 8,140 0 0 0 8,140 0

Administration General Fund Baseline 
Administration APGA 100,000 0 0 0 100,000 0

Funding Summary Federal Funds blank 503,660 0 0 0 503,660 0

Funding Summary General Fund blank 1,052,181 0 0 0 1,052,181 0

Funding Summary Public Health L & C Program 
Fund

blank 3,510 0 0 0 3,510 0

Funding Summary State Health Facilities Citation 
Penalties Account

blank 1,235 0 0 0 1,235 0

All Funds Grand Total - All Funds blank 1,560,586 0 0 0 1,560,586 0
Maximum amount available for July-September (Federal Funds Only)

Fund Type Program Administration TOTAL
Title IIIB 22,338 4,467 26,805
Title IIIB Ombudsman 5,713 0 5,713
Title III C1 28,769 5,157 33,926
Title III C2 30,668 5,497 36,165
NSIP C1 3,725 0 3,725
NSIP C2 6,455 0 6,455
Title IIID 779 0 779
Title IIIE 5,219 2,035 7,254
Title VII Ombudsman 10,030 0 10,030
Title VII Elder Abuse Prevention 137 0 137

State General Fund available for transfer between C1 and C2 General Fund
Maximum amount allowed to be transferred from General Fund C1 to General Fund C2 110,570
Maximum amount allowed to be transferred from General Fund C2 to General Fund C1 697,317

The maximum amount allowed to be transferred from Administration to Title IIIE is: 8,140
The maximum amount allowed to be expended for NSIP through April 2024 is: 33,097
The minimum General Fund to be expended for State Match in Title III is: 18,219

CFDA NUMBER Year Award # Award Name
93.041 2023 2301CAOAEA-01 Older American Act Title VII- Elder Abuse Prevention
93.042 2023 2301CAOAOM-01 Older American Act Title VII- Ombudsman
93.043 2023 2301CAOAPH-01 Older American Act Title III- Preventive Health
93.044 2023 2301CAOASS-01 Older American Act Title III- Supportive Services
93.045 2023 2301CAOACM-01 Older American Act Title III- Congregate Meals
93.045 2023 2301CAOAHD-01 Older American Act Title III- Home-Delivered Meals
93.052 2023 2301CAOAFC-01 Older American Act Title III- Family Caregivers
93.053 2023 2301CAOANS-01 Older American Act Nutrition Services Incentive Program

State Funds must be expended by 6/30/24 and final expenditures reported in closeout by 7/31/24.
Federal Funds must be reported in closeout by 7/31/24.  Once closeouts are processed, CDA will determine the amount that can be carried over into next year's contract. 
Transfers based on the original contract are due with the submission of the AP 2324 Original Budget and final transfers are due by 1/15/24.
The minimum General Fund State Match in Cell H61 does not take into account other program income that may increase that amount of minimum match required.



California Department of Aging AP-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A, Attachment 1 – General Information 

 

Page 1 of 1 

EXHIBIT A, Attachment 1 
General Information 

 
 
1. The Contractor agrees to provide to the California Department of Aging (CDA) the services 

described herein Agreement number AP-2324-16. 
 
2. The services shall be performed in Planning and Service Area(s): 16.  
 
3. The services shall be provided as needed. 
 
4. The project representatives during the term of this agreement will be: 

 
State Agency: California Department of Aging Contractor: County of Inyo 
Name: Andrew Sachs,  
     Chief Local Finance Officer 
 Fiscal Management Branch 

Name: Marilyn Mann, Director  

Phone: (916) 931-1936 Phone: (760) 878-0232 
Email: finance@aging.ca.gov Email: mmann@inyocounty.us  

 
Direct only contract inquiries to: 
 

State Agency: California Department of Aging Contractor: County of Inyo 
Section/Unit: Subvention Agreements Section/Unit:  
Attention:   Sheila Gardner, Contract Analyst Attention: Melissa Best-Baker 
Address:    2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, #200 
                  Sacramento, CA 95833 

Address: 1360 North Main Street, Suite 201 
 Bishop, CA, 93514-3013 

Phone:      (916) 898-9383 Phone: (760) 873-3305 
Email:        Sheila.Gardner@aging.ca.gov Email:        mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 

 
The parties may change their representatives upon providing ten days written notice to the other 
party. Said changes do not require an amendment to this agreement. 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT  
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)                                                                       

In compliance with California Government Code Section 11019.9, California Civil 

Code Section 1798 et seq., Department of General Services Management Memo  

06-12, and Statewide Information Management Manual (SIMM) 5300 the California 

Department of Aging (CDA) hereby requires the Contractor/Vendor to: 

ACKNOWLEDGE: 

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, or disclosure of Personal, Confidential or 

Sensitive Information (PSCI) is a crime and is prohibited under state and federal 

laws, including but not limited to California Penal Code Section 502, California 

Government Code Section 15619, California Civil Code Section 1798.53 and 

1798.55, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. 

Acknowledge.  

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, disclosure, or modification of PSCI 

information may result in termination of this Contract/Agreement. 

MEET THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS: 

• PSCI information shall be protected from disclosure in accordance with all 

applicable laws, regulations, and policies.  

• PSCI data be protected by authorized access using the principles of least privilege. 

• Any occurrence that actually or potentially jeopardizes the confidentiality, integrity, 

or availability of an information system or the information the system processes, 

stores, or transmits or that constitutes a violation or imminent threat of violation of 

security policies, security procedures or acceptable use policies will immediately be 

reported to CDA by completing a Security Incident Report CDA (1025A and 1025B). 

• All access codes which allow access to confidential information will be properly 

safeguarded. 

• Obligations to protect PSCI information obtained under this Contract/Agreement will 

continue after termination of the Contract/Agreement with CDA.  

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor will complete the required 

Security Awareness Training module located at 

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/ within 30 days of the start date of the 

Contract/Agreement or within 30 days of the start date of any new employee or 

subcontractor.   This training must be completed annually. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor must comply with CDA’s 

confidentiality and data security requirements as outlined in the 

Contract/Agreement. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contract/Vendor must comply with the 

Appendix D, section XVIII encryption and self-certification requirements as outlined 

in the contract.  

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/


Page 2 of 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT 
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)         

CERTIFY: 

To protect PSCI information by: 

• Accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing or modifying PSCI information only for the 
purpose of performing official duties.

• Never accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing, or modifying PSCI information for 
curiosity, personal gain, or any non-business-related reason.

• Securing PSCI information in approved locations.
• Never removing PSCI information from the work site without authorization. 

Meets the encryption requirements in Exhibit D Article 18: 

Is in full compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements.

Is not in compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements and will achieve 

compliance by ___________. 

I hereby certify that I have reviewed this Confidentiality Statement and will comply 

with the above statements.  

Contractor/Vendor Printed Name and Title 

Contractor/Vendor Signature Date 

CDA Program/Project Contract Number 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS CERTIFICATION 
CDA 9026 (NEW 04/2018)                                                     

 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, a person that submits a bid or 

proposal to, or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state 

agency with respect to any contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, 

under penalty of perjury, at the time the bid or proposal is submitted or the contract is 

renewed, all of the following: 

 
1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts executed or renewed after 

January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act 

(Section 51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 

12960 of the Government Code); and 

 

2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts executed or renewed 

after January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign 

nation or peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor 

certifies that such policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act 

(Section 51 of the Civil Code) or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 

12960 of the Government Code). 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State 
of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Contractor Name (Printed): Federal ID Number: 

By (Authorized Signature): 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 

Date Executed: Executed in the County and State of: 

Indicate all California Department of Aging contracts your organization participates in: 

 Area Plan (AP)  Financial Alignment (FA) 

 HICAP (HI)  MIPPA (MI) 

 MSSP (MS)  SNAP-Ed (SP) 

 Title V (TV)   

 



Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

Contractor Certification Clauses 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the
nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,



2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment 
on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies that 
no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period 
because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders 
Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract 
Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 
2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of 
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the 
State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, 
other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of 
perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or 
supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced 
in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, 
or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  
The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website 
located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial 
Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts of $100,000 or more,  Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 



Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant 
to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within 
the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State 
with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which 
by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement. 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor shall 
not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the 
State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and 
desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for 
violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally 
determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3864  

 

Modernizing Older Californians Act Nutrition Services 
Health & Human Services - ESAAA 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Marilyn Mann, HHS Director Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the standard agreement with the California Department of Aging in the amount of $572,754 for 
the period beginning July 1, 2023 through March 31, 2029 and authorize the HHS Director to sign the 
standard agreement, the Information Integrity and Security Statement, the Civil Rights Certification, and 
the Contract Certification form.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Older Americans Act (OAA) of 1965 was designed to alleviate poverty and to help millions of aging 
Americans meet the goal of aging in place.  This act established the foundation of senior services for 
Americans nationwide.  The Older Californians Act (OCA) of 1980, established the California Department 
of Aging (CDA) as the single agency responsible for administering the OAA within California and defined 
the duties and functions of the CDA as well as the California's 33 Area Agencies on Aging (AAA). The 
legislature amended the OCA in 1996 by establishing new programs and making structural changes to 
service delivery, including establishing state-funded programs and services; defining roles of AAA's, 
Commission on Aging, Senior Legislature, and Advisory Councils; established specific targeting and 
formulas for allocations of base administrative funding of AAA's; transferred contractual and 
administrative responsibilities of the Long Term Care (LTC) Ombudsman and Health Insurance 
Counseling and Advocacy Program from CDA to the AAA's; and established the following OAA 
programs: Access, Nutrition, Supportive Services, Legal Services, Health Promotion/Disease Prevention, 
Careigiver Support Services, LTC Ombudsman, and Senior Community Employment Program.  The 
legislation also established additional community-based services that were not included in the OAA 
funding but, instead, were funded through State General Fund and/or Medi-Cal.  These programs 
include: 

• Alzheimer's Day Care Resource Center 
• Brown Bag program 
• Foster Grandparent Program 
• Linkages 
• Respite 
• Senior Companion 
• Multi-purpose Senior Services Program 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
Locally, Planning Service Area (PSA) 16, currently known as the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging, 
provided some of these additional community-based services including Alzheimer's Day Care Resource 
and Linkages when PSA 16 was known as the Inyo Mono Area Agency on Aging.  Funding for these 
services began to be reduced in the early part of the 2000's and in approximately 2009, funding for PSA 
16's Linkages and Alzheimer's Day Care program was eliminated, resulting in a loss of these services in 
Inyo and Mono counties.   
 
The Governor's Master Plan on Aging was released in January 2021 and identified 5 goals and 23 
strategies in recognition of California's changing demographics and increasing numbers of persons aged 
65 and older who are expected to outnumber children under the age of 18 for the first time in history by 
2030.  The Plan recognizes the need for easy access to a strong network of aging and disability services 
to support growing older at home and in communities.  One initiative is Modernizing the Older California 
Act by renewing the state's investment in critical nutrition and support services for our aging population.   
 
The Modernizing OCA nutrition services funding, which our PSA is eligible to receive through March 
2029, provides ESAAA funding that can be used for infrastructure, Brown Bag programming, groceries, 
intergenerational activities, and/or additional investment in congregate or home-delivered meals.  HHS 
met with the ESAAA Advisory Council on June 14, 2023 to receive input and interest was expressed in 
both groceries and intergenerational activities.  Given that the amount available is less than $100,000 
per year to serve 2 counties, identifying a strategy that maximizes the impact will be critical.  The 
Department is working with our Mono County Contractor to identify the best strategy for using this 
funding and it is likely that groceries, which will help support food security issues for our seniors, will be a 
primary focus.  The Council has recommended that your Board approve this agreement and has 
instructed the two counties to identify the funding focus that will best serve the needs of seniors across 
the AAA.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded (California Department of Aging) Budget Unit 683000 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4452 
Recurrence Multi-year grant  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to accept these funds and Inyo and Mono counties would not be able to 
implement the identified nutrition services.   
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Standard Agreement NM-2324-16 
2. Scope of Work, etc. 
3. Budget Displays 
4. Information Integrity and Security Statement 
5. General Information 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

6. CA Civil Rights Laws Certification 
7. Contractor Certification Clauses 
  
APPROVALS: 
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 6/15/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/15/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/15/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/15/2023 
Noam Shendar Approved - 6/20/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/20/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/20/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/21/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA – DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES SCO ID: 4170-NM232416 
STANDARD AGREEMENT 
STD 213 (Rev. 04/2020) 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 
NM-2324-16 

PURCHASING AUTHORITY NUMBER (If Applicable) 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the Contracting Agency and the Contractor named below: 
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 
California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTOR NAME  
County of Inyo 
2. The term of this Agreement is: 
START DATE 
7/1/2023 
THROUGH END DATE 
3/31/2029 
3. The maximum amount of this Agreement is: 
   $ 572,754  Five hundred seventy-two thousand, seven hundred fifty-four and 00/100 dollars 
4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits, which are by this reference made a part of the Agreement.  

Exhibits Title Pages 
 Exhibit A Scope of Work 14 pages 
 Exhibit A, 

Attachment 1 General Information 1 page 

 Exhibit B Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 7 pages 
 Exhibit B, 

Attachment 1 Budget Display 1 page 

 Exhibit C General Terms and Conditions – GTC-4/2017* 0 pages 
 Exhibit D Special Terms and Conditions 32 pages 

Items shown with an asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO.    

CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACTOR NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 
County of Inyo 
CONTRACTOR BUSINESS ADDRESS 
1360 North Main Street, Suite 201 

CITY 
Bishop 

STATE 
CA 

ZIP 
93514-
3013 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 
 

TITLE 
 

CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 
California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTING AGENCY ADDRESS 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 

CITY 
Sacramento 

STATE 
CA 

ZIP 
95833 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 
Nate Gillen 

TITLE 
Chief, Business Management Bureau 

CONTRACTING AGENCY AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES APPROVAL EXEMPTION (If Applicable) 
 
AG OP 80-111 
 
 

 
Page 1 of 1

Marilyn Mann HHS Director

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources


California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 1 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS 
 
A. Definitions Specific to Brown Bag 

 
1. “Brown Bag” means a program that provides both surplus and donated edible fruits, 

vegetables, and other unsold food products to older individuals with low income. 
 
2. “Eligible Participant” means an older adult 60 years of age and older with income at or 

below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level. 
 
3. “Low Income” means income below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level. 
 

B. Definitions Specific to Groceries 
 

1. “Groceries” means assistance to Older Americans Act (OAA) participants in the form of 
food items. 

 
C. Definitions Specific to Intergenerational Activities 

 
1. “Adult” means an individual between eighteen (18) years and sixty (60) years old. 
 
2. “Child” means an individual under eighteen (18) years old. 
 
3. “Eligible Population” means older individuals sixty (60) years of age or older, with 

emphasis on those in greatest economic and social need with particular attention to low-
income minority older individuals, older individuals with Limited English Proficiency 
(LEP), and older individuals residing in rural areas. [Older Americans Act (OAA) § 305 
(a)(2)(E); 22 California Code of Regulations (CCR) 7125, 7127, 7130, 7135] 

 
a. Individuals eligible to receive a meal at a congregate nutrition site shall include 

the following:  
 

i. Any older individual. 
ii. The spouse of any older individual 
iii. A person with a disability, under age sixty (60) who resides in housing 

facilities occupied primarily by older individuals at which congregate 
nutrition services are provided.  

iv. A disabled individual who resides at home with and accompanies an older 
individual who participates in the program.  

v. A volunteer under age sixty (60), if doing so will not deprive an older 
individual sixty (60) or older of a meal. [CCR 7636.9(b)(3); CCR 7638.7(b); 
and OAA 339(H)]  

 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 2 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 
 

b. Individuals eligible to receive a home-delivered meal are individuals who are:  
 

i. Frail as defined by 22 CCR 7119, homebound by reason of illness or 
disability, or otherwise isolated. (These individuals shall be given priority in 
the delivery of services.) [45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 
1321.69(a)].  
 

ii. A spouse of a person defined in 22 CCR 7638.7(c)(2), regardless of age or 
condition, if an assessment concludes that is in the best interest of the 
homebound older individual. 
 

iii. An individual with a disability who resides at home with older individuals, if 
an assessment concludes that it is in the best interest of the homebound 
older individual who participates in the program. 

 
4. “Intergenerational Activities” means efforts related to the planning, development, and 

implementation of activities and programs that bring participants of the Older 
Californians Nutrition Program (OCNP) together with children or adults. Mutually 
beneficial intergenerational activities promote greater understanding and respect 
between generations and also strengthen older adults’ recovery and resilience from the 
isolation and health impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
5. “Older Californians Nutrition Program” means the Title III C-1 Congregate Nutrition 

Services and Title III C-2 Home-Delivered Nutrition Services. 
 
6. “Title III C-1 (Congregate Nutrition Services)” means nutrition services for older 

individuals in a congregate setting. Services include meals, nutrition education, nutrition 
risk screening, and opportunities for socialization. Each meal shall provide one-third 
(1/3) of the Dietary Reference Intakes (DRI) and comply with the most current Dietary 
Guidelines for Americans (DGA). To be an eligible Title III C-1 congregate nutrition site, 
the site must meet all of the following criteria:  
[22 CCR 7638.7(a)]  

 
a. Be open to the public. [45 CFR 1321.53(b)(3)]  
b. Not means test. [OAA § 315(b)(3)]  
c. Provide participants the opportunity to make voluntary contributions and not deny 

service for not contributing to the cost of the service. [OAA § 315(b)(4); 22 CCR 
7638.9] 

d. Not receive funds from another source for the cost of the same meal, equipment, 
or services. [2 CFR 200.403(f); 45 CFR 75.403(f)] 
 

7. “Title III C-2 (Home-Delivered Nutrition Services)” means nutrition services provided to 
frail, homebound, or isolated older individuals including meals, nutrition education, and 
nutrition risk screening. Each meal shall provide one-third (1/3) of the DRI and comply 
with the most current DGA. [22 CCR 7135, 22 CCR 7638.7(c)] 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 3 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 
 
D. Definitions Specific to Nutrition Infrastructure 
 

1. “Nutrition Infrastructure” means the capacity and infrastructure improvements for the 
OCNP including purchasing, upgrading, or refurbishing infrastructure for the production 
and distribution of OCNP meals. 

 
2. “Older Californians Nutrition Program” means the Title III C-1 Congregate Nutrition 

Services and Title III C-2 Home-Delivered Nutrition Services 
 
E. Definitions Specific to Title III C-1 and C-2 Meals (includes To-Go and Restaurant Option 

Meals) 
 

1. “Eligible Population” means older individuals sixty (60) years of age or older, with 
emphasis on those in greatest economic and social need with particular attention to low-
income minority older individuals, older individuals with Limited English Proficiency 
(LEP), and older individuals residing in rural areas. [Older Americans Act (OAA) § 305 
(a)(2)(E); 22 CCR 7125, 7127, 7130, 7135] 

 
a. Individuals eligible to receive a meal at a congregate nutrition site shall include 

the following:  
 

i. Any older individual. 
ii. The spouse of any older individual 
iii. A person with a disability, under age sixty (60) who resides in housing 

facilities occupied primarily by older individuals at which congregate 
nutrition services are provided.  

iv. A disabled individual who resides at home with and accompanies an older 
individual who participates in the program.  

v. A volunteer under age sixty (60), if doing so will not deprive an older 
individual sixty (60) or older of a meal. [CCR 7636.9(b)(3); CCR 7638.7(b); 
and OAA 339(H)]  

 
b. Individuals eligible to receive a home-delivered meal are individuals who are:  

 
i. Frail as defined by 22 CCR 7119, homebound by reason of illness or 

disability, or otherwise isolated. (These individuals shall be given priority in 
the delivery of services.) [45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 
1321.69(a)].  

 
ii. A spouse of a person defined in 22 CCR 7638.7(c)(2), regardless of age or 

condition, if an assessment concludes that is in the best interest of the 
homebound older individual. 
 

iii. An individual with a disability who resides at home with older individuals, if 
an assessment concludes that it is in the best interest of the homebound 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 4 of 14 

 
ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued)  
  

older individual who participates in the program. 
 

2. “Older Californians Nutrition Programs” means the Title III C-1 Congregate Nutrition 
Services and Title III C-2 Home-Delivered Nutrition Services. 

 
3. “Restaurant Option (RO)” means an Older Californians Nutrition Program meal option 

providing older adults with vouchers for meals at licensed foodservice establishments 
such as restaurants, cafes, food trucks, and grocery stores with hot and/or cold meals. 
AAAs and/or nutrition providers contract with foodservice establishments to provide 
meals. 

 
4. “Restaurant Voucher” means paper or electronic system that Title III C-1 participants 

exchange for meals at designated restaurants. 
 
5. “Title III C-1 (Congregate Nutrition Services)” means nutrition services for older 

individuals in a congregate setting. Services include meals, nutrition education, nutrition 
risk screening, and opportunities for socialization. Each meal shall provide one-third 
(1/3) of the Dietary Reference Intakes (DRI) and comply with the most current Dietary 
Guidelines for Americans (DGA). To be an eligible Title III C-1 congregate nutrition site, 
the site must meet all of the following criteria: [22 CCR 7638.7(a)]  

 
a. Be open to the public. [45 CFR 1321.53(b)(3)]  
b. Not means test. [OAA § 315(b)(3)]  
c. Provide participants the opportunity to make voluntary contributions and not deny 

service for not contributing to the cost of the service. [OAA § 315(b)(4); 22 CCR 
7638.9] 

d. Not receive funds from another source for the cost of the same meal, equipment, 
or services. [2 CFR 200.403(f); 45 CFR 75.403(f)] 

 
6. “Title III C-2 (Home-Delivered Nutrition Services)” means nutrition services provided to 

frail, homebound, or isolated older individuals including meals, nutrition education, and 
nutrition risk screening. Each meal shall provide one-third (1/3) of the DRI and comply 
with the most current DGA. [22 CCR 7135, 22 CCR 7638.7(c)]. 
 

7. “To-Go Meals” means meals that are picked up by clients (or client's agent) or delivered 
to clients who are not comfortable dining in a congregate meal setting.  

 
a. C-1: To-Go meals are categorized as C-1 meals if they are consumed onsite and 

include in-person interaction (e.g., dining at congregate site such as restaurant, 
food truck, etc. or one-on-one with program volunteer) or consumed offsite and 
include virtual interaction (e.g., group interaction via Zoom, FaceTime, etc. or 
one-on-one with program volunteer via telephone) during the meal. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 5 of 14 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 
 

b. C-2: To-Go meals are categorized as C-2 meals if they are consumed offsite 
without in-person or virtual interaction. 

 
ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK  
 
A. Specific to Brown Bag 

 
1. The Contractor shall:   

 
a. Use funds to provide both surplus and donated edible fruits, vegetables, and other 

unsold food products to low-income older adults on a regular basis. 
b. Comply with the California Retail Food Code (CRFC). 
c. Obtain surplus food products for distribution in two ways:  

i. Food gleaned by volunteers and/or 
ii. Food donated by farmers, growers, food manufacturers, retail food stores, 

etc. 
d. Utilize volunteers and/or staff to glean, collect, sort, transport, and deliver food. 
e. Operate at least one Brown Bag food distribution site and establish a schedule to 

maintain distribution of food on a regular basis. 
f. Utilize an enrollment application to enroll new Brown Bag program participants. 
g. Have procedures to protect the confidentiality and privacy of client information. 
h. Surplus produce may be bruised, too ripe, etc. and is not considered of resale 

quality, yet is still safe for consumption. Surplus processed foods may result from 
manufacturer over runs, excess inventories, or items close to “best by” date or 
expiration date. 

i. Provide a variety of produce and other food products with nutritional value to 
supplement the diets of older individuals. Such foods include:   

i. Fresh or frozen fruits and vegetables  
ii. Breads, cereals, rice, beans, and pasta products  
iii. Processed foods such as frozen entrees, and canned mixed dishes 

j. The frequent distribution of dessert type items such as pastries, cookies, and 
cakes should be avoided. 

 
2. The Contractor shall not: 

 
a. Solicit voluntary contributions because services are provided to individuals at or 

below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level. 
 

b. Charge fees are for the distribution or receipt of the food, regardless of delivery 
method. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 6 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 
 
B. Specific to Groceries 

 
1. The Contractor shall: 

 
a. Use funds to provide groceries to OAA participants. Potential scenarios include: 

 
i. Clients living in rural areas with limited access to grocery stores.  
ii. During emergencies when meals may not be available or clients unable to 

obtain other food. 
iii. Clients with dietary restrictions that prevent them from consuming majority 

of OCNP meals. 
iv. Provide liquid nutrition supplements (e.g., Ensure, Boost, etc.) to clients at 

high risk for malnutrition as determined by physician or Registered 
Dietitian.  

 
b. Provide groceries that may be delivered to participants or picked up by 

participants at a designated site, such as a congregate meal site. 
 

c. Evaluate the availability of similar services in the community to avoid duplication 
of services. Similar services include but are not limited to food bank services, 
Brown Bag program, and Commodity Supplemental Food Program. 
 

d. Evaluate clients prior to grocery services for: 
 

i. ability to store and prepare meals from groceries provided. 
ii. use of other federal food assistance programs to ensure there is not 

duplication of services. 
 

e. Provide groceries consisting of food items only. There are no requirements for 
the amount or types of food offered as groceries. Groceries should be 
appropriate for the older adult population, such as produce, whole grains 
products, low fat dairy products, lean proteins, and lower sodium products.  
 

f. Gift cards for groceries are not allowable and may not be used.  
 

C. Specific to Intergenerational Activities 
 

1. The Contractor shall: 
 

a. Provide meals in accordance with the OAA and California Code of Regulations 
(CCR). 
 

b. Promote and maintain high standards of food safety and sanitation as required 
by the California Retail Food Code. 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 7 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 
 

c. Conduct services and activities that support the goal to provide more meals to 
more older adults and/or the goal to pursue and conduct intergenerational 
activities for the purpose of connecting older adults with children/adults in 
conjunction with the OCNP. Examples of intergenerational activities include, but 
are not limited, the following: 

 
i. Development or maintenance of partnerships and collaborative efforts with 

programs serving children to foster intergenerational connections between 
older adults and children. 

ii. Planning, development, or implementation of shared sites with programs 
serving meals to children to promote intergenerational meal programs. 

iii. Planning, development, or implementation of intergenerational cooking 
demonstrations or classes. 

iv. Planning, development, or implementation of shared garden site and 
intergenerational gardening activities. 

 
v. Virtual or in-person intergenerational social activities related to the C-1 or 

C-2 program. 
vi. Virtual or in-person adult lunch companion for C-2 participants. 

 
d. Use funding to provide meals for participants and activities that support 

intergenerational connections, however, funding may not supplant funds that 
would otherwise be available for other nutrition programs. 

 
D. Specific to Nutrition Infrastructure 

 
1. The Contractor shall: 

 
a. Use funds for nutrition infrastructure only in FY 23/24 (term to spend funds: 

7/1/23 – 3/31/26).  
 

b. Use funds for nutrition infrastructure only for OCNP service providers. 
 

c. Use funds for capacity and infrastructure improvements for the OCNP including 
purchasing, upgrading, or refurbishing infrastructure for the production and 
distribution of OCNP congregate or home-delivered meals, including but not 
limited to: 

 
i. Production-scale commercial kitchens. Examples include commercial 

grade equipment such as ovens, stoves, steamers, and mixers. 
ii. Warming, refrigeration, or freezer capacity and equipment. Examples 

include refrigerators and freezers, hot holding equipment, insulated food 
delivery bags, and steam tables. 

iii. Food delivery vehicles. Examples include cars/trucks/vans, and 
temperature-controlled vehicles. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 8 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 
 

iv. Improvements and equipment to expand capacity for providers of meals. 
Examples include: 

 
a) Food/meal packing equipment, dishwashers, 3-compartment sinks, 

prep tables, steam tables, and salad bars. 
 

b) Refurbishments including repair or replacement of damaged and/or 
deteriorated flooring and/or repair of damaged wall surfaces in 
areas where food is prepared, packaged, stored, served, or areas 
where kitchenware are washed and stored. Examples include 
installing new floor coverings or painting kitchen walls. Note: AAAs 
must verify flooring or painting is not covered under a building lease 
prior to requesting use of infrastructure funding for this purpose and 
the AAA must maintain documentation in case of monitoring or 
audit. 

 
c) Energy efficient light fixtures in kitchen or congregate meal service 

areas. 
 

d) Installation costs (labor/materials) for allowable improvements and 
equipment. 

 
e) Furniture, including table and chairs, for congregate meal service 

areas. 
 

v. Technological infrastructure to support the OCNP. Examples include: 
 

a) Software. Examples include software for menu planning, meal 
tracking, surveying clients, C-2 initial/annual assessments and 
quarterly eligibility reassessments, and monitoring client health 
outcomes. 

 
b) Hardware. Examples include tablets to support C-2 staff for home 

assessments or to support C-1 staff for the virtual group interaction 
component for C-1 To-Go meals; mobile phones to support C-2 
drivers for meal delivery. Other examples include computing 
devices, workstations, servers, laptops, and notebook computers. 

 
2. The Contractor shall not: 

 
a. Use funding to make additions, improvements, modifications, replacements, 

rearrangements, reinstallations, renovations, or alterations to capital assets that 
materially increase their value or useful life. This includes any equipment that is 
permanently affixed to a building such as non-portable generators, walk-in 
refrigerators, and walk-in freezers. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 9 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 
 

3. The Contractor shall submit the following information to CDA prior to purchasing: 
 

a. A list of all planned equipment expenditures, including the item, cost, and the 
entity and the site receiving funding. 
 

b. Completion of Equipment Request form for all planned capital expenditures that 
are not included on the Title IIIC Capital Expenditure Approved List, including all 
vehicles and technological or data system infrastructure expenses. 
 

c. For all planned repairs or replacement of damaged and/or deteriorated flooring 
and/or repair of damaged wall surfaces, include a description of the project, the 
entity and site, estimated costs, and verification that flooring and/or painting is 
not covered under a building lease. 
 

4. The Contractor shall track equipment purchased by the AAAs and their subcontractors 
on the CDA 9024 form. 

 
E. Specific to Title III C-1 and C-2 Meals (includes To-Go and Restaurant Option Meals) 

 
1. General requirements for Title III C-1 and C-2 meals: 

 
a. The Contractor shall: 

 
i. Provide meals in accordance with the OAA and California Code of 

Regulations (CCR). 
ii. Provide meals that follow the current Dietary Guidelines for Americans 

(DGA) and provide one-third of the Dietary Reference Intakes (DRI) in 
each meal as documented in Older Californians Nutrition Program. 

iii. Meet food safety and sanitation standards as required by the California 
Retail Food Code. 
 

iv. Quarterly monitor food facilities for safe food handling and sanitation 
practices. 

 
2. Requirements for Title III C-1 To-Go Meals: 

 
a. The Contractor shall meet the following criteria for Title III C-1 To-Go Meals: 

 
i. For C-1 To-Go meals that are consumed onsite:  

 
a) At least a portion of the meal is consumed in a congregate setting. 

Congregate settings include indoors (restaurants, grocery stores, 
etc.) or outdoors (parks, picnics, food trucks, festivals, events, 
tailgate parties, etc.). 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 10 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 
 

ii. For C-1 To-Go meals that are consumed offsite: 
 

a) Meal is picked up by the client (or representative) or delivered to 
the client. 
 

b) In-person or virtual interaction is included with the meal. Examples 
include:  

 
1) In-person group dining at a congregate site such as a 

restaurant, park, food truck, etc.) 
 
2) In-person, one-on-one interaction during the meal with 

program volunteer. 
 

3) Virtual group interaction scheduled by the nutrition provider 
such as nutrition education, virtual museum or travel tours, 
or group chat on virtual platforms such as GoogleMeet, 
Zoom, FaceTime, or similar applications that offer live 
interaction with participants. 

 
4) Virtual one-on-one interaction during the meal arranged by 

the nutrition provider via telephone or virtual platform (Zoom, 
FaceTime, etc.). 

 
c) The sign-in procedure includes confirmation that the client intends 

to participate in the virtual group interaction. The meal is 
considered a C-1 meal if the client confirms their intent to join the 
virtual activity. The meal is considered a  
C-2 meal if the client does not confirm their intent to join the virtual 
activity. 
 

d) The service provider is responsible for tracking confirmation of 
planned attendance; however, the provider is not responsible for 
verifying the client attends the virtual activity. 

 
3. Requirements for Title III C-2 To-Go Meals: 

 
a. The Contractor shall:  

 
i. Meet the following criteria for Title III C-2 To-Go Meals: 

 
a) Meal is picked up by client (or client’s agent) or delivered by the 

provider to the client. 
b) Meal is consumed off-site (i.e., not in a congregate setting). 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 11 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 
 

c) Participation in in-person or virtual interaction with the meal is 
declined or is not available. 

 
ii. Complete initial assessments for all new C-2 clients within 2 weeks of the 

start of service. 
 

a) The CCR 7638.3(a)(2) requirement for initial assessments to be 
conducted “in the home” does not apply if meals are picked up 
rather than home-delivered; assessments may be completed in-
person at time of meal pick-up or via telephone. If meals are 
home-delivered by the provider, the initial assessment must be 
conducted in the home. 

 
iii. Complete quarterly eligibility reassessments for all C-2 clients. 

 
a) The CCR 7638.3(a)(4) requirement for quarterly eligibility 

reassessments to be conducted “in the home” every other quarter 
does not apply if meals are picked up rather than home-delivered 
by the provider and may be done in-person at the time of meal pick 
up or by phone. If meals are home-delivered, the quarterly 
eligibility reassessments must be conducted in the home every 
other quarter. 

 
iv. Establish a wait list and a prioritization policy as per CCR 7638.3(c) if 

unable to serve all eligible individuals.  
 

4. Requirements for Restaurant Option Meals: 
 

a. The Contractor shall: 
 

i. Provide meal services through either model: 
 
a) Designated mealtime; program staff or volunteer present. 
b) Unrestricted mealtime; program staff/volunteer not present. 

 
ii. Provide eligible clients with vouchers (paper or electronic) to be 

exchanged for meals at designated restaurants. 
 

iii. Provide clients with the opportunity to voluntarily contribute toward the 
cost of the service either on-site if program staff/volunteer is present or by 
mailing a monthly/quarterly voluntary contribution letter to clients if 
program staff/volunteer is not present during mealtime. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 12 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 
 

b. Procurement: 
 

i. Small contracts (under $100,000 in the aggregate) do not require a 
competitive process as per CCR 7352(g): In the case of small contracts, 
not over $100,000 in the aggregate, an AAA need only obtain price or rate 
quotations from a number of qualified sources and informally select the 
source with which to contract or obtain the purchase. 
 

ii. Contracts over $100,000 in the aggregate for any RO entity must follow a 
competitive process as outlined in CCR 7352. 

 
c. Pre-Award Review:  

 
i. For AAA small contracts (under $100,000 in the aggregate) to a for-profit 

RO entity: 
 

a) The AAA submits the following to 
CDANutritionandHealthPromotion@aging.ca.gov for review and 
approval:   

 
1) Documentation that the aggregate value of the contract with 

any given RO entity is less than $100,000.  
2) Completed CDA 2000 Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form 

that discloses whether a potential or actual conflict of interest 
exists. 

3) Copies of the price or rate quotations received from qualified 
sources.  

 
b) CDA will provide a determination letter within 15 days of receipt of 

all required documentation confirming that the AAA has satisfied 
the requirements of a noncompetitive award to a for-profit RO entity 
or will provide detail as to the requirement(s) that have not been 
met.   
 

c) The AAA must maintain all documentation on file that supports a 
noncompetitive award to a for-profit RO entity, as well as CDA’s 
determination letter. 

 
ii. For AAA contracts over $100,000 in the aggregate for any RO entity: 

 
a) Follow requirements in CCR 7362 Pre-Award Review. 

mailto:CDANutritionandHealthPromotion@aging.ca.gov
https://mycda.aging.ca.gov/api/DocLib/Download?documentId=7689


California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 13 of 14 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 
 

iii. For service provider contracts to a for-profit RO entity: 
 

a) Contracts under $100,000: 
 

• The AAA would follow their internal process to make the 
determination for approval or denial of the award. 

 
b) Contracts over $100,000:  

 
• The AAA would evaluate that the requirements for an open 

and competitive process (CCR 7352) were followed.  
 

• The AAA would then follow their internal process to make 
the determination for approval or denial of the service 
provider’s award to a for-profit RO entity. 

 
III. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS/DELIVERABLES 

 
A. Specific to Brown Bag 

 
1. The Contractor shall report the following information quarterly as “Brown Bag” in CDA’s 

Online Data Reporting Tool (ODRT): 
 

a. Service units (one service unit is one bag of groceries provided to eligible 
individual). 

b. Unduplicated client count. 
 
B. Specific to Groceries 
 

1. The Contractor shall report the following information quarterly as “Material Aid - 
Groceries” in CDA’s Online Data Reporting Tool (ODRT). 

 
a. Service units (one service unit is one grocery delivery, regardless of number of 

bags provided). 
b. Estimated unduplicated client count. 

 
2. Groceries and liquid nutrition supplements (e.g., Ensure, Boost, etc.) cannot be counted 

toward Title IIIC meal counts or NSIP meal counts. 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 14 of 14 

III.  REPORTING REQUIREMENTS/DELIVERABLES (Continued) 
 
C. Specific to Intergenerational Activities 

 
1. The Contractor shall report the following information quarterly in CDA’s Online Data 

Reporting Tool (ODRT). 
 
a. The service units (meals) and estimated unduplicated client count for OCNP 

clients. 
b. The service units (meals) and estimated participant count for participants under 

age 60. 
c. The service units (intergenerational activities) and estimated unduplicated client 

count for OCNP clients. 
d. The service units (intergenerational activities) and estimated participant count for 

participants under age 60. 
e. A quarterly narrative report describing intergenerational activities, demographics 

of participants of intergenerational activities, and successes and challenges with 
intergenerational activities. 

 
D. Specific to Nutrition Infrastructure 

 
1. The Contractor shall track equipment purchased by the AAAs and their subcontractors 

on the CDA 9024 form. 
 

E. Specific to Title III C-1 and C-2 Meals (includes To-Go and Restaurant Option Meals) 
 

1. The Contractor shall report the following information quarterly in CDA’s Online Data 
Reporting Tool (ODRT): 

 
a. Title III C-1: To-Go meals that include in-person or virtual interaction with the 

meal: 
 

1) Report as C-1 meals and unduplicated C-1 clients. 
 

b. Title III C-2: To-Go meals that are consumed offsite without in-person or virtual 
interaction during the meal:  

 
1) Report as C-2 meals and unduplicated C-2 clients. 

 



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 1 of 7 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS 
 

A. Expenditure of Funds 
 

1. The Contractor shall expend all funds received hereunder in accordance with this 
Exhibit B. 
 

2. Any reimbursement for authorized travel and per diem shall be at rates not to 
exceed those amounts paid by the State in accordance with the California 
Department of Human Resources’ (CalHR) rules and regulations. 
 
In State: Mileage/Per Diem (meals and incidentals)/Lodging 

http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-
reimbursements.aspx 
 

Out of State:  http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/Home/ManualItem/1/2201 
 
This is not to be construed as limiting the Contractor from paying any differences 
in costs, from funds other than those provided by CDA, between the CalHR rates 
and any rates the Contractor is obligated to pay under other contractual 
agreements.  
 
No travel outside the state of California shall be reimbursed unless prior written 
authorization is obtained from the State. [SCM 3.17.2.A(4)] 
 
The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it enters into 
with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

3. CDA reserves the right to refuse payment to the Contractor or disallow costs for 
any expenditure, as determined by CDA to be: out of compliance with this 
Agreement, unrelated or inappropriate to contract activities, when adequate 
supporting documentation is not presented, or where prior approval was required 
but was either not requested or not granted. 
 

B. Accountability for Funds 
 
1. The Contractor shall maintain accounting records for funds received under the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement. These records shall be separate from 
those for any other funds administered by the Contractor, and shall be 
maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and 
Procedures.  
 

  

http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx
http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx
http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/Home/ManualItem/1/2201


California Department of Aging  Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 2 of 7 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS (Continued) 
 

2. Financial Management Systems: The Contractor shall meet the following 
standards for its financial management systems:  
 
a. Financial Reporting. 
b. Accounting Records. 
c. Complete Disclosure. 
d. Source Documentation. 
e. Internal Control. 
f. Budgetary Control. 
g. Cash Management (written procedures). 
h. Allowable Costs (written procedures). 

 
C. Unexpended Funds 

 
Upon termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or dissolution of the 
entity, the Contractor shall return to the State immediately upon written demand, any 
funds provided under this Agreement, which are not payable for goods or services 
delivered prior to the termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or the 
dissolution of the entity. 
 

D. Funding Contingencies 
 
1. It is understood between the parties that this Agreement may have been written 

before ascertaining the availability or appropriation of funds, for the mutual 
benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would 
occur if this Agreement were executed after that determination was made. 

 
2. This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made 

available to the State through the Budget Acts of the appropriate fiscal years for 
purposes of this program(s). In addition, this Agreement is subject to any 
additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by the Congress or the 
Legislature that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this Agreement in 
any manner. 

 
3. Limitation of State Liability 

 
Payment for performance by the Contractor shall be dependent upon the 
availability of future appropriations by the Legislature or Congress for the 
purposes of this Agreement and approval of an itemized Budget. No legal liability 
on the part of the State for any payment may arise under this Agreement until 
funds are made available; the itemized Budget is received and approved by the 
State and the Contractor has received an executed Agreement.  

  



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 3 of 7 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS (Continued) 
 
4. Funding Reduction(s) 

 
a. If funding for any State fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Department 

of Finance, Legislature, or Congress for the purposes of this program, the 
State shall have the option to either: 
 
i. Terminate the Agreement pursuant to Exhibit D, Article XII., A of 

this Agreement, or 
 

ii. Offer an Agreement amendment to the Contractor to reflect the 
reduced funding for this Agreement. 

 
b. In the event the State elects to offer an amendment, it shall be mutually 

understood by both parties that: 
 
i. The State reserves the right to determine which agreements, if any, 

under this program shall be reduced. 
 

ii. Some agreements may be reduced by a greater amount than 
others, and 

 
iii. The State shall determine at its sole discretion the amount that any 

or all of the agreements shall be reduced for the fiscal year. 
 
ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 
 

A. The Contractor shall be compensated for expenses only as itemized in the approved 
Budget and shall not be entitled to payment for these expenses until this Agreement is 
approved and executed by CDA. The approved Budget is hereby incorporated by 
reference into this Agreement as part of Exhibit B. 
 

B. The Budget must set forth in detail the items, unit rates and extended total amounts for 
each line item. The Contractor's Budget shall include, at a minimum, the following items 
under this Agreement: 

 
1. Personnel Costs. For each personnel classification, monthly, weekly, or hourly 

rates, as appropriate together with the percentage of time to be charged to this 
Agreement and personnel classifications. 
 

2. Fringe Benefits 
 

3. Contractual costs – subcontract and consultant cost detail 
  



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 4 of 7 

ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 
 

4. Indirect costs - costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than 
one cost objective and not readily assignable to the cost. 
 

5. Rent 
 

6. Supplies 
 

7. Equipment/Property - detailed descriptions and total costs. 
 

8. In-State Travel - mileage reimbursement rate, lodging, per diem and other costs. 
 

9. Out of State Travel – any travel outside the State of California including mileage 
reimbursement rate, lodging, per diem and other costs. 

 
10. Training. 

 
11. Other Costs - a detailed list of other operating expenses. 

 
ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS 
 

A. Program Income 
No Program Income is required under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. One-Time-Only (OTO) Funds 
No One-Time-Only funding is associated with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
C. Matching Contributions 

No match is required under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

D. Administration 
Contractor Administration shall be no more than ten percent (10%) of the total program 
allocation. 
 

E. Equipment 
Equipment/Property with per unit cost over $5,000 or any computing devices, 
regardless of cost requires justification from the Contractor and approval from CDA. To 
request approval for specific equipment items, requests with justifications shall be sent 
to cdaequipment@aging.ca.gov. Such items must also be included in Contractor’s 
approved budgets. Please note an approved budget is not approval for equipment 
purchase. 

  

mailto:cdaequipment@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging  Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 5 of 7 

ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS (Continued) 
 

F. Indirect Costs 
 
1. The maximum reimbursement amount allowable for indirect costs is ten percent 

(10%) of the Contractor’s and/or Subcontractor’s Modified Total Direct Costs 
(MTDC), excluding in-kind contributions and nonexpendable equipment, unless 
there is an accepted negotiated rate. [45 CFR 75.414 (c) (1) and (f)]. Indirect 
costs shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the Contractor’s MTDC per funding 
category. 

 
2. Contractors requesting reimbursement for indirect costs shall retain on file an 

approved indirect cost rate or an allocation plan documenting the methodology 
used to determine the indirect costs. 
 

3. For major Institutes of Higher Education and major nonprofit organizations, 
indirect costs must be classified within two broad categories: “Facilities” and 
“Administration.” “Facilities” is defined as depreciation on buildings, equipment 
and capital improvement, interest on debt associated with certain buildings, 
equipment and capital improvements, and operations and maintenance 
expenses.  “Administration” is defined as general administration and general 
expenses such as the director's office, accounting, personnel and all other types 
of expenditures not listed specifically under one of the subcategories of 
“Facilities” (including cross allocations from other pools, where applicable).  
[45 CFR 75.414(a)] 

 
ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 
 

A. The original Agreement budget is due electronically to the Contractor’s CDA Local 
Finance Analyst no later than thirty (30) days from the date of the transmission of the 
Budget Display and Agreement. 
 

B. The final date to submit a revised budget shall be no later than sixty (60) days prior to 
the end of the Agreement period unless otherwise specified by CDA. 

 
C. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor shall submit a budget, which shall 

be incorporated by reference into the Subcontract and will have, at a minimum, the 
categories listed in Exhibit B above. 
 

D. Funds made available under this agreement shall supplement, and not supplant, any 
federal, State, or local funds expended by a State or unit of general-purpose local 
government. 

  



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 6 of 7 

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 
 

E. Categorical Budget Transfers 
The Contractor may transfer Agreement funds between budget categories (Direct 
Costs, Administration, Indirect Costs and Contractual Costs) under the following terms 
and conditions: 
 
1. The Contractor shall submit a revised budget to CDA when one or the cumulative 

categorical budget transfers exceeds twenty-five percent (25%) of the total 
Budget. 
 

2. The Contractor shall maintain a written record of all budget changes and clearly 
document all budget changes. Such record shall include the date, amount, and 
purpose of the transfer. This record shall be available to CDA upon request and 
shall be maintained in the same manner as all other financial records of the 
Contractor. 

 
ARTICLE V.  PAYMENTS 
 
The State shall reimburse Contractor with Brown Bag, Groceries, Intergenerational Activities, and 
Nutrition Infrastructure funding that has been appropriated, designated, encumbered, or otherwise 
made available for payment by the State under this Agreement. The following applies to all funding 
within this Agreement: 

 
A. The Contractor shall submit monthly expenditures in an electronic format, utilizing the 

CDA online Local Finance Reporting System, no later than the last business day of 
each month unless otherwise specified by CDA, reporting costs and funding for the 
month prior. 

 
B. Payments will be made to reimburse monthly expenditures reported. CDA shall process 

and approve reported expenditures that are based upon actual, not estimated 
expenditures. CDA shall notify the Contractor of any disputed expenditures. 
 

C. Contractors shall request CDA if they wish to be on a reimbursement or advanced 
payment. 

 
1. If Contractor requests reimbursement payment, CDA shall not advance one-sixth 

of the approved total allocated budget amount for the initial month of the 
Agreement. Payments shall be based on monthly expenditure reports as outlined 
in this section. 
 

2. If Contractor requests an advance payment, CDA shall advance one-sixth of the 
approved total allocated budget amount for the initial month of the Agreement. 
Future payments shall be based on monthly expenditure reports as outlined in 
this section. 

 



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 7 of 7 

ARTICLE V.  PAYMENTS (Continued) 
 

D. The Contractor shall submit timely expenditures to CDA. Late expenditures may lead to 
a delay in payment until the following month. 
 

E. Upon written request by CDA, Contractor shall submit additional documentation or 
justification to support the reported expenditure. 

 
F. Contractor shall be charged $75 per program funding source(s) for expedited payments 

to recover the fees charged by the State Controller’s Office.  CDA may waive the fees 
on a case-by-case basis as appropriate. 
 
1. Expedite Fees 
 

a. If the Agreement is executed late to no fault of CDA then the contractor 
may be liable for the incurred processing fees. 
 

b. If the Agreement is executed late due to CDA’s handling, then CDA shall 
cover the incurred processing fees. 

 
G. The Contractor shall ensure, to the extent feasible, that all budgeted funds are 

expended by the expiration of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VI.  CLOSEOUT 
 

A. Separate Financial Closeout Reports for Brown Bag, Groceries, Intergenerational 
Activities, and Nutrition Infrastructure funding and the Program Property Inventory 
Certification (CDA 9024) shall be submitted when either the total Agreement allocation 
has been expended, or 30 days after the expiration of this Agreement, whichever is 
earlier. 
 

B. Final expenditures must be reported to CDA in accordance with the Budget Display in 
Exhibit B. If the expenditures reported by the Contractor exceed the advanced amount, 
CDA will reimburse the difference to the Contractor up to the Agreement amount. If the 
expenditures reported by the Contractor are less than the advanced amount, CDA will 
invoice the Contractor for the unspent funds. 
 
The payment on the invoice is due immediately upon receipt or no later than 30 days 
from the date on the invoice. 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 1 of 32 
 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS 
 

A. General Definitions 
 
1. “Agreement” or “Contract” means the Standard Agreement (Std. 213), Exhibits A, 

B, C, D and E, an approved Budget Display as identified in Exhibit B, and if 
applicable, a Work Plan or Budget Summary, which are hereby incorporated by 
reference, amendments, and any other documents incorporated by reference, 
unless otherwise provided for in this Article. 

2. “Contractor” means the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) awarded funds under this 
Agreement and is accountable to the State and/or federal government for use of 
these funds and is responsible for executing the provisions for services provided 
under this Agreement. 

3. “CCR” means California Code of Regulations. 

4. “CFR” means Code of Federal Regulations. 

5. “UEI” means the Unique Entity ID - a 12-character alphanumeric ID assigned to 
an entity by SAM.gov on April 4, 2022. As part of this transition, the DUNS 
number has been removed from SAM.gov and entity registration, searching, and 
data entry in SAM.gov now require use of the new Unique Entity ID. 

6. “Cal. Gov. Code” means California Government Code. 

7. “OMB” means the federal Office of Management and Budget. 

8. “Cal. Pub. Con. Code” means the California Public Contract Code. 

9. “Cal. Civ. Code” means California Civil Code 

10. “Reimbursable item” also means “allowable cost” and “compensable item.” 

11. “State” and “Department” mean the State of California and the California 
Department of Aging (CDA) interchangeably. 

12. “Subcontractor” means the legal entity that receives funds from the Contractor to 
carry out part of a federal award identified in this Agreement. 

13. “Subcontract” means any form of legal agreement between the Contractor and 
the Subcontractor, including an agreement that the Contractor considers a 
contract, including vendor type Agreements for providing goods or services under 
this Agreement. 

14. “Vendor” means an entity selling goods or services to the Contractor or 
Subcontractor during the Contractor or Subcontractor’s performance of the 
Agreement. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 2 of 32 
 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS (Continued) 
 

15. “USC” means United States Code. 
 

16. “HHS” means United States Department of Health and Human Services. 
 

17. “OAA” means Older Americans Act. 
 

18. “Allocation” means the process of assigning a cost, or a group of costs, to one or 
more cost objective(s), in reasonable proportion to the benefit provided or other 
equitable relationship. The process may entail assigning a cost(s) directly to a 
final cost objective or through one or more intermediate cost objectives. (2 CFR 
200.4 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

 
19. “Disallowed costs” means those charges determined to be unallowable, in 

accordance with the applicable Federal statutes, regulations, or the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award. (2 CFR 200.31 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

20. “Questioned Costs” means a cost that is questioned by the auditor because of an 
audit finding which resulted from a violation or possible violation of a statute, 
regulation, or the terms and conditions of a Federal award, including for funds 
used to match Federal funds; where the costs, at the time of the audit, are not 
supported by adequate documentation; or where the costs incurred appear 
unreasonable and do not reflect the actions a prudent person would take in the 
circumstances. (2 CFR 200.84 and 45 CFR 75.2). 

21. “Recoverable cost” means the state and federal share of the questioned cost. 

B. Resolution of Language Conflicts 

The terms and conditions of this federal award and other requirements have the 
following order of precedence, if there is any conflict in what they require: 

1. The Grant Terms and Conditions. 

2. The Older Americans Act and other applicable federal statutes and their 
implementing regulations. 

3. If applicable, the Older Californians Act and other California State codes and 
regulations. 

4. Standard Agreement (Std. 213), all Exhibits and any amendments thereto. 

5. Any other documents incorporated herein by reference including, if applicable, 
the federal HHS terms and conditions found in Part II of the HHS Grant Policy 
Statement. The HHS Grant Policy Statement is available under the HHS Policy 
Requirements Topic at https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-
regulations/index.html.  

https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html
https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html


California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 3 of 32 
 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS (Continued) 
 

6. Program memos and other guidance issued by CDA. 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES 
 

A. Law, Policy and Procedure, Licenses, and Certificates 
 
The Contractor agrees to administer this Agreement and require any subcontractors to 
administer their subcontracts in accordance with this Agreement, and with all applicable 
local, State, and federal laws and regulations including, but not limited to, discrimination, 
wages and hours of employment, occupational safety, and to fire, safety, health, and 
sanitation regulations, directives, guidelines, and/or manuals related to this Agreement 
and resolve all issues using good administrative practices and sound judgment.  The 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall keep in effect all licenses, permits, notices, and 
certificates that are required by law. 

 
B. Subcontracts 

The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all subcontractors to 
comply with all applicable State and federal laws. 

C. Nondiscrimination  

The Contractor shall comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination.  
These include those statutes and laws contained in the Contractor Certification Clauses 
(CCC 307), which is hereby incorporated by reference.  In addition, the Contractor shall 
comply with the following: 
 
1. Equal Access to Federally Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 

The Contractor shall ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 [42 USC 2000d; 45 CFR 80], which prohibits recipients of federal financial 
assistance from discriminating against persons based on race, color, religion, or 
national origin. 
 

2. Equal Access to State-Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 
The Contractor shall, unless exempted, ensure compliance with the requirements 
of Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq., and 2 CCR § 11140 et seq., which prohibit 
recipients of state financial assistance from discriminating against persons based 
on race, national origin, ethnic group identification, religion, age, sex, sexual 
orientation, color, or disability.  [22 CCR § 98323] 
 

3. California Civil Rights Laws 
The Contractor shall, ensure compliance with the requirements of California 
Public Contract Code § 2010 by submitting a completed California Civil Rights 
Laws Certification, prior to execution of this Agreement. The certificate is 
available at: http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx.  

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx


California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 4 of 32 
 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 
 

The California Civil Rights Laws Certification ensures Contractor compliance with 
the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 51) and the Fair Employment and 
Housing Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 12960) and ensures that Contractor internal 
policies are not used in violation of California Civil Rights Laws. 

 
4. The Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination based on disability, 
as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA.  
[42 USC 12101 et seq.] 
 

5. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it enters into 
with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
D. Standards of Work 

 
The Contractor agrees that the performance of work and services pursuant to the 
requirements of this Agreement shall conform to accepted professional standards. 
 

E. Conflict of Interest 
 
1. The Contractor shall prevent employees, consultants, or members of governing 

bodies from using their positions for purposes including, but not limited to, the 
selection of subcontractors, that are, or give the appearance of being, motivated 
by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, such as family, business, or 
other ties.  In the event that the State determines that a conflict of interest exists, 
any increase in costs associated with the conflict of interest may be disallowed 
by the State and such conflict may constitute grounds for termination of the 
Agreement. 
 

2. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit employment of persons with 
whom the Contractor’s officers, agents, or employees have family, business, or 
other ties, so long as the employment of such persons does not result in a 
conflict of interest (real or apparent) or increased costs over those associated 
with the employment of any other equally qualified applicant, and such persons 
have successfully competed for employment with the other applicants on a merit 
basis. 

 
F. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

 
1. The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or 

retained to solicit this Agreement.  There has been no agreement to make 
commission payments in order to obtain this Agreement. 

 
  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 5 of 32 
 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 
 
2. For breach or violation of this warranty, CDA shall have the right to terminate this 

Agreement without liability or at its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price 
or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, 
percentage, brokerage, or contingency fee. 
 

G. Payroll Taxes and Deductions 
 
The Contractor shall promptly forward payroll taxes, insurances, and contributions, 
including State Disability Insurance, Unemployment Insurance, Old Age Survivors 
Disability Insurance, and federal and State income taxes withheld, to designated 
governmental agencies as required by law. 

 
H. Facility Construction or Repair 

 
This section applies only to Title III funds and not to other funds allocated to other Titles 
under the OAA.  Title III funds may be used for facility construction or repair. 

 
1. When applicable for purposes of construction or repair of facilities, the Contractor 

shall comply with the provisions contained in the following and shall include such 
provisions in any applicable agreements with subcontractors: 
 
a. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act.  [18 USC 874, 40 USC 3145] [29 CFR 3] 

 
b. Davis-Bacon Act.  [40 USC 3141 et seq.] [29 CFR 5] 

 
c. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. [40 USC 3701 et seq.] 

[29 CFR  5, 6, 7, 8] 
 

d. Executive Order 11246 of September 14, 1965, entitled “Equal 
Employment Opportunity” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of 
October 13, 1967, as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations.  
[41 CFR 60] 

 
2. Payments are not permitted for construction, renovation, alteration, improvement, 

or repair of privately-owned property which would enhance the owner’s value of 
such property except when permitted by law and by CDA. 
 

3. When funding is provided for construction and non-construction activities, the 
Contractor must obtain prior written approval from CDA before making any fund 
or budget transfers between construction and non-construction. 

  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 6 of 32 
 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 
 

I. Contracts in Excess of $100,000 
 
If all funding provided herein exceeds $100,000, the Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable orders or requirements issued under the following laws: 

 
1. Clean Air Act, as amended.  [42 USC 7401] 

 
2. Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended.  [33 USC 1251 et seq.] 

 
3. Environmental Protection Agency Regulations.  [40 CFR 29] [Executive Order 

11738] 
 

4. State Contract Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code §10295 et seq.] 
 

5. Unruh Civil Rights Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code § 2010] 
 

J. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters 
 

1. The Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 
subcontractors: 
 
a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, 

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by 
any federal department or agency. 
 

b. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Agreement, been 
convicted of, or had a civil judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, 
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, State, or local) 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or 
State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or 
receiving stolen property. 

 
c. Are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (federal, State, or local) with commission of any of 
the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification. 

 
d. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 

more public transactions (federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or 
default. 

 
2. The Contractor shall report immediately to CDA in writing, any incidents of 

alleged fraud and/or abuse by either the Contractor or subcontractors. 
  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 7 of 32 
 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 
 

3. The Contractor shall maintain any records, documents, or other evidence of fraud 
and abuse until otherwise notified by CDA. 
 

4. The Contractor agrees to timely execute any and all amendments to this 
Agreement or other required documentation relating to the Subcontractor’s 
debarment/suspension status. 

 
K. Agreement Authorization 

 
1. If a public entity, the Contractor shall submit to CDA a copy of an approved 

resolution, order, or motion referencing this Agreement number authorizing 
execution of this Agreement.  If a private nonprofit entity, the Contractor shall 
submit to CDA an authorization by the Board of Directors to execute this 
Agreement, referencing this Agreement number. 

 
2. These documents, including minute orders must also identify the action taken. 

 
3. Documentation in the form of a resolution, order, or motion by the Governing 

Board of the AAA is required for the original and each subsequent amendment to 
this Agreement.  This requirement may also be met by a single resolution from 
the Governing Board of the Contractor authorizing the AAA Director or designee 
to execute the original and all subsequent amendments to this Agreement. 

 
L. Contractor’s Staff 

 
1. The Contractor shall maintain adequate staff to meet the Contractor’s obligations 

under this Agreement. 
 

2. This staff shall be available to the State for training and meetings which the State 
may find necessary from time to time. 

 
M. UEI Number and Related Information 

 
1. The Unique Entity Identifier changed from the DUNS Number to the Unique 

Entity ID (generated by SAM.gov) on April 4, 2022. The UEI number must be 
provided to CDA prior to the execution of this Agreement. Business entities may 
register for a UEI number at https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei. 

 
2. The Contractor must register the UEI number and maintain an “Active” status 

within the federal System for Award Management available online at 
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1. 

 
3. If CDA cannot access or verify “Active” status the Contractor’s UEI information, 

which is related to this federal subaward on the Federal Funding Accountability 
and Transparency Act Subaward Reporting System (SAM.gov) due to errors in  

https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1


California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 8 of 32 
 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 
 
the Contractor’s data entry for its UEI number, the Contractor must immediately 
update the information as required. 

 
N. Corporate Status 

 
1. The Contractor shall be a public entity, private nonprofit entity, or Joint Powers 

Authority (JPA).  If a private nonprofit corporation or JPA, the Contractor shall be 
in good standing with the Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that 
status throughout the term of this Agreement. 
 

2. The Contractor shall ensure that any subcontractors providing services under this 
Agreement shall be of sound financial status. 

 
3. Any subcontracting private entity or JPA shall be in good standing with the 

Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that status throughout the term 
of this Agreement. 

 
4. Failure to maintain good standing by the contracting entity shall result in 

suspension or termination of this Agreement with CDA until satisfactory status is 
restored.  Failure to maintain good standing by a subcontracting entity shall result 
in suspension or termination of the subcontract by the Contractor until 
satisfactory status is restored. 

 
O. Lobbying Certification 
 

The Contractor, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, that: 
 
1. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 

the Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any agency; a Member of Congress; an officer or employee of 
Congress; or an employee of a Member of Congress; in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract; the making of any federal grant; the making of 
any federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement; and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 

2. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Contractor shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, 
in accordance with its instructions. 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 9 of 32 
 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 
 

3. The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in 
the award documents for all subcontracts at all tiers (including contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements which exceed $100,000) and that all 
subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 

4. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into. 

 
5. This certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 

imposed by 31 USC 1352. 
 

6. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil 
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
failure. 

 
P. The Contractor and its Subcontractor/Vendors shall comply with Governor’s Executive 

Order 2-18-2011, which bans expenditures on promotional and marketing items 
colloquially known as “S.W.A.G.” or “Stuff We All Get.” 
 

ARTICLE III.  AGREEMENT 
 

A copy of this executed Agreement is on file and available for inspection at the California 
Department of Aging, 2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California 95833. 

 
ARTICLE IV.  COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 
 

Should the Contractor or subcontractor begin work in advance of receiving notice that this 
Agreement is approved, that work may be considered as having been performed at risk as a 
volunteer and may not be reimbursed or compensated. 

 
ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS 
 

A. The Contractor is responsible for carrying out the terms of this Agreement, including the 
satisfaction, settlement, and resolution of all administrative, programmatic, and fiscal 
aspects of the program(s), including issues that arise out of any subcontracts, and shall 
not delegate or contract these responsibilities to any other entity.  This includes, but is 
not limited to, disputes, claims, protests of award, or other matters of a contractual 
nature.  The Contractor’s decision is final, and the Subcontractor has no right of appeal 
to CDA. 
 

B. The Contractor shall, in the event any subcontractor is utilized by the Contractor for any 
portion of this Agreement, retain the prime responsibility for all the terms and conditions 
set forth, including but not limited to, the responsibility for preserving the State’s 
copyrights and rights in data in accordance with Article XIX of this Exhibit, for handling 
property in accordance with Article VII. of this Exhibit, and ensuring the keeping of,  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 10 of 32 
 

ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS (Continued) 
 

access to, availability of, and retention of records of subcontractors in accordance with 
Article VI. of this Exhibit. 

 
C. The Contractor shall not obligate funds for this Agreement in any subcontracts for 

services beyond the ending date of this Agreement. 
 

D. The Contractor shall have no authority to contract for, or on behalf of, or incur 
obligations on behalf of the State. 

 
E. The Contractor shall maintain on file copies of subcontracts, memorandums and/or 

Letters of Understanding which shall be made available for review at the request of 
CDA. 

 
F. The Contractor shall monitor the insurance requirements of its subcontractors in 

accordance with Article XI of this Exhibit. 
 

G. The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all subcontractors to 
indemnify, defend, and save harmless the Contractor, its officers, agents, and 
employees from any and all claims and losses accruing to or resulting from any 
subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing 
or supplying work services, materials, or supplies in connection with any activities 
performed for which funds from this Agreement were used and from any and all claims 
and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation who may be injured 
or damaged by the Subcontractor(s) in the performance of this Agreement. 

 
H. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor will complete all reporting and 

expenditure documents requested by CDA.  These reporting and expenditure 
documents shall be sent to the Contractor in a timely manner and at intervals as 
determined by CDA. 

 
I. The Contractor shall, prior to the awarding of a subcontract to any for-profit entity, 

submit the following to CDA for review and approval: 
 

1. The Request for Proposal (RFP) or Invitation for Bid. 
2. All bid proposals received. 
3. The proposal or bid evaluation documentation, along with the Contractor’s 

rationale for awarding the subcontract to a for-profit entity.  [22 CCR 7362] 
4. Description and documentation of dissemination of information concerning the 

RFP to elicit adequate competition. [22 CCR 7356] 
 

Where a program may be subcontracted to a for-profit organization, the Contractor 
should include in its contract with the for-profit entity, a requirement for performance of a 
program-specific audit of the subcontracted program by an independent audit firm. 

  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 11 of 32 
 

ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS (Continued) 
 

J. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors to maintain adequate staff to meet the 
Subcontractor’s Agreement with the Contractor.  This staff shall be available to the 
State for training and meetings which the State may find necessary from time to time. 
 

K. If a private nonprofit corporation, the Subcontractor shall be in good standing with the 
Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that status throughout the term of the 
Agreement. 
 

L. The Contractor shall refer to 2 CFR 200.330, Subpart D - Subrecipient and Contractor 
Determinations and 45 CFR 75.351, Subpart D - Subrecipient and Contractor 
Determinations in making a determination if a subcontractor relationship exists.  If such 
a relationship exists, then the Contractor shall follow the procurement requirements in 
the applicable OMB Circular. 

 
M. The Contractor shall utilize procurement procedures as follows: 

 
1. The Contractor shall obtain goods and services through open and competitive 

awards.  Each Contractor shall have written policies and procedures, including 
application forms, for conducting an open and competitive process, and any protests 
resulting from the process. 
 

2. For goods and services purchased with Title III or Title VII funds, the procurement 
procedures must include, at a minimum, the requirements set forth in 22 CCR 7352.  
The only exception is contained in 22 CCR 7360(a).  The Contractor issuing a 
noncompetitive award must comply with 22 CCR 7360(b)-(d). 

 
ARTICLE VI.  RECORDS 
 

A. The Contractor shall maintain complete records which shall include, but not be limited to, 
accounting records, contracts, agreements, a reconciliation of the “Financial Closeout 
Report” (CDA Closeout) to the audited financial statements, single audit report, and 
general ledgers, and a summary worksheet identifying the results of performing an audit 
resolution of its subcontractors in accordance with Article X. of this Exhibit.  This includes 
the following: Letters of Agreement, insurance documentation, memorandums and/or 
Letters of Understanding, patient or client records, and electronic files of its activities and 
expenditures hereunder in a form satisfactory to CDA.  All records pertaining to this 
Agreement must be made available for inspection and audit by the State or its duly 
authorized agents, at any time during normal business hours.  The reconciliation of the 
CDA Closeout to the Contractor general ledger must be submitted with the CDA Closeout 
package.   
 

B. All such records, including confidential records, must be maintained and made available 
by the Contractor: (1) until an audit has occurred and an audit resolution has been 
issued or unless otherwise authorized in writing by CDA’s Audit Branch, (2) for such 
longer period, if any, as is required by applicable statute, by any other clause of this  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 12 of 32 
 

ARTICLE VI.  RECORDS (Continued) 
 

Agreement, or by Sections A and C of this Article, and (3) for such longer period as 
CDA deems necessary. 

 
C. If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the work 

terminated shall be preserved and made available for the same periods as specified in 
Section A above.  The Contractor shall ensure that any resource directories and all client 
records remain the property of CDA upon termination of this Agreement, and are returned to 
CDA or transferred to another contractor as instructed by CDA. 
 

D. In the event of any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit exception, or other action involving 
the records, all records relative to such action shall be maintained and made available 
until every action has been cleared to the satisfaction of the State and is so stated in 
writing to the Contractor. 

 
E. Adequate source documentation of each transaction shall be maintained relative to the 

allowability of expenditures reimbursed by the State under this Agreement.  If the 
allowability of expenditures cannot be determined because records or documentation of 
the Contractor are nonexistent or inadequate according to guidelines set forth in 2 CFR 
200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302, the expenditures will be questioned in the audit and may 
be disallowed by CDA during the audit resolution process. 

 
F. All records containing confidential information shall be handled in a confidential manner 

in accordance with the requirements for information integrity and security, and in 
accordance with guidelines set forth in this Article, and Article XVIII.  After the 
authorized period has expired, confidential records shall be shredded and disposed of in 
a manner that will maintain confidentiality. 

 
ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY 
 

A. Unless otherwise provided for in this Article, property refers to all assets used in 
operation of this Agreement. 
 
1. Property includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery, vehicles, furniture, 

tools, and intangibles, etc. 
 

2. Property does not include consumable office supplies such as paper, pencils, 
toner cartridges, file folders, etc. 

 
B. Property acquired under this Agreement, which meets any of the following criteria is 

subject to the reporting requirements: 
 
1. Has a normal useful life of at least one (1) year and has a unit acquisition cost of 

at least $5,000 (a desktop or laptop setup, is considered a unit, if purchased as a 
unit). 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 13 of 32 
 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY (Continued) 
 

2. All computing devices, regardless of cost (including but not limited to, 
workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, notebook computers, 
tablets, smartphones and cellphones). 

 
3. All Portable electronic storage media, regardless of cost (including but not limited 

to, thumb/flash drives and portable hard drives). 
 

C. Additions, improvements, and betterments to assets meeting all of the conditions in 
Section B above must also be reported.  Additions typically involve physical extensions 
of existing units.  Improvements and betterments typically do not increase the physical 
size of the asset.  Instead, improvements and betterments enhance the condition of an 
asset (e.g., extend life, increase service capacity, and lower operating costs).  
Examples of assets that might be improved and bettered include roads, bridges, curbs 
and gutters, tunnels, parking lots, streets and sidewalks, drainage, and lighting systems. 
 

D. Intangibles are property which lack physical substance but give valuable rights to the 
owner.  Examples of intangible property include patents, copyrights, leases, and 
computer software.  By contrast, hardware consists of tangible equipment (e.g., 
computer printer, terminal, etc.).  Costs include all amounts incurred to acquire and to 
ready the intangible asset for its intended use.  Typical intangible property costs include 
the purchase price, legal fees, and other costs incurred to obtain title to the asset. 

 
E. The Contractor shall keep track of property purchased with funds from this Agreement 

that meet the requirements as defined in Exhibit D, Article VII, item B, and submit to 
CDA a Property Acquisition Form (CDA 9023) for all property furnished or purchased by 
either the Contractor or the Subcontractor with funds awarded under the terms of this 
Agreement, as instructed by the CDA.  The Contractor shall certify their reported 
property inventory annually with the Closeout by completing the Program Property 
Inventory Certification (CDA 9024), unless further restricted by Exhibit E, where 
applicable. 

 
The Contractor shall record, at minimum, the following information when property is 
acquired: 

 
1. Date acquired. 
2. Item description (include model number). 
3. CDA tag number. 
4. Serial number (if applicable). 
5. Purchase cost or other basis of valuation. 
6. Fund source 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 14 of 32 
 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY (Continued) 
 

F. Disposal of Property 
 
1. Prior to disposal of any property purchased by the Contractor or the 

Subcontractor with funds from this Agreement or any predecessor Agreement, 
the Contractor must obtain approval from CDA for all reportable property as  
 
defined in Section B of this Article. Disposition, which includes sale, trade-in, 
discarding, or transfer to another agency may not occur until approval is received  
from CDA.  The Contractor shall submit to CDA a Request to Dispose of Property 
(CDA 248).  CDA will then instruct the AAA on disposition of the property.  Once  
approval for disposal has been received from CDA and the AAA has reported to 
CDA the Property Survey Report’s (STD 152) Certification of Disposition, the 
item(s) shall be removed from the Contractor’s inventory report. 
 

2. The Contractor must remove all confidential, sensitive, or personal information 
from CDA property prior to disposal, including removal or destruction of data on 
computing devices with digital memory and storage capacity.  This includes, but 
is not limited to magnetic tapes, flash drives, personal computers, personal digital 
assistants, cell or smart phones, multi-function printers, and laptops. 
 

G. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment shall be investigated, fully documented and the 
Contractor shall promptly notify CDA. 
 

H. The State reserves title to all State-purchased or financed property not fully consumed 
in the performance of this Agreement, unless otherwise required by federal law or 
regulations or as otherwise agreed by the parties. 

 
I. The Contractor shall exercise due care in the use, maintenance, protection, and 

preservation of such property during the period of the project, and shall assume 
responsibility for replacement or repair of such property during the period of the project, 
or until the Contractor has complied with all written instructions from CDA regarding the 
final disposition of the property. 

 
J. In the event of the Contractor’s dissolution or upon termination of this Agreement, the 

Contractor shall provide a final property inventory to the State.  The State reserves the 
right to require the Contractor to transfer such property to another entity, or to the State. 

 
K. To exercise the above right, no later than one hundred twenty (120) days after 

termination of this Agreement or notification of the Contractor’s dissolution, the State will 
issue specific written disposition instructions to the Contractor. 

 
  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 15 of 32 
 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY (Continued) 
 

L. The Contractor shall use the property for the purpose for which it was intended under 
the Agreement.  When no longer needed for that use, the Contractor shall use it, if 
needed, and with written approval of the State for other purposes in this order: 

 
1. For another CDA program providing the same or similar service. 

 
2. For another CDA-funded program. 

 
M. The Contractor may share use of the property and equipment or allow use by other 

programs, upon written approval from CDA.  As a condition of the approval, CDA may 
require reimbursement under this Agreement for its use. 

 
N. The Contractor or subcontractors shall not use equipment or supplies acquired under 

this Agreement with federal and/or State monies for personal gain or to usurp the 
competitive advantage of a privately-owned business entity. 
 

O. If purchase of equipment is a reimbursable item, the equipment to be purchased will be 
specified in the Budget Summary. 

 
P. The Contractor shall include the provisions contained in this Article in all its 

subcontracts awarded under this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VIII.  ACCESS 
 

The Contractor shall provide access to the federal or State contracting agency, the California 
State Auditor, the Comptroller, General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized 
federal or State representatives to any books, documents, papers, and records of the 
Contractor or subcontractor which are directly pertinent to this specific Agreement for the 
purpose of making an audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.  The Contractor shall 
include this requirement in its subcontracts. 
 

ARTICLE IX.  MONITORING AND EVALUATION 
 

A. Authorized State representatives shall have the right to monitor and evaluate the 
Contractor’s administrative, fiscal and program performance pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Said monitoring and evaluation may include, but is not limited to, 
administrative processes, fiscal, data and procurement components.  This will include 
policies, procedures, procurement, audits, inspections of project premises, interviews of 
project staff and participants, and when applicable, inspection of food preparation sites. 
 

B. The Contractor shall cooperate with the State in the monitoring and evaluation 
processes, which include making any administrative, program and fiscal staff available 
during any scheduled process. 

 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 16 of 32 
 

ARTICLE IX.  MONITORING AND EVALUATION (Continued) 
 

C. The Contractor shall monitor contracts and subcontracts to ensure compliance with 
laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts that may have a direct and/or material 
effect on each of its CDA funded programs. 

 
D. The Contractor is responsible for maintaining supporting documentation including 

financial and statistical records, contracts, subcontracts, monitoring reports, and all 
other pertinent records until an audit has occurred and an audit resolution has been 
issued or unless otherwise authorized in writing by CDA. 

 
ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. General 
 
1. Any duly authorized representative of the federal or State government, which 

includes but is not limited to the State Auditor, CDA Staff, and any entity selected 
by State to perform inspections, shall have the right to monitor and audit 
Contractor and all subcontractors providing services under this Agreement 
through on-site inspections, audits, and other applicable means the State  
determines necessary. In the event that CDA is informed of an audit by an 
outside federal or State government entity affecting the Contractor, CDA will 
provide timely notice to Contractor. 
 

2. Contractor shall make available all reasonable information necessary to 
substantiate that expenditures under this agreement are allowable and allocable, 
including, but not limited to books, documents, papers, and records. Contractor 
shall agree to make such information available to the federal government, the 
State, or any of their duly authorized representatives, including representatives of 
the entity selected by State to perform inspections, for examination, copying, or 
mechanical reproduction, on or off the premises of the appropriate entity upon a 
reasonable request. 
 

3. All agreements entered into by Contractor and subcontractors with audit firms for 
purposes of conducting independent audits under this Agreement shall contain a 
clause permitting any duly authorized representative of the federal or State 
government access to the supporting documentation of said audit firm(s). 

 
4. The Contractor shall cooperate with and participate in any further audits which 

may be required by the State, including CDA fiscal and compliance audits. 
 

B. CDA Fiscal and Compliance Audits 
 
1. The CDA Audits Branch shall perform fiscal and compliance audits of 

Contractors in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing 
Standards (GAGAS) to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations, 
grants, and contract requirements. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 17 of 32 
 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 
 

2. The CDA fiscal and compliance audits may include, but not be limited to, a 
review of: 
 
a. Financial closeouts (2 CFR 200.16 and 45 CFR 75.2) 
b. Internal controls (2 CFR 200.303 and 45 CFR 75.303) 
c. Allocation of expenditures (2 CFR 200.4 and 45 CFR 75.2) 
d. Allowability of expenditures (2 CFR 200.403 and 45 CFR 75.403) 
e. Equipment expenditures and approvals, if required (2 CFR 200.439 and 

45 CFR 75.439) 
 

C. Single Audit Reporting Requirements (2 CFR 200 Subpart F and 45 CFR 75 Subpart F) 
 
1. Contractor Single Audit Reporting Requirements 
 

a. Contractors that expend $750,000 or more in federal funds shall arrange 
for an audit to be performed as required by the Single Audit Act of 1984, 
Public Law 98-502; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Public Law 
104-156; 2 CFR 200.501 to 200.521 and 45 CFR 75.501 to 75.521.  A 
copy shall be submitted to the: 
 

California Department of Aging 
Attention:  Audits Branch 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
Sacramento, California 95833 

 
b. The copy shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after receipt of the 

Auditor’s report or nine (9) months after the end of the audit period, 
whichever occurs first, or unless a longer period is agreed to in advance 
by the cognizant or oversight agency. 
 

c. For purposes of reporting, the Contractor shall ensure that State-funded 
expenditures are displayed discretely along with the related federal 
expenditures in the single audit report’s “Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards” (SEFA) under the Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) number. 

 
d. For State contracts that do not have CFDA numbers, the Contractor shall 

ensure that the State-funded expenditures are discretely identified in the 
SEFA by the appropriate program name, identifying grant/contract 
number, and as passed through CDA. 

  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 18 of 32 
 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 
 

2. The Contractor shall perform a reconciliation of the “Financial Closeout Report” 
to the audited financial statements, single audit, and general ledgers.  The 
reconciliation shall be maintained and made available for CDA review. 
 

3. Contract Resolution of Contractor’s Subrecipients 
The Contractor shall have the responsibility for resolving its contracts with 
subcontractors to determine whether funds provided under this Agreement are 
expended in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and provisions of 
contracts or agreements.  The Contractor shall, at a minimum, perform Contract 
resolution within fifteen (15) months of the "Financial Closeout Report." 
 

4. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports meet 2 CFR 
200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F-Audit Requirements. 
 

5. Contract resolution includes: 
 
a. Ensuring that subcontractors expending $750,000 or more in federal 

awards during the subcontractor’s fiscal year have met the audit 
requirements of 2 CFR 200.501 - 200.521 and 45 CFR 75.501 to 75.521. 
 

b. Issuing a management decision on audit findings within six (6) months 
after receipt of the Subcontractor’s single audit report and ensuring that 
the Subcontractor takes appropriate and timely corrective action. 
 

c. Reconciling expenditures reported to the Contractor to the amounts 
identified in the single audit or other type of audit if the Subcontractor was 
not subject to the single audit requirements.  For a subcontractor who was 
not required to obtain a single audit and did not obtain another type of 
audit, the reconciliation of expenditures reported to CDA must be 
accomplished through performing alternative procedures (e.g., risk 
assessment [2 CFR 200.331 and 45 CFR 75.352], documented review of 
financial statements, and documented expense verification, including 
match, etc.). 

 
6. When alternative procedures are used, the Contractor shall perform financial 

management system testing, which provides, in part, for the following: 
 
a. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each 

federal award or program. 
 

b. Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for 
each federally funded activity. 

 
c. Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, property, and other 

assets to ensure these items are used solely for authorized purposes. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 19 of 32 
 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 
 

d. Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each federal award. 
 

e. Written procedures to implement the requirements of 2 CFR 200.305. 
 

f. Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance 
with 2 CFR Part 200 and 45 CFR Part 75, Subparts E - Cost Principles. 
[2 CFR 200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302] 

 
g. The Contractor shall document system and expense testing to show an 

acceptable level of reliability, including a review of actual source 
documents. 

 
h. Determining whether the results of the reconciliations performed 

necessitate adjustment of the Contractor’s own records. 
 

7. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports meet 
2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F - Audit Requirements: 
 
a. Performed timely – not less frequently than annually and a report 

submitted timely.  The audit is required to be submitted within thirty (30) 
days after receipt of the Auditor’s report or nine (9) months after the end of 
the audit period, whichever occurs first.  [2 CFR 200 512 and 45 CFR 
75.512] 
 

b. Properly procured – use procurement standards for auditor selection.  
[2 CFR 200.509 and CFR 75.509] 

 
c. Performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing 

Standards.  [2 CFR 200.514 and 45 CFR 75.514] 
 

d. All inclusive – includes an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) of the financial 
statements; a report on internal control related to the financial statements 
and major programs; an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance 
with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts; and the schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.  [2 CFR 200.515 and 45 CFR 75.515] 

 
e. Performed in accordance with provisions applicable to this program as 

identified in 2 CFR Part 200, and 45 CFR Part 75, Subpart F, Audit 
Requirements. 

 
8. Requirements identified in Sections D and E of this Article shall be included in 

contracts with the Subcontractor.  Further, the Subcontractor shall be required to 
include in its contract with the independent Auditor that the Auditor will comply 
with all applicable audit requirements/standards; CDA shall have access to all  
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 20 of 32 
 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 
 
audit reports and supporting work papers, and CDA has the option to perform 
additional work, as needed. 

 
9. The Contractor shall prepare a summary worksheet of results from the contract 

resolutions performed of all subcontractors.  The summary worksheet shall  
 

include, but not be limited to, contract amounts; amounts resolved; amounts of 
match verified, resolution of variances; recovered amounts; whether an audit was 
relied upon or the Contractor performed an independent expense verification 
review (alternative procedures) of the Subcontractor in making a determination; 
whether audit findings were issued; and, if applicable, issuance date of the 
management letter; and any communication or follow-up performed to resolve 
the findings. 

 
10. A reasonably proportionate share of the costs of audits required by, and 

performed in, accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as 
implemented by requirements of this part, are allowable.  However, the following 
audit costs are unallowable: 
 
a. Any costs when audits required by the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR 200 

and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements have not been 
conducted or have been conducted but not in accordance therewith; and 
 

b. Any costs of auditing a non-federal entity that is exempted from having an 
audit conducted under the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 
75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements because its expenditures under 
federal awards are less than $750,000 during the non-federal entity’s 
fiscal year. 

 
i. The costs of a financial statement audit of a non-federal entity that 

does not currently have a federal award may be included in the 
indirect cost pool for a cost allocation plan or indirect cost proposal. 
 

ii. Pass-through entities may charge federal awards for the cost of 
agreed-upon-procedures engagements to monitor subcontractors 
who are exempted from the requirements of the Single Audit Act 
and 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements.  
This cost is allowable only if the agreed-upon procedures 
engagements are conducted in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) attestation 
standards, paid for and arranged by the pass-through entity, and 
limited in scope to one or more of the following types of compliance 
requirements: activities allowed or not allowed; allowable costs/cost 
principles; eligibility; and reporting. 
[2 CFR 200.425] 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 21 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XI.  INSURANCE 
 

A. Prior to commencement of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide 
for the term of this Agreement, the following insurance: 
 
1. General liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and 

property damage combined.  Higher limits may be required by the State in cases 
of higher than usual risks. 
 

2. Automobile liability including non-owned auto liability, of not less than $1,000,000 
for volunteers and paid employees providing services supported by this 
Agreement. 

 
3. If applicable, or unless otherwise amended by future regulation, the Contractor 

and subcontractors shall comply with the Public Utilities Commission General 
Order No. 115-F which requires higher levels of insurance for charter-party 
carriers of passengers and is based on seating capacity as follows: 

 
a. $750,000 if seating capacity is under 8 

 
b. $1,500,000 if seating capacity is 8 – 15 

 
c. $5,000,000 if seating capacity is over 15 

 
4. Professional liability of not less than $1,000,000 as it appropriately relates to the 

services rendered.  Coverage shall include medical malpractice and/or errors and 
omissions. (All programs except Title V). 
 

B. The insurance will be obtained from an insurance company acceptable to the 
Department of General Services, Office of Risk and Insurance Management (DGS, 
ORIM), or be provided through partial or total self-insurance acceptable to the 
Department of General Services (DGS). 
 

C. Evidence of insurance shall be in a form and content acceptable to DGS, ORIM. 
 

D. The Contractor shall notify the State within five (5) business days of any cancellation, 
non-renewal, or material change that affects required insurance coverage. 

 
E. Insurance obtained through commercial carriers shall meet the following requirements: 

 
1. The Certificate of Insurance shall provide the statement: “The Department of 

Aging, State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and servants are 
included as additional insureds, with respect to work performed for the State of 
California under this Agreement.”  Professional liability coverage is exempt from 
this requirement. 

 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 22 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XI.  INSURANCE (Continued) 
 
2. CDA shall be named as the certificate holder and CDA’s address must be listed 

on the certificate. 
 

F. The insurance provided herein shall be in effect at all times during the term of this 
Agreement.  In the event the insurance coverage expires during the term of this 
Agreement, the Contractor agrees to provide CDA, at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration date, a new Certificate of Insurance evidencing insurance coverage as 
provided herein for a period not less than the remaining Agreement term or for a period 
not less than one (1) year.  In the event the Contractor fails to keep in effect at all times 
said insurance coverage, CDA may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, 
terminate this Agreement. 

 
G. The Contractor shall require its subcontractors under this Agreement, other than units of 

local government which are similarly self-insured, to maintain adequate insurance 
coverage for general liability, Worker’s Compensation liabilities, and if appropriate, auto 
liability including non-owned auto and professional liability, and further, the Contractor 
shall require all of its subcontractors to hold the Contractor harmless.  The 
Subcontractor’s Certificate of Insurance for general and auto liability shall also name the 
Contractor, not the State, as the certificate holder and additional insured.  The 
Contractor shall maintain Certificates of Insurance for all of its subcontractors. 
 

H. A copy of each appropriate Certificate of Insurance or letter of self-insurance, 
referencing this Agreement number shall be submitted to CDA with this Agreement. 

 
I. The Contractor shall be insured against liability for Worker’s Compensation or 

undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Code and the 
Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance 
of the work under this Agreement.  [Labor Code § 3700] 

 
ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION 
 

A. Termination Without Cause 
 

CDA may terminate performance of work under this Agreement, in whole or in part, 
without cause, if CDA determines that a termination is in the State’s best interest.  CDA 
may terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice to the Contractor.  
The Notice of Termination shall specify the extent of the termination and shall be 
effective ninety (90) days from the delivery of the Notice.  The parties agree that if the 
termination of the Contract is due to a reduction or deletion of funding by the 
Department of Finance (DOF), Legislature or Congress, the Notice of Termination shall 
be effective thirty (30) days from the delivery of the Notice.  The Contractor shall submit 
to CDA a Transition Plan as specified in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The parties agree 
that for the terminated portion of the Agreement, the remainder of Agreement shall be 
deemed to remain in effect and is not void. 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 23 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION (Continued) 
 

B. Termination for Cause 
 

CDA may terminate, in whole or in part, for cause the performance of work under this 
Agreement.  CDA may terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to 
the Contractor.  The Notice of Termination shall be effective thirty (30) days from the 
delivery of the Notice of Termination unless the grounds for termination are due to 
threat to life, health or safety of the public and in that case, the termination shall take 
effect immediately.  The Contractor shall submit to CDA a Transition Plan as specified 
in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The grounds for termination for cause shall include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. In case of threat of life, health or safety of the public, termination of the 

Agreement shall be effective immediately. 
 
2. A violation of the law or failure to comply with any condition of this Agreement. 

 
3. Inadequate performance or failure to make progress so as to endanger 

performance of this Agreement. 
 

4. Failure to comply with reporting requirements. 
 

5. Evidence that the Contractor is in an unsatisfactory financial condition as 
determined by an audit of the Contractor or evidence of a financial condition that 
endangers performance of this Agreement and/or the loss of other funding 
sources. 

 
6. Delinquency in payment of taxes or payment of costs for performance of this 

Agreement in the ordinary course of business. 
 

7. Appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for all or a substantial part of the 
Contractor’s property, or institution of bankruptcy, reorganization or the 
arrangement of liquidation proceedings by or against the Contractor. 

 
8. Service of any writ of attachment, levy of execution, or commencement of 

garnishment proceedings against the Contractor’s assets or income. 
 

9. The commission of an act of bankruptcy. 
 
10. Finding of debarment or suspension.  [Article II.J] 

 
11. The Contractor’s organizational structure has materially changed. 

 
12. CDA determines that the Contractor may be considered a “high risk” agency as 

described in 2 CFR 200.205 and 45 CFR 75.205.  If such a determination is 
made, the Contractor may be subject to special conditions or restrictions. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 24 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION (Continued) 
 

C. Contractor’s Obligation After Notice of Termination 
 

After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as directed by CDA, the Contractor 
shall immediately proceed with the following obligations, as applicable, regardless of 
any delay in determining or adjusting any funds due under this clause. 

 
The Contractor shall: 

 
1. Stop work as specified in the Notice of Termination. 
 
2. Place no further subcontracts for materials or services, except as necessary, to 

complete the continued portion of the Contract. 
 

3. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated. 
 

4. Settle all outstanding liabilities and termination settlement proposals arising from 
the termination of subcontracts, (the approval or ratification of which will be final 
for purposes of this clause). 

 
D. Effective Date 
 

Termination of this Agreement shall take effect immediately in the case of an 
emergency such as threat to life, health, or safety of the public.  The effective date for 
Termination with Cause or for funding reductions is thirty (30) days and Termination 
without Cause is ninety (90) days subsequent to written notice to the Contractor.  The 
notice shall describe the action being taken by CDA, the reason for such action and, 
any conditions of the termination, including the date of termination. 

 
E. Voluntary Termination of Area Plan Agreement (Title III Only) 
 

Pursuant to 22 CCR 7210, the Contractor may voluntarily terminate its contract prior to 
its expiration either by mutual agreement with CDA or upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to CDA.  In case of voluntary termination, the Contractor shall allow CDA up to 
one hundred eighty (180) days to transition services.  The Contractor shall submit a 
Transition Plan in accordance with Exhibit E of this Agreement. 

 
F. Notice of Intent to Terminate by Contractor (All other non-Title III  

Programs) 
 

In the event the Contractor no longer intends to provide services under this Agreement, 
the Contractor shall give CDA Notice of Intent to Terminate.  Such notice shall be given 
in writing to CDA at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the proposed 
termination date.  Unless mutually agreed upon, the Contractor does not have the 
authority to terminate the Agreement.  The Notice of Intent to Terminate shall include  
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 25 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION (Continued) 
 

the reason for such action and the anticipated last day of work.  The Contractor shall 
submit a Transition Plan in accordance with Exhibit E. 

 
G. In the Event of a Termination Notice 
 

CDA will present written notice to the Contractor of any condition, such as, but not 
limited to, transfer of clients, care of clients, return of unspent funds; and disposition of 
property, which must be met prior to termination. 

 
ARTICLE XIII.  REMEDIES 
 

The Contractor agrees that any remedy provided in this Agreement is in addition to and not in 
derogation of any other legal or equitable remedy available to CDA as a result of breach of this 
Agreement by the Contractor, whether such breach occurs before or after completion of the 
project. 
 

ARTICLE XIV.  DISSOLUTION OF ENTITY 
 

The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of any intention to discontinue existence of the 
entity or to bring an action for dissolution. 
 

ARTICLE XV.  AMENDMENTS, REVISIONS OR MODIFICATIONS 
 

A. No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing, signed and approved through the State amendment process in accordance with 
the State Contract Manual.  No oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in this 
Agreement is binding on any of the parties. 

 
B. The State reserves the right to revise, waive, or modify the Agreement to reflect any 

restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by Congress or the Legislature or as 
directed by the Executive Branch of State government. 

 
ARTICLE XVI.  NOTICES 
 

A. Any notice to be given hereunder by either party to the other may be effected by 
personal delivery in writing or by registered or certified mail, overnight mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, provided the Contractor retains receipt, and shall be 
communicated as of actual receipt. 
 

B. Any notice given to CDA for the Contractor’s change of legal name, main address, or 
name of the Director shall be completed by submitting a Std. 204 form to 
AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

  

mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 26 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XVI.  NOTICES (Continued) 
 
C. All other notices with the exception of those identified in Section B of this Article shall be 

addressed to the California Department of Aging, AAA Based Teams, 2880 Gateway 
Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California, 95833.  Notices mailed to the Contractor 
shall be to the address indicated on the coversheet of this Agreement. 

 
D. Either party may change its address by written notice to the other party in accordance 

with this Article. 
 
ARTICLE XVII.  DEPARTMENT CONTACT 
 

A. The name of CDA’s contact to request revisions, waivers, or modifications affecting this 
Agreement, will be provided by the State to the Contractor upon full execution of this 
Agreement. 
 

B. Contractor shall submit to CDA changes to Contractor’s legal name, main address, 
Director, or any key staff to be added or removed from the distribution list by submitting 
a Contact Report to AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. You may request the Contact 
Report by emailing AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

 
ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY 
 

A. Information Assets 
 
The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall have in place operational 
policies, procedures, and practices to protect State information assets, including those 
assets used to store or access Personal Health Information (PHI), Personal Information 
(PI) and  any information protected under the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA), (i.e., public, confidential, sensitive and/or personal 
identifying information) herein referred to as Personal, Sensitive and Confidential 
Information (PSCI) as specified in the State Administrative Manual, 5300 to 5365.3; Cal. 
Gov. Code § 11019.9, DGS Management Memo 06-12; DOF Budget Letter 06-34; and 
CDA Program Memorandum 07-18 Protection of Information Assets and the Statewide 
Health Information Policy Manual. 
 
Information assets may be in hard copy or electronic format and may include but is not 
limited to: 
 
1. Reports 
2. Notes 
3. Forms 
4. Computers, laptops, cellphones, printers, scanners 
5. Networks (LAN, WAN, WIFI) servers, switches, routers 
6. Storage media, hard drives, flash drives, cloud storage 
7. Data, applications, databases 

  

mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov
mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 27 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY (Continued) 
 

B. Encryption of Computing Devices 
 
The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, are required to use 128-Bit encryption 
for PSCI data that is collected and stored under this Agreement that is confidential, 
sensitive, and/or personal information including data stored on all computing devices 
(including but not limited to, workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, 
notebook computers and backup media) and/or portable electronic storage media 
(including but not limited to, discs, thumb/flash drives, portable hard drives, and backup 
media). 

 
C. Disclosure 

 
1. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all PSCI is 

protected from inappropriate or unauthorized access or disclosure in accordance 
with applicable laws, regulations and State policies.   
 

2. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall protect from unauthorized 
disclosure, PSCI such as names and other identifying information concerning 
persons receiving services pursuant to this Agreement, except for statistical 
information not identifying any participant. 

 
3. “Personal Identifying information” shall include, but not be limited to: name; 

identifying number; social security number; state driver’s license or state 
identification number; financial account numbers; and symbol or other identifying 
characteristic assigned to the individual, such as finger or voice print or a 
photograph. 
 

4. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not use PSCI above for 
any purpose other than carrying out the Contractor’s obligations under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor and its Subcontractors are authorized to disclose 
and access identifying information for this purpose as required by OAA. 

 
5. The Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not, except as otherwise 

specifically authorized or required by this Agreement or court order, disclose any 
identifying information obtained under the terms of this Agreement to anyone 
other than CDA without prior written authorization from CDA.  The Contractor 
may be authorized, in writing, by a participant to disclose identifying information 
specific to the authorizing participant. 

 
6. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, may allow a participant to 

authorize the release of information to specific entities, but shall not request or 
encourage any participant to give a blanket authorization or sign a blank release, 
nor shall the Contractor accept such blanket authorization from any participant. 

  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 28 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY (Continued) 
 

D. Security Awareness Training 
 
1. The Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors/Vendors, and volunteers handling 

PSCI must complete the required CDA Security Awareness Training module 
located at https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources within thirty 
(30) days of the start date of the Contract/Agreement, within thirty (30) days of 
the start date of any new employee, Subcontractor, Vendor or volunteer’s 
employment and annually thereafter. 
 

2. The Contractor must maintain certificates of completion on file and provide them 
to CDA upon request. 

 
E. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

 
The Contractor agrees to comply with the privacy and security requirements of HIPAA 
and ensure that Subcontractors/Vendors comply with the privacy and security 
requirements of HIPAA. 
 

F. Information Integrity and Security Statement 
 
The Contractor shall sign and return an Information Integrity and Security Statement 
(CDA 1024) form with this Agreement.  This is to ensure that the Contractor is aware of, 
and agrees to comply with, their obligations to protect CDA information assets, including 
PSCI, from unauthorized access and disclosure. 

 
G. Security Incident Reporting 

 
A security incident occurs when CDA information assets are or reasonably believed to 
have been accessed, modified, destroyed, or disclosed without proper authorization, or 
are lost or stolen.  The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, must comply with 
CDA’s security incident reporting procedure located at 
https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources. 
 

H. Security Breach Notifications 
 
Notice must be given by the Contractor, and/or its Subcontractors/Vendors to anyone 
whose PSCI could have been breached in accordance with HIPAA, the Information 
Practices Act of 1977, and State policy. 

 
I. Software Maintenance 

 
The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall apply security patches and 
upgrades in a timely manner and keep virus software up-to-date on all systems on 
which State data may be stored or accessed. 

  

https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources
https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources


California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 29 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY (Continued) 
 

J. Electronic Backups 
 
The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all electronic 
information is protected by performing regular backups of files and databases and 
ensure the availability of information assets for continued business.  The Contractor, 
and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all data, files and backup files are 
encrypted. 

 
K. Provisions of this Article 

 
The provisions contained in this Article shall be included in all contracts of both the 
Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors. 

 
ARTICLE XIX.  COPYRIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA 
 

A. Copyrights 
 
1. If any material funded by this Agreement is subject to copyright, the State 

reserves the right to copyright such material and the Contractor agrees not to 
copyright such material, except as set forth in Section B of this Article. 
 

2. The Contractor may request permission to copyright material by writing to the 
Director of CDA.  The Director shall grant permission or give reason for denying 
permission to the Contractor in writing within sixty (60) days of receipt of the 
request. 
 

3. If the material is copyrighted with the consent of CDA, the State reserves a 
royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, prepare 
derivative works, publish, distribute and use such materials, in whole or in part, 
and to authorize others to do so, provided written credit is given to the author. 

 
4. The Contractor certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place to 

ensure that State funds will not be used in the performance of this contract for 
the acquisition, operation, or maintenance of computer software in violation of 
copyright laws. 

 
B. Rights in Data 

 
1. The Contractor shall not publish or transfer any materials, as defined in 

paragraph 2 below, produced or resulting from activities supported by this 
Agreement without the express written consent of the Director of CDA.  That 
consent shall be given, or the reasons for denial shall be given, and any 
conditions under which it is given or denied, within thirty (30) days after the 
written request is received by CDA.  CDA may request a copy of the material for 
review prior to approval of the request.  This subsection is not intended to  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 30 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XIX.  COPYRIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA (Continued) 
 
prohibit the Contractor from sharing identifying client information authorized by 
the participant or summary program information which is not client specific. 
 

2. As used in this Agreement, the term “subject data” means writings, sound 
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, designs or graphic representations, 
procedural manuals, forms, diagrams, workflow charts, equipment descriptions, 
data files and data processing or computer programs, and works of any similar 
nature (whether or not copyrighted or copyrightable) which are first produced or 
developed under this Agreement.  The term does not include financial reports, 
cost analyses and similar information incidental to contract administration, or the 
exchange of that information between AAAs to facilitate uniformity of contract 
and program administration on a statewide basis. 

 
3. Subject only to other provisions of this Agreement, the State may use, duplicate, 

or disclose in any manner, and have or permit others to do so subject to State 
and federal law, all subject data delivered under this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE XX.  BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES 
 

A. Needs Assessment 
 
1. The Contractor shall conduct a cultural and linguistic group-needs assessment of 

the eligible client population in the Contractor’s service area to assess the 
language needs of the population and determine what reasonable steps are 
necessary to ensure meaningful access to services and activities to eligible 
individuals.  [22 CCR 98310, 98314] 

 
The group-needs assessment shall take into account the following four (4) 
factors: 
 
a. Number or proportion of persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 

eligible to be served or encountered by the program. 
 

b. Frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program. 
 

c. Nature and importance of the services provided. 
 

d. Local or frequently used resources available to the Contractor. 
 

This group-needs assessment will serve as the basis for the Contractor’s 
determination of “reasonable steps” and provide documentary evidence of 
compliance with Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq.; 2 CCR 11140, 2 CCR 11200 et 
seq., and 22 CCR98300 et seq. 

  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 31 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XX.  BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES (Continued) 
 

2. The Contractor shall prepare and make available a report of the findings of the 
group-needs assessment that summarizes: 
 
a. Methodologies used. 

 
b. The linguistic and cultural needs of non-English speaking or LEP groups. 

 
c. Services proposed to address the needs identified and a timeline for 

implementation.  [22 CCR 98310] 
 

3. The Contractor shall maintain a record of the group-needs assessment on file at 
the Contractor’s headquarters at all times during the term of this Agreement.  [22 
CCR 98310, 98313] 
 

B. Provision of Services 
 
1. The Contractor shall take reasonable steps, based upon the group-needs 

assessment identified in Section A of this Article, to ensure that “alternative 
communication services” are available to non-English speaking or LEP 
beneficiaries of services under this Agreement.  [22 CCR 11162] 
 

2. “Alternative communication services” include, but are not limited to, the provision 
of services and programs by means of the following: 

 
a. Interpreters or bilingual providers and provider staff. 

 
b. Contracts with interpreter services. 

 
c. Use of telephone interpreter lines. 

 
d. Sharing of language assistance materials and services with other 

providers. 
 

e. Translated written information materials, including but not limited to, 
enrollment information and descriptions of available services and 
programs. 
 

f. Referral to culturally and linguistically appropriate community service 
programs. 
 

3. Based upon the findings of the group-needs assessment, the Contractor shall 
ensure that reasonable alternative communication services are available to meet 
the linguistic needs of identified eligible client population groups at key points of 
contact.  Key points of contact include, but are not limited to, telephone contacts, 
office visits and in-home visits. [22 CCR 11162] 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: NM-2324 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 32 of 32 
 

ARTICLE XX.  BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES (Continued) 
 

4. The Contractor shall self-certify to compliance with the requirements of this 
section and shall maintain the self-certification record on file at the Contractor’s 
office at all times during the term of this Agreement.  [22 CCR 98310] 

 
5. The Contractor shall notify its employees of clients’ rights regarding language 

access and the Contractor’s obligation to ensure access to alternative 
communication services when determined appropriate based upon the needs 
assessment conducted by the Contractor.  [22 CCR 98324] 

 
6. Noncompliance with this section may result in suspension or termination of funds 

and/or termination of this Agreement.  [22 CCR 98370] 
 

C. Compliance Monitoring 
 
1. The Contractor shall develop and implement policies and procedures for 

assessing and monitoring the performance of individuals and entities that provide 
alternative communication services to non-English and LEP clients.  [22 CCR 
98310] 
 

2. The Contractor shall monitor, evaluate, and take effective action to address any 
needed improvement in the delivery of culturally and linguistically appropriate 
services.  [22 CCR 98310] 

 
3. The Contractor shall permit timely access to all records of compliance with this 

section.  Failure to provide access to such records may result in appropriate 
sanctions.  [22 CCR 98314] 

 
D. Notice to Eligible Beneficiaries of Contracted Services 

 
1. The Contractor shall designate an employee to whom initial complaints or 

inquiries regarding national origin can be directed.  [22 CCR 98325] 
 

2. The Contractor shall make available to ultimate beneficiaries of contracted 
services and programs information regarding CDA’s procedure for filing a 
complaint and other information regarding the provisions of Cal. Gov. Code § 
11135 et seq.  [22 CCR 98326] 

 
3. The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of a complaint alleging 

discrimination based upon a violation of State or federal law.  [2 CCR 11162, 
22 CCR 98310, 98340] 

 



State of California Award #: NM-2324-16
California Department of Aging Date: 7/1/2023

Page 1 of 1
Exhibit B, Attachment 1 - Budget Display

MODERNIZING OLDER CALIFORNIANS ACT
Budget Display

County of Inyo

July 1, 2023 through March 31, 2026
Program Fund Type Project Number Allocation Adjustment TOTAL

Modernizing Older Californians Act General Fund Various - See Below $86,907 $0 $86,907
Total Year Two $86,907

Notes
AAAs can utilize up to 10% of the funding for Administration. 
Expenditures must be reported in closeout by April 30, 2026.

July 1, 2024 through March 31, 2027
Program Fund Type Project Number Allocation Adjustment TOTAL

Modernizing Older Californians Act General Fund Various - See Below $161,949 $0 $161,949
Total Year Three $161,949

Notes
AAAs can utilize up to 10% of the funding for Administration.  
Expenditures must be reported in closeout by April 30, 2027.

July 1, 2025 through March 31, 2028
Program Fund Type Project Number Allocation Adjustment TOTAL

Modernizing Older Californians Act General Fund Various - See Below $161,949 $0 $161,949
Total Year Four $161,949

Notes
AAAs can utilize up to 10% of the funding for Administration.  
Expenditures must be reported in closeout by April 30, 2028.

July 1, 2026 through March 31, 2029
Program Fund Type Project Number Allocation Adjustment TOTAL

Modernizing Older Californians Act General Fund Various - See Below $161,949 $0 $161,949
Total Year Five $161,949

Notes
AAAs can utilize up to 10% of the funding for Administration.  
Expenditures must be reported in closeout by April 30, 2029.

Program: Year Two Project: Year Two
Nutrition Infrastructure MNIL23
Brown Bag BRBL23
Groceries NGRL23
Intergenerational Activities IGAL23
Title III C-1 and C-2 Meals C12M23

Program: Year Three Project: Year Three
Brown Bag BRBL24
Groceries NGRL24
Intergenerational Activities IGAL24
Title III C-1 and C-2 Meals C12M24

Program: Year Four Project: Year Four
Brown Bag BRBL25
Groceries NGRL25
Intergenerational Activities IGAL25
Title III C-1 and C-2 Meals C12M25

NUTRITION - YEAR TWO 

NUTRITION - YEAR THREE

NUTRITION - YEAR FOUR

NUTRITION - YEAR FIVE



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT  
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)                                                                       

In compliance with California Government Code Section 11019.9, California Civil 

Code Section 1798 et seq., Department of General Services Management Memo  

06-12, and Statewide Information Management Manual (SIMM) 5300 the California 

Department of Aging (CDA) hereby requires the Contractor/Vendor to: 

ACKNOWLEDGE: 

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, or disclosure of Personal, Confidential or 

Sensitive Information (PSCI) is a crime and is prohibited under state and federal 

laws, including but not limited to California Penal Code Section 502, California 

Government Code Section 15619, California Civil Code Section 1798.53 and 

1798.55, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. 

Acknowledge.  

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, disclosure, or modification of PSCI 

information may result in termination of this Contract/Agreement. 

MEET THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS: 

• PSCI information shall be protected from disclosure in accordance with all 

applicable laws, regulations, and policies.  

• PSCI data be protected by authorized access using the principles of least privilege. 

• Any occurrence that actually or potentially jeopardizes the confidentiality, integrity, 

or availability of an information system or the information the system processes, 

stores, or transmits or that constitutes a violation or imminent threat of violation of 

security policies, security procedures or acceptable use policies will immediately be 

reported to CDA by completing a Security Incident Report CDA (1025A and 1025B). 

• All access codes which allow access to confidential information will be properly 

safeguarded. 

• Obligations to protect PSCI information obtained under this Contract/Agreement will 

continue after termination of the Contract/Agreement with CDA.  

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor will complete the required 

Security Awareness Training module located at 

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/ within 30 days of the start date of the 

Contract/Agreement or within 30 days of the start date of any new employee or 

subcontractor.   This training must be completed annually. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor must comply with CDA’s 

confidentiality and data security requirements as outlined in the 

Contract/Agreement. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contract/Vendor must comply with the 

Appendix D, section XVIII encryption and self-certification requirements as outlined 

in the contract.  

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/


Page 2 of 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT 
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)         

CERTIFY: 

To protect PSCI information by: 

• Accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing or modifying PSCI information only for the 
purpose of performing official duties.

• Never accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing, or modifying PSCI information for 
curiosity, personal gain, or any non-business-related reason.

• Securing PSCI information in approved locations.
• Never removing PSCI information from the work site without authorization. 

Meets the encryption requirements in Exhibit D Article 18: 

Is in full compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements.

Is not in compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements and will achieve 

compliance by ___________. 

I hereby certify that I have reviewed this Confidentiality Statement and will comply 

with the above statements.  

Contractor/Vendor Printed Name and Title 

Contractor/Vendor Signature Date 

CDA Program/Project Contract Number 



California Department of Aging NM-2324 Agreement 
Exhibit A, Attachment 1 – General Information 

 

Page 1 of 1 

EXHIBIT A, Attachment 1 
General Information 

 
 
1. The Contractor agrees to provide to the California Department of Aging (CDA) the services 

described in Agreement number NM-2324-16. 
 
2. The services shall be performed in Planning and Service Area(s): 16.  
 
3. The services shall be provided as needed. 
 
4. The project representatives during the term of this Agreement will be: 

 
State Agency: California Department of Aging Contractor: County of Inyo 
Name: Lana Reynolds, Chief 
   Nutrition and Wellness Bureau 

Name: Marilyn Mann, Director, Contracts 
Representative 

Phone: (916) 419-7553 Phone: (760) 878-0232 
Email:     
       CDANutritionandHealthPromotion@aging.ca.gov Email: mmann@inyocounty.us  

 
Direct only contract inquiries to: 
 

State Agency: California Department of Aging Contractor: County of Inyo 
Section/Unit: Subvention Agreements Section/Unit:  
Attention:   Lana Reynolds Attention: Melissa Best-Baker 
Address:    2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, #200 
                  Sacramento, CA 95833 

Address: 1360 North Main Street, Suite 
201 

 Bishop, CA, 93514-3013 
Phone:      (916) 419-7553 Phone: (760) 873-3305 
Email:         
      CDANutritionandHealthPromotion@aging.ca.gov Email:        mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 

 
The parties may change their representatives upon providing ten days written notice to the other 
party. Said changes do not require an amendment to this Agreement. 
 
 

mailto:CDANutritionandHealthPromotion@aging.ca.gov
mailto:CDANutritionandHealthPromotion@aging.ca.gov


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS CERTIFICATION 
CDA 9026 (NEW 04/2018)                                                     

 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, a person that submits a bid or 

proposal to, or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state 

agency with respect to any contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, 

under penalty of perjury, at the time the bid or proposal is submitted or the contract is 

renewed, all of the following: 

 
1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts executed or renewed after 

January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act 

(Section 51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 

12960 of the Government Code); and 

 

2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts executed or renewed 

after January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign 

nation or peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor 

certifies that such policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act 

(Section 51 of the Civil Code) or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 

12960 of the Government Code). 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State 
of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Contractor Name (Printed): Federal ID Number: 

By (Authorized Signature): 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 

Date Executed: Executed in the County and State of: 

Indicate all California Department of Aging contracts your organization participates in: 

 Area Plan (AP)  Financial Alignment (FA) 

 HICAP (HI)  MIPPA (MI) 

 MSSP (MS)  SNAP-Ed (SP) 

 Title V (TV)   

 



Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

Contractor Certification Clauses 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the
nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,



2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment 
on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies that 
no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period 
because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders 
Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract 
Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 
2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of 
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the 
State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, 
other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of 
perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or 
supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced 
in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, 
or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  
The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website 
located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial 
Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts of $100,000 or more,  Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 



Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant 
to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within 
the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State 
with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which 
by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement. 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor shall 
not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the 
State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and 
desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for 
violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally 
determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3810  

 

Modernizing Older Californians Act Supportive Services 
Health & Human Services - ESAAA 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Marilyn Mann, HHS Director Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve the standard agreement with the California Department of Aging in the amount of 
$229,544 for the period beginning January 1, 2023 through March 31, 2026 and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign the standard agreement, the Information Integrity and Security Statement, the Civil 
Rights Certification, and the Contract Certification form.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The legislature amended the OCA in 1996 by establishing new programs and making structural changes 
to service delivery, including establishing state-funded programs and services; defining roles of AAA's, 
Commission on Aging, Senior Legislature, and Advisory Councils; established specific targeting and 
formulas for allocations of base administrative funding of AAA's; transferred contractual and 
administrative responsibilities of the Long Term Care (LTC) Ombudsman and Health Insurance 
Counseling and Advocacy Program from CDA to the AAA's; and established the following OAA 
programs: Access, Nutrition, Supportive Services, Legal Services, Health Promotion/Disease Prevention, 
Careigiver Support Services, LTC Ombudsman, and Senior Community Employment Program.  The 
legislation also established additional community-based services that were not included in the OAA 
funding but, instead were funded through State General Fund and/or Medi-Cal.  These programs 
included:Alzheimer's Day Care Resource CenterBrown Bag programFoster Grandparent 
ProgramLinkagesRespiteSenior CompanionMulti-purpose Senior Services Program 
Locally, Planning Service Area (PSA) 16, currently known as the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging, 
provided some of these additional community-based services including Alzheimer's Day Care Resource 
and Linkages when PSA 16 was known as the Inyo Mono Area Agency on Aging.  Funding for these 
services began to be reduced in the early part of the 2000's and in approximately 2009, funding for PSA 
16's Linkages and Alzheimer's Day Care program was eliminated resulting in a loss of these services in 
Inyo and Mono counties.   
 
The Governor's Master Plan on Aging was released in January 2021 and identified 5 goals and 23 
strategies in recognition of California's changing demographics and increasing numbers of persons aged 
65 and older who are expected to outnumber children under the age of 18 for the first time in history by 
2030.  The Plan recognizes the need for easy access to a strong network of aging and disability services 
to support growing older at home and in communities.  One initiative is Modernizing the Older California 
Act by renewing the state's investment in critical nutrition and support services for our aging population.   
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

The Modernizing OCA Supportive services funding, which our PSA is eligible to receive through March 
2026, provides ESAAA funding that can be used for services such as caregiver respite, Linkages, Senior 
Companion, Alzheimer's Day Care Resource Centers, Aging in Place funding, Senior Volunteer 
Program, Caregiver Support, or Foster Grandparent programming.  HHS met with the ESAAA Advisory 
Council on June 14, 2023 to receive input and interest was expressed in areas of medical support not 
directly identified in the funding but could be met through some case management services, as well as 
funding to support either an Alzheimer's Day Care Resource Center or Aging in Place program options 
such as purchasing individualized supports like durable medical equipment.  Given that the amount 
available is less than $80,000 per year to serve 2 counties, identifying a strategy that maximizes the 
impact will be critical.  The Department is working with our Mono County Contractor to identify the best 
strategy for using this funding.  The Council has recommended that your Board approve this agreement 
and has instructed the two counties to identify the funding focus that will best serve the needs of seniors 
across the AAA.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded (California Department of Aging) Budget Unit 683000 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4552 
Recurrence Multi-year grant  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to accept these funds and Inyo and Mono counties would not be able to 
implement the identified supportive services.   
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Standard Agreement OM-2223-16  
2. Scope of Work, etc. 
3. Budget Display 
4. Project Representatives 
5. Contractor Certification Clauses 
6. Information Integrity and Security Statement 
7. CA Civil Rights Laws Certification 
  
APPROVALS: 
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 6/13/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/13/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/15/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/15/2023 
Noam Shendar Approved - 6/20/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/20/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/20/2023 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/21/2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA – DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES SCO ID: 4170-OM222316 
STANDARD AGREEMENT 
STD 213 (Rev. 04/2020) 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 
OM-2223-16 

PURCHASING AUTHORITY NUMBER (If Applicable) 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the Contracting Agency and the Contractor named below: 
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 
California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTOR NAME  
County of Inyo 
2. The term of this Agreement is: 
START DATE 
1/1/2023 
THROUGH END DATE 
3/31/2026 
3. The maximum amount of this Agreement is: 
   $ 229,544  Two hundred twenty-nine thousand five hundred forty-four and 00/100 dollars 
4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits, which are by this reference made a part of the Agreement.  

Exhibits Title Pages 
 Exhibit A Scope of Work 16 pages 
 Exhibit A, 

Attachment 1 
General Information 1 page 

 Exhibit B Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 7 pages 
 Exhibit B, 

Attachment 1 
Budget Display 1 page 

 Exhibit C General Terms and Conditions – GTC-4/2017* 0 pages 
 Exhibit D Special Terms and Conditions 38 pages 

Items shown with an asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO.    

CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACTOR NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 
County of Inyo 
 
CONTRACTOR BUSINESS ADDRESS 
1360 North Main Street, Suite 201 

CITY 
Bishop 

STATE 
CA 

ZIP 
93514-
3013 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 
 

TITLE 
 

CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 
California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTING AGENCY ADDRESS 
 2880 Gateway Oaks Dr., Suite 200 

CITY 
 Sacramento 

STATE 
 CA 

ZIP 
 95833 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 
Nate Gillen 

TITLE 
Chief, Business Management Bureau 

CONTRACTING AGENCY AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 
 
 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES APPROVAL EXEMPTION (If Applicable) 
 
AG OP 80-111 
 
 

 
Page 1 of 1

Marilyn Mann HHS Director

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources


California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 1 of 16 
 

ARTICLE I. PROGRAM DEFINITIONS 
 

A. Definitions Specific to Aging in Place  
 

1. Aging in Place means a new concept that can result in less injury, retaining 
older adults in their homes and offers a significant cost savings to health care 
insurers, families, and public agencies. Services include but are not limited to 
case management, education, referral services, assessment, home modification 
equipment, injury prevention information, assessment and equipment, durable 
medical equipment, and the authorization of coordinated services to enable an 
eligible individual to continue aging in place within the home. 

 
2. Eligible Service Population means individuals who are sixty (60) years of age 

and older or 18 years of age or older with a disability as defined by the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA); and requires assistance and supplemental 
supports to older adults to remain in their homes and communities as they age, 
rather than relocating or moving into an institutional setting. 

 
3. Target Population means Older Adults aged 60 and older who are not receiving 

institutionalized care and are instead aging in the home with the support and 
supplemental services. 

  
4. Home Modifications means modifications made to homes that are necessary to 

facilitate the ability of older individuals and persons with disabilities to continue 
aging in place within the home. 

 
B. Definitions Specific to Alzheimer’s Day Care Resource Centers (ADCRC) 

 
1. California Welfare and Institutions Code, Division 8.5, Chapter 7.5 (the 

Mello-Granlund Older Californians Act [AB 2800, Statutes of 1996]), is the 
enabling legislation for Alzheimer's Day Care Resource Centers. 
  

2. Alzheimer’s Day Care Resource Center (ADCRC) means a program that 
provides access to specialized day care resource centers for individuals with 
Alzheimer's disease and other dementia-related disorders and supports to their 
families and caregivers, as defined in California Welfare and Institutions Code 
section 9542.  Furthermore, families and caregivers are afforded respite 
opportunities from their caregiving responsibilities while the client engages in 
activities provided by the Day Care Resource Centers. 

  
3. Eligible Service Population means individuals with Alzheimer’s disease or 

other dementia-related disorders or diagnosis, particularly those clients in the 
moderate to severe stages. There is no age, financial, or other qualifying 
eligibility requirements for the participating population.  

 
4. Client means an individual with Alzheimer's disease or a disease of a related 

type, whose care needs and behavioral disorders may make it difficult for the 
individual to participate in existing care programs.  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 2 of 16 
 

ARTICLE I. PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 
 

5. Other Dementia-related Disorders means irreversible brain disorders that 
result in dementia like symptoms. This shall include, but is not limited to, vascular 
dementia and Lewy body dementia with effects such as Parkinson’s disease.  

  
6. “Care Needs” or “Behavioral Problems” means the manifestation of 

symptoms that may include, but are not limited to, memory loss, aphasia 
(communication disorder), becoming lost or disoriented, confusion and agitation, 
hallucinations with the potential for combativeness, and incontinence.  

 
7. Support Groups means support and training for caregivers conducted in a 

group setting and in conjunction with other caregiver activities, no less than 
twelve times per year by staff associated with the ADCRC or in arrangement with 
other support group providers in the local community. 

 
8. Volunteers means unpaid ADCRC staff who have been trained by the ADCRC 

site staff to provide services and assistance to clients onsite, within the ADCRC.  
 

C. Definitions Specific to Caregiver Support for people with Dementia/Alzheimer’s 
 

1. Aging and Disability Resource Center (ADRC) means an ADRC program 
operated by an Area Agency on Aging (AAA) and an Independent Living Center 
(ILC) which provides all the following: 

 
a. Enhanced information and referral services and other assistance at hours 

that are convenient for the public. 
 
b. Options counseling concerning available Long Term Support Service 

programs and public and private benefits programs. 
 

c. Short-term service coordination. 
 

d. Transition services from hospitals to home and from skilled nursing 
facilities to the community. 

 
2. Family Caregiver means an adult (i.e., a person 18 years of age or older) within 

the meaning of Section 302(3) of the Older Americans Act who provides in-home 
and community care assistance to someone who is 60 years of age or older or to 
an individual of any age with Alzheimer’s disease or a dementia-related 
diagnosis with neurological and organic brain dysfunction   

 
3. Family and Caregiver Support Program means a two-year expansion pilot with 

an emerging or designated ADRC. The program will provide screening, family 
support, purchase of supplemental services, and case management to serve 
family caregivers.   
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 3 of 16 
 

4. Caregiver Resource Centers (CRC) means one of the facilities among the 
network of 11 regional resources centers throughout California that offer 
supportive services to family and informal/unpaid caregivers pursuant to 
California Welfare & Institutions Code section 9156 et seq. 
 

5. Dementia/Alzheimer's means a neurological diagnosis that includes loss of 
memory, language, problem-solving and other thinking abilities that are severe 
enough to interfere with daily life. (See, e.g., https://www.alz.org/alzheimers-
dementia/what-is-dementia) 

 
6. Dementia Care Specialist means a specialist who provides individualized 

consultation, staff training, co-facilitates community educational workshops, and 
connects families to existing community resources. This includes referral to other 
services and programs with dementia expertise.  

 
7. Case Management As appropriate, ongoing care or case management to frail 

elderly and functionally impaired adults to help prevent or delay placement in 
nursing facilities.  
 

D. Definitions Specific to Foster Grandparent Program (FGP) 
 

5. Foster Grandparent Program means a program which provides personally 
meaningful volunteer community service opportunities to low-income older 
individuals through mentoring children with exceptional physical, developmental, 
or behavioral needs. (See Cal. Welfare and Institutions Code section 9544). 

 
6. Client means older adults aged 60 years or older providing volunteer services; 

and/or refers to the child being served by the Foster Grandparent volunteer 
through the FGP.  

 
7. Foster Grandparent Volunteer means an individual who is 60 years of age or 

older, is low-income within the meaning of California Welfare & Institutions Code 
section 9544, subd. (b), and provides foster grandparent services at least four 
hours a day, five days per week. Furthermore, “Foster Grandparent Volunteer” 
refers to the person who is paid a stipend for the volunteer services provided. 
 

8. Eligible Service Population means individuals who are 60 years of age or older 
and have insufficient income. 
 

9. Program Requirements means the Foster Grandparent Program requirements 
as stated in California Welfare and Institutions Code section 9544. 

  
10. Stipend means a payment to the Foster Grandparent Volunteer to enable them 

to serve without cost to themselves. The amount of the stipend is set by the 
Corporation for National and Community Service (CNCS) in accordance with 
federal law and the current FY appropriation. 45 CFR 2551.12(s), 83 FR 64636.    

  

https://www.alz.org/alzheimers-dementia/what-is-dementia
https://www.alz.org/alzheimers-dementia/what-is-dementia
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=9544.


California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 4 of 16 
 

 
E. Definitions Specific to Linkages 

 
1. Linkages Program means a care and case management which provides 

services to frail elderly and functionally impaired adults, with priority for 
enrollment given to low-income individuals, to help prevent or delay placement in 
nursing facilities, per WIC section 9545. 

 
2. Eligible Service Population means an adult 18 or older with functional 

impairments, not currently receiving duplicative care management services and 
at risk of institutionalization. They must live in an area served by the Linkages 
Program and be willing to participate.  There are no income criteria. 
 

3. At Risk means an individual that meets at least one of the following conditions: 
 

a. Impairment with completing one or more areas of Activities of Daily Living 
(ADL); or 

b. Impairment with completing two or more Instrumental Activities of Daily 
Living (IADL); or 

c. Be unable to manage his/her own affairs due to emotional and/or cognitive 
impairment; or 

d. Be impaired by virtue of a significant event or circumstance that has 
occurred within the past 12 months.  
 

4. Care or “Case Management" means all the following: 
 

a. As appropriate, ongoing care or case management to frail older adults, 
and adults with functional disabilities/impairments to help prevent or delay 
premature placement in nursing facilities.  
 

b. Client assessment, in conjunction with the development of a service plan 
with the client and other appropriate persons, to provide for needs 
identified by the assessment.  

 
c. Authorization and arrangement for the purchase of services, or referral, 

with follow-up, to volunteer, informal, or third-party payer services. 
Contractors shall maximize, to the fullest extent possible, the use of 
existing services resources before using program funds to purchase 
services for clients. Any benefits received as a result of these purchases 
either shall not be considered income for purposes of programs provided 
for under Division 9 of the California Welfare and Institutions Code 
(commencing with section 10000) or shall not be considered an alternative 
resource pursuant to California Welfare and Institutions Code section 
12301. 
 

d. Service and client monitoring to determine that the services obtained are 
appropriate to need, of acceptable quality, and provided in a timely 
manner. 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 5 of 16 
 

e. Follow-up with clients, including periodic contact and initiation of an interim 
assessment, if deemed necessary, prior to scheduled reassessment.  

 
f. Assistance to older adult clients entering or returning home from nursing 

facilities and who need help to make the transition. 
  

g. Comprehensive and timely information, when necessary, to clients and 
their families about the availability of community resources, to assist 
functionally impaired adults and the fragile older adults to maintain the 
maximum independence permitted by their functional ability.  
 

h. Short-term specialized assistance, including one-time-only assistance in 
securing community resources, counseling, and the arrangement of an 
action plan, when there is a temporary, probable threat to the ability of the 
frail older adult or functionally impaired adult to remain in the most 
independent living arrangement permitted by his or her functional ability.  

 
5. Care planning means the process of developing an agreement between the 

client and care manager regarding identified client needs, outcomes to be 
achieved, and services to be pursued in support of goal achievement. It provides 
a focus for the needs identified in the functional assessment; it organizes the  
delivery system to the client; and it helps to assure that the service being 
delivered is appropriate to the need. 
 

6. Care Manager means a person who must possess a bachelor's degree in social 
work or a related field or possess a Registered Nurse (R.N.) license and have a 
minimum of one year of experience in a health or social services specialty. 

 
7. Responsible Party means a person acting on behalf of a client. 

 
F. Definitions Specific to Caregiver Respite Service 

 
1. Respite Program means a program that will provide temporary or periodic 

services for frail elderly or functionally impaired adults to relieve persons who are 
providing care or recruitment and screening of providers and matching respite 
providers to clients.  

 
2. Caregiver Respite Home Chore means a Respite Care service that includes an 

appropriately skilled provider or volunteer assisting a caregiver with heavy 
housework, yard work, and/or sidewalk and other routine home maintenance (but 
not structural repairs) associated with caregiving responsibilities. 
 

3. Caregiver Respite Homemaker Assistance means a Respite Care service that 
includes the provision of care receiver assistance with meal preparation, 
medication management, using the phone, and/or light housework (along with 
care receiver supervision) by an appropriately skilled provider or volunteer. 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 6 of 16 
 

4. Caregiver Respite In-Home Supervision means a Respite Care service that 
includes the provision of care receiver day and/or overnight supervision and 
friendly visiting by an appropriately skilled provider or volunteer in order to 
prevent wandering and health or safety incidents.   

 
5. Caregiver Respite In-Home Personal Care means a Respite Care service that 

includes the provision of care receiver assistance with eating, bathing, toileting, 
transferring, and/or dressing (along with care receiver supervision and related 
homemaker assistance) by an appropriately skilled provider.  

 
6. Caregiver Respite Out-of-Home Day Care means a Respite Care service 

where the care receiver attends a supervised/protective, congregate setting 
during some portion of a day, and includes assistance with social and 
recreational activities. 

 
7. Caregiver Respite Out-of-Home Overnight Care means a Respite Care 

service where the care receiver is temporarily placed in a supervised/protective, 
residential setting for one or more nights, and may include access to nursing and 
personal care. 

 
G. Definitions Specific to Senior Companion Program (SCP) 

 
1. Senior Companion Program means a program which provides personally 

meaningful volunteer community service opportunities to low-income older 
individuals for the benefit of adults who need assistance in their daily living within 
the meaning of California Welfare and Institutions Code section 9547 
 

2. Client means the senior, adult, or child being served by the Senior Companion 
Volunteer.  

 
3. Senior Companion Volunteer means an individual who is 60 years of age or 

older, has an insufficient income (as understood within the meaning of California 
Welfare and Institutions Code section 9547), and provides senior companion 
services at least four hours a day, five days per week. Senior Companion 
Volunteer refers to the person who is paid a stipend for volunteer services 
provided.  

 
4. Program Requirements means the program requirements for direct service 

contractors (Senior Companion Volunteers) as understood in California Welfare 
and Institutions Code section 9547. Eligibility is limited to those individuals who 
are not eligible for public benefit programs such as In-Home Supportive Services 
(IHSS). 

5. Stipend means a payment to the Senior Companion Volunteer to enable them to 
serve without cost to themselves. The amount of the stipend is set by the 
Corporation for National and Community Service (CNCS) in accordance with 
federal law and the current FY appropriation. 45 CFR 2551.12(s), 83 FR 64636.  

 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 7 of 16 
 

H. Definitions Specific to Senior Volunteer Development and Coordination  
 

1. Senior Volunteer Development and Coordination means the development, 
coordination, and implementation of programs that enable older adults to engage 
in volunteerism opportunities.  

 
2. Senior Volunteer Programs means compensation received by beneficiaries 

who are 60 years of age or older, for volunteer services performed under the 
Retired Senior Volunteer program, the Foster Grandparents program or the Older 
Americans Community Service program of the National Older Americans Act, 
shall be exempt in accordance with sections 10725 and 14124.5, Welfare and 
Institutions Code. Reference: Sections 14005.4 and 14005.7, Welfare and 
Institutions Code. 

 
3. Eligible Service Population means individuals who are 60 years of age or older 

and interested in engaging in volunteerism opportunities. 
 

4. Volunteer Coordination Services means services being provided to address 
challenges faced by older adults who wish to participate in volunteer programs. 
The volunteer coordinator will also serve to help older adults maximize the 
benefits available under the respective senior volunteer programs. The volunteer 
coordination program could be operated directly by the AAA or contracted out to 
an existing or new agency within the community.  

 
ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK - Aging in Place  

 
A. The Contractor shall maintain the following responsibilities applicable to the Aging in 

Place program: 
 

1. Funding services which enable eligible individuals to continue aging in place 
within the home. Equipment, materials and services for this program shall 
include, but not be limited to the following:  

 
a. Durable medical equipment including grab bars, nonskid surfaces, shower 

chairs, raised toilet seats, bedside commodes, and transfer benches. 
b. Indoor and outdoor handrails. 
c. Reconfiguration of furniture and other elements of the physical home 

environment to reduce fall or trip hazards. 
d. Case management. 
e. Education. 
f. Referral services. 
g. Assessment. 
h. Injury prevention information. 
i. Coordinated care services to enable an eligible individual to continue 

aging in place within the home. 
 

2.  The Contractor shall provide services to the Eligible Service Population. 
  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 8 of 16 
 

3.  Contractor shall establish service standards that ensure eligible clients under this 
contract are identified, and that the activities and services provided assist them in 
living safely within their residences.  
 
The standards shall include, but not be limited to a service planning process that 
is target-population based and includes both of the following: 

 
a. An initial assessment determination that demonstrates the need for 

services and supports. 
 

b. Plans for services including outreach, design of injury prevention services, 
coordination, and access to activities, services, and supports. 

 
ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK - Alzheimer’s Day Care Resource Centers 

 
A. The ADCRCs shall maintain the following responsibilities: 
 

1. Services to meet the special care needs of, and address the behavioral problems 
of, Clients. 
 

2. Provide adequate and appropriate staffing to meet the nursing, psychosocial, and 
recreational needs of Clients. 
 

3. Provide physical facilities that include the safeguards necessary to protect the 
Clients’ safety. 
 

4. Provide a program for assisting individuals who cannot afford the entire cost of 
the ADCRC program. This may include, but not be limited to, utilizing additional 
funding sources to provide supplemental aid, and allowing family members to 
participate as volunteers at the applicant’s facility.  
  

5. Utilize and provide adequate training to Volunteers for program and service 
delivery.   

  
6. Maintain family and caregiver support groups.  

  
7. Focus on Clients in the moderate to severe ranges of Alzheimer’s disease or 

other dementia-related disorders or diagnosis.  
  
8. Provide or arrange for a noon meal for Clients.  

 
9. Serve as model centers available to other service providers for onsite training in 

the care of older adult clients with Alzheimer’s disease or other dementia-related 
disorders or diagnosis.  

  
10. Maintain a systemic means of capturing and reporting all required community-

based services and ADCRC program data.  
  



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 9 of 16 
 

B. To the extent possible and within their resources, ADCRC’s are encouraged to also:  
 

1. Contract with local educational programs, such as nursing and gerontology 
programs, to provide onsite training to students. 

 
2. Provide counseling services and referrals to other resources to assist Clients and 

their family members.   
 

3. Involve the center in community outreach activities and provide educational and 
informational materials to the community. 

 
ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK - Caregiver Support for People with Dementia/Alzheimer’s 
 

A.  Contractor participation in the Caregiver Support for People with Dementia/Alzheimer's 
program shall maintain the following responsibilities: 

 
1. Establish a two-year Family and Caregiver Support Program expansion pilot with 

an emerging and/or designated Aging and Disability Resource Connection 
Center (ADRC).  

 
2. Utilize funding to provide dementia care specialist positions at an emerging 

and/or designated Aging and Disability Resource Center that Contractor partners 
with. 

 
3. Provide screening, family support, purchase of supplemental services, case 

management to serve those 60 years of age or older, or an individual of any age 
with Alzheimer’s disease or a dementia-related diagnosis with neurological and 
organic brain dysfunction as well as assisting in the development of dementia 
friendly communities through outreach events and professional consultations. 

  
4. Utilize funding to assist individuals to purchase services and goods related to the 

care of someone with Alzheimer's disease or other dementia-related disorders or 
diagnosis. Funding would be available to provide respite care, adult day care, or 
housing assistance, depending on the person's need for services.  
 

5. Limit eligibility to those individuals who are not eligible for public benefit programs 
such as IHSS. 

 
ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK - Foster Grandparent Program  
 

A. Contractor shall maintain the following responsibilities applicable to the FGP: 
  

1. Ensure Foster Grandparent Volunteers meet the Eligible Service Population 
requirements. 

 
2. Recruit, select, train, and assign staff and Foster Grandparent Volunteers. 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 10 of 16 
 

3. Provide meaningful Foster Grandparent Volunteer service opportunities to low-
income individuals 60 years of age and older. 

 
4. Prioritize serving children under 21 years of age who has special needs or who 

are deprived of normal relationships with adults. (See California Welfare & 
Institutions Code section 9544 (c) (6).)  

 
5. Provide Foster Grandparent Volunteers with the same benefits, transportation, 

stipends (45 CFR § 2552.43), and income exemptions as provided to the foster 
grandparent volunteers funded through the Corporation for National Service. The 
contractor is responsible for tracking and maintaining awareness of any changes 
to the benefits.  

 
6. Provide or arrange for meals, transportation, and supervision for Foster 

Grandparent Volunteers. 
 

B. Contractor shall ensure Foster Grandparent Volunteers receive 20 hours of pre-service 
orientation training prior to starting assignment. Monthly in-service training is required 
thereafter. In-service training should be provided throughout participation of the Foster 
Grandparent Program and should include topics that are relevant to Foster Grandparent 
Volunteer program including but not limited to mentorship, cultural competency and 
inclusivity.  
 

C. Pursuant to California Welfare & Institutions Code section 9544 (c) (7), Contractor shall 
provide services to persons including, but not limited to any of the following:  

  
1. Premature and failure-to-thrive babies, or abused, neglected, or chronically ill 

children in hospitals. 
 
2. Children with Autism, children with cerebral palsy or children with developmental 

disabilities who reside in institutional settings.  
  
3. Disadvantaged children in school or childcare settings. 
   
4. Children or adolescents in correctional institutions. 

 
D. Contractor shall provide Foster Grandparent Volunteers with the following benefits 

(California Welfare and Institutions Code section 9544(d)): 
 

1. A tax-exempt stipend 
 

2. One free meal or meal reimbursement for each day of service 
 

3. Reimbursement for transportation expenses to and from their homes and the 
place where they render their services (this includes reimbursing for bus fees or 
other transportation methods as applicable).  
 

https://www.federalregister.gov/agencies/corporation-for-national-and-community-service


California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 11 of 16 
 

4. Supplemental accident, personal liability and excess automobile insurance 
coverage.   
 

5. An annual physical examination. 
 

6. Personal recognition for the Foster Grandparent Volunteer’s efforts and 
accomplishments. 

 
ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK - Linkages 
 

A. Contractor shall maintain the following responsibilities applicable to the Linkages 
Program: 
 
1. Care and Case Management Processes 
 

a. Initial Phone Call 
b. Intake/Screen 
c. Enrollment Process 

 
2. Assessments 
 

a. Risk Assessment 
b. Conducting Assessment 
c. Assessment Summary 
d. Reassessment  
e. Reassessment Summary 
f. Summary of Inquiry/Enrollment and Assessment/Reassessment 

Documentation 
  
3. Care Planning 
 

a. Documentation in the Client Chart for Referred and Purchased Services 
b. Service Arrangement 

 
4. Monitoring and Follow-up 

 
5. Confidential client file records shall include, but not be limited to the following 

documents: 
 

a. Inquiry Form 
b. Intake/Screen Form 
c. Care Management Application and Informed Consent Form 
d. Authorization to Release Records 
e. Initial Assessment 
f. Needs Assessment (ADL/IADL Functional Grid) 
g. Assessment Summary 
h. Reassessment 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 12 of 16 
 

i. Cognitive Assessment (as indicated: with clinical justification documented) 
(See Section 5.B. Assessment for information.) 

j. Reassessment Summary 
k. Care Plans 
l. Client Progress Notes and other client-related information (e.g., 

correspondence, medical/psychological/social records) 
m. Termination Notice 
n. Release of client information 

 
B. Contractor shall follow Linkages reporting requirements as listed in Article III. Reporting 

Requirements under this Agreement.  
 
ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK - Caregiver Respite Service 
 

A. Eligibility Requirements for Caregiver Respite include: 
 

1. An adult family member 18 and older, or similar, persons who provide in-home 
and community care assistance to someone 60 and older or to an individual of 
any age with Alzheimer’s disease or a related disorder with neurological and 
organic brain dysfunction.  

 
2. Eligibility is limited to those individuals who are not eligible for public benefit 

programs such as IHSS.  
 

B. Direct services contractor shall do either one or more of the following:  
 

1. In acting as a respite care information and referral agency, recruiting and 
screening respite providers and matching respite providers to clients. Respite 
care registries shall consist of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of 
providers, including, but not limited to, individual caregivers, volunteers, adult day 
care services, including adult day health care services provided by licensed 
residential care facilities for the elderly.  

 
2. Arranging for and purchasing respite services for program participants. 

 
3. Maintaining a systematic means of capturing and reporting all required 

community-based service program data. 
 

C. Area Agencies on Aging (AAA) have the option of administering respite through local 
service providers, providing the program directly or contracting with a local agency. 

 
D. The statutory authority for the Program exists under California Welfare and Institutions 

Code section 9546. 
 

 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 13 of 16 
 

ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK - Senior Companion Program 
 

A. Eligibility requirements for Senior Companion Program (SCP) Volunteers include: 
  

1. Must be 60 years of age or older and has an insufficient income (as understood 
within the meaning of California Welfare and Institutions Code section 9547)  

 
2. Must be willing to serve between 20 to 40 hours of service per week to the Client. 

Senior Companion Volunteers can serve up to a maximum of 2,088 hours per 
year.  

 
3. Must be willing to attend 20 hours of pre-service orientation before starting an 

assignment. 
 

B. Contractor shall maintain the following responsibilities applicable to the SCP:  
 

1. Ensure SCP Volunteers meet the eligibility requirements as defined in (A) above.  
 
2. Contractor shall recruit, select, train, and assign staff and Senior Companion 

Program Volunteers. 
 
3. Provide benefits and meaningful volunteer service opportunities to SCP program 

participants. 
 
4. Ensure SCP volunteers prioritize serving target Clients such as those who are 

considered frail, homebound, and/or who reside in institutional settings.  
 
5. Provide SCP volunteers with the same benefits, transportation, stipends, and 

income exemptions as provided to the SCP volunteers funded through the 
Corporation for National Service. The contractor is responsible for tracking and 
maintaining awareness of any changes to the benefits. 

 
6. Provide supervision for SCP volunteers during provision of services in the 

program 
 

C. Contractor shall ensure Senior Companion Program Volunteers receive 20 hours of pre-
service orientation training prior to starting assignment. Monthly in-service training is 
required thereafter. In- service training should be provided throughout participation of 
the Foster Grandparent Program and should include topics that are relevant to Foster 
Grandparent Volunteer program including but not limited to mentorship, cultural 
competency and inclusivity. 

 
D. Senior Companion Program Volunteers shall provide services that include but are not 

limited to any of the following:  
 

1. Older individuals who are homebound due to physical and functional 
impairments. 

https://www.federalregister.gov/agencies/corporation-for-national-and-community-service


California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 14 of 16 
 

2. Older adults who reside in institutional settings such as mental health and skilled 
nursing facilities.  

3. Older individuals who are high risk for isolation.   
4. Older adults who are on waitlists for day care programs. 
 

E. The Contractor shall provide Senior Companion Program volunteers with the following 
benefits (California Welfare and Institutions code section 9544(d)):  
 
1. An hourly tax-exempt stipend. 
2. One free meal or meal reimbursement for each day of service. 
3. Reimbursement for transportation expenses to and from their homes and the 

place where they render their services. This includes reimbursing for bus fees or 
other transportation methods as applicable.  

4. Supplemental accident, personal liability and excess automobile insurance 
coverage.   

5. An annual physical examination. 
6. Personal recognition for the volunteer’s efforts and accomplishments. 
 

F. Senior Companion Program Volunteers assist with activities including but not limited to:  
 
1. Assisting with chores, light housekeeping 
2. Assistance with paying bills 
3. Assistance with grocery shopping 
4. Providing transportation to medical and other appointments 
5. In institutional settings senior companion volunteers can assist with validation 

therapy and encourages participation in prescribed activities designed to help 
encourage independence.  

 
ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF WORK - Senior Volunteer Development and Coordination  
 

A. Contractor shall maintain the following responsibilities applicable to Senior Volunteer 
Development and Coordination efforts:  
 
1. Provide benefits and meaningful volunteer service opportunities to individuals 60 

years of age and older. 
 

2. Ensure volunteer programs have established standards for the effective training 
and supervision of volunteers.  
 

3. Recruit, select, train, and retain volunteers. 
 
4. Hire staff to serve as a Volunteer Coordinator to effectively facilitate the 

established Senior Volunteer Program. 
 

5. Develop effective outreach materials for the recruitment of senior volunteers. 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 15 of 16 
 

6. Senior volunteer opportunities should support existing volunteer programs and 
adapt older adult volunteerism to meet the challenges and lessons learned 
related to service delivery during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
B. Senior Volunteer Programs shall provide the following:  

 
1. Enhance senior volunteer opportunities by building off current programs and 

structures and utilizing the best practices of volunteer management.   
 
2. Enhance senior volunteer opportunities that include intergenerational 

involvement. 
 

3. Develop effective sustainability plans for long term implementation of senior 
volunteer programs as well as the retainment of volunteers.   

 
4. Intentionally and effectively recruit, support, and connect older adults to volunteer 

in settings such as volunteer centers, schools, community sites, libraries, and 
other appropriate volunteer sites.  

 
ARTICLE III. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Contractor shall maintain reporting requirements applicable to the following programs 
via the Online Data Reporting tool process:  

 
1. Aging in Place  
2. Alzheimer’s Day Care Resource Centers (ADCRC) 
3. Caregiver Support for people with Dementia/Alzheimer’s 
4. Foster Grandparent (FGP) 
5. Linkages 
6. Caregiver Respite Service 
7. Senior Companion Program (SCP) 
8. Senior Volunteer Development  

 
B. Contractor shall maintain a systematic means of capturing and reporting all required 

program data as it pertains to the Older Californian Act (OCA) Modernization programs. 
 

C. The Contractor will collect and report on all data elements identified in this Scope of 
Work, and other data as necessary. The reporting periods for the quarterly reports to 
CDA are as follows:  
 
1. Service period July – September, October – December, January – March, April – 

June.  
2. All reports are due by the 15th of each month following the close of the quarter. 

Data reports are due to the CDA Data team at datateam.reports@aging.ca.gov. 
The Contractor agrees to provide supplementary reports, data, and other 
information as requested by CDA.  

 
 

mailto:datateam.reports@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging Agreement #: OM-2223  
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

Page 16 of 16 
 

 
D. To carry out the responsibilities of this Agreement, the Contractor shall: 

 
1. Develop criteria and maintain standards for quality control of the collection and 

reporting of data.  
 

2. Ensure that data entry shall be accomplished by AAA program staff and consistent 
with CDA’s requirements.  

 
3. Ensure that Contractor’s staff collects client data using program specific data 

layouts as provided by the CDA.  
 

4. Ensure that client data collected in hard copy is accurate before data is entered 
into the Online Data Reporting tool.  

 
5. Ensure that data entry staff is trained and knowledgeable to enter data accurately 

and completely.  
 

6. Accommodate the CDA regarding changes to gathering and/or reporting data and 
any associated procedural layouts. 

 
7. Ensure data collected is retained based on the requirements of the Agreement as it 

pertains to the established records retention period.



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: OM-2223 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 1 of 7 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS 
 

A. Expenditure of Funds 
 

1. The Contractor shall expend all funds received hereunder in accordance with this 
Agreement. 
 

2. Any reimbursement for authorized travel and per diem shall be at rates not to 
exceed those amounts paid by the State in accordance with the California 
Department of Human Resources’ (CalHR) rules and regulations. 
 
In State: Mileage/Per Diem (meals and incidentals)/Lodging 

http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-
reimbursements.aspx 
 

Out of State:  http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/Home/ManualItem/1/2201 
 
This is not to be construed as limiting the Contractor from paying any differences 
in costs, from funds other than those provided by CDA, between the CalHR rates 
and any rates the Contractor is obligated to pay under other contractual 
agreements. No travel outside the state of California shall be reimbursed unless 
prior written authorization is obtained from the State. [SCM 3.17.2.A(4)] 

The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it enters into 
with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

3. CDA reserves the right to refuse payment to the Contractor or disallow costs for 
any expenditure, as determined by CDA to be out of compliance with this 
Agreement, unrelated or inappropriate to contract activities, when adequate 
supporting documentation is not presented, or where prior approval was required 
but was either not requested or not granted. 
 

B. Accountability for Funds 
 
1. The Contractor shall maintain accounting records for funds received under the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement. These records shall be separate from 
those for any other funds administered by the Contractor and shall be maintained 
in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and Procedures.  
 

2. Financial Management Systems: The Contractor shall meet the following 
standards for its financial management systems:  
 
a. Financial Reporting. 

 
b. Accounting Records. 

 

http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx
http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx
http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/Home/ManualItem/1/2201


California Department of Aging  Agreement #: OM-2223 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 2 of 7 

 
c. Complete Disclosure. 

 
d. Source Documentation. 

 
e. Internal Control. 

 
f. Budgetary Control. 

 
g. Cash Management (written procedures). 

 
h. Allowable Costs (written procedures). 

 
C. Unexpended Funds 

 
Upon termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or dissolution of the 
entity, the Contractor shall return to the State immediately upon written demand, any 
funds provided under this Agreement, which are not payable for goods or services 
delivered prior to the termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or the 
dissolution of the entity. 
 

D. Funding Contingencies 
 
1. It is understood between the parties that this Agreement may have been written 

before ascertaining the availability or appropriation of funds, for the mutual 
benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would 
occur if this Agreement were executed after that determination was made. 

 
2. This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made 

available to the State through the Budget Acts of the appropriate fiscal years for 
purposes of this program(s). In addition, this Agreement is subject to any 
additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by the Congress or the 
Legislature that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this Agreement in 
any manner. 

 
3. Limitation of State Liability 

 
Payment for performance by the Contractor shall be dependent upon the 
availability of future appropriations by the Legislature or Congress for the 
purposes of this Agreement and approval of an itemized Budget. No legal liability 
on the part of the State for any payment may arise under this Agreement until 
funds are made available; the itemized Budget is received and approved by the 
State and the Contractor has received an executed Agreement. 

 
  



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: OM-2223 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 3 of 7 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS (Continued) 
 

4. Funding Reduction(s) 
 
a. If funding for any State fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Department 

of Finance, Legislature, or Congress for the purposes of this program, the 
State shall have the option to either: 
 
i. Terminate the Agreement pursuant to Exhibit D, Article XII., A of 

this Agreement, or 
 

ii. Offer an Agreement amendment to the Contractor to reflect the 
reduced funding for this Agreement. 

 
b. In the event the State elects to offer an amendment, it shall be mutually 

understood by both parties that: 
 
i. The State reserves the right to determine which agreements, if any, 

under this program shall be reduced. 
 

ii. Some agreements may be reduced by a greater amount than 
others, and 

 
iii. The State shall determine at its sole discretion the amount that any 

or all of the agreements shall be reduced for the fiscal year. 
 
ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 
 

A. The Contractor shall be compensated for expenses only as itemized in the approved 
Budget and shall not be entitled to payment for these expenses until this Agreement is 
approved and executed by CDA. The approved Budget is hereby incorporated by 
reference into this Agreement as part of Exhibit B. 
 

B. The Budget must set forth in detail the items, unit rates and extended total amounts for 
each line item. The Contractor's Budget shall include, at a minimum, the following items 
under this Agreement: 

 
1. Personnel Costs. For each personnel classification, monthly, weekly, or hourly 

rates, as appropriate together with the percentage of time to be charged to this 
Agreement and personnel classifications. 
 

2. Fringe Benefits 
 

3. Contractual costs – subcontract cost detail 
 
 



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: OM-2223 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 4 of 7 

ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 
 

4. Indirect costs - costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than 
one cost objective and not readily assignable to the cost 
 

5. Rent 
 

6. Supplies 
 

7. Equipment/Property - detailed descriptions and total costs. 
 

8. In State Travel - mileage reimbursement rate, lodging, per diem and other costs. 
 

9. Out of State Travel – any travel outside the State of California including mileage 
reimbursement rate, lodging, per diem and other costs. 

 
10. Training. 

 
11. Other Costs - a detailed list of other operating expenses. 

 
ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS 
 

A. Program Income 
No Program Income is required under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

B. One-Time-Only (OTO) Funds 
No One-Time-Only funding is associated with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
C. Matching Contributions 

No match is required under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

D. Administration 
Contractor Administration shall be no more than ten percent (10%) of the total program 
allocation. 
 

E. Equipment 
Equipment/Property with per unit cost over $5,000 or any computing devices, 
regardless of cost requires justification from the Contractor and approval from CDA. To 
request approval for specific equipment items, requests with justifications shall be sent 
to cdaequipment@aging.ca.gov. Such items must also be included in Contractor’s 
approved budgets. Please note an approved budget is not approval for equipment 
purchase. 

  

mailto:cdaequipment@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging  Agreement #: OM-2223 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 5 of 7 

ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS (Continued) 
 

F. Indirect Costs 
 
1. The maximum reimbursement amount allowable for indirect costs is ten percent 

(10%) of the Contractor’s and/or Subcontractor’s Modified Total Direct Costs 
(MTDC), excluding in-kind contributions and nonexpendable equipment, unless 
there is an accepted negotiated rate. [45 CFR 75.414 (c) (1) and (f)]. Indirect 
costs shall not exceed 10% of the Contractor’s MTDC per funding category. 

 
2. Contractors requesting reimbursement for indirect costs shall retain on file an 

approved indirect cost rate or an allocation plan documenting the methodology 
used to determine the indirect costs. 
 

3. For major institutes of higher education and major nonprofit organizations, 
indirect costs must be classified within two broad categories: “Facilities” and 
“Administration.” “Facilities” is defined as depreciation on buildings, equipment 
and capital improvement, interest on debt associated with certain buildings, 
equipment and capital improvements, and operations and maintenance 
expenses.  “Administration” is defined as general administration and general 
expenses such as the director's office, accounting, personnel and all other types 
of expenditures not listed specifically under one of the subcategories of 
“Facilities” (including cross allocations from other pools, where applicable).  [45 
CFR 75.414(a)] 

 
ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 
 

A. The original Agreement budget is due electronically to the Contractor’s CDA Local 
Finance Analyst no later than thirty (30) days from the date of the transmission of the 
Budget Display and Agreement. 
 

B. The final date to submit a revised budget shall be no later than sixty (60) days prior to 
the end of the Agreement period unless otherwise specified by CDA. 

 
C. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor shall submit a budget, which shall 

be incorporated by reference into the Subcontract and will have, at a minimum, the 
categories listed in Exhibit B above. 
 

D. Funds made available under this Agreement shall supplement, and not supplant, any 
federal, State, or local funds expended by a State or unit of general-purpose local 
government. 
 



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: OM-2223 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 6 of 7 

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 
 

E. Categorical Budget Transfers 
The Contractor may transfer Agreement funds between budget categories (Direct 
Costs, Administration, Indirect Costs and Contractual Costs) under the following terms 
and conditions: 
 
1. The Contractor shall submit a revised budget to CDA when one or the cumulative 

categorical budget transfers exceeds twenty-five percent (25%) of the total 
budget. 
 

2. The Contractor shall maintain a written record of all budget changes and clearly 
document all budget changes. Such record shall include the date, amount, and 
purpose of the transfer. This record shall be available to CDA upon request and 
shall be maintained in the same manner as all other financial records of the 
Contractor. 

 
ARTICLE V.  PAYMENTS 
 
The State shall reimburse Contractor with Aging in Place, Alzheimer’s Day Care Resource Centers, 
Caregiver Support for people with Dementia/Alzheimer’s, Foster Grandparent Program, Linkages, 
Caregiver Respite, Senior Companion Program, and Senior Volunteer Development funding that has 
been appropriated, designated, encumbered, or otherwise made available for payment by the State 
under this Agreement. The following applies to all funding within this Agreement: 

 
A. The Contractor shall submit monthly expenditures in an electronic format, utilizing the 

CDA online Local Finance Reporting System, no later than the last business day of 
each month unless otherwise specified by CDA, reporting costs and funding for the 
month prior. 

 
B. Payments will be made to reimburse monthly expenditures reported. CDA shall process 

and approve reported expenditures that are based upon actual, not estimated 
expenditures. CDA shall notify the Contractor of any disputed expenditures. 
 

C. Contractors shall notify CDA if they wish to be on a reimbursement or advanced 
payment. 

 
1. If Contractor requests reimbursement payment, CDA shall not advance one-sixth 

of the approved total allocated budget amount for the initial month of the 
Agreement. Payments shall be based on monthly expenditure reports as outlined 
in this section. 

 
2. If Contractor requests an advance payment, CDA shall advance one-sixth of the 

approved total allocated budget amount for the initial month of the Agreement. 
Future payments shall be based on monthly expenditure reports as outlined in 
this section. 



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: OM-2223 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 7 of 7 

D. The Contractor shall submit timely expenditures to CDA. Late expenditures may lead to 
a delay in payment until the following month. 
 

E. Upon written request by CDA, Contractor shall submit additional documentation or 
justification to support the reported expenditure. 

 
F. Contractor shall be charged $75 per program funding source(s) for expedited payments 

to recover the fees charged by the State Controller’s Office.  CDA may waive the fees 
on a case-by-case basis as appropriate. 
 
1. Expedite Fees 
 

a. If the Agreement is executed late to no fault of CDA then the Contractor 
may be liable for the incurred processing fees. 
 

b. If the Agreement is executed late due to CDA’s handling, then CDA shall 
cover the incurred processing fees. 

 
G. The Contractor shall ensure, to the extent feasible, that all budgeted funds are 

expended by the expiration of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VI.  CLOSEOUT 
 

A. Separate Financial Closeout Reports for Aging in Place, Alzheimer’s Day Care 
Resource Centers, Caregiver Support for people with Dementia/Alzheimer’s, Foster 
Grandparent Program, Linkages, Caregiver Respite, Senior Companion Program, and 
Senior Volunteer Development funding and the Program Property Inventory Certification 
(CDA 9024) shall be submitted when either the total Agreement allocation has been 
expended, or 30 days after the expiration of this Agreement, whichever is earlier.  
 

B. Final expenditures must be reported to CDA in accordance with the Budget Display in 
Exhibit B. If the expenditures reported by the Contractor exceed the advanced amount, 
CDA will reimburse the difference to the Contractor up to the Agreement amount. If the 
expenditures reported by the Contractor are less than the advanced amount, CDA will 
invoice the Contractor for the unspent funds. 

 
The payment on the invoice is due immediately upon receipt or no later than 30 days 
from the date on the invoice.



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 1 of 38 
 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS 
 

A. General Definitions 
 
1. “Agreement” or “Contract” means the Standard Agreement (Std. 

213), Exhibits A, B, C, D and E, an approved Budget Display as 
identified in Exhibit B, and if applicable, a Work Plan or Budget 
Summary, which are hereby incorporated by reference, 
amendments, and any other documents incorporated by reference, 
unless otherwise provided for in this Article. 

2. “Contractor” means the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) awarded 
funds under this Agreement and is accountable to the State and/or 
federal government for use of these funds and is responsible for 
executing the provisions for services provided under this 
Agreement. 

3. “CCR” means California Code of Regulations. 

4. “CFR” means Code of Federal Regulations. 

5. “UEI” means the Unique Entity ID - a 12-character alphanumeric ID 
assigned to an entity by SAM.gov on April 4, 2022. As part of this 
transition, the DUNS number has been removed from SAM.gov and 
entity registration, searching, and data entry in SAM.gov now 
require use of the new Unique Entity ID. 

6. “Cal. Gov. Code” means California Government Code. 

7. “OMB” means the federal Office of Management and Budget. 

8. “Cal. Pub. Con. Code” means the California Public Contract Code. 

9. “Cal. Civ. Code” means California Civil Code 

10. “Reimbursable item” also means “allowable cost” and 
“compensable item.” 

11. “State” and “Department” mean the State of California and the 
California Department of Aging (CDA) interchangeably. 

12. “Subcontractor” means the legal entity that receives funds from the 
Contractor to carry out part of a federal award identified in this 
Agreement. 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 2 of 38 
 

13. “Subcontract” means any form of legal agreement between the 
Contractor and the Subcontractor, including an agreement that the 
Contractor considers a contract, including vendor type Agreements 
for providing goods or services under this Agreement. 

14. “Vendor” means an entity selling goods or services to the 
Contractor or Subcontractor during the Contractor or 
Subcontractor’s performance of the Agreement. 

15. “USC” means United States Code. 
 

16. “HHS” means United States Department of Health and Human 
Services. 

 
17. “OAA” means Older Americans Act. 

 
18. “Allocation” means the process of assigning a cost, or a group of 

costs, to one or more cost objective(s), in reasonable proportion to 
the benefit provided or other equitable relationship. The process 
may entail assigning a cost(s) directly to a final cost objective or 
through one or more intermediate cost objectives. (2 CFR 200.4 
and 45 CFR 75.2) 

 
19. “Disallowed costs” means those charges determined to be 

unallowable, in accordance with the applicable Federal statutes, 
regulations, or the terms and conditions of the Federal award. (2 
CFR 200.31 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

20. “Questioned Costs” means a cost that is questioned by the auditor 
because of an audit finding which resulted from a violation or 
possible violation of a statute, regulation, or the terms and 
conditions of a Federal award, including for funds used to match 
Federal funds; where the costs, at the time of the audit, are not 
supported by adequate documentation; or where the costs incurred 
appear unreasonable and do not reflect the actions a prudent 
person would take in the circumstances. (2 CFR 200.84 and 45 
CFR 75.2). 

21. “Recoverable cost” means the state and federal share of the 
questioned cost. 

 

 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 3 of 38 
 

B. Resolution of Language Conflicts 

The terms and conditions of this federal award and other requirements 
have the following order of precedence, if there is any conflict in what they 
require: 

1. The Grant Terms and Conditions. 

2. The Older Americans Act and other applicable federal statutes and 
their implementing regulations. 

3. If applicable, the Older Californians Act and other California State 
codes and regulations. 

4. Standard Agreement (Std. 213), all Exhibits and any amendments 
thereto. 

5. Any other documents incorporated herein by reference including, if 
applicable, the federal HHS terms and conditions found in Part II of 
the HHS Grant Policy Statement. The HHS Grant Policy Statement 
is available under the HHS Policy Requirements Topic at 
https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-
regulations/index.html.  

6. Program memos and other guidance issued by CDA. 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES 
 

A. Law, Policy and Procedure, Licenses, and Certificates 
 
The Contractor agrees to administer this Agreement and require any 
subcontractors to administer their subcontracts in accordance with this 
Agreement, and with all applicable local, State, and federal laws and 
regulations including, but not limited to, discrimination, wages and hours of 
employment, occupational safety, and to fire, safety, health, and sanitation 
regulations, directives, guidelines, and/or manuals related to this 
Agreement and resolve all issues using good administrative practices and 
sound judgment.  The Contractor and its subcontractors shall keep in 
effect all licenses, permits, notices, and certificates that are required by 
law. 

 
B. Subcontracts 

The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all 
subcontractors to comply with all applicable State and federal laws. 

 

https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html
https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html


California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 4 of 38 
 

C. Nondiscrimination  

The Contractor shall comply with all federal statutes relating to 
nondiscrimination.  These include those statutes and laws contained in the 
Contractor Certification Clauses (CCC 307), which is hereby incorporated 
by reference.  In addition, the Contractor shall comply with the following: 
 
1. Equal Access to Federally Funded Benefits, Programs and 

Activities 
The Contractor shall ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 [42 USC 2000d; 45 CFR 80], which prohibits 
recipients of federal financial assistance from discriminating against 
persons based on race, color, religion, or national origin. 
 

2. Equal Access to State-Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 
The Contractor shall, unless exempted, ensure compliance with the 
requirements of Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq., and 2 CCR § 
11140 et seq., which prohibit recipients of state financial assistance 
from discriminating against persons based on race, national origin, 
ethnic group identification, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, 
color, or disability.  [22 CCR § 98323] 
 

3. California Civil Rights Laws 
The Contractor shall, ensure compliance with the requirements of 
California Public Contract Code § 2010 by submitting a completed 
California Civil Rights Laws Certification, prior to execution of this 
Agreement. The certificate is available at: 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx.  

 
The California Civil Rights Laws Certification ensures Contractor 
compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 51) 
and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 
12960) and ensures that Contractor internal policies are not used in 
violation of California Civil Rights Laws. 

 
4. The Contractor assures the State that it complies with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination based on disability, as well as all applicable 
regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA.  [42 USC 
12101 et seq.] 
 

5. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all 
contracts it enters into with subcontractors to provide services 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx


California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 5 of 38 
 

D. Standards of Work 
 
The Contractor agrees that the performance of work and services 
pursuant to the requirements of this Agreement shall conform to accepted 
professional standards. 
 

E. Conflict of Interest 
 
1. The Contractor shall prevent employees, consultants, or members 

of governing bodies from using their positions for purposes 
including, but not limited to, the selection of subcontractors, that 
are, or give the appearance of being, motivated by a desire for 
private gain for themselves or others, such as family, business, or 
other ties.  In the event that the State determines that a conflict of 
interest exists, any increase in costs associated with the conflict of 
interest may be disallowed by the State and such conflict may 
constitute grounds for termination of the Agreement. 
 

2. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit employment of 
persons with whom the Contractor’s officers, agents, or employees 
have family, business, or other ties, so long as the employment of 
such persons does not result in a conflict of interest (real or 
apparent) or increased costs over those associated with the 
employment of any other equally qualified applicant, and such 
persons have successfully competed for employment with the other 
applicants on a merit basis. 

 
F. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

 
1. The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been 

employed or retained to solicit this Agreement.  There has been no 
agreement to make commission payments in order to obtain this 
Agreement. 

 
2. For breach or violation of this warranty, CDA shall have the right to 

terminate this Agreement without liability or at its discretion to 
deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise 
recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingency fee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 6 of 38 
 

G. Payroll Taxes and Deductions 
 
The Contractor shall promptly forward payroll taxes, insurances, and 
contributions, including State Disability Insurance, Unemployment 
Insurance, Old Age Survivors Disability Insurance, and federal and State 
income taxes withheld, to designated governmental agencies as required 
by law. 

 
H. Facility Construction or Repair 

 
This section applies only to Title III funds and not to other funds allocated 
to other Titles under the OAA.  Title III funds may be used for facility 
construction or repair. 

 
1. When applicable for purposes of construction or repair of facilities, 

the Contractor shall comply with the provisions contained in the 
following and shall include such provisions in any applicable 
agreements with subcontractors: 
 
a. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act.  [18 USC 874, 40 USC 3145] 

[29 CFR 3] 
 

b. Davis-Bacon Act.  [40 USC 3141 et seq.] [29 CFR 5] 
 

c. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 
[40 USC 3701 et seq.] [29 CFR  5, 6, 7, 8] 

 
d. Executive Order 11246 of September 14, 1965, entitled 

“Equal Employment Opportunity” as amended by Executive 
Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, as supplemented in 
Department of Labor Regulations.  [41 CFR 60] 

 
2. Payments are not permitted for construction, renovation, alteration, 

improvement, or repair of privately-owned property which would 
enhance the owner’s value of such property except when permitted 
by law and by CDA. 
 

3. When funding is provided for construction and non-construction 
activities, the Contractor must obtain prior written approval from 
CDA before making any fund or budget transfers between 
construction and non-construction. 

 

 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 7 of 38 
 

I. Contracts in Excess of $100,000 
 
If all funding provided herein exceeds $100,000, the Contractor shall 
comply with all applicable orders or requirements issued under the 
following laws: 

 
1. Clean Air Act, as amended.  [42 USC 7401] 

 
2. Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended.  [33 USC 1251 et 

seq.] 
 

3. Environmental Protection Agency Regulations.  [40 CFR 29] 
[Executive Order 11738] 

 
4. State Contract Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code §10295 et seq.] 

 
5. Unruh Civil Rights Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code § 2010] 

 
J. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters 
 

1. The Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that 
it and its subcontractors: 
 
a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 

disbarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
covered transactions by any federal department or agency. 
 

b. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this 
Agreement, been convicted of, or had a civil judgment 
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal 
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or 
performing a public (federal, State, or local) transaction or 
contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or 
State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, 
making false statements, or receiving stolen property. 

 
c. Are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or 

civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, State, or 
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification. 

 
d. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this 

Agreement, had one or more public transactions (federal, 
State, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 8 of 38 
 

2. The Contractor shall report immediately to CDA in writing, any 
incidents of alleged fraud and/or abuse by either the Contractor or 
subcontractors. 
 

3. The Contractor shall maintain any records, documents, or other 
evidence of fraud and abuse until otherwise notified by CDA. 
 

4. The Contractor agrees to timely execute any and all amendments 
to this Agreement or other required documentation relating to the 
Subcontractor’s debarment/suspension status. 

 
K. Agreement Authorization 

 
1. If a public entity, the Contractor shall submit to CDA a copy of an 

approved resolution, order, or motion referencing this Agreement 
number authorizing execution of this Agreement.  If a private 
nonprofit entity, the Contractor shall submit to CDA an authorization 
by the Board of Directors to execute this Agreement, referencing 
this Agreement number. 

 
2. These documents, including minute orders must also identify the 

action taken. 
 

3. Documentation in the form of a resolution, order, or motion by the 
Governing Board of the AAA is required for the original and each 
subsequent amendment to this Agreement.  This requirement may 
also be met by a single resolution from the Governing Board of the 
Contractor authorizing the AAA Director or designee to execute the 
original and all subsequent amendments to this Agreement. 

 
L. Contractor’s Staff 

 
1. The Contractor shall maintain adequate staff to meet the 

Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement. 
 

2. This staff shall be available to the State for training and meetings 
which the State may find necessary from time to time. 

 
M. UEI Number and Related Information 

 
1. The Unique Entity Identifier changed from the DUNS Number to the 

Unique Entity ID (generated by SAM.gov) on April 4, 2022. The UEI 
number must be provided to CDA prior to the execution of this 
Agreement. Business entities may register for a UEI number at 
https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei. 

 

https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei


California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 9 of 38 
 

2. The Contractor must register the UEI number and maintain an 
“Active” status within the federal System for Award Management 
available online at https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1. 

 
3. If CDA cannot access or verify “Active” status the Contractor’s UEI 

information, which is related to this federal subaward on the 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Subaward 
Reporting System (SAM.gov) due to errors in the Contractor’s data 
entry for its UEI number, the Contractor must immediately update 
the information as required. 

 
N. Corporate Status 

 
1. The Contractor shall be a public entity, private nonprofit entity, or 

Joint Powers Authority (JPA).  If a private nonprofit corporation or 
JPA, the Contractor shall be in good standing with the Secretary of 
State of California and shall maintain that status throughout the 
term of this Agreement. 
 

2. The Contractor shall ensure that any subcontractors providing 
services under this Agreement shall be of sound financial status. 

 
3. Any subcontracting private entity or JPA shall be in good standing 

with the Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that 
status throughout the term of this Agreement. 

 
4. Failure to maintain good standing by the contracting entity shall 

result in suspension or termination of this Agreement with CDA until 
satisfactory status is restored.  Failure to maintain good standing by 
a subcontracting entity shall result in suspension or termination of 
the subcontract by the Contractor until satisfactory status is 
restored. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1


California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 10 of 38 
 

O. Lobbying Certification 
 

The Contractor, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, that: 
 
1. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by 

or on behalf of the Contractor, to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency; a 
Member of Congress; an officer or employee of Congress; or an 
employee of a Member of Congress; in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract; the making of any federal grant; 
the making of any federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement; and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 
or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement. 
 

2. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid 
or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 
of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Contractor shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions. 
 

3. The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification 
be included in the award documents for all subcontracts at all tiers 
(including contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements which exceed $100,000) and that all subcontractors 
shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 

4. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which 
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered 
into. 

 
5. This certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 

transaction imposed by 31 USC 1352. 
 

6. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 11 of 38 
 

P. The Contractor and its Subcontractor/Vendors shall comply with 
Governor’s Executive Order 2-18-2011, which bans expenditures on 
promotional and marketing items colloquially known as “S.W.A.G.” or 
“Stuff We All Get.” 
 

ARTICLE III.  AGREEMENT 
 

A copy of this executed Agreement is on file and available for inspection at the 
California Department of Aging, 2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200, 
Sacramento, California 95833. 

 
ARTICLE IV.  COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 
 

Should the Contractor or subcontractor begin work in advance of receiving notice 
that this Agreement is approved, that work may be considered as having been 
performed at risk as a volunteer and may not be reimbursed or compensated. 

 
ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS 
 

A. The Contractor is responsible for carrying out the terms of this Agreement, 
including the satisfaction, settlement, and resolution of all administrative, 
programmatic, and fiscal aspects of the program(s), including issues that 
arise out of any subcontracts, and shall not delegate or contract these 
responsibilities to any other entity.  This includes, but is not limited to, 
disputes, claims, protests of award, or other matters of a contractual 
nature.  The Contractor’s decision is final, and the Subcontractor has no 
right of appeal to CDA. 
 

B. The Contractor shall, in the event any subcontractor is utilized by the 
Contractor for any portion of this Agreement, retain the prime 
responsibility for all the terms and conditions set forth, including but not 
limited to, the responsibility for preserving the State’s copyrights and rights 
in data in accordance with Article XIX of this Exhibit, for handling property 
in accordance with Article VII. of this Exhibit, and ensuring the keeping of, 
access to, availability of, and retention of records of subcontractors in 
accordance with Article VI. of this Exhibit. 

 
C. The Contractor shall not obligate funds for this Agreement in any 

subcontracts for services beyond the ending date of this Agreement. 
 

D. The Contractor shall have no authority to contract for, or on behalf of, or 
incur obligations on behalf of the State. 

 
E. The Contractor shall maintain on file copies of subcontracts, 

memorandums and/or Letters of Understanding which shall be made 
available for review at the request of CDA. 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 12 of 38 
 

 
F. The Contractor shall monitor the insurance requirements of its 

subcontractors in accordance with Article XI of this Exhibit. 
 

G. The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all 
subcontractors to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the Contractor, its 
officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims and losses 
accruing to or resulting from any subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and 
any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing or supplying work 
services, materials, or supplies in connection with any activities performed 
for which funds from this Agreement were used and from any and all 
claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation 
who may be injured or damaged by the Subcontractor(s) in the 
performance of this Agreement. 

 
H. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor will complete all 

reporting and expenditure documents requested by CDA.  These reporting 
and expenditure documents shall be sent to the Contractor in a timely 
manner and at intervals as determined by CDA. 

 
I. The Contractor shall, prior to the awarding of a subcontract to any for-

profit entity, submit the following to CDA for review and approval: 
 

1. The Request for Proposal (RFP) or Invitation for Bid. 
2. All bid proposals received. 
3. The proposal or bid evaluation documentation, along with the 

Contractor’s rationale for awarding the subcontract to a for-profit 
entity.  [22 CCR 7362] 

4. Description and documentation of dissemination of information 
concerning the RFP to elicit adequate competition. [22 CCR 7356] 
 

Where a program may be subcontracted to a for-profit organization, the 
Contractor should include in its contract with the for-profit entity, a 
requirement for performance of a program-specific audit of the 
subcontracted program by an independent audit firm. 
 

J. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors to maintain adequate staff 
to meet the Subcontractor’s Agreement with the Contractor.  This staff 
shall be available to the State for training and meetings which the State 
may find necessary from time to time. 
 

K. If a private nonprofit corporation, the Subcontractor shall be in good 
standing with the Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that 
status throughout the term of the Agreement. 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 13 of 38 
 

L. The Contractor shall refer to 2 CFR 200.330, Subpart D - Subrecipient and 
Contractor Determinations and 45 CFR 75.351, Subpart D - Subrecipient 
and Contractor Determinations in making a determination if a 
subcontractor relationship exists.  If such a relationship exists, then the 
Contractor shall follow the procurement requirements in the applicable 
OMB Circular. 

 
M. The Contractor shall utilize procurement procedures as follows: 

 
1. The Contractor shall obtain goods and services through open and 

competitive awards.  Each Contractor shall have written policies and 
procedures, including application forms, for conducting an open and 
competitive process, and any protests resulting from the process. 
 

2. For goods and services purchased with Title III or Title VII funds, the 
procurement procedures must include, at a minimum, the requirements 
set forth in 22 CCR 7352.  The only exception is contained in 
22 CCR 7360(a).  The Contractor issuing a noncompetitive award must 
comply with 22 CCR 7360(b)-(d). 

 
ARTICLE VI.  RECORDS 
 

A. The Contractor shall maintain complete records which shall include, but not 
be limited to, accounting records, contracts, agreements, a reconciliation of 
the “Financial Closeout Report” (CDA Closeout) to the audited financial 
statements, single audit report, and general ledgers, and a summary 
worksheet identifying the results of performing an audit resolution of its 
subcontractors in accordance with Article X. of this Exhibit.  This includes the 
following: Letters of Agreement, insurance documentation, memorandums 
and/or Letters of Understanding, patient or client records, and electronic files 
of its activities and expenditures hereunder in a form satisfactory to CDA.  All 
records pertaining to this Agreement must be made available for inspection 
and audit by the State or its duly authorized agents, at any time during 
normal business hours.  The reconciliation of the CDA Closeout to the 
Contractor general ledger must be submitted with the CDA Closeout 
package.   
 

B. All such records, including confidential records, must be maintained and 
made available by the Contractor: (1) until an audit has occurred and an 
audit resolution has been issued or unless otherwise authorized in writing 
by CDA’s Audit Branch, (2) for such longer period, if any, as is required by 
applicable statute, by any other clause of this Agreement, or by Sections A 
and C of this Article, and (3) for such longer period as CDA deems 
necessary. 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 14 of 38 
 

ARTICLE VI.  RECORDS (Continued) 
 

C. If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to 
the work terminated shall be preserved and made available for the same 
periods as specified in Section A above.  The Contractor shall ensure that any 
resource directories and all client records remain the property of CDA upon 
termination of this Agreement, and are returned to CDA or transferred to 
another contractor as instructed by CDA. 
 

D. In the event of any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit exception, or other 
action involving the records, all records relative to such action shall be 
maintained and made available until every action has been cleared to the 
satisfaction of the State and is so stated in writing to the Contractor. 

 
E. Adequate source documentation of each transaction shall be maintained 

relative to the allowability of expenditures reimbursed by the State under 
this Agreement.  If the allowability of expenditures cannot be determined 
because records or documentation of the Contractor are nonexistent or 
inadequate according to guidelines set forth in 2 CFR 200.302 and 45 
CFR 75.302, the expenditures will be questioned in the audit and may be 
disallowed by CDA during the audit resolution process. 

 
F. All records containing confidential information shall be handled in a 

confidential manner in accordance with the requirements for information 
integrity and security, and in accordance with guidelines set forth in this 
Article, and Article XVIII.  After the authorized period has expired, 
confidential records shall be shredded and disposed of in a manner that 
will maintain confidentiality. 

 
ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY 
 

A. Unless otherwise provided for in this Article, property refers to all assets 
used in operation of this Agreement. 
 
1. Property includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery, 

vehicles, furniture, tools, and intangibles, etc. 
 

2. Property does not include consumable office supplies such as 
paper, pencils, toner cartridges, file folders, etc. 

 
B. Property acquired under this Agreement, which meets any of the following 

criteria is subject to the reporting requirements: 
 
1. Has a normal useful life of at least one (1) year and has a unit 

acquisition cost of at least $5,000 (a desktop or laptop setup, is 
considered a unit, if purchased as a unit). 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 15 of 38 
 

 
2. All computing devices, regardless of cost (including but not limited 

to, workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, 
notebook computers, tablets, smartphones and cellphones). 

 
3. All Portable electronic storage media, regardless of cost (including 

but not limited to, thumb/flash drives and portable hard drives). 
 

C. Additions, improvements, and betterments to assets meeting all of the 
conditions in Section B above must also be reported.  Additions typically 
involve physical extensions of existing units.  Improvements and 
betterments typically do not increase the physical size of the asset.  
Instead, improvements and betterments enhance the condition of an asset 
(e.g., extend life, increase service capacity, and lower operating costs).  
Examples of assets that might be improved and bettered include roads, 
bridges, curbs and gutters, tunnels, parking lots, streets and sidewalks, 
drainage, and lighting systems. 
 

D. Intangibles are property which lack physical substance but give valuable 
rights to the owner.  Examples of intangible property include patents, 
copyrights, leases, and computer software.  By contrast, hardware 
consists of tangible equipment (e.g., computer printer, terminal, etc.).  
Costs include all amounts incurred to acquire and to ready the intangible 
asset for its intended use.  Typical intangible property costs include the 
purchase price, legal fees, and other costs incurred to obtain title to the 
asset. 

 
E. The Contractor shall keep track of property purchased with funds from this 

Agreement that meet the requirements as defined in Exhibit D, Article VII, 
item B, and submit to CDA a Property Acquisition Form (CDA 9023) for all 
property furnished or purchased by either the Contractor or the 
Subcontractor with funds awarded under the terms of this Agreement, as 
instructed by the CDA.  The Contractor shall certify their reported property 
inventory annually with the Closeout by completing the Program Property 
Inventory Certification (CDA 9024), unless further restricted by Exhibit E, 
where applicable. 

 
The Contractor shall record, at minimum, the following information when 
property is acquired: 

 
1. Date acquired. 
2. Item description (include model number). 
3. CDA tag number. 
4. Serial number (if applicable). 
5. Purchase cost or other basis of valuation. 
6. Fund source 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 16 of 38 
 

F. Disposal of Property 
 
1. Prior to disposal of any property purchased by the Contractor or the 

Subcontractor with funds from this Agreement or any predecessor 
Agreement, the Contractor must obtain approval from CDA for all 
reportable property as defined in Section B of this Article. 
Disposition, which includes sale, trade-in, discarding, or transfer to 
another agency may not occur until approval is received  
from CDA.  The Contractor shall submit to CDA a Request to 
Dispose of Property (CDA 248).  CDA will then instruct the AAA on 
disposition of the property.  Once  
approval for disposal has been received from CDA and the AAA 
has reported to CDA the Property Survey Report’s (STD 152) 
Certification of Disposition, the item(s) shall be removed from the 
Contractor’s inventory report. 
 

2. The Contractor must remove all confidential, sensitive, or personal 
information from CDA property prior to disposal, including removal 
or destruction of data on computing devices with digital memory 
and storage capacity.  This includes, but is not limited to magnetic 
tapes, flash drives, personal computers, personal digital assistants, 
cell or smart phones, multi-function printers, and laptops. 
 

G. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment shall be investigated, fully 
documented and the Contractor shall promptly notify CDA. 
 

H. The State reserves title to all State-purchased or financed property not 
fully consumed in the performance of this Agreement, unless otherwise 
required by federal law or regulations or as otherwise agreed by the 
parties. 

 
I. The Contractor shall exercise due care in the use, maintenance, 

protection, and preservation of such property during the period of the 
project, and shall assume responsibility for replacement or repair of such 
property during the period of the project, or until the Contractor has 
complied with all written instructions from CDA regarding the final 
disposition of the property. 

 
J. In the event of the Contractor’s dissolution or upon termination of this 

Agreement, the Contractor shall provide a final property inventory to the 
State.  The State reserves the right to require the Contractor to transfer 
such property to another entity, or to the State. 

 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 17 of 38 
 

K. To exercise the above right, no later than one hundred twenty (120) days 
after termination of this Agreement or notification of the Contractor’s 
dissolution, the State will issue specific written disposition instructions to 
the Contractor. 

 
L. The Contractor shall use the property for the purpose for which it was 

intended under the Agreement.  When no longer needed for that use, the 
Contractor shall use it, if needed, and with written approval of the State for 
other purposes in this order: 

 
1. For another CDA program providing the same or similar service. 

 
2. For another CDA-funded program. 

 
M. The Contractor may share use of the property and equipment or allow use 

by other programs, upon written approval from CDA.  As a condition of the 
approval, CDA may require reimbursement under this Agreement for its 
use. 

 
N. The Contractor or subcontractors shall not use equipment or supplies 

acquired under this Agreement with federal and/or State monies for 
personal gain or to usurp the competitive advantage of a privately-owned 
business entity. 
 

O. If purchase of equipment is a reimbursable item, the equipment to be 
purchased will be specified in the Budget Summary. 

 
P. The Contractor shall include the provisions contained in this Article in all 

its subcontracts awarded under this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VIII.  ACCESS 
 

The Contractor shall provide access to the federal or State contracting agency, 
the California State Auditor, the Comptroller, General of the United States, or any 
of their duly authorized federal or State representatives to any books, 
documents, papers, and records of the Contractor or subcontractor which are 
directly pertinent to this specific Agreement for the purpose of making an audit, 
examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.  The Contractor shall include this 
requirement in its subcontracts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 18 of 38 
 

ARTICLE IX.  MONITORING AND EVALUATION 
 

A. Authorized State representatives shall have the right to monitor and 
evaluate the Contractor’s administrative, fiscal and program performance 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Said monitoring and evaluation may include, 
but is not limited to, administrative processes, fiscal, data and 
procurement components.  This will include policies, procedures, 
procurement, audits, inspections of project premises, interviews of project 
staff and participants, and when applicable, inspection of food preparation 
sites. 
 

B. The Contractor shall cooperate with the State in the monitoring and 
evaluation processes, which include making any administrative, program 
and fiscal staff available during any scheduled process. 

 
C. The Contractor shall monitor contracts and subcontracts to ensure 

compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts that 
may have a direct and/or material effect on each of its CDA funded 
programs. 

 
D. The Contractor is responsible for maintaining supporting documentation 

including financial and statistical records, contracts, subcontracts, 
monitoring reports, and all other pertinent records until an audit has 
occurred and an audit resolution has been issued or unless otherwise 
authorized in writing by CDA. 

 
  



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 19 of 38 
 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. General 
 
1. Any duly authorized representative of the federal or State 

government, which includes but is not limited to the State Auditor, 
CDA Staff, and any entity selected by State to perform inspections, 
shall have the right to monitor and audit Contractor and all 
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement through 
on-site inspections, audits, and other applicable means the State  
determines necessary. In the event that CDA is informed of an 
audit by an outside federal or State government entity affecting the 
Contractor, CDA will provide timely notice to Contractor. 
 

2. Contractor shall make available all reasonable information 
necessary to substantiate that expenditures under this agreement 
are allowable and allocable, including, but not limited to books, 
documents, papers, and records. Contractor shall agree to make 
such information available to the federal government, the State, or 
any of their duly authorized representatives, including 
representatives of the entity selected by State to perform 
inspections, for examination, copying, or mechanical reproduction, 
on or off the premises of the appropriate entity upon a reasonable 
request. 
 

3. All agreements entered into by Contractor and subcontractors with 
audit firms for purposes of conducting independent audits under 
this Agreement shall contain a clause permitting any duly 
authorized representative of the federal or State government 
access to the supporting documentation of said audit firm(s). 

 
4. The Contractor shall cooperate with and participate in any further 

audits which may be required by the State, including CDA fiscal 
and compliance audits. 

 
B. CDA Fiscal and Compliance Audits 

 
1. The CDA Audits Branch shall perform fiscal and compliance audits 

of Contractors in accordance with Generally Accepted Government 
Auditing Standards (GAGAS) to ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, regulations, grants, and contract requirements. 
 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 20 of 38 
 

2. The CDA fiscal and compliance audits may include, but not be 
limited to, a review of: 
 
a. Financial closeouts (2 CFR 200.16 and 45 CFR 75.2) 
b. Internal controls (2 CFR 200.303 and 45 CFR 75.303) 
c. Allocation of expenditures (2 CFR 200.4 and 45 CFR 75.2) 
d. Allowability of expenditures (2 CFR 200.403 and 45 CFR 

75.403) 
e. Equipment expenditures and approvals, if required (2 CFR 

200.439 and 45 CFR 75.439) 
 

C. Single Audit Reporting Requirements (2 CFR 200 Subpart F and 45 CFR 
75 Subpart F) 
 
1. Contractor Single Audit Reporting Requirements 
 

a. Contractors that expend $750,000 or more in federal funds 
shall arrange for an audit to be performed as required by the 
Single Audit Act of 1984, Public Law 98-502; the Single 
Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Public Law 
104-156; 2 CFR 200.501 to 200.521 and 45 CFR 75.501 to 
75.521.  A copy shall be submitted to the: 
 

California Department of Aging 
Attention:  Audits Branch 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
Sacramento, California 95833 

 
b. The copy shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after 

receipt of the Auditor’s report or nine (9) months after the 
end of the audit period, whichever occurs first, or unless a 
longer period is agreed to in advance by the cognizant or 
oversight agency. 
 

c. For purposes of reporting, the Contractor shall ensure that 
State-funded expenditures are displayed discretely along 
with the related federal expenditures in the single audit 
report’s “Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards” 
(SEFA) under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
(CFDA) number. 

 
d. For State contracts that do not have CFDA numbers, the 

Contractor shall ensure that the State-funded expenditures 
are discretely identified in the SEFA by the appropriate 
program name, identifying grant/contract number, and as 
passed through CDA. 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 21 of 38 
 

 
2. The Contractor shall perform a reconciliation of the “Financial 

Closeout Report” to the audited financial statements, single audit, 
and general ledgers.  The reconciliation shall be maintained and 
made available for CDA review. 
 

3. Contract Resolution of Contractor’s Subrecipients 
The Contractor shall have the responsibility for resolving its 
contracts with subcontractors to determine whether funds provided 
under this Agreement are expended in accordance with applicable 
laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or agreements.  The 
Contractor shall, at a minimum, perform Contract resolution within 
fifteen (15) months of the "Financial Closeout Report." 
 

4. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports 
meet 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F-Audit Requirements. 
 

5. Contract resolution includes: 
 
a. Ensuring that subcontractors expending $750,000 or more in 

federal awards during the subcontractor’s fiscal year have 
met the audit requirements of 2 CFR 200.501 - 200.521 and 
45 CFR 75.501 to 75.521. 
 

b. Issuing a management decision on audit findings within six 
(6) months after receipt of the Subcontractor’s single audit 
report and ensuring that the Subcontractor takes appropriate 
and timely corrective action. 
 

c. Reconciling expenditures reported to the Contractor to the 
amounts identified in the single audit or other type of audit if 
the Subcontractor was not subject to the single audit 
requirements.  For a subcontractor who was not required to 
obtain a single audit and did not obtain another type of audit, 
the reconciliation of expenditures reported to CDA must be 
accomplished through performing alternative procedures 
(e.g., risk assessment [2 CFR 200.331 and 45 CFR 75.352], 
documented review of financial statements, and 
documented expense verification, including match, etc.). 

 
 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 22 of 38 
 

6. When alternative procedures are used, the Contractor shall perform 
financial management system testing, which provides, in part, for 
the following: 
 
a. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial 

results of each federal award or program. 
 

b. Records that identify adequately the source and application 
of funds for each federally funded activity. 

 
c. Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, 

property, and other assets to ensure these items are used 
solely for authorized purposes. 

 
d. Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each 

federal award. 
 

e. Written procedures to implement the requirements of 
2 CFR 200.305. 

 
f. Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in 

accordance with 2 CFR Part 200 and 45 CFR Part 75, 
Subparts E - Cost Principles. 
[2 CFR 200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302] 

 
g. The Contractor shall document system and expense testing 

to show an acceptable level of reliability, including a review 
of actual source documents. 

 
h. Determining whether the results of the reconciliations 

performed necessitate adjustment of the Contractor’s own 
records. 

 
7. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports 

meet 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F - Audit Requirements: 
 
a. Performed timely – not less frequently than annually and a 

report submitted timely.  The audit is required to be 
submitted within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Auditor’s 
report or nine (9) months after the end of the audit period, 
whichever occurs first.  [2 CFR 200 512 and 45 CFR 75.512] 
 

b. Properly procured – use procurement standards for auditor 
selection.  [2 CFR 200.509 and CFR 75.509] 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 23 of 38 
 

c. Performed in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards.  [2 CFR 200.514 and 45 
CFR 75.514] 

 
d. All inclusive – includes an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) 

of the financial statements; a report on internal control 
related to the financial statements and major programs; an 
opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance with laws, 
regulations, and the provisions of contracts; and the 
schedule of findings and questioned costs.  [2 CFR 200.515 
and 45 CFR 75.515] 

 
e. Performed in accordance with provisions applicable to this 

program as identified in 2 CFR Part 200, and 45 CFR Part 
75, Subpart F, Audit Requirements. 

 
8. Requirements identified in Sections D and E of this Article shall be 

included in contracts with the Subcontractor.  Further, the 
Subcontractor shall be required to include in its contract with the 
independent Auditor that the Auditor will comply with all applicable 
audit requirements/standards; CDA shall have access to all audit 
reports and supporting work papers, and CDA has the option to 
perform additional work, as needed. 

 
9. The Contractor shall prepare a summary worksheet of results from 

the contract resolutions performed of all subcontractors.  The 
summary worksheet shall include, but not be limited to, contract 
amounts; amounts resolved; amounts of match verified, resolution 
of variances; recovered amounts; whether an audit was relied upon 
or the Contractor performed an independent expense verification 
review (alternative procedures) of the Subcontractor in making a 
determination; whether audit findings were issued; and, if 
applicable, issuance date of the management letter; and any 
communication or follow-up performed to resolve the findings. 

  



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 24 of 38 
 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 
 

10. A reasonably proportionate share of the costs of audits required by, 
and performed in, accordance with the Single Audit Act 
Amendments of 1996, as implemented by requirements of this part, 
are allowable.  However, the following audit costs are unallowable: 
 
a. Any costs when audits required by the Single Audit Act and 

2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit 
Requirements have not been conducted or have been 
conducted but not in accordance therewith; and 
 

b. Any costs of auditing a non-federal entity that is exempted 
from having an audit conducted under the Single Audit Act 
and 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit 
Requirements because its expenditures under federal 
awards are less than $750,000 during the non-federal 
entity’s fiscal year. 

 
i. The costs of a financial statement audit of a non-

federal entity that does not currently have a federal 
award may be included in the indirect cost pool for a 
cost allocation plan or indirect cost proposal. 
 

ii. Pass-through entities may charge federal awards for 
the cost of agreed-upon-procedures engagements to 
monitor subcontractors who are exempted from the 
requirements of the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR 200 
and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements.  
This cost is allowable only if the agreed-upon 
procedures engagements are conducted in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Government 
Auditing Standards (GAGAS) attestation standards, 
paid for and arranged by the pass-through entity, and 
limited in scope to one or more of the following types 
of compliance requirements: activities allowed or not 
allowed; allowable costs/cost principles; eligibility; and 
reporting. 
[2 CFR 200.425] 

 
 

 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 25 of 38 
 

ARTICLE XI.  INSURANCE 
 

A. Prior to commencement of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor 
shall provide for the term of this Agreement, the following insurance: 
 
1. General liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for 

bodily injury and property damage combined.  Higher limits may be 
required by the State in cases of higher than usual risks. 
 

2. Automobile liability including non-owned auto liability, of not less 
than $1,000,000 for volunteers and paid employees providing 
services supported by this Agreement. 

 
3. If applicable, or unless otherwise amended by future regulation, the 

Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the Public Utilities 
Commission General Order No. 115-F which requires higher levels 
of insurance for charter-party carriers of passengers and is based 
on seating capacity as follows: 

 
a. $750,000 if seating capacity is under 8 

 
b. $1,500,000 if seating capacity is 8 – 15 

 
c. $5,000,000 if seating capacity is over 15 

 
4. Professional liability of not less than $1,000,000 as it appropriately 

relates to the services rendered.  Coverage shall include medical 
malpractice and/or errors and omissions. (All programs except Title 
V). 
 

B. The insurance will be obtained from an insurance company acceptable to 
the Department of General Services, Office of Risk and Insurance 
Management (DGS, ORIM), or be provided through partial or total self-
insurance acceptable to the Department of General Services (DGS). 
 

C. Evidence of insurance shall be in a form and content acceptable to DGS, 
ORIM. 

 
D. The Contractor shall notify the State within five (5) business days of any 

cancellation, non-renewal, or material change that affects required 
insurance coverage. 

 
E. Insurance obtained through commercial carriers shall meet the following 

requirements: 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 26 of 38 
 

1. The Certificate of Insurance shall provide the statement: “The 
Department of Aging, State of California, its officers, agents, 
employees, and servants are included as additional insureds, with 
respect to work performed for the State of California under this 
Agreement.”  Professional liability coverage is exempt from this 
requirement. 

 
2. CDA shall be named as the certificate holder and CDA’s address 

must be listed on the certificate. 
 

F. The insurance provided herein shall be in effect at all times during the 
term of this Agreement.  In the event the insurance coverage expires 
during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to provide CDA, 
at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date, a new Certificate of 
Insurance evidencing insurance coverage as provided herein for a period 
not less than the remaining Agreement term or for a period not less than 
one (1) year.  In the event the Contractor fails to keep in effect at all times 
said insurance coverage, CDA may, in addition to any other remedies it 
may have, terminate this Agreement. 

 
G. The Contractor shall require its subcontractors under this Agreement, 

other than units of local government which are similarly self-insured, to 
maintain adequate insurance coverage for general liability, Worker’s 
Compensation liabilities, and if appropriate, auto liability including non-
owned auto and professional liability, and further, the Contractor shall 
require all of its subcontractors to hold the Contractor harmless.  The 
Subcontractor’s Certificate of Insurance for general and auto liability shall 
also name the Contractor, not the State, as the certificate holder and 
additional insured.  The Contractor shall maintain Certificates of Insurance 
for all of its subcontractors. 
 

H. A copy of each appropriate Certificate of Insurance or letter of self-
insurance, referencing this Agreement number shall be submitted to CDA 
with this Agreement. 

 
I. The Contractor shall be insured against liability for Worker’s 

Compensation or undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of the Labor Code and the Contractor affirms to comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work under 
this Agreement.  [Labor Code § 3700] 

 
 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 27 of 38 
 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION 
 

A. Termination Without Cause 
 

CDA may terminate performance of work under this Agreement, in whole 
or in part, without cause, if CDA determines that a termination is in the 
State’s best interest.  CDA may terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) 
days written notice to the Contractor.  The Notice of Termination shall 
specify the extent of the termination and shall be effective ninety (90) days 
from the delivery of the Notice.  The parties agree that if the termination of 
the Contract is due to a reduction or deletion of funding by the Department 
of Finance (DOF), Legislature or Congress, the Notice of Termination shall 
be effective thirty (30) days from the delivery of the Notice.  The 
Contractor shall submit to CDA a Transition Plan as specified in Exhibit E 
of this Agreement.  The parties agree that for the terminated portion of the 
Agreement, the remainder of Agreement shall be deemed to remain in 
effect and is not void. 

 
B. Termination for Cause 
 

CDA may terminate, in whole or in part, for cause the performance of work 
under this Agreement.  CDA may terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30) 
days written notice to the Contractor.  The Notice of Termination shall be 
effective thirty (30) days from the delivery of the Notice of Termination 
unless the grounds for termination are due to threat to life, health or safety 
of the public and in that case, the termination shall take effect 
immediately.  The Contractor shall submit to CDA a Transition Plan as 
specified in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The grounds for termination for 
cause shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. In case of threat of life, health or safety of the public, termination of 

the Agreement shall be effective immediately. 
 
2. A violation of the law or failure to comply with any condition of this 

Agreement. 
 

3. Inadequate performance or failure to make progress so as to 
endanger performance of this Agreement. 

 
4. Failure to comply with reporting requirements. 

 
5. Evidence that the Contractor is in an unsatisfactory financial 

condition as determined by an audit of the Contractor or evidence 
of a financial condition that endangers performance of this 
Agreement and/or the loss of other funding sources. 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 28 of 38 
 

6. Delinquency in payment of taxes or payment of costs for 
performance of this Agreement in the ordinary course of business. 

 
7. Appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for all or a 

substantial part of the Contractor’s property, or institution of 
bankruptcy, reorganization or the arrangement of liquidation 
proceedings by or against the Contractor. 

 
8. Service of any writ of attachment, levy of execution, or 

commencement of garnishment proceedings against the 
Contractor’s assets or income. 

 
9. The commission of an act of bankruptcy. 
 
10. Finding of debarment or suspension.  [Article II.J] 

 
11. The Contractor’s organizational structure has materially changed. 

 
12. CDA determines that the Contractor may be considered a “high 

risk” agency as described in 2 CFR 200.205 and 45 CFR 75.205.  If 
such a determination is made, the Contractor may be subject to 
special conditions or restrictions. 

 
C. Contractor’s Obligation After Notice of Termination 
 

After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as directed by CDA, 
the Contractor shall immediately proceed with the following obligations, as 
applicable, regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting any funds 
due under this clause. 

 
The Contractor shall: 

 
1. Stop work as specified in the Notice of Termination. 
 
2. Place no further subcontracts for materials or services, except as 

necessary, to complete the continued portion of the Contract. 
 

3. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work 
terminated. 

 
4. Settle all outstanding liabilities and termination settlement 

proposals arising from the termination of subcontracts, (the 
approval or ratification of which will be final for purposes of this 
clause). 

 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 29 of 38 
 

D. Effective Date 
 

Termination of this Agreement shall take effect immediately in the case of 
an emergency such as threat to life, health, or safety of the public.  The 
effective date for Termination with Cause or for funding reductions is thirty 
(30) days and Termination without Cause is ninety (90) days subsequent 
to written notice to the Contractor.  The notice shall describe the action 
being taken by CDA, the reason for such action and, any conditions of the 
termination, including the date of termination. 

 
E. Voluntary Termination of Area Plan Agreement (Title III Only) 
 

Pursuant to 22 CCR 7210, the Contractor may voluntarily terminate its 
contract prior to its expiration either by mutual agreement with CDA or 
upon thirty (30) days written notice to CDA.  In case of voluntary 
termination, the Contractor shall allow CDA up to one hundred eighty 
(180) days to transition services.  The Contractor shall submit a Transition 
Plan in accordance with Exhibit E of this Agreement. 

 
F. Notice of Intent to Terminate by Contractor (All other non-Title III  

Programs) 
 

In the event the Contractor no longer intends to provide services under 
this Agreement, the Contractor shall give CDA Notice of Intent to 
Terminate.  Such notice shall be given in writing to CDA at least one 
hundred eighty (180) days prior to the proposed termination date.  Unless 
mutually agreed upon, the Contractor does not have the authority to 
terminate the Agreement.  The Notice of Intent to Terminate shall include 
the reason for such action and the anticipated last day of work.  The 
Contractor shall submit a Transition Plan in accordance with Exhibit E. 

 
G. In the Event of a Termination Notice 
 

CDA will present written notice to the Contractor of any condition, such as, 
but not limited to, transfer of clients, care of clients, return of unspent 
funds; and disposition of property, which must be met prior to termination. 

 
ARTICLE XIII.  REMEDIES 
 

The Contractor agrees that any remedy provided in this Agreement is in addition 
to and not in derogation of any other legal or equitable remedy available to CDA 
as a result of breach of this Agreement by the Contractor, whether such breach 
occurs before or after completion of the project. 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 30 of 38 
 

ARTICLE XIV.  DISSOLUTION OF ENTITY 
 

The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of any intention to discontinue 
existence of the entity or to bring an action for dissolution. 
 

ARTICLE XV.  AMENDMENTS, REVISIONS OR MODIFICATIONS 
 

A. No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid 
unless made in writing, signed and approved through the State 
amendment process in accordance with the State Contract Manual.  No 
oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in this Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties. 

 
B. The State reserves the right to revise, waive, or modify the Agreement to 

reflect any restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by Congress or 
the Legislature or as directed by the Executive Branch of State 
government. 

 
ARTICLE XVI.  NOTICES 
 

A. Any notice to be given hereunder by either party to the other may be 
effected by personal delivery in writing or by registered or certified mail, 
overnight mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, provided the 
Contractor retains receipt, and shall be communicated as of actual receipt. 
 

B. Any notice given to CDA for the Contractor’s change of legal name, main 
address, or name of the Director shall be completed by submitting a Std. 
204 form to AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

 
C. All other notices with the exception of those identified in Section B of this 

Article shall be addressed to the California Department of Aging, AAA 
Based Teams, 2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, 
California, 95833.  Notices mailed to the Contractor shall be to the 
address indicated on the coversheet of this Agreement. 

 
D. Either party may change its address by written notice to the other party in 

accordance with this Article. 
 
ARTICLE XVII.  DEPARTMENT CONTACT 
 

A. The name of CDA’s contact to request revisions, waivers, or modifications 
affecting this Agreement, will be provided by the State to the Contractor 
upon full execution of this Agreement. 
 
 

mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 31 of 38 
 

B. Contractor shall submit to CDA changes to Contractor’s legal name, main 
address, Director, or any key staff to be added or removed from the 
distribution list by submitting a Contact Report to 
AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. You may request the Contact Report by 
emailing AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

 
ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY 
 

A. Information Assets 
 
The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall have in place 
operational policies, procedures, and practices to protect State information 
assets, including those assets used to store or access Personal Health 
Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI) and  any information 
protected under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
(HIPAA), (i.e., public, confidential, sensitive and/or personal identifying 
information) herein referred to as Personal, Sensitive and Confidential 
Information (PSCI) as specified in the State Administrative Manual, 5300 
to 5365.3; Cal. Gov. Code § 11019.9, DGS Management Memo 06-12; 
DOF Budget Letter 06-34; and CDA Program Memorandum 07-18 
Protection of Information Assets and the Statewide Health Information 
Policy Manual. 
 
Information assets may be in hard copy or electronic format and may 
include but is not limited to: 
 
1. Reports 
2. Notes 
3. Forms 
4. Computers, laptops, cellphones, printers, scanners 
5. Networks (LAN, WAN, WIFI) servers, switches, routers 
6. Storage media, hard drives, flash drives, cloud storage 
7. Data, applications, databases 

 
B. Encryption of Computing Devices 

 
The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, are required to use 128-
Bit encryption for PSCI data that is collected and stored under this 
Agreement that is confidential, sensitive, and/or personal information 
including data stored on all computing devices (including but not limited to, 
workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, notebook 
computers and backup media) and/or portable electronic storage media 
(including but not limited to, discs, thumb/flash drives, portable hard 
drives, and backup media). 

 
 

mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov
mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 32 of 38 
 

C. Disclosure 
 
1. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that 

all PSCI is protected from inappropriate or unauthorized access or 
disclosure in accordance with applicable laws, regulations and 
State policies.   
 

2. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall protect from 
unauthorized disclosure, PSCI such as names and other identifying 
information concerning persons receiving services pursuant to this 
Agreement, except for statistical information not identifying any 
participant. 

 
3. “Personal Identifying information” shall include, but not be limited 

to: name; identifying number; social security number; state driver’s 
license or state identification number; financial account numbers; 
and symbol or other identifying characteristic assigned to the 
individual, such as finger or voice print or a photograph. 
 

4. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not use PSCI 
above for any purpose other than carrying out the Contractor’s 
obligations under this Agreement.  The Contractor and its 
Subcontractors are authorized to disclose and access identifying 
information for this purpose as required by OAA. 

 
5. The Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not, except 

as otherwise specifically authorized or required by this Agreement 
or court order, disclose any identifying information obtained under 
the terms of this Agreement to anyone other than CDA without prior 
written authorization from CDA.  The Contractor may be authorized, 
in writing, by a participant to disclose identifying information specific 
to the authorizing participant. 

 
6. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, may allow a 

participant to authorize the release of information to specific 
entities, but shall not request or encourage any participant to give a 
blanket authorization or sign a blank release, nor shall the 
Contractor accept such blanket authorization from any participant. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 33 of 38 
 

D. Security Awareness Training 
 
1. The Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors/Vendors, and 

volunteers handling PSCI must complete the required CDA Security 
Awareness Training module located at 
https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources within 
thirty (30) days of the start date of the Contract/Agreement, within 
thirty (30) days of the start date of any new employee, 
Subcontractor, Vendor or volunteer’s employment and annually 
thereafter. 
 

2. The Contractor must maintain certificates of completion on file and 
provide them to CDA upon request. 

 
E. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

 
The Contractor agrees to comply with the privacy and security 
requirements of HIPAA and ensure that Subcontractors/Vendors comply 
with the privacy and security requirements of HIPAA. 
 

F. Information Integrity and Security Statement 
 
The Contractor shall sign and return an Information Integrity and Security 
Statement (CDA 1024) form with this Agreement.  This is to ensure that 
the Contractor is aware of, and agrees to comply with, their obligations to 
protect CDA information assets, including PSCI, from unauthorized access 
and disclosure. 

 
G. Security Incident Reporting 

 
A security incident occurs when CDA information assets are or reasonably 
believed to have been accessed, modified, destroyed, or disclosed without 
proper authorization, or are lost or stolen.  The Contractor, and its 
Subcontractors/Vendors, must comply with CDA’s security incident 
reporting procedure located at 
https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources. 
 

H. Security Breach Notifications 
 
Notice must be given by the Contractor, and/or its Subcontractors/Vendors 
to anyone whose PSCI could have been breached in accordance with 
HIPAA, the Information Practices Act of 1977, and State policy. 

 
 
 
 

https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources
https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources


California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 34 of 38 
 

I. Software Maintenance 
 
The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall apply security 
patches and upgrades in a timely manner and keep virus software up-to-
date on all systems on which State data may be stored or accessed. 

 
J. Electronic Backups 

 
The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all 
electronic information is protected by performing regular backups of files 
and databases and ensure the availability of information assets for 
continued business.  The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, 
shall ensure that all data, files and backup files are encrypted. 

 
K. Provisions of this Article 

 
The provisions contained in this Article shall be included in all contracts of 
both the Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors. 

 

ARTICLE XIX.  COPYRIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA 
 

A. Copyrights 
 
1. If any material funded by this Agreement is subject to copyright, the 

State reserves the right to copyright such material and the 
Contractor agrees not to copyright such material, except as set 
forth in Section B of this Article. 
 

2. The Contractor may request permission to copyright material by 
writing to the Director of CDA.  The Director shall grant permission 
or give reason for denying permission to the Contractor in writing 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of the request. 
 

3. If the material is copyrighted with the consent of CDA, the State 
reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to 
reproduce, prepare derivative works, publish, distribute and use 
such materials, in whole or in part, and to authorize others to do so, 
provided written credit is given to the author. 

 
4. The Contractor certifies that it has appropriate systems and 

controls in place to ensure that State funds will not be used in the 
performance of this contract for the acquisition, operation, or 
maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright laws. 

 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 35 of 38 
 

B. Rights in Data 
 
1. The Contractor shall not publish or transfer any materials, as 

defined in paragraph 2 below, produced or resulting from activities 
supported by this Agreement without the express written consent of 
the Director of CDA.  That consent shall be given, or the reasons 
for denial shall be given, and any conditions under which it is given 
or denied, within thirty (30) days after the written request is 
received by CDA.  CDA may request a copy of the material for 
review prior to approval of the request.  This subsection is not 
intended to prohibit the Contractor from sharing identifying client 
information authorized by the participant or summary program 
information which is not client specific. 
 

2. As used in this Agreement, the term “subject data” means writings, 
sound recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, designs or 
graphic representations, procedural manuals, forms, diagrams, 
workflow charts, equipment descriptions, data files and data 
processing or computer programs, and works of any similar nature 
(whether or not copyrighted or copyrightable) which are first 
produced or developed under this Agreement.  The term does not 
include financial reports, cost analyses and similar information 
incidental to contract administration, or the exchange of that 
information between AAAs to facilitate uniformity of contract and 
program administration on a statewide basis. 

 
3. Subject only to other provisions of this Agreement, the State may 

use, duplicate, or disclose in any manner, and have or permit 
others to do so subject to State and federal law, all subject data 
delivered under this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE XX.  BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES 
 

A. Needs Assessment 
 
1. The Contractor shall conduct a cultural and linguistic group-needs 

assessment of the eligible client population in the Contractor’s 
service area to assess the language needs of the population and 
determine what reasonable steps are necessary to ensure 
meaningful access to services and activities to eligible individuals.  
[22 CCR 98310, 98314] 

 
 
 
 

 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 36 of 38 
 

The group-needs assessment shall take into account the following 
four (4) factors: 
 
a. Number or proportion of persons with Limited English 

Proficiency (LEP) eligible to be served or encountered by the 
program. 
 

b. Frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with 
the program. 

 
c. Nature and importance of the services provided. 

 
d. Local or frequently used resources available to the 

Contractor. 
 

This group-needs assessment will serve as the basis for the 
Contractor’s determination of “reasonable steps” and provide 
documentary evidence of compliance with Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 
et seq.; 2 CCR 11140, 2 CCR 11200 et seq., and 22 CCR98300 et 
seq. 

 
2. The Contractor shall prepare and make available a report of the 

findings of the group-needs assessment that summarizes: 
 
a. Methodologies used. 

 
b. The linguistic and cultural needs of non-English speaking or 

LEP groups. 
 

c. Services proposed to address the needs identified and a 
timeline for implementation.  [22 CCR 98310] 

 
3. The Contractor shall maintain a record of the group-needs 

assessment on file at the Contractor’s headquarters at all times 
during the term of this Agreement.  [22 CCR 98310, 98313] 
 

B. Provision of Services 
 
1. The Contractor shall take reasonable steps, based upon the group-

needs assessment identified in Section A of this Article, to ensure 
that “alternative communication services” are available to non-
English speaking or LEP beneficiaries of services under this 
Agreement.  [22 CCR 11162] 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 37 of 38 
 

 
2. “Alternative communication services” include, but are not limited to, 

the provision of services and programs by means of the following: 
 

a. Interpreters or bilingual providers and provider staff. 
 

b. Contracts with interpreter services. 
 

c. Use of telephone interpreter lines. 
 

d. Sharing of language assistance materials and services with 
other providers. 
 

e. Translated written information materials, including but not 
limited to, enrollment information and descriptions of 
available services and programs. 
 

f. Referral to culturally and linguistically appropriate community 
service programs. 
 

3. Based upon the findings of the group-needs assessment, the 
Contractor shall ensure that reasonable alternative communication 
services are available to meet the linguistic needs of identified 
eligible client population groups at key points of contact.  Key points 
of contact include, but are not limited to, telephone contacts, office 
visits and in-home visits. [22 CCR 11162] 
 

4. The Contractor shall self-certify to compliance with the 
requirements of this section and shall maintain the self-certification 
record on file at the Contractor’s office at all times during the term 
of this Agreement.  [22 CCR 98310] 

 
5. The Contractor shall notify its employees of clients’ rights regarding 

language access and the Contractor’s obligation to ensure access to 
alternative communication services when determined appropriate 
based upon the needs assessment conducted by the Contractor.  
[22 CCR 98324] 

 
6. Noncompliance with this section may result in suspension or 

termination of funds and/or termination of this Agreement.  
[22 CCR 98370] 

  



California Department of Aging Agreement OM-2223 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 38 of 38 
 

ARTICLE XX.  BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES (Continued) 
 

C. Compliance Monitoring 
 
1. The Contractor shall develop and implement policies and 

procedures for assessing and monitoring the performance of 
individuals and entities that provide alternative communication 
services to non-English and LEP clients.  [22 CCR 98310] 
 

2. The Contractor shall monitor, evaluate, and take effective action to 
address any needed improvement in the delivery of culturally and 
linguistically appropriate services.  [22 CCR 98310] 

 
3. The Contractor shall permit timely access to all records of 

compliance with this section.  Failure to provide access to such 
records may result in appropriate sanctions.  [22 CCR 98314] 

 
D. Notice to Eligible Beneficiaries of Contracted Services 

 
1. The Contractor shall designate an employee to whom initial 

complaints or inquiries regarding national origin can be directed.  
[22 CCR 98325] 
 

2. The Contractor shall make available to ultimate beneficiaries of 
contracted services and programs information regarding CDA’s 
procedure for filing a complaint and other information regarding the 
provisions of Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq.  [22 CCR 98326] 

 
3. The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of a complaint alleging 

discrimination based upon a violation of State or federal law.  [2 
CCR 11162, 22 CCR 98310, 98340] 

 



State of California Award #: OM-2223-16
California Department of Aging Date: 7/1/2022

Page 1 of 1
Exhibit B, Attachment 1 - Budget Display

MODERNIZING OLDER CALIFORNIANS ACT 
Budget Display

County of Inyo

January 1, 2023 through March 31, 2025
Program Fund Type Project Number Allocation Adjustment TOTAL

Modernizing Older Californians Act General Fund Various - See Below $154,503 $0 $154,503
Total Year One $154,503

Notes
AAAs can utilize up to 10% of the funding for Administration. 
Expenditures must be reported in closeout by April 30, 2025.

SUPPORTIVE SERVICES - YEAR TWO 
July 1, 2023 through March 31, 2026

Program Fund Type Project Number Allocation Adjustment TOTAL 
Modernizing Older Californians Act General Fund Various - See Below $75,041 $0 $75,041

Total Year Two $75,041

Notes
AAAs can utilize up to 10% of the funding for Administration. 
Expenditures must be reported in closeout by April 30, 2026.

Program: YEAR ONE Project: YEAR ONE
OCA Caregiver Respite RSTL
OCA Linkages LNKL
OCA Senior Companion SRCL
OCA Alzheimer's Day Care Resource 
Centers DCRL
OCA Aging in Place AIPL
OCA Senior Volunteer Development SVDL
OCA Foster Grandparent FGPL 
OCA Caregiver Support for people with 
Dementia/Alzheimer's CSDAL 

Program: YEAR TWO Project: YEAR TWO
OCA Caregiver Respite RSTL22
OCA Linkages LNKL22
OCA Senior Companion SRCL22
OCA Alzheimer's Day Care Resource 
Centers DCRL22
OCA Aging in Place AIPL22
OCA Senior Volunteer Development SVDL22
OCA Foster Grandparent FGPL22
OCA Caregiver Support for people with 
Dementia/Alzheimer's CSDAL22

SUPPORTIVE SERVICES - YEAR ONE



California Department of Aging  Agreement #: OM-2223-16 
Exhibit A, Attachment 1, Project Representatives 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

EXHIBIT A, ATTACHMENT 1 
PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES 

1. THE PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT 
WILL BE: 

A. PROJECT MANAGER/COORDINATOR 

 Department of Aging Contractor:  
Section/Unit: Division of Home and 

Community Living 
 

Name: Brian Carter  
Title: Project Manager  
Address: 2880 Gateway Oaks Dr. 

Ste 200 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

 

Phone: (916) 928-4669  
Email: brian.carter@aging.ca.gov   

 

B. DIRECT OTHER INQUIRIES TO: 

 Department of Aging Contractor:  
Section/Unit: Division of Home and 

Community Living 
 

Name: Brian Carter  
Title: Project Manager  
Address: 2880 Gateway Oaks Dr. 

Ste 200 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

 

Phone: (916) 928-4669  
Email: brian.carter@aging.ca.gov   

The parties may change their representatives upon providing ten days written notice to 
the other party. Said changes do not require an amendment to this agreement. 

 

County of Inyo, Dept. of Health and Human 
Services, Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging
Marilyn Mann
HHS Director

1360 N. Main Street, Ste. 201
Bishop, CA 93514

(760) 873-3305
mmann@inyocounty.us

County of Inyo, Dept. of Health and Human 
Services, Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging

Darcia Blackdeer-Lent
Deputy Director - Aging and Social Services

Same

Same

dblackdeerlent@inyocounty.us

mailto:brian.carter@aging.ca.gov
mailto:brian.carter@aging.ca.gov


Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

Contractor Certification Clauses 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the
nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,



2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment 
on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies that 
no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period 
because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders 
Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract 
Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 
2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of 
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the 
State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, 
other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of 
perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or 
supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced 
in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, 
or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  
The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website 
located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial 
Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts of $100,000 or more,  Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 



Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant 
to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within 
the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State 
with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which 
by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement. 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor shall 
not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the 
State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and 
desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for 
violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally 
determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT  
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)                                                                       

In compliance with California Government Code Section 11019.9, California Civil 

Code Section 1798 et seq., Department of General Services Management Memo  

06-12, and Statewide Information Management Manual (SIMM) 5300 the California 

Department of Aging (CDA) hereby requires the Contractor/Vendor to: 

ACKNOWLEDGE: 

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, or disclosure of Personal, Confidential or 

Sensitive Information (PSCI) is a crime and is prohibited under state and federal 

laws, including but not limited to California Penal Code Section 502, California 

Government Code Section 15619, California Civil Code Section 1798.53 and 

1798.55, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. 

Acknowledge.  

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, disclosure, or modification of PSCI 

information may result in termination of this Contract/Agreement. 

MEET THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS: 

• PSCI information shall be protected from disclosure in accordance with all 

applicable laws, regulations, and policies.  

• PSCI data be protected by authorized access using the principles of least privilege. 

• Any occurrence that actually or potentially jeopardizes the confidentiality, integrity, 

or availability of an information system or the information the system processes, 

stores, or transmits or that constitutes a violation or imminent threat of violation of 

security policies, security procedures or acceptable use policies will immediately be 

reported to CDA by completing a Security Incident Report CDA (1025A and 1025B). 

• All access codes which allow access to confidential information will be properly 

safeguarded. 

• Obligations to protect PSCI information obtained under this Contract/Agreement will 

continue after termination of the Contract/Agreement with CDA.  

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor will complete the required 

Security Awareness Training module located at 

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/ within 30 days of the start date of the 

Contract/Agreement or within 30 days of the start date of any new employee or 

subcontractor.   This training must be completed annually. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor must comply with CDA’s 

confidentiality and data security requirements as outlined in the 

Contract/Agreement. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contract/Vendor must comply with the 

Appendix D, section XVIII encryption and self-certification requirements as outlined 

in the contract.  

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/


Page 2 of 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT 
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)         

CERTIFY: 

To protect PSCI information by: 

• Accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing or modifying PSCI information only for the 
purpose of performing official duties.

• Never accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing, or modifying PSCI information for 
curiosity, personal gain, or any non-business-related reason.

• Securing PSCI information in approved locations.
• Never removing PSCI information from the work site without authorization. 

Meets the encryption requirements in Exhibit D Article 18: 

Is in full compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements.

Is not in compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements and will achieve 

compliance by ___________. 

I hereby certify that I have reviewed this Confidentiality Statement and will comply 

with the above statements.  

Contractor/Vendor Printed Name and Title 

Contractor/Vendor Signature Date 

CDA Program/Project Contract Number 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS CERTIFICATION 
CDA 9026 (NEW 04/2018)                                                     

 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, a person that submits a bid or 

proposal to, or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state 

agency with respect to any contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, 

under penalty of perjury, at the time the bid or proposal is submitted or the contract is 

renewed, all of the following: 

 
1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts executed or renewed after 

January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act 

(Section 51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 

12960 of the Government Code); and 

 

2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts executed or renewed 

after January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign 

nation or peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor 

certifies that such policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act 

(Section 51 of the Civil Code) or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 

12960 of the Government Code). 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State 
of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Contractor Name (Printed): Federal ID Number: 

By (Authorized Signature): 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 

Date Executed: Executed in the County and State of: 

Indicate all California Department of Aging contracts your organization participates in: 

 Area Plan (AP)  Financial Alignment (FA) 

 HICAP (HI)  MIPPA (MI) 

 MSSP (MS)  SNAP-Ed (SP) 

 Title V (TV)   

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3842  

 

Agreement for the Provision of Personal Services as 
County Health Officer 

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Stephanie Tanksley, Deputy Director - Public Health 
& Prevention 

Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and James A. Richardson, MD for the provision of 
Health Officer services in an amount not to exceed $205,000 for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 
2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget; and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Dr. James A. Richardson has served his current term as Inyo County Health Officer since December 
2016. During this time, he has been responsible for all Health Officer duties mandated by the California 
Health and Safety Code and other California regulations, including, but not limited to: oversight of 
communicable disease issues, reporting and prevention; enforcement of local orders and ordinances 
pertaining to public health; declaration and/or provision of leadership during a local health 
emergency/disaster preparedness for those situations in which a local public Health Officer may declare 
a local health emergency; and ensuring that immunizations are available to the public. Dr. Richardson 
also serves as the Corrections Medical Director, as required by CA Code of Regulations Title 15, which 
is separate from, and in addition to, his Health Officer duties. As the Corrections Medical Director, Dr. 
Richardson provides health services to the Inyo County Jail and Juvenile Center (when in use), including 
24/7 availability to correctional and on-call nursing staff. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Realignment and Grant Funded Budget Unit 045100 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5002-5021 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
If this agreement is not approved, we would not be meeting the requirements to have a Health Officer.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Public Health Officer Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Jessica Burton Created/Initiated - 6/7/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/7/2023 
Stephanie Tanksley Approved - 6/7/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/13/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/13/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/13/2023 
Keri Oney Approved - 6/15/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/16/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/16/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 1 
0902020

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND _________________________________________________________

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

AS A COUNTY OFFICER 

INTRODUCTION 

WHEREAS,  (hereinafter referred to as "Officer") has 
been duly appointed as  for Inyo County; and 

WHEREAS, The County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Officer desire to set forth 
the manner and means by which Officer will be compensated for performance of duties; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions 
hereinafter contained, County and Officer hereby agree as follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Officer shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the Officer 
to perform under this Agreement will be made by                                                   , whose title is: 
__________________________. Requests to the Officer for work or services to be performed under this 
Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County makes no guarantee or 
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Officer 
by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to 
request from Officer the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should have some need 
for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 

Services and work provided by the Officer at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, resolutions, and directions. 

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from __________________ to _________________, unless
sooner terminated as provided below. 

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation.  County shall pay Officer in accordance with the Schedule of Fees (set forth
as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by Officer. 

B. Travel and Per Diem.  County shall reimburse Officer for the travel expenses and per diem
which Officer incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.  Officer shall 
request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses.  Requests by Officer for 
approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to     

      , title                                           .  Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed 
in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem Payment (Attachment C). 
County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Officer for travel or per diem expenses which are either 
in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in Attachment C, or which are incurred by 
the Officer without the prior approval of the County. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 2 
0902020

C. No Additional Consideration.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Officer shall
not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or 
other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Officer shall not be 
entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 

D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement.   The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including overtime, travel, and 
per diem expenses, if any,  and all payments made by the County to any Federal, State, County, or municipal 
agency by reason of Contractor's employment under this Contract, including employer's social security 
contributions and state disability insurance payments, if any, shall not exceed 

         dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly reserves the right to deny 
any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed, including overtime, 
travel or per diem, which is in excess of the contract limit. 

E. Manner of Payment.  Officer will be paid in the same manner and on the same schedule of
frequency as other County officers and employees. 

F. Federal and State Taxes.  From all payments made to Officer by County under the terms
and provisions of this Agreement, County shall withhold all appropriate federal and state income taxes 
(resident and non-resident), including social security. 

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Officer's obligation is to perform the services and work identified in Attachment A which are needed
within the County.  It is understood by Officer that the performance of these services and work will require a 
varied schedule.  Officer, in arranging his schedule, will coordinate and make arrangements to fulfill the 
requirements of all services and work which is necessary. 

5. PRE-EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL.

Contractor is required as a condition of this Agreement to take and pass a County pre-employment
physical.  Failure to take or pass County's pre-employment physical, constitutes default under this 
Agreement, and may at the County's sole discretion, be grounds to terminate this entire Agreement.   

County will provide Contractor, at County's sole expense, a pre-employment physical.  Such pre-
employment physical may include, but shall not be limited to, a medical history, a complete physical exam, a 
tuberculosis test, complete blood workup, mammogram, glaucoma test, X-rays, urine drug screen, and any 
other testing related to the physical requirements of the position as outlined in the County's Pre-Employment 
Physical Requirements Manual.  The County Personnel Department, in its sole discretion, will resolve any 
question as to exactly what examination, testing, and procedures are required of Contractor under the 
County's Pre-Employment Physical Requirements Manual.  The County's Personnel Department will issue all 
medical clearances.  The County's Personnel Department will issue such clearances based upon the results 
of Contractor's pre-employment physical.   

Except as provided below, Contractor's pre-employment physical must be taken and passed not 
more than 120 days prior to the date on which the term of this Agreement commences.  The County's 
Personnel Department may, in its sole discretion, accept a pre-employment physical taken by Contractor 
more than 120 days prior to the date upon which the term of this Agreement commences, if Contractor has 
been continuously employed by the County since the date of that pre-employment physical.  County is not 
bound by the results of any pre-employment physical taken by Contractor more than 120 days before the 
commencement date of this Agreement where the physical requirements of the position Contractor is 
assuming under this Contract, are different from those of the position Contractor was to assume when he 
took his pre-employment physical.   



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 3 
0902020

Contractor will not commence any work, or provide any services, under this Agreement until 
Contractor receives a written medical clearance from County to commence work.  No work or services 
provided under this Agreement by Contractor prior to the Contractor's receipt of the written medical clearance 
from County, will be paid for by County.  Further, until Contractor receives medical clearance from County, 
Contractor shall not be entitled to any other consideration or benefit under the terms of this agreement from 
County. 

6. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by  the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments  for Officer to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Officer and be valid at the time Officer enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  Further, 
during the term of this Agreement, Officer must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force 
and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Officer at no expense to the County.  Officer will provide County, at 
County's request, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required to 
perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Officer and County as to 
what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A, 
County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 

7. SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

County shall provide Officer with such supplies, reference materials, and telephone service as is
deemed necessary by the County for Officer to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  Officer is not authorized to incur any expense, and County is not obligated to reimburse or pay 
Officer, for any expense or cost incurred by Officer in procuring such items.  Responsibility for other costs 
and expenses incurred by Officer in providing the services and work identified in Attachment A, will be the 
sole responsibility and obligation of Officer. 

8. COUNTY PROPERTY.

A. Supplies, Equipment, etc.  All supplies, equipment, tools, protective or safety devices,
badges, identification cards, keys, uniforms, vehicles, reference materials, furniture, appliances, etc. provided 
to Officer by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the 
sole and exclusive property of County.  Officer will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain 
such items while they are in Officer's possession.  Officer will be financially responsible for any loss or 
damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of Officer's negligence. 

B. Products of Officer's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Officer's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Officer will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 

9. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

County shall provide workers' compensation insurance coverage to Officer for all acts performed in
the course and scope of providing the services described in Attachment A to this Agreement.  In the event a 
claim is made by Officer for injuries received in the course and scope of providing such services, County's 
liability shall be limited to workers' compensation benefits payable under the California Labor Code.   



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 4 
0902020

10. STATUS OF OFFICER.

All acts of Officer relating to the performance of this Agreement shall be performed by Officer as the
          of the County.  Officer has no authority to bind, incur any obligation 

on behalf of, or exercise any right or power vested in, the County, except as expressly provided by law or set 
forth in Attachment A.  This Agreement creates no statutorily or judicially recognized property rights in Officer 
to employment with the County.   

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

In the event the Officer is sued for acts performed within the course and scope of providing services
and work described in Attachment A of this Agreement, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold the Officer 
harmless from any and all liability arising from such acts as required by law.   

12. TERMINATION.

This Agreement creates no statutorily or judicially recognized property rights in Officer to
employment with the County. This Agreement may be terminated by County without cause, and at will, for 
any reason by giving to Officer fourteen (14) days written notice of such intent to terminate. Officer may 
terminate this Agreement without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice of such intent to terminate the County. 

This Agreement creates no statutorily or judicially recognized property rights in Officer to 
employment with the County.  This Agreement may be terminated by County without cause, and at will, for 
any reason by giving to Officer thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to terminate.  Officer may 
terminate this Agreement without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice of such intent to terminate to County.   

13. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the personal services of Officer.  County has relied upon the skills,
knowledge, experience, and training of Officer as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Officer shall 
not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of the County. 
 Further, Officer shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the County. 

14. DEFAULT.

If the Officer abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by the
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
the County, the County may declare the Officer in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days 
written notice to Officer.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Officer all amounts owing to 
Officer for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, abandonment of work is defined to include failure to report to work or to perform the work or 
services requested by County for a period of three (3) consecutive days 

15. NONDISCRIMINATION.

Officer agrees to comply with various provisions of the federal, state, and county statutes, laws, and
ordinances applicable to the County, and providing that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds 
of race, color, religion, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, or national origin, be subjected to 
discrimination. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 5 
0902020

16. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express 
writtenconsent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s 
written consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  

17. CONFLICTS.

Officer agrees that he has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 
 Officer agrees to complete and file a conflict of interest statement. 

18. POST AGREEMENT COVENANT.

Officer agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained from
the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, 
or enhancement.  Further, Officer agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this Agreement, 
not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the 
term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has been an 
adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Officer by virtue of this Agreement has 
gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 

19. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of the County to enter into this Agreement is based upon available funding from various
sources.  In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County 
has the option to terminate, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its 
notifying Officer of the termination, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or 
modification of this Agreement effective pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of 
paragraph 20 (Amendment). 

20. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 6 
0902020

21. NOTICE.

Any notice, amendments, or additions to this Agreement, including change of address of either party
during the term of this Agreement, which Officer or County shall be required, or may desire, to make shall be 
in writing and shall be sent by prepaid first class mail to the respective parties as follows: 

County of Inyo 
___________________________Department 
___________________________Street 
___________________________City and State 

Officer: 
___________________________Name 
___________________________Street 
___________________________City and State 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 7 
0902020

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto. 

//// //// 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND James A. Richardson, MD 
FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

AS A COUNTY OFFICER 

j_f/- IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
_(t.)_' DAY OF JyAJe,_ 7-<P-:> . 

COUNTY OF INYO OFFICER 

By: ________ _ sy()t!i'wt<v�Ul-'CJY/111D

Dated: __________ _ Dated: &-(p-23 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

County Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

County Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

Director of Personnel Services 

County oflnyo Standard Contract - 201 

(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 8 

0902020 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 9 
0902020

ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND ______________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

AS A COUNTY OFFICER 

TERM: 

FROM: TO:    

SCOPE OF WORK: 

Shall provide clinical oversight of licensed public health staff, contractors and support public health 
activities to ensure the effectiveness of community health services including, but not limited to: 
communicable disease control, maternal and child health services, Children's Medical Services, 
tuberculosis control, HIV case management, emergency services and disaster planning, laboratory 
services, and environmental health. ln addition, contractor shall conduct assessments and report on 
the health status of the community, using multiple epidemiological survey and statistical methods, 
and provide consultation to public health staff on public health planning.
Shall provide medical services to the Inyo County Jail and Juvenile Facility, including: on-site health 
care every Tuesday morning (or an agreed upon day) during inmate sick call at the jail, located in 
Independence; 24/7 consultation availability via telephone with the facility nurse or on-call nurse in 
the jail and juvenile facility, including weekends and holidays; and consultation with public health 
nurse to confirm medical clearance of juveniles to the weekend-only juvenile facility.
Shall, as a member of the public health disaster planning team, provide consultation and contribute 
to the development of emergency preparedness plans, exercises and drills, protocols and after-
action reports, as appropriate. May, in consultation with Health & Human Services Administration, 
provide communication of public health issues by releasing public health bulletins and answering 
media inquiries. May provide liaison services between the Inyo County HHS Public Health programs 
and California Conference of Local Health Officers (CCLHO), including, but not limited to, 
participation in some CCLHO meetings and monitoring and tracking verbal and written 
communications and shall act as a liaison between Inyo County HHS Public Health programs and 
the CA Department of Public Heath, as applicable. Shall participate in Regional Public Health Office 
meetings as designated by the HHS Deputy Director of Public Health and Prevention. 
Such duties shall include sixteen (16) hours per week of direct service, which may include attending 
periodic appropriate local inter-agency meetings as defined by the HHS Director or Deputy Director, 
Must provide twenty-four hours, seven days per week (24/7) availability to the Inyo County Health 
and Human Services (HHS) Director, HHS Deputy Director- Public Health &Prevention, or their 
designees



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 10 
0902020

ATTACHMENT B 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND ______________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

AS A COUNTY OFFICER 

TERM: 

FROM:    TO:    

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

County shall agree to pay a flat rate of $7884.61 per pay period, not to exceed 205,000,00 per year



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 11 
0902020

ATTACHMENT C 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND ______________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

AS A COUNTY OFFICER 

TERM: 

FROM:   TO:     

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND  PER DIEM PAYMENT: 

James A. Richardson, MD

07/01/2023 6/30/2024

1. Subject to Paragraph 2 below, County will reimburse Health Officer for travel and per diem expenses in the 
same amount and to the same extent as County reimburses its permanent status merit system employees.
2. Health Officer will not be reimbursed for intra-county travel by private automobile to destinations less than 
seventy-five (75) miles from Independence, California.
3.Mileage and meal per diem reimbursement is authorized only in conjunction with travel that is preauthorized by 
the Assistant HHS Director or the HHS Deputy Director of Public Health and Prevention.



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3867  

 

Approval of Hiring a Public Health Nurse at Step E 
Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Marilyn Mann, HHS Director Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize the hiring of one (1) Public Health Nurse, Range 80 ($6,509 - $7,918), at the E Step ($7,918). 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Department has identified a candidate for the vacant Registered Nurse/Public Health Nurse position 
that provides nursing services at the Inyo County Jail and also provides nursing services at the juvenile 
detention facility when the facility is in use.  The candidate has an extensive nursing background and has 
experience working in a correctional setting. Nurses are in great demand locally, nationally and 
statewide. Nursing positions are often difficult to fill and recruiting nurses that have the additional 
knowledge and expertise of working in a correctional setting is even more challenging.   Given the 
candidate's experience and our current challenges in recruiting and hiring, the Department respectfully 
requests authorization to hire the candidate at the established Range 80, Step E ($7,918).    
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Health Realignment Budget Unit 045100 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5001-5043 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could deny the request and the Department would initiate a new recruitment for the position. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 6/16/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/16/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/16/2023 
Keri Oney Approved - 6/21/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/21/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/21/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/21/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3835  

 

eXemplar Human Services Contract 
Health & Human Services - Social Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Tyler Davis, Administrative Secretary III Darcia Blackdeer-Lent, Deputy Director, Aging and 

Social Services 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) declare eXemplar Human Services of Reno, NV a sole-source provider of customized Social Service 
reporting tools and services; B) approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and eXemplar 
Human Services of Reno, NV for the provision of customized Social Service reporting tools and services 
in an amount not to exceed $120,000.00 for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2025, contingent upon 
the Board’s approval of future budgets; and C) and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Inyo County Health and Human Services, Aging and Social Services Division is responsible for 
administering CalWORKs, Welfare-to-Work (WTW), CalFresh, Medi-Cal, Child Care,and Foster Care 
eligibility and assistance functions.  In an effort to meet mandated performance standards, it is important 
to have a reliable system to effectively interface with our statewide automated system to monitor various 
caseload activities related to administration of the programs and manage workload activities and 
productivity.   
eXemplar Human Services specializes in providing proprietary analytical services to public assistance, 
WTW, and human services agencies to monitor and analyze key elements of client engagement and 
performance, eligibility caseload activities, and the design of performance management enhancement 
recommendations for integrating data trend analysis into regular agency performance management 
processes. Their platform interfaces with CalSAWS, the statewide automated welfare eligibility data 
system.     
The reports received from eXemplar provide us with the necessary tools to enhance overall performance 
in order to meet mandated program requirements and improve service delivery and accuracy of benefits 
provided to eligible residents of Inyo County. The reports provide work lists for specific categories, 
caseload activities, and statistics that show key ratios related to specific operations at all levels of the 
organization.  This information allows executive staff, managers, supervisors, and line staff to monitor 
performance and manage daily caseload activities. 
Inyo County HHS is requesting a sole-source contract as eXemplar is the only vendor currently providing 
these analytical services for public assistance and human services agencies through a proprietary 
software program. eXemplar is currently contracted with 11 other counties to provide performance 
management design and analytical services and is compatible with California's Statewide Automated 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Welfare System (CalSAWS) used by the state, ensuring consistency of the performance outcome data 
Inyo County must track and report to the state. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

State and Federal funding and Social Services 
Realignment 

Budget Unit 055800 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to deny this request resulting in our inability to access the robust analytical 
reports needed to effectively monitor performance and outcomes regarding eligibility and other program 
mandates, which we are unable to generate independently from the individual program systems. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. FY 23-25 Exemplar Contract  
  
APPROVALS: 
Tyler Davis Created/Initiated - 6/2/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/5/2023 
Tyler Davis Approved - 6/8/2023 
Darcia Blackdeer-Lent Approved - 6/13/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/13/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/15/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/16/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/16/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/16/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 1  05/21/2019 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 
FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION 

WHEREAS,  the  County  of  Inyo  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  "County")  may  have  the  need  for 
the ___________________________  services  of  _____________________________________________ 
of  ________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of 
the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by _________________________________, 
whose title is: __________________________________. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to 
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County 
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be 
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no 
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if 
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from   to 
unless sooner terminated as provided below. 

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 
Contractor at the County's request.  

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement. 

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,  
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 

D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed 
________________________________________________________________________________ Dollars  



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 2  05/21/2019 

($______________________________) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly 
reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work 
performed which is in excess of the contract limit. 

E. Billing and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This 
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were 
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Upon timely 
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the 
last day of the month.  

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for 
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California 
State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County 
an  Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 
be performed within the time frame set forth by County. 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits  
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which 
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 3  05/21/2019 

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY.

A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. 
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment. 

9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be 
considered an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall 
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 
joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 

http://www.sam.gov/


County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 4  05/21/2019 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions. 
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 

B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor. 
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County. 
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 5  05/21/2019 

15. DEFAULT.

If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written 

consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  

18. CONFLICTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

19. POST AGREEMENT COVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 
gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 6  05/21/2019 

20. SEVERABILITY.

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of 
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two 
(22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

23. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 

County of Inyo 
 Department 
  Address 
 City and State 

Contractor: 
 Name 
 Address  
 City and State 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

//// //// 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 7  05/21/2019 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

IN  WITNESS  THEREOF,  THE  PARTIES  HERETO  HAVE  SET  THEIR  HANDS  AND  SEALS 
THIS  DAY OF                                           ,         . 

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR 

By: By: 
Signature   Signature 

_________________________________  
Print or Type Name 

Dated:  ___________________ 

_______________________________________    
Print or Type Name  

Dated: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

County Counsel  

_________________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

County Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

Personnel Services 

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

County Risk Manager 

Michael De La Rosa 

06/16/2023



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 8  05/21/2019 

ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

TERM: 

        FROM: TO:  

SCOPE OF WORK: 



SCOPE OF WORK, between 

eXemplar Human Services and Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services, for 

Reporting Tools and Services 

July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025

This scope of work defines the services to be provided by eXemplar Human Services (Contractor) to the 

Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services (County) for Reporting Tools and Services. 

1. Produce a Daily Intake Dashboard Report. This report shall provide a consolidated view of all

current pending CalWORKs (CW), CalFresh (CF), Medi-Cal (MC), and Expedited CalFresh (ECF)

programs. The report shall contain the following alert indicators by worker, unit, office and

region: a) Pending CW/CF/MC Applications Due Tomorrow, b) CW App Between 35-45 Days, c)

CW App Over 45 Days, d) CW Total Pending, e) CF App Between 20-30 Days, f) CF App Over 30

Days, g) CF Total Pending, h) ECF Due Next Day, i) Overdue ECF, j) MC App Between 35-45 Days,

k) MC App Over 45 Days, l) MC Total Pending.

2. Produce a Consolidated Eligibility Triggers Report. This report shall be a multiple tab

consolidated report representing Eligibility related information regarding Intake, Continuing

eligibility and caseload management tasks. The elements contained in the report shall be by

worker, unit, office and region: SAR 7 Completion Rate, Overdue SAR 7’s Previous Month,

CW/CF RE Completion Rate, CW/CF RE Current Month, MC RE Current Month, MC RE Current

Month Summary, Critical Tasks, and MAGI Overdue Review.

The SAR 7 Completion Rate report (tab) will provide SAR7 information for all CW, CF and CW/CF

combination cases for the respective SAR 7 Submit Month. The report shall include the following

indicators by worker, unit, office and region: Programs associated with each SAR7, Total SAR 7’s

Due, those in Received status, Sent status, Received status, Ready to Run status, Completed

status, N/A status, Incomplete status, and the Completion Rate of those SAR7s received. The

report will also identify: a) If the case has a task with task type of NHR set prior to the last

completed SAR7/RE, and display “(NHR)” next to the case number and b) identify and display

income amount/types for those CF cases with income that have a SAR 7 reports due.

The Overdue SAR 7 report (tab) will display any open SAR7s (not in 'Complete', 'Incomplete, or

'NA' status) from the prior submit month received in the current month.

The CW/CF RE Completion Rate report (tab) will provide RE information for all CW/CF cases with

RE’s due in the respective report month. The report shall include the following indicators by

worker, unit, office and region: Total CW/CF RE’s Due, those in Sent status, Received status,

Ready to Run status, Completed status, N/A status, Incomplete status, and the Completion Rate

of those REs received.

The CW/CF RE Current Month report (tab) provides information on CW and CF RE's by MAQ in

Received and Ready to Run status for the respective RE report month. The report shall include

the following indicators: MAQ, Case Number, Received On, Last Status Date, Last Status, and

Scanned in District. The report will also identify if the case has a task with task type of NHR set

prior to the last completed SAR7/RE, and if so, display “(NHR)” next to the case number.



SCOPE OF WORK, between 

eXemplar Human Services and Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services, for 

Reporting Tools and Services 

July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025

The MC RE Current Month report (tab) provides information by worker, unit, office and region 

on MC RE's in Received and Ready to Run status for the respective RE report month. Because 

the universe for all current month MC REs includes REs that are processed outside of Customer 

Reports (CR), Contractor shall include these on the report and identify these as 'RE DUE (NO 

CR)'. The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and region: MAQ, 

Case Number, Received On, Last Status Date, Last Status, and Scanned in District. The report will 

also identify each case that has a task with task type of NHR set prior to the last completed 

SAR7/RE, include “(NHR)” next to the Case number. 

The MC RE Current Month Summary report provides summary information on MC RE's in 

Received and Ready to Run status for the respective RE report month for each region and 

county total. Because the universe for all current month MC REs includes REs that are processed 

outside of Customer Reports (CR), Contractor shall identify these as 'RE DUE (NO CR)'. The 

report shall include the following indicators: RE Due (No CR), Ready to Run, Received, Total of 

Received and RE Due (No CR).  

The Critical Tasks report indicates the task type of any open task whose due date has passed or 

is one day out (up to 48 hours) in the future of the following types: Felons, Fraud, Aid Paid 

Pending, State Hearing, Sanction/Penalty, MC 355 Due, Contact Client, and for New Hire Report 

tasks if created after 5/1/17, (NHR only when associated with a SAR or RE in the respective 

report month). Also, if there are any open Change Reported tasks where description is Benefits 
Cal, regardless of the end date, it will be included. The report shall include the following 

indicators: MAQ, Case Number, Task Type, Due Date, and Assign Date. 

The MAGI Overdue Review identifies MAGI referrals that are in an 'In Process' status three or 

more days after receipt of the referral as indicated on the Referral Date on the MAGI Referral 

Detail page. The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and region: 

Received On, In Process Status Date, and Days in Process. 

3. Produce a Productivity Report. This report shall be a multiple tab report that provides

information on case actions completed by any Eligibility Worker staff. The tabs with

corresponding information will be Yesterday, Week to Date, and Month to Date for the

respective reporting month/timeframe. The report will be customized to identify completed

case actions by how they were completed in CalSAWS, i.e. running EDBC, status updates, etc.

The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and region: SAR 7s

Completed, SAR 7s put in Incomplete status, MC REs Completed, MC RE put in Incomplete

status, CF REs Completed, CF REs put in Incomplete status, CW RE Completed, CW REs put in

Incomplete status, CW/CF RE Completed, CW/CF RE Incomplete, Tasks with SAR 7/RE, Tasks

without SAR 7/RE, MEDS Alerts associated with SAR 7/RE, and MEDS Alerts not associated with a

SAR 7/RE.



SCOPE OF WORK, between 

eXemplar Human Services and Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services, for 

Reporting Tools and Services 

July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025

4. Produce an Overtime Productivity Report. This report shall provide information on case actions

completed by any Eligibility Worker staff during a Saturday overtime session. The tab with this

data will only appear on the regular Productivity Report on the Monday immediately following

the Saturday overtime session. The report will be customized to identify completed case actions

by how they were completed in Cal SAWS, i.e. running EDBC, status updates, etc.

The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and region: SAR 7s

Completed, SAR 7s put in Incomplete status, MC REs Completed, MC RE  put in Incomplete

status, CF REs Completed, CF REs put in Incomplete status, CW RE Completed, CW REs put in

Incomplete status, CW/CF RE Completed, CW/CF RE Incomplete, Tasks with SAR 7/RE, Tasks

without SAR 7/RE, MEDS Alerts associated with SAR 7/RE, and MEDS Alerts not associated with a

SAR 7/RE.

5. Produce a Consolidated Welfare to Work (WtW) Alerts report. This report shall provide multiple

reports (tabs), for use by county WtW staff, in a single consolidated report.

The WtW Alerts report (tab) shall provide information and alerts related to WtW caseload

management. It shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and region: e2Lite,

Unengaged, Non-Compliance Over 60 Days, Good Cause Over 30 Days, Activities without Service

Arrangements, Activities with No (Null) Attendance, Activities Lingering in Referred Status,

Activities Ending in 2 Weeks.

The Null Hours Carryover report (tab) shall identify cases by worker, unit, office and region that

for the respective report month, have had no WtW attendance hours entered for activities from

two months ago and prior.

The Attendance and Progress report (tab) shall provide information on the processing of WtW

733.4 forms by WtW staff. The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit,

office and region: Received, Reviewed + Completed, Reviewed + Completed Status Worker ID,

and Reviewed Rate.

The School Attendance report (tab) shall provide information on the processing of WtW 735.2

forms by WtW staff. The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and

region: Received, Reviewed + Completed, Reviewed + Completed Status Worker ID, and

Reviewed Rate.

The Travel Claims Completion Rate report (tab) shall provide information on the processing of

WtW 753A forms by WtW staff. The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit,

office and region : Claims Received, Claims Reviewed + Completed, Reviewed + Completed

Status Worker ID, Claims Reviewed/Completed Rate.



SCOPE OF WORK, between 

eXemplar Human Services and Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services, for 

Reporting Tools and Services 

July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025

The Travel Claims Carryover report (tab) shall identify the 753A forms received in a prior month, 

from the respective report month, that have never been reviewed in any way (Reviewed, 

Incomplete, NA, Denied, Error).  

The Travel Claims NA or Incomplete report (tab) shall identify by worker, unit, office and region 

753A forms in the respective report month that have never been in a completed status and are 

currently in either NA or IN status. 

The Child Care Alerts report  (tab) shall provide alerts related to the Child Care program. The 

report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and region: Child Care 

Applications Coming Due, Overdue Child Care Applications, IDT, Over 47 Months, Tasks Coming 

Due, Tasks Overdue, 12 Years + 11 Months and Older, and No Payments Issued in Last Three 

Periods. 

The Child Care Reimbursement Completion Rate report (tab) shall provide, for the respective 

report month, information on the processing of CCRR 100 forms by WtW and Fiscal staff. The 

report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and region : Received, 

Reviewed, Reviewed Status Worker ID, Reviewed Rate, Payment Issued, and Payment Issued 

Rate. 

The Carryover-Received Not Reviewed report (tab) shall identify by worker, unit, office and 

region those CCRR 100 forms, from a month prior to the respective report month, that are in a 

Received status and have not been updated to a Reviewed status. 

The Carryover-Reviewed, No Payment report (tab) shall identify by worker, unit, office and 

region those CCRR 100 forms, from a month prior to the respective report month, that are in a 

Reviewed status and have not had a payment issued. 

6. Produce an Office Assistant Productivity Report. This report shall be a multiple tab report that

provides information on clerical actions completed by Office Assistant staff. The tabs with

corresponding information will be Yesterday, Week to Date, and Month to Date for the

respective reporting month/timeframe. The report will be customized to identify completed

clerical actions by how they were completed in Cal SAWS, i.e. status updates.

The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and region: Apps Pended,

REAC’s Completed, EBT Cards Issued, Gas Cards Issued, Bus Passes Issued, Vouchers Issued,

Travel Claims Processed, HA Payments Processed, and Diaper Issuances Processed.

7. Produce an Office Assistant Overtime Productivity Report. This report shall provide information

on clerical actions completed by Office Assistant staff during a Saturday overtime session. The

tab with this data will appear on the regular Office Assistant Productivity Report only on the

Monday immediately following the Saturday overtime session. The report will be customized to

identify completed case actions by how they were completed in Cal SAWS, i.e. status updates.



SCOPE OF WORK, between 

eXemplar Human Services and Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services, for 

Reporting Tools and Services 

July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025

The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and region: Apps Pended, 

REAC’s Completed, EBT Cards Issued, Gas Cards Issued, Bus Passes Issued, Vouchers Issued, 

Travel Claims Processed, HA Payments Processed, and Diaper Issuances Processed. 

8. Produce a Foster Care Alerts Dashboard Report. This report shall provide alerts related to the

Foster Care program. The report shall include the following indicators by worker, unit, office and

region: Case Number, Foster Care Application Coming Due, Overdue Foster Care Application

Determination, Task Coming Due, Tasks Overdue, MEDS Alert, Foster Care RE Due in Next Two

Months, Foster Care RE Overdue, and SCR Ending within 30 Days.



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 9  05/21/2019 

ATTACHMENT B 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM: TO: 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 10  05/21/2019 

ATTACHMENT  C 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM:                              TO: 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS 



Specifications 2  

Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 

for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 

performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
1. Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office Form CG 00

01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis for bodily injury and property damage,
including products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability:  Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired)
and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury
and property damage.

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
(Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no

employees) 
1. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Consultant’s

profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.

If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity 

requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant. 

Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 

coverage shall be available to the Entity. 

Other Insurance Provisions 

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

Additional Insured Status 

1. The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant’s
insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG
20 37 forms if later revisions used).



Other Insurance Provisions  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

Primary Coverage 
For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant’s insurance coverage 
shall be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the 
Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

Notice of Cancellation 
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to the Entity. 
Waiver of Subrogation 

Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said 

Consultant may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such 

insurance.  Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 

waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has 

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.   

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by 
the Entity. The Entity may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay 
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses 
within the retention.   
Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity. 
Claims Made Policies 
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:     

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract 
or the beginning of contract work. 

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for 
at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, 
the Consultant must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of 
five (5) years after completion of contract work.   
Verification of Coverage 
Consultant shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage 
required by this clause.  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and 
approved by the Entity before work commences.  However, failure to obtain the 
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant’s 
obligation to provide them.  The Entity reserves the right to require complete, 



certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
required by these specifications, at any time.  

Subcontractors 
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 

requirements stated herein. 

Special Risks or Circumstances 

Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on 
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances.     



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3839  

 

Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc. Contract 
Amendment No. 7 

Planning Department 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Cathreen Richards, Planning Director Cathreen Richards, Planning Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve Amendment No. 7 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Daniel B. 
Stephens & Associates, Inc. for the provision of hydrological services to amend all sections relating to 
the Term of the agreement to be April 25, 2017 to April 25, 2024, contingent upon the adoption of the 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent on all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On March 11, 2009 the Planning Commission approved Conditional Use Permit (CUP) No. 2007-03 
(Coso Operating Company, LLC) and certified an associated Environmental Impact Report (EIR), which 
permitted the Coso Operating Company (Coso) to extract groundwater from two existing wells on its Hay 
Ranch property in the Rose Valley and transport it via pipeline to Coso’s geothermal plant at China Lake 
Naval Air Weapons Station nine miles east. Conditions of approval include a Hydrologic Mitigation 
Monitoring Plan (HMMP), which works to monitor groundwater levels in the Rose Valley and to regulate 
Coso’s groundwater pumping to ensure less than significant impacts. 
 
Inyo County is continuing to monitor Coso’s groundwater pumping pursuant to the HMMP, which also 
requires a continuation of the monitoring.  Daniel B Stephens & Associates (DBSA) had been providing 
hydrological consulting services for the project consistently since the onset. DBSA’s contract term 
expired on April 25, 2020, but the County still has the need for hydrologic consulting relating to the 
ongoing pumping and the HMMP, necessitating the need to extend the contract. An updated fee 
schedule is also included in the amendment. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Coso Monitoring & Mitigation Fund Balance, 503823 Budget Unit 023800 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could not approve the amendment. This is not recommended as Daniel B. Stephens 
Associate, lnc.'s history and expertise are valuable assets for the County to utilize as hydrological 
consultants for the ongoing monitoring required by the HMMP. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Inyo County Water Department. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. DB Stevens Contract Amendment 7 
2. DB Stevens Contract Amendment 6 
  
APPROVALS: 
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 6/6/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/6/2023 
Cathreen Richards Approved - 6/6/2023 
Keri Oney Approved - 6/9/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/16/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/16/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Superrisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 5th day of April 2022an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Planning -
DB Sfevens
Contract
Amendment 6

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment No.
6 to the contract between the County of lnyo and DB Stevens and Associates for the provision
of hydrological services in an amount not to exceed $70,000 for the period of April 25,2017 to
April 25, 2023, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets, and authorize the
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon allappropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried
unanimously.

II4TNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 5th

ooy of-4p41,2-02

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

{*xb{ U4u+'t'r'ta-'-

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cA0
Other: Planning
DATE: April 5,2022 By:



County of Inyo

Planning Department

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: April 5,2022

FROM: Cathreen Richards

SUBJEGT: Amendment #6 to DB Stevens and Associates contract for hydrological services

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 6 to the contract between the County of lnyo and DB Stevens and
Associatesforthe provision of hydrologicalservices in an amount notto exceed $70,000forthe period of April
25,2017 to April 25,2023, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets, and authorize the
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

On March 11,2009 the Planning Commission approved Conditional Use Permit (CUP) No. 2007-03 (Coso
Operating Company, LLC) and certified an associated Environmental lmpact Report (ElR), which permitted the
Coso Operating Company (Coso) to extract groundwater from two existing wells on its Hay Ranch property in the
Rose Valley and transport it via pipeline to Coso's geothermal plant at China Lake Naval Air Weapons Station
nine miles east. Conditions of approval include a Hydrologic Mitigation Monitoring Plan (HMMP), which works to
monitor groundwater levels in the Rose Valley and to regulate Coso's groundwater pumping to ensure less than
significant impacts.

lnyo County is continuing to monitor Coso's groundwater pumping pursuant to the HMMP. Additional monitoring
is necessary based on Coso's modified pumping levels. Daniel B Stephens & Associates (DBSA) has been
providing hydrological consulting services for the project. DBSA's contract term is set to expire on April 25,2022,
but the County still has need for hydrologic consulting relating to the ongoing pumping and the HMMP,
necessitating the need to extend the contract. An updated fee schedule is also included in the amendment.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could not approve the amendment. This is not recommended as Daniel B. Stephens Associate, lnc.'s
history and expertise are valuable assets for the County to utilize as hydrological consultants for the ongoing
monitoring required by the HMMP.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request
PageT:'

FINANCING:
Financing will continue to be provided by deposit from Coso (Coso Monitoring & Mitigation Fund Balance,
503823). Work on tasks in accordance with this contract may carry forward into future budgets and will be
evaluated accordingly during the budget process.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. DB Stevens and Associates Contract Amendment No. 6
2. DB Stevens and Associates Contract, Amendments 1-5

APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards
Darcy Ellis
Aaron Steinwand
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd
Cathreen Richards

Created/l nitiated - 312412022
Approved - 312412022
Approved - 313012022
Approved - 313112022
Approved -313112022
Final Approval - 313112022



AMENDMENT NO. SIX TO TIIE AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

DAT|OL B. STEPIIENS & ASSOCIATES. INC. FOR THE
PROVISION OF' PRO}'ESSIONAL SERVICES

WIIEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County,') and Daniel B.
Stephens & Associates, lno. (hereinafter refered to as Contractor) have enlered into an
Agreement for the provision of professional services dated May 2,2017 on county of
Inyo Standard Contract No. I 56 for the term from April 25, 201? to April 25, 201 B.

WHERf,AS, the County and tho Contractor agreed to Amendment No. One to the
Agreement to Amend Section 2 -TERM to April 25,2017 to April 25,2}lg_

WHEREAS, the County and the Contrastor agreed to Amcndment No. Two to the
Agreement to Amend Section 2 - TERM to April 25,2017 ro Aprit 25,2020.

WHEREAS, the county and the contractor agreed to Amendment No. Three to the
Agreement to Amend Scction 2 -TERM to April 25,2017 to April ZS, 2021.

lyrlEREAs, the counry and the contractor agreed to Amendment No. Four to the
Agreoment lo Amend Section 2 - TERM ro April 25,2017 to April 25, Z0ZZ.

WHEREAS' the county and the contractor agreed to Amendment No. Four to the
Agreement to Amend Section 3 - consideration, D. Limit upon amount payable under
Agreement to $70,000.

WHEREAS' the county and the contractor agreed to Amend No. 5 to the agreement
to Attachment B - schedule of Fccs to reflect the attached'€alifomia schedule of
Fees (Effective January 1,2020 through December 31,2020),

WIIEREAS, such Agreement provides that it nray be modified, amended, ohanged,
added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such
amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same formalities as such
Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

WIIIREAS' Cotrnty and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as
set fofih below.

County and Contractor hereby emend such Agreement ag follows:

Amend Seotion 2 - TERM to April 25,2017 to Apr.il ZS,2OZ3
Amend Attachment B - Schedule of Fees to reflect the attached
"California Schedule of Fees (Effectivc January l,Z0ZZ through
December 31,2022).

o

Amendment #6 to County of Inyo Smndard Contract - No, 156



AMENDMENT NO. SIx TO THB AGREEMEN'I'BBTWEEN THE COUNTY OF
INYO AND

DANIEL B, STBPHENS & ASSOCIATES,INC.
ITOR THE PROVTSION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

IN WITNESS T}IEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET TI{EIR HANDS AND
sEALs THIS sth DAY OR April2022

COUNTY CONTRACTOR

By: By:

llo+c ' 04t05t2022

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

a-4-/A-s

&";,*t-. (:74"/D"'bd

Dato: l/1*/ff

County Counsol

County Auditor

TO ACCOLTNTING FORM:

REQUIREMENTSTW*
Director of Personnel Services

County

AS TO RISKASSESSMENT:

Amendment #6 to County of lnyo Standord Contract - No. 156



Danlel B, Stephens & Assoclales, Inc

California Schedule of Fees
(Effective J anuary l, 2022 through December 31, 2022)

Conti&nttal

Professional Services

................$1 60.00llpur
.......$142.O0lhour

CADD/GIS/Database I,................"..
Senior Technical Editor.....,,....

Expenses
Travel

Airfare, car rental, cab,
Lodging, meals, phone
Mileage

.$120.00lhour

.$140.00/hour
Technical Editor............ ......$115.00/hour

Ac,lual cost
Actual cost or negoliated per diem rates

Personal vehicle .,.,,-.....,. ........-......... Prevaillng IRS rates

"..,,. Actual cosl plus 10%
.......- Labor plus materials

Ac'lual cosl plus 10olo
Meters, gauges, and monitors Separate schedule available upon request

TERJ}'S
Payment lerms for pnfessional *ruicp,s and expensas a re net 30 days. lJnpald balance rvill be assessed a sevicg lee of 1.5%

i/orEs
1. All fses an subJact lo loel/slale sa/es orgross reeipts tax, as applicable.2, Deliwry ol depslllons ot ox!€.y'. leslifirony wlll be bllbd at 1 .S times Fee Schedute rates.
3. Work raquiing Health & Saft/qu Lewt C or Leval B protection will be billed as e surciarge, $25 ar 850 pr hour,

nspctively, tothe Fee Sfiedule rates.
4, A seruia fee of 3% will be chaged for credil card payments.
5. Houly ntes and expenses we subject to annual ufiates.

bus, parking....,



AMENDMENT NO. FIVE TO THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF TNYO AND

DANiliL lt. $'l'EptI0NS & Atisoc'tA't'lt.$. tNC. FoR THB
pRovrsroN oF pRqrE$stoNAL SERVICES

WHEREAS, thc County ol lnyo (lrereinaftcr retbr.r'ed to as "County") and Danicl B.
Stephels & Associutes, lnc. (hereirtnlter rcf'errcd to as Coutractor) hirvc cntcrctl into a11

Agreement fbl thc provision olprot'essional setviccs dated May 2,2017 on County of
lnyo Standard Contlact No, l5(r lbrthc tcrnr liorn Apr.il 25,2017 to April 25,201X.

WHE,REAS, the County and the C-'ontr'actor agr.ecd to Amcudurcut No. Oue to thc
Agleerrrent to Arnentl Seclion 2 -TERM to Apr.il 25,2017 to April 25,20lr9.

WHEREAS, the County and tlre Contl'actor agreed to Arnendurcnt No. 'fwn to thc
Agreernent to Amend Se ctiorr 2 - TERM to Apr.il 25,2AL7 to April ?5,202A.

WHEREAS, the Ctrunty anti the Clonllactol Bgl'ee(l to Amendnrent No. Three ttr the
Aglcenrent to Amcnd Section 2 -'l'ERM to April 25,2017 to Apr.il 25,20Zl .

wtIERtrAs, the Couuty and thc colrtractor oglcccl to Amondment No. Four to thc
Agrecnrent to Arnend Sectiou 2 - TERM to April 25,2017 to April 25,202?.

WHEREAS, the Courrty and the Contractor agreed to Anrendme nt No. Four to the
Agrcemcnt to Atnctrd Section 3 - Considcration, D. Linrit upon anlorult payablc urrder
Agrcernent to $70,000.

wHBRI'IAS, $uch ngreernent ploviclcs thnt it rnay bc rnoditicd- amendcd. changed,
added to, or sutrhacted ftom. by the nrutunl cotlsent ol'the par.ries thereto, ilsuch
atrtettdtttettl or chalge is jrr writtcn tblm, and executcd with thc some lorrnalities as such
Agreenrenl. and attaehed to tlrc oliginal Agrecrncnt to mnirrtain coutinuity.

WHEREAS, County and Contractot'do clesirc 10 conserrt. to aurcncl such Agrecrterrt as
sr:t fbtth bclow.

Coutrty and Contructor hereby amend such Agreentelt as follows:

Aurend Attachment B - Scrheclule of Fees to r.etlect the attached
"California Schedule of Fees (Efit'ective Jartrary 1,202A through
December I l. 2020).

Alteurhncnl /15 to CJounly of luyo Srandurd Contrnct - No, t56



AMENDMENT NO. Ery&TO TnS AGRSEMENT BnTWEEN THE COUNTY
OFINYOANI'

DANIRL n. gf l:pHnNtl & ASS0(:lA'l'l'l!1. t N(:.
F.OR THE PROVISION OT PROTES$IONAL SERWCES

lN IyITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THntR HANDS
ANI' SEALS THIS lsIhPAY O]' June 2921 ,

COUNTY coNTIIACTOn

By: By: *
Dated:Dalcd: 0F,l15l2O21

LEOALTTY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCO1JNTING FORM:

/A,;*;,
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TCI PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

-**: c:( -
Dirpctor of Porsonnel Services

APPROVBD AS 10 RISK ASSBSSMBNN

County Rlsk

olffix:$4 ,fu*
az{nozt

-7"

Amundment 4J lo Counly of lnyo Stondfird Contfect - No. 156



Daniel B. Stephens & Associttes, Inc,

Callfornia Schedule of Fees
(Effeclive January 1, 2020 through December 31 , 2020)

Confldentlal

Professional Servlces
Principal Professional 11,,,.,,.,......,...,. ,...,..... $305.00/hour
Principal Professional 1.........,.....,,.... ... ...... g260.00/hour
Senior Professional ll .,. $240.00/hour
Senior Professional I g215.00/hour
Projecl Professional 111.,,................ .....,....,.,9195.00/hour
froject Professional 11,....,.,.....,....., 9180,00/hour
Brojggt Professional 1..,...,..,.....,..... g165.00ihour
Stafi Professional lll $145.00/hour
Stafi Professional ll ........... ... $tgS.OO/hour
Staff Professional I ............ ... $125.00/hour
$anaging Technlcian .,...,.,,. $155.00/hour
lrinclpal Technician .....,....... $tss.00/hour
Technician tv....,............. ,,....$tzs.oo/hour
Technician lll ................,. .".... g115.00/hour
Technician fl,...............".. ...... $tos.oo/trour
Technician I .................... ...... $100.00/hour
GIS Specia1ist,...,...,.,..,,,..., .. $1go.oo/hour
Q4PP Qpeqla|ist.. ............ . .. $rgo.oohour
CADD/GlS/Database t1.................... ,..,....... $tzs.oohour
CADD/GlS/Database 1..................... ........,..$115.00/hour
Senior Technical Editor ..,. $130.00/hour
Technical Editor............ ,,....., |itoo,ooltrour
lroje"t Assistant 1t.......,.. .... ..." ..,.,.,....,.., ,,.:$98,00/hour
floJecl Assistanr 1.,.........,,...,.,., $85.00/hour
Biologist 11............,..,... ........., $108.00/hour
Biologlst 1..........-......... ..........,....., S98.00/hour

Travel
Airfare, car rental, cab,
Lodging, meals, phone
Mlleage

Expenses

?11:.llllll*,:::::::::::...:::::.:::.::::.:::.: ::::::::.::::, ilil;i;;;i;;;;;ii;u;;,l?lHififfj

P,3iLj$?;i;::::;: ::,:::::::::: ::: : :: . :::::::::: ::: ::;: :: :: : :,::,..::: : :::.:::.: :::: , :::: . ::$;b/fl:fl':ll; 33ll[i3l::::l
Subconlreclorgrlsmporgry servlce personnel ,,,.,.Aclual cos-l plus 10%
computers and mmmunioallone ,,,,,..,.,,,.,,,,,. .....,...Special servlces al addltlonbl charge
Equipment

B6.nFls.(s.q.,onvlrionmental monitors)........... Actual cost plus 10%

tWsc. fleldequlpment and.Bupplles ................ Actual iostplus 10%
Met6r8, g6uga8, and monltols..,.. ,,...,,,,....separate schedule available upoh requesl

rgRlts
Payment aams fot Professional sevicos and exponsos aro net 30 days. aJnpetd balanos ylll be essessad e sdruioe fea of I .S%
per monlh.

TVOIES
l. Allfees dre subj$cl lo lrc.orsaate sales orgross rece,pls lex, as qppllceblo.
2. Oelivery of daposrriofls or e,(psrl testimony witt ba bllled at I .S tiiris Ftle Schodu/o ratee3' Wotk r€qulrlng Haalth & Salely Levsl C or Level B protection wllt be btlted as a sutchdrge, g25 ot g5O pet hour,

respectivaly, lo tho F€€ Scfiedu/€ faftrs.
4. A seruice fee d 3o/o wlll be charged for ercdit card payments,



AMENDMENT NO. FOUR TO TI{E AGREEMENT
BETWEEN TIIE COUNTY O['INYO AND

DANIEL B. STEPHENS & ASSOCIATqS. INC: FOR TI{E
PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lrtyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Daniel B,
Stephens & Associates, Inc, (hcrcinaftcr refencd to as Contractor) havc entered into an
Agreernent for the provision of professional services dated May 2,2017 on County of
Inyo Standard Contract No. 156 for the term from April 25, 2017 to April 25, 2018.

WHER.DAS, the County and the Contractor agreed to Amendment No. One to th6
Agreernent to Amend Scction 2 - TERM to April 25,7017 to April 25,2019.

WHERtrAS, the County and the Contractor agreed to Amendment No. Two to the
Agreement to Arnend Section 2 - TERM to April 25,2017 to April 25,2020,

WHEREAS, the County ancl the Contractor agreed to Amendment No. Three to the
Agreement to Amend Scction 2 -TERM ro April 25,2017 to April 25,2A21.

WHERBAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed,
added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such
amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the samc formalities as such
Agreement, and attached to the original Agreernent to maintain continuity,

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as
set forth below,

County and Contractor hercby amend such Agreemcnt as follows:

. Amcnd Section 2 - TERM to April 25,2017 to April 25,2022

Amend Section 3 - Considelation, D. Lirnit upon amount payable under
Agreement to $70,000

c

Amendment #4 ro Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No, 156



AMENDMENT NO.f,OURTO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THECOUNTV
OF INYO ANI)

DANTEL B. STEpHnry$* As$OclAras. Nc.
, tr'oR THE PROVISION OX,PROI'ESSIOJ{AL SERVICES

IN WITNESS TH0RSOT, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SOT TttErR HANDS
AND SEALS fIIl$ 21st DAY OX' 3021

COI,INTY CONTRACTOR

nv,, d/,1{ .- 'i.-,/,1a7n.,. By: , .- ' .,'l'! '' ' ',,

('; /;' '-/7-
Da1ad; 4412112021

Jarncd A. Kelsey,'President
Dated: Ivlarch 8. 2021

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Mnn fln,rrrh,k -
County Counsal

AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNET. REQUTREMENTS:

of

APPROVED AS TO RISK

County Risk

Amendment #4 to County of lnyo Standsd Conlraat . No. l j6



AMENDMENT NO. THRAE TO TFIS AGREEMENT
BITWEDN THE COUNTY OF INYO ANI)

pANr[L B. STp,PTIENS & Agn0(:tATn$. tNc. FoR THI
pRovrsroN oF pBqFESSrgNAr SARVTCES

WHEREAS, the counry of lnyo (herelnaflg rcfered to as "county") and Danior B.
stcphenr & Aososidq, lnc. (huoinafter rcfcgrd lo as conlrnctor) 6avc cntcrcd lnro an
Agreerncnt forfte provlsion of pmfossionrl servlccr duted May z,z0l7 on county of
lnyo strndard contract No. t 56 fut rhe tcrrn from April 25, 20i? io April 2s,20rb,

wIIERnAs' tho county and thc contruror agrecd to Amendment No. onc to the
Agreement to Amend Scction 2 - TERM to April ZS,20l7 to April 25,2019.

WHEREAS! tho county ond thc contmctor agreed to Amcndment No. Two to thc
Agreemont to Amcnd Section 2 -TERM to Aptit 2S,Z0l7 to April ZS,ZO2O,

WIIEREAS, srrch Agrecmcnt providec that it mry bc modificd, Rmended, chrngcd,
added to, or subtracl€d fronr, by lhc $ulual conscni of tho purtios fieroto, if such
amondmcnt or ehcnge is in writtcn form, and orccutcd witfi the same hrmalities qs such
Agreernent and attachcd to lhe originat Agrccmcnt to mrintain continuity,

wllERPA$, county and contractor do desire to conscnt to amend such Agreemcnt as
sst foilh hclow.

County rnd Contmctor horoby amend luch Agreemeot ro follows:

. Arnend Section 2 , TERM to April ZS,ZOIT to April25,202l

Amsndment #3 ro Counry of lnyo Srandard Contract . No. I j6



rMENDnEin ilo. IllIlTo rf,s AormruNr EsTwttN TilB coUNTy
fftNVOAilt

loR

TN WIITIITI NOREO& EI P^nlll3TltMNO f,AI'X IDTflllAtlATDO
rilD tf,All lXtrC--DAy OF_, _r

GOUNTY

8yr -- -- 8y:

A$

A!9 lO POiM AI{D LE0ALtfYr

AS lDAccOUNtlNOF0[lr|l

TO

Anr.t.lmt;l fr SmVotlrrnttrtrdOCrt-m. ail



AMENDMENT NO. TW.q TO THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN TI{E COUNTY O]'INYO AND

DANIEI" B. STEPIIDNS & 4gtioct^'t'lt$. tNCl I'oR THE
pRovIsIoN oF PROI,ESSTONAL SERVTCSq

wHoREAs, thc county of Inyo (heroinrffor rofoned lo as "county') and Dnniot B.
Stophene & Anrociatos, Inc (horoinaften refenod to s$ Conmctor) irrve entsrcd into an

fercgmenl for thc provision of pofoorioul gcrvicoo datod May i,20fi on county of
lnyo strndard contraot No. t56 for rhe tcrm fiom April 2s,rilj ro April zs, 20tit.

WHEREAS, tho county and rho contractor agreed to Amendmont No. onc to the
Agrecmont to funond Section 2 - TERM to ^l,pril ZS, 20t7 to April ZS, 2}lg.

WHEREA$, ouch Agroemont pmvidcr that it maybe modified, cmonded, ohanged,
addcd lq or subtracted ftom, by fte mutual conrourt of thc partios thcroto, if such
amendmcnt or chango ls in wdtten form, nnd executed witi thc ssmc formatitiss as such
Agrecment, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity,

wIlE!_EA-s, county and conttactor do dcsire to aonsent to amcnd suoh Ageomont as
sct forth bolow.

Couuty rnd Contractor hereby emend luch Agreement m follows:

o Arnend Section 2 - TERM to April 2S,2Ol7 to April ZS,ZOZO

Amcndmsnt #2 to Counly of layo Slondard Contraol - No. I j6



II{ WITNE0S THENDOF. TIIE PARTr&g HENETO IIAVI 8ET THEIN ilANDB
AND SEALB THIS ltdt pAT or Af a t , -/4,!L,

AMf,NDUAilT NO. TWp TO TRE AorunMlln E0TWSIN TflE COUrtrTy
OFINVOAIID

FOn

COUITITY s0l{t[acrsB

i

By: -

Drtod:

ASTO TBOALITY:

CounU

^ffi': FORM:

--.-'*-
CoutrtyArdilor

A8 RBQUTREMEN?8:

TORISK

Anondnont llt to Goun(y of Inyo Sttnd(d Coiltrol . No, I !6



AMENDMENT NO. ONE TO THE AGR.EEMENT
BETWEEN TIIE COUNTY OF'INYO AND

I}ANIEL B. STEP HENS & . FOR THI
PROVISION OF PROT'ESSIONAL SERVICES

WHERDAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafler referred to as "County") and Daniel B.

Stephons & Associates, lnc. (hereinaffet referred to as Contraator) have entered into an

Agreement for the provision of profcssional serviccs dated May 2,201'l on County of
Inyo Standard Contraot No. 156 for the tenn from April 25,2017 to April 25, 2018.

WHER"EAS, County and Contractor do desife to consent to amend such Agreement as

set forth below.

WHEREAS, such Agreementprovides that it may be modificd, amended, changed,

added to, or subtracted ftom, by the mUtual consent of the parties thereto, if such

amendment or change is in written form, and executed with ttrc same formalities as such

Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity,

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire to consent to amend such Agreement as

set forth below,

County and Contractor hereby amend ruch Agrcement as follows:

r Amend Section 2 - TERM to April 25,2017 to April 25,2AL9

Amcndtnent # I to County of tnyo Standard Contracr - No' 156



AMENDMENT NO. gNg TO TRB AGREEMnNT BETWIEN THE COUNTY OF
INYO AIYD

DANISL n. STEPHSN$ & An$OClAl'n$.lN(,
FOR TgE PROVISION OTSROFESSTONAt SERVIqgq

IN
AN

W|TNDSS 'rHlr]ltn()lr, THE PAlt:fllqS HERETO HAVS Sl':'l"l'llBlB IIANDS
D snAl.s rt'il$i.Llllb tlAv or l\i'n \. , -..J dh- .

g0uNTv

vv,-P* *.Z=F;i- Bv:

oatedz 1/_112_n -_1./ .,.

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEOALITYT

\/r-q, tt,r--

County Counsel

APPROIUED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

CountyAuditor

A Asd.'o I'J REQUIREMENTS;

ofPersonnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

" ril
County

l'-i^-ll
RiRk lr4rrrrngt r

Amondmon( #l to County oftnyo Standanl Coniract - No' 156



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Daniel B. & Associales, lna.

FOR THE PROVISION OF

IIIITRODUCT|ON

and
conditlons hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONOITIONS

'1. scoPE oF woRK.

The Consultant shall furnish to lhe County, upon its request, those services and work set forth ln
Attachment A, atlached h€reto and by reference incorporaled herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Agr€ement will be made by the Water Deparlment Director

inffi iXl,l.il:1"":f 
""'"l,XT1'J",J"::if:i'#1fi 

';:ff'TJ;'#i"Xi$i
wananty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work wlll be request€d of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligalion or
requirement to request from Consultant lhe performance of any seruices or work al all, even if County should
havs some need for such services or woft during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provlclecl by the Consultani at the Countfs reguest under this Agreement will be
pedormed ln a manner consistent with lhe requiremenls and stendards established by appllcable federal,
stal.e, and County laws, ordinances, regulatlons. and resolulions. Such lals, ordinances, regulalions, and
resolution$ include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in lhis Agreement and, as appllcable, as
set forth, in Attachment E, attachad hereto and incorpolated herein.

2. TERM.

Tho term of this Ag.eement shal be ge6 April 25,2A17 to Aptil 25,2018 untess
sooner lerminated as provided below. ln addition, Counly shall have two options to €xtand the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

A. From lhrough

B. From 

-through 
--

Counly shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor al least thirty (30) days
before the expiration oi the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exerclsed. The option to exlend shall be upon
the same terms and condltlons staled in lhis Agreement,

3, CONSIDERATION.

A. Compons:lliol, County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forlh as Altachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at lhe County's request,

County of lnyo Slandard Contracl - No- 156
(lndependent Consultant -Professional)

Page I
12272016



B.
diem which incurs
Consultsnt shall request approval

lo
bylhe

incur and per diem expenses shall be submitt€d to lhe
diem

expenses wlth the rates sel Diem
Paymenl (Atlachment G). Counly reserves lhe right to deny reimbursemenl to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses which are either in sxcess of the amounts that rnay be pald under the rates set forlh ln
Attachment C, or which are incuned by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. ftlo aJdili,olgl consirlersllon. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled lo, nor r€ceive, from Counly, any addltlonal consideration, compensalion, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under thls Agreement. Speclflcally, Consultant shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to considarallon in the form of ovenlme, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disabillty retirement benetits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holldays, or olher paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

O. Lhttil upon arnount oavable u8dor Aoreenlenl. The total sum of all payments mado by the Counly
to Contractorfor sgrvlcgs and work performed under lhls Agreement shall not exc€ed
$40.000 . = . .* --* (lnlllal tem) $0 (option 1) and $0 (option 2) for a
total of $40.000- Dollars (hereinalter referred to as "contracl lirnif'). County expressly reserves
the right to deny any paymenl or reimbursemont requested by Contractor for services or work perlormed
which is in excess of the contract limlt,

E. Billino and oavnienl. Consultant shall submlt to the County, once a month, an ltemizsd
statoment of all hours spent by Consultanl in performing servlces and work described in Attachment A, which
were dons at the County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth
(5th) day of tho month. The statement to be submitted wlll cover the period from the lirst (1st) day of lhe
preceding month through and including the lasl day of lhe preceding month. This stalemenl will idenlify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe tre nature of lhe work which was performed on each day,
Consultant 's statamenl lo the County will also include an ltemlzatlon of any lravel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved ln advance by Counly, incurred by consultant durlng that period. The itemized
statemont for lravel expenses and per dlem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance wilh the County's accounling procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of lhe
stiatement by lhe fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
rnonth.

FEderal and State taxes.

(t) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) belovrr, County will not wlthhold any
federal or slate income taxes or soclal security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income laxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non.Galifornia resident indepenclent Consultant's
when it is anllcipated that total annual payments to Consultant under lhis
Agreernent will exceed one thousand four hundred ninely nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as sel forth abov€, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this
Agreement. Payment of all taxes and olher assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has rro responsibility or liability
for payment of Consultants iaxes or assessments.

County of lnyo Standgrd Contract - No 150

(lndependenl Consultanl -ProfeEslofi al)
pege z

F

1227?016



(4) The total amounts paid by Counly lo Consultant, and taxes withheld from
paymenls to non-Californla r$idents, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenua Service and the Californh State Franchise Tax Board. To
tacilitate this reportlng, Consultant shall complete and submit to the Counly
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-O upon executing thls
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obllgation is lo perform, in a tlmely manner, those services and work identilied in
Altachment A which are requested by the County. lt lE understood by Consultant that lhe performance of
these servlces and work will requlre a varied schedule. Consultant will anange his/her own schedule, but wlll
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
perforrned wlthln he timo frame set forih by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licensos, cerlifioates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments lor Consultant to provide lhe serylces and work described ln attachment A must be procured by
Consultanl and be valid at lhe time Consultant enters inlo this Agreement or as otherwise may be required,
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such llcenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and efhct. Licens€s, cerliticatss, and permits may include, bul are not llmited lo, driver's
licenses, plofessional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permils
will be procured ard mainlalned in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidenco of current and valid licenses, certilicates and
permits whlch are required to perform lhe services idenlified in Attachment A. Where lhere is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certillcates, and permits are required to perform tha
services identilied in Attachment A, Counly reseryes the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultent warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, doclarod ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from pafiiclpatlon in covered transactlons by any
federal department or agency. Consultanl also warrants lhat it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal lunds as listed in the Llst of Partles Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Prograrns issued by the General Services Administration available at: l:fltil{yunU$Au\..SSl.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETG.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the seruices identifled in Atlachment A to thls
Agreement. Coun$ is nol obligated to reirnburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incuned by
Consultant ln procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incuned by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and pbligation of Consultanl.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Persoml Prgierty ol CqunlI, Any personal property such as, but not limited lo, prolective
or salety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to lhis
Agreement are, 6nd at the lerminatlon of this Agreement ramain, the sole and exclusive property of Counly.
Consultant will use reasonable care to proiect, safeguard and maintain such ilems while ihey are in
Consultanl's possession, Consullant will be financially responsible lor any loss or damage to such items,
partial of total, which is lhe result of Consultanl's negligence.

B- Prs-d-uelg -ol-C-ansultant's Wofi and .$.eJyiaQS. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, s, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, prqcesses, photographs, slides, video tapes, compuler

Counly ol lnyo Slsndard Contracl - No. 1 56
(lndepehd€nt Consultant -Prolessional)

Page 3

12272015



programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentalions, exhlblts, reports, studies, works of art, invenlions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
producl, or manifeslation of, Consultant's services or work under ihis Agreement are, and at lhe termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole snd exclusive property of the County. Al lhe termination ol lhe
A$€ement, Consultant will convey possession and title lo all such properlies lo Gounly.

6. INSURANCE REQUIREME}ITS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duralion of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount speclfi€d ln Attachment D and with the provislons specifled in that attachmenl.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acls of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be perforned as independent Consultant's, and not as agenls, officers, or employees of
County. Gonsultant, by vlrtue of thls Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligatlon on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authorlty or responslbillty to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County, No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considared an employee of Counly. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any clrcumslances be construed or consldered to create an employer-employee ralatlonship or a
joint venture. As en independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of pefiorming the work and
seruices to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be lesponsible to County only for lhe requirements ard results specmed in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in thls Agreement, shall not be subjected to Gounty's
control wilh respect to lhe physical action or activities of Consultant in fullillment of lhis Agreement.

C. Consult€nt, its agents, officers, and employees ar€, and at all tim€s during lhe term of this
Agreement shall, reptesent and conduct lhemselves as independent Consultant's, and nol as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under this Conlracl, Consultant agrees io indemnify, including
the cost to defend County and its ofiicers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or llability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
wlllful misconduct of Consultant and its employee$ or ag€nls in the perlormance of professional services
under lhis conlract, but this lndemniiy does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its officers, ofiicials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damag€s, lo$ses, and expenses including attorney fees arising
out of the perlormance of the work described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone direclly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the actlve negllgence, sole
negligence, or willful mlsconduct of the County.

Consultanfs obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold th€ County, lts agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provislons of lhis paragraph is not limited to, or restrictEd by, any requirement
ln this Agreement for Consultanl to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains
higher lirnits than the mlnlmum lequke( on the lnqqf.qnc€ a{gphn-ent to !hl-$ Agregnen!, !h9 Coudy rqquiGs
and shall be enlitl€d to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the ConsulGnt.

Counly of lnyo Slandard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultanl -Profsssional)

Page 4
12272016



To tho extent permiiled by law, Coqnty shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litlgation costs and atlorney's lees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, ils ofiicers, or employees.

1t. RECORDS ANDAUDIT,

A. Lerqg€, Consultant shall prepare and mainlain all records required by the various
provisions of lhis Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinanc€s, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall malntain lhese records for a minimum of four (4) yearc from lhe terminalion or complelion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligallon to malntain records as required by this paragraph by
subslilute photographs, microphotographs, or other authenlic reproductlon of such records,

B. lnsoeQllo.ns- q.ngAq$tb. Any authorized repres€ntiative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited lo, financial records of Consultanl, whicfi
County determines to be pertinent to thii Agreement, for the purposes of making audil, evalualion,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such r€cords are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, Counly has the righl, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspecl, or otherwise evatuate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12, NONDISCRIMINATION.

Durlng lhe performance of this Agreement, Consullant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discrimlnato in vidation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicanl for
employment, or person recelving services under this Agreement, b€cause of race, rellgion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handlcap, medical condilim, marilal slatus, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply wilh the provlsions of the Fair Employment and Housing Acl
(Government Code section '12900, et seq.), and the appllcable regulatons promulgaled lhereunder in the
California Code of Regulations, Consultant shall also abidE by lhe Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1, 8B-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County wilhout cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thlny (30) days written noiice of such lntent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days willten nolice of such intent to
cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT,

This is an agreement for lhe services of Consullanl. County has r€li€d upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducem€nl lo enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall nol
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, withoul the express writlen consent of County.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due uncler this Agreement without the
prior written consenl of County,

16. OEFAULT

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails ln any way as required to conducl the work and services as required by
County, County may declare tho Consullant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
wriften notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, Gounty will pay lo Consultant all amounts

-qqi.4g-tq-,Qg,nsqlLatt tqr ss.r-vice-s-end work-salisfaclorily-perfomed,to-the date of-termlnatlon. -

Counly ol lnyo Slendard Conttact - N0.156
(lndependent Consullant -Professional)

Page 5

12272016



16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by eilher pady lo this Agreement shall not be deemed lo be waiver of any
subsequent default. Walver or breach of any provlsion of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a moditication of the terms of ttrls
Agreement unless this Agreement is modilied as provided ln paragraph twenty.two (22) below,

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consullant furlher agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, slate, and county laws,
regulalions, and ordinances providing that informatlon and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consullanl in lhe course of provlding services and work under thls Agreemenl, shall be privileged, reslrlcted,
or conftdentlal. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of suctr
confidential, privilegect, or protected information shall be made $ Consultant only wilh th6 express written
consent of the County. Any disdosure ol conlldential informalion by Consultant wilhout lhe County's wrilten
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstending anything in th6 Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving publlc social
services are conficlential and are to be protected from unaulhorized disclosure in accordance with Titl6 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portabillly and Accqlntablllg Act of 1996,
and Sections 10050 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, an<l regulatlons adopted pursuanl
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all informatlon, records, and data elements pertainlng to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

1E. CONFLTCTS.

Consultant agroes lhat il has no interest, ard shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not lo uso any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is geined
from the County in lhe course of providing services and work under thls Agreemont, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement, Further, Consultant agrees for a perlod of two years after tho terminalion of thls
Agreemeni, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporalion, or person who,
during the lerm of thls Agreement, has had an adverse or conllicting inlerest wlth lhe County, or who has
been an adverse party ln lltlgatlon with the Couniy, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of ihls
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privlleged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of ihis Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiclion, or if it is found in coniravenlion of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of thls Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be lnvalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and lffect lo lhe exleni thal the
provisions of thls Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDINGLIMITATION.

The abllity of County to enler this Agreement is based upon available funding lrom various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce; or modify this Agreement, or any of ils terms within ten (10) days of its notifling
Consultant of the cancellalion, reduction. or modificatlon of available funding, Any reduction or modilication
Of thls Aofeemant made oursuant to lhls orovlslon musl comolv wilh tho renrrlrcmenls of naranrnnh h^rcnlv-

Counly o[ lnyo Slandsrd Cotrtract - No. 156

(lndepondenl Consullant -Prolesslonal)
Page 6

two (22) (Amendment).

12272016



22, AMENDMENT.

. 
This Agreement may b-e modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual

pnsql of the parties hereto, lf such amendment or chang! ls in written form and executed wlih the same
formalities as lhls Agleement, and attached to the orlglnalA:greement to msintain conilnuity.

29. NOT|CE,

Any notice, communication, amendmenls, additions, or deletions to lhis Agreement, including
change of address of ellher party durlng the terms of this Agreement, which Consultanl or County shail b6
required, or m€y desire, to make, shall be in wriling and may be personally served, or sent by pripaid first
class mall to, ihe respeclive parlies as follows: -

Counly oflnyor
Waler D€psdmonl. Attn,: Bob Hafiinoton Departmoniffi

3,{9!;'ir,","

& Assoclates, lnc, Name
Address
Clty and State

24. ENTIREAGREEMENT.

. This Agreemenl contains lhe entire agreernont ol the parlies, and no representations, inducements,
promises. or agreements otherwlse let"eq the parties nol embodied herein or incorporated herein by
leference,.shall be.ol any force or elfoct. Furlher, no term or provlsion hereof may Ue'insrg€d, Gived
dischargad, or terminated, unless lhe sam6 be in uwiting exefljted by tho parlies heret6.

,r ,,

County ol lnyo Sland8rd Contract - No, 1 56
(hdependent Consultant -Professional)

Pag6 7

12272016



tr0tlfil
rtDd

Q_'H!Fl!t!!t!pr!ru-d4|l
rt'oll - FruloFrrDqc ofi{ p sl58r

:8rilB!ffinGt

*lllutEn

.r{$ryCrp,{1rrnoc

;ffi;H;W;i
PTry*lqt'

l, '.\ 
t t\r' I

arunilnuu'rruroeufi ot rv o;r46laav

t__ * * x{ilTvjfilyr,' 
*)on,**rrno).rr*n$"Jo

lv

1 fi9flllE[ir6

( 'Ltlels-tla
_ n*,.pffffit _tq

mtr[ilrF

${r 
',ym 

oilyss{w sEHr .,s */, [16u, **;i;Xl,U ;#fiffifl,; rt*

lsnut- Itllol

. ,,",oir,^#rfr'l ."Fo'r 61).t/ ll,:tffi{"|b-r{t1 re



ATTACHMENT A

FOR THE SERVICES

TERM

FROM: Aptll25,2O17 1g.Aptil25, 2018

SCOPE OF WORK:

l. Background

Coso Operating Company (COC) har continued to extract water trom the Role Valley Basin in accordance with the provisions of
Condltlonal Use Petmit 2007-003. Pumping operations began ln December, 2009 and were extended several times based on observed
groundwater levels and groundwater model prediction5. COC has requested an evaluation of whether pumplng could be extended
based on the existlng standards of slgnillcant lmpact ln the HMMP, The proposed two pumping scenarlos are (1 ) an annual pumping
season of four months trom June through September, at a rate of I 00o gpm, and {2) a simllar pumplng season a rate thal ls sustainable
lndeflnltely.

ll, Scope of Work

Taskl, ContractorshallupdateandrecallbratetheRoseValleygroundwaterflowmodelbasedonactualpumpingrates,groundwater
level observations, updated recharge estlrnates, and a reevaluatlon of groundwater dircharge at Llttle Lake, Should any dlscrepanciet
be noted, contractor shall make recommendatlons for changes ln model parameters and/or boundary condltlons, as appropriate,

Task 2. The updated and recalibrated model shall be used to evaluate the two scenarios described above, subject ro the limitation that
groundwaterdlschargeatLittlelakedoesnotdeclinebymorethanl0%ofltsestimated20Ogvalue. Maxlmumdrawdownand
drawdown at the time when pumping cease5 thall be estimated at monitoring wells,

Task3. Theupdatedandtecalibratedrnodel shall beusedtoproduceaduratlonofpumplngforecenarlo(1)andapumpingrarefor
scenario (2).

Task 4. Results ofTasks I through 3 shall be reported to the Watev Deparlment ln the form of a letter report and updated model flles,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No- 156

(lndependcnl Consullanl -Professional)
Page 9

1?272016



FORTHE
AND Danl€l

OF

FROM: Apila25,2017

ATTAGHMENI B

BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
Aseoolatee, lnc,

TERM:

$CHEDULEOFFEE$:

1g1Aprll25,2018

SERVtCES

See attadred,

County ol lnyo Stilldard Conlruct - No. 150
(lndapendenl Corsullant -Protogslonal)

Pag6 10

122tNt6



# Danial B. Stephens & Associates, Inc

Standard $chedule of Fees
(Ef{ective January 1, 2017 thnugh Decembor 31, 2017)

Confidentlal

Professional Servlces
Principal Professional
Principal Professional
Senior Professional ll
Senior Professional I

Projecl Professional
Project Professional
ProJect Professional
Staff Professional lll
Slaff Professional ll
Staff Professional I .

Managlng Technicia
Principal Technician

il t..

Technlcian 1V............
Technician lll
Technician ll
Technician I

Base ll

Senior Technical Edhor
Technical Editor.............
ProjectAssistant 11...... ... . ... ..

Eiologist I

Expenses

. ... ..... $120.00/hout

..... .... $1'10.O0/hour
$95.00/hour

........... $120,0O/hour
$95.00/hour
$85,00/hour
$75.00/hour
$95.00/hour
$79.00ihour

....- ..... . ...Aclual cost
Actual cost or negotiated per diem rales

-. Prevaiting IRS rates

. $90/day + actual gas cost
...., . , ,. $45/ha1f day + aclual gas cosi

..,Prevafling IRS rates
. , ..Actualqrsl plus 1Vlo

.. . ,Special services at a#itlonal charge

il....,................ ....
t........"..........,.... .

."....... $168.00/hour

$250.001hour
$205,00/hour
$185.00/hour

00/hour
00/hour
00/hour
00/hour
001hour
fi)lhour

1t....,.....
$15s.
$145,
$125,
$115.
$105,

t.

n ...... ,00/hour
.00/hour

$105.00/hour
$90.O0/hout
$84,OO/hour
$78.O0lhour

$120.00/hour

Travel
Airfare, car renlal, cab, bus, parking
Lodging, meals, phone
Mileage

Personal vehicle .

Company vehicle
Daily rate. .

Half day rate
Mileage.- ..

Subcontraclors/temporary seoice
Computers and communicalions
Equipment

personnel ..

., Actual cost plus 10%
. . . Labor plus malerials

Actual cosl plus 1 0%
. Separale schedule available upon r€quest

IERMS
Payment lenns for profossional services and axpenses ars nel 30 days. lJnpoid batance wrll be assassad a sevice [ee
of 1.5% per month.

A,OIES
1 . All f6es are subject to local/slate sales ot gross recerpls tax, as applicabte.2. Delivery of tlepositions or experl teslimony will be biilatl at 1.s tines F€e sciec,u/s r€les.3. Woil( requking Heallh & Ssfely LevelQ or Level I protectian witt he bilted as a suroharqe, g25 or g5o per hour,

respeclively, lo lhe Fee Scheclule ralos.

Rentals (e.9., enyironmenlal monitors)
Fabrication in our shop............ .... .
MIsc. field equipment and supplies
Meters, gauges, and monitors.....,.



AqREEMEiIT SETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Danl€l B- Stophens & Aseoclates, lnc.

FORTHE PROVISION SERVICE9

AITACHMENTG

TERM:

FROII: Aprll25,2017 16.Aprll25, 20'18

SCHEDULE OF TRAVELAND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

counly ot lnto standard contnct . No, 156
(lndep€ndenl ConsultEnt -ProfesslonoD

Psge'lt

Ref€rto Attdchment B,

1227?lJ18



FOR THE

i9REEMENT BETWEEil GOUNTYOF II$YO
AND Daniel B, Slephens & Associatos, lno.

PROVtEtO

ATTACHflIENTO

TERIII:

26,2018

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

SERV|CE9

FROM: April 25, 2017

r

County of lnyo glandard Conua.{ . No. l5B
(lnd€psndsd Consullant -poforrlonal)

prg. tz
12n2016



Spccitications 2
Insu ra nce Rcq F iremen ts for P rofess ionnl Services,

Consultunt shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insutance against claims
for injuries to persons or datnages to property which may arise fiom or in conneciion with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, l,eptesentatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT oI{'INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Llability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00
01 covering cGL on an "occurence" basis for bodily injury and property damage,
including products-compleled operations, personal injury and advertising injury,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, lf a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall appty separliety to tnis
projecUlocation or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit,

2, Automobile Liability: lnsurance services office Form Number cA 0001
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code I (hired)
and 9 (non-owned), with lirnit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily'injury
and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensatlon insurance as required by the State of California, with
Slatutory Limits, and Employer's Liabillty lnsurance with limit of no less than
${,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
(Not requlred if consultant provldes wrftten verlflcation if has no

employees)

I ' Professional Liability (Erors and Omissions) Insurance appropriatcs to the Consultant's
profcssiono wilh limit no less than g1,000,000 per occurrence,

lf the Consultant rnaintains highel limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity
requires and shallbe cntitled to coverage forthe higher limits maintained by the Consultani.
Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of jnsurance and
coverage shall be available to the Entity.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or bc endorsed to contain, the following provisionsl

Addittonal Insured Sfalus

/. The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parls,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operationi, General liability
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's
insurance (at least as broad as tso Form cG 20 10 1't gs or both cG 20 10 and cG
20-37-brrns if later revisions useO;,



Olh er Ins uru nce Provisions

The insttrance policies are to contain, or bc endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant's insurance coverage
shall be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, offisials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or seli-insurance maintained by the
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the
Consultant's insurance and shall not conlribute with it,

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except wlth notice to the Enflty
Waiver of Subrogation

Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation whioh any insurer of said
Consultant may acquire agaiust the Entity by virtue of the pa-yment of any ioss under such
insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsernent thai niay be necessary to affect this
waivcr of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of wiether or not thc Entity has
received a waiver of subrogation endomement from thi insurer.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may requhe the Consultant to provide proof of iLitity to piy
losses and related investigations, clairn administration, and defense expensei
within the retention.

Acceptability of lnsurers
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, uniess othenruise acceptable to the Entity.

Claims Made policies

. ll "ny_ 
of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis;

1, The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance musi be provided for
at least llve (5) years after completion of the contract of wor|.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form wlth a Retroactive Date prior io the contract effective date,
the consultant must purchase "extended reporting,' coverage for a minimum oi
tive (5) years after comptetion of contract woik,
Verification of Coverage
Consultant shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endotsements or.copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
requlred by this clause. All certificates and endorseheits are to de receivdd and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive lhe Consultant's
obligation to provide-them. The Entity resarvei the riglrtto require eomplete;--



cerlified.copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
requlred by hese specifications, at any flme.

Subcontractors
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintnin insurance meeling all the
requ lremcnts stated herein.

Special Ris*t or Clrcumslanees
Enlity resewes the right to modifo these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the rlsk, prior experien@, insurer, coverago, or otfier spdcial
clrcumstanceE.



ATTACHMENT E

IGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF |NYO
AND Daniel B, Stephens & Associates, lnc.

Fo R TH E pp6yl s 161iffiHtd6mffiffin-el

tt--
FROM: April 25,2017 19,Apr1|25,2018

2

FEDERAL FUNDS ADOENDUM

Section 12, Part B, /nspecltuns and Audits, ol the contract is amended to read;

"Any authorlzed repft)sentalive of the county, ot ol a foderal, or state agancy shall have
accegs to any books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited'to, flnanclal
tecords of the consullant, which the county or federal or state agency delermines to be
pertinent to this Agreement, for the purpoges ol making audit, evaluation, oxamination,
sxcerpls, and_transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by
consultant Fuflher, lhe counly or federal or slate agoncy has the right, at all reasonable
times, to audit, inspect, or otheruise evaluate lhe woik pehormed or-uelng performed
under this Agreement. Copies of any of these records shall be lurnishedJf requosted."

Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Consultant warranls thal he/she has not employed or
retained any company ol person, other lhan a bona lide employee worklng for the consultani, to
solicit or secure this agr€emsnl, and that he/she has not paid or agreed tjpay any company or
person olher lhan a bona fide employee, any fee, commission, peicencge, niokeiage tie, !iR, or
any other consideraiion, contingent upon or resulflng from the a'ward, or iormation oilhis
agreement, For breach or violation of this warranty, the local agency shatl have the righ! lo annul
this agreement without llability, or at ils discretion; to Ceduct from thl agreemeni prtce or
consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commiision, perientage,
brokerage fee, gift, or contingenl fee.

Delays and Extensions. The term of the contract may be extended in ttre case of unavoidable
delays, changes in the scope of work or level ol effort required io meet lhe project objgctives, and
for consideration of corresponding warranted adjustments in payment. An irxt6nsionbf conlract
time is granted as described ln Section 23, Amendment, of the iontract.

Termlnatlon or Abandonment. The provisions of seclion 15, Default, will also apply lf the
contract is terminated because of circumstances beyond the control of the consultani, ttre
provisions of the section enli0ed "Gounty propertyi'seclion 2,8,, shall applyto any partially
completed work if the contract is terminated or abandoned.

geryrat Cornpliance with Laws and Wage Rates. The consultant shall comply with lhe State of
Callfornia's General Prevailing Wage Rate requirements in accordance wlh Cjlifornla Labor
Code, Section 177 , and all federal, state, and local laws and ordlnanc€B applicable to the work.

Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contlact if lor more than $25,000 for public works
construclion or more ihan $15,000 for the alteratlon, demolition, repair, or maintenance of public
works, shall contain all of the provisions of this Article,

3.

4.

5,

Counly ol ktyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consullanl -protessional)

Page 13

12272016



AGREEME
AND Daniel B. Stephens

ATTACHMENT E " Conilnued

NT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
& Associales, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISIOT{ OF

pggtr4; April 25,2017

TERTI,I:

16.April 25,2o1

FEDERAL FUNDS ADDENDUM

County ot lnyo Standard Contracl - No t56
(lndependent Consullanl -professional)

Page 14

SERVtCES

8

o. consultant's Endots€moni on P$&gOther Data, Ths consullanl's responsible englneer shallsign all plans, speciricauons, eslir'aros {ps&ey ani-engrnoerirs-J"iltui"ft-h;iii nrmner, anowhere appropriate, indlcnto hls/her Carifbrniiiilglslration number,

Dls-advantaged Bttslness Entetpllse Conslderations. consultanla must give consideratlon loDBE lkrns as specified in 23_cFR rTa.sattltciri, parr 20. The consulq;i s|ar cornpry wirnthe apPlicabl€ provislons of Exhhlt t o-1, 
' -lriorhe 

io Fropo^sors Dlsadvantaged Etushress Enlerprise|nloflnRlion,' and Exhlblt 1clJ, "stanclard ngroernent roi sluconiiacroilb-AE p"nicipation," lhalwere lncluded ln lhe Requost for Stalemen6 ol euairfications.

$afety' The consullant shall comply with OSHA regulations app[cable to the Consultanl
los.arul$ noco$sary safely ogurpnront or procedur&. The cdrisurrani Jrt"rii.ofniprv *ith safetylnslrtrclions.issrmd tly lhe counly's proiccr'rnanagsiano orner cot,nly nwi!r"-rir,rrium. consultantpersonnel shall woar harrl ltals ind saiety vesrr ii aI ti'ne ntr"^-i"iixirii i''iii,-ilon"r,ucrronprqed site.

Pursuant lo the authorlty conlained ln s€cllon 591 of the Vehlcle cods, the counly has det€rminsdlhat such aroes are wilhin the lirrrrls of the prqert anO sre open to pubtic trafflc The Consultantshall complv wrlh all of lho.requlfern€nts s6t r.iirii rn oivrsiorig r r,-r?,1i, ii, ir"o t5 of the VshicteCo<le' The consullant shall take ell reasonauiy n""uisary precautions for safe operation of itsv€hiclos and lrrc prorecrion of rhe rravering puriric im,iiinli,it;;il;6 rir^i IL.n vehicres.

Any subconlract entered into as a result of this conhact shall contain all of the provislons of iheArticle.

Dlsclosure of Lobbying Acflvrfies. Exhibit 10-e "Discrosure of Lobbying Activiiles,,,

consultant Management Posltlon conflict of tnterest confldenilaltty statement. Exhibit 10-U "Consultant ln Management position ConRict oi lnteresl Statement.,

7

I

I
10

1?27z}rc



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3857  

 

Amendment No. 5 to MOU between the County of Inyo 
and Tuolumne County 

Probation 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Jeffrey Thomson, Chief Probation Officer Jeffrey Thomson, Chief Probation Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A)    Approve Amendment No. 5 to the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo and 
the County of Tuolumne to extend the Agreement from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2025 and set the 
following daily rates: 
--- $175.00 per day from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 per youth placed at the Mother Lode 
Regional Juvenile Detention Facility with a guarantee of one (1) bed at the Tuolumne Juvenile Hall and 
$210.00 per day for every subsequent bed used by Inyo County, contingent upon the Board's approval of 
the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and 
--- $185.00 per day from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 per youth placed at the Mother Lode 
Regional Juvenile Detention Facility with a guarantee of one (1) bed at the Tuolumne Juvenile Hall and 
$225.00 per day for every subsequent bed used by Inyo County, contingent upon the Board's approval of 
the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget, and 
B)    Authorize the Chairperson and Chief Probation Officer to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
As a result of transitioning the Inyo County Juvenile Center from a full service juvenile hall to a special 
purpose juvenile hall, the County of Inyo entered into an agreement with Tuolumne County on 
September 22, 2017, to obtain facilities and services for the detention and/or commitment of juvenile 
offenders. In the last 3 years Inyo County has averaged approximately 3 youth per day detained in any of 
the four (4) juvenile halls that Inyo has a Memorandum of Understanding with for detention beds. These 
MOUs include: El Dorado County at a cost of $350/day for detention and $400/day for the commitment 
program; Kern County at a cost of $175/day for detention and $200/day for the commitment program; 
and Tulare County at a cost of $135/day. In an effort to utilize detention beds in the most cost effective 
way, a contract with Tuolumne for one (1) guaranteed bed is recommended. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund  Budget Unit 023101 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure as needed  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
FY 24/25 the rates will increase to 185.00 per day with a guarantee of one (1) bed at the Tuolumne 
Juvenile Hall and $250.00 per day for every subsequent bed used by Inyo County. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Tuolumne County Memorandum of Understanding  
2. FY 20-21 MOU Amendment No. 1 
3. FY 20-21 MOU Amendment No. 2 
4. FY 21-22 MOU Amendment No. 3 
5. FY 22-23 MOU Amendment No. 4  
6. FY 23-24 Amendment No. 5  
  
APPROVALS: 
Krystal Leonard Created/Initiated - 6/13/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/14/2023 
Krystal Leonard Approved - 6/14/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/20/2023 
Krystal Leonard Approved - 6/20/2023 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 6/20/2023 
Jeffrey Thomson Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











































 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3812  

 

Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Project - Resolution & 
Notice of Completion 

Public Works - Parks & Recreation 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Elsa Fitch, Engineering Assistant II Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Resolution No. 2023-20 titled, “A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, 
State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Diaz Lake Water System 
Upgrade Project,” and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
At the May 17, 2022 meeting of the Board of Supervisors, your Board approved plans and specifications 
for the Project, and authorized the Public Works Director to advertise the project for bids. This project 
was part of the Prop 68 Per Capita grant funding. The project was advertised for bids on July 5th and 
July12th, 2022. Clair Concrete, Inc. was the lowest fully responsive and responsible bidder with a total 
bid of $409,109.00 on July 27th,2022. The project was awarded to Clair Concrete, inc. at the Board 
meeting on August 9th, 2022. A Notice to Proceed was issued on November 1, 2022. The scope-of-work 
as defined in the bid package was completed according to the contract with Clair Concrete, Inc. by April 
20th, 2023. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund / Grant Funded 
(list grant funding sources here) 

Budget Unit 670200 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5630 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure / Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

The Board could choose not to approve the Resolution.  Consequently, the project would not be formally 
accepted and the Notice of Completion could not be filed.  Choosing not to approve the Resolution is not 
recommended as it will extend the period during which stop notices can be filed and will delay return of 
retention monies to the Contractor. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Notice of Completion and Resolution  
  
APPROVALS: 
Elsa Fitch Created/Initiated - 6/20/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/20/2023 
Greg Waters Approved - 6/20/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 6/20/2023 
Michael Errante Approved - 6/20/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/20/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/21/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RESOLUTION #2023 - XXXXX 
 

“A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE 

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

FOR THE 
DIAZ LAKE WATER SYSTEM UPGRADE PROJECT” 

 
 

WHEREAS, Michael Errante, Director of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo, has 
determined that the Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Project has been completed by Clair Concrete, Inc. 
of Bishop, CA in accordance with the Project Plans and Specifications. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Public Works is hereby authorized 
and directed to sign and file with the County Recorder a separate Notice of Completion pertaining to the  
Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Project. 
 
Passed, approved and adopted this             day of                        , 2023 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
     
             
      Jen Roeser, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Nate Greenberg, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
by       

Assistant Clerk of the Board  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
Inyo County Public Works Department 
P. O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 
 

 
 

                                                                                               The area above this line is for Recorder’s Use 

 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 
 
1. A work of improvement known as the Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Project on the property 
hereinafter described was completed on April 20th, 2023 and was accepted by the Board of Supervisors, County 
of Inyo on _____________. 
 
2. The property on which the Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Project has been completed is located on 
property owned by Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP) 
 
3. The County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the address of which is 224 North 
Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526, maintains the Diaz Lake Water System. The real 
property at which the Diaz Lake Water System is located is owned by LADWP. 
 
4. The undersigned, Michael Errante, is the Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo and has been duly 
authorized pursuant to Resolution adopted ____________, by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo to 
execute and file this Notice of Completion. 
 
5. The name of the original contractor that constructed the Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Project, 
pursuant to contract with the County, is Clair Concrete, Inc. of Bishop, CA 
 
Pursuant to the contract, the contractor was required to furnish all labor, materials, methods or processes, 
implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation services, and all other items and related functions 
which are necessary or appurtenant to construct the project designated in the contract. 
 
       COUNTY OF INYO 
 
 
 
Dated:        By:         
       Michael Errante, Director of Public Works 



 

VERIFICATION 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
     )  SS. 
COUNTY OF INYO  ) 
 
 
I, Michael Errante, hereby declare: That I am the Director of Public Works for the County of 
Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the public entity on behalf of which I 
executed the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION for the  Diaz Lake Water System 
Upgrade Project, and which entity is the owner of the aforesaid interest or estate in the 
property therein described; that I am authorized by the public entity to execute this NOTICE on 
the entity’s behalf; that I am authorized to and hereby make this verification on behalf of the 
public entity; and that I have read said NOTICE and know the contents thereof.  I declare under 
penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the NOTICE and the 
information set forth therein are true and correct. 
 
 
 
Dated:      ____________________________________ 
      Michael Errante 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3851  

 

North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Bridge 
Replacement Project  - Resolution & Notice of 

Completion 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve proposed Resolution No. 2023-21 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the North 
Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Bridge Replacement Project," and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
North Round Valley Bridge washed out during the spring runoff of 2017, in a flood event that was 
declared both a 
County and State emergency. The County received a 75% matching fund from the California Office of 
Emergency Services to replace the bridge. 
 

1. Inyo County Board of Supervisors awarded the design consultant contract to MGE Engineering, 
Inc of Sacramento, CA on July 10th, 2018. 

2. The Board subsequently awarded a construction management consulting contract to 
Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim, CA on July 7th, 2020. 

3. The construction contract was awarded to Spiess Construction Company of Santa Maria, CA on 
January 5th, 2021. 

4. Inyo County Public Works formally accepted the bridge structure as constructed on June 12th, 
2023. 

 
 
  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund  Budget Unit 034600 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5717 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure (through project completion)  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
N/A 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
N/A 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve the proposed Resolution authorizing the Public Works Director 
to file a Notice of Completion and the Contractor would not be paid his retention. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Replacement Project - Notice of Completion and 

Resolution 
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 6/9/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/13/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 6/13/2023 
Michael Errante Approved - 6/14/2023 
Greg Waters Approved - 6/15/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/19/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2023 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 6/20/2023 
Greg Waters Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RESOLUTION #2023 - XXXXX 
 

“A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE 

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

FOR THE 
NORTH ROUND VALLEY BRIDGE OVER PINE CREEK BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT” 
 
 

WHEREAS, Michael Errante, Director of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo, has 
determined that the North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Bridge Replacement Project has been 
completed by Spiess Construction Co., Inc. in accordance with the Project Plans and Specifications. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Public Works is hereby authorized 
and directed to sign and file with the County Recorder a separate Notice of Completion pertaining to the  
North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Bridge Replacement Project. 
 
Passed, approved and adopted this             day of                        , 2023 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
     
             
      Jen Roeser, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Nate Greenberg, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
by       

Assistant Clerk of the Board  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
Inyo County Public Works Department 
P. O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 
 

 
 

                                                                                               The area above this line is for Recorder’s Use 

 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 
 
1. A work of improvement known as the North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Bridge 
Replacement Project on the property hereinafter described was completed on June 12th, 2023 and was 
accepted by the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo on June 27th, 2023. 
 
2. The property on which the North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Bridge Replacement Project is 
owned by Inyo County, California 
 
3. The County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the address of which is 224 North 
Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526, owns and maintains the North Round Valley 
Bridge Over Pine Creek, which is located north of Bishop, CA. 
 
4. The undersigned, Michael Errante, is the Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo and has been duly 
authorized pursuant to Resolution adopted June 27th, 2023, by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo 
to execute and file this Notice of Completion. 
 
5. The name of the original contractor that constructed the North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek 
Bridge Replacement Project, pursuant to contract with the County, is Spiess Construction Co., Inc. 
 
Pursuant to the contract, the contractor was required to furnish all labor, materials, methods or processes, 
implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation services, and all other items and related functions 
which are necessary or appurtenant to construct the project designated in the contract. 
 
       COUNTY OF INYO 
 
 
 
Dated:        By:         
       Michael Errante, Director of Public Works 



 

VERIFICATION 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
     )  SS. 
COUNTY OF INYO  ) 
 
 
I, Michael Errante, hereby declare: That I am the Director of Public Works for the County of 
Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the public entity on behalf of which I 
executed the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION for the  North Round Valley Bridge 
Over Pine Creek Bridge Replacement Project, and which entity is the owner of the aforesaid 
interest or estate in the property therein described; that I am authorized by the public entity to 
execute this NOTICE on the entity’s behalf; that I am authorized to and hereby make this 
verification on behalf of the public entity; and that I have read said NOTICE and know the 
contents thereof.  I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 
that the NOTICE and the information set forth therein are true and correct. 
 
 
 
Dated:      ____________________________________ 
      Michael Errante 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3823  

 

Presentation of Assessor's Office Operations 
Assessor 

 NO ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
David Stottlemyre, Assesor David Stottlemyre, Assesor 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive a presentation from the Assessor summarizing the work done within the Assessor’s office, and 
concluding with an introduction to current/future projects followed by Q&A. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Assessor’s office is comprised of three key divisions: Assessment Administration, Real Property 
Appraisals, Personal Property Appraisals.  These divisions exist to create the annual assessment roll. 
Upon certification by the Assessor, the assessment roll is forwarded to the Auditor-Controller and 
eventually the Treasurer-Tax Collector and is the basis for generating property tax revenue.  All actions 
of the Assessor are governed by statute and are overseen by the California State Board of Equalization. 
This presentation is designed to provide a general overview of the workflow within the Assessor’s office. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo County Assessor Presentation 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/20/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/20/2023 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 6/21/2023 
David Stottlemyre Final Approval - 6/21/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AN OVERVIEW OF
THE ASSESSOR’S OFFICE

Dave Stottlemyre
Assessor

JAN 1, 2023



Disclaimer

• Information only

• Not legal advice

• Seek professional counsel



• The History of Assessors.

• Our office. 

• Property tax workflow.

• The fundamentals of the appraisal process.

• Appeals process.

• BOE oversight of county assessors.

• Current and future projects.



















Organizational Chart

Auditor-Appraiser
Vacant Office Tech

Lavon Sargent

Admin Analyst
Katie Bardonnex

Assessor
Dave Stottlemyre

Assistant Assessor
Allison Krohn

Appraiser
Vacant

Appraiser
Gabe Dominguez Office Tech

Alisha Hanson

Auditor-Appraiser
Steve Kent

Admin & Assessment 
Analyst

Katie Bardonnex

Assessor
Dave Stottlemyre

Assistant Assessor
Allison Krohn



The 
Assessor's 

Office 
Consists of 

three 
divisions:



Property Tax Workflow

City/County Agencies
Provides copies of permits 

issued

Recorder
Provides copies of deeds and 
other recorded documents

Assessor
Assesses all real and personal property (businesses, 
manufactured homes, boats, and airplanes) located 

throughout the County



Property Tax Workflow
Auditor-Controller

Receives the assessments and applies the appropriate tax 
rate to determine the actual amount of property tax owed

Treasurer-Tax Collector
Mails out the property tax bills, collects the money, and 

deposits it in the County Treasury

Auditor-Controller
Allocates the money to local taxing agencies, 
including the County, city, schools and special 

districts



Real Property

Value is an 
Opinion ...



10,227 square miles or 6,545,280 acres

2nd largest county in CA.

22 official wilderness areas that are part of 
the National Wilderness Preservation 
System.

Death Valley National Park consists of 5,262 
square miles – over half

NPS, BLM, USFS, DOD, BIA = 92%

Remaining available Land is 8%

Of that 3.9% is owned by LADWP
and 2.4% is State owned

Leaving 1.7% available for private ownership



Real Property 
consists of

• Land

• Land + Buildings

• Trees & Vines



Real Property 
consists of

• Land

• Land + Buildings

• Trees & Vines



Real Property 
consists of

• Land

• Land + Buildings

• Trees & Vines



CA Proposition 13

• Passed in June 1978
• Amended the CA Constitution

• 1% Tax Rate
• Acquisition-based System
• Established a Base Year Value
• 2% Inflation Limit

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The maximum value real property can be taxed under the law.



• Example: You purchase a house for $200,000 in 2021.
• Assessor agrees that $200,000 = fair market value
• A 2021 base value of $200,000 is determined by the Assessor.
• $200,000 value  x  1% tax rate  =  $2,000 taxes due

Maximum increase of 2% per year
Year 2 $200,000 x 1.02% = $204,000 or $2,040 taxes due
Year 3 $204,000 x 1.02% = $208,000 or $2,080 taxes due
Year 4 $208,000 x 1.02% = $212,300 or $2,123 taxes due
Year 5 $212,300 x 1.02% = $216,500 or $2,165 taxes due

Proposition 13 How does it work?

Presenter_1
Presentation Notes
As I’ve mentioned, the 2% limit is a maximum increase by statute. The annual inflation adjustment is calculated by the state each year and is based on the California Consumer Price Index. During periods of economic stagnation, the annual adjustment can be less than 2%. Once, in 2010, the annual adjustment decreased values.



What happens if 
there is a decline 
in Market Value?



CA 
Proposition 

8

Passed in November 1978

Temporary assessment reduction 
is authorized

Yearly determination of market 
value as of Jan. 1

Annual increases are NOT limited 
to 2%



Presenter_2
Presentation Notes
Once a property enters decline-in-value status, the Assessor is obligated to review the market value of the property every year until the Prop. 13 value is restored.



0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200

2020

2021

2022

2023

Year Ending Prop 8



      There are 3 Appraisal Methods
The most common being the Sales Comparison Approach for most Residential Properties.

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH: USED 
FOR ALL PROPERTY TYPES

INCOME APPROACH: USED FOR INCOME 
PRODUCING PROPERTIES SUCH AS 

COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS AND 
APARTMENTS

COST APPROACH: USED WHEN VALUING 
A COMPLETED NEW CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT

Presenter_3
Presentation Notes
Business and personal property assessment relies in large part on the application of the cost approach.



Important dates 
to remember as 
a Real Property 
Appraiser:

January 1 – the 
lien date

June 30 – the 
roll close date



Real Property 
(Secured) Statistics for 
2022:
- # of ALL recorded documents received 

657 of that 514 were reappraisable 
events

- # of NC Permit's received from Inyo Co 
520

- # of NC Permit's received from The City of 
Bishop 204

- # of NC Permit's received from 
Environmental Health and HCD 25

- # of Prop 8 properties reviewed 554

- # of Mobile Home Park Reviews 
completed 142



2023 Real Property current 
assessment trends:



Business & 
Personal 
Property



Business & Personal 
Property consists of

• Machinery & Equipment

• Office Furniture

• Business Computers

• Airplanes

• Boats and Vessels



Business & 
Personal Property 
consists of

• Machinery Equipment

• Office Furniture

• Business Computers

• Airplanes

• Boats and Vessels



Business & Personal 
Property consists of

• Machinery Equipment

• Office Furniture

• Business Computers

• Airplanes

• Boats and Vessels



Business & Personal 
Property consists of

• Machinery Equipment

• Office Furniture

• Business Computers

• Airplanes

• Boats and Vessels



Business & 
Personal Property 
consists of

• Machinery Equipment

• Office Furniture

• Business Computers

• Airplanes

• Boats and Vessels



How is Business and Personal property 
appraised?

• Statements are generated and mailed out at the beginning of the year
• Statements are due back by 4/1 and considered late after 5/7
• Each account must be manually updated with each statement’s reported 

changes.
• Statements received after the 5/7 date are subject to a 10% late filing fee 

AND additional assets may be added based on the appraiser’s knowledge 
of that type of business.

• Statements not turned in at all are flagged for Audit and are subject to up 
to four years of supplemental assessments.



• Business Accounts = 1673

• Airplanes = 54

• Boats & Vessels = 374

• Unpatented Mining Claims = 223 accounts containing approx. 5,000 claims

• Patented Mining Claims = 82

Current Approximate  Number of Unsecured Accounts:



$4,851,091,686

$496,003,710

2022 Assessment Rolls
Secured & Unsecured   

Secured Roll

Unsecured Roll





$73,803,176



2023 Business Property 
current trends:



Assessment 
Appeals

• Due process for taxpayers
• Formal hearing
• Impartial body
• Evidence

Current number of open appeals: 22



BOE Oversight

 Promotes  uniformity in assessment

 Property Tax Rules

 Assessor’s Handbooks

 Letters to Assessors

 Assessor staff training and certification

 Assessment Practices Surveys



• Enhance permit processing

• Improve our educational outreach 
process

• Digitize office files

• Ongoing Aumentum improvements

• Reinstate our audit program 
(12/year)

• Fill vacant positions

Current and Future Plans



QUESTIONS &  ANSWERS

Q…A

We should never forget the work we do each day is critical to Inyo 
County’s economic health, prosperity, and continuing recovery from 
the pandemic.



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 27, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3788  

 

Adult and Juvenile Probation Presentation  
Probation 

 NO ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Jeffrey Thomson, Chief Probation Officer Jeffrey Thomson, Chief Probation Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive a presentation on the Adult and Juvenile Probation programs. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Adult and Juvenile Probation Presentation 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund / Grant Funded 
(list grant funding sources here) 

Budget Unit  

Budgeted? Yes / No Object Code  
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure / Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo County Probation Presentation 
  
APPROVALS: 
Krystal Leonard Created/Initiated - 5/9/2023 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/9/2023 
Krystal Leonard Approved - 5/9/2023 
Jeffrey Thomson Approved - 6/20/2023 
Krystal Leonard Approved - 6/20/2023 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 6/20/2023 
Jeffrey Thomson Final Approval - 6/20/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2023 OVERVIEW

Inyo County Probation Department



MISSION / VISION

Mission Statement

Our mission is to serve the community and the Court by providing meaningful, timely information, enforcing court 

orders, assisting victims, and facilitating the re-socialization of clients through research-based treatment modalities.

Inyo County Probation Department Vision

Our Vision is to provide services that allow our clients to remain in the community as productive citizens while 

assisting in repairing harm to our community. This is accomplished by: 

• Ensuring clients comply with Court orders and supervision conditions and helping the clients to learn to act in 

socially responsible ways. 

• Aiding victims of crime and collecting restitution. 

Program Elements

Supervision   Victim advocacy

Fairness and Respect  Investigations

Integrity    Accountability, both client and systemic

Community Protection  Behavior Change Using Best Practices



WHAT IS PROBATION?

Community - Pride - Progress
Restoring Trust and Creating Hope

As a criminal justice sanction, probation is a tool that holds people convicted of crimes 
accountable and helps oversee their rehabilitation using evidence-based rehabilitation 
strategies. Evidence-based practices are supported by scientific research to reduce 
recidivism. 
The goal of Probation is to prevent crime and delinquency, reduce recidivism, restore 
victims and promote healthy families and communities by doing the following: 
   • Making recommendations to the courts and enforcing its orders in     
     communities by providing supervision and treatment for juveniles and adults.
   • Administering research-based juvenile and adult probation programs.



CORE & MANDATED SERVICES

INVESTIGATION AND 

RECOMMENDATION TO COURT
1000.1(b) PC

APPOINTMENT FOR SENTENCE

(20 days for a POR) 1191 PC

VICTIM NOTIFICATION OF 

SENTENCE PROCEEDINGS
1191.1 PC

VICTIM’S RIGHTS 1191.2 PC

CONDUCT AND WORKTIME 

CREDITS
1191.3(b) PC

PRE-SENTENCE INVESTIGATION 1203 PC

INVESTIGATION REPORT 1203(b)(1)

RECOMMENDATION GRANTING OR 

DENYING PROBATION
1203(b)(2)(A) PC

MISDEMEANOR CASES
1203(d) PC

INVESTIGATION TO DETERMINE 

RESTITUTION FOR DEFENDANTS 

INELIGIBLE FOR PROBATION

1203(g) PC

SEX OFFENDER ASSESSMENT AND 

EVALUATION
1203(b)(3)) PC

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

(Presentence Investigation and 

recommendation)

52 WEEK PROGRAM CERTIFICATION

1203.097 PC

SENTENCING

(Early termination, modification, discharge 

of sentence, change of plea)

1203.2a PC

PROP 36

(Drug diversion)
1210.1 PC

RESTITUTION
1203(b)(2)(D)(i-ii) 

PC

COURT SERVICES



CORE & MANDATED SERVICES

PROBATION

SUPERVISION

PRCS/MSO

AB109, AB117, PC 3450

PC 3465 & PC1170(h)(5(b)

COURT ORDER SUPERVISION

PROBATION IS ESSENTIAL
1202.7 PC

SUPERVISION

VOP
1203.2(a) PC

FLASH

INCARCERATION
1203.35 PC

SUPERVISION

TRANSFERS IN
1203.9 PC

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

BATTERER’S CERTIFICATION 1203.097 PC

INTAKE
1203.12 PC

SEX OFFENDER: GPS SUPERVISION
1202.8 PC

DNA REQUIREMENTS
296 PC

GANG VIOLENCE SUPPRESSION

(Funding) 13826.5 PC

INTERSTATE COMPACT
11177(2)PC

SUPERVISION RECORDS

1203.10 PC

DRUG TESTS 1203.1ab

SUPERVISION SERVICES



CORE & MANDATED SERVICES

• Policy Reforms •  Collaboration and partnerships

• Reducing Revocations 
     (for technical violations)

•  Technology

• Evaluating Fines & Fees • Community Engagement

• Specialization of Caseloads • Evidenced Based Practices



PROBATION DEPARTMENT STRUCTURE

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
• Chief Probation Officer

• Deputy Chief Probation Officer

• Probation Manager

• Administrative Analyst III

ADMIN. SERVICES DIVISION FTE

• Legal Secretary III   1.0

• Office Technician III  1.0

• Office Clerk III   1.0

ADULT SERVICES DIVISION  FTE

• Deputy Probation Officer III  2.0

• Deputy Probation Officer II   1.0

• Deputy Probation Officer III (vacant) 2.0

 (Pretrial MOU, 1 DPO)

• Probation Services Coordinator  1.0

JUVENILE SERVICES DIVISION  FTE

• Deputy Probation Officer III  1.0

• Deputy Probation Officer I/II (vacant) 1.0

• Rehabilitation Specialist III   3.0

• Rehabilitation Specialist II   2.0

• Rehabilitation Specialist I (vacant)  3.0



ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES



Administrative staff are the first members you see or talk to as 

you encounter the Department.

They complete a wide variety of tasks within the Department 

including: 

• Data Entry 

• Review and Edit Reports

• Payroll

• Collection of monies

• Contracts within the County

ADMINISTRATIVE  SERVICES



Total number of adult reports reviewed and 

edited in 2022 – 187

Report Types:

• Felony/Misdemeanor Sentencing

• Supplemental Reports

• Evaluations

• 1203(c) 

• 1203.4

• 1170(h)

ADMINISTRATIVE HIGHLIGHTS

Number of Juvenile referrals 2022 - 138

Total number of Juvenile reports reviewed 

and edited in 2022 – 44

Report Types:

• Dispositional 

• Detention

• Review

Total amount of Victim Restitution collected in 2022 

$17,577

ADMINISTRATIVE  SERVICES



ADULT SERVICES



CASELOADS, PROGRAMMING, SERVICES

Supervision Caseloads
 Collaborative Courts 

• Drug Court
• Re-Entry Court 
     (Post Release Community Supervision & Mandatory Supervision client)

Domestic Violence Supervision
Alcohol, Drug & Property Crimes
Violent crimes (non-DV)
Mental Health Diversion
Pretrial Supervision
Interstate Compact



CASELOADS, PROGRAMMING, SERVICES

“The secret to change is to focus all of 
your energy not on fighting the old, but 
on building the new”- Socrates

• Electronic Monitoring
• Moral Reconation Therapy
• Domestic Violence-MRT
• Coping with Anger-MRT
• Thinking for Good-MRT (Confronting 

Anti-social & Criminal Thinking)
• Breaking the Chains of Trauma MRT 

(Women’s. & Men’s version)
• What Do I Do Now? Opioid program

• Evidence Based Interactive 
Journaling

• Courage to Change series
• Anger Management
• Drug Court
• Corrective Actions Curriculum
• Breaking the Cycle Curriculum

PROGRAMS



CASELOADS, PROGRAMMING, SERVICES

SERVICES

• Court: Reports, terms and conditions, VOP complaints, 
    Pretrial Supervision, program supervision. 
• Community events: Shop w/ a Cop, Job fairs, DV symposiums,  
    Opioid symposium, Every 15 minutes, National Night Out 
• Emergency housing assistance
• Transportation assistance (providing bus passes, bicycles, etc..)
• Residential Treatment; intake and transportation
• Reentry assistance; clothing, employment, legal 
    documents
• Referrals to other services



SOME OF THE MANY SKILLS REQUIRED TO BE A 

PROBATION PROFESSIONAL

Skills Acquired and Used by Probation Officers:
• Command Presence
• Confidence
•  Emotional Intelligence
• Motivational Interviewing
• Role Play
• Trauma Informed Care
• Use of appropriate sanctions & incentives to 

enhance motivation
• Techniques to enhance intrinsic motivation



KEY INITIATIVES & BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

• AB 109 

• Pretrial

• Domestic Violence 
Treatment

• Care Court 

Community Correction Partnership Funding

SB129 – Pretrial MOU with Court

SB 678 (Community Correction Incentive) 
and CCP Funding

No funding directly to probation



CELEBRATIONS

Drug Court 2021-2022

Referrals - 25

Accepted to program - 17

Graduations - 10

Re-Entry 2021-2022

Released from CDCR on PRCS - 24

Released from County jail on MSO - 4

Successful completions - 6



Programming success continued

Domestic Violence 
MRT Program
2022 completions- 14

       No new domestic violence crimes     
       committed by those who successfully   
       completed the program 

        in 2022

AND MORE CELEBRATIONS



COMMUNITY SERVICE



COMMUNITY WORK SERVICE

Total number of hours donated to the community in 2022 was 1,252

SITES THROUGHOUT THE COUNTY
• VFW Club Breakfasts
• Laws Railroad Museum
• Easter Egg Hunt
• Trout Derby
• Mule Days
• Resilience Symposium
• Memorial Day Flags
• Graffiti Removal
• Eastern California Museum – Ind
• Cemetery/Flags – BP
• American Legion – BP
• Skate Park – LP

• Cemetery – LP
• Tribal Suicide Prevention-bag 

stuffing
• Community Garden
• Lion’s Club booth
•  Fairgrounds
•  Healthy Comm. – LP
• County Building – LP
• Thrift Store – LP
• Juvenile Detention Center – Ind
• Lavender Ranch – LP
• Town Park - LP

• Salvation Army 
• Toiyabe
• Round Valley School
• Inyo Council for the 

Arts
• Millpond Music 

Festival
• IMAH Thrift Store
• Wild Iris
• Chamber of 

Commerce
• Bishop Tribe



JUVENILE SERVICES



PREVENTION is the foundation

Supervision

General 
Prevention

Restoring 
Trust

Creating 
Hope

Prevention



  Presence at public events

 Public education 

 Assisting with community events

 Presentations to community 

 Collaboration with other agencies

GENERAL PREVENTION



Early Intervention 

• Group programming

• Mentoring support

• Informal services 

• Evidence-based programming

• Short term (targeted) support

• Summer and after school programs
 

PREVENTION PROGRAMMING

In the 2021-2022 school year, 120 local 

students participated in the Early Intervention 

Program and Juvenile Supervision per month. 

86 of these youth were not on Probation.



MORE PREVENTION

Some of our Event Partners
• Big Pine Tribe
• Bishop Tribe
• California Highway Patrol
• Healthy Communities of Southern Inyo
• HHS Outdoor Camps
• Inyo Council for the Arts
• Inyo County Sheriff Office
• Inyo County Office of Education
• Inyo County Veterans Program
• Lone Pine Tribe/ Lone Pine TANF
• Mexican Consulate
• North Star Counseling
• Sacred Rok  
• Toiyabe Wellbriety



Lone Pine High School Mock Crash
     -January 27, 2023

     Summer Programming
             -Bishop, Lone Pine, Big Pine
              116 Youth served Summer of 2022

    Probation Long Beach Aquarium Trip
                            -July 28, 2022
                   6 Youth Participated

SOME PREVENTION HIGHLIGHTS



Weekend Work 
Program

(A Program Alternative 
to Secure Detention)

SUPERVISION & CURRENT SERVICES

In 2021-2022, 15 youth provided 196 hours of work service 

throughout Inyo County communities for Weekend Work Program.

A Glance at Current Programs
• Early Intervention at BUES, HSMS, BUHS, KBS, JKBS, 

BPS, OVS, LP schools (RV and DV-working on it)
• After school Program-Keith Bright, LP Groups
• Girls Group-HSMS, BUHS, LP Office
• Boys Group-Lo-Inyo
• Weekend Work Program-2x per month
• Anger Management-JKBS
• Vaping Cessation-HSMS, JKBS
• DMV Permit Tutoring Class
• Victim Awareness Program
• Every 15 minutes at BUHS
• Sacred Rok (Collaborative)
• Toiyabe  Wellbriety (Collaborative)In the Works

   LP Summer Programming
   Collaborating with Eastside Student Center
   Expanding representation at after school programs



RESULTS FOR JUVENILE PROGRAMS

• Increased demand for Early Intervention Services

• Increased need for Summer Programming

• Reduced numbers for formal supervision

• Reduced need for Court Intervention 

• Reduced numbers for Placements

• Increased collaboration with Agency Partners

• Increased connection with community



JUVENILE INSTITUTIONS

• Juvenile Detention is used as a last resort after using alternative 
services and programs.

• Youth are detained when there is a need for the protection of the 
youth or others.

• Youth arrested by law enforcement are assessed with the Detention 
Risk Assessment Instrument (DRAI) to help identify the need for 
detention.

MOU/Contract with El Dorado, Tuolumne, Kern, and Tulare Counties 



JUVENILE INSTITUTIONS

Juvenile Detentions in 2022

Number of youth detained: 8

Number of youth booked: 6

Length of stay: 6 - 365 days

Both male and female 

Age: 14-17 years

Cost to Detain Youth: 

$175 - $400 youth/day

Travel Cost: 2 staff per trip.

6 trips per youth (court: detention, 

settlement, disposition)

Secure Youth Treatment Facility: 

$400+. There is no set cost yet. 

SB 823 funds will cover most of the 

cost.



KEY INITIATIVES & BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

• Juvenile accountability without 
criminalization

• Alternatives to justice system 
involvement

• Individualized response based 
on needs and risks

• Confinement only when 
necessary for public safety

• Juvenile Detention

• SB 823 - DJJ - Division Of Juvenile 
Justice closure

• JJCPA – Juvenile Justice Crime 
Prevention Act

• YOBG – Youth Offender Block Grant

• CCR - Continuum of Care Reform

• FFPSA - Family First Prevention 
Services Act

• Cost of detention is increasing – 
beds and transportation



PROBATION IS A CONNECTOR


	20230627AgendaPacket
	 Call to Order
	1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s) Comments 

	 Closed Session
	2) Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litiga
	3) Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Pursuant 
	4) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursu

	 Open Session
	5) Pledge of Allegiance
	6) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law
	7) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	8) County Department Reports

	 Consent Agenda
	9) Contract between the County of Inyo and Mammoth La
	Agenda Request Form
	Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District - Inyo County Agreement

	10) Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft June 13, 2023 Minutes
	Draft June 20, 2023 Minutes

	11) Continuation of Local Emergency
	Agenda Request Form
	Spring Runoff 2023 Proclamation - Ratified
	Spring Runoff 2023 Proclamation

	12) Domain Name Authorization
	Agenda Request Form
	Domain Name Request

	13) Inyo-Mono County Veterans Services Office - Annual
	Agenda Request Form
	Medi-Cal Certificate of Compliance - FY 2023-24
	Subvention Certificate of Compliance - FY 2023-24

	14) Approval of Hiring a Hazardous Materials Program M
	Agenda Request Form

	15) CDPH Immunization Branch Local Assistance Grant Ag
	Agenda Request Form
	Grant Agreement
	Exhibit F - Federal Terms and Conditions
	Contractor Certification Clauses
	CA Civil Rights Laws Certification

	16) Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. f
	Agenda Request Form
	Stantec Consulting ChemRisk Contract

	17) Modification to Subcontractor Agreement with Advoc
	Agenda Request Form
	Modified AHP Crisis Care Mobile Units Subcontractor Agreement
	AHP Crisis Care Mobile Units Subcontractor Agreement

	18) Program Funding Agreement for CCE-CP
	Agenda Request Form
	Program Funding Agreement

	19) Life Generations Healthcare, LLC Amendment No. 1 
	Agenda Request Form
	Life Generations Healthcare Contract Amendment No. 1 

	20) California Department of Aging FY 2023-24 Area Plan
	Agenda Request Form
	Standard Agreement AP-2324-16
	Scope of Work, etc.
	Summary of Changes 
	Budget Display
	General Information
	Information Integrity and Security Statement
	CA Civil Rights Laws Certification
	Contractor Certification Clauses

	21) Modernizing Older Californians Act Nutrition Servi
	Agenda Request Form
	Standard Agreement NM-2324-16
	Scope of Work, etc.
	Budget Displays
	Information Integrity and Security Statement
	General Information
	CA Civil Rights Laws Certification
	Contractor Certification Clauses

	22) Modernizing Older Californians Act Supportive Serv
	Agenda Request Form
	Standard Agreement OM-2223-16 
	Scope of Work, etc.
	Budget Display
	Project Representatives
	Contractor Certification Clauses
	Information Integrity and Security Statement
	CA Civil Rights Laws Certification

	23) Agreement for the Provision of Personal Services a
	Agenda Request Form
	Public Health Officer Contract

	24) Approval of Hiring a Public Health Nurse at Step E
	Agenda Request Form

	25) eXemplar Human Services Contract
	Agenda Request Form
	FY 23-25 Exemplar Contract 

	26) Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc. Contract Ame
	Agenda Request Form
	DB Stevens Contract Amendment 7
	DB Stevens Contract Amendment 6

	27) Amendment No. 5 to MOU between the County of Inyo 
	Agenda Request Form
	Tuolumne County Memorandum of Understanding 
	FY 20-21 MOU Amendment No. 1
	FY 20-21 MOU Amendment No. 2
	FY 21-22 MOU Amendment No. 3
	FY 22-23 MOU Amendment No. 4 
	FY 23-24 Amendment No. 5 

	28) Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Project - Resolutio
	Agenda Request Form
	Diaz Lake Water System Upgrade Notice of Completion and Resolution 

	29) North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Bridge R
	Agenda Request Form
	North Round Valley Bridge Over Pine Creek Replacement Project - Notice of Completion and Resolution


	 Regular Agenda
	30) Presentation of Assessor's Office Operations
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County Assessor Presentation

	31) Adult and Juvenile Probation Presentation
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County Probation Presentation


	 Additional Public Comment & Reports
	32) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	33) Board Member and Staff ReportsReceive updates on r





